
Finance Committee Agenda

Tuesday, June 10, 2025, 8:30 AM
EXECUTIVE CONFERENCE ROOM - 3RD FLOOR
1 Civic Center Circle
Brea, CA 92821

MEMBERS: Council Member Marty Simonoff and Council Member Steve Vargas

ALTERNATES: Mayor Pro Tem Cecilia Hupp and Council Member Christine Marick

This agenda contains a brief general description of each item the Committee will consider. The Administrative
Services Department has on file copies of written documentation relating to each item of business on this Agenda
available for public inspection.  Contact the Administrative Services Department Office at (714) 990-7684 or view
the Agenda and related materials on the City's website at https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/509/Meeting-Agendas-
Minutes. Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Committee after distribution of the agenda
packet are available for public inspection in the Administrative Services Department's Office at 1 Civic Center Circle,
Brea, CA during normal business hours.  Such documents may also be available on the City's website subject to
staff's ability to post document before the meeting.

Procedures for addressing the Committee

Members of the public may offer comment by phone or email or may observe the meeting by attending in person. 
All requests to offer comment must be submitted via phone by calling (714) 990-7684 or by emailing
debbied@cityofbrea.gov by 12:00 p.m. on the Monday prior to the meeting.

Special Accommodations

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting,
please contact the Administrative Services Office at (714) 990-7684.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will
enable City staff to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. (28 CFR 35.102.35.104 ADA Title II) 

PLEASE SILENCE ALL PAGERS, CELL PHONES AND OTHER ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT WHILE THE COMMITTEE IS IN
SESSION.

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL

1.A. Attendees

1.B. Matters from the Audience

2. CONSENT

2.A. Approval of Finance Committee Meeting Minutes - May 13,2025

3. DISCUSSION

3.A. FY 2025-27 Vehicle and Equipment Purchase Schedule

https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/509/Meeting-Agendas-Minutes
https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/509/Meeting-Agendas-Minutes
mailto:arlenem@cityofbrea.net


3.B. Public Hearing to Consider Levying an Assessment for Landscape and Lighting Maintenance
Districts Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 for Fiscal Year 2025-2026

— Adopt Resolution Nos. 2025-XX through 2025-XXX, levying assessments for Fiscal Year 2025-
2026 after receiving testimony at the Public Hearing on June 17, 2025. There is no fiscal impact
to the General Fund.

3.C. Citywide Multifunction Printer/Copier Replacement and Maintenance Services Lease
Agreement with Sharp Business Systems

3.D. Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

— Approve the professional service agreements with RCS Investigations and Consulting, LLC
and JL Group, LLC for pre-employment background investigations for Fire Services with a not to
exceed amount of $60, 000; and Authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement.

3.E. Road Repair and Accountability Act - Local Streets and Roads Funding Program, Fiscal Year
2025-2026 Proposed Project List

3.F. Renewed Measure M (M2) Eligibility Submittal Package for Fiscal Year 2025-2026

3.G. Approve Amenment No. 1 with Geocon West, Inc. and Amendment No. 2 with BKF Engineers
for Additional as-needed Arovista Park Geotechnical and Civil Engineering Services

3.H. Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services

4. ADJOURNMENT

Next Scheduled Meeting: Tuesday, June 24, 2025

Date Posted: June 5, 2025



City of Brea

Finance Committee Communication

A. Approval of Finance Committee Meeting Minutes - May 13,2025

Meeting

Tuesday, June 10, 2025, 8:30 AM

Agenda Group

CONSENT Item: 2A.

TO

Finance Committee Members

FROM

Kristin Griffith, City Manager

 

 

Attachments

05-13-2025 FC minutes DRAFT.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6841ef5b4c1e31004dee05b3%2F05-13-2025%20FC%20minutes%20DRAFT.pdf?alt=media&token=9d139720-45d4-4cb2-8d7e-82c691a56cec
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6841ef5b4c1e31004dee05b3%2F05-13-2025%20FC%20minutes%20DRAFT.pdf?alt=media&token=9d139720-45d4-4cb2-8d7e-82c691a56cec
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6841ef5b4c1e31004dee05b3%2F05-13-2025%20FC%20minutes%20DRAFT.pdf?alt=media&token=9d139720-45d4-4cb2-8d7e-82c691a56cec


** The following document is a draft of the minutes and the not the official approved minutes

**

Minutes for the Finance Committee

1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, CA 92821

May 13, 2025, 8:30 AM - 8:34 AM

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL

Council Member Marty Simonoff called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m.

1.A. Attendees-

Council Member Marty Simonoff, Council Member Steve Vargas, Kristin Griffith, Monica Lo, Michael Ho,

Sean Matlock, Ryan Chapman, and Debbie Duff

1.B. Matters from the Audience-

None.

2. CONSENT

2.A. Approval of Minutes 04-29-2025-

The minutes were approved as written.

3. DISCUSSION

3.A. Acceptance of Final Parcel Map No. 2022-179 for Subdivision at 915, 955, & 975 West Imperial

Highway and 950 Mariner Street-

The Finance Committee discussed this item and recommended it for City Council action.

3.B. Acceptance of Final Parcel Map No. 2022-113 and Approval of Subdivision Improvement Agreement

and Bonds for the Brea Mall Mixed-Use Project-

The Finance Committee discussed this item. Council Member Vargas inquired about the performance bond

rating on this item and it was recommended for City Council action.

4. ADJOURNMENT

Council Member Marty Simonoff adjourned the meeting at 8:34 a.m.



City of Brea

Finance Committee Communication

A. FY 2025-27 Vehicle and Equipment Purchase Schedule

Meeting

Tuesday, June 10, 2025, 8:30 AM

Agenda Group

DISCUSSION Item: 3A.

TO

Finance Committee Members

FROM

Kristin Griffith, City Manager

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Finance Committee recommend the City Council take the following action:

1. Authorize the Purchasing Agent to issue purchase orders in an amount not-to-exceed $1,686,150 for various
City vehicles and equipment described in the FY 2025-27 Vehicles and Equipment Schedule.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

Each fiscal year, the vehicles used by various City departments are assessed to determine whether it is best
to continue maintenance, retire, replace, or add new units. The determining factors include excessive mileage,
unit hours, service life expectancy, maintenance cost history, safety and environmental impacts. The attached
list indicates the replacements or additions that were approved by the City Council as part of the FY 2025-27
Operating Budget. This list provides the equipment descriptions, quantities, estimated costs and departments
where they will be assigned. The Budget & Purchasing Division will solicit bids for the listed vehicles & equipment
per the formal bidding requirements of the Brea Municipal Code, utilize competitively bid national cooperative
agreements, or piggyback contracts to obtain the best available pricing for the City.

Staff requests that City Council authorize the Purchasing Agent to issue purchase orders after completing the
best available pricing analysis without the need to return to the City Council for approval of the individual awards
for the following main reasons:

Ensures the needed equipment is replaced in a timely fashion and without interruption in service;
Meets manufacturing production cutoff dates;
Takes advantage of incentives and discounts; and
Expedites the purchase of these items

Should any of the listed equipment be limited to a single source, the Purchasing Agent will verify and document
the reasons for the sole source procurement prior to award and issue of purchase order.

To help facilitate operational and budgetary requirements, staff requests that City Council authorize the Purchasing
Agent or Fleet Supervisor to make changes in the type and quantity of the listed equipment, subject to budget
appropriations and the not-to-exceed amount requested.

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT



There is sufficient funding available for the requested not-to-exceed amount of $1,686,150 for these purchases in
the City's FY 2025-27 Proposed Operating Budget. Of this amount, $1,650,150 is budgeted in the Vehicle and
Equipment Replacement Fund (480) which funds costs associated to replacement of existing vehicles and
equipment. In addition, $36,000 is budgeted in the Water Utility Fund (420) for the purchase of a new vehicle for the
newly proposed full-time Water Quality Specialist position that was recommended to be included in the City’s FY
2025-27 Operating Budget.  Any future replacements costs will be budgeted in the City’s Vehicle and Replacement
Fund (480).  No additional appropriation is needed.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED

Kristin Griffith, City Manager

Prepared by: Stephanie Garcia, Senior Buyer

Concurrence: Monica Lo, Director of Administrative Services and Alicia Brenner, Financial Services Manager -
Budget

 

 

Attachments

25-27 Vehicles and Equipment Schedule.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a30d2e96795005a5bcdf4%2F25-27%20Vehicles%20and%20Equipment%20Schedule.pdf?alt=media&token=89f8c448-9961-4af5-9f85-97d9a64af61c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a30d2e96795005a5bcdf4%2F25-27%20Vehicles%20and%20Equipment%20Schedule.pdf?alt=media&token=89f8c448-9961-4af5-9f85-97d9a64af61c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a30d2e96795005a5bcdf4%2F25-27%20Vehicles%20and%20Equipment%20Schedule.pdf?alt=media&token=89f8c448-9961-4af5-9f85-97d9a64af61c


FISCAL YEAR 2025-27
VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT SCHEDULE
VEHICLES
DEPARTMENT FUND UNIT #

POLICE SERVICES VEHICLE ACCESORIES VEHICLE ACCESORIES

UV INTERCEPTOR (992) 480 1604 - - $50,000 $12,000
CRIME IMPACT 480 2001 $42,000 $6,000 - -
CRIME IMPACT 480 2040 - - $42,000 $6,000
DETECTIVE 480 2031 - - $42,000 $6,000
DETECTIVE 480 2032 - - $42,000 $6,000
DETECTIVE 480 2013 - - $42,000 $6,000
DETECTIVE 480 1908 $42,000 $6,000 - -
DETECTIVE 480 1922 $42,000 $6,000 -
SEDAN-K9 (981K) 480 1919 - - $60,000 $18,000
UV INTERCEPTOR (958) 480 2107 $60,000 $15,000 - -
UV INTERCEPTOR (957) 480 2037 $60,000 $15,000 - -
UV INTERCEPTOR (966) 480 2038 $60,000 $15,000 - -
UV INTERCEPTOR (954) 480 1608 - - $60,000 $16,500
UV INTERCEPTOR (969) 480 1630 - - $60,000 $16,500
UV INTERCEPTOR (963) 480 2108 - - $60,000 $16,500

$306,000 $63,000 $458,000 $103,500

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

1/2 TON PICKUP-INSPECTOR 480 1410 $37,000 $1,000 - -
$37,000 $1,000 $0 -

COMMUNITY SERVICES
E150 VAN 480 24008 $55,000 - - -
LPG VAN 480 1214 - - $68,000 $1,000

$55,000 $0 $68,000 $1,000

PUBLIC WORKS 
1/2 TON PICKUP-B 480 1204 $41,000 $1,000 - -
1/2 TON PICKUP-B 480 1225 - - $41,000 $1,000
1/2 TON PICKUP-P 480 1321 $41,000 $1,000 - -
AERIL LIFT TRUCKS-S 480 27022 $200,000 - - -
ADMIN GRAND CARAVAN 480 1619 - $48,000 - -
ENGINEERING SUV 480 1515 - $38,000 - -
NPDES SUV-INSPECTOR 480 1419a $50,000 - - -
PICK UP TRUCK 420 $36,000 - - -

$368,000 $88,000 $41,000 $1,000

YEAR 1 TOTAL: $918,000 YEAR 2 TOTAL: $672,500

EQUIPMENT

DEPARTMENT FUND UNIT #

PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMENT ACCESORIES EQUIPMENT ACCESORIES

BLOWER-WC 480 1822 - N/A $700 N/A
BLOWER-S 480 1831 - N/A $700 N/A
CHAINSAW-P 480 1807 $1,100 N/A - N/A
CHAINSAW-S 480 1808 - N/A $1,100 N/A
EDGER (POWER TRIM)-WC 480 1912 - N/A 900 N/A
EDGER (POWER TRIM)-SP 480 1509 $1,500 N/A - N/A
HEDGE TRIMMER-P 480 1839 $700 N/A - N/A
MESSAGE BOARD-S 480 1116 $20,000 N/A - N/A
MESSAGE BOARD-S 480 1117 - N/A $20,000 N/A
MOWER ROTARY-SP 480 1810 - N/A $1,750 N/A
REFERENCE SOFTWARE-TOOL 480 2015 $8,000 N/A $8,000 N/A
SPREADER-P 480 23028 $10,000 N/A - N/A
TRAILER-P 480 85027 - N/A $8,000 N/A
TRIMMER-P 480 1803 - N/A $600 N/A
TRIMMER-P 480 1804 - N/A $600 N/A
VACCUUM (BILLYGOAT)-WC 480 1302 $1,000 N/A - N/A
VACCUUM (BILLYGOAT)-SP 480 1421 $1,000 N/A - N/A
RAMTEQ PRESSURE WASHER 480 1409 $10,000 N/A - N/A

$53,300 $42,350

YEAR 1 TOTAL: $53,300 YEAR 2 TOTAL: $42,350

COMBINED TOTAL $1,686,150

YEAR 1 YEAR 2

YEAR 1 YEAR 2



City of Brea

Finance Committee Communication

B. Public Hearing to Consider Levying an Assessment for Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Districts Nos. 1,
2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 for Fiscal Year 2025-2026

Meeting

Tuesday, June 10, 2025, 8:30 AM

Agenda Group

DISCUSSION Item: 3B.

TO

Finance Committee Members

FROM

Kristin Griffith, City Manager

RECOMMENDATION

Staff Recommends that the Finance Committee recommend the City Council take the following action:

1. Adopt Resolution Nos. 2025-XX through 2025-XXX, levying assessments for Fiscal Year 2025-2026 after
receiving testimony at the Public Hearing on June 17, 2025.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

The City of Brea has seven annually assessed Landscape and Lighting Maintenance Districts (LLMD). As called for
in the Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972, a yearly assessment is to be made for each Maintenance District. The
annual assessment amounts are based on public meetings held between the City and property owners of each
District. For City Council reference, the Districts are located on the attached map (Exhibit A). The estimated
assessments for FY 2025-2026 based on public meetings held with each LLMD are as follows:

Maintenance District # 1 (American National - 103 Parcels)
On March 12, 2025, five representatives from four parcels attended the community meeting. The total costs for FY
2024-25 are estimated to be $61,514. The total annual assessment amount for this District is currently $55,929.
There were no changes to the assessment amount for FY 2025-26. The annual assessment will remain at $543.00
per parcel per year. The estimated costs for FY 2025-26 will require an estimated expenditure of $5,585 from the
District' s reserve fund. District reserves are projected to be $16,384 as of June 30, 2025.

Maintenance District # 2 (Baldwin - 297 Parcels)
The assessment for this District is for theme street lighting maintenance only. The Homeowners' Association
maintains the common landscaped areas. On March 13, 2025, no representatives attended the community
meeting. The total costs for FY 2024-25 are estimated to be $8,379. The total annual assessment for this District is
currently $5,495. There were no changes to the assessment amount for FY 2025-26. The estimated costs for FY
2025-26 will require an estimated expenditure of $2,884 from the District's reserve fund. The annual assessment
will remain at $18.50 per parcel per year. District reserves are projected to be $34,198 as of June 30, 2025.



Maintenance District # 3 (Eagle Development - 188 Parcels)
On March 11, 2025, three representatives from three parcels attended the community meeting. The total costs for
FY 2024-25 are estimated to be $125,313. The total annual assessment for this District is $112,965.44, or $600.88
per parcel per year. The estimated costs for FY 2025-26 will require an estimated expenditure of $8,620 from the
District's reserve fund. Homeowners in attendance directed staff to increase the assessment by the Consumer
Price Index (CPI) of 3.3% from the prior 12-month calendar year. The annual assessment for FY 2025-26 will be
$620.71 per parcel, an increase of $19.83. This is the maximum allowable assessment for FY 2025-26. District
reserves are projected to be $56,177 as of June 30, 2025.

Maintenance District # 4 (Ponderosa - 230 parcels)
The assessment for this District is for theme street lighting maintenance only. The Homeowners' Association
maintains the common landscaped areas. On March 13, 2025, no representatives attended the community
meeting. The total estimated costs for FY 2024-25 are $5,336. The total annual assessment for this District is
currently $2,760. There were no changes to the assessment amount for FY 2025-26. The annual assessment will
remain at $12.00 per parcel per year. The estimated costs for FY 2025-26 will require an estimated expenditure of
$2,576 from the District's reserve fund. District reserves are projected to be $18,905 as of June 30, 2025.

Maintenance District # 5 (Konweiser - 113 Parcels)
On March 12, 2025, two representatives from two parcels attended the community meeting. The total costs for FY
2024-25 are estimated to be $138,371. The total annual assessment for this District is $122,305. There were no
changes to the assessment amount for FY 2025-26. The annual assessment will remain at $1,082.35 per parcel per
year. The estimated costs for FY 2025-26 will require an estimated expenditure of $16,066 from the District's
reserve fund. District reserves are projected to be $133,272 as of June 30, 2025.

Maintenance District # 6 (Schmid Development - 135 Parcels)
Of the seven Districts, this is the largest District with 16 acres of common landscaped areas. On March 11, 2025,
five representatives from four parcels attended the community meeting. The total costs for FY 2024-25 are
estimated to be $239,693. The total annual assessment for this District is $236,297 or $1,750.35 per parcel per
year. There were no changes to the assessment amount for FY 2025-26. The annual assessment will remain at
$1,750.35 per parcel per year. The estimated costs for FY 2025-26 will require an estimated expenditure of $3,396
from the District' s reserve fund. District reserves are projected to be $271,309 as of June 30, 2025.

Maintenance District # 7 (Baywood Development - 96 Parcels)
On March 12, 2025, one representative from one parcel attended the community meeting. The total costs for FY
2024-25 are estimated to be $35,266. The total annual assessment for this District is $35,047 or $365.08 per parcel
per year. There were no changes to the assessment amount for FY 2025-26. The annual assessment will remain at
$365.08 per parcel per year. The estimated costs for FY 2025-26 will require an estimated expenditure of $219
from the District's reserve fund. District reserves are projected to be $12,057 as of June 30, 2025. 

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT

There will be no impact to the General Fund by this action. All funding for the maintenance of the Districts is
provided for by separate assessment. In addition, the Districts reimburse the General Fund for staff time. The
estimated assessments for FY 2025-2026, as detailed in the Engineer's Report, are as follows:

Maintenance
District

2024-2025
Assessment Per

Lot Per Year

2025-2026
Assessment Per

Lot Per Year

Change in
Assessment

Per Lot Per Yer
% Change

M.D. #1 $543.00 $543.00 $0 $0

M.D. #2 $18.50 $18.50 $0 $0



M.D. #3 $600.88 $620.71 $19.83 $0

M.D. #4 $12.00 $12.00 $0 $0

M.D. #5 $1,082.35 $1,082.35 $0 $0

M.D. #6 $1,750.35 $1,750.35 $0 $0

M.D. #7 $365.08 $365.08 $0 $0

As called for in the Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972, a yearly assessment is to be made for each
Maintenance  District. Staff held meetings with the homeowners to discuss the coming year's budget and
improvement projects. It is recommended that the seven resolutions levying assessments for FY 2025-2026 be
adopted after receiving testimony at the Public Hearing on June 17, 2025 at 7:00 p.m.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED

Kristin Griffith, City Manager
Prepared by: Matthew Cuevas, Senior Management Analyst
Concurrence: Michael Ho, P.E., Director of Public Works 

 

 

Attachments

Exhibit A - Maintenance Districts Map.pdf
Resolution - LLMD #1.pdf
Resolution - LLMD #2.pdf
Resolution - LLMD #3.pdf
Resolution - LLMD #4.pdf
Resolution - LLMD #5.pdf
Resolution - LLMD #6.pdf
Resolution - LLMD #7.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20Maintenance%20Districts%20Map.pdf?alt=media&token=450c854f-8bd5-4d7d-8ea8-47a8e244f3b3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20Maintenance%20Districts%20Map.pdf?alt=media&token=450c854f-8bd5-4d7d-8ea8-47a8e244f3b3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20Maintenance%20Districts%20Map.pdf?alt=media&token=450c854f-8bd5-4d7d-8ea8-47a8e244f3b3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%231.pdf?alt=media&token=1667c369-d3fb-402d-856d-f449cde1cf35
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%231.pdf?alt=media&token=1667c369-d3fb-402d-856d-f449cde1cf35
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%231.pdf?alt=media&token=1667c369-d3fb-402d-856d-f449cde1cf35
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%232.pdf?alt=media&token=b2eda213-0f65-4126-bccd-5c36fab1e370
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%232.pdf?alt=media&token=b2eda213-0f65-4126-bccd-5c36fab1e370
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%232.pdf?alt=media&token=b2eda213-0f65-4126-bccd-5c36fab1e370
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%233.pdf?alt=media&token=dd39ef5c-e721-466c-843e-f12be3596c84
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%233.pdf?alt=media&token=dd39ef5c-e721-466c-843e-f12be3596c84
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%233.pdf?alt=media&token=dd39ef5c-e721-466c-843e-f12be3596c84
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%234.pdf?alt=media&token=2f0d22db-3019-485a-b929-e6d638be8323
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%234.pdf?alt=media&token=2f0d22db-3019-485a-b929-e6d638be8323
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%234.pdf?alt=media&token=2f0d22db-3019-485a-b929-e6d638be8323
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%235.pdf?alt=media&token=7538ef0e-820f-465b-afa9-7103bc2cc117
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%235.pdf?alt=media&token=7538ef0e-820f-465b-afa9-7103bc2cc117
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%235.pdf?alt=media&token=7538ef0e-820f-465b-afa9-7103bc2cc117
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%236.pdf?alt=media&token=3fa54261-b68a-4a22-a770-4f18fb3edeb3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%236.pdf?alt=media&token=3fa54261-b68a-4a22-a770-4f18fb3edeb3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%236.pdf?alt=media&token=3fa54261-b68a-4a22-a770-4f18fb3edeb3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%237.pdf?alt=media&token=0f2b02cd-c7c5-4c0c-8398-1065fd5b6ac6
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%237.pdf?alt=media&token=0f2b02cd-c7c5-4c0c-8398-1065fd5b6ac6
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683a4364e96795005a5bee54%2FResolution%20-%20LLMD%20%237.pdf?alt=media&token=0f2b02cd-c7c5-4c0c-8398-1065fd5b6ac6


Exhibit A  



RESOLUTION NO. 2025- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA LEVYING 
AN ASSESSMENT ON CITY OF BREA LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 
 

 
A. RECITALS: 

 (i) By Resolution, this Council approved a report of the Public Works Director 

related to City of Brea Landscape and Lighting Assessment District No. 1 prepared 

pursuant to Streets and Highways Code Section 22623, described the improvements 

thereon and gave notice of and fixed the time and place of the hearing on the question 

of the levy of an assessment thereon for fiscal year 2025-2026.  A description of the 

area encompassed by said assessment district is attached hereto as “Exhibit A.” 

 (ii) Said hearing was duly and properly noticed, commenced at the Council 

Chambers, Brea Civic & Cultural Center, 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, California, on June 

17, 2025, and was concluded prior to the adoption of this resolution. 

 (iii) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of the Resolution have occurred. 

 

B. RESOLUTION: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED by the 

City Council of the City of Brea as follows: 

 1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A, of this Resolution. 

 2. The improvements specified in the report hereinabove referred to which is 

on file with the City Clerk of the City of Brea are hereby ordered to be completed. 



3. The assessment diagram contained in the report referred to hereinabove

and the assessment of $543.00 for each lot located within said District are hereby 

adopted and confirmed and said assessment is levied for the 2025-2026 fiscal year. 

4. The Council hereby expressly overrules any and all protests filed objecting

to the proposed improvements specified herein or the assessment levied hereby. 

5. The City Clerk shall forthwith transfer to the County Auditor of Orange

County a certified copy of this Resolution and a certified copy of the assessment 

diagram contained in the report referred to hereinabove. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June, 2025. 

_______________________________ 
             Blair Stewart, Mayor 

ATTEST: ___________________________ 
 Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Brea, held on the 17th day of June, 2025, by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSENT:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSTAINED:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

DATED: _________________________ 

 _____________________________   
  Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 



 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
 
 LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 INCLUDES ALL 

OF THE PROPERTIES IN THE CITY OF BREA LOCATED WITHIN THE TRACT 

BOUNDARY OF TRACT NO. 9121 RECORDED IN BOOK 378, PAGES 49 AND 50; 

TRACT NO. 9341 RECORDED IN BOOK 395, PAGES 28, 29 AND 30; AND OF 

TRACT NO 9342 RECORDED IN BOOK 386, PAGES 41, 42 AND 43, ALL OF 

MISCELLANEOUS MAPS, RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA. 

 
 



 
 
 



 



 



 
 



 



 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA LEVYING 
AN ASSESSMENT ON CITY OF BREA LIGHTING ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 2 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 

 
A. RECITALS: 

 (i) By Resolution, this Council approved a report of the Public Works Director 

related to City of Brea Lighting Assessment District No. 2 prepared pursuant to Streets 

and Highways Code Section 22623, described the improvements thereon and gave 

notice of and fixed the time and place of the hearing on the question of the levy of an 

assessment thereon for fiscal year 2025-2026.  A description of the area encompassed 

by said assessment district is attached hereto as “Exhibit A.” 

 (ii) Said hearing was duly and properly noticed, commenced at the Council 

Chambers, Brea Civic & Cultural Center, 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, California, on June 

17, 2025, and was concluded prior to the adoption of this resolution. 

 (iii) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of the Resolution have occurred. 

 

B. RESOLUTION: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED by the 

City Council of the City of Brea as follows: 

 1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A, of this Resolution. 

 2. The improvements specified in the report hereinabove referred to which is 

on file with the City Clerk of the City of Brea are hereby ordered to be completed. 

 3. The assessment diagram contained in the report referred to hereinabove 

and the assessment of $18.50 for each lot located within said District are hereby 

adopted and confirmed and said assessment is levied for the 2025-2026 fiscal year. 



4. The Council hereby expressly overrules any and all protests filed objecting

to the proposed improvements specified herein or the assessment levied hereby. 

5. The City Clerk shall forthwith transfer to the County Auditor of Orange

County a certified copy of this Resolution and a certified copy of the assessment 

diagram contained in the report referred to hereinabove. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June, 2025. 

______________________________ 
 Blair Stewart, Mayor 

ATTEST: __________________________ 
 Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Brea, held on the 17th day of June, 2025, by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSENT:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSTAINED:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

 DATED: ________________________ 

   
______________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
 
 
 THE BOUNDARIES OF LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 IS 

DESCRIBED AS “BEING THE BOUNDARY OF ANNEXATION NO. 8-74 TO THE CITY 

OF BREA, COUNTY OF ORANGE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,” ALSO BEING ALL THE 

PROPERTIES LOCATED WITHIN THE TRACT BOUNDARY OF TRACT NO. 9227 

RECORDED IN BOOK 392, PAGES 5 THROUGH 12; TRACT NO. 9228 RECORDED 

IN BOOK 428, PAGES 32 THROUGH 38; AND TRACT NO. 8857 RECORDED IN 

BOOK 464, PAGES 38 THROUGH 44, ALL OF MISCELLANEOUS MAPS, RECORDS 

OR ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 



 
 



 
 
 
 
 



 



  

RESOLUTION NO. 2025- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA LEVYING 
AN ASSESSMENT ON CITY OF BREA LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 3 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 

 
A. RECITALS: 

 (i) By Resolution, this Council approved a report of the Public Works Director 

related to City of Brea Landscape and Lighting Assessment District No. 3 prepared 

pursuant to Streets and Highways Code Section 22623, described the improvements 

thereon and gave notice of and fixed the time and place of the hearing on the question 

of the levy of an assessment thereon for fiscal year 2025-2026.  A description of the 

area encompassed by said assessment district is attached hereto as “Exhibit A.” 

 (ii) Said hearing was duly and properly noticed, commenced at the Council 

Chambers, Brea Civic & Cultural Center, 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, California, on June 

17, 2025, and was concluded prior to the adoption of this resolution. 

 (iii) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of the Resolution have occurred. 

 

B. RESOLUTION: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED by the 

City Council of the City of Brea as follows: 

 1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A, of this Resolution. 

 2. The improvements specified in the report hereinabove referred to which is 

on file with the City Clerk of the City of Brea are hereby ordered to be completed. 

 3. The assessment diagram contained in the report referred to hereinabove 

and the assessment of $620.71 for each lot located within said District are hereby 

adopted and confirmed and said assessment is levied for the 2025-2026 fiscal year. 



4. The Council hereby expressly overrules any and all protests filed objecting

to the proposed improvements specified herein or the assessment levied hereby. 

5. The City Clerk shall forthwith transfer to the County Auditor of Orange

County a certified copy of this Resolution and a certified copy of the assessment 

diagram contained in the report referred to hereinabove. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June, 2025. 

  
_______________________________
Blair Stewart, Mayor 

ATTEST: __________________________ 
 Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Brea, held on the 17th day of June, 2025, by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSENT:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSTAINED:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

DATED:_________________________ 

 ______________________________
 Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 



  

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 3 
 
 

 
 LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 3 INCLUDES ALL 

OF THE PROPERTIES IN THE CITY OF BREA LOCATED WITHIN THE TRACT 

BOUNDARY OF TRACT NO. 8242 RECORDED IN BOOK 428, PAGES 19 THROUGH 

24 OF MISCELLANEOUS MAPS, RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 



  

RESOLUTION NO. 2025- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA LEVYING 
AN ASSESSMENT ON CITY OF BREA LIGHTING ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 4 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 

 
A. RECITALS: 

 (i) By Resolution, this Council approved a report of the Public Works Director 

related to City of Brea Lighting Assessment District No. 4 prepared pursuant to Streets 

and Highways Code Section 22623, described the improvements thereon and gave 

notice of and fixed the time and place of the hearing on the question of the levy of an 

assessment thereon for fiscal year 2025-2026.  A description of the area encompassed 

by said assessment district is attached hereto as “Exhibit A.” 

 (ii) Said hearing was duly and properly noticed, commenced at the Council 

Chambers, Brea Civic & Cultural Center, 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, California, on June 

17, 2025, and was concluded prior to the adoption of this resolution. 

 (iii) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of the Resolution have occurred. 

B. RESOLUTION: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED by the 

City Council of the City of Brea as follows: 

  1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A, of this Resolution. 

  2. The improvements specified in the report hereinabove referred to 

which is on file with the City Clerk of the City of Brea are hereby ordered to be 

completed. 

  3. The assessment diagram contained in the report referred to 

hereinabove and the assessment of $12.00 for each lot located within said District are 



hereby adopted and confirmed and said assessment is levied for the 2025-2026 fiscal 

year. 

4. The Council hereby expressly overrules any and all protests filed

objecting to the proposed improvements specified herein or the assessment levied 

hereby. 

5. The City Clerk shall forthwith transfer to the County Auditor of

Orange County a certified copy of this Resolution and a certified copy of the 

assessment diagram contained in the report referred to hereinabove. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June, 2025. 

           
_______________________________
 Blair Stewart, Mayor 

ATTEST: __________________________ 
 Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Brea, held on the 17th day of June, 2025, by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSENT:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSTAINED:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

DATED:_________________________ 

 _____________________________ 
   Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 



  

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 4 
 
 
 LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 4 INCLUDES ALL THE 

PROPERTIES LOCATED IN THE CITY OF BREA WITHIN TRACT NO. 10224 AS 

SHOWN ON A MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 436, PAGES 13 THROUGH 16 

INCLUSIVE, TRACT NO. 10324 AS SHOWN ON A MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 447, 

PAGES 3 THROUGH 5 INCLUSIVE, TRACT NO. 10325 AS SHOWN ON A MAP 

RECORDED IN BOOK 461, PAGES 9 THROUGH 12 INCLUSIVE, TRACT NO. 10326 

AS SHOWN ON A MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 461, PAGES 13 THROUGH 16 

INCLUSIVE, TRACT NO. 10327 AS SHOWN ON A MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 461, 

PAGES 17 THROUGH 20 INCLUSIVE, AND TRACT NO. 9298 AS SHOWN ON A 

MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 476, PAGES 5 THROUGH 7 INCLUSIVE, ALL OF 

MISCELLANEOUS MAPS, RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 



  

 



  

 



  

 
 



  
 



  

 



  

 



  

 



  

 



  

 



  

 



  

 



  

 



  

 
 



  

 
 
 



  

 



  

 



  

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA LEVYING 
AN ASSESSMENT ON CITY OF BREA LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 5 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 

 
A. RECITALS: 

 (i) By Resolution, this Council approved a report of the Public Works Director 

related to City of Brea Landscape and Lighting Assessment District No. 5 prepared 

pursuant to Streets and Highways Code Section 22623, described the improvements 

thereon and gave notice of and fixed the time and place of the hearing on the question 

of the levy of an assessment thereon for fiscal year 2025-2026.  A description of the 

area encompassed by said assessment district is attached hereto as “Exhibit A.” 

 (ii) Said hearing was duly and properly noticed, commenced at the Council 

Chambers, Brea Civic & Cultural Center, 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, California, on June 

17, 2025, and was concluded prior to the adoption of this resolution. 

 (iii) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of the Resolution have occurred. 

B. RESOLUTION: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED by the 

City Council of the City of Brea as follows: 

  1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A, of this Resolution. 

  2. The improvements specified in the report hereinabove referred to 

which is on file with the City Clerk of the City of Brea are hereby ordered to be 

completed. 

  3. The assessment diagram contained in the report referred to 

hereinabove and the assessment of $1,082.35 for each lot located within said District 



are hereby adopted and confirmed and said assessment is levied for the 2025-2026 

fiscal year. 

4. The Council hereby expressly overrules any and all protests filed

objecting to the proposed improvements specified herein or the assessment levied 

hereby. 

5. The City Clerk shall forthwith transfer to the County Auditor of

Orange County a certified copy of this Resolution and a certified copy of the 

assessment diagram contained in the report referred to hereinabove. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June, 2025. 

_______________________________
 Blair Stewart, Mayor 

ATTEST: _________________________ 
  Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Brea, held on the 17th day of June, 2025, by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSENT:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSTAINED:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

DATED: _________________________ 

 ______________________________
 Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk  



  

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 5 
 
 
 LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 5 INCLUDES ALL 

THE PROPERTIES IN THE CITY OF BREA LOCATED WITHIN THE TRACT 

BOUNDARY OF TRACT NO. 9111 RECORDED IN BOOK 374, PAGES 24, 25 AND 26 

OF TRACT NO. 9414 RECORDED IN BOOK 409, PAGES 8 AND 9, AND OF TRACT 

NO. 9473 RECORDED IN BOOK 291, PAGES 26, 27 AND 28, ALL OF 

MISCELLANEOUS MAPS, RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 



  

 
 
 
 



  

 
 
 



  

 
 



  

RESOLUTION NO. 2025- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA LEVYING 
AN ASSESSMENT ON CITY OF BREA LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 6 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 

 
A. RECITALS: 

 (i) By Resolution, this Council approved a report of the Public Works Director 

related to City of Brea Landscape and Lighting Assessment District No. 6 prepared 

pursuant to Streets and Highways Code Section 22623, described the improvements 

thereon and gave notice of and fixed the time and place of the hearing on the question 

of the levy of an assessment thereon for fiscal year 2025-2026.  A description of the 

area encompassed by said assessment district is attached hereto as “Exhibit A.” 

 (ii) Said hearing was duly and properly noticed, commenced at the Council 

Chambers, Brea Civic & Cultural Center, 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, California, on June 

17, 2025, and was concluded prior to the adoption of this resolution. 

 (iii) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of the Resolution have occurred. 

B. RESOLUTION: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED by the 

City Council of the City of Brea as follows: 

 1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A, of this Resolution. 

 2. The improvements specified in the report hereinabove referred to which is 

on file with the City Clerk of the City of Brea are hereby ordered to be completed. 

 3. The assessment diagram contained in the report referred to hereinabove 

and the assessment of $1,750.35 for each lot located within said District are hereby 

adopted and confirmed and said assessment is levied for the 2025-2026 fiscal year.    



4. The Council hereby expressly overrules any and all protests filed objecting

to the proposed improvements specified herein or the assessment levied hereby. 

5. The City Clerk shall forthwith transfer to the County Auditor of Orange

County a certified copy of this Resolution and a certified copy of the assessment 

diagram contained in the report referred to hereinabove. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June, 2025. 

_______________________________ 
            Blair Stewart, Mayor 

ATTEST: __________________________ 
 Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Brea, held on the 17th day of June, 2025, by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSENT:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSTAINED:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

DATED: _________________________ 

 ______________________________
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 



  

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 6 
 
 

 LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 6 INCLUDES ALL 

THE PROPERTIES IN THE CITY OF BREA LOCATED WITHIN THE TRACT 

BOUNDARY OF TRACT NO. 8820, RECORDED IN BOOK 454, PAGES 19 THROUGH 

24 INCLUSIVE, TRACT NO. 9531, RECORDED IN BOOK 423, PAGES 24 THROUGH 

28 INCLUSIVE, AND TRACT NO. 9532 RECORDED IN BOOK 454, PAGES 25 

THROUGH 28, ALL OF MISCELLANEOUS MAPS, RECORDS OF ORANGE 

COUNTY, CALIFORNIA. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

 



  

 



  

 



  

 



  

 



  

 



  

 

 



  

 



                                                                                                                                                                                       
RESOLUTION NO. 2025- 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA LEVYING 
AN ASSESSMENT ON CITY OF BREA LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 7 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 

 
A. RECITALS: 

 (i) By Resolution, this Council approved a report of the Public Works Director 

related to City of Brea Landscape and Lighting Assessment District No. 7 prepared 

pursuant to Streets and Highways Code Section 22623, described the improvements 

thereon and gave notice of and fixed the time and place of the hearing on the question 

of the levy of an assessment thereon for fiscal year 2025-2026.  A description of the 

area encompassed by said assessment district is attached hereto as “Exhibit A.” 

 (ii) Said hearing was duly and properly noticed, commenced at the Council 

Chambers, Brea Civic & Cultural Center, 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, California, on June 

17, 2025, and was concluded prior to the adoption of this resolution. 

 (iii) All legal prerequisites to the adoption of the Resolution have occurred. 

B. RESOLUTION: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED by the 

City Council of the City of Brea follows: 

 1. In all respects as set forth in the Recitals, Part A, of this Resolution. 

 2. The improvements specified in the report hereinabove referred to which is 

on file with the City Clerk of the City of Brea are hereby ordered to be completed. 

 3. The assessment diagram contained in the report referred to hereinabove 

and the assessment of $365.08 for each lot located within said District are hereby 

adopted and confirmed and said assessment is levied for the 2025-2026 fiscal year. 



4. The Council hereby expressly overrules any and all protests filed objecting

to the proposed improvements specified herein or the assessment levied hereby. 

5. The City Clerk shall forthwith transfer to the County Auditor of Orange

County a certified copy of this Resolution and a certified copy of the assessment 

diagram contained in the report referred to hereinabove. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June, 2025. 

_______________________________
Blair Stewart, Mayor 

ATTEST: _________________________ 
  Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Brea, held on the 17th day of June, 2025, by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSENT:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSTAINED:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

DATED: ________________________ 

 _______________________________ 
 Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 7 
 
 

 LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 7 INCLUDES ALL 

THE PROPERTIES IN THE CITY OF BREA LOCATED WITHIN THE TRACT 

BOUNDARY OF TRACT NO. 14656, RECORDED IN BOOK 746, PAGES 47 

THROUGH 49 INCLUSIVE, TRACT NO. 14658, RECORDED IN BOOK 724, PAGES 9 

THROUGH 11 INCLUSIVE, TRACT NO. 14657 RECORDED IN BOOK 733, PAGES 15 

THROUGH 17 INCLUSIVE, TRACT NO. 15070, RECORDED IN BOOK 738, PAGES 

27 THROUGH 30 INCLUSIVE, ALL OF MISCELLANEOUS MAPS, RECORDS OF 

ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 



City of Brea

Finance Committee Communication

C. Citywide Multifunction Printer/Copier Replacement and Maintenance Services Lease Agreement with Sharp
Business Systems

Meeting

Tuesday, June 10, 2025, 8:30 AM

Agenda Group

DISCUSSION Item: 3C.

TO

Finance Committee Members

FROM

Kristin Griffith, City Manager

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Finance Committee recommend the City Council take the following action:

1. Authorize the City’s Purchasing Agent to negotiate a lease agreement with Sharp Business Systems (Sharp)
for citywide multifunction printer/copier (MFP) replacement and maintenance services for a 60-month lease
term not-to-exceed the amount of $150,000.00; exclusive of any as-needed print charges.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

The City of Brea has relied on leased multifunction printers (MFP) to support daily operations across all
departments for over 15 years. Currently, the City is under a five-year lease and maintenance agreement with Canon
Solutions which has since been extended an additional year to align with the City’s budget process. 

Sixteen (16) out of eighteen (18) current MFPs will be six years old and beyond their useful life, which will increase
ongoing maintenance costs. The remaining two 60-month leases were added to the fleet back in March 2023 as a
result of expanded programming and printing needs at the Public Works Yard and the Brea Resource Center.   

To ensure continuity of services, maintain cost-efficiency, and upgrade to newer models, staff initiated an extensive
review and selection process.  In January 2025, the City issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) to secure the best
value for the City and five (5) proposals were received.

After detailed evaluation including in-person demonstrations and assessment of service features, customer service
response times, and included equipment; Sharp Business Solutions emerged as the recommended vendor.

Although Sharp was not the lowest-cost proposer (less than the City’s current provider), their proposal offers
superior standard features, robust training and implementation plans, and industry-leading service turnaround
while staying under the current budget.

Sharp’s proposal includes:

Cooperative pricing through Sourcewell, resulting in cost-effective unit rates with more features than
competitors,
Manufacturer-direct service model with 24/7 monitoring and automated supply replenishment,
Fast response times and dedicated account support, and
Existing contracts with municipalities including the Cities of Long Beach, Riverside, Tustin, and San Diego.



Staff conducted departmental surveys to identify current and future printing needs, ensuring that the
recommended equipment will meet usage requirements and consolidate underutilized or inefficient desktop
printers. The City heavily relies on its MFPs for internal and public-facing operations, and current devices have
reached the end of their life cycle.

A key cost-saving initiative within this effort is the elimination of high-cost desktop color printers in favor of
centralized MFPs in high-volume areas. For example, color copies from desktop HP printers can cost between
$0.08–$0.15 per page, compared to MFP color prints that cost $0.035 per page. By consolidating and optimizing
print infrastructure, the City is projected to save money over the five-year term.

Sharp’s proposal includes all required supplies, service labor, and parts (excluding staples and paper), minimizing
internal administrative burden and downtime. Vendor site visits and equipment demonstrations confirmed that
Sharp’s models and service plans provide the most efficient, user-friendly, and scalable solution for the City’s
needs.

It is important to note that any installations occurring after July 1, 2025, will incur an industry-wide 10% tariff
increase on printers and related parts. This equates to approximately $15,000 in additional costs over the 60-
month lease period.  Approving Sharp as the selected vendor and executing the lease agreement prior to this date
will avoid these additional costs.

Should the agreement be authorized, the City’s Purchasing Agent will negotiate final terms for implementation to
begin prior to July 2025.

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT

Funds for this lease agreement will be for a not-to-exceed amount of $150,000, exclusive of any as-needed print
charges for a 60-month lease term.  Funding is programmed in the proposed FY 2025-27 Operating Budget and no
additional appropriation is needed in the City’s General Fund (110).  

This equates to an estimated monthly cost that includes a total of twenty (20) MFP devices with full features
tailored to department requirements.

A key component of Sharp’s proposal includes paying off the remaining balance of the City’s second lease
agreement with the current provider. By covering this outstanding balance, Sharp enables the City to consolidate all
devices under one new lease agreement—eliminating the need to manage two (2) separate contracts and billing
structures streamlining vendor management and service coordination.

The agreement is expected to result in approximately $5,000 in savings annually by eliminating costly desktop
color printers and consolidating usage to high-efficiency MFPs.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED

Kristin Griffith, City Manager
Prepared by:  Tiara Solorzano, Management Analyst I

Concurrence: Alicia Brenner, Budget Manager

 

 



Attachments

Attachment 1 - RFP Copier Multifunction Printer Replacement FINAL.pdf
Attachment 2 - City of Brea RFP No 2025.01.06.01 SHARP Full Response 1-30-25-merged.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683733a3bf3643004711dcb4%2FAttachment%201%20-%20RFP%20Copier%20Multifunction%20Printer%20Replacement%20FINAL.pdf?alt=media&token=058dba77-162b-422d-98d2-999050892430
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683733a3bf3643004711dcb4%2FAttachment%201%20-%20RFP%20Copier%20Multifunction%20Printer%20Replacement%20FINAL.pdf?alt=media&token=058dba77-162b-422d-98d2-999050892430
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683733a3bf3643004711dcb4%2FAttachment%201%20-%20RFP%20Copier%20Multifunction%20Printer%20Replacement%20FINAL.pdf?alt=media&token=058dba77-162b-422d-98d2-999050892430
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683733a3bf3643004711dcb4%2FAttachment%202%20-%20City%20of%20Brea%20RFP%20No%202025.01.06.01%20SHARP%20Full%20Response%201-30-25-merged.pdf?alt=media&token=06592447-7685-40c3-b1d6-0149daccf42a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683733a3bf3643004711dcb4%2FAttachment%202%20-%20City%20of%20Brea%20RFP%20No%202025.01.06.01%20SHARP%20Full%20Response%201-30-25-merged.pdf?alt=media&token=06592447-7685-40c3-b1d6-0149daccf42a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683733a3bf3643004711dcb4%2FAttachment%202%20-%20City%20of%20Brea%20RFP%20No%202025.01.06.01%20SHARP%20Full%20Response%201-30-25-merged.pdf?alt=media&token=06592447-7685-40c3-b1d6-0149daccf42a


Page 1 of 42 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

   
RFP No. 2025.01.06.01   

  Request for Proposals 
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and 

Maintenance Services  
 

TIMELINE | Key Milestones 
 

Key Milestone Schedule 

Release of RFP Monday, January 6, 2025 

Question Deadline Monday, January 20, 2025 by 5:00 pm PST 

Pre-Proposal Conference (if applicable) Not Applicable 

Final Addendum Issued Friday, January 24, 2025 

Proposal Deadline Thursday, January 30, 2025 by 5:00 pm PST 

Site Walk-through & Assessment (week of)* Monday, February 10, 2025 

Selection of Proposer* Thursday, May 8, 2025 

Finance Committee Recommendation* Tuesday, June 10, 2025 

City Council Award* Tuesday, June 17, 2025 

Installation and Services Begins* Tuesday, July 1, 2025 

* Tentative; at the discretion of the City 
 

To obtains solicitation documents, submit questions, receive answers, and submit a proposal, Proposer’s can 
visit the City’s eProcurement Portal at the following hyperlink 
https://www.publicpurchase.com/gems/brea,ca/buyer/public/home (registration required). 
 
Please note that proposals may only be submitted electronically.  
 

https://www.publicpurchase.com/gems/brea,ca/buyer/public/home


RFP No. 2025.01.06.01 
City of Brea  

Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and 
Maintenance Services 

 

Page 2 of 42  

 
  

PART I 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 



RFP No. 2025.01.06.01 
City of Brea  

Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and 
Maintenance Services 

 

Page 3 of 42  

 

                    Request for Proposals 
                                                             Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and 

Maintenance Services 

I. Overview 
A. Purpose 
The City of Brea (“City”) is requesting proposals from qualified Proposers for the Lease and 
Maintenance of multi-functional copiers/printers for a 60-month lease term, as further set forth in 
Part III hereto, the Scope of Services and Specification Section (“Services”).  Those submitting 
proposals are each referred to herein as “Proposer”. Any Proposer selected to provide the foregoing 
services are sometimes referred to herein as “Proposer” or “consultant.” 

B. Specific Processes Applicable to this Request for Proposal (RFP) 
To obtain solicitation documents, submit questions, receive answers, ad submit a proposal, visit the 
City’s eProcurement Portal at the following hyperlink (registration is required) 

 

City’s eProcurement Portal 

https://www.publicpurchase.com/gems/brea,ca/buyer/public/home 

PROPOSALS MAY ONLY BE SUBMITTED ELECTRONICALLY 

II. Questions and Answers. 
A. Questions 
Any person contemplating submitting a proposal in response to this RFP who has questions, requires 
clarification, or finds any discrepancies with respect to any part of this RFP, the Scope of Services 
and Specifications, the City’s standard agreement contained herein, or any of the terms and 
conditions included therein (collectively, “Solicitation” or “RFP”), must submit their questions 
through the City’s eProcurement Portal listed above by the Question Deadline set forth in the 
Timelines referenced on page one or as may be modified by any addendum.  Questions not received 
by the Question Deadline will not be considered.  As such questions, are non-responsive to the 
Solicitation requirements. 

B. Answers 
The City will issue addenda to answer question(s) received by the Question Deadline and provide 
clarifications and modifications to the Solicitation utilizing the City’s eProcurement Portal as 
provided above, when deemed to be of sufficient importance or otherwise necessary to more fully 
implement the goals and intent of this RFP.  Proposers must acknowledge receipt of all City-issued 
addenda.  Only City’s written addenda can modify the  requirements of this RFP. Any modifications 
set forth in such addenda will supersede and take precedence over the original RFP and any  

preceding addendums. Any other form of communications shall have no force or effect with respect. 
to this Solicitation.  The City will not be bound by any verbal representations of any City official or 

https://www.publicpurchase.com/gems/brea,ca/buyer/public/home


RFP No. 2025.01.06.01 
City of Brea  

Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and 
Maintenance Services 

 

Page 4 of 42  

employee. 

PROPOSALS NOT RECEIVED ELECTRONICALLY BEFORE THE PROPOSAL DUE DATE, SHALL NOT BE 
OPENED AND SHALL BE DISREGARDED. PROPOSERS BEAR ANY AND ALL RISKS OF UNTIMELY, OR 
NON-RECEIPT OF ANY PROPOSAL, REGARDLESS OF THE CAUSE. 

III. Costs Included in Proposal 
A. Preparation Expense 
Proposers prepare and make proposal(s) at their sole expense. 

B. All-Inclusive Costs 
Pricing Must Be All-Inclusive rated hourly per position for expedited and non-expedited work.  EACH 
PROPOSAL MUST BE INCLUSIVE OF ALL COSTS TO PERFORM THE REQUIRED SERVICES.  Any and all 
costs of labor, transportation, materials, software, equipment, proprietary licenses, and any and all 
other fees, costs, taxes, insurance, and expenses necessary to comply with the requirements of this 
RFP and to provide the Services, must be included in the proposal price.   

 

As part of this RFP, the City is requesting Proposers to complete the Price Form (Standard Form I) 
for both a like-to-like comparison AND a replacement of recommended model based upon volume 
averages provided in the Scope of Services.  The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the 
quantity of equipment to be leased or purchased under this RFP or change equipment following 
site inspection and evaluation.  Any additional equipment leased or purchased shall be based 
upon cooperative pricing. 

IV. Proposal Submission Requirements 
A. General 

i. Checklist.  Use this section as a checklist to help provide a complete response.  Failure to 
include and provide all the information specified may result in rejection of the proposal 
without further evaluation or award consideration. 

ii. Signatures.  Proposers must sign all forms where indicated. Digital Signatures are acceptable 
if they conform to all requirements of California Government Code Section 16.5. 

iii. Additional Material. Do not include any promotional material or any material that is not 
directly relevant to the objectives of this Solicitation. 

iv. Organization. Organize the proposal in the order shown below, separate each section with a 
section page and title, and number each section beginning with one. 

v. Sections Division and Purpose. Note the Qualifications and Forms sections will be used to 
determine if the Proposer is qualified and responsive, while the Technical and Costs sections 
will be used to determine how well the Proposer meets the requirements of this Solicitation 
and if the proposed costs are fair and reasonable. The Technical and Costs sections of the 
successful proposal may be attached to and incorporated as part of Exhibit A to the City’s 
standard Agreement for execution.  

B. Introduction Section 



RFP No. 2025.01.06.01 
City of Brea  

Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and 
Maintenance Services 

 

Page 5 of 42  

i. Title Page. Provide a title page showing the Solicitation subject; the Proposer’s name; 
address, and the date of the proposal. 

ii. Table of Contents. Provide a table of contents detailing the various sections and page 
numbers of the information contained in the proposal. 

iii. Letter of Transmittal. Provide a letter of transmittal signed by an individual authorized to 
bind the Proposer, briefly stating the Proposer's understanding of the work to be done, the 
commitment to perform the work within the required time period(s), a statement why the 
Proposer believes itself to be best qualified to perform the Services and a statement that the 
proposal is a firm and irrevocable proposal.  

C. Qualifications Section  
i. Background. Provide the Proposer company’s full legal name, address, phone, fax, email, 

website; Prior company names (if any) and years in business; mergers, buyouts; 
Organizational structure (i.e. corp., LLC, sole proprietorship, etc.) and chart; Names and titles 
of the principal owner(s); Person(s) authorized to contractually bind the company. List any 
pending litigation and describe any contracts terminated for cause and any governmental 
enforcement actions against Proposer’s company during the previous five (5) years.  List any 
special recognition or awards. 

ii. Experience. Provide a summary of experience with similar kinds of work; Familiarity with 
state and federal procedures; Experience working with public agencies. Provide current 
business references for whom your company has provided similar services, and a very brief 
description of the provided services. 

iii. Qualifications. Provide a summary of financial responsibility; Demonstrated technical ability; 
Capability of developing innovative or advanced techniques; Special qualifications, training, 
credentials; Staff names, titles, role, qualifications, experience, and length of service and the 
designated project manager to be assigned to this agreement. 

iv. Understanding. Describe Proposer’s understanding of the work to be done as required by 
this RFP. Include any issues that will require special consideration in providing the Services 
and identify any unique approaches or strengths your company may have. 

D. Technical Section 
i. Approach. Provide a detailed discussion and proposed methodologies of the Proposer’s 

approach to the successful performance of the Services. Include thorough discussions of 
methodologies Proposer believes are essential to accomplishing each task. Include a 
proposed work schedule to accomplish all of the required tasks and identify the team 
member responsible for each.  

ii. Proposed Schedule. Provide a detailed recommended schedule of activities. If a Meet and 
Confer and Presentation Requirements and/or a Tentative Schedule are provided in the 
Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements Section any recommended modifications 
should be addressed. 

E. Cost Section 

i. Pricing. Pricing shall be as specifically described in Exhibit “A” to the City’s standard form of 



RFP No. 2025.01.06.01 
City of Brea  

Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and 
Maintenance Services 

 

Page 6 of 42  

agreement attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.  

F. Forms Section 
i. Standard Forms 

a. Non-Collusion Affidavit Form 

b. References Form 

c. SubProposers List-Standard Form 

d. Statement of Compliance or Exceptions Form 

e. Status of Past and Present Contracts Form 

f. Insurance Commitment Form 

g. Proposer Qualification Response Form  

h. Firm Proposal Form 

i. Price Form 

G. Withdrawal and Validity. Proposals may be withdrawn before the Proposal Deadline.  
Otherwise, proposals are binding for 120 days from the Proposal Deadline.  

V. Proposal Review 

A. Opening Proposals. Proposals remained unopened until the Proposal Deadline and thereafter 
will be electronically unsealed to begin the review and evaluation process set forth in the 
Evaluation, Award, Contract, Notice to Proceed Section below. 

B. Proposal Information Posted. Proposals received by the Proposal Deadline, will have results 
posted on the City’s website at www.ci.brea.ca.us/1254/Requests-for-Bids-Proposals-and-
Quotes. The Proposal results are subject to change based on responsiveness and determination 
of qualifications. Further information may be obtained by visiting the webpage, clicking on 
Requests for Bids, Proposals, and Quotes, and scrolling to the desired solicitation. City will not 
provide results by any other means. 

C. Information Posted. For this RFP, only company names of Proposers timely submitting 
proposals, will be initially posted.  No proposal will be available for public review until the 
evaluation phase has been completed and an award recommendation, if any, has been made.  

D. All Proposals Become City Property and Public Records. All submitted proposals will become 
City property and public records subject to disclosure. However, no proposal will be disclosed 
unless and until a Proposer is selected and recommended for contract award to the City Council; 
all proposals are rejected; or, this RFP process is terminated. 
 

                     DO NOT SUBMIT CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.  Any and all notices of “trade secrets”, 
“confidential information”, “do not disclose”, and/or any similar types of notices in a proposal 
will be disregarded. 

 
 

http://www.ci.brea.ca.us/1254/Requests-for-Bids-Proposals-and-Quotes
http://www.ci.brea.ca.us/1254/Requests-for-Bids-Proposals-and-Quotes


RFP No. 2025.01.06.01 
City of Brea  

Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and 
Maintenance Services 

 

Page 7 of 42  

VI. Evaluation 

A. Non-Responsive Proposals. Proposals that are late or misdirected; or where the Proposer did 
not attend any required mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting or is suspended or debarred 
(www.sam.gov) are non-responsive. Proposals that did not include the required documents or 
information; modified any terms and conditions; had excessive or inadequate price relative to 
the Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements may cause the Proposal to be deemed 
non-responsive. Non-responsive Proposals will not be considered for further evaluations or 
award. 

B. Responsive Proposals. Proposals that conform in all material respects to the RFP and are eligible 
for further consideration.  

C. Informalities. City may waive any informalities in any proposal or this RFP process as deemed in 
City’s best interest. 

D. Basis of Award and Evaluation Criteria.  If an award is made, it shall be made based on the 
proposal determined to provide the greatest benefit to the City. City will evaluate and score each 
proposal based on how well it meets the Proposal Submission Requirements including, but not 
limited to, the Qualifications, Technical, Cost, Forms sections; any required clarifications, 
presentations, interviews; other available information; any required Best and Final Offer (BAFO) 
responses; and any other requirements of this RFP not mentioned specifically in this paragraph. 

 

The scoring for Evaluation Criteria is set forth below: 

Responsiveness of the Proposal including ability to meet the City’s timelines, 
and acceptance of City’s standard form of agreement 

25% 

Proposer’s qualifications and prior experience  25% 

Technical approach to provide the Services 20% 

Value and economy to City of the proposed Project approach  20% 

Pricing 10% 

 

The City reserves the right to select one or more Proposers for further consideration or award of a 
contract, based solely on their proposal or, on their proposal and any interviews. The City reserves 
the right to negotiate a final agreement with one or more of the top scoring Proposers.   

 Award, Reject, Rescind. 

 As may be in City’s best interest, City may accept and award a contract to any Proposer; rescind any 
award; reject any or all proposals; and/or terminate this RFP process at any time.   

 Agreement.  

 If an agreement is awarded, City will do so after the successful Proposer has satisfied all post-award 
requirements (insurance, bonding, etc.).  The City’s standard form of agreement is attached. Any 
requested changes to the agreement will be considered as part of the evaluation/scoring process. 

 Notice to Proceed.  

http://www.sam.gov/


RFP No. 2025.01.06.01 
City of Brea  

Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and 
Maintenance Services 

 

Page 8 of 42  

 City will issue a notice to proceed to Proposer(s) to commence providing the Services at the time 
stated in that notice. Absent a formal notice to proceed letter, delivery of the Purchase Order 
becomes the de facto notice to proceed unless otherwise stated in the Purchase Order. 

End of this Section. 
  



RFP No. 2025.01.06.01 
City of Brea  

Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and 
Maintenance Services 

 

Page 9 of 42  

 

 

 

PART II 
      STANDARD FORMS 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

2025.01.06.01 

Page 10 of 42 
 

STANDARD FORM A  

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT FORM  

Note: To be executed by Proposer and submitted with Proposal.  

proposal (name of proposing company)  

that the proposal is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, 
company, association, organization, or corporation; that the proposal is genuine and not collusive 
or sham; that the PROPOSER has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Proposer 
to put in a false or sham proposal; that the PROPOSER has not directly or indirectly colluded, 
conspired, connived, or agreed with any Proposer or anyone else to put in a sham proposal, or to 
refrain from proposing; that the PROPOSER has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought 
by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the proposal price of the 
PROPOSER or any other Proposer, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the proposal 
price, or of that of any other Proposer; that all statements contained in the proposal are true; and, 
the PROPOSER has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her proposal price or any 
breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, to any 
corporation, partnership, company, association, organization, depository, or to any member or 
agent thereof, to effectuate a collusive or sham proposal, and has not paid, and will not pay, any 
person or entity for such purpose.  

Any person executing this declaration on behalf of a PROPOSER that is a corporation, partnership, 
joint venture, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, or any other entity, hereby 
represents that they have full power to execute, and does execute, this declaration on behalf of the 
PROPOSER.  

I declare under penalty of perjury under the Laws of the State of California that the foregoing is 
true and correct and that this declaration is executed as set forth.  

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________ 

Notary is not required for this proposal.  

State of  
the State of the place of business)  ( 

County of  
the County of the place of business)  ( 

,  b eing first duly sworn, deposes and  
( name of the person signing this form)  

says that he/she is    of  
( title of the person signing this form)  

, the party making the foregoing  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

2025.01.06.01 

Page 11 of 42  

 
STANDARD FORM B 
REFERENCES FORM  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Provide current business references for whom your company has provided similar services.  
Provide very brief description of the Project services your company provided to the reference. 
Any unsatisfactory references or past unsatisfactory work performance with City may 
eliminate Proposer from further consideration (Brea City Code Sec. 3.24.020.M)  
 

 
  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

2025.01.06.01 

Page 12 of 42  

 
STANDARD FORM C  

SUBPROPOSERS LIST-STANDARD FORM  
 

(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Provide the information requested below. Duplicate this form as necessary to complete list.  
☐ Check this box, if no subProposers are to be used for any of the proposed work. 

 
  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

2025.01.06.01 

Page 13 of 42  

 

STANDARD FORM D  

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE OR EXCEPTIONS FORM  

Each Proposal must be accompanied by this form. Failure to provide this form will cause 
the Proposal to be deemed non-responsive and that Proposal will not be considered for further 
evaluation.  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Select one:  

            No Exceptions  

By checking the above box, Proposer declares their Proposal was prepared in strict 
compliance with the instructions, conditions, and terms of the Solicitation, Scope of Work, and 
Agreement.  

 With Exceptions  

By checking the above box, Proposer declares their Proposal was prepared in consideration 
of but with exceptions to one or more of the instructions, conditions, and terms of the Solicitation, 
Scope of Work, and Agreement, in which case Proposer must provide a detailed list for all such 
exceptions in the following format.  

 
Section 
Page #  Term, Condition, Specification  Exception & Benefit to City  

City A 
or D  

 

Proposer acknowledges that City may accept or reject any or all of Proposer’s listed 
exceptions or reject the Proposer’s entire Proposal that contain any exceptions.  

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________ 

  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

2025.01.06.01 

Page 14 of 42  

STANDARD FORM E  

STATUS OF PAST AND PRESENT CONTRACTS FORM  

Each Proposal must be accompanied by this form. Failure to provide this form will cause 
the Proposal to be deemed non-responsive and that Proposal will not be considered for further 
evaluation. As used in this form, “Proposer” means Proposer or any 10% or greater owner of  the 
proposing company; “Contract Termination” means termination for cause by any other party to a 
contract with the Proposer; “Settlement” means settlement of any claim or lawsuit brought against 
Proposer in connection with Proposer’s services; and, “Legal Action” means any lawsuit alleging 
fraud, breach or any other misconduct by, or filed against, Proposer.  

 

By checking the above box, Proposer declares that the Proposer has not had any Contract 
Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions within the past five years of the date signed hereunder 
and currently does not have any pending Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions.  

            One or More Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions  

By checking the above box, Proposer declares that the Proposer has had either one or more 
Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions within the past five years of the date signed 
hereunder in which case, Proposer must provide a list for all such contracts and include: 
Contract Title, Contract Value, Termination Date, Company Name, Contact Name, Phone Number, 
and Reasons for and descriptions of the Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions.  

The Proposer acknowledges that City may: reject any declarations that are not accompanied 
with the required documentation as described above; or reject any Proposals wherein Proposer has 
had any Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions that City in its sole discretion deems 
unacceptable.  

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________ 

  

( Contractor’s Company Name)  

              No Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

2025.01.06.01 

Page 15 of 42  

 

STANDARD FORM F  

INSURANCE COMMITMENT FORM  

Each Proposal must be accompanied by this form. Failure to provide this form will cause 
the Proposal to be deemed non-responsive and that Proposal will not be considered for further 
evaluation.  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Proposer acknowledges that:  

City reserves the right to modify the insurance requirements as set for in the Insurance 
Requirements section of the Agreement including limits, based on nature of the risk, prior 
experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.  

City’s acceptance and/or approval of the Proposer’s insurance documents does not and shall 
not be construed to relieve Proposer of any obligations, responsibilities or liabilities under any 
resultant Contract.  

Proposer’s failure to comply with the required insurance as set forth in the Insurance 
Requirements of the Agreement is a breach of contract, which may result in one or more of the 
following: suspension of work, suspension or termination of contract, remuneration of 
procurement costs for obtaining a replacement Proposer, and suspension from submitting future 
proposal based on Proposer’s default.  

Proposer, at Proposer’s sole cost and expense, hereby promises and agrees to:  

Acquire required insurance set forth in the Insurance Requirements of the Agreement.  

Provide policies of insurance from a company or companies having a current A.M. Best's 
rating of no less than A:VII and admitted and authorized to transact the business of insurance in 
the State of California prior to commencing any work and allowing any subProposer to 
commence work on any subcontract until it has secured all required insurance unless otherwise 
permitted or waived in writing by City’s Risk Manager.  

Maintain in force at all times during the term of any Contract, insurance policies as set 
forth in the Insurance Requirements of the Agreement; replace any policies whose carrier’s 
rating falls below A VII with policies that meet or better the required A VII rating no later than 
the renewal date of the policy; amend, supplement, or endorse existing insurance policies that do 
not meet the insurance requirements set forth in the Insurance Requirements.  

Proposer certifies, represents, and commits to all the Insurance Requirements of the Agreement.  

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________ 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

2025.01.06.01 

Page 16 of 42  

 

STANDARD FORM G  
PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS RESPONSE FORM  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Proposers must have demonstrated trustworthiness, as well as the necessary quality, fitness, 
capacity, and experience to satisfactorily provide the requirements specified in this Solicitation 
based on prior experience with city, references, and other available information.  

Provide the information requested below. Do not omit or renumber any sections. All items listed 
must be submitted and checked off to ensure qualification responsiveness. 

 1. Background. 

Please provide the following information about your company:  

☐   Your company’s full legal name, address, phone, fax, email, website.  
☐   Prior company names (if any) and years in business; mergers, buyouts, etc.  
☐   Organizational structure (i.e. corp., LLC, sole proprietorship, etc.).  
☐   Names and titles of the principal owner(s).  
☐   Person(s) authorized to make commitments for your company.  
☐   Special recognition or awards.  
 
2.  Experience.  

Provide the following information relative to required services:  

☐   Summary of Experience with similar kinds of work.  
☐   Familiarity with state and federal procedures.  
☐   Experience working with public agencies.  
☐ Narrative of the working relationship with current business references for information   

not already included in the References Form.  
 

3.  Qualifications.  

Provide the following information relative to required services:  

☐   Financial responsibility.  
☐   Demonstrated Technical Ability.  
☐   Capability of developing innovative or advanced techniques.  
☐   Special qualifications, training, credentials.  
☐   Staff names, titles, role, qualifications, and experience assigned to this Project.  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

2025.01.06.01 

Page 17 of 42  

☐   Designated project manager assigned to this Project.  
 

4.  Understanding.  

Provide the following information relative to required services:  

☐   Understanding of the work to be done based on this Solicitation.  
☐   Include issues that you believe will require special consideration for this Project. 
☐   Identify unique approaches or strengths your company has relative to required    

services.  
 

5.  Approach.  

Provide the following information relative to required services:  

☐   Understanding of the work to be done.  
☐   Adequacy of labor and resources to satisfactorily perform the requested services and       

meet the City’s needs.  
☐   Names and titles of key management personnel.  
☐   Team to be assigned for these services.  

 

Submitted by:  

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________ 

  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

2025.01.06.01 

Page 18 of 42  

 
STANDARD FORM H 

FIRM PROPOSAL FORM  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

FIRM PROPOSAL made by Proposer to the City of Brea:  
I, the undersigned, hereby represent and warrant that I am authorized to submit this Proposal on behalf of 
and to bind the principals who I represent, to all the requirements of the City of Brea’s Terms and Conditions, 
Specifications, Scope or Work, any attachments, exhibits, amendments; and I offer and agree to those 
requirements at the prices set forth in the Proposal Form.  
Further, I understand that no contract exists unless City accepts this Proposal by executing the attached 
Agreement.  

Business Name: ___________________________________________ 
Business Address: ___________________________________________ 

         Federal ID#: ___________________________________________ 
 

If any Work is a Public Works        Proposer Lic#: _________      DIR#: _________ 
            Business Type: ______ 1. Individual/Sole Proprietor or Single-Member LLC; 2. C Corporation;                                  

(Proposer enter a number)                        3. Corporation; 4. Partnership; 5. Trust/Estate; 6. Limited Liability Co. 

 By: _______________________________   By: _______________________________  

 Name:     Name:   

                Title:                   Title:  

  Email:                      Email:  

Date Signed: ________________________      Date Signed: ________________________  
                  CORPs: Chairperson, President, Vice President               CORPs: Secretary, Assist. Secretary, Chief Finance  
                    LLCs Manager                                                       Officer, Assist. Treasurer 

LLCs: Manager  
[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 313, both signature lines must be executed unless the signatory 
holds at least one of the offices designated on each line.]  

[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 17703.01(d), for limited liability companies, both signature lines 
must be executed unless the articles of incorporation state that the firm is managed by only one manager.]  

  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

2025.01.06.01 

Page 19 of 42  

 
STANDARD FORM I 

PRICE FORM  
 

 

Please refer to the Price Form provided as an excel file as part of the RFP. 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
for Comprehensive User Fee Study and Cost Allocation Plan RFP No. 

2024.01.10.01  

Page 20 of 42  

PART III   
     AGREEMENT &   

SCOPE OF SERVICES 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

2025.01.06.01 

Page 21 of 42 
 

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated {AgreementDate} for reference 
purposes and is executed by the City of Brea, a California municipal corporation (“City”), and 
{Proposer Name} a {Legal Status} (“Proposer”).  

RECITALS  
A. City desires to retain Proposer as an independent Proposer to provide the following 
professional services:  <insert services>. 

B. Proposer represents that it is duly licensed, fully authorized by law, and has the necessary 
experience and qualifications, to provide such services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:  

AGREEMENT  

1. Scope of Services. 

Proposer shall perform the services referenced in the Recitals, as required by the RFP 
dated ____________ and more specifically described in the Scope of Services set forth in the 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and as otherwise required by this Agreement, all to City’s 
satisfaction (collectively, “Services”).  

2. Compensation. 

A. City shall pay for the Services satisfactorily performed, in accordance with 
the Fee Schedule set forth in the attached Attachment 1 to Exhibit A hereto.  

B. In no event shall the total amount paid for the Services exceed the all-
inclusive annual sum of $_________ (“Contract Amount”). This amount covers and is 
inclusive of all labor, materials, and any and all other costs incurred by Proposer in 
performing the Services. Proposer shall be deemed to have made all inquiries and site 
inspections deemed necessary by Proposer prior to execution of this Agreement.  

C. Unless the Fee Schedule calls for payment of a one-time flat fee, periodic 
payments for undisputed work shall be made within 30 days of receipt of an invoice 
which includes a detailed description of the work performed. Proposer’s invoices shall 
indicate the amount of time spent on each task and the applicable rate.  

D. Unless the Fee Schedule calls for payment on a different schedule, 
Proposer shall invoice City on a monthly basis.  

3. Contingency Work. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 22 of 42  

This Agreement does not include any contingency or additional work.  Any additional 
work performed by Proposer without a written amendment or approval of the City shall be 
deemed to be work included within the Services. 

 
4. Term. 

The term of this Agreement shall commence on {TermStartDate} (“Effective Date”). 
Unless extended or earlier terminated as provided herein, this Agreement shall expire on ____ or 
upon satisfactory completion of the Services, whichever occurs first. The City may extend the 
term of this Agreement by giving written notice to Proposer within 30 days prior to the then-
scheduled expiration date for one (1) additional one-year term which will be the sole discretion 
of the:  Purchasing Agent. 

5. Time of Performance. 

A. Proposer shall complete the Services within the term of this Agreement, 
and shall meet any other established and agreed upon schedules and deadlines agreed 
upon in writing. Proposer shall commence performance within two business days of 
receiving City’s written notice to proceed.  

B. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be considered in default of this 
Agreement for delays in performance caused by a force majeure event. As used in this 
Agreement, the term “force majeure event” means circumstances beyond the reasonable 
control of the non-performing party and includes the following: abnormal weather 
conditions; floods; earthquakes; fire; epidemics; war; riots and other civil disturbances; 
strikes, lockouts, work slowdowns, and other labor disturbances; sabotage; or judicial 
restraint. Proposer’s lack of financial capability, shall not constitute a force majeure event 
unless directly attributable to any of the foregoing events.  

C. Should a force majeure event occur, the non-performing party shall, within 
a reasonable time of being prevented from performing, give written notice to the other 
party describing the circumstances preventing continued performance and the efforts 
being made to resume performance of this Agreement.  

6. Maintenance of Records. 

Books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the 
Services, including costs incurred, shall be maintained by Proposer and made available for 
review by City at all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement and for four (4) years 
from the date of final payment by City.  

7. Standard of Care. 

Proposer’s Services shall be performed in accordance with the generally accepted 
professional standards of practice and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of care 
and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently performing similar services 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 23 of 42  

under similar conditions. Proposer shall maintain all professional licenses and certifications 
required to lawfully perform the Services.  

 
8. Compliance with Law. 

A. Proposer shall comply with all applicable laws including Cal/OSHA 
requirements. 

B. Proposer shall obtain a City of Brea business license. 
C. Proposer shall comply with all {Additional Legal Requirements}. 

9. Assignment and Subcontracting. 

A. Proposer shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or 
obligations under, or any interest in this Agreement, or subcontract any required 
performance hereunder, without the prior written consent of City, which may be withheld 
for any reason. City shall be deemed to have approved Proposer’s utilization of 
subProposers identified in Proposer’s proposal for the Services.  

B. Any attempt to so assign, transfer, or subcontract without City’s prior 
written consent shall be void and shall constitute grounds for City’s termination of this 
Agreement. Authorized subcontracts shall contain a provision making the subProposer 
subject to all requirements of this Agreement.  

C. If use of a subProposer is approved, then City may withhold 5% of each 
monthly payment to Proposer. Such retention shall be released upon City’s receipt of an 
unconditional release of all claims signed by any such subProposer, as to work performed 
to date.  

10. Independent Proposer. 

A. Proposer is retained as an independent Proposer and is not an employee of 
City. No employee or agent of Proposer is or shall become an employee of City.  

B. Proposer will determine the means, methods, and details by which 
Proposer’s personnel will perform the Services. Proposer shall be solely responsible for 
the satisfactory work performance of all personnel engaged in performing the Services 
and compliance with the customary professional standards.  

C. Proposer’s personnel shall not wear or display any City uniform, badge, 
identification number, or other information identifying such individual as an employee of 
City. Proposer’s personnel shall not use any City e-mail address or City telephone 
number in the performance of the Services. Proposer shall acquire and maintain at its sole 
cost and expense such vehicles, equipment and supplies as Proposer’s personnel require 
to perform the Services. Proposer shall perform the Services off of City premises at 
locations of Proposer’s choice, except as otherwise may from time to time be necessary 
in order for Proposer’s personnel to receive projects from City, review plans on file at 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 24 of 42  

City, pick up or deliver any work product, or as may be necessary to inspect or visit City 
locations. City may make a computer available to Proposer from time to time for 
Proposer’s personnel to obtain information about or to check on the status of projects 
pertaining to the Services.  

D. Proposer shall be responsible for and pay all wages, salaries, benefits and 
other amounts due to Proposer’s personnel in connection with the Services. Proposer 
shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such additional personnel, 
including Social Security taxes, other retirement or pension benefits, income tax 
withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers' compensation 
insurance. Proposer and its officers, employees, agents, and subProposers shall not 
become entitled to, and hereby waive any claims to, any wages, salaries, compensation, 
benefit or any incident of employment by City, including eligibility to enroll in, or 
reinstate to membership in, the California Public Employees Retirement System 
(“PERS”) or any other retirement program, as an employee of City, and entitlement to 
any contribution to be paid by City for employer contributions or employee contributions 
for PERS benefits or any other retirement benefits.  

 
11. PERS Compliance. 

The parties acknowledge that City is a local agency member of PERS, and as such has 
certain pension reporting and contribution obligations to PERS on behalf of qualifying 
employees. Proposer agrees that, in providing its employees and any other personnel to City to 
perform the Services, Proposer shall assure compliance with the Public Employees’ Retirement 
Law (Government Code Section 20000 et seq.), the regulations of PERS, and the Public 
Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (Government Code Section 7522 et seq.). Without 
limitation to the foregoing, Proposer shall assure compliance with regard to personnel who have 
active or inactive membership in PERS and to those who are retired annuitants and in performing 
this Agreement shall not assign or utilize any of its personnel in a manner that will cause City to 
be in violation of the applicable retirement laws and regulations.  

12. Insurance. 

Unless otherwise permitted or waived in writing by City’s Risk Manager, Proposer shall 
not commence work until it has secured all insurance required under this section and provided 
evidence thereof that is acceptable to City. In addition, Proposer shall not allow any subProposer 
to commence work on any subcontract until it has secured all insurance required under this 
section.  

A. Commercial General Liability 

i. Proposer shall take out and maintain, in amounts not less than specified 
herein, Commercial General Liability Insurance, in a form and with insurance companies 
acceptable to City.  

ii. Coverage for Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 25 of 42  

broad as the following:  

a. Insurance Services Office Commercial 
General Liability coverage (Occurrence Form CG 00 01) or exact 
equivalent.  

iii. Commercial General Liability Insurance must include coverage for the 
following: 

a. Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
b. Personal Injury/Advertising Injury 
c. Premises/Operations Liability 
d. Products/Completed Operations Liability 
e. Aggregate Limits that Apply per Project 
f. Contractual Liability with respect to this 

Agreement 
g. Broad Form Property Damage 
h. Independent Proposers Coverage 

iv. The policy shall contain no endorsements or provisions limiting coverage 
for (1) contractual liability; (2) cross liability exclusion for claims or suits by one insured against 
another; (3) products/completed operations liability; or (4) contain any other exclusion contrary 
to this Agreement.  

v. The policy shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, 
employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as independent Proposers 
in the role of City officials, as additional insureds using ISO endorsement forms CG 20 10 10 01 
and 20 37 10 01, or endorsements providing the exact same coverage.  

vi. The general liability coverage may utilize deductibles or provide coverage 
excess of a self-insured retention, only if approved by City’s Risk Manager in writing, and 
further provided that such deductibles shall not apply to coverage of the additional insureds.  

B. Automobile Liability 

i. Proposer shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injury 
and property damage including coverage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles, in a form and 
with insurance companies acceptable to City.  

ii. Coverage for automobile liability insurance shall be at least as broad as 
Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering automobile 
liability (Coverage Symbol 1, any auto).  

iii. The policy shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 26 of 42  

employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as independent Proposers 
in the role of City officials, as additional insureds.  

iv. Subject to City’s written approval, the automobile liability coverage may 
utilize deductibles or provide coverage excess of a self-insured retention, provided that such 
deductibles shall not apply to coverage of the additional insureds.  

C. Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability 

i. Proposer certifies that Proposer is aware of the provisions of Labor 

Code Section 3700 which requires every employer to be insured against liability for workers’ 
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and 
he/she/it will comply with such provisions before commencing work under this Agreement.  

ii. Proposer shall maintain full compensation insurance for its employees in 
accordance with the Workers’ Compensation and Insurance Act (Labor Code Section 3200 et 
seq.) and Employer’s Liability Coverage in amounts indicated herein. Proposer shall require all 
subProposers to obtain and maintain workers’ compensation coverage of the same type and 
limits as specified in this section.  

D. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) 

Proposer shall maintain professional liability or errors and omissions insurance 
appropriate to its profession, in a form and with insurance companies acceptable to City and with 
the limits required herein. This insurance shall be endorsed to include contractual liability 
applicable to this Agreement and shall be written on a policy coverage form specifically designed 
to protect against acts, errors or omissions of Proposer in the performance of professional 
services. “Covered Professional Services” as designated in the policy must specifically include 
work performed under this Agreement. The policy must “pay on behalf of” the insured and must 
include a provision establishing the insurer's duty to defend.  

E. Cyber Liability 

If Cyber Liability is included in the Minimum Policy Limits Required below, then  
Proposer shall maintain cyber liability insurance providing protection against claims and 
liabilities arising from: (i) errors and omissions in connection with maintaining security of City 
Data (as defined below); (ii) data breach including theft, destruction, and/or unauthorized use of 
City Data; (iii) identity theft including bank charges assessed; and (iv) violation of privacy rights 
due to a breach of City Data.  

F. Minimum Policy Limits Required 
i. A.M. Best's Rating 

Each policy of insurance required herein shall be from a company or companies   



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 27 of 42  

having a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII and admitted and authorized to transact 
the business of insurance in the State of California.  

ii. The following insurance limits are required for this Agreement: 

If ☒, then required Combined Single Limit  
☒Commercial General Liability  $1,000,000 per occurrence/ $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily 

injury, personal injury, and property damage  

☒Automobile Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence (any auto) for bodily injury and 
property damage  

☒Workers’ Compensation In the amount required by California law  

☒Employer’s Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence  

☒Professional Liability $2,000,000 per claim and aggregate (errors and omissions)  

☐Cyber Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence  

iii. Defense costs shall be payable in addition to the limits. 

iv. Requirements of specific coverage or limits contained in this section are 
not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits, or other requirement, or a waiver of any 
coverage normally provided by any insurance. Any available coverage shall be provided to the 
parties required to be named as additional insured pursuant to this Agreement.  

G. Proof of Insurance 

Within five days of execution of this Agreement, but prior to commencement of the 
Services, Proposer shall file with City evidence of insurance from an insurer or insurers 
certifying to the coverage of all insurance required herein. Such evidence shall include original 
copies of the ISO CG 00 01 (or insurer’s equivalent) signed by the insurer’s representative and 
Certificate of Insurance (Acord Form 25-S or equivalent), together with required endorsements. 
All evidence of insurance shall be signed by a properly authorized officer, agent, or qualified 
representative of the insurer and shall certify the names of the insured, any additional insureds, 
where appropriate, the type and amount of the insurance, the location and operations to which the 
insurance applies, and the expiration date of such insurance.  

H. Policy Provisions Required 

i. Proposer shall provide City at least 30 days prior written notice of 
cancellation of any policy required by this Agreement, except that Proposer shall provide at least 
10 days prior written notice of cancellation of any such policy due to non-payment of premium. 
If any of the required coverage is cancelled or expires during the term of this Agreement, 
Proposer shall deliver renewal certificate(s) including the required additional insured 
endorsement to City at least 10 days prior to the effective date of cancellation or expiration.  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 28 of 42  

ii. The Commercial General Liability Policy and Automobile Liability Policy 
shall each contain a provision stating that Proposer’s policy is primary insurance and that any 
insurance, self-insurance or other coverage maintained by City or any additional insureds shall 
not be called upon to contribute to any loss.  

iii. The retroactive date (if any) of each policy is to be no later than the 
effective date of this Agreement. If a “claims-made” professional liability policy is provided, it 
shall include an extended reporting period of not less than three years.  

iv. All required insurance coverages, except for the professional and cyber 
liability coverage, shall contain or be endorsed to provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of 
City, its officials, officers, employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving 
as independent Proposers in the role of City officials, or shall specifically allow Proposer or 
others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications to waive their right 
of recovery prior to a loss. Proposer hereby waives its own right of recovery against City, and 
shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each of its subProposers.  

v. The limits set forth herein shall apply separately to each insured against 
whom claims are made or suits are brought, except with respect to the limits of liability. Further 
the limits set forth herein shall not be construed to relieve Proposer from liability in excess of 
such coverage, nor shall it limit Proposer’s indemnification obligations to City or preclude City 
from taking such other actions available to City under other provisions of this Agreement or law.  

I. Additional Insurance Provisions 

i. The foregoing requirements as to the types and limits of insurance 
coverage to be maintained by Proposer, and any approval of such insurance by City, are not 
intended to and shall not in any manner limit or qualify the liabilities and obligations otherwise 
assumed by Proposer pursuant to this Agreement, including the provisions concerning 
indemnification.  

ii. If at any time during the term of this Agreement, any policy of insurance 
required under this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not 
replaced, City has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any 
premium paid by City will be promptly reimbursed by Proposer or City will withhold amounts 
sufficient to pay premium from Proposer payments. In the alternative, City may terminate this 
Agreement for cause.  

iii. City may require Proposer to provide for inspection by City, complete 
copies of all insurance policies in effect for the duration of the Agreement.  

iv. No City official, officer, employee, agent or volunteer shall be personally 
responsible for any liability arising under or by virtue of this Agreement.  

v. The insurance obligations under this Agreement shall be: (1) all the 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 29 of 42  

insurance coverage and/or limits carried by or available to Proposer; or (2) the minimum 
insurance coverage requirements and/or limits shown in this Agreement; whichever is greater. 
Any insurance proceeds in excess of or broader than the minimum required coverage and/or 
minimum required limits, which are applicable to a given loss, shall be available to City. No 
representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement are sufficient 
to cover the obligations of Proposer under this Agreement.  

J. SubProposer Insurance Requirements 

Proposer shall not allow any subProposer to commence work on any subcontract until it 
has provided evidence satisfactory to City that it has secured all insurance required under this 
section. Policies of commercial general liability insurance provided by such subProposers shall 
be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, employees, agents, servants, designated 
volunteers and agents serving as independent Proposers in the role of City officials as additional 
insureds, using ISO form CG 20 38 04 13 or an endorsement providing the same coverage. If 
requested by Proposer, City may approve different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for 
particular subProposers.  

13. Indemnification. 

A. Other than in the performance of professional services, and to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, Proposer shall defend (with counsel reasonably approved by 
City), indemnify and hold City, its officials, officers, attorneys, agents, employees, 
servants, designated volunteers, successors, assigns and those City agents serving as 
independent Proposers in the role of City officials (collectively “Indemnitees”) free and 
harmless with respect to any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, 
liabilities, losses, damages, stop notices and/or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to 
property or persons, including bodily injury, wrongful death, personal injury and property 
damage, and destruction, or unauthorized access to, use, and/or theft of City Data 
(collectively, “Claims”) in any manner and to the extent arising out of, pertaining to, or 
incidental to any act, error, omission, or willful misconduct of Proposer, its owners, 
officials, officers, employees, servants, subProposers, consultants or agents (and/or any 
entity or individual for whom Proposer shall bear legal liability) in connection with the 
performance of the Services including the payment of all damages, expert witness fees 
and attorney’s fees and other related costs and expenses actually incurred in connection 
with such defense. Proposer's obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance 
proceeds, if any, received by Proposer, or by City or any of the other Indemnitees. 
Proposer shall have no liability hereunder for claims and liabilities arising out of the sole, 
active negligence of any of the Indemnitees.  

B. Professional Services. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Proposer 
shall, at its sole cost and expense, protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify the 
Indemnitees, from and against any and all Claims, whether actual, alleged or threatened, 
to the extent arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to, in whole or in part, the 
negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of Proposer, and/or its officers, agents, 
servants, employees, subProposers, Proposers or their officers, agents, servants or 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 30 of 42  

employees (and/or any entity or individual for whom Proposer shall bear legal liability) 
in the performance of professional services under this Agreement. Proposer shall defend 
the Indemnitees in any action or actions filed in connection with any Claims with counsel 
of the Indemnitees’ choice, and shall pay all costs and expenses, including all attorneys’ 
fees and experts’ costs, actually incurred in connection with such defense.  

C. Proposer’s obligations under this Section shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement.  

14. Laws and Venue. 

This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California 
without regard for change of venue laws. If any action is brought to interpret or enforce any term 
of this Agreement, the action shall be brought in a state or federal court situated in the County of  
Orange, State of California. Proposer must comply with the claim procedures set forth in the 
Government Claims act (Government Code Section 810 et seq.) prior to filing any lawsuit 
against City.  

15. Termination. 

A. City may terminate any portion or all of the Services or this Agreement 
with or without cause by giving 10 days’ written notice to Proposer. In such event, City 
shall be immediately given title to and possession of all Work Product (as defined) below 
and original field notes, drawings and specifications, written reports and all other 
documents produced or developed pursuant to this Agreement. Provided Proposer is not 
then in breach, City shall pay Proposer for any portion of the Services satisfactorily 
completed prior to termination. If termination occurs prior to completion of any specific 
task for which a payment request has not been received, the charge for Services 
performed shall be the reasonable value of such Services, based on an amount agreed to 
by the parties. City shall not be liable for any costs other than the charges or portions 
thereof which are specified herein. Proposer shall not be entitled to payment for 
unperformed Services, and shall not be entitled to damages or compensation resulting 
from such termination.  

B. Proposer may terminate this Agreement only for cause and by serving 
written notice of termination to City, provided Proposer has first served City with a 
written notice of default and demand to cure, and City has failed to cure such default 
within 30 days of receipt of such notice.  

16. Ownership of Work Product. 

A. All draft and final reports, documents, and other written material, and any 
and all images, ideas, concepts, designs including website designs, source code, object 
code, electronic data and files, and/or other media whatsoever created or developed by 
Proposer in the performance of this Agreement (collectively, “Work Product”) shall be 
considered to be “works made for hire” for the benefit of City. All Work Product and any 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 31 of 42  

and all intellectual property rights arising from their creation, including all copyrights and 
other proprietary rights, shall be and remain the property of City without restriction or 
limitation upon their use, duplication or dissemination by City upon final payment being 
made, provided that any such use shall be at City’s sole risk. Proposer shall not obtain or 
attempt to obtain copyright protection as to any of the Work Product. Proposer agrees 
that the compensation set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement includes conveyance to 
City of ownership of all Work Product, including intellectual property rights, as provided 
in this Section 16.  

B. Proposer hereby assigns to City all rights of ownership to the Work 
Product, including any and all related intellectual property and proprietary rights, that are 
not otherwise vested in City pursuant to subsection A above.  

C. Proposer warrants and represents that it has secured all necessary licenses, 
consents or approvals necessary to the production of the Work Product, and that upon 
final payment or Proposer’s default, City shall have full legal title to the Work Product, 
and full legal authority and the right to use and reproduce the Work Product for any 
purpose. Proposer shall defend, indemnify and hold City, and the other Indemnitees 
harmless from any and all losses, claims or liabilities in any way related to a claim that 
City’s use of any of the Work Product violates federal, state or local laws, or any 
contractual provisions, or any rights or laws relating to trade names, licenses, franchises, 
copyrights, patents or other means of protecting intellectual property rights and/or 
interests in products, ideas or inventions. Proposer shall bear all costs arising from the use 
of patented, copyrighted, trade secret or trademarked documents, materials, equipment, 
devices or processes in connection with its provision of the Work Product produced 
under this Agreement. In the event the use of any of the Work Product or other 
deliverables hereunder by City is held to constitute an infringement and the use of any of 
the same is enjoined, Proposer, at its expense, shall: (a) secure for City the right to 
continue using the Work Product and other deliverables by suspension of any injunction, 
or by procuring a license or licenses for City; or (b) modify the Work Product and other 
deliverables so that they become non-infringing while remaining in compliance with the 
requirements of this Agreement. Proposer’s obligations under this Section shall survive 
the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  

17. Data Security. 

A. As used in this Agreement, “City Data” means any and all information and 
data provided or made accessible, directly or indirectly, to Proposer by City, or otherwise 
acquired from City, in connection with Proposer’s performance of the Services. Except 
where subject to a third party’s intellectual property rights, any and all City Data is solely 
owned by City. Proposer is granted a limited, non-exclusive, and revocable license to use 
City Data solely as necessary to perform the Services. At no time shall Proposer use City 
Data for its own purposes, or sell, disclose or disseminate City Data, except as required 
by law or to provide the Services. At all times herein, Proposer shall protect and maintain 
the security of City Data using methods providing not less than the level of security 
Proposer uses for its own confidential data, and that otherwise comply with recognized 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 32 of 42  

industry data security standards applicable to similar kinds of governmental data and 
information.  

B. To the extent any City Data consists of personal information as defined in 
Consumer Privacy Act (Civil Code Section 1798.100 et seq.), Proposer shall comply 
with that statute and with Civil Code Section 1798.80, et seq., including providing the 
required notifications in the event of any unauthorized access of personal information 
stored, maintained, accessed, used or transmitted by Proposer in connection with this 
Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Proposer shall within 24 hours notify the 
City Representative by telephone and in writing of any unauthorized access of City 
Data. Thereafter, Proposer shall render any assistance to City and law enforcement as 
necessary to ascertain the nature and extent of such unauthorized access.  

C. Proposer shall not store City Data using cloud-based storage without 
City’s prior, written consent, unless the use of such storage is clearly described in the 
Scope of Services. Where permitted herein, any and all cloud-based storage shall be on 
servers and other hardware located within the continental United States, and shall be in 
compliance with ISO/IEC 27001 - 27018, as applicable, unless otherwise agreed to in 
writing by the City Representative.  

18. Party Representatives. 

A. Proposer hereby designates {ProposerRepName}, or such person’s 
designee, as Proposer’s Representative for this Agreement, unless and until written notice 
of a new representative acceptable to City is provided to City.  

B. City hereby designates {CityRepName} or such person’s designee, as the 
City Representative for this Agreement.  

C. The foregoing representatives shall be authorized to provide consent 
where required herein, and to make other administrative decisions that will be binding on 
their respective party, except as otherwise specifically required herein.  

19. Notices. 

Any notices, invoices, or other documents related to this Agreement shall be deemed 
received on: (a) the day of delivery, if delivered by hand during the receiving party’s regular 
business hours or by e-mail before or during the receiving party’s regular business hours; (b) the 
business day after delivery, if delivered by e-mail after the receiving party’s regular business 
hours; or (c) on the second business day following deposit in the United States mail, certified 
mail with return receipt requested and postage prepaid, to the addresses listed below, or to such 
other addresses as the parties may, from time to time, designate in writing.  

City  Proposer  
City of Brea  {ProposerFullName}  

1 Civic Center Circle  {ConPMStreetAddress}  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 33 of 42  

Brea, CA 92821  {ConPMcity}, {ConPMstate} {ConPMzip}  

United States  {ConPMCountry}  

{CityPMName}  {ConPMName}  
{CityPMEmail}  {ConPMEmail}  
{CityPMPhone}  {ConPMPhone}  
  

20. Third Party Rights. 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to anyone 
other than City and Proposer.  

21. Conflicts of Interest. 

A. Proposer covenants that it presently has no interest, and shall not acquire 
any interest, direct or indirect, financial or otherwise, which would conflict in any manner 
or degree with the performance of the Services. Proposer certifies that no one who has or 
will have any financial interest under this Agreement is an officer or employee of City.  

B. Proposer further covenants that, in the performance of this Agreement, no 
subProposer or person having any interest, direct or indirect, financial or otherwise, 
which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the Services shall 
be employed. Proposer has provided City with a list of all City-approved subProposers 
and the key personnel for such subProposers that are retained or to be retained by 
Proposer in connection with the performance of the Services, to assist City in affirming 
compliance with this Section.  

C. Proposer maintains and warrants that it has not employed nor retained any 
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Proposer, to 
solicit or secure this Agreement. Further, Proposer warrants that it has not paid nor has it 
agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for 
Proposer, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration 
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. If required, 
Proposer further agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subProposers to file, a 
Statement of Economic Interest with the City Clerk as required under state law in the 
performance of the Services. For breach or violation of this warranty, City shall have the 
right to terminate this Agreement without liability. No director, official, officer or 
employee of City, during the term of his or her service with City, shall have any direct 
interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising 
therefrom.  

22. Severability. 

The unenforceability, invalidity or illegality of any provision(s) of this Agreement shall 
not render the provisions unenforceable, invalid or illegal.  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 34 of 42  

23. Successors and Assigns. 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors in 
interest, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties.  

24. Non-Waiver. 

None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be considered waived by either party, 
unless such waiver is specified in writing, and any such waiver shall be limited to that set of 
circumstances and not to any future circumstances unless another written waiver is executed.  

25. Time of Essence. 

Time is of the essence in each and every provision of this Agreement. 

26. City’s Right to Employ Other Proposers. 

City reserves its right to employ other Proposers to provide the Services or similar 
services.  

27. Exhibits. 

The attached Exhibit A are incorporated herein by reference. In the event of any conflict 
or inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and any Exhibit, the provisions of this 
Agreement shall govern. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of 
this Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements and the Proposer’s Proposal set forth in 
the attached Attachment 1 to Exhibit A, the provisions of the Scope of Services and 
Specifications Requirements shall govern.  

28. Entire Agreement. 

This Agreement (including the attached Exhibits) represents the entire understanding of 
the parties as to the Services, and supersedes and cancels any prior or contemporaneous oral or 
written understanding, promises or representations with respect to those matters. Each party 
acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises or agreements have been made by 
any person which are not incorporated herein, and that any other agreements shall be void. This 
Agreement may not be modified or altered except in writing signed by both parties. This is an 
integrated Agreement.  

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]  
  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 35 of 42  

TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT, the Parties have caused their authorized representatives 
to sign below. Digital Signatures are acceptable if they conform to all requirements of California 
Government Code Section 16.5.  

{Proposer Full Name} 
By: __________________________   By: __________________________  

{ConSigner1Name} {ConSigner2Name}  
{ConSigner1Title} {ConSigner2Title}  
{ConSigner1Email} {ConSigner2Email}  

Date Signed: _______________  Date Signed: _______________  
CORPs: Chairperson, President, Vice President;  CORPs: Secretary, Asst. Secretary, Chief Finance  
LLCs:  Manager  Officer,  Asst.  Treasurer 

LLCs: Manager  
[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 313, both signature lines must be executed unless the signatory 
holds at least one of the offices designated on each line.]  

[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 17703.01(d), both signature lines must be executed unless the 
articles of incorporation state that the firm is managed by only one manager.]  
City of Brea  Attest (if over $50,000)  
By: __________________________   By: __________________________  

{CitySignerName} {AttestName}  
{CitySignerTitle} {AttestTitle}  
{CitySignerEmail} {AttestEmail}  

Date Signed: _______________  Date Signed: _______________  
 

  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 36 of 42  

EXHIBIT A  
Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements  

Introduction 
The City of Brea (City) is accepting proposals from qualified Proposers for the lease and maintenance of 
multi-functional copier/printers (MFPs) at various City facilities for a 60-month lease period with an 
anticipated installation date in July 2025.  Site assessment will be made available to the selected Proposer 
once proposals are received and evaluated.   
 
Background 
The City currently utilizes Canon copiers and Hewlett Packard standalone printers throughout the City.  
There are approximately 18 MFPs of which 16 of them are nearing term date.  As a result, the City must 
go out to bid for such services offered by qualifying Proposers.  The City is seeking responses from the 
following duplication providers:  Canon, HPE, Toshiba, Konica Minolta, Lexmark, Ricoh, Xerox and 
others of equal or superior quality.  
 
The City is seeking to implement a comprehensive and consolidated print management system in order to 
standardize equipment, reduce costs and create efficiencies across the entire City.  The current average 
volume is provided in Table 1A and does not include small desktop printers.  The selected Proposer shall 
be responsible for reviewing current devices and provide recommendations to consolidate, upgrade or 
standardize on a specific model(s).  The printer replacement and consolidation will be determined through 
department interviews and the required footprint required to accommodate the recommended device. 
 
Table 1A - Printing Volume (Monthly) 

No Site  
Description 

Site  
Location 

Current Canon 
Model # 

B/W 
Volume 

Color 
Volume 

1 Com Dev. 1 Civic Center; Floor 3 IRADVC5540IV3 306 347 
2 Admin Serv. 1 Civic Center; Floor 3 IRADV4551IV3 807 - - 
3 Management Serv. 1 Civic Center; Floor 3 IRADV4551IV3 446 - - 
4 Dispatch 1 Civic Center; Floor 2 IRADV4551IV3 38 - - 
5 Fire Admin. 1 Civic Center; Floor 2 IRADVC356IFV3 118 91 
6 Police Records 1 Civic Center; Floor 1 IRADV4551IV3 204 - - 
7 Police Records 1 Civic Center; Floor 1 IRADV4551IV3 302 - - 
8 Investigation 1 Civic Center; Floor 1 IRADV4551IV3 152 - - 
9 Brea Resource* 1 Civic Center; Floor 1 IRADVDX4845I 100 - - 

10 Property Evidence 1 Civic Center; Floor 
P2 

IRADVC356IFV3 31 25 

11 Senior Center 500 S. Sierers Ave IRADV4551IV3 234 - - 
12 Public Works Yard 545 N Berry; Floor 1 IRADV4551IV3 175 - - 
13 Public Works Yard* 545 N Berry; Floor 2 IRADVDXC5850I 67 78 
14 Brea Com. Center 695 Madison; Lobby IRADV4551IV3 570 - - 
15 Fire Station No. 1** 555 N Berry Street ICMF525DW 70 - - 
16 Fire Station No. 2** 200 N. Brea Blvd ICMF525DW 75 - - 
17 Fire Station No. 3** 2600 E Santa Fe Road ICMF525DW 76 - - 
18 Fire Station No. 4** 198 Olinda Place ICMF525DW 40 - - 

* Currently under lease agreement; buyout option may be considered as part of proposal 
** Service Only 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 37 of 42  

 
The City is seeking a full turnkey solution for all locations under one scope.  The awarded Proposer will 
be responsible for all replacement, repairs and general maintenance.  
 
The City is interested in advanced reporting options that will allow reviewing end-user data, service 
management, monitoring, and granular statistics per location, including consumables. 
 
The proposed solution requires secure printing queuing and release. 
 
Badge readers or passcode release feature for highly utilized devices may be considered.  The proposed 
solution should include options for both methods and their associated costs.   
 
The City is seeking a Proposer that can provide an expanded feature set of options. 
 
City staff need the ability to order and store additional toner at the Print Shop if needed. 
 
Proposed MFPs must meet a 98% performance uptime rating based upon standard business hours between 
Monday through Friday.  Uptime for each individual MFP must be able to be tracked and a remediation 
plan must be submitted to City if uptime falls below 98% for two consecutive weeks.  
 
The Proposer will provide all equipment, periodic and/or scheduled maintenance, all consumable supplies 
(other than paper), and print management software.  This software should allow multi-function devices to 
have secure printing capabilities, scan to email, scan to OneDrive, and allow monitoring of all prints 
through devices.  
 
Goals 
 
The goals of this Request for Proposals are listed below: 

• Reduce costs; 
• Secure print and scan capabilities; 
• Standardize and upgrade equipment with new technology 
• ; 
• Consolidate stand alone printers and/or MFPs where necessary; 
• Create an efficient printing environment across the City; and 
• Provide reporting and analytics interface to count and monitor prints per device. 

 

Scope of Services 
 
The purpose of the RFP is to solicit proposals from qualified Proposers to replace the existing Canon MFP’s 
and evaluate the consolidation of department standalone printers for the City if necessary.  Once selected, 
the delivery and installation is anticipated to occur in July 2025. 
 
All Proposers are required to provide a like-for-like replacement for costing purposes for the existing Canon 
MFPs (models and features contained in table 1B below) and replacement based upon a recommended 
model.  Please refer to the Price Form (Standard Form I). 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 38 of 42  

 
All proposed equipment must be NEW and shall be current models of modern technology in current 
production and not scheduled to retire within the next 24 months.   Specifications listed within each machine 
category are the minimum acceptable requirements and should be included in the cost-per-copy price.  
Proposer are not to assume that the list of equipment is the final or complete list as this may change 
following site assessment with departments. 
 
Table 1B – MFP Locations and Model # 
 

No Site  
Description 

Site  
Location 

Current Canon Model # 

1 Com Dev. 1 Civic Center; Floor 3 ImageRunner Advance C5540i V3 
(B/W & Color) 

Cassette Feeding unit – AM1 
Buffer Pass Unit – L1 
ESP Next Gen PCS Power Filter 
(120V/15A) XG – PCS -15D 
Meap Web Connect. Kit V5.4 for Gen3 
Stapler Finisher – Y1 
Fax – Brother TN-450 
Waste Container – WT-202 

2 Admin Serv. 1 Civic Center; Floor 3 ImageRunner Advance 4551i V3  
(Black and White) 

Cassette Feeding unit  - AN1 
Buffer Pass Unit – N1 
ESP Next Gen PCS Power Filter 
(120V/15A) XG – PCS -15D 
Meap Web Connect. Kit V5.4 for Gen3 
Stapler Finisher – Y1 
Fax – Brother TN-450 
Waste Container – WT-101 

3 Management Serv. 1 Civic Center; Floor 3 ImageRunner Advance 4551i V3  
(Black and White) 

Cassette Feeding unit  - AN1 
Inner Finisher – J1 
ESP Next Gen PCS Power Filter 
(120V/15A) XG – PCS -15D 
Meap Web Connect. Kit V5.4 for Gen3 
Stapler Finisher – Y1 
Fax – Brother TN-450 
Waste Container – WT-101 

4 Dispatch 1 Civic Center; Floor 2 ImageRunner Advance 4551i V3  
(Black and White) 

Super G3 Fax Board – AG1 
Cabinet Type - Q 
Inner Finisher – J1 
ESP Next Gen PCS Power Filter 
(120V/15A) XG – PCS -15D 
Meap Web Connect. Kit V5.4 for Gen3 
Stapler Finisher – Y1 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 39 of 42  

Waste Container – WT-101 
5 Fire Admin. 1 Civic Center; Floor 2 ImageRunner Advance C356i FV3  

(B/W & Color) 
Cassette Feeding unit – AG1 
Stapler Finisher – Z1 
Meap Web Connect. Kit V5.4 for Gen3 
Waste Container – WT-201 
Fax – FX-8 

6 Police Records 1 Civic Center; Floor 1 ImageRunner Advance 4551i V3  
(Black and White) 

Cabinet Type - Q 
Inner Finisher – J1 
ESP Next Gen PCS Power Filter 
(120V/15A) XG – PCS -15D 
Meap Web Connect. Kit V5.4 for Gen3 
Stapler Finisher – Y1 
Waste Container – WT-101 

7 Police Records 1 Civic Center; Floor 1 ImageRunner Advance 4551i V3  
(Black and White) 

Cabinet Type - Q 
Inner Finisher – J1 
ESP Next Gen PCS Power Filter 
(120V/15A) XG – PCS -15D 
Meap Web Connect. Kit V5.4 for Gen3 
Stapler Finisher – Y1 
Waste Container – WT-101 

8 Investigation 1 Civic Center; Floor 1 ImageRunner Advance 4551i V3  
(Black and White) 

Cabinet Type - Q 
Inner Finisher – J1 
ESP Next Gen PCS Power Filter 
(120V/15A) XG – PCS -15D 
Meap Web Connect. Kit V5.4 for Gen3 
Stapler Finisher – Y1 
Fax – Brother TN-630 
Waste Container – WT-101 

9 Brea Resource* 1 Civic Center; Floor 1 ImageRunner Advance DX4845i  
(Black and White) 

Cassette unit – AW1 
Inner Finisher – L1 
ESP Next Gen PCS Power Filter 
(120V/15A) XG – PCS -15D 
Mid Volume Connectivity 30+PPM up 
to 79PPM 
Stapler Finisher – Y1 
Waste Container – WT-101 

10 Property Evidence 1 Civic Center; Floor P2 ImageRunner Advance C356iF V3  
(B/W & Color) 

Cassette Feeding unit – AG1 
Stapler Finisher – Z1 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 40 of 42  

Meap Web Connect. Kit V5.4 for Gen3 
Waste Container – WT-201 

11 Senior Center 500 S. Sierers Ave ImageRunner Advance 4551i V3  
(Black and White) 

Cabinet Type - Q 
Inner Finisher – J1 
ESP Next Gen PCS Power Filter 
(120V/15A) XG – PCS -15D 
Meap Web Connect. Kit V5.4 for Gen3 
Stapler Finisher – Y1 
Waste Container – WT-101 

12 Public Works Yard 545 N Berry; Floor 1 ImageRunner Advance 4551i V3  
(Black and White) 

Cassette Feeding unit  - AN1 
Inner Finisher – J1 
ESP Next Gen PCS Power Filter 
(120V/15A) XG – PCS -15D 
Meap Web Connect. Kit V5.4 for Gen3 
Stapler Finisher – Y1 
Fax – FX-7 
Waste Container – WT-101 

13 Public Works Yard* 545 N Berry; Floor 2 ImageRunner Advance DX C5850i 
(B/W & Color) 

Cassette Feeding unit  - AQ1 
Inner Finisher – L1 
Super G3 Fax Board – AX1 
ESP Next Gen PCS Power Filter 
(120V/15A) XG – PCS -15D 
Mid Volume Connectivity 30+PPM up 
to 79PPM 
Stapler Finisher – Y1 
Waste Container – WT-101 

14 Brea Com. Center 695 Madison; Lobby ImageRunner Advance 4551i V3  
(Black and White) 

Cassette Feeding unit  - AN1 
Inner Finisher – J1 
ESP Next Gen PCS Power Filter 
(120V/15A) XG – PCS -15D 
Meap Web Connect. Kit V5.4 for Gen3 
Stapler Finisher – Y1 
Fax – FX-7 
Waste Container – WT-101 

15 Fire Station No. 1** 555 N Berry Street ICMF525DW 
16 Fire Station No. 2** 200 N. Brea Blvd ICMF525DW 
17 Fire Station No. 3** 2600 E Santa Fe Road ICMF525DW 
18 Fire Station No. 4** 198 Olinda Place ICMF525DW 

* Currently under lease agreement; buyout option may be considered as part of proposal 
** Service Only 
 
The selected Proposer will be required to review each department’s utilization of standalone printers and 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 41 of 42  

provide recommendations to consolidate or standardize on a specific model(s).  This may require meeting 
with each department or site if necessary. The standalone printer replacement and consolidation will be 
determined through department interviews and the required footprint required to accommodate the 
recommended device.  
 
Proposals must include prices for copy machine equipment lease and maintenance (service and supply) cost 
per copy page. Monthly costs will be based on machine usage and will be billed in arrears; no minimum 
number of copies will be specified. 
 
Proposer shall be responsible for all support for the City’s MFPs.  Support shall consist of toner and any 
consumables required for each device (excluding paper and staples); phone support and trouble-shooting; 
on-site support and trouble-shooting; on-site mandatory maintenance; and replacement of all irreparable 
components and/or devices.  Contract price shall include all supplies, parts, labor and travel.  Adequate and 
satisfactory availability of supplies is necessary. 
 
The maintenance price will be fixed for the contract term with no price increase(s). 
 
Proposed prices will include all federal, state and local taxes as applicable. 
 
All proposals must contain descriptive literature on the proposed multifunction device(s). At least one 
technical sheet must be provided for each machine model, accessory, or option. Manufacturer specifications 
must specify certified monthly volumes for each machine. Other descriptive literature or reports, including 
award certificates from an independent testing agency, will be accepted in addition to required literature.   
The intent is to formulate a new contract that will combine all print services into one large MSA  
(Master Services Agreement).  This MSA will include the hardware needed, software, feature sets, printing 
allowance, training, support, consumables, and maintenance required.  
 
The distribution of equipment must satisfy the site requirements that relate to desired volume, feature set, 
capabilities, and space requirements.  
 
All training required must be done by the Proposer.  Each equipment location shall have readily available 
on or near the machine, a manual providing detailed instruction on the machines’ operation, with procedures 
for clearing jams, loading toner, etc. 
 
Proposers are encouraged to respond with solutions as specified in this RFP and encouraged to provide 
additional options as available. 

 
 

End of this Exhibit   



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

Page 42 of 42  

Attachment 1 to Exhibit A  
PROPOSER’S PROPOSAL AND FEE SCHEDULE  

(attached)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 



  
 
 

 
January 30, 2025 

 
Request for Proposal Response for: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
City of Brea 
RFP No. 2025.01.06.01 
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance 
Services 
 
1 Civic Center Circle 
Brea, CA 92821 
 
Proposal Prepared by: 
 
Sharp Business Systems 
 
Sarah Razi, Branch Sales Manager – sarah.razi@sharpusa.com  
Molly Harner, Major Account Executive– molly.harner@sharpusa.com 
 
5241 California Ave, Suite 100 
Irvine, CA 92617 
Phone: 888-258-2802/Fax: 619-258-1406 
 

www.sharpusa.com   



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|2  

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL ........................................................................................ 3 

QUALIFICATION SECTION ......................................................................................... 4 

TECHNICAL SECTION .............................................................................................. 16 

COST SECTION ....................................................................................................... 48 

FORMS SECTION .................................................................................................... 53 
 
 
  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|3  

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 
 
City of Brea  
1 Civic Center Circle 
Brea, CA 92821 
 
Dear City of Brea, 
 
It is with great pleasure to submit this proposal to the City of Brea.  Sharp Business Systems (SBS) is the direct arm of 
Sharp Electronics in North America.  Sharp has offices nationwide, including four in Southern California, ready to 
provide superior service and deliver award-winning technology.    
 
We service a wide range of government institutions, as you can see from our list of references.  Sharp has an entire 
team of dedicated specialists with extensive knowledge and experience upgrading, installing, and swapping fleets for 
government organizations.  Our team will work hand in hand with the City of Brea to assess each site and make 
recommendations to optimize technology that makes financial sense.  Our team will seamlessly replace your fleet of 
existing MFPs with new Sharp devices with minimal impact on your staff and end users.  Our own fleet of Sharp 
trucks and a dedicated Sharp delivery team is ready to deliver.   
 

Key items to note in our response: 
 
 Sharp is confident our team will meet your delivery timeline. We will deliver your entire fleet, set up, network, 

and train your staff with minimum disruption to the end users.  
 

 This proposal will remain valid for a period of not less than 120 calendar days from the date of submittal, meets 
the terms and conditions outlined I the RFP, and is compliant with all labor laws. 
 

 We have currently serviced many accounts in Southern CA and have several very experienced technicians ready 
to service the City of Brea should we be lucky enough to win this RFP.  

 
 

 Sharp’s MICAS software will monitor your entire fleet 24/7 and provide Just in Time Automated Toner 
Replenishment as a complementary service.  

 

 Sharp agrees that the materials, equipment, and services offered will be new and meet all the requirements of 
the specifications/scope of services in this RFP. 

 

We have the expertise, staff, and facilities to provide the City of Brea with state-of-the-art equipment and 
exceptional service.  Our dedication will ensure a successful partnership. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Sarah Razi, Branch Sales Manager 
SHARP ELECTRONICS CORPORATION, established 1962 
5241 California Ave, Suite 100 
Irvine, CA 92617 
949-326-3946 
 
  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|4  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

QUALIFICATIONS SECTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|5  

QUALIFICATIONS SECTION 
 

I. BACKGROUND 
 
Sharp has an Enterprise Business Group that specifically works on bids and RFPs for City and State municipality 
clients such as the City of Brea.  This team knows how to design custom solutions for every major account 
based on their specific needs.  Our market approach is to offer a tailored solution at the best possible price.  
We believe t Sharp offers best-in-class products. You have a winning combination when you combine Sharp 
products and pricing with unparalleled flexibility.  Above all, our level of commitment and follow-through is 
what we believe impacts our incredible success at winning bids and maintaining long-term relationships with 
satisfied customers.  Every company has a market approach for RFPs, but not every company is committed to 
the client for the life of the contract.  We are committed to giving you the same attention and level of service 
in month 1, month 13, or month 60 of the agreement.  We know what it takes to put together an informative 
RFP and what it takes to manage an account properly throughout the partnership.  
 
Our Competitive Advantage 
 
We believe our competitive advantage is our people.  Sharp has account managers, service technicians, and 
management who have been with the company for 10, 15, 20 years, and in some cases even longer.  This type 
of experience and product line knowledge is unheard of in our industry.  Our experienced staff offer the best 
pricing, value, and service levels to our clients.  The account manager who starts the contract with you will 
also be who will end it with you.  We will not rotate new account managers every year due to turnover.  The 
City of Brea will have two account managers with a combined 30+ year tenure at Sharp with values you won’t 
find elsewhere in our industry. 
 
What We Offer 
 
• Four large state-of-the-art facilities in Southern California, anchored by a headquarters with $1M + 

available parts and supplies. 
• Local company, Live local dispatch and helpdesk for personalized service and support 
• Global technology leader with global resources, national coverage, and a wide network of branches 

and dealers ready to serve you. 
• Fortune 250, financially stable, serving Southern California for over 50 years. 
• Innovative technology and value-added services 
• Robust list of clients throughout Southern California.  More references can be provided upon request. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|6  

 
Who We Are 
Sharp Business Systems is the direct sales organization of Sharp Electronics 
Corporation, a $26+ billion global technology innovator that employs over 40,000 + 
people worldwide. We have been serving Southern California for over 50 years. We 
currently have 130 employees in Southern California with over 5,000 clients, 
including a variety of municipalities and academic institutions: school cities and 
universities.  
 
What We Do and How We Do It  
Sharp provides comprehensive, flexible, state-of-the-art technology to our 
business partners specifically tailored to their needs.  
 
It’s not what we do, but how we do it that makes Sharp different. First, we build 
strong trusting and long-lasting relationships. We believe business is still people 
doing business with people and it’s our people that set us apart from our 
competition.  
 
Local Support - SBS provides your business with world-class Sharp products and 
first-rate services while giving you access to local management and account 
support in the areas of service, IT, billing, sales, product training and more.  
 
National Support - SBS can support your organization on a national level with 36 
locations in the U.S. augmented by a nationwide network of 400 plus authorized 
Sharp service providers. Our local management and nationwide support enable 
SBS to be an outstanding provider for nationwide installations.  
 
Stability 
There has been unpredictability in our industry with dealers and distributors 
regularly changing manufacturers.  Our stability, as the manufacturer, gives clients 
peace of mind knowing they are dealing with an organization that can take care of 
them now and into the future.  
 
The Results 
By establishing mutually beneficial relationships with our clients, we have been 
able to provide millions of dollars in savings by efficiently implementing optimal 
technology, creative solutions, and innovative ideas at the right time. SBS prides 
itself on maintaining a strong customer retention rate and continually establishing 
new business relationships through client referrals.  
 
Sharp is dedicated to improving people's lives with advanced technology, a strong 
commitment to innovation, quality, value, and design. We invite you to learn more 
about the numerous awards won by our innovative products, the value we place 
upon Corporate Social Responsibility, and our on-going commitment to strong 
business ethics.  
  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|7  

 Local accountability and access 

 40,000 + square feet of facilities 

 Roughly $1M parts and supply inventory 

 On Base Diamond Support Partner 

 HP, Kyocera and Lexmark authorized dealer 

 Personalized client relations 

 Live Dispatch 

 Less than 4-hour response time 

 Proactive maintenance 

 Diverse client portfolio 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sharp Business Systems (SBS) is a direct sales division of Sharp Electronics Corporation. Our Irvine branch 
combines the resources of a multi-billion-dollar corporation and the value of local representation and 
management. We are proud of our local community relationships, most notably the Santa Ana Chamber 
of Commerce and Irvine Chamber of Commerce. As a technology partner, providing friendly, local support 
is our specialty through our best-in-class products, solutions, and support. Our experienced technology 
specialists evaluate your current technology environment – from copiers to IT services – to help you 
create a Simply Smarter Office environment. 
 

Our experienced business technology specialists evaluate your current technology environment and 
document workflow to help improve your company’s efficiency, security and bottom-line with our best-
in-class products, solutions, and support. 
   

Award-winning  
Sharp MFP’s  

Aquos Board 
Interactive Display 
Systems 

Sharp OSA 
Technology 

Digital Signage and 
Video Wall 
Systems 

Enterprise Content 
Management 

Managed  
Network Services  
IT support 

Managed  
Print Services 

Facilities 
Management 



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|8  

   



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|9  

Sharp’s Employee Training 
 
All new hires take part in a full week of “on-boarding” training classes designed to teach employees how to 
perform and succeed in both client and company environments.  We have a strong culture of customer 
service.  Sharp offers extensive training to every employee as well as tuition reimbursement.  All technicians 
are factory certified on every machine we offer. In additional, Network technicians must obtain various 
levels of Microsoft certifications, such as Net+ and A+.  Sales staff obtain various certifications based on 
hardware and software product awareness and functionality.  In addition to our product and technical 
training, Sharp requires all employees and managers to participate in various company mandated HR, IT 
Security and Finance related training courses to ensure compliance with state and national regulations. 
 
Sharp’s History 
 

• Founded In 1912 
• Fortune 250 Public Company 

• Annual R & D Expense: $1.95 Billion 
• 40,000+ employees worldwide 

 
Since its founding in 1912, our corporation has endeavored to pioneer new fields and develop original 
products.  Our founder, Tokuji Hayakawa coined the phrase “Make products that others want to imitate" to 
embody the management concept. In 1912, he invented the Snap belt buckle and three years later brought 
the mechanical pencil to the market. Since then, Sharp has been on the cutting edge of technology, 
consistently innovating new appliances, industrial equipment, and office solutions, and changing the lives of 
people around the world. 
 
Beginning with the invention of the Mechanical Pencil, from which the company name is derived, Sharp has 
introduced a succession of innovative world firsts including the all-transistor desktop calculator, the long-life 
laser diode, the 14” color TFT LCD unit and the LCD Viewcam. In addition, Sharp developed and 
manufactured Japan’s first radio, television, and microwave oven, electronic calculator with LCD display, 
solar cell, and electronic organizer and LCD video projector.  
 
Sharp’s commitment to the United States marketplace began in 1962.  Sharp Electronics provides one of the 
broadest and most innovative lines of business products, electronic components, consumer electronics and 
services worldwide.  
 
In 1972, Sharp entered what was then called the photocopier business.  This has grown to include 
multifunction print devices, desktop printers, Audio/Visual and related imaging equipment, business 
solutions, accessories, supplies, and services. Sharp continues to redefine document technology by offering 
products that are easy to use, customizable and secure. Sharp aims to always realize its business philosophy. 
Possessing a "gene of creativity" since its foundation, Sharp will continue to offer one-of-a-kind products as 
a corporation trusted around the world.  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|10  

II. Experience 
 

Outstanding Service 
 

Sharp provides a very personalized level of technical and customer service to our clients in the areas of B/W 
copiers/ printers, data center solutions, full color copier/printers, high-speed copy center solutions, LCD screens 
and interactive whiteboards, and postage and staffing services.  We also provide network print accounting, 
network scanning solutions, network and IT management services, and document management solutions to 
improve business processes and increase staff productivity. We currently provide complete facilities management 
services to clients in our marketplace. 
 

Our Southern California team has 130 local employees.  Our team personnel are divided as follows from a role or 
responsibility perspective: 
 

 23% Sales 
 37% Service 
 28% Customer Support 
 12% Administration/Operations 
 

Experienced Professionals 
 

Sharp’s team of professionals are dedicated to finding ways to improve your business. The City of Brea’s 
dedicated Sharp team brings over 100 years of combined experience in the traditional “copier” arena. Sharp 
Corporation adds the experience that only a manufacturer can to workgroup multifunction devices, managed 
print services, custom data reporting and conversion. 
 
Philosophy & Guiding Principles 
 

Sharp seeks first to serve, and we operate our business in a way that would make our parents proud. If we 
commit to something, we follow through; each staff member is empowered to make decisions to benefit our 
clients. We value long-term relationships and will gladly forfeit any short-term gain that may have a negative 
impact on the best interests of our clients. In addition, we generously give back to our community, we 
understand it’s the right thing to do. 
 

Diversity and Public Presence 
 

Sharp Corporation is an equal opportunity employer with a commitment to affirmative action and welcomes 
applications from all qualified candidates. We make special efforts to recruit females, minority groups, and 
persons with disabilities, disabled veterans, and veterans of the Vietnam Era for managerial, professional, 
technical, administrative, and sales positions. It is the intention of our corporation to grow together with our 
employees, encouraging and assisting them to reach their full potential.  With pride, we provide our employees 
with an outstanding benefits package that includes low-cost medical, dental, prescription and vision care 
insurance, life insurance-, short- and long-term disability insurance, flexible spending accounts, a company-
matched 401K, tuition reimbursement, a company discount on our products, paid holidays, and paid time off 
(vacation and personal days). 
 

On a local level, Sharp contributes and participates in numerous employee volunteering, fund raising and 
awareness events throughout the year. Annually, every employee is allowed one paid day to volunteer at a 
charitable event of their choice. Sharp employees donate time to give back to our local community by 
volunteering at San Diego Food Bank, Jacob & Cushman Food Bank, the Lee Denim Day Breast Cancer Awareness 
campaign fundraiser, and sponsors blood drives from our facilities to benefit the San Diego Blood Bank. Our 
organization also participates in serving Marine Toys for Tots and the One Warm Coat campaign by setting up 
collection centers within our facilities to ensure the homeless have warm clothes to wear during the cold season.   
 

  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|11  

Direct with a personalized client relationship 
     

• Established in 1969 
• May 2007: Sharp acquired; becomes the flagship branch in Southern California 
• 130 employees servicing Southern California for over 50 years.  
• OnBase Support Partner 
• HP & Lexmark dealer and service provider 
• 40,000 + sq. ft. + of local facilities 
• Roughly $1M in parts and supplies in inventory 
• Fully staffed vehicle fleet and delivery team 
• Built on the concept that businesses prefer to work with local companies. 
• Our business model promotes personalized client relationships. 
• Local accountability and decision making  

 
 
 

 Local access to management 
 Speak to real life, local account support reps  
 Local live dispatch 
 Service and supplies are available near you 
 Contract/billing is managed at the local level 
  Accountability and decision making at branch level 
 Resources of a multi-billion-dollar corporation 

 
 



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|12  

DIVERSE CLIENT PORTFOLIO – A COMPLETE LIST OF MUNICIPALITIES SBS CURRENTLY SERVICES 
 
 
  
 
  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|13  

SHARP SUPPORT TEAM  
 

Sales & Support 888-258-2802 

Sarah Razi – Director (Contact person during period of proposal evalution) 

Molly Harner – Senior Account Executive (Assigned Account Manager) 

Anne Beck - Managed Print Services Analyst  

Kris Sumner – Head Trainer & Customer Service Support Specialist 

  

Service & Operations 877-686-5277 

Ryan Erlandson- Branch Service Manager 

Cherie Wright – Regional Operations Manager 

Andrea Valentin - Contracts Manager 

Ashley McNutt – Regional Logistics Manager 

Travis Reagan - Network Technician, MICAS Specialist 

Mario Rivera – Lead Service Technician & Field Manager 

James Robinson – Manager of Applications and Software (PaperCut Certified)  

Dwayne Rosette - Delivery Driver 

  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|14  

III. QUALIFICATIONS 
 

SHARP SUPPORT TEAM  
 
Southern California Sales & Support Biographies  
 
Dale Wedge, President – dale.wedge@sharpusa.com Dale leads the business with 42 years of dedicated industry 
experience. Dale has been President of Sharp Business Systems since 2007. Dale understands the business needs 
of our customers and has successfully positioned Sharp as one of Southern California’s top value-added solution 
providers.  
 

Sarah Razi, Director – Enterprise Business Group – Sarah.Razi@sharpusa.com Sarah has been with Sharp for 15 
years as the Director of the Enterprise Business Group. Sarah coordinates all MPS, ECM, A/V, and hardware 
installations for major accounts in Southern California. His number one goal is to connect with each client to 
ensure Sharp consistently provides an unsurpassed customer experience. Major accounts include, but are not 
limited to: City of Long Beach, City of San Diego, City of Riverside, San Diego Unified School District, Los Angeles 
World Airports, Los Angeles Department of Water & Power, Southern CA Edison, and Superior Court of Orange 
County. 
 

Molly Harner, Major Account Executive – molly.harner@sharpusa.com  
Molly offers 25+ years of diversified experience including provisioning, deploying, and supporting various 
customer environments. Excellent communication and problem-solving skills, with strengths in troubleshooting 
and project management. Strong and methodical aptitude with an innate ability to analyze, coordinate and 
synthesize data. Specialties: Dedicated to achieving customer satisfaction as well as meeting or surpassing 
company expectations. Able to focus on projects, develop strategies and meet or exceed deadlines. Strong 
rapport with personnel, customers, and associates based on knowledge, professionalism, and integrity. 
 
 

Ryan Erlandson, Branch Service Manager – ryan.erlandson@sharpusa.com Ryan has been a lead technician with 
Sharp Business Systems, formerly Aztec Imaging, since 2007. He has recently been promoted to Branch Service 
Manager, a wonderful leader with intimate knowledge of the entire Sharp product line. Ryan excels at helping our 
team solve the most challenging issues the first time, ensuring our customers always have minimal down time.  
 

Andy Agredano, Branch Service Manager – andy.agredano@sharpusa.com  
Andy has been in the Document Imaging Industry since 2005. After Sharp’s acquisition of his previous company in 
2017, Andy was promoted from delivery driver to a network installer and then to a filed technician. Andy has 
been through Sharp’s MFP core competency courses and is factory trained on Sharp’s newest BP line of MFP. 
Andy also holds a CompTIA A+ certification. Andy is very verse with the hardware components of the Sharp MFPs 
as well as network connectivity. Andy resides in the city of Palmdale and services all our clients in the northern LA 
County. 
 
Mario Rivera, Branch Service Manager – mario.rivera@sharpusa.com  
Mario has been in the Document Imaging Industry since 2003 and with Sharp Electronics since 2013. For the past 
10 years he has held the position of Field Supervisor for Los Angels County. Mario is responsible for the service 
delivery of all our clients in LA County as well as the performance of our technicians. Mario is fully trained on the 
Sharp product line. 
 
Kristopher Sumner, Customer Service Representative and Field Trainer – kristopher.sumner@sharpusa.com Kris 
has worked as an Account Executive and Field Trainer in the Los Angeles and Orange County area for the past 7 
years. He has demonstrated both one on one and large group training courses on Sharp’s full product catalog. Kris 
is also responsible for developing Quarterly Business Reviews and customized reports.  
 
 



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|15  

Anne Beck, MPS Analyst - anne.beck@sharpusa.com Anne works with Major Accounts specializing in customer 
care and retention, RFI’s, RFP’s, account management, and business reporting. Her integral role involves 
implementing managed print services, value-added services, technical support, and data analytics. Anne has been 
with Sharp Electronics for 13 years.  
 

James Robinson, Software Solutions Manager – james.robinson@sharpusa.com  
James has been a Pre-Sales Solution Engineer for 8 years, 7 years at Sharp. He started as a network copier tech, 
while acting as the level 3 network server support tech, starting in 2000 and worked his way up to Pre-Sales 
Engineers/ Network sales engineer in 2012. His background is in IT services. Project management and break fix. 
He is a problem solver and provides technical information to better help with the right solution.  
 
Shaun Borja, Software Solutions Manager – shaun.borja@sharpusa.com  
Shaun has over 15 years of industry experience and has held several different roles during his tenure. Having 
experience as a Product Specialist & Trainer, Network tech support, Production Print Specialist and now as an 
Application Specialist, Shaun has a strong understanding of how systems integrate and can provide valuable 
support in any stage of the project. 
 

IV. UNDERSTANDING 
 
Sharp Business Systems is in full understanding of the work to be done as required by this RFP put forth by the 
City of Brea.  
 
Sharp has an Enterprise Business Group that specifically works on bids and RFPs for City and State 
municipality clients such as the City of Brea.  This team knows how to design custom solutions for every 
major account based on their specific needs.  Our market approach is to offer a tailored solution at the best 
possible price.  We believe t Sharp offers best-in-class products. You have a winning combination when you 
combine Sharp products and pricing with unparalleled flexibility.  Above all, our level of commitment and 
follow-through is what we believe impacts our incredible success at winning bids and maintaining long-term 
relationships with satisfied customers.  Every company has a market approach for RFPs, but not every 
company is committed to the client for the life of the contract.  We are committed to giving you the same 
attention and level of service in month 1, month 13, or month 60 of the agreement.  We know what it takes 
to put together an informative RFP and what it takes to manage an account properly throughout the 
partnership.  
 
We are also utilizing the Sourcewell (formerly NJPA) cooperative contract to quote for this RFP. So, the City 
of Brea can have confidence of the full backing of a reputable cooperative contract.   



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|16  

 
 
 
 
 

TECHNICAL SECTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|17  

I. APPROACH 
 
The following implementation plan is based on our experience transitioning municipalities.  Sharp will make 
final recommendations after consulting City of Brea’s IT/Security and Procurement Departments.  Sharp 
guarantees meeting the timeline and objectives mutually agreed upon.  
 

Objectives include: 
 

 Completing implementation on schedule according to the project plan developed by Sharp’s Project 
team and the City of Brea’s decision makers. 
 

 Ensure user satisfaction upon installation, throughout implementation, training, and support 
services. 
 

 Provide comprehensive training to minimize calls to City of Brea’s help desk and/or administrators, 
Procurement, or IT Help Desk. 
 

 Remove existing equipment per the City of Brea’s guidelines and security process, then deploy 
replacement equipment in a timely manner and minimize downtime for end-users.  The current 
vendor may be required or choose to remove existing equipment.  

 

Deployment transition planning 
 

Sharp will prepare a detailed plan to address each step of the project as outlined in the RFP document. 
Our intent will be to provide a “turnkey”, step by step process to minimize disruption on campus while 
meeting all project objectives.  
 

Detailed project planning 
 

Sharp will communicate the entire Deployment Transition Plan in advance. The plan will include project 
objectives, milestones, deliverables, processes, roles and responsibilities and targeted outcomes. Sharp 
will continually update the City of Brea via weekly status reports. 

 

Project and resource management 
 

Sharp’s Project Manager will have the full support of the Enterprise Business Group. Resources will be 
made available for each phase and deliverable of the project. Sharp’s PM will schedule, coordinate, and 
allocate resources as needed throughout the project. 

 

Weekly progress reporting  
 

Sharp’s Project Manager will provide weekly updates via mutually agreed upon reporting methods. 
 

Current floor equipment configuration planning /mapping 
 

Sharp’s Project Management Team will schedule a meeting with the City of Brea’s Administrators, IT, or 
Procurement Professionals to discuss and align on: 
 

 a. Delivery schedule - With proper deployment, communication, and preparation we can deliver 
all new equipment and remove old equipment over the course of roughly 48 business 
days based on history and the new total number of prospective units.  
 

b. Communication content and distribution methods will be outlined. 
  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|18  

1. Sharp will work with the Copier Program administrators, IT, or Procurement to create a list of known 
assets per building.  The list can include the following fields: 
 

a.  Device name 
b.  Make, model 
c.  Device type 
d.  Serial number 
e.  MAC address 
f.  IP address 
g.  Networked or local 
h.  Monochrome or color 
i.  Average monthly volume 
j.  Phone number applicable  

 

The new equipment will be set up in a designated staging area, already configured for each specific 
location.  This process allows Sharp to minimize the downtime while swapping devices.  Typically, our 
downtime is 15 minutes or less.  

 

Equipment Preparation 
 

1.  Sharp already has all site locations and related equipment information including IP addresses.  Sharp 
will coordinate any IP changes or additions as received.  All new data and repeat data will be entered 
into the system prior to equipment leaving our warehouse. 
 

2.  Sharp will proactively configure equipment with the appropriate network information to ensure all 
devices delivered will be ready to print, scan and fax immediately. 
 

3. Sharp will have a network technician at the Sharp onsite command center validating network 
connectivity as the delivery team delivers, installs, and connects devices. 
 

Pre-configuring equipment prior to delivery minimizes installation time and on-site disruption to the end 
users. Sharp’s goal is to manage time as efficiently as possible. 

 

Proposing New Equipment 
 

Sharp will collaborate with City of Brea’s Administrators and utilize information provided to ensure each 
department has the correct equipment for their needs.  You may simply choose a like for like swap 
based on specific features and print requirements, or opt for an assessment to address following factors 
such as: 

 

a. Print volume 
b. Need for color 
c. Need for finishing 
d. Need for 11 x 17 
e. Space limitations 
 

Sharp Equipment removal and disposal process (end of lease) 
 

Remove and return assets based on an agreed upon arrangement with Sharp, IT Security, Administrators, 
and Shipping/Receiving Departments for HDD disposal process.  The HDD disposal process will take place 
after the new equipment is operational to minimize downtime. Sharp will acknowledge City of Brea’s 
security requirements and will follow all necessary steps required by the City of Brea. Sharp will not touch 
the hard drive of another manufacturer’s equipment unless owned outright by City of Brea and directed to 
do so.  Sharp is committed to adhering to these guidelines for upgrades and/or removing Sharp equipment 
placed by Sharp as part of this agreement.     



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|19  

Sales & Support 888-258-2802 

Sarah Razi – Director (Contact person during period of proposal evalution) 

Molly Harner – Senior Account Executive (Assigned Account Manager) 

Anne Beck - Managed Print Services Analyst  

Kris Sumner – Head Trainer & Customer Service Support Specialist 

  

Service & Operations 877-686-5277 

Ryan Erlandson- Branch Service Manager 

Cherie Wright – Regional Operations Manager 

Andrea Valentin - Contracts Manager 

Ashley McNutt – Regional Logistics Manager 

Travis Reagan - Network Technician, MICAS Specialist 

Mario Rivera – Lead Service Technician & Field Manager 

James Robinson – Manager of Applications and Software (PaperCut Certified)  

Dwayne Rosette - Delivery Driver 
 

 
THE ABOVE SUPPORT TEAM WILL BE A PART OF EVERY DECISION MADE IN THE TECHNICAL 
APPROACH PROCESS AND WILL BE ASSIGNED TO TASKS AS OUTLINED IN THE PROPOSED 
SCHEDULE. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|20  

 
 

I. PROPOSED SCHEDULE 
 

For the successful completion of this project, Sharp will depend on City of Brea to meet the following 
commitments: 

 
 Distribute communication media to all relevant departments and personnel. 
 Provide space and dates to deliver equipment. 
 Attend all meetings, or teleconferences as scheduled. 
 City of Brea’s failure to meet any of these commitments can negatively impact the success of the 

project and may relieve Sharp from any financial penalties for noncompliance. 
 

 

   

Task Status & Schedule 
Responsible 

Party 

Develop Equipment Configuration Spreadsheet 

Walkthrough- Discuss Appropriate Configurations-  
Start TBD 
Assessment period – 1-2 days 

City of Brea and Molly 
Harner 

Sign Lease/PO Documentation  TBD 
City of Brea Team and Molly 
Harner 

Configuration & Clone File   
Based on results of trial & testing 
period 

City of Brea and Mario 
Rivera 

Equipment Delivery / Removal / Installation  

Sharp Equipment Installation  TBD Sharp – Mario Rivera 

Pick up and Removal of existing Equipment In line with installation  Sharp – Dwayne Rosette 

Network set up and Test connectivity Upon install City of Brea/Sharp 

Training 

Identify training requirements by site TBD Kris Sumner 

Identify end users to receive training TBD City of Brea 

Notify end users that training will be provided TBD             City of Brea 

Schedule Training TBD City of Brea 

Conduct Training TBD  Kris Sumner 

Post Installation 

Provide return shipping instructions to Sharp TBD City of Brea 

Follow up training as needed TBD Sharp 



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|21  

Change Management 
 
Sharp’s extensive experience deploying and managing large equipment fleets has provided invaluable 
insights and best practices to strategize a well-designed and thoughtful implementation plan. Execution 
must involve efficient installation, training, as well as post-delivery support. Sharp would like to ensure the 
best possible experience for all participants.  To gain the maximum benefits, and cause as little disruption as 
possible during the transition process we suggest the following guidelines: 
 

Advance communication to everyone involved, of upcoming changes, why the changes are occurring and 
the anticipated benefits for those involved. 
 

Sharp will work with the City of Brea to draft a letter/email/bulletin board notice to communicate what, 
why, when, who, how and outline the benefits of the program. Sharp will work with the City of Brea to 
itemize a list of benefits (what’s in it for the user) as it relates to the new program. 
 

Communication notices can be customized for relevance to reach specific audiences e.g., Users, IT staff, 
Procurement staff, Accounts Payables staff, Key Operators, etc. 
 
Implementing change while being sensitive to organizational objectives, perceptions and feelings of the 
faculty and staff can be accomplished by providing a.) employee support as they manage transition and b.) a 
mechanism to communicate their opinions and suggestions. 
 
 
 

Prior to a large-scale implementation of the new program, Sharp is willing to deliver systems to selected 
training sites to conduct pre-installation training on selected systems. 
 
Sharp will communicate equipment network set up and delivery schedules in advance so faculty and staff 
can anticipate delivery and allocate resources accordingly. 
 
Sharp will provide pre-scheduled, initial on-site training and will also conduct additional complementary 
training classes as needed upon request. 
 
Sharp will provide 24/7 access to a customized, web-based training resource called MY Sharp Training. Users 
will be able to access a wide variety of machine demonstrations and instructions to commonly used 
features. 
 
Once delivery, installation and first round of training of your new fleet is complete, Sharp would like, with 
your permission, to conduct a post installation survey of all or selected departments to address concerns, 
isolate possible trouble areas and/or identify people in need of additional instruction. 
 
  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|22  

QUALITY CONTROL & ACCOUNT REPORTING PROCESS 
 

Sharp Business Systems helps customers maximize efficiency, cut down on wasteful printing and maintain a 
pulse on overall print volume and service performance.  

With these goals in mind, Sharp’s MPS program offers a variety of solutions targeted to review networked 
print volumes as a part of Sharp’s Review system. Sharp Reviews allow customers to better understand print 
behavior by identifying over and underutilized devices, troubled devices, and training needs on demand and 
in more depth during quarterly reviews with a Sharp account executive.   

Sharp in partnership with the City of Redondo Beach, as needed, can use the data collected to right-size 
fleets, consolidate, move, and upgrade devices as well as provide follow up training to help maximize the user 
experience and maintain an efficient low-cost print environment. 

 
 
Sample Quarterly Report – Fleet Usage Overview 
 
 
  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|23  

Sample Service & Uptime Reports 
 
  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|24  

ENVIORNMENTALLY FRIENDLY OFFICE 
 
 

Sharp’s Recycle Policy 
 
Sharp is very passionate about environmental conservation. All of our factories are working to eliminate 
waste and greenhouse gases, and achieve other environmental targets in 21 key areas.Saving Energy. Saving 
Resources.Maximizing Recycling. Minimizing Hazardous Materials.  
 
 
 

As a part of Sharp’s commitment to the environment, Sharp offers our 
customers a zero waste toner recycling for all consumables, including: 
cartridges, bottles, toner collection containers and drum units.  
 

    
           STOP, DROP, RECYCLE RECYCLING PROGRAM 

 
 
 

 It's free & easy to ship your recyclables in bulk 

 We provide all collection and shipping materials 

 We provide all shipping and recycling costs 

 We further reduce our carbon footprint by more efficiently shipping in bulk  

(box fits up to 10 cartridges) 

 All consumables are 100% recycled with ZERO waste to a landfill 

 
 

High Volume Recycling Low Volume Option 

 
 3 Pre-Addressed, Pre-Paid Cartridge 

Collection / Shipping Boxes 
 

 3 Clear plastic liners  

 3 Zip ties 

 

Fed Ex Pick up:  
 

use existing service or call 1-800-GO-FEDEX 
(3399)  
and say “ground pick-up” 
 

 
 Drop off at any Staples location, Staples 

will take care of recycling the cartridge 
at no cost to you.  Visit: 
storelocator.staples.com to find a 
location near you. 
 

 Contact our Dealer for more information 
about their toner consolidation procedure 

 



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|25  

At Sharp Electronics Corporation ("Sharp"), we're very passionate about environmental 
conservation. Our business products and appliances are among the industry's most energy 
efficient and our parent company in Japan, Sharp Corporation ("Sharp Corporation"), has long 
been a world leader in solar cell production. Furthermore, Sharp Corporation factories are 
working to eliminate waste and greenhouse gases and achieve other environmental targets. 
We are an environmentally conscious company 
Since 2004, Sharp Corporation's core philosophy has been to become an environmentally 
advanced company. Since then, the company has demonstrated these are not empty words. 
 

In the past years, hundreds of Sharp products have received international awards for their 
outstanding eco-friendly design, demonstrating our commitment to producing environmentally 
friendly products which in turn enable us to achieve our aim of becoming an environmentally 
advanced company. 
 

This is Sharp's commitment to the environment & society. 
 

Positive action. Real investment. 
 
From early product design to manufacturing, right through to end-of-life disposal, every area in 
which we directly or indirectly affect the environment is under constant scrutiny. 
 

Sharp Corporation's factories meet the ISO 14001 standard: a framework that sets out the 
requirements for environmental management systems. And we actively encourage 
environmental management and green awareness initiatives throughout our entire organization. 
 

Sharp Corporation engineers are continually developing innovative ecological technologies and 
we place a firm focus on manufacturing high quality, environmentally advanced products. 
 

Sharp Corporation's Eco Vision 2050 Long-Term Environmental Vision 
The international community has recognized the urgent need to address increasingly serious 
environmental problems, such as climate change, resource depletion, and plastic pollution. This 
awareness is accelerating global action to solve these social problems, including efforts 
associated with the achievement of Sharp's Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). 
 

In 2019, Sharp Corporation formulated SHARP Eco Vision 2050, a long-term environmental vision 
based on its Basic Environmental Policy of "Creating an Environmentally Conscious Company with 
Sincerity and Creativity," which was established in 1992. Sharp is working toward realizing a 
sustainable global environment by pursuing long-term goals set in three fields of action with 
2050 as the target year: climate change, resource recycling, and safety and security; thus, 
building a circular economy and realizing a recycling-oriented society. 

  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|26  

Long-Term Environmental Goals 
 
To bring about SHARP Eco Vision 2050, Sharp Corporation has stipulated long-term goals in three 
fields of action. In pursuing these goals, we will strive to create more clean energy than the total 
amount of energy consumed in Sharp's entire supply chain, while minimizing the environmental 
impact of our business activities. 
 

Sharp Corporation strives to use less energy in its business activities and to make products that 
are increasingly more energy efficient, to reduce the amount of energy consumed by households 
and society as a whole. 
 

We began developing solar cells after founder Tokuji Hayakawa said, "All the products we make 
use electricity. As our company grows, we will need more electricity, so why don't we make 
electricity ourselves?" Since then, we have spent more than half a century working to spread 
solar power generation. It is precisely because Sharp makes products that use electricity that we 
have a responsibility to reduce the environmental impacts resulting from this electricity use. 
 

Safety and Security 
 

As well as complying with current international standards, Sharp Corporation has established its 
own even stricter in-house standards. Under these far-sighted standards, Sharp Corporation aims 
to thoroughly manage relevant chemicals with the goal of eliminating any negative effects that 
chemicals may have on people's health, the natural environment, or ecosystems. 
 
Sharp Corporate 2023 Sustainability Report at www.global.sharp/corporate/eco/report 
 
 

Programs: 
 

EPEAT 
ENERGY STAR 
MRM RECYCLING 
CALL 2 RECYCLE 
SHARP TONER RECYCLING 
MERCURY EDUCATION 
ENVIRONMENTALLY CONCIOUS PRODUCT DESIGN 
ISO CERTIFICATIONS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|27  

ABOUT THE EQUIPMENT 
 
Sharp Color & B/W BP Series Advanced Models 
 

The New Advanced Series from Sharp. Taking organizations to the future of business communication by 
helping them work simply smarter. Designed to fit today’s diverse workstyles, the new Advanced Series 
monochrome document systems enable workers to collaborate and share information seamlessly and 
securely throughout their office environment. Enhanced cloud services such as Microsoft Teams makes it 
easy to streamline communication and boost productivity with hybrid workers. 
  

Replacement Model 

BP-70C Series 

• 31-65 page per minute Full Color and Monochrome digital MFP systems 
• Large 10.1" high resolution touchscreen display and fully customizable home screen 
• 300 Sheet Single Pass Duplexing Document Feeder 
• Scan speed up to 280 ipm in color or black & white 
• Quarterly Volume Output up to 375,000 images 
• First-time Copy Speed of 7.6 sec b&w/5.6 sec color 
• Total sheet capacity of paper drawers (as configured) is 1,100 
• Maximum Paper Supply with options up to 6,300 sheets 
• Flexible paper handling system feeds media up to 300 gsm thru paper drawers and bypass tray 
• Built in OCR to create editable PDFs and Microsoft files 
• Standard Full-size Retractable Keyboard  
• Walk up motion sensor 
• 1.6 GHz multi-processing CPU 
• 256 GB Solid State Drive  
• 5 GB standard memory 
• Network ready PCL®6 and true Adobe® PostScript®3™ printing systems with direct print function 
• 1200 x 1200 dpi printing provides clear, crisp images even on jobs with fine detail 
• Standard Mobile Device Printing  
• Standard Wireless LAN supports 5 GHz Wi-Fi for stable, high speed network communication 
• Supports native Universal Print from Microsoft 
• Standard Cloud Connect feature for access to popular cloud services, such as Google Drive, Dropbox, SharePoint 

OneDrive 
• Standard Multi-Layered Security Features provide enhanced protection of data, network intrusions and includes a 

convenient End-of-Lease feature 
• Secure access control that supports the Active Directory® service, which lets you use the machine’s log-on credentials for 

internal network folders. System administrators can easily keep track of user credentials, which makes for an efficient 
and highly secure operational environment 



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|28  

Sharp B/W & Color BP A4 Workgroup MFP Series BP-B535WD 
 
The Sharp BP A4 Workgroup series MFP delivers an intuitive user experience and the confidence of knowing 
their jobs will come out right the first time, every time. Designed with high-performance features typically 
found on larger machines, this duplexing single pass feeder MFP delivers the productivity and security 
needed. 
 
Designed to fit today’s diverse workstyles, the compact multifunction printer (MFP) enables workers to 
collaborate and share information seamlessly and securely throughout the office environment. Enhanced 
cloud services such as Microsoft Teams make it easy to streamline communication and boost productivity 
with hybrid workers. 
 
  

Replacement Model 

Sharp BP-B535WD 
• Standard copy, print, scan, fax and wireless capability. 
• 100-sheet duplexing document feeder on the BP-B535WD scans both sides of a document in a 

single pass. This enhances productivity while maintaining the integrity of original copies and 
minimizing wear on the feeder. 

• Built-in optical character recognition (OCR) function can convert scanned documents to text-
searchable PDF, Microsoft® Office file formats and more. 

• The compact PDF feature reduces file sizes of most scanned color documents and decreases 
network traffic and storage. 

• Access popular cloud services, including Microsoft OneDrive® for Business, Microsoft Teams, 
SharePoint® Online, Box.com, Google Drive™, Dropbox and more with the Cloud Connect 
feature and Sharp Application Portal. 

• Direct print from Microsoft Word, PowerPoint® and Excel® files with thumb drives, cloud 
applications, network folders and more. 

• 7" (diagonal) customizable touchscreen display enables easy access to features and functions 
when setting up jobs. 

• Offers up to five paper sources with available 2,350-sheet maximum paper capacity. 
• Network ready PCL®6 and PostScript® 3™ printing systems deliver up to 40 and 50 pages per 

minute. 
• Supports popular mobile technologies, enabling users to easily print files from smartphones, 

tablets and notebook computers. 
•  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|29  

OPTIONAL PAPERCUT SOFTWARE 
 
PaperCut includes a wealth of functionality for tracking and controlling printing. Many sites start with simple 
goals and will leverage the more advanced features as time goes on. Some features regularly used by 
education sites include: Advanced scripting: Free printing during class time.  
 
 Advanced scripting: Teacher approval of color jobs.  
 Advanced scripting: Enforce duplex printing.  
 Automatic Active Directory synchronization:  

- make use of existing year level and department groups/OUs.  
 Customizable web interface: easily integrate with CCCD’s existing intranet site  
 Monitor and Control Usage  

  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|30  

 
  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|31  

  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|32  

  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|33  

  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|34  

 
State of the Art Technology 
 

Optimum Device Management 
In today’s business world, an immense amount of business information is still communicated on paper. This 
information must be printed, copied, and scanned as a part of the document process. As a result, 
uninterrupted uptime of MFPs and printers is important to keep up with the speed of business 
communications. The Sharp device management suite delivers unparalleled control over the administration 
of Sharp MFPs through intelligent tools. All MFPs and printers in your network are effortlessly managed and 
monitored so that device uptime can be maximized to ensure the continuous flow of important business 
communications.  
 

Sharp MFP Home Pages  
The Sharp MFP Home Page is an embedded device configuration site that makes it easy for users and IT 
managers to administer the MFP through a standard web browser. Once authenticated, users can change 
their profiles and document filing folder settings, as well as maintain their one-touch address keys to quickly 
distribute scanned documents. From anywhere on the network, IT managers can log in and access the 
device’s status, system, security, and network settings, as well as maintain user accounts, specify diagnostic 
e-mail alerts, clone settings and more. Administrator access can be protected via complex passwords.  
 

Sharp Remote Front Panel (RFP)  
Sharp RFP is a powerful tool that enables users and support staff to remotely view the MFP’s operation panel and 
control its features and functions from anywhere via a network. IT managers can see the same exact screen that 
the end user is viewing, allowing them to quickly understand issues and take the appropriate actions to solve 
them. Since IT managers can control the device remotely, this capability helps eliminate a trip to the device to 
support users, thereby reducing users’ wait time.  
 

Optimum Device Management 
In today’s business world, an immense amount of business information is still communicated on paper. This 
information must be printed, copied, and scanned as a part of the document process. As a result, 
uninterrupted uptime of MFPs and printers is important to keep up with the speed of business 
communications. The Sharp device management suite delivers unparalleled control over the administration 
of Sharp MFPs through intelligent tools. All MFPs and 
printers in your network are effortlessly managed and 
monitored so that device uptime can be maximized to 
ensure the continuous flow of important business 
communications.  
 

Sharp MFP Home Pages  
The Sharp MFP Home Page is an embedded device 
configuration site that makes it easy for users and IT 
managers to administer the MFP through a standard web 
browser. Once authenticated, users can change their profiles and document filing folder settings, as well as 
maintain their one-touch address keys to quickly distribute scanned documents. From anywhere on the 
network, IT managers can log in and access the device’s status, system, security, and network settings, as 
well as maintain user accounts, specify diagnostic e-mail alerts, clone settings and more. Administrator 
access can be protected via complex passwords.  
 

Sharp Remote Front Panel (RFP)  
Sharp RFP is a powerful tool that enables users and support staff to remotely view the MFP’s operation 
panel and control its features and functions from anywhere via a network. IT managers can see the same 
exact screen that the end user is viewing, allowing them to quickly understand issues and take the 
appropriate actions to solve them. Since IT managers can control the device remotely, this capability helps 
eliminate trips to the device to support users, thereby reducing users’ wait time.   



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|35  

Sharp Remote Device Manager (SRDM)  
 
SRDM is a device management and monitoring tool to facilitate centralized management of sharp MFPs and 
printers as well as SNMP-compliant printers. From the console, IT managers can view detailed information 
on each device, such as network connectivity, consumable levels, and impression counts. The direct access 
to remote front panel enables support staff to view and control the LCD panel from anywhere on the 
network, as well as the ability to review service logs and update firmware. For more intuitive views, and to 
expedite trouble shooting, devices can be grouped together in the utility by model, department, location, 
network status, IP address and more. Rapid deployment of MFPs can also be accomplished by distributing 
print drivers to network clients and cloning the settings of a reference device to other similar models all at 
the click of a button. Toner level is monitored in 5% increments on select models.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Key features include but are not limited to:  
 
• Manual or automated device discovery  
• Remote device monitoring on status and consumables  
• Remote device security, network, and system configurations  
• Remote access to device’s front panel to provide quick user assistance  
• Driver distribution to reduce IT support time  
• Firmware updates to minimize deployment time  
• Device setting and cloning for fast device set up  
• E-mail notifications to keep IT administrators aware of critical is 

Empowered Communications 
 
Highly featured smart phones and tablets are increasingly popular 
communication tools in the business world. According to research 
conducted by IDC, workers who communicate using mobile devices 
will account for 37% of the worldwide workforce and three-
quarters of the workforce in the United States by 2015 (Mobile 
Printing Landscape: Transition to Early Adopters, August 2012). 
Recognizing such rapid adoption of mobile devices in the 
workplace, Sharp offers applications and options to seamlessly 
connect mobile workers with their daily business processes. Sharp 
approaches these solutions with IT professionals in mind, ensuring 
security and interoperability while maintaining productivity.  
 

  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|36  

Mobile Printing and Scanning  
 
Sharpdesk Mobile enables Windows® 8, Windows® RT, Apple® iOS® and Google® Android™ users to easily 
print documents from their smartphones or tablets to a Sharp MFP. Users can also scan hardcopy 
documents from a Sharp MFP directly to their mobile devices for flexible storage and sharing. Scanned files 
can be shared with other applications or sent as E-mail attachments. Sharpdesk Mobile is available at no 
cost on the Windows Store for Windows users, Apple App Store for iOS users or Google Play Store for 
Android users.  
 
Key features include, but are not limited to:  
 
 Print directly to select Sharp MFPs from Sharpdesk mobile applications  
 Print from and send documents to other applications such as Evernote®, Cloud Portal Office, and 

Dropbox®  
 Print Web pages and E-mails  
 Send documents to others via E-mail  
 Store and manage scanned or imported files  
 User authentication for printing and scanning to meet IT security measures and track user activities 

  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|37  

Sharp Security 
 

Proven protection for confidential data, device access and network guards 
 

As MFPs and printers become parts 
of organizations’ integrated 
document workflows and business 
processes, security becomes a 
serious concern. Securely managing 
business and user data is critical for 
corporations to be successful. Sharp 
addresses these concerns by 
providing a suite of integrated 
security features designed to help 
protect your information and 
document assets. 

 
Sharp Secure Network Interface 
Sharp MFPs use unique embedded firmware that is 
not subject to the same virus vulnerability as 
Microsoft® and Linux® operating systems. Sharp's 
unique architecture provides no user interface and 
cannot execute downloaded files or commands sent 
by an attacker to compromise the system. Our MFPs 
feature an intelligent network interface that can limit 
access to specific computers on a network by IP or 
MAC address, and selectively enable or disable any 
protocol or service port on each device.  

 

Sharp Security Suite 
Protect your organization’s critical and 
confidential data assets with Sharp’s multi-
layered approach to security that includes an 
extensive set of standard security features and 
optional Data Security Kits (DSKs). Standard 
MFP security coupled with optional DSK 
security protects and controls the major MFP 
systems and subsystems (print, copy, scan, fax 
jobs, network settings, memory components, 
local user interface). The Sharp data 
encryption method uses the 256*-bit 
Advanced Encryption Standard (AES) 
algorithm on all data before it is written to 
RAM and the hard disk drive. It also provides 
overwriting routines (up to 7-times overwrite) 
to ensure that all information is virtually 

irretrievable by unauthorized users. In addition, an End-Of-Lease feature ensures that all data is erased 
before returning, or relinquishing control of the MFP. Sharp MFPs’ intelligent network interface provides an 
extensive set of access and network control security features designed to prevent these threats as well as 
improper device access.  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|38  

  
USER TRAINNING 
 
The section below illustrates tools used by Sharp to inform the city staff about training that we offer. 
 
 
  •  Training will be provided from 

Day 1 of device installations 
and ongoing. 

 
•  Training can be conducted in 

small groups at an MFD or in 
large classroom settings 

 
•  Customized Training Flyers are 

designed to increase end-user 
communication and participation 



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|39  

My Sharp  
 
The industry’s most innovative on-line support tool, My Sharp, is your personal companion website for 
product orientation and demonstrations. It offers high-level support in an easy-to-use format. My 
Sharp features helpful demonstrations on how to use the scan, copy, print and fax capabilities of your 
Sharp office products, related software applications and the replacement of supplies for those 
products. Tailored just for you, we customize each My Sharp website to reflect the Sharp products in 
your office and to suit your organization's current needs and when your organization's needs evolve, 
My Sharp provides the flexibility to grow. 
 
Benefits 
 
 User friendly demonstrations on how to use your equipment and technology  

 You will automatically receive demonstration updates on new functions as they are released. 

 Access My Sharp online anytime, anywhere 

 Train new employees on office products quickly and effectively 

 Product features are grouped by category such as Administration, Copying, Document Filing, 

Embedded Web Page, Faxing, Printing and Scanning 

 

My Sharp Online 

https://my.sharpamericas.com/sbssharp.mysharp.aspx 
 
  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|40  

Step by Step Tutorials  
 
  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|41  

Training Videos 
 
Find training videos on You Tube click here!  
Link: https://youtube.com/playlist?list=PLFJdgJNR3BC-xLdxGJPDQx-IiEGSu4PA6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|42  

OTHER SOLUTIONS & SERVICES 
 

MICAS SOFTWARE & AUTOMATED TONER DELIVERY 
  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|43  

  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|44  

Assessment Process 
 
The information collected during the assessment is used to create a baseline for measuring cost savings 
during the life of the new managed service. It is also used to shape the future print policy, designed to 
enable quality output and staff productivity. The assessment also contributes towards planning the 
hardware rollout and ensuring that this can be completed in a seamless manner, and with minimal 
disruption for the users. We use a systematic approach to assess your print and document workflow 
environment. 
 
Data is collected by surveying each site and fully auditing all output devices present across all sites. 
The assessment is completed using a combination of electronic auditing tools and manual processes, to 
verify how print gets produced across the organization. A data collection agent which runs across multiple 
subnets can provide a rapid assessment of the current print output devices. Information from all devices 
(including wide format) across every site gets recorded. This includes device specific information: 
 

 Serial number/IP address 
 Device location 
 Age 
 Current print volumes 

 
Prior to the site visits, communication is key to your employees so they are aware that we will be walking 
around, asking questions, and possibly taking photos. Photos would be taken to show redundancy of 
assets, paper left in trays, toner closets, etc. 
- Example Email: 

At 8:30 a.m. Sally Smith, Bill Brown, and Joe Johnson from Sharp will arrive at your location at 123 Main 
St. We plan on speaking with Jane Doe, Office Manager, and need 30 minutes with her. We will need 
any invoices or bills for the last 18 months that have toner cartridges or outsourcing on them.  We will 
be making copies of these. Once done with our meeting we will deploy our team and we will be 
gathering from each print/copy device: 
 

 Configuration pages 
 Status pages 
 Supply pages 
 We may be taking photos 
 Interview end users 
 Likes & dislikes of the device 
 How many times do they think they change the toner/ink per year? 
 Questions to understand configurations of the device and for what it is being used. 

 
Once the data has been collected, an analysis can be completed to provide a complete Total Cost of 
Ownership (TCO) for the current hardware state, but it also allows us to remodel the fleet to create an 
optimized future hardware state which will help to: 

 Reduce cost 
 Create greater efficiency 
 Deliver the key functionality requirements 

 
A secondary aspect to the assessment is to assist with planning the hardware roll-out program. Valuable 
information gathered as part of the site visits enables us to begin creating a “blueprint” for each site, 
which will ensure that the transition can be managed with the minimum levels of downtime and 
disruption to the end-users. Assessment & Optimization 



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|45  

Total Cost of Ownership (TCO) 
 

When it comes to your Document space, what you don’t know can hurt you. Monthly equipment lease 
payments, print-happy employees, supply orders, maintenance on overworked devices and downtime 
can chip away at your bottom line. Printed documents can also create significant security concerns 
because they offer little to no tracking ability for critical business information. 
Our aim is to paint a clear picture of your organization’s total cost of ownership (TCO) and security 
exposure. To do so, we perform an in-depth analysis to uncover monthly print volume, inventory of all 
output devices and the overhead to maintain those devices. Interviews with key employees let us 
determine if current devices are in line with each department’s workload. Your TCO serves as the 
starting point for us to begin optimizing your document fleet so we can help you: 

 
 Improve paper processes via multifunctional printers (MFPs) and printers 
 Match the pace of your workforce with a right-sized fleet 
 Strategically place devices to reduce redundancy 
 Lower print-related costs by curbing excessive printing 
 Reduce security and compliance risks by safeguarding information, devices and data 
 Increase uptime with proactive device support and maintenance 

 
 

Sample Device Map 
 
  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|46  

Analysis 
 

Sharp will work with the City of Brea, a consultant, or utilize our own diagnostic software to collect usage 
information. The data collected in conjunction with device maps reveal redundancies and highlight print 
behaviors. The discoveries help us right-size a fleet and design a cost saving, productive and efficient 
print environment. 

 

  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|47  

Sharp’s Recycle Policy 
 
Sharp is very passionate about environmental conservation. All of our factories are working to eliminate 
waste and greenhouse gases, and achieve other environmental targets in 21 key areas. Saving Energy. 
Saving Resources.Maximizing Recycling. Minimizing Hazardous Materials.  
 
 
 

As a part of Sharp’s commitment to the environment, Sharp offers our 
customers a zero waste toner recycling for all consumables, including: 
cartridges, bottles, toner collection containers and drum units.  
 

    
            

STOP, DROP, RECYCLE RECYCLING PROGRAM 
 

 

 Boxes may be placed in central locations at the City of Brea 

 It's free & easy to ship your recyclables in bulk 

 We provide all collection and shipping materials 

 We provide all shipping and recycling costs 

 We further reduce our carbon footprint by more efficiently shipping in bulk  

(box fits up to 10 cartridges) 

 All consumables are 100% recycled with ZERO waste to a landfill 

 
 

High Volume Recycling Low Volume Option 

 
 3 Pre-Addressed, Pre-Paid Cartridge 

Collection / Shipping Boxes 
 

 3 Clear plastic liners  

 3 Zip ties 

 

Fed Ex Pick up:  
 

use existing service or call 1-800-GO-FEDEX 
(3399)  
and say “ground pick-up” 
 

 
 Drop off at any Staples location, Staples 

will take care of recycling the cartridge 
at no cost to you.  Visit: 
storelocator.staples.com to find a 
location near you. 
 

 Contact our Dealer for more information 
about their toner consolidation procedure 

  



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|48  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COST SECTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|49  

PLEASE SEE COST SECTION AND FORMS SECTION WITH ALL SIGNED 
DOCUMENTATION, PLEASE SEE ADDITIONAL ATTACHMENTS IN THE RFP 
SUBMISSION PORTAL   
 
G. WITHDRAWAL AND VALIDITY. PROPOSALS MAY BE WITHDRAWN BEFORE THE 
PROPOSAL DEADLINE. OTHERWISE, PROPOSALS ARE BINDING FOR 120 DAYS FROM 
THE PROPOSAL DEADLINE 



Proposers Name:  

Com Development 1 Civic Center; Floor 3
ImageRunner Advance 

C5540i V3
(B/W & Color)

144.00$                                         
B/W:  $.0035
Color: $.035

Model: Sharp BP70C45 
under Sourcewell 

Cooperative Pricing

Admin Services 1 Civic Center; Floor 3
ImageRunner Advance 

4551i V3 
(Black and White)

143.86$                                         B/W:  $.0035
Model: BP70M55 under 
Sourcewell Cooperative 

Pricing

Management Services 1 Civic Center; Floor 3
ImageRunner Advance 

4551i V3 
(Black and White)

143.86$                                         B/W:  $.0035
Model: BP70M55 under 
Sourcewell Cooperative 

Pricing

Dispatch 1 Civic Center; Floor 2
ImageRunner Advance 

4551i V3 
(Black and White)

143.86$                                         B/W:  $.0035
Model: BP70M55 under 
Sourcewell Cooperative 

Pricing

Fire Admin. 1 Civic Center; Floor 2
ImageRunner Advance 

C356i FV3 
(B/W & Color)

61.98$                                           
B/W:  $.0099
Color: $.09

Model: BPC535WD 
under Sourcewell 

Cooperative Pricing

Police Records 1 Civic Center; Floor 1
ImageRunner Advance 

4551i V3 
(Black and White)

143.86$                                         B/W:  $.0035
Model: BP70M55 under 
Sourcewell Cooperative 

Pricing

Police Records 1 Civic Center; Floor 1
ImageRunner Advance 

4551i V3 
(Black and White)

143.86$                                         B/W:  $.0035
Model: BP70M55 under 
Sourcewell Cooperative 

Pricing

Investigation 1 Civic Center; Floor 1
ImageRunner Advance 

4551i V3 
(Black and White)

143.86$                                         B/W:  $.0035
Model: BP70M55 under 
Sourcewell Cooperative 

Pricing

Brea Resource* 1 Civic Center; Floor 1
ImageRunner Advance 

DX4845i 
(Black and White)

136.10$                                         B/W:  $.0035
Model: BP70M45 under 
Sourcewell Cooperative 

Pricing

Property Evidence 1 Civic Center; Floor P2
ImageRunner Advance 

C356iF V3 
(B/W & Color)

61.98$                                           
B/W:  $.0099
Color: $.09

Model: BPC535WD 
under Sourcewell 

Cooperative Pricing

Senior Center 500 S. Sierers Ave
ImageRunner Advance 

4551i V3 
(Black and White)

143.86$                                         B/W:  $.0035
Model: BP70M55 under 
Sourcewell Cooperative 

Pricing

Proposers are required to complete the table below for pricing comparison.  Pricing shall be based upon a 60-month lease and monthly lease amount shall include all service maintenance 
including supplies (with the exception of paper). Proposer is expected to fix all prices at the proposed amounts for the duration of the contract.

Please note that pricing Must Be All-Inclusive.  EACH PROPOSAL MUST BE INCLUSIVE OF ALL COSTS TO PERFORM THE REQUIRED SERVICES.  Any and all costs of labor, transportation, 
materials, software, equipment, proprietary licenses, and any and all other fees, costs, taxes, insurance, and expenses necessary to comply with the requirements of this RFP and to provide 
the Services, must be included in the proposal price.

The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantity of equipment to be leased or purchased under this RFP or change equipment following site inspection and evaluation.  Any 
additional equipment leased or purchased shall be based upon cooperative pricing.

STANDARD FORM I :  PRICE FORM

Like-for-Like Replacement Costs
Monthly Fixed 

Lease Cost
Per 

Copy Cost

SHARP BUSINESS SYSTEMS

NotesSite Location Existing Model



Proposers Name:  

Proposers are required to complete the table below for pricing comparison.  Pricing shall be based upon a 60-month lease and monthly lease amount shall include all service maintenance 
including supplies (with the exception of paper). Proposer is expected to fix all prices at the proposed amounts for the duration of the contract.

Please note that pricing Must Be All-Inclusive.  EACH PROPOSAL MUST BE INCLUSIVE OF ALL COSTS TO PERFORM THE REQUIRED SERVICES.  Any and all costs of labor, transportation, 
materials, software, equipment, proprietary licenses, and any and all other fees, costs, taxes, insurance, and expenses necessary to comply with the requirements of this RFP and to provide 
the Services, must be included in the proposal price.

The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantity of equipment to be leased or purchased under this RFP or change equipment following site inspection and evaluation.  Any 
additional equipment leased or purchased shall be based upon cooperative pricing.

STANDARD FORM I :  PRICE FORM

Like-for-Like Replacement Costs
Monthly Fixed 

Lease Cost
Per 

Copy Cost

SHARP BUSINESS SYSTEMS

NotesSite Location Existing Model

Public Works Yard 545 N Berry; Floor 1
ImageRunner Advance 

4551i V3 
(Black and White)

143.86$                                         B/W:  $.0035
Model: BP70M55 under 
Sourcewell Cooperative 

Pricing

Public Works Yard* 545 N Berry; Floor 2
ImageRunner Advance DX 

C5850i
(B/W & Color)

152.22$                                         
B/W:  $.0035
Color: $.035

Model: BP70C55 under 
Sourcewell Cooperative 

Pricing

Brea Com. Center 695 Madison; Lobby
ImageRunner Advance 

4551i V3 
(Black and White)

143.86$                                         B/W:  $.0035
Model: BP70M55 under 
Sourcewell Cooperative 

Pricing

Fire Station No. 1** 555 N Berry Street ICMF525DW 11.40$                                           B/W:  $.0099
Model: HPM4101 under 
Sourcewell Cooperative 

Pricing

Fire Station No. 2** 200 N. Brea Blvd ICMF525DW 11.40$                                           B/W:  $.0099
Model: HPM4101 under 
Sourcewell Cooperative 

Pricing

Fire Station No. 3** 2600 E Santa Fe Road ICMF525DW 11.40$                                           B/W:  $.0099
Model: HPM4101under 
Sourcewell Cooperative 

Pricing

Fire Station No. 4** 198 Olinda Place ICMF525DW 11.40$                                           
B/W:  $.0099

Model: HPM4101 under 
Sourcewell Cooperative 

Pricing

 

Quantity Lease Cost
1 13.86$                                        

1K External Finisher 1 25.04$                                        
1 7.34$                                          

Inner Finisher for BPC535WD 1 12.94$                                        
1 86.68$                                        
1 58.04$                                        
1 16.44$                                        

Available through 3rd party
Included with Equipment

Additional Items

Quantity Cost
1 3.50$                                          

Included with Service Contract

Print Management Solution -Synappx Manage

1K Saddle Stitch Finisher-BPFN14 with BPFD10 Folding Unit

Specialty – Please include Finishing as an Optional Price

Description

Please include any missing components that are recommended for a complete installation.
Description

Badge Reader
Waste Container

3K Saddle Stitch Finisher - BPFN16 with BPFD10 Folding Unit

Envelop stuffing
Additional Paper Trays -  2x550 +2100 sheet split tandem drawers

50 Sheet Inner Finisher 

3-Hole Punch



Proposers Name:  

Proposers are required to complete the table below for pricing comparison.  Pricing shall be based upon a 60-month lease and monthly lease amount shall include all service maintenance 
including supplies (with the exception of paper). Proposer is expected to fix all prices at the proposed amounts for the duration of the contract.

Please note that pricing Must Be All-Inclusive.  EACH PROPOSAL MUST BE INCLUSIVE OF ALL COSTS TO PERFORM THE REQUIRED SERVICES.  Any and all costs of labor, transportation, 
materials, software, equipment, proprietary licenses, and any and all other fees, costs, taxes, insurance, and expenses necessary to comply with the requirements of this RFP and to provide 
the Services, must be included in the proposal price.

The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantity of equipment to be leased or purchased under this RFP or change equipment following site inspection and evaluation.  Any 
additional equipment leased or purchased shall be based upon cooperative pricing.

STANDARD FORM I :  PRICE FORM

Like-for-Like Replacement Costs
Monthly Fixed 

Lease Cost
Per 

Copy Cost

SHARP BUSINESS SYSTEMS

NotesSite Location Existing Model



Proposers Name:  

Com Development 1 Civic Center; Floor 3
Sharp Model: BP70C31 

under Sourcewell 
Cooperative Pricing

110.44$                       
B/W:  $.0035
Color: $.035

Color printing, double-sided printing, staple 
option, multi-purpose tray (to print labels, 
etc.), scanning, three-hole punch, scan and 
email documents

Admin Services 1 Civic Center; Floor 3
Sharp Model: BP70C31 

under Sourcewell 
Cooperative Pricing

110.44$                       
B/W:  $.0035
Color: $.035

All scan size options, color, multi-tray 
option,staples, double sided, confidentiality, 
tri-folding

Management Services 1 Civic Center; Floor 3
Sharp Model: BP70M31 

under Sourcewell 
Cooperative Pricing

91.84$                         
B/W:  $.0035 three-hole punch, batch scaning, high output 

tray

Dispatch 1 Civic Center; Floor 2 OMIT $ B/W:  $ None/Omit

Fire Admin. 1 Civic Center; Floor 2
Sharp Model: BP70C31 

under Sourcewell 
Cooperative Pricing

110.44$                       
B/W:  $.0035
Color: $.035

three-hole punch, staple, fax, large plan size 
document capabilities, security/confidentiality

Police Records 1 Civic Center; Floor 1
Sharp Model: BP70M31 

under Sourcewell 
Cooperative Pricing

91.84$                         
B/W:  $.0035 Faster, higher capacity machines. Need 

faxing on machines.

Police Records 1 Civic Center; Floor 1
Sharp Model: BP70M31 

under Sourcewell 
Cooperative Pricing

91.84$                         B/W:  $.0035
Faster, higher capacity machines. Need 
faxing on machines.

Investigation 1 Civic Center; Floor 1
Sharp Model: BP70C31 

under Sourcewell 
Cooperative Pricing

110.44$                       
B/W:  $.0035
Color: $.035

three-hole punch, color, collating

Brea Resource* 1 Civic Center; Floor 1
Sharp Model: BP70M31 

under Sourcewell 
Cooperative Pricing

91.84$                         B/W:  $.0035
Staple, Secure scan repository for sensitive 
documents, staple

Property Evidence 1 Civic Center; Floor P2
Sharp Model: BPC535WD 

under Sourcewell 
Cooperative Pricing

61.98$                         
B/W:  $.0035
Color: $.035

Color printer, color scanner, double-sided 
copy/print, stapler, fax.

Senior Center 500 S. Sierers Ave
Sharp Model: BP70M31 

under Sourcewell 
Cooperative Pricing

91.84$                         B/W:  $.0035
Staple, Secure scan repository for sensitive 
documents, staple

SHARP BUSINESS SYSTEMS

STANDARD FORM I :  PRICE FORM

Proposers are required to complete the table below for pricing comparison.  Pricing shall be based upon a 60-month lease and monthly lease amount shall include all service maintenance including supplies (with 
the exception of paper). Proposer is expected to fix all prices at the proposed amounts for the duration of the contract.

Please note that pricing Must Be All-Inclusive.  EACH PROPOSAL MUST BE INCLUSIVE OF ALL COSTS TO PERFORM THE REQUIRED SERVICES.  Any and all costs of labor, transportation, materials, software, equipment, 
proprietary licenses, and any and all other fees, costs, taxes, insurance, and expenses necessary to comply with the requirements of this RFP and to provide the Services, must be included in the proposal price.

The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantity of equipment to be leased or purchased under this RFP or change equipment following site inspection and evaluation.  Any additional equipment 
leased or purchased shall be based upon cooperative pricing.

Standalone Department Printer Replacement/Consolidation Costs

Site Location Recommended Model
 Monthly Fixed 

Lease Cost 
Per 

Copy Cost
Dept Features Requested



Public Works Yard 545 N Berry; Floor 1
Sharp Model: BP70M31 

under Sourcewell 
Cooperative Pricing

91.84$                         B/W:  $.0035 Collating, staple

Public Works Yard* 545 N Berry; Floor 2
Sharp Model: BP70C31 

under Sourcewell 
Cooperative Pricing

110.45$                       
B/W:  $.0035
Color: $.035

Collating, staple

Brea Com. Center 695 Madison; Lobby
Sharp Model: BP70M31 

under Sourcewell 
Cooperative Pricing

91.84$                         B/W:  $.0035
Staple, Secure scan repository for sensitive 
documents, staple

Fire Station No. 1** 555 N Berry Street OMIT

$

B/W:  $ None/Omit

Fire Station No. 2** 200 N. Brea Blvd
Sharp Model: BP70C31 

under Sourcewell 
Cooperative Pricing

110.45$                       
B/W:  $.0035
Color: $.035

three-hole punch, staple, color print

Fire Station No. 3** 2600 E Santa Fe Road OMIT

$

B/W:  $ None/Omit

Fire Station No. 4** 198 Olinda Place OMIT

$

B/W:  $
Color: $

None/Omit

 

Quantity Lease Cost
Fax 1 9.54$                       

1 13.86$                     
1K External Finisher 1 25.04$                     

1 7.34$                       
Inner Finisher for BPC535WD 1 12.94$                     

1 86.68$                     
1 58.04$                     
1 16.44$                     

Available through 3rd party
Included with Equipment

Additional Items
Quantity Cost

1 3.50$                       
Included with Service Contract

Specialty – Please include Finishing as an Optional Price
Description

3-Hole Punch

3K Saddle Stitch Finisher - BPFN16 with BPFD10 Folding Unit

50 Sheet Inner Finisher 

1K Saddle Stitch Finisher-BPFN14 with BPFD10 Folding Unit
Additional Paper Trays -  2x550 +2100 sheet split tandem drawers
Envelop stuffing
Print Management Solution -Synappx Manage

Please include any missing components that are recommended for a complete installation.
Description

Badge Reader
Waste Container





Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|48  

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS COPIER/MULTIFUNCTION PRINTER REPLACEMENT AND 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES 2025.01.06.01 

 
STANDARD FORM B REFERENCES FORM 

 
SHARP BUSINESS SYSTEMS 

 
Provide current business references for whom your company has provided similar services. 

Provide very brief description of the Project services your company provided to the reference. Any 
unsatisfactory references or past unsatisfactory work performance with City may eliminate Proposer from 

further consideration (Brea City Code Sec. 3.24.020.M) 
 

Reference #1 

Company Name City of Long Beach 

Address, City, State, Zip 411 W. Ocean Blvd, Long Beach, CA 90802 

Contact’s Name and Title Jeffrey Kotch, Technical Support Officer - Asset Management 

Contact’s Phone Number (562)-570-5102 

Contact’s Email Jeffrey.kotch@longbeach.gov 

Project 
Installed 550 Sharp MFP’s, 350 Printers, PaperCut Print 
management software user 

Completion Date & Value 
June 2019-present 
Value of $750,000 

 

Reference #2 

Company Name City of Riverside 

Address, City, State, Zip 3900 Main Street, Riverside, CA 92522 

Contact’s Name and Title Rosalinda Acosta, Innovation and Technology Officer 

Contact’s Phone Number 951-826-5150 

Contact’s Email rcosta@riversideca.gov 

Project 
Installed 150 Sharp MFP’s, 200 Printers and manage entire 
HP fleet 

Completion Date & Value 
Jan 2019-present; renewed for 5 years in 2024 
Value of $350,000 

 
 
 
 

 



Sharp Electronics                             City of Brea RFP NO. 2025.01.06.01 Page|49  

Reference #3 

Company Name City of Tustin 

Address, City, State, Zip 300 Centennial Way, Tustin, CA 92780 

Contact’s Name and Title Erica Yasuda, City Clerk 

Contact’s Phone Number 714-573-3025 

Contact’s Email eyasuda@tustinca.org 

Project 
Installed 23 Sharp MFP’s, 30 Printers and manage entire HP 
fleet, 1 Production Unit in Print Shop 

Completion Date & Value 
Sep 2016-present; renewed for 5 years in 2021 
Value of $200,000 

Reference #4 

Company Name City of San Diego 

Address, City, State, Zip 202 C St. San Diego, CA 92101 

Contact’s Name and Title Veronica Valenzuela – Purchasing Manager 

Contact’s Phone Number 619-533-4504 

Contact’s Email vvalenzuela@sandiego.gov 

Project Installed 600 Sharp MFP’s, 350 Printers 

Completion Date & Value 
Dec 2011-present; renewed 3 times 
Value of $1,000,000 

 
 
 
 
  





REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

2025.01.06.01 

Page 13 of 42

STANDARD FORM D 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE OR EXCEPTIONS FORM 

Each Proposal must be accompanied by this form. Failure to provide this form will cause 
the Proposal to be deemed non-responsive and that Proposal will not be considered for further 
evaluation. 

(Proposer’s Company Name) 

Select one: 

      No Exceptions  

By checking the above box, Proposer declares their Proposal was prepared in strict 
compliance with the instructions, conditions, and terms of the Solicitation, Scope of Work, and 
Agreement.  

 With Exceptions  

By checking the above box, Proposer declares their Proposal was prepared in consideration 
of but with exceptions to one or more of the instructions, conditions, and terms of the Solicitation, 
Scope of Work, and Agreement, in which case Proposer must provide a detailed list for all such 
exceptions in the following format.  

 
Section 
Page # Term, Condition, Specification  Exception & Benefit to City 

City A 
or D 

Proposer acknowledges that City may accept or reject any or all of Proposer’s listed 
exceptions or reject the Proposer’s entire Proposal that contain any exceptions.  

Signature:    ____________________________________________

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________

  

Sharp Electronics Corporation, through its Sharp Business Systems Southern California Division

X

Dale Wedge president SBS SoCal 1/29/25



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services

2025.01.06.01 

Page 14 of 42

STANDARD FORM E 

STATUS OF PAST AND PRESENT CONTRACTS FORM 

Each Proposal must be accompanied by this form. Failure to provide this form will cause 
the Proposal to be deemed non-responsive and that Proposal will not be considered for further 
evaluation. As used in this form, “Proposer” means Proposer or any 10% or greater owner of  the 
proposing company; “Contract Termination” means termination for cause by any other party to a 
contract with the Proposer; “Settlement” means settlement of any claim or lawsuit brought against 
Proposer in connection with Proposer’s services; and, “Legal Action” means any lawsuit alleging 
fraud, breach or any other misconduct by, or filed against, Proposer.  

By checking the above box, Proposer declares that the Proposer has not had any Contract 
Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions within the past five years of the date signed hereunder 
and currently does not have any pending Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions.  

            One or More Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions 

By checking the above box, Proposer declares that the Proposer has had either one or more 
Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions within the past five years of the date signed 
hereunder in which case, Proposer must provide a list for all such contracts and include: 
Contract Title, Contract Value, Termination Date, Company Name, Contact Name, Phone Number, 
and Reasons for and descriptions of the Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions.  

The Proposer acknowledges that City may: reject any declarations that are not accompanied 
with the required documentation as described above; or reject any Proposals wherein Proposer has 
had any Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions that City in its sole discretion deems 
unacceptable. 

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________ 

(Contractor’s Company Name) 

No Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions 

Sharp Electronics Corporation, through its Sharp Business Systems Southern California Division

X

Dale Wedge president SBS SoCal 1/29/25



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

2025.01.06.01 

Page 15 of 42

STANDARD FORM F 

INSURANCE COMMITMENT FORM 

Each Proposal must be accompanied by this form. Failure to provide this form will cause 
the Proposal to be deemed non-responsive and that Proposal will not be considered for further 
evaluation. 

(Proposer’s Company Name) 

Proposer acknowledges that: 

City reserves the right to modify the insurance requirements as set for in the Insurance 
Requirements section of the Agreement including limits, based on nature of the risk, prior 
experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.  

City’s acceptance and/or approval of the Proposer’s insurance documents does not and shall 
not be construed to relieve Proposer of any obligations, responsibilities or liabilities under any 
resultant Contract. 

Proposer’s failure to comply with the required insurance as set forth in the Insurance 
Requirements of the Agreement is a breach of contract, which may result in one or more of the 
following: suspension of work, suspension or termination of contract, remuneration of 
procurement costs for obtaining a replacement Proposer, and suspension from submitting future 
proposal based on Proposer’s default. 

Proposer, at Proposer’s sole cost and expense, hereby promises and agrees to:  

Acquire required insurance set forth in the Insurance Requirements of the Agreement. 

Provide policies of insurance from a company or companies having a current A.M. Best's 
rating of no less than A:VII and admitted and authorized to transact the business of insurance in 
the State of California prior to commencing any work and allowing any subProposer to 
commence work on any subcontract until it has secured all required insurance unless otherwise 
permitted or waived in writing by City’s Risk Manager.  

Maintain in force at all times during the term of any Contract, insurance policies as set 
forth in the Insurance Requirements of the Agreement; replace any policies whose carrier’s 
rating falls below A VII with policies that meet or better the required A VII rating no later than 
the renewal date of the policy; amend, supplement, or endorse existing insurance policies that do 
not meet the insurance requirements set forth in the Insurance Requirements.  

Proposer certifies, represents, and commits to all the Insurance Requirements of the Agreement.  

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________ 

Sharp Electronics Corporation, through its Sharp Business Systems Southern California Division

Dale Wedge president SBS SoCal 1/29/25



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

2025.01.06.01 

Page 16 of 42

STANDARD FORM G 
PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS RESPONSE FORM  

(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Proposers must have demonstrated trustworthiness, as well as the necessary quality, fitness, 
capacity, and experience to satisfactorily provide the requirements specified in this Solicitation 
based on prior experience with city, references, and other available information. 

Provide the information requested below. Do not omit or renumber any sections. All items listed 
must be submitted and checked off to ensure qualification responsiveness. 

1. Background. 

Please provide the following information about your company:  

  Your company’s full legal name, address, phone, fax, email, website.  

   Prior company names (if any) and years in business; mergers, buyouts, etc.  

Organizational structure (i.e. corp., LLC, sole proprietorship, etc.). 

Names and titles of the principal owner(s). 

Person(s) authorized to make commitments for your company.  

Special recognition or awards.  
 
2.  Experience.  

Provide the following information relative to required services:  

Summary of Experience with similar kinds of work. 

Familiarity with state and federal procedures.  

Experience working with public agencies. 

Narrative of the working relationship with current business references for information   
not already included in the References Form.  

 
3.  Qualifications.  

Provide the following information relative to required services:  

Financial responsibility.  

Demonstrated Technical Ability. 

Capability of developing innovative or advanced techniques.  

Special qualifications, training, credentials. 

Staff names, titles, role, qualifications, and experience assigned to this Project.  

Sharp Electronics Corporation, through its Sharp Business Systems Southern California Division

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x
x
x

x
x
x
x
x



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
Copier/Multifunction Printer Replacement and Maintenance Services 

2025.01.06.01 

Page 17 of 42

Designated project manager assigned to this Project. 

4. Understanding. 

Provide the following information relative to required services: 

Understanding of the work to be done based on this Solicitation. 

Include issues that you believe will require special consideration for this Project. 

Identify unique approaches or strengths your company has relative to required 
services. 

5. Approach. 

Provide the following information relative to required services:  

Understanding of the work to be done.  

Adequacy of labor and resources to satisfactorily perform the requested services and       
meet the City’s needs.  

Names and titles of key management personnel.  

Team to be assigned for these services. 

Submitted by:  

Signature:   ____________________________________________

Name/Title Date: ____________________________________________

x

x
x
x

x

x

x
x

Dale Wedge president SBS SoCal 1/29/25





City of Brea

Finance Committee Communication

D. Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

Meeting

Tuesday, June 10, 2025, 8:30 AM

Agenda Group

DISCUSSION Item: 3D.

TO

Finance Committee Members

FROM

Lisa Keyworth, Emergency Preparedness Coordinator

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Finance Committee recommend the City Council to take the following action:

1. Approve the professional service agreements with RCS Investigations and Consulting, LLC and JL Group, LLC
for pre-employment background investigations for Fire Services with a not to exceed amount of $60, 000; and

2. Authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

The Brea Fire Department has contracted with RCS Investigations & Consulting LLC (RCS) for pre-employment
background investigation services since 2023. During the term of the most recent contract, RCS conducted
numerous background investigations for both sworn and non-sworn candidates at $1,750 for sworn candidates
and $500 for Ambulance Operators. Their work product was both thorough and timely.

In April of 2025, the not-to-exceed amount of the existing contract was expended. The Fire Department initiated a
Request for Proposals (RFP) for pre-employment backgrounds that opened on May 2, 2025. Eight proposals were
received.  Two of the proposals were incomplete.  Of the remaining proposals, RCS was by far the lowest cost at
$1800 for firefighter backgrounds and $550 for Ambulance Operator backgrounds for year one and a $50 increase
for each in year two. Staff negotiated with RCS for a three-year term with year two pricing to remain the same for
year three.  

While RCS most closely met the needs of the Fire Department with the experience with Fire backgrounds, pricing
and the fact they are a local vendor (Anaheim), staff is recommending a contract with a secondary vendor in case
the need arises.  JL Group is located in Laguna Niguel and offered the lowest price of the remaining qualified
vendors with experience in fire backgrounds. The pricing for JL Group is $1700 for civilian and $1900 for sworn
backgrounds.  JL Group also was agreeable to a three-year term with the above proposed rate.

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT

The not-to-exceed amount is based on the anticipated quantity of background investigations needed to meet the
hiring demands of the Fire Department. There is sufficient funding available in the City’s General Fund Operating
Budget for FY 2025-27 and no additional appropriation is needed.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED

Kristin Griffith, City Manager



Prepared by: Lisa Keyworth, Emergency Preparedness Coordinator

Concurrence: Mark Terrill, Fire Chief

 

 

Attachments

RFP No. 2025.05.02.01 -Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire.pdf
Agreement_JL Group LLC. (part 1)-signed.pdf
Final Agreement_RCS Investigations (part 1) - signed.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683e24f04c1e31004de5153f%2FRFP%20No.%202025.05.02.01%20-Pre-Employment%20Background%20Investigation%20Services%20for%20Fire.pdf?alt=media&token=343b1465-dae1-4d17-b85a-9e43a4ceb5fe
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683e24f04c1e31004de5153f%2FRFP%20No.%202025.05.02.01%20-Pre-Employment%20Background%20Investigation%20Services%20for%20Fire.pdf?alt=media&token=343b1465-dae1-4d17-b85a-9e43a4ceb5fe
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683e24f04c1e31004de5153f%2FRFP%20No.%202025.05.02.01%20-Pre-Employment%20Background%20Investigation%20Services%20for%20Fire.pdf?alt=media&token=343b1465-dae1-4d17-b85a-9e43a4ceb5fe
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683e24f04c1e31004de5153f%2FAgreement_JL%20Group%20LLC.%20(part%201)-signed.pdf?alt=media&token=4a5a16b5-07c9-41a4-91f9-60b6d048d4a7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683e24f04c1e31004de5153f%2FAgreement_JL%20Group%20LLC.%20(part%201)-signed.pdf?alt=media&token=4a5a16b5-07c9-41a4-91f9-60b6d048d4a7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683e24f04c1e31004de5153f%2FAgreement_JL%20Group%20LLC.%20(part%201)-signed.pdf?alt=media&token=4a5a16b5-07c9-41a4-91f9-60b6d048d4a7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683e24f04c1e31004de5153f%2FFinal%20Agreement_RCS%20Investigations%20(part%201)%20-%20signed.pdf?alt=media&token=9497cbfc-414a-4f85-92bd-016443b0419b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683e24f04c1e31004de5153f%2FFinal%20Agreement_RCS%20Investigations%20(part%201)%20-%20signed.pdf?alt=media&token=9497cbfc-414a-4f85-92bd-016443b0419b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683e24f04c1e31004de5153f%2FFinal%20Agreement_RCS%20Investigations%20(part%201)%20-%20signed.pdf?alt=media&token=9497cbfc-414a-4f85-92bd-016443b0419b


 
 

 
 

 
 
 

   
RFP No. 2025.05.02.01   

  Request for Proposals 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation 

for Fire Services  

 
TIMELINE | Key Milestones 

 

Key Milestone Schedule 

Release of RFP May 2, 2025 

Question Deadline May 15, 2025 by 5:00 pm PST 

Pre-Proposal Conference (if applicable) Not Applicable 

Final Addendum Issued May 19, 2025 

Proposal Deadline May 22, 2025 by 5:00 pm PST 

Interviews (week of)* May 27, 2025 

Selection of Proposer* June 2, 2025 

Finance Committee Recommendation* June 10, 2025 

City Council Award* June 17, 2025 

Contract Start Date* July 1, 2025 

* Tentative; at the discretion of the City 
 
To obtains solicitation documents, submit questions, receive answers, and submit a 
proposal, proposer’s can visit the City’s eProcurement Portal at the following hyperlink 
https://www.publicpurchase.com/gems/brea,ca/buyer/public/home (registration 
required). 
 
Please note that proposals may only be submitted electronically. 

  
 

https://www.publicpurchase.com/gems/brea,ca/buyer/public/home


PART I 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 



RFP No. 2025.05.02.01 
City of Brea 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  
 

Request for Proposals 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

I. Overview
A. Purpose
The City of Brea (“City”) is requesting proposals from qualified service providers to provide Pre-
Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services, as further set forth in Part III 
hereto, the Scope of Services and Specification Section (“Services”).  Those submitting proposals are 
each referred to herein as “proposer”. Any proposer selected to provide the foregoing services are 
sometimes referred to herein as “Proposer” or “consultant.” 

B. Specific Processes Applicable to this Request for Proposal (RFP)
To obtain solicitation documents, submit questions, receive answers, ad submit a proposal, visit the 
City’s eProcurement Portal at the following hyperlink (registration is required) 

City’s eProcurement Portal 

https://www.publicpurchase.com/gems/brea,ca/buyer/public/home 

PROPOSALS MAY ONLY BE SUBMITTED ELECTRONICALLY 

II. Questions and Answers.
A. Questions
Any person contemplating submitting a proposal in response to this RFP who has questions, requires 
clarification, or finds any discrepancies with respect to any part of this RFP, the Scope of Services 
and Specifications, the City’s standard agreement contained herein, or any of the terms and 
conditions included therein (collectively, “Solicitation” or “RFP”), must submit their questions 
through the City’s eProcurement Portal listed above by the Question Deadline set forth in the 
Timelines referenced on page one or as may be modified by any addendum.  Questions not received 
by the Question Deadline will not be considered.  As such questions, are non-responsive to the 
Solicitation requirements. 

B. Answers
The City will issue addenda to answer question(s) received by the Question Deadline and provide 
clarifications and modifications to the Solicitation utilizing the City’s eProcurement Portal as 
provided above, when deemed to be of sufficient importance or otherwise necessary to more fully 
implement the goals and intent of this RFP.  Proposers must acknowledge receipt of all City-issued 
addenda.  Only City’s written addenda can modify the requirements of this RFP. Any modifications 
set forth in such addenda will supersede and take precedence over the original RFP and any 
preceding addendums. Any other form of communications shall have no force or effect with respect 
to this Solicitation.  The City will not be bound by any verbal representations of any City official or 
employee. 

https://www.publicpurchase.com/gems/brea,ca/buyer/public/home


RFP No. 2025.05.02.01 
City of Brea 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  
 

PROPOSALS NOT RECEIVED ELECTRONICALLY BEFORE THE PROPOSAL DUE DATE, SHALL NOT BE 
OPENED AND SHALL BE DISREGARDED. PROPOSERS BEAR ANY AND ALL RISKS OF UNTIMELY, OR 
NON-RECEIPT OF ANY PROPOSAL, REGARDLESS OF THE CAUSE. 

III. Costs Included in Proposal
A. Preparation Expense
Proposers prepare and make proposal(s) at their sole expense.

B. All-Inclusive Costs
Pricing Must Be All-Inclusive.  EACH PROPOSAL MUST BE INCLUSIVE OF ALL COSTS TO PERFORM THE 
REQUIRED SERVICES.  Any and all costs of labor, transportation, materials, software, equipment, 
proprietary licenses, and any and all other fees, costs, taxes, insurance, and expenses necessary to 
comply with the requirements of this RFP and to provide the Services, must be included in the 
proposal price. 

IV. Proposal Submission Requirements
A. General

i. Checklist.  Use this section as a checklist to help provide a complete response.  Failure to
include and provide all the information specified may result in rejection of the proposal
without further evaluation or award consideration.

ii. Signatures.  Proposers must sign all forms where indicated. Digital Signatures are acceptable
if they conform to all requirements of California Government Code Section 16.5.

iii. Additional Material. Do not include any promotional material or any material that is not
directly relevant to the objectives of this Solicitation.

iv. Organization. Organize the proposal in the order shown below, separate each section with a
section page and title, and number each section beginning with one.

v. Sections Division and Purpose. Note the Qualifications and Forms sections will be used to
determine if the proposer is qualified and responsive, while the Technical and Costs sections
will be used to determine how well the proposer meets the requirements of this Solicitation
and if the proposed costs are fair and reasonable. The Technical and Costs sections of the
successful proposal may be attached to and incorporated as part of Exhibit A to the City’s
standard Agreement for execution.

B. Introduction Section
i. Title Page. Provide a title page showing the Solicitation subject; the proposer’s name;

address, and the date of the proposal.

ii. Table of Contents. Provide a table of contents detailing the various sections and page
numbers of the information contained in the proposal.

iii. Letter of Transmittal. Provide a letter of transmittal signed by an individual authorized to
bind the proposer, briefly stating the proposer's understanding of the work to be done, the
commitment to perform the work within the required time period(s), a statement why the



RFP No. 2025.05.02.01 
City of Brea 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  
 

proposer believes itself to be best qualified to perform the Services and a statement that the 
proposal is a firm and irrevocable proposal.  

C. Qualifications Section
i. Background. Provide the proposer company’s full legal name, address, phone, fax, email,

website; Prior company names (if any) and years in business; mergers, buyouts;
Organizational structure (i.e. corp., LLC, sole proprietorship, etc.) and chart; Names and titles
of the principal owner(s); Person(s) authorized to contractually bind the company. List any
pending litigation and describe any contracts terminated for cause and any governmental
enforcement actions against proposer’s company during the previous five (5) years.  List any
special recognition or awards.

ii. Experience. Provide a summary of experience with similar kinds of work; Familiarity with
state and federal procedures; Experience working with public agencies. Provide current
business references for whom your company has provided similar services, and a very brief
description of the provided services.

iii. Qualifications. Provide a summary of financial responsibility; Demonstrated technical ability;
Capability of developing innovative or advanced techniques; Special qualifications, training,
credentials; Staff names, titles, role, qualifications, experience, and length of service and the
designated project manager to be assigned to this agreement.

iv. Understanding. Describe proposer’s understanding of the work to be done as required by
this RFP. Include any issues that will require special consideration in providing the Services
and identify any unique approaches or strengths your company may have.

D. Technical Section
i. Approach. Provide a detailed discussion and proposed methodologies of the proposer’s

approach to the successful performance of the Services. Include thorough discussions of
methodologies proposer believes are essential to accomplishing each task. Include a
proposed work schedule to accomplish all of the required tasks and identify the team
member responsible for each.

ii. Proposed Schedule. Provide a detailed recommended schedule of activities. If a Meet and
Confer and Presentation Requirements and/or a Tentative Schedule are provided in the
Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements Section any recommended modifications
should be addressed.

E. Cost Section

i. Pricing. Pricing shall be as specifically described in Exhibit “A” to the City’s standard form of
agreement attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

F. Forms Section
i. Standard Forms

a. Non-Collusion Affidavit Form

b. References Form



RFP No. 2025.05.02.01 
City of Brea 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  
 

c. SubProposers List-Standard Form

d. Statement of Compliance or Exceptions Form

e. Status of Past and Present Contracts Form

f. Insurance Commitment Form

g. Proposer Qualification Response Form

h. Firm Proposal Form

i. Price Form

G. Withdrawal and Validity. Proposals may be withdrawn before the Proposal Deadline.
Otherwise, proposals are binding for 120 days from the Proposal Deadline.

V. Proposal Review

A. Opening Proposals. Proposals remained unopened until the Proposal Deadline and thereafter
will be electronically unsealed to begin the review and evaluation process set forth in the
Evaluation, Award, Contract, Notice to Proceed Section below.

B. Proposal Information Posted. Proposals received by the Proposal Deadline, will have results
posted on the City’s website at www.ci.brea.ca.us/1254/Requests-for-Bids-Proposals-and-
Quotes. The Proposal results are subject to change based on responsiveness and determination
of qualifications. Further information may be obtained by visiting the webpage, clicking on
Requests for Bids, Proposals, and Quotes, and scrolling to the desired solicitation. City will not
provide results by any other means.

C. Information Posted. For this RFP, only company names of proposers timely submitting
proposals, will be initially posted.  No proposal will be available for public review until the
evaluation phase has been completed and an award recommendation, if any, has been made.

D. All Proposals Become City Property and Public Records. All submitted proposals will become
City property and public records subject to disclosure. However, no proposal will be disclosed
unless and until a proposer is selected and recommended for contract award to the City Council;
all proposals are rejected; or, this RFP process is terminated.

 DO NOT SUBMIT CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.  Any and all notices of “trade secrets”,
“confidential information”, “do not disclose”, and/or any similar types of notices in a proposal
will be disregarded.

VI. Evaluation

A. Non-Responsive Proposals. Proposals that are late or misdirected; or where the proposer did
not attend any required mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting or is suspended or debarred
(www.sam.gov) are non-responsive. Proposals that did not include the required documents or
information; modified any terms and conditions; had excessive or inadequate price relative to
the Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements may cause the Proposal to be deemed
non-responsive. Non-responsive Proposals will not be considered for further evaluations or

http://www.ci.brea.ca.us/1254/Requests-for-Bids-Proposals-and-Quotes
http://www.ci.brea.ca.us/1254/Requests-for-Bids-Proposals-and-Quotes
http://www.sam.gov/


RFP No. 2025.05.02.01 
City of Brea 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  
 

award. 

B. Responsive Proposals. Proposals that conform in all material respects to the RFP and are eligible
for further consideration.

C. Informalities. City may waive any informalities in any proposal or this RFP process as deemed in
City’s best interest.

D. Basis of Award and Evaluation Criteria.  If an award is made, it shall be made based on the
proposal determined to provide the greatest benefit to the City. City will evaluate and score each 
proposal based on how well it meets the Proposal Submission Requirements including, but not
limited to, the Qualifications, Technical, Cost, Forms sections; any required clarifications,
presentations, interviews; other available information; any required Best and Final Offer (BAFO)
responses; and any other requirements of this RFP not mentioned specifically in this paragraph.

The scoring for Evaluation Criteria is set forth below:

Responsiveness of the Proposal including ability to meet the City’s timelines, 
and acceptance of City’s standard form of agreement 

25% 

Proposer’s qualifications and prior experience 25% 

Technical approach to provide the Services 20% 

Value and economy to City of the proposed Project approach 20% 

Pricing 10% 

The City reserves the right to select one or more proposers for further consideration or award of a 
contract, based solely on their proposal or, on their proposal and any interviews. The City reserves 
the right to negotiate a final agreement with one or more of the top scoring proposers.   

Award, Reject, Rescind. 

As may be in City’s best interest, City may accept and award a contract to any proposer; rescind any 
award; reject any or all proposals; and/or terminate this RFP process at any time.   

Agreement. 

If an agreement is awarded, City will do so after the successful proposer has satisfied all post-award 
requirements (insurance, bonding, etc.).  The City’s standard form of agreement is attached. Any 
requested changes to the agreement will be considered as part of the evaluation/scoring process. 

Notice to Proceed. 

City will issue a notice to proceed to Proposer(s) to commence providing the Services at the time 
stated in that notice. Absent a formal notice to proceed letter, delivery of the Purchase Order 
becomes the de facto notice to proceed unless otherwise stated in the Purchase Order. 

End of this Section. 



PART II 
STANDARD FORMS 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

2025.05.02.01 

STANDARD FORM A 

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT FORM 

Note: To be executed by Proposer and submitted with Proposal.  

proposal (name of proposing company)  

that the proposal is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, 
company, association, organization, or corporation; that the proposal is genuine and not collusive 
or sham; that the PROPOSER has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other proposer 
to put in a false or sham proposal; that the PROPOSER has not directly or indirectly colluded, 
conspired, connived, or agreed with any proposer or anyone else to put in a sham proposal, or to 
refrain from proposing; that the PROPOSER has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought 
by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the proposal price of the 
PROPOSER or any other proposer, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the proposal 
price, or of that of any other proposer; that all statements contained in the proposal are true; and, 
the PROPOSER has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her proposal price or any 
breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, to any 
corporation, partnership, company, association, organization, depository, or to any member or 
agent thereof, to effectuate a collusive or sham proposal, and has not paid, and will not pay, any 
person or entity for such purpose.  

Any person executing this declaration on behalf of a PROPOSER that is a corporation, partnership, 
joint venture, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, or any other entity, hereby 
represents that they have full power to execute, and does execute, this declaration on behalf of the 
PROPOSER.  

I declare under penalty of perjury under the Laws of the State of California that the foregoing is 
true and correct and that this declaration is executed as set forth.  

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date: ____________________________________________ 

Notary is not required for this proposal. 

State of 
the State of the place of business) ( 

County of 
the County of the place of business) ( 

,  b eing first duly sworn, deposes and 
( name of the person signing this form) 

says that he/she is    of 
( title of the person signing this form) 

, the party making the foregoing 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

2025.05.02.01 

 

 
STANDARD FORM B 
REFERENCES FORM  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Provide current business references for whom your company has provided similar services.  
Provide very brief description of the Project services your company provided to the reference. 
Any unsatisfactory references or past unsatisfactory work performance with City may 
eliminate Proposer from further consideration (Brea City Code Sec. 3.24.020.M)  
 

 
  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

2025.05.02.01 

 

 
STANDARD FORM C  

SUBPROPOSERS LIST-STANDARD FORM  
 

(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Provide the information requested below. Duplicate this form as necessary to complete list.  
☐ Check this box, if no subProposers are to be used for any of the proposed work. 

 
  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

2025.05.02.01 

 

 

STANDARD FORM D  

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE OR EXCEPTIONS FORM  

Each Proposal must be accompanied by this form. Failure to provide this form will cause 
the Proposal to be deemed non-responsive and that Proposal will not be considered for further 
evaluation.  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Select one:  

            No Exceptions  

By checking the above box, Proposer declares their Proposal was prepared in strict 
compliance with the instructions, conditions, and terms of the Solicitation, Scope of Work, and 
Agreement.  

 With Exceptions  

By checking the above box, Proposer declares their Proposal was prepared in consideration 
of but with exceptions to one or more of the instructions, conditions, and terms of the Solicitation, 
Scope of Work, and Agreement, in which case Proposer must provide a detailed list for all such 
exceptions in the following format.  

 
Section 
Page #  Term, Condition, Specification  Exception & Benefit to City  

City A 
or D  

 

Proposer acknowledges that City may accept or reject any or all of Proposer’s listed 
exceptions or reject the Proposer’s entire Proposal that contain any exceptions.  

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________ 

  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

2025.05.02.01 

 

 

STANDARD FORM E  

STATUS OF PAST AND PRESENT CONTRACTS FORM  

Each Proposal must be accompanied by this form. Failure to provide this form will cause 
the Proposal to be deemed non-responsive and that Proposal will not be considered for further 
evaluation. As used in this form, “Proposer” means Proposer or any 10% or greater owner of  the 
proposing company; “Contract Termination” means termination for cause by any other party to a 
contract with the Proposer; “Settlement” means settlement of any claim or lawsuit brought against 
Proposer in connection with Proposer’s services; and, “Legal Action” means any lawsuit alleging 
fraud, breach or any other misconduct by, or filed against, Proposer.  

 

By checking the above box, Proposer declares that the Proposer has not had any Contract 
Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions within the past five years of the date signed hereunder 
and currently does not have any pending Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions.  

            One or More Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions  

By checking the above box, Proposer declares that the Proposer has had either one or more 
Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions within the past five years of the date signed 
hereunder in which case, Proposer must provide a list for all such contracts and include: 
Contract Title, Contract Value, Termination Date, Company Name, Contact Name, Phone Number, 
and Reasons for and descriptions of the Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions.  

The Proposer acknowledges that City may: reject any declarations that are not accompanied 
with the required documentation as described above; or reject any Proposals wherein Proposer has 
had any Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions that City in its sole discretion deems 
unacceptable.  

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________ 

  

( Proposer’s Company Name)  

              No Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

2025.05.02.01 

 

 

STANDARD FORM F  

INSURANCE COMMITMENT FORM  

Each Proposal must be accompanied by this form. Failure to provide this form will cause 
the Proposal to be deemed non-responsive and that Proposal will not be considered for further 
evaluation.  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Proposer acknowledges that:  

City reserves the right to modify the insurance requirements as set for in the Insurance 
Requirements section of the Agreement including limits, based on nature of the risk, prior 
experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.  

City’s acceptance and/or approval of the proposer’s insurance documents does not and shall 
not be construed to relieve proposer of any obligations, responsibilities or liabilities under any 
resultant Contract.  

Proposer’s failure to comply with the required insurance as set forth in the Insurance 
Requirements of the Agreement is a breach of contract, which may result in one or more of the 
following: suspension of work, suspension or termination of contract, remuneration of 
procurement costs for obtaining a replacement Proposer, and suspension from submitting future 
proposal based on proposer’s default.  

Proposer, at Proposer’s sole cost and expense, hereby promises and agrees to:  

Acquire required insurance set forth in the Insurance Requirements of the Agreement.  

Provide policies of insurance from a company or companies having a current A.M. Best's 
rating of no less than A:VII and admitted and authorized to transact the business of insurance in 
the State of California prior to commencing any work and allowing any subProposer to 
commence work on any subcontract until it has secured all required insurance unless otherwise 
permitted or waived in writing by City’s Risk Manager.  

Maintain in force at all times during the term of any Contract, insurance policies as set 
forth in the Insurance Requirements of the Agreement; replace any policies whose carrier’s 
rating falls below A VII with policies that meet or better the required A VII rating no later than 
the renewal date of the policy; amend, supplement, or endorse existing insurance policies that do 
not meet the insurance requirements set forth in the Insurance Requirements.  

Proposer certifies, represents, and commits to all the Insurance Requirements of the Agreement.  

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________ 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

2025.05.02.01 

 

 

STANDARD FORM G  
PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS RESPONSE FORM  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Proposers must have demonstrated trustworthiness, as well as the necessary quality, fitness, 
capacity, and experience to satisfactorily provide the requirements specified in this Solicitation 
based on prior experience with city, references, and other available information.  

Provide the information requested below. Do not omit or renumber any sections. All items listed 
must be submitted and checked off to ensure qualification responsiveness. 

 1. Background. 

Please provide the following information about your company:  

☐   Your company’s full legal name, address, phone, fax, email, website.  
☐   Prior company names (if any) and years in business; mergers, buyouts, etc.  
☐   Organizational structure (i.e. corp., LLC, sole proprietorship, etc.).  
☐   Names and titles of the principal owner(s).  
☐   Person(s) authorized to make commitments for your company.  
☐   Special recognition or awards.  

 

2.  Experience.  

Provide the following information relative to required services:  

☐   Summary of Experience with similar kinds of work.  
☐   Familiarity with state and federal procedures.  
☐   Experience working with public agencies.  
☐ Narrative of the working relationship with current business references for information   

not already included in the References Form.  
 

3.  Qualifications.  

Provide the following information relative to required services:  

☐   Financial responsibility.  
☐   Demonstrated Technical Ability.  
☐   Capability of developing innovative or advanced techniques.  
☐   Special qualifications, training, credentials.  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

2025.05.02.01 

 

 
☐   Staff names, titles, role, qualifications, and experience assigned to this Project.  
☐   Designated project manager assigned to this Project.  

 

4.  Understanding.  

Provide the following information relative to required services:  

☐   Understanding of the work to be done based on this Solicitation.  
☐   Include issues that you believe will require special consideration for this Project. 
☐   Identify unique approaches or strengths your company has relative to required    
services.  

 

5.  Approach.  

Provide the following information relative to required services:  

☐   Understanding of the work to be done.  
☐   Adequacy of labor and resources to satisfactorily perform the requested services and    
meet the City’s needs.  
☐   Names and titles of key management personnel.  
☐   Team to be assigned for these services.  

 

Submitted by:  

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________ 

  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

2025.05.02.01 

 

 
STANDARD FORM H 

FIRM PROPOSAL FORM  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

FIRM PROPOSAL made by Proposer to the City of Brea:  
I, the undersigned, hereby represent and warrant that I am authorized to submit this Proposal on behalf of 
and to bind the principals who I represent, to all the requirements of the City of Brea’s Terms and Conditions, 
Specifications, Scope or Work, any attachments, exhibits, amendments; and I offer and agree to those 
requirements at the prices set forth in the Proposal Form.  
Further, I understand that no contract exists unless City accepts this Proposal by executing the attached 
Agreement.  

Business Name: ___________________________________________ 
Business Address: ___________________________________________ 

         Federal ID#: ___________________________________________ 
 

If any Work is a Public Works        Proposer Lic#: _________      DIR#: _________ 
            Business Type: ______ 1. Individual/Sole Proprietor or Single-Member LLC; 2. C Corporation;                                  

(Proposer enter a number)                        3. Corporation; 4. Partnership; 5. Trust/Estate; 6. Limited Liability Co. 

 By: _______________________________   By: _______________________________  

 Name:     Name:   

                Title:                   Title:  

  Email:                      Email:  

Date Signed: ________________________      Date Signed: ________________________  
                  CORPs: Chairperson, President, Vice President               CORPs: Secretary, Assist. Secretary, Chief Finance  
                    LLCs Manager                                                       Officer, Assist. Treasurer 

LLCs: Manager  
[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 313, both signature lines must be executed unless the signatory 
holds at least one of the offices designated on each line.]  

[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 17703.01(d), for limited liability companies, both signature lines 
must be executed unless the articles of incorporation state that the firm is managed by only one manager.]  

  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

2025.05.02.01 

 

 
STANDARD FORM I 

PRICE FORM  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Separate and describe your tasks, and associated costs, for the Scope of Services requirements.  
Attach additional pages if necessary.  

Please note that pricing Must Be All-Inclusive.  EACH PROPOSAL MUST BE INCLUSIVE 
OF ALL COSTS TO PERFORM THE REQUIRED SERVICES.  Any and all costs of labor, 
transportation, materials, software, equipment, proprietary licenses, and any and all other fees, 
costs, taxes, insurance, and expenses necessary to comply with the requirements of this RFP and 
to provide the Services, must be included in the proposal price. 

 
 

Additional comments/remarks:  

_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 



 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Sales, Property, Business License, and Other Tax and Reporting  

 

 

PART III   
     AGREEMENT &   

SCOPE OF SERVICES 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated {AgreementDate} for reference 
purposes and is executed by the City of Brea, a California municipal corporation (“City”), and 
{Consultant Name} a {Legal Status} (“Consultant”).  

RECITALS 
A. City desires to retain Consultant as an independent Consultant to provide the following
professional services: As-Needed Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire
Services.

B. Consultant represents that it is duly licensed, fully authorized by law, and has the
necessary experience and qualifications, to provide such services.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Scope of Services.

Consultant shall perform the services referenced in the Recitals, as required by the RFP
dated ____________ and more specifically described in the Scope of Services set forth in the 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and as otherwise required by this Agreement, all to City’s 
satisfaction (collectively, “Services”).  

2. Compensation.

A. City shall pay for the Services satisfactorily performed, in accordance with
the Fee Schedule set forth in the attached Attachment 1 to Exhibit A
hereto.

B. In no event shall the total amount paid for the Services over the term of this
Agreement exceed the all-inclusive sum of $ {ContractAmount} (“Contract
Amount”). This amount covers and is inclusive of all labor, materials, and
any and all other costs incurred by Consultant in performing the Services.
Consultant shall be deemed to have made all inquiries and site inspections
deemed necessary by Consultant prior to execution of this Agreement.

C. Unless the Fee Schedule calls for payment of a one-time flat fee, periodic
payments for undisputed work shall be made within 30 days of receipt of an
invoice which includes a detailed description of the work performed.
Consultant’s invoices shall indicate the amount of time spent on each task
and the applicable rate.

D. Unless the Fee Schedule calls for payment on a different schedule,
Consultant shall invoice City on a monthly basis.

3. Contingency Work.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

The parties may agree on contingency work to be provided as part of the Services. A 
written amendment to this Agreement shall be executed for contingency work that increases the 
Contract  

Amount by more than {Contingency Percent} percent. The City Manager, or designee, is 
authorized to approve, in writing, contingency work that is below the foregoing limit.  
Consultant’s monthly invoice shall include a detailed description of any approved, contingency 
work. Any work performed by Consultant without a written amendment or approval of the City 
Manager, or designee, shall be deemed to be work included within the Services.  

4. Term.

The term of this Agreement shall commence on {TermStartDate} (“Effective Date”).
Unless extended or earlier terminated as provided herein, this Agreement has a one-year term 
with an option to extend for four additional one-year term at the City’s discretion.  

5. Time of Performance.

A. Consultant shall complete the Services within the term of this Agreement,
and shall meet any other established and agreed upon schedules and
deadlines agreed upon in writing. Consultant shall commence performance
within two business days of receiving City’s written notice to proceed.

B. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be considered in default of this
Agreement for delays in performance caused by a force majeure event. As
used in this Agreement, the term “force majeure event” means
circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the non-performing party
and includes the following: abnormal weather conditions; floods;
earthquakes; fire; epidemics; war; riots and other civil disturbances; strikes,
lockouts, work slowdowns, and other labor disturbances; sabotage; or
judicial restraint. Consultant’s lack of financial capability, shall not
constitute a force majeure event unless directly attributable to any of the
foregoing events.

C. Should a force majeure event occur, the non-performing party shall, within
a reasonable time of being prevented from performing, give written notice
to the other party describing the circumstances preventing continued
performance and the efforts being made to resume performance of this
Agreement.

6. Maintenance of Records.

Books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the
Services, including costs incurred, shall be maintained by Consultant and made available
for review by City at all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement and for four
(4) years from the date of final payment by City.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  

 

7. Standard of Care. 

Consultant’s Services shall be performed in accordance with the generally accepted 
professional standards of practice and principles and in a manner consistent with the level 
of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently performing 
similar services under similar conditions. Consultant shall maintain all professional 
licenses and certifications required to lawfully perform the Services.  

 
8. Compliance with Law. 

A. Consultant shall comply with all applicable laws including Cal/OSHA 
requirements. 

B. Consultant shall obtain a City of Brea business license. 
C. Consultant shall comply with all {AdditionalLegalRequirements}. 

9. Assignment and Subcontracting. 

A. Consultant shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or 
obligations under, or any interest in this Agreement, or subcontract any 
required performance hereunder, without the prior written consent of City, 
which may be withheld for any reason. City shall be deemed to have 
approved Consultant’s utilization of subConsultants identified in 
Consultant’s proposal for the Services.  

B. Any attempt to so assign, transfer, or subcontract without City’s prior written 
consent shall be void and shall constitute grounds for City’s termination of 
this Agreement. Authorized subcontracts shall contain a provision making 
the subConsultant subject to all requirements of this Agreement.  

C. If use of a subConsultant is approved, then City may withhold 5% of each 
monthly payment to Consultant. Such retention shall be released upon City’s 
receipt of an unconditional release of all claims signed by any such 
subConsultant, as to work performed to date.  

10. Independent Consultant. 

A. Consultant is retained as an independent Consultant and is not an employee 
of City. No employee or agent of Consultant is or shall become an employee 
of City.  

B. Consultant will determine the means, methods, and details by which 
Consultant’s personnel will perform the Services. Consultant shall be solely 
responsible for the satisfactory work performance of all personnel engaged in 
performing the Services and compliance with the customary professional 
standards.  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  

 

C. Consultant’s personnel shall not wear or display any City uniform, badge, 
identification number, or other information identifying such individual as an 
employee of City. Consultant’s personnel shall not use any City e-mail 
address or City telephone number in the performance of the Services. 
Consultant shall acquire and maintain at its sole cost and expense such 
vehicles, equipment and supplies as Consultant’s personnel require to 
perform the Services. Consultant shall perform the Services off of City 
premises at locations of Consultant’s choice, except as otherwise may from 
time to time be necessary in order for Consultant’s personnel to receive 
projects from City, review plans on file at City, pick up or deliver any work 
product, or as may be necessary to inspect or visit City locations. City may 
make a computer available to Consultant from time to time for Consultant’s 
personnel to obtain information about or to check on the status of projects 
pertaining to the Services.  

D. Consultant shall be responsible for and pay all wages, salaries, benefits and 
other amounts due to Consultant’s personnel in connection with the Services. 
Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 
additional personnel, including Social Security taxes, other retirement or 
pension benefits, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, 
disability insurance, and workers' compensation insurance. Consultant and its 
officers, employees, agents, and subConsultants shall not become entitled to, 
and hereby waive any claims to, any wages, salaries, compensation, benefit 
or any incident of employment by City, including eligibility to enroll in, or 
reinstate to membership in, the California Public Employees Retirement 
System (“PERS”) or any other retirement program, as an employee of City, 
and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by City for employer 
contributions or employee contributions for PERS benefits or any other 
retirement benefits.  

 
11. CalPERS Compliance. 

The parties acknowledge that City is a local agency member of CalPERS, and as such has 
certain pension reporting and contribution obligations to CalPERS on behalf of 
qualifying employees. Consultant agrees that, in providing its employees and any other 
personnel to City to perform the Services, Consultant shall assure compliance with the 
Public Employees’ Retirement Law (Government Code Section 20000 et seq.), the 
regulations of CalPERS, and the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 
(Government Code Section 7522 et seq.). Without limitation to the foregoing, Consultant 
shall assure compliance with regard to personnel who have active or inactive membership 
in CalPERS and to those who are retired annuitants and in performing this Agreement 
shall not assign or utilize any of its personnel in a manner that will cause City to be in 
violation of the applicable retirement laws and regulations.  

12. Insurance. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  

 

Unless otherwise permitted or waived in writing by City’s Risk Manager, Consultant 
shall not commence work until it has secured all insurance required under this section and 
provided evidence thereof that is acceptable to City. In addition, Consultant shall not 
allow any subConsultant to commence work on any subcontract until it has secured all 
insurance required under this section.  

A. Commercial General Liability 

i. Consultant shall take out and maintain, in amounts not less than specified 
            herein, Commercial General Liability Insurance, in a form and with 

insurance companies acceptable to City.  

ii. Coverage for Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as 
broad as the following:  

a.         Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability   
coverage (Occurrence Form CG 00 01) or exact equivalent.  

iii. Commercial General Liability Insurance must include coverage for the 
following: 

a. Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
b. Personal Injury/Advertising Injury 
c. Premises/Operations Liability 
d. Products/Completed Operations Liability 
e. Aggregate Limits that Apply per Project 
f. Contractual Liability with respect to this Agreement 
g. Broad Form Property Damage 
h. Independent Consultants Coverage 

iv. The policy shall contain no endorsements or provisions limiting coverage 
for (1) contractual liability; (2) cross liability exclusion for claims or suits 
by one insured against another; (3) products/completed operations liability; 
or (4) contain any other exclusion contrary to this Agreement.  

v. The policy shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, 
employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as 
independent Consultants in the role of City officials, as additional insureds 
using ISO endorsement forms CG 20 10 10 01 and 20 37 10 01, or 
endorsements providing the exact same coverage.  

vi. The general liability coverage may utilize deductibles or provide coverage 
excess of a self-insured retention, only if approved by City’s Risk 
Manager in writing, and further provided that such deductibles shall not 
apply to coverage of the additional insureds.  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  

 

B. Automobile Liability 

i. Consultant shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injury 
and property damage including coverage for owned, non-owned and hired 
vehicles, in a form and with insurance companies acceptable to City.  

ii. Coverage for automobile liability insurance shall be at least as broad as 
Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering automobile 
liability (Coverage Symbol 1, any auto).  

iii. The policy shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, 
employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as 
independent Consultants in the role of City officials, as additional 
insureds.  

iv. Subject to City’s written approval, the automobile liability coverage may 
utilize deductibles or provide coverage excess of a self-insured retention, 
provided that such deductibles shall not apply to coverage of the 
additional insureds.  

C. Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability 

i. Consultant certifies that Consultant is aware of the provisions of Labor 
Code Section 3700 which requires every employer to be insured against 
liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in 
accordance with the provisions of that code, and he/she/it will comply 
with such provisions before commencing work under this Agreement.  

 
ii. Consultant shall maintain full compensation insurance for its employees in 

accordance with the Workers’ Compensation and Insurance Act (Labor 
Code Section 3200 et seq.) and Employer’s Liability Coverage in amounts 
indicated herein. Consultant shall require all subConsultants to obtain and 
maintain workers’ compensation coverage of the same type and limits as 
specified in this section.  

D. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) 

Consultant shall maintain professional liability or errors and omissions insurance 
appropriate to its profession, in a form and with insurance companies acceptable to City and with 
the limits required herein. This insurance shall be endorsed to include contractual liability 
applicable to this Agreement and shall be written on a policy coverage form specifically designed 
to protect against acts, errors or omissions of Consultant in the performance of professional 
services. “Covered Professional Services” as designated in the policy must specifically include 
work performed under this Agreement. The policy must “pay on behalf of” the insured and must 
include a provision establishing the insurer's duty to defend.  

E. Cyber Liability 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  

 

If Cyber Liability is included in the Minimum Policy Limits Required below, then  
Consultant shall maintain cyber liability insurance providing protection against claims and 
liabilities arising from: (i) errors and omissions in connection with maintaining security of City 
Data (as defined below); (ii) data breach including theft, destruction, and/or unauthorized use of 
City Data; (iii) identity theft including bank charges assessed; and (iv) violation of privacy rights 
due to a breach of City Data.  

F. Minimum Policy Limits Required 
i. A.M. Best's Rating 

Each policy of insurance required herein shall be from a company or companies   
having a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII and admitted and authorized to transact 
the business of insurance in the State of California.  

ii. The following insurance limits are required for this Agreement: 

If ☒, then required Combined Single Limit  
☒Commercial General Liability  $1,000,000 per occurrence/ $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily 

injury, personal injury, and property damage  

☒Automobile Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence (any auto) for bodily injury and 
property damage  

☒Workers’ Compensation In the amount required by California law  

☒Employer’s Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence  

☒Professional Liability $2,000,000 per claim and aggregate (errors and omissions)  

☒Cyber Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence  

iii. Defense costs shall be payable in addition to the limits. 

iv. Requirements of specific coverage or limits contained in this section are 
not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits, or other requirement, or a 
waiver of any coverage normally provided by any insurance. Any 
available coverage shall be provided to the parties required to be named as 
additional insured pursuant to this Agreement.  

G. Proof of Insurance 

Within five days of execution of this Agreement, but prior to 
commencement of the Services, Consultant shall file with City evidence of 
insurance from an insurer or insurers certifying to the coverage of all 
insurance required herein. Such evidence shall include original copies of the 
ISO CG 00 01 (or insurer’s equivalent) signed by the insurer’s representative 
and Certificate of Insurance (Acord Form 25-S or equivalent), together with 
required endorsements. All evidence of insurance shall be signed by a 
properly authorized officer, agent, or qualified representative of the insurer 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  

 

and shall certify the names of the insured, any additional insureds, where 
appropriate, the type and amount of the insurance, the location and operations 
to which the insurance applies, and the expiration date of such insurance.  

H. Policy Provisions Required 

i. Consultant shall provide City at least 30 days prior written notice of 
cancellation of any policy required by this Agreement, except that 
Consultant shall provide at least 10 days prior written notice of 
cancellation of any such policy due to non-payment of premium. If any of 
the required coverage is cancelled or expires during the term of this 
Agreement, Consultant shall deliver renewal certificate(s) including the 
required additional insured endorsement to City at least 10 days prior to 
the effective date of cancellation or expiration.  

ii. The Commercial General Liability Policy and Automobile Liability 
Policy 
shall each contain a provision stating that Consultant’s policy is primary 
insurance and that any insurance, self-insurance or other coverage 
maintained by City or any additional insureds shall not be called upon to 
contribute to any loss.  

iii. The retroactive date (if any) of each policy is to be no later than the 
effective date of this Agreement. If a “claims-made” professional liability 
policy is provided, it shall include an extended reporting period of not 
less than three years.  

iv. All required insurance coverages, except for the professional and cyber 
liability coverage, shall contain or be endorsed to provide a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of City, its officials, officers, employees, agents, 
servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as independent 
Consultants in the role of City officials, or shall specifically allow 
Consultant or others providing insurance evidence in compliance with 
these specifications to waive their right of recovery prior to a loss. 
Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery against City, and shall 
require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each 
of its subConsultants.  

v. The limits set forth herein shall apply separately to each insured against 
whom claims are made or suits are brought, except with respect to the 
limits of liability. Further the limits set forth herein shall not be construed 
to relieve Consultant from liability in excess of such coverage, nor shall it 
limit Consultant’s indemnification obligations to City or preclude City 
from taking such other actions available to City under other provisions of 
this Agreement or law.  

I. Additional Insurance Provisions 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  

 

i. The foregoing requirements as to the types and limits of insurance 
coverage to be maintained by Consultant, and any approval of such 
insurance by City, are not intended to and shall not in any manner limit or 
qualify the liabilities and obligations otherwise assumed by Consultant 
pursuant to this Agreement, including the provisions concerning 
indemnification.  

ii. If at any time during the term of this Agreement, any policy of insurance 
required under this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or 
is canceled and not replaced, City has the right but not the duty to obtain 
the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid by City will be 
promptly reimbursed by Consultant or City will withhold amounts 
sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. In the alternative, 
City may terminate this Agreement for cause.  

iii. City may require Consultant to provide for inspection by City, complete 
copies of all insurance policies in effect for the duration of the Agreement.  

iv. No City official, officer, employee, agent or volunteer shall be personally 
responsible for any liability arising under or by virtue of this Agreement.  

v. The insurance obligations under this Agreement shall be: (1) all the 
insurance coverage and/or limits carried by or available to Consultant; or 
(2) the minimum insurance coverage requirements and/or limits shown in 
this Agreement; whichever is greater. Any insurance proceeds in excess of 
or broader than the minimum required coverage and/or minimum required 
limits, which are applicable to a given loss, shall be available to City. No 
representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this 
Agreement are sufficient to cover the obligations of Consultant under this 
Agreement.  

J. SubConsultant Insurance Requirements 

Consultant shall not allow any subConsultant to commence work on any 
subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to City that it has secured all 
insurance required under this section. Policies of commercial general liability insurance 
provided by such subConsultants shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, 
employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as independent 
Consultants in the role of City officials as additional insureds, using ISO form CG 20 38 
04 13 or an endorsement providing the same coverage. If requested by Consultant, City 
may approve different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular 
subConsultants.  

13. Indemnification. 

A. Other than in the performance of professional services, and to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend (with counsel reasonably 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  

 

approved by City), indemnify and hold City, its officials, officers, attorneys, 
agents, employees, servants, designated volunteers, successors, assigns and 
those City agents serving as independent Consultants in the role of City 
officials (collectively “Indemnitees”) free and harmless with respect to any 
and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liabilities, losses, 
damages, stop notices and/or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to property 
or persons, including bodily injury, wrongful death, personal injury and 
property damage, and destruction, or unauthorized access to, use, and/or theft 
of City Data (collectively, “Claims”) in any manner and to the extent arising 
out of, pertaining to, or incidental to any act, error, omission, or willful 
misconduct of Consultant, its owners, officials, officers, employees, servants, 
subConsultants, consultants or agents (and/or any entity or individual for 
whom Consultant shall bear legal liability) in connection with the 
performance of the Services including the payment of all damages, expert 
witness fees and attorney’s fees and other related costs and expenses actually 
incurred in connection with such defense. Consultant's obligation to 
indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by 
Consultant, or by City or any of the other Indemnitees. Consultant shall have 
no liability hereunder for claims and liabilities arising out of the sole, active 
negligence of any of the Indemnitees.  

B. Professional Services. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall, 
at its sole cost and expense, protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify the 
Indemnitees, from and against any and all Claims, whether actual, alleged or 
threatened, to the extent arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to, in whole or 
in part, the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of Consultant, 
and/or its officers, agents, servants, employees, subConsultants, Consultants 
or their officers, agents, servants or employees (and/or any entity or individual 
for whom Consultant shall bear legal liability) in the performance of 
professional services under this Agreement. Consultant shall defend the 
Indemnitees in any action or actions filed in connection with any Claims with 
counsel of the Indemnitees’ choice, and shall pay all costs and expenses, 
including all attorneys’ fees and experts’ costs, actually incurred in connection 
with such defense.  

C. Consultant’s obligations under this Section shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement.  

14. Laws and Venue. 

This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California 
without regard for change of venue laws. If any action is brought to interpret or enforce 
any term of this Agreement, the action shall be brought in a state or federal court situated 
in the County of Orange, State of California. Consultant must comply with the claim 
procedures set forth in the Government Claims act (Government Code Section 810 et 
seq.) prior to filing any lawsuit against City.  
 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  

 

15. Termination. 

A. City may terminate any portion or all of the Services or this Agreement with or 
without cause by giving 10 days’ written notice to Consultant. In such event, City 
shall be immediately given title to and possession of all Work Product (as 
defined) below and original field notes, drawings and specifications, written 
reports and all other documents produced or developed pursuant to this 
Agreement. Provided Consultant is not then in breach, City shall pay Consultant 
for any portion of the Services satisfactorily completed prior to termination. If 
termination occurs prior to completion of any specific task for which a payment 
request has not been received, the charge for Services performed shall be the 
reasonable value of such Services, based on an amount agreed to by the parties. 
City shall not be liable for any costs other than the charges or portions thereof 
which are specified herein. Consultant shall not be entitled to payment for 
unperformed Services, and shall not be entitled to damages or compensation 
resulting from such termination.  

B. Consultant may terminate this Agreement only for cause and by serving written 
notice of termination to City, provided Consultant has first served City with a 
written notice of default and demand to cure, and City has failed to cure such 
default within 30 days of receipt of such notice.  

16. Ownership of Work Product. 

A. All draft and final reports, documents, and other written material, and any and all 
images, ideas, concepts, designs including website designs, source code, object 
code, electronic data and files, and/or other media whatsoever created or 
developed by Consultant in the performance of this Agreement (collectively, 
“Work Product”) shall be considered to be “works made for hire” for the benefit 
of City. All Work Product and any and all intellectual property rights arising from 
their creation, including all copyrights and other proprietary rights, shall be and 
remain the property of City without restriction or limitation upon their use, 
duplication or dissemination by City upon final payment being made, provided 
that any such use shall be at City’s sole risk. Consultant shall not obtain or 
attempt to obtain copyright protection as to any of the Work Product. Consultant 
agrees that the compensation set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement includes 
conveyance to City of ownership of all Work Product, including intellectual 
property rights, as provided in this Section 16.  

B. Consultant hereby assigns to City all rights of ownership to the Work Product, 
including any and all related intellectual property and proprietary rights, that are 
not otherwise vested in City pursuant to subsection A above.  

C. Consultant warrants and represents that it has secured all necessary licenses, 
consents or approvals necessary to the production of the Work Product, and that 
upon final payment or Consultant’s default, City shall have full legal title to the 
Work Product, and full legal authority and the right to use and reproduce the 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  

 

Work Product for any purpose. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold City, 
and the other Indemnitees harmless from any and all losses, claims or liabilities in 
any way related to a claim that City’s use of any of the Work Product violates 
federal, state or local laws, or any contractual provisions, or any rights or laws 
relating to trade names, licenses, franchises, copyrights, patents or other means of 
protecting intellectual property rights and/or interests in products, ideas or 
inventions. Consultant shall bear all costs arising from the use of patented, 
copyrighted, trade secret or trademarked documents, materials, equipment, 
devices or processes in connection with its provision of the Work Product 
produced under this Agreement. In the event the use of any of the Work Product 
or other deliverables hereunder by City is held to constitute an infringement and 
the use of any of the same is enjoined, Consultant, at its expense, shall: (a) secure 
for City the right to continue using the Work Product and other deliverables by 
suspension of any injunction, or by procuring a license or licenses for City; or (b) 
modify the Work Product and other deliverables so that they become non-
infringing while remaining in compliance with the requirements of this 
Agreement. Consultant’s obligations under this Section shall survive the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement.  

17. Data Security. 

A.  As used in this Agreement, “City Data” means any and all information and data 
provided or made accessible, directly or indirectly, to Consultant by City, or 
otherwise acquired from City, in connection with Consultant’s performance of the 
Services. Except where subject to a third party’s intellectual property rights, any 
and all City Data is solely owned by City. Consultant is granted a limited, non-
exclusive, and revocable license to use City Data solely as necessary to perform 
the Services. At no time shall Consultant use City Data for its own purposes, or 
sell, disclose or disseminate City Data, except as required by law or to provide the 
Services. At all times herein, Consultant shall protect and maintain the security of 
City Data using methods providing not less than the level of security Consultant 
uses for its own confidential data, and that otherwise comply with recognized 
industry data security standards applicable to similar kinds of governmental data 
and information.  

B. To the extent any City Data consists of personal information as defined in 
Consumer Privacy Act (Civil Code Section 1798.100 et seq.), Consultant shall 
comply with that statute and with Civil Code Section 1798.80, et seq., including 
providing the required notifications in the event of any unauthorized access of 
personal information stored, maintained, accessed, used or transmitted by 
Consultant in connection with this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
Consultant shall within 24 hours notify the City Representative by telephone and 
in writing of any unauthorized access of City Data. Thereafter, Consultant shall 
render any assistance to City and law enforcement as necessary to ascertain the 
nature and extent of such unauthorized access.  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  

 

C. Consultant shall not store City Data using cloud-based storage without City’s 
prior, written consent, unless the use of such storage is clearly described in the 
Scope of Services. Where permitted herein, any and all cloud-based storage shall 
be on servers and other hardware located within the continental United States, 
and shall be in compliance with ISO/IEC 27001 - 27018, as applicable, unless 
otherwise agreed to in writing by the City Representative.  

18. Party Representatives. 

A. Consultant hereby designates {ConsultantRepName}, or such person’s 
designee, as Consultant’s Representative for this Agreement, unless and until 
written notice of a new representative acceptable to City is provided to City.  

B. City hereby designates {CityRepName} or such person’s designee, as the 
City Representative for this Agreement.  

C. The foregoing representatives shall be authorized to provide consent where 
required herein, and to make other administrative decisions that will be 
binding on their respective party, except as otherwise specifically required 
herein.  

19. Notices. 

Any notices, invoices, or other documents related to this Agreement shall be deemed 
received on: (a) the day of delivery, if delivered by hand during the receiving party’s regular 
business hours or by e-mail before or during the receiving party’s regular business hours; (b) the 
business day after delivery, if delivered by e-mail after the receiving party’s regular business 
hours; or (c) on the second business day following deposit in the United States mail, certified 
mail with return receipt requested and postage prepaid, to the addresses listed below, or to such 
other addresses as the parties may, from time to time, designate in writing.  

City  Consultant  
City of Brea  {ConsultantFullName}  

1 Civic Center Circle  {ConPMStreetAddress}  

Brea, CA 92821  {ConPMcity}, {ConPMstate} {ConPMzip}  

United States  {ConPMCountry}  

{CityPMName}  {ConPMName}  
{CityPMEmail}  {ConPMEmail}  
{CityPMPhone}  {ConPMPhone}  

20. Third Party Rights. 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to anyone 
other than City and Consultant.  

 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  

 

21. Conflicts of Interest. 

A. Consultant covenants that it presently has no interest, and shall not acquire 
any interest, direct or indirect, financial or otherwise, which would conflict in 
any manner or degree with the performance of the Services. Consultant 
certifies that no one who has or will have any financial interest under this 
Agreement is an officer or employee of City.  

B. Consultant further covenants that, in the performance of this Agreement, no 
subConsultant or person having any interest, direct or indirect, financial or 
otherwise, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 
performance of the Services shall be employed. Consultant has provided City 
with a list of all City-approved subConsultants and the key personnel for such 
subConsultants that are retained or to be retained by Consultant in connection 
with the performance of the Services, to assist City in affirming compliance 
with this Section.  

C. Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not employed nor retained any 
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for 
Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement. Further, Consultant warrants 
that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than 
a bona fide employee working solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, 
percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or 
resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. If required, Consultant 
further agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subConsultants to file, a 
Statement of Economic Interest with the City Clerk as required under state 
law in the performance of the Services. For breach or violation of this 
warranty, City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without 
liability. No director, official, officer or employee of City, during the term of 
his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, 
or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom.  

22. Severability. 

The unenforceability, invalidity or illegality of any provision(s) of this Agreement shall 
not render the provisions unenforceable, invalid or illegal.  

23. Successors and Assigns. 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors in 
interest, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties.  

24. Non-Waiver. 

None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be considered waived by either party, 
unless such waiver is specified in writing, and any such waiver shall be limited to that set 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  

 

of circumstances and not to any future circumstances unless another written waiver is 
executed.  

25. Time of Essence. 

Time is of the essence in each and every provision of this Agreement. 

26. City’s Right to Employ Other Consultants. 

City reserves its right to employ other Consultants to provide the Services or similar 
services.  

27. Exhibits. 

The attached {ExhibitsAttached} are incorporated herein by reference. In the event of 
any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and any Exhibit, 
the provisions of this Agreement shall govern. In the event of any conflict or 
inconsistency between the provisions of this Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements and the Consultant’s Proposal set forth in the attached Attachment 1 to 
Exhibit A, the provisions of the Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements 
shall govern.  

28. Entire Agreement. 

This Agreement (including the attached Exhibits) represents the entire understanding of 
the parties as to the Services, and supersedes and cancels any prior or contemporaneous 
oral or written understanding, promises or representations with respect to those matters. 
Each party acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises or agreements 
have been made by any person which are not incorporated herein, and that any other 
agreements shall be void. This Agreement may not be modified or altered except in 
writing signed by both parties. This is an integrated Agreement.  

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]  
  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  

 

TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT, the Parties have caused their authorized representatives 
to sign below. Digital Signatures are acceptable if they conform to all requirements of California 
Government Code Section 16.5.  

{Consultant Full Name} 
By: __________________________   By: __________________________  

{ConSigner1Name} {ConSigner2Name}  
{ConSigner1Title} {ConSigner2Title}  
{ConSigner1Email} {ConSigner2Email}  

Date Signed: _______________  Date Signed: _______________  
CORPs: Chairperson, President, Vice President;  CORPs: Secretary, Asst. Secretary, Chief Finance  
LLCs:  Manager  Officer,  Asst.  Treasurer 

LLCs: Manager  
[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 313, both signature lines must be executed unless the signatory 
holds at least one of the offices designated on each line.]  

[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 17703.01(d), both signature lines must be executed unless the 
articles of incorporation state that the firm is managed by only one manager.]  
City of Brea  Attest (if over $25,000)  
By: __________________________   By: __________________________  

{CitySignerName} {AttestName}  
{CitySignerTitle} {AttestTitle}  
{CitySignerEmail} {AttestEmail}  

Date Signed: _______________  Date Signed: _______________  
 

  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  

 

 
EXHIBIT A  

 
I. Introduction. 
 

The City of Brea is seeking proposals for qualified consultants to: 
 

• Provide as-needed Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for candidates 
for sworn and non-sworn employment with the Brea Fire Department.  The anticipated 
average number of annual backgrounds is four (4) Firefighters and ten (10) non-sworn 
Ambulance Operators.  

This request for proposal does not obligate the City of Brea to award a contract or complete the 
project, and the City reserves the right to cancel the solicitation if is considered to be in its best 
interest.  The City reserves the right to award more than one contract for the services specified 
herein in order to ensure the continuing ability to obtain timely and accurate background 
investigations of candidates for employment.  The proposed agreement is for a one-year term 
with an option to extend for four additional one-year term at the City’s discretion. 

  
II.  Scope of Work.    
 
The successful Proposer shall:  

• Provide investigative services in a professional manner in compliance with all 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, as well as in a workmanlike manner according 
to the standards and ethics in the industry as established by the California Secretary of 
State, Department of Consumer Affairs, Bureau of Investigative Services Furnish 
everything necessary to provide the Services. 

 
Backgrounds shall include a detailed narrative report (“the narrative”) summarizing all findings 
and reports of each applicant’s background and eligibility based on Brea Fire Department 
hiring. The following areas, at minimum, should be both addressed in the narrative and 
supported by documentation included within the background file. 

• Verification of Qualification for Firefighter Appointment (for candidates for sworn 
employment). 

• A review of the candidate’s personal history statement. 
• Criminal history that advises of felony and/or misdemeanor convictions, including 

fingerprint returns, demonstrating the results of a Department of Justice and Federal 
Bureau of Investigation fingerprint check for criminal history (City of Brea HR) Motor 
vehicle driving history (all states in which applicant held an operators/driver’s license), 
including a copy of the applicant’s driver’s license and vehicle registration, and proof 
of motor vehicle insurance. 

• Inquiries with all local law enforcement departments where the candidate has lived, 
worked, attended school, or frequently visited. 

• Financial information, including monthly income/expenses, bankruptcy (if applicable). 
• Education background and verification, including copies of official transcripts, 

diplomas and accreditation verification from high school or equivalent and all colleges 
and universities attended. 

• Employment eligibility and age verification, including copies of any document 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

accepted for proof of employment eligibility, or other official documentation (e.g., birth 
certificate, driver license), verifying date of birth Military verification and Selective 
Service registrations, as applicable, including dates of service, branch of military, rank 
and discharge status, etc. Copies of DD214 Long Form, Selective Service Registration, 
or documentation for willful failure to register must be included as applicable.  

• Proof of marital status, including marriage certificate(s) and all final court-issued
dissolution documents or legal separation decrees, as applicable.

• Employment verification and history of at least ten years’, supported by
comments/questionnaires completed by Human Resources, supervisors, and coworkers,
as well as evaluations.

• Verification and contacts with the applicant’s personal/family references (including any
former spouses), any secondary references provided by primary contacts, and additional
secondary references as identified by the investigator, supported by
comments/questionnaires.

• A thorough search of the candidate’s social media for suitability of employment and for
bias-relevant information, including hate group affiliation and/or activities.
(Verification and contacts with the applicant’s current and/or former neighbors,
supported by comments/questionnaires.

• Verification of applications to other  fire agencies, including an examination of the
status/dispositions of said applications and review of any relevant background
documentation contained by those law enforcement agencies.

• Drug and/or substance use history.
• Neighborhood and rent check, including contacts with the applicant’s neighbors.
• Polygraph examination. (Proposer does not administer the polygraph examination, but

will provide a statement regarding the results of the examination).
• Civil suits and legal judgments concerning the applicant (Federal, State and current

County of residence).
• Social Security Number (SSN) - Trace & Address Locator verification to determine

name and name variations used by the individual such as maiden, divorced or previous
names, other names associated with that SSN, current and former addresses associated
with that SSN, and date of birth.

• Photographs of the applicant’s home, vehicle, and any and all tattoos located in non-
sensitive/non-private areas of the

As a prerequisite for submitting a proposal, Proposers shall possess the following minimum 
qualifications or abilities: 

• Proper training and licensing as required by law, and prior experience conducting
background investigations for  fire agencies. References from all  fire agencies for
whom Proposer has performed background investigation services for in the past two
years (up to a maximum of three) shall be incorporated into proposal.

• The ability to provide summary invoicing, which is supported by detailed cost
descriptions of individual background investigations.

• Performance of background investigations in accordance with all applicable Federal,
State and County policies, rules, regulations, laws and codes, including without
limitation, the Federal Fair Credit Reporting Act (15 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.) and the
California Investigative Consumer Reporting Agencies Act (Civil Code § 1786 et seq.).

• The ability to keep itself fully informed of, and shall observe and comply with, all
relevant laws, ordinances and regulations which in any manner affect those engaged or



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

employed on any work, the collection of data and information, or in any way affect the 
performance of any work under the contract, and of all orders and decrees of agencies 
having any jurisdiction or authority over work performed under the contract. 

• Availability to assist the City should legal action result from the background
investigations performed by the successful Proposer.

     Written acknowledgement that information shall not be released to any candidate regarding 
their pre-employment background investigation without the express written consent of 
the Brea Fire Department. 

The final scope of work will be negotiated with the selected Consultant(s). 

End of this Exhibit 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services  

 

Attachment 1 to Exhibit A  
CONSULTANT’S PROPOSAL AND FEE SCHEDULE  

(attached)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
As-Needed Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services 

for Fire Services 

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated June 17, 2025 for reference purposes 
and is executed by the City of Brea, a California municipal corporation (“City”), and 
JL Group an LLC (“Consultant”). 

RECITALS 
A. City desires to retain Consultant as an independent Consultant to provide the following
professional services: As-Needed Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for
Fire Services.

B. Consultant represents that it is duly licensed, fully authorized by law, and has the
necessary experience and qualifications, to provide such services.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Scope of Services.

Consultant shall perform the services referenced in the Recitals, as required by the RFP
No. 2025.05.02.01 and more specifically described in the Scope of Services set forth in the 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and as otherwise required by this Agreement, all to City’s 
satisfaction (collectively, “Services”). 

2. Compensation.

A. City shall pay for the Services satisfactorily performed, in accordance with
the Fee Schedule set forth in the attached Attachment 1 to Exhibit A
hereto.

B. In no event shall the total amount paid for the Services over the term of this
Agreement exceed the all-inclusive sum of $ 30,000.00 (“Contract
Amount”). This amount covers and is inclusive of all labor, materials, and
any and all other costs incurred by Consultant in performing the Services.
Consultant shall be deemed to have made all inquiries and site inspections
deemed necessary by Consultant prior to execution of this Agreement.

C. Unless the Fee Schedule calls for payment of a one-time flat fee, periodic
payments for undisputed work shall be made within 30 days of receipt of an
invoice which includes a detailed description of the work performed.
Consultant’s invoices shall indicate the amount of time spent on each task
and the applicable rate.

D. Unless the Fee Schedule calls for payment on a different schedule,
Consultant shall invoice City on a monthly basis.

3. Contingency Work.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

This Agreement does not include any contingency or additional work.  Any additional 
work performed by Consultant without a written amendment or approval of the City shall be 
deemed to be work included within the Services. 

 
4. Term. 

The term of this Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2025 (“Effective Date”). Unless 
extended or earlier terminated as provided herein, this Agreement shall expire on June 30, 2028. 

 
5. Time of Performance. 

 
A. Consultant shall complete the Services within the term of this Agreement, 

and shall meet any other established and agreed upon schedules and 
deadlines agreed upon in writing. Consultant shall commence performance 
within two business days of receiving City’s written notice to proceed. 

 
B. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be considered in default of this 

Agreement for delays in performance caused by a force majeure event. As 
used in this Agreement, the term “force majeure event” means 
circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the non-performing party 
and includes the following: abnormal weather conditions; floods; 
earthquakes; fire; epidemics; war; riots and other civil disturbances; strikes, 
lockouts, work slowdowns, and other labor disturbances; sabotage; or 
judicial restraint. Consultant’s lack of financial capability, shall not 
constitute a force majeure event unless directly attributable to any of the 
foregoing events. 

 
C. Should a force majeure event occur, the non-performing party shall, within 

a reasonable time of being prevented from performing, give written notice 
to the other party describing the circumstances preventing continued 
performance and the efforts being made to resume performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
6. Maintenance of Records. 

 
Books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the 
Services, including costs incurred, shall be maintained by Consultant and made available 
for review by City at all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement and for four 
(4) years from the date of final payment by City. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

7. Standard of Care. 
 

Consultant’s Services shall be performed in accordance with the generally accepted 
professional standards of practice and principles and in a manner consistent with the level 
of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently performing 
similar services under similar conditions. Consultant shall maintain all professional 
licenses and certifications required to lawfully perform the Services. 

 
 

8. Compliance with Law. 
A. Consultant shall comply with all applicable laws including Cal/OSHA 

requirements. 
B. Consultant shall obtain a City of Brea business license. 
C. Consultant shall comply with all other legal requirements. 

 
9. Assignment and Subcontracting. 

 
A. Consultant shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or 

obligations under, or any interest in this Agreement, or subcontract any 
required performance hereunder, without the prior written consent of City, 
which may be withheld for any reason. City shall be deemed to have 
approved Consultant’s utilization of subConsultants identified in 
Consultant’s proposal for the Services. 

 
B. Any attempt to so assign, transfer, or subcontract without City’s prior written 

consent shall be void and shall constitute grounds for City’s termination of 
this Agreement. Authorized subcontracts shall contain a provision making 
the subConsultant subject to all requirements of this Agreement. 

 
C. If use of a subConsultant is approved, then City may withhold 5% of each 

monthly payment to Consultant. Such retention shall be released upon City’s 
receipt of an unconditional release of all claims signed by any such 
subConsultant, as to work performed to date. 

 
10. Independent Consultant. 

 
A. Consultant is retained as an independent Consultant and is not an employee 

of City. No employee or agent of Consultant is or shall become an employee 
of City. 

 
B. Consultant will determine the means, methods, and details by which 

Consultant’s personnel will perform the Services. Consultant shall be solely 
responsible for the satisfactory work performance of all personnel engaged in 
performing the Services and compliance with the customary professional 
standards. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

C. Consultant’s personnel shall not wear or display any City uniform, badge, 
identification number, or other information identifying such individual as an 
employee of City. Consultant’s personnel shall not use any City e-mail 
address or City telephone number in the performance of the Services. 
Consultant shall acquire and maintain at its sole cost and expense such 
vehicles, equipment and supplies as Consultant’s personnel require to 
perform the Services. Consultant shall perform the Services off of City 
premises at locations of Consultant’s choice, except as otherwise may from 
time to time be necessary in order for Consultant’s personnel to receive 
projects from City, review plans on file at City, pick up or deliver any work 
product, or as may be necessary to inspect or visit City locations. City may 
make a computer available to Consultant from time to time for Consultant’s 
personnel to obtain information about or to check on the status of projects 
pertaining to the Services. 

 
D. Consultant shall be responsible for and pay all wages, salaries, benefits and 

other amounts due to Consultant’s personnel in connection with the Services. 
Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 
additional personnel, including Social Security taxes, other retirement or 
pension benefits, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, 
disability insurance, and workers' compensation insurance. Consultant and its 
officers, employees, agents, and subConsultants shall not become entitled to, 
and hereby waive any claims to, any wages, salaries, compensation, benefit 
or any incident of employment by City, including eligibility to enroll in, or 
reinstate to membership in, the California Public Employees Retirement 
System (“PERS”) or any other retirement program, as an employee of City, 
and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by City for employer 
contributions or employee contributions for PERS benefits or any other 
retirement benefits. 

 
11. CalPERS Compliance. 

The parties acknowledge that City is a local agency member of CalPERS, and as such has 
certain pension reporting and contribution obligations to CalPERS on behalf of 
qualifying employees. Consultant agrees that, in providing its employees and any other 
personnel to City to perform the Services, Consultant shall assure compliance with the 
Public Employees’ Retirement Law (Government Code Section 20000 et seq.), the 
regulations of CalPERS, and the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 
(Government Code Section 7522 et seq.). Without limitation to the foregoing, Consultant 
shall assure compliance with regard to personnel who have active or inactive membership 
in CalPERS and to those who are retired annuitants and in performing this Agreement 
shall not assign or utilize any of its personnel in a manner that will cause City to be in 
violation of the applicable retirement laws and regulations. 

 
12. Insurance. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

Unless otherwise permitted or waived in writing by City’s Risk Manager, Consultant 
shall not commence work until it has secured all insurance required under this section and 
provided evidence thereof that is acceptable to City. In addition, Consultant shall not 
allow any subConsultant to commence work on any subcontract until it has secured all 
insurance required under this section. 

 
A. Commercial General Liability 

 
i. Consultant shall take out and maintain, in amounts not less than specified 

herein, Commercial General Liability Insurance, in a form and with 
insurance companies acceptable to City. 

 
ii. Coverage for Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as 

broad as the following: 
 

a.  Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability 
coverage (Occurrence Form CG 00 01) or exact equivalent. 

 
iii. Commercial General Liability Insurance must include coverage for the 

following: 
 

a. Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
b. Personal Injury/Advertising Injury 
c. Premises/Operations Liability 
d. Products/Completed Operations Liability 
e. Aggregate Limits that Apply per Project 
f. Contractual Liability with respect to this Agreement 
g. Broad Form Property Damage 
h. Independent Consultants Coverage 

 
iv. The policy shall contain no endorsements or provisions limiting coverage 

for (1) contractual liability; (2) cross liability exclusion for claims or suits 
by one insured against another; (3) products/completed operations liability; 
or (4) contain any other exclusion contrary to this Agreement. 

 
v. The policy shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, 

employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as 
independent Consultants in the role of City officials, as additional insureds 
using ISO endorsement forms CG 20 10 10 01 and 20 37 10 01, or 
endorsements providing the exact same coverage. 

 
vi. The general liability coverage may utilize deductibles or provide coverage 

excess of a self-insured retention, only if approved by City’s Risk 
Manager in writing, and further provided that such deductibles shall not 
apply to coverage of the additional insureds. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

B. Automobile Liability

i. Consultant shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injury
and property damage including coverage for owned, non-owned and hired
vehicles, in a form and with insurance companies acceptable to City.

ii. Coverage for automobile liability insurance shall be at least as broad as
Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering automobile
liability (Coverage Symbol 1, any auto).

iii. The policy shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers,
employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as
independent Consultants in the role of City officials, as additional
insureds.

iv. Subject to City’s written approval, the automobile liability coverage may
utilize deductibles or provide coverage excess of a self-insured retention,
provided that such deductibles shall not apply to coverage of the
additional insureds.

C. Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability

i. Consultant certifies that Consultant is aware of the provisions of Labor
Code Section 3700 which requires every employer to be insured against
liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in
accordance with the provisions of that code, and he/she/it will comply
with such provisions before commencing work under this Agreement.

ii. Consultant shall maintain full compensation insurance for its employees in
accordance with the Workers’ Compensation and Insurance Act (Labor
Code Section 3200 et seq.) and Employer’s Liability Coverage in amounts
indicated herein. Consultant shall require all subConsultants to obtain and
maintain workers’ compensation coverage of the same type and limits as
specified in this section.

D. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions)

Consultant shall maintain professional liability or errors and omissions insurance 
appropriate to its profession, in a form and with insurance companies acceptable to City and with 
the limits required herein. This insurance shall be endorsed to include contractual liability 
applicable to this Agreement and shall be written on a policy coverage form specifically designed 
to protect against acts, errors or omissions of Consultant in the performance of professional 
services. “Covered Professional Services” as designated in the policy must specifically include 
work performed under this Agreement. The policy must “pay on behalf of” the insured and must 
include a provision establishing the insurer's duty to defend. 

E. Cyber Liability



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

If Cyber Liability is included in the Minimum Policy Limits Required below, then 
Consultant shall maintain cyber liability insurance providing protection against claims and 
liabilities arising from: (i) errors and omissions in connection with maintaining security of City 
Data (as defined below); (ii) data breach including theft, destruction, and/or unauthorized use of 
City Data; (iii) identity theft including bank charges assessed; and (iv) violation of privacy rights 
due to a breach of City Data. 

 
F. Minimum Policy Limits Required 
i. A.M. Best's Rating 

 
Each policy of insurance required herein shall be from a company or companies 

having a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII and admitted and authorized to transact 
the business of insurance in the State of California. 

 
ii. The following insurance limits are required for this Agreement: 

 
If ☒, then required Combined Single Limit 
☒Commercial General Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence/ $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily 

injury, personal injury, and property damage 

☒Automobile Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence (any auto) for bodily injury and 
property damage 

☒Workers’ Compensation In the amount required by California law 

☒Employer’s Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence 

☒Professional Liability $2,000,000 per claim and aggregate (errors and omissions) 

☐Cyber Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence 

iii. Defense costs shall be payable in addition to the limits. 
 

iv. Requirements of specific coverage or limits contained in this section are 
not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits, or other requirement, or a 
waiver of any coverage normally provided by any insurance. Any 
available coverage shall be provided to the parties required to be named as 
additional insured pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
G. Proof of Insurance 

 
Within five days of execution of this Agreement, but prior to 

commencement of the Services, Consultant shall file with City evidence of 
insurance from an insurer or insurers certifying to the coverage of all 
insurance required herein. Such evidence shall include original copies of the 
ISO CG 00 01 (or insurer’s equivalent) signed by the insurer’s representative 
and Certificate of Insurance (Acord Form 25-S or equivalent), together with 
required endorsements. All evidence of insurance shall be signed by a 
properly authorized officer, agent, or qualified representative of the insurer 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

and shall certify the names of the insured, any additional insureds, where 
appropriate, the type and amount of the insurance, the location and operations 
to which the insurance applies, and the expiration date of such insurance. 

H. Policy Provisions Required

i. Consultant shall provide City at least 30 days prior written notice of
cancellation of any policy required by this Agreement, except that
Consultant shall provide at least 10 days prior written notice of
cancellation of any such policy due to non-payment of premium. If any of
the required coverage is cancelled or expires during the term of this
Agreement, Consultant shall deliver renewal certificate(s) including the
required additional insured endorsement to City at least 10 days prior to
the effective date of cancellation or expiration.

ii. The Commercial General Liability Policy and Automobile Liability
Policy
shall each contain a provision stating that Consultant’s policy is primary
insurance and that any insurance, self-insurance or other coverage
maintained by City or any additional insureds shall not be called upon to
contribute to any loss.

iii. The retroactive date (if any) of each policy is to be no later than the
effective date of this Agreement. If a “claims-made” professional liability
policy is provided, it shall include an extended reporting period of not
less than three years.

iv. All required insurance coverages, except for the professional and cyber
liability coverage, shall contain or be endorsed to provide a waiver of
subrogation in favor of City, its officials, officers, employees, agents,
servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as independent
Consultants in the role of City officials, or shall specifically allow
Consultant or others providing insurance evidence in compliance with
these specifications to waive their right of recovery prior to a loss.
Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery against City, and shall
require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each
of its subConsultants.

v. The limits set forth herein shall apply separately to each insured against
whom claims are made or suits are brought, except with respect to the
limits of liability. Further the limits set forth herein shall not be construed
to relieve Consultant from liability in excess of such coverage, nor shall it
limit Consultant’s indemnification obligations to City or preclude City
from taking such other actions available to City under other provisions of
this Agreement or law.

I. Additional Insurance Provisions



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

i. The foregoing requirements as to the types and limits of insurance
coverage to be maintained by Consultant, and any approval of such
insurance by City, are not intended to and shall not in any manner limit or
qualify the liabilities and obligations otherwise assumed by Consultant
pursuant to this Agreement, including the provisions concerning
indemnification.

ii. If at any time during the term of this Agreement, any policy of insurance
required under this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or
is canceled and not replaced, City has the right but not the duty to obtain
the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid by City will be
promptly reimbursed by Consultant or City will withhold amounts
sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. In the alternative,
City may terminate this Agreement for cause.

iii. City may require Consultant to provide for inspection by City, complete
copies of all insurance policies in effect for the duration of the Agreement.

iv. No City official, officer, employee, agent or volunteer shall be personally
responsible for any liability arising under or by virtue of this Agreement.

v. The insurance obligations under this Agreement shall be: (1) all the
insurance coverage and/or limits carried by or available to Consultant; or
(2) the minimum insurance coverage requirements and/or limits shown in
this Agreement; whichever is greater. Any insurance proceeds in excess of
or broader than the minimum required coverage and/or minimum required
limits, which are applicable to a given loss, shall be available to City. No
representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this
Agreement are sufficient to cover the obligations of Consultant under this
Agreement.

J. SubConsultant Insurance Requirements

Consultant shall not allow any subConsultant to commence work on any 
subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to City that it has secured all 
insurance required under this section. Policies of commercial general liability insurance 
provided by such subConsultants shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, 
employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as independent 
Consultants in the role of City officials as additional insureds, using ISO form CG 20 38 
04 13 or an endorsement providing the same coverage. If requested by Consultant, City 
may approve different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular 
subConsultants. 

13. Indemnification.

A. Other than in the performance of professional services, and to the fullest
extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend (with counsel reasonably



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

approved by City), indemnify and hold City, its officials, officers, attorneys, 
agents, employees, servants, designated volunteers, successors, assigns and 
those City agents serving as independent Consultants in the role of City 
officials (collectively “Indemnitees”) free and harmless with respect to any 
and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liabilities, losses, 
damages, stop notices and/or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to property 
or persons, including bodily injury, wrongful death, personal injury and 
property damage, and destruction, or unauthorized access to, use, and/or theft 
of City Data (collectively, “Claims”) in any manner and to the extent arising 
out of, pertaining to, or incidental to any act, error, omission, or willful 
misconduct of Consultant, its owners, officials, officers, employees, servants, 
subConsultants, consultants or agents (and/or any entity or individual for 
whom Consultant shall bear legal liability) in connection with the 
performance of the Services including the payment of all damages, expert 
witness fees and attorney’s fees and other related costs and expenses actually 
incurred in connection with such defense. Consultant's obligation to 
indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by 
Consultant, or by City or any of the other Indemnitees. Consultant shall have 
no liability hereunder for claims and liabilities arising out of the sole, active 
negligence of any of the Indemnitees. 

B. Professional Services. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall,
at its sole cost and expense, protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify the
Indemnitees, from and against any and all Claims, whether actual, alleged or
threatened, to the extent arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to, in whole or
in part, the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of Consultant,
and/or its officers, agents, servants, employees, subConsultants, Consultants
or their officers, agents, servants or employees (and/or any entity or individual
for whom Consultant shall bear legal liability) in the performance of
professional services under this Agreement. Consultant shall defend the
Indemnitees in any action or actions filed in connection with any Claims with
counsel of the Indemnitees’ choice, and shall pay all costs and expenses,
including all attorneys’ fees and experts’ costs, actually incurred in connection
with such defense.

C. Consultant’s obligations under this Section shall survive the expiration or
termination of this Agreement.

14. Laws and Venue.

This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California
without regard for change of venue laws. If any action is brought to interpret or enforce
any term of this Agreement, the action shall be brought in a state or federal court situated
in the County of Orange, State of California. Consultant must comply with the claim
procedures set forth in the Government Claims act (Government Code Section 810 et
seq.) prior to filing any lawsuit against City.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

15. Termination.

A. City may terminate any portion or all of the Services or this Agreement with or
without cause by giving 10 days’ written notice to Consultant. In such event, City
shall be immediately given title to and possession of all Work Product (as
defined) below and original field notes, drawings and specifications, written
reports and all other documents produced or developed pursuant to this
Agreement. Provided Consultant is not then in breach, City shall pay Consultant
for any portion of the Services satisfactorily completed prior to termination. If
termination occurs prior to completion of any specific task for which a payment
request has not been received, the charge for Services performed shall be the
reasonable value of such Services, based on an amount agreed to by the parties.
City shall not be liable for any costs other than the charges or portions thereof
which are specified herein. Consultant shall not be entitled to payment for
unperformed Services, and shall not be entitled to damages or compensation
resulting from such termination.

B. Consultant may terminate this Agreement only for cause and by serving written
notice of termination to City, provided Consultant has first served City with a
written notice of default and demand to cure, and City has failed to cure such
default within 30 days of receipt of such notice.

16. Ownership of Work Product.

A. All draft and final reports, documents, and other written material, and any and all
images, ideas, concepts, designs including website designs, source code, object
code, electronic data and files, and/or other media whatsoever created or
developed by Consultant in the performance of this Agreement (collectively,
“Work Product”) shall be considered to be “works made for hire” for the benefit
of City. All Work Product and any and all intellectual property rights arising from
their creation, including all copyrights and other proprietary rights, shall be and
remain the property of City without restriction or limitation upon their use,
duplication or dissemination by City upon final payment being made, provided
that any such use shall be at City’s sole risk. Consultant shall not obtain or
attempt to obtain copyright protection as to any of the Work Product. Consultant
agrees that the compensation set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement includes
conveyance to City of ownership of all Work Product, including intellectual
property rights, as provided in this Section 16.

B. Consultant hereby assigns to City all rights of ownership to the Work Product,
including any and all related intellectual property and proprietary rights, that are
not otherwise vested in City pursuant to subsection A above.

C. Consultant warrants and represents that it has secured all necessary licenses,
consents or approvals necessary to the production of the Work Product, and that
upon final payment or Consultant’s default, City shall have full legal title to the
Work Product, and full legal authority and the right to use and reproduce the



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

Work Product for any purpose. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold City, 
and the other Indemnitees harmless from any and all losses, claims or liabilities in 
any way related to a claim that City’s use of any of the Work Product violates 
federal, state or local laws, or any contractual provisions, or any rights or laws 
relating to trade names, licenses, franchises, copyrights, patents or other means of 
protecting intellectual property rights and/or interests in products, ideas or 
inventions. Consultant shall bear all costs arising from the use of patented, 
copyrighted, trade secret or trademarked documents, materials, equipment, 
devices or processes in connection with its provision of the Work Product 
produced under this Agreement. In the event the use of any of the Work Product 
or other deliverables hereunder by City is held to constitute an infringement and 
the use of any of the same is enjoined, Consultant, at its expense, shall: (a) secure 
for City the right to continue using the Work Product and other deliverables by 
suspension of any injunction, or by procuring a license or licenses for City; or (b) 
modify the Work Product and other deliverables so that they become non- 
infringing while remaining in compliance with the requirements of this 
Agreement. Consultant’s obligations under this Section shall survive the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
17. Data Security. 

 
A. As used in this Agreement, “City Data” means any and all information and data 

provided or made accessible, directly or indirectly, to Consultant by City, or 
otherwise acquired from City, in connection with Consultant’s performance of the 
Services. Except where subject to a third party’s intellectual property rights, any 
and all City Data is solely owned by City. Consultant is granted a limited, non- 
exclusive, and revocable license to use City Data solely as necessary to perform 
the Services. At no time shall Consultant use City Data for its own purposes, or 
sell, disclose or disseminate City Data, except as required by law or to provide the 
Services. At all times herein, Consultant shall protect and maintain the security of 
City Data using methods providing not less than the level of security Consultant 
uses for its own confidential data, and that otherwise comply with recognized 
industry data security standards applicable to similar kinds of governmental data 
and information. 

 
B. To the extent any City Data consists of personal information as defined in 

Consumer Privacy Act (Civil Code Section 1798.100 et seq.), Consultant shall 
comply with that statute and with Civil Code Section 1798.80, et seq., including 
providing the required notifications in the event of any unauthorized access of 
personal information stored, maintained, accessed, used or transmitted by 
Consultant in connection with this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
Consultant shall within 24 hours notify the City Representative by telephone and 
in writing of any unauthorized access of City Data. Thereafter, Consultant shall 
render any assistance to City and law enforcement as necessary to ascertain the 
nature and extent of such unauthorized access. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

C. Consultant shall not store City Data using cloud-based storage without City’s 
prior, written consent, unless the use of such storage is clearly described in the 
Scope of Services. Where permitted herein, any and all cloud-based storage shall 
be on servers and other hardware located within the continental United States, 
and shall be in compliance with ISO/IEC 27001 - 27018, as applicable, unless 
otherwise agreed to in writing by the City Representative. 

 
18. Party Representatives. 

 
A. Consultant hereby designates Jeffrey B. Love or such person’s designee, as 

Consultant’s Representative for this Agreement, unless and until written 
notice of a new representative acceptable to City is provided to City. 

 
B. City hereby designates Deputy Chief Daniel Mielke or such person’s 

designee, as the City Representative for this Agreement. 
 

C. The foregoing representatives shall be authorized to provide consent where 
required herein, and to make other administrative decisions that will be 
binding on their respective party, except as otherwise specifically required 
herein. 

 
19. Notices. 

 
Any notices, invoices, or other documents related to this Agreement shall be deemed 

received on: (a) the day of delivery, if delivered by hand during the receiving party’s regular 
business hours or by e-mail before or during the receiving party’s regular business hours; (b) the 
business day after delivery, if delivered by e-mail after the receiving party’s regular business 
hours; or (c) on the second business day following deposit in the United States mail, certified 
mail with return receipt requested and postage prepaid, to the addresses listed below, or to such 
other addresses as the parties may, from time to time, designate in writing. 

 
City Consultant 
City of Brea JL Group, LLC 

1 Civic Center Circle 30025 Alicia Parkway, #327 

Brea, CA 92821 Laguna Niguel, CA 92677 

United States USA 

Daniel Mielke Jeffery B. Love 
DanielMi@cityofbrea.gov jlove@jlgroup.net 
714-990-7655 949-282-8181 

20. Third Party Rights. 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to anyone 
other than City and Consultant. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

21. Conflicts of Interest. 
 

A. Consultant covenants that it presently has no interest, and shall not acquire 
any interest, direct or indirect, financial or otherwise, which would conflict in 
any manner or degree with the performance of the Services. Consultant 
certifies that no one who has or will have any financial interest under this 
Agreement is an officer or employee of City. 

 
B. Consultant further covenants that, in the performance of this Agreement, no 

subConsultant or person having any interest, direct or indirect, financial or 
otherwise, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 
performance of the Services shall be employed. Consultant has provided City 
with a list of all City-approved subConsultants and the key personnel for such 
subConsultants that are retained or to be retained by Consultant in connection 
with the performance of the Services, to assist City in affirming compliance 
with this Section. 

 
C. Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not employed nor retained any 

company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for 
Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement. Further, Consultant warrants 
that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than 
a bona fide employee working solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, 
percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or 
resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. If required, Consultant 
further agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subConsultants to file, a 
Statement of Economic Interest with the City Clerk as required under state 
law in the performance of the Services. For breach or violation of this 
warranty, City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without 
liability. No director, official, officer or employee of City, during the term of 
his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, 
or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

 
22. Severability. 

The unenforceability, invalidity or illegality of any provision(s) of this Agreement shall 
not render the provisions unenforceable, invalid or illegal. 

 
23. Successors and Assigns. 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors in 
interest, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties. 

 
24. Non-Waiver. 

 
None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be considered waived by either party, 
unless such waiver is specified in writing, and any such waiver shall be limited to that set 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

of circumstances and not to any future circumstances unless another written waiver is 
executed. 

 
25. Time of Essence. 

 
Time is of the essence in each and every provision of this Agreement. 

 
26. City’s Right to Employ Other Consultants. 

 
City reserves its right to employ other Consultants to provide the Services or similar 
services. 

 
27. Exhibits. 

 
The attached Exhibits A is incorporated herein by reference. In the event of any conflict 
or inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and any Exhibit, the 
provisions of this Agreement shall govern. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency 
between the provisions of this Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements and 
the Consultant’s Proposal set forth in the attached Attachment 1 to Exhibit A, the 
provisions of the Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements shall govern. 

 
28. Entire Agreement. 

 
This Agreement (including the attached Exhibits) represents the entire understanding of 
the parties as to the Services, and supersedes and cancels any prior or contemporaneous 
oral or written understanding, promises or representations with respect to those matters. 
Each party acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises or agreements 
have been made by any person which are not incorporated herein, and that any other 
agreements shall be void. This Agreement may not be modified or altered except in 
writing signed by both parties. This is an integrated Agreement. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT, the Parties have caused their authorized representatives 
to sign below. Digital Signatures are acceptable if they conform to all requirements of California 
Government Code Section 16.5. 

JL Group, LLC 
By:  By: 

Jeffery B. Love 
Managing Partner 
jlove@jlgroup.net 

Jeffry L. Johnson 
Partner 
jljohnson@jlgroup.net 

Date Signed:  Date Signed: 
CORPs: Chairperson, President, Vice President; CORPs: Secretary, Asst. Secretary, Chief Finance 
LLCs: Manager Officer,  Asst. Treasurer 

LLCs: Manager 
[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 313, both signature lines must be executed unless the signatory 
holds at least one of the offices designated on each line.] 

[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 17703.01(d), both signature lines must be executed unless the 
articles of incorporation state that the firm is managed by only one manager.] 
City of Brea Attest (if over $50,000) 
By:  By:  

Kristin Griffith Lillian Harris-Neal 
City Manager City Clerk 
kristing@cityofbrea.gov Lillianhn@cityofbrea.gov 

Date Signed: Date Signed: 

Jeffrey B Love (Jun 2, 2025 19:23 PDT) JEFFRY JOHNSON (Jun 3, 2025 10:01 PDT)



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
I. Introduction. 

 
The City of Brea is seeking proposals for qualified consultants to: 

 
• Provide as-needed Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for candidates 

for sworn and non-sworn employment with the Brea Fire Department. The anticipated 
average number of annual backgrounds is four (4) Firefighters and ten (10) non-sworn 
Ambulance Operators. 

This request for proposal does not obligate the City of Brea to award a contract or complete the 
project, and the City reserves the right to cancel the solicitation if is considered to be in its best 
interest. The City reserves the right to award more than one contract for the services specified 
herein in order to ensure the continuing ability to obtain timely and accurate background 
investigations of candidates for employment.  

II. Scope of Work. 
 

The successful Proposer shall: 
• Provide investigative services in a professional manner in compliance with all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws, as well as in a workmanlike manner according 
to the standards and ethics in the industry as established by the California Secretary of 
State, Department of Consumer Affairs, Bureau of Investigative Services Furnish 
everything necessary to provide the Services. 

 
Backgrounds shall include a detailed narrative report (“the narrative”) summarizing all findings 
and reports of each applicant’s background and eligibility based on Brea Fire Department 
hiring. The following areas, at minimum, should be both addressed in the narrative and 
supported by documentation included within the background file. 

• Verification of Qualification for Firefighter Appointment (for candidates for sworn 
employment). 

• A review of the candidate’s personal history statement. 
• Criminal history that advises of felony and/or misdemeanor convictions, including 

fingerprint returns, demonstrating the results of a Department of Justice and Federal 
Bureau of Investigation fingerprint check for criminal history (City of Brea HR) Motor 
vehicle driving history (all states in which applicant held an operators/driver’s license), 
including a copy of the applicant’s driver’s license and vehicle registration, and proof 
of motor vehicle insurance. 

• Inquiries with all local law enforcement departments where the candidate has lived, 
worked, attended school, or frequently visited. 

• Financial information, including monthly income/expenses, bankruptcy (if applicable). 
• Education background and verification, including copies of official transcripts, 

diplomas and accreditation verification from high school or equivalent and all colleges 
and universities attended. 

• Employment eligibility and age verification, including copies of any document 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

accepted for proof of employment eligibility, or other official documentation (e.g., birth 
certificate, driver license), verifying date of birth Military verification and Selective 
Service registrations, as applicable, including dates of service, branch of military, rank 
and discharge status, etc. Copies of DD214 Long Form, Selective Service Registration, 
or documentation for willful failure to register must be included as applicable. 

• Proof of marital status, including marriage certificate(s) and all final court-issued 
dissolution documents or legal separation decrees, as applicable. 

• Employment verification and history of at least ten years’, supported by 
comments/questionnaires completed by Human Resources, supervisors, and coworkers, 
as well as evaluations. 

• Verification and contacts with the applicant’s personal/family references (including any 
former spouses), any secondary references provided by primary contacts, and additional 
secondary references as identified by the investigator, supported by 
comments/questionnaires. 

• A thorough search of the candidate’s social media for suitability of employment and for 
bias-relevant information, including hate group affiliation and/or activities. 
(Verification and contacts with the applicant’s current and/or former neighbors, 
supported by comments/questionnaires. 

• Verification of applications to other fire agencies, including an examination of the 
status/dispositions of said applications and review of any relevant background 
documentation contained by those law enforcement agencies. 

• Drug and/or substance use history. 
• Neighborhood and rent check, including contacts with the applicant’s neighbors. 
• Polygraph examination. (Proposer does not administer the polygraph examination, but 

will provide a statement regarding the results of the examination). 
• Civil suits and legal judgments concerning the applicant (Federal, State and current 

County of residence). 
• Social Security Number (SSN) - Trace & Address Locator verification to determine 

name and name variations used by the individual such as maiden, divorced or previous 
names, other names associated with that SSN, current and former addresses associated 
with that SSN, and date of birth. 

• Photographs of the applicant’s home, vehicle, and any and all tattoos located in non- 
sensitive/non-private areas of the 

As a prerequisite for submitting a proposal, Proposers shall possess the following minimum 
qualifications or abilities: 

• Proper training and licensing as required by law, and prior experience conducting 
background investigations for fire agencies. References from all fire agencies for 
whom Proposer has performed background investigation services for in the past two 
years (up to a maximum of three) shall be incorporated into proposal. 

• The ability to provide summary invoicing, which is supported by detailed cost 
descriptions of individual background investigations. 

• Performance of background investigations in accordance with all applicable Federal, 
State and County policies, rules, regulations, laws and codes, including without 
limitation, the Federal Fair Credit Reporting Act (15 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.) and the 
California Investigative Consumer Reporting Agencies Act (Civil Code § 1786 et seq.). 

• The ability to keep itself fully informed of, and shall observe and comply with, all 
relevant laws, ordinances and regulations which in any manner affect those engaged or 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

employed on any work, the collection of data and information, or in any way affect the 
performance of any work under the contract, and of all orders and decrees of agencies 
having any jurisdiction or authority over work performed under the contract. 

• Availability to assist the City should legal action result from the background 
investigations performed by the successful Proposer. 
Written acknowledgement that information shall not be released to any candidate regarding 
their pre-employment background investigation without the express written consent of 
the Brea Fire Department. 

The final scope of work will be negotiated with the selected Consultant(s). 
 
 
 
 
 

End of this Exhibit 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

Attachment 1 to Exhibit A 
CONSULTANT’S PROPOSAL AND FEE SCHEDULE 

(attached) 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

Attachment 1 to Exhibit A 
CONSULTANT’S PROPOSAL AND FEE SCHEDULE 

(attached) 

JL GROUP – FEE SCHEDULE2 
Pricing valid for one year from date of any resulting contract. 

Pre-Employment Background Investigations – Six (6) weeks to complete 

Sworn Fire Personnel 

Non-sworn Fire Personnel 

$1,900.00 Per Candidate 
Plus expenses* 

$1,700.00 Per Candidate 
Plus expenses* 

*JL Group LLC will not bill for any out-of-area travel costs (beyond Orange/LA/San
Bernardino/Riverside Counties) unless pre-approved by the City.  Costs associated
with travel outside of the Southern California area must be pre-approved by the City in
advance.

JL Group LLC will not charge the full rate for background investigations that are 
terminated by the City during the early or mid-stages of the process. The City will only 
be billed for the hours worked up to the point of termination. In our experience, many 
disqualifications generally occur by the Personnel File Review/Employer reference 
phase. Billing will be incurred for actual hours expended at a rate of $75 per hour, plus 
reasonable expenses for any partial or uncompleted background investigations. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

As-Needed Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services 

for Fire Services 

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated June 17, 2025 for reference purposes 

and is executed by the City of Brea, a California municipal corporation (“City”), and 

RCS Investigations & Consulting an LLC (“Consultant”). 

RECITALS 

A. City desires to retain Consultant as an independent Consultant to provide the following

professional services: As-Needed Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for

Fire Services.

B. Consultant represents that it is duly licensed, fully authorized by law, and has the

necessary experience and qualifications, to provide such services.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Scope of Services.

Consultant shall perform the services referenced in the Recitals, as required by the RFP

No. 2025.05.02.01 and more specifically described in the Scope of Services set forth in the 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and as otherwise required by this Agreement, all to City’s 

satisfaction (collectively, “Services”). 

2. Compensation.

A. City shall pay for the Services satisfactorily performed, in accordance with

the Fee Schedule set forth in the attached Attachment 1 to Exhibit A

hereto.

B. In no event shall the total amount paid for the Services over the term of this

Agreement exceed the all-inclusive sum of $ 60,000.00 (“Contract

Amount”). This amount covers and is inclusive of all labor, materials, and

any and all other costs incurred by Consultant in performing the Services.

Consultant shall be deemed to have made all inquiries and site inspections

deemed necessary by Consultant prior to execution of this Agreement.

C. Unless the Fee Schedule calls for payment of a one-time flat fee, periodic

payments for undisputed work shall be made within 30 days of receipt of an

invoice which includes a detailed description of the work performed.

Consultant’s invoices shall indicate the amount of time spent on each task

and the applicable rate.

D. Unless the Fee Schedule calls for payment on a different schedule,

Consultant shall invoice City on a monthly basis.

3. Contingency Work.



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

This Agreement does not include any contingency or additional work.  Any additional 

work performed by Consultant without a written amendment or approval of the City shall be 

deemed to be work included within the Services. 

 

4. Term. 

The term of this Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2025 (“Effective Date”). 

Unless extended or earlier terminated as provided herein, this Agreement shall expire on June 

30, 2028. 

 

5. Time of Performance. 

 

A. Consultant shall complete the Services within the term of this Agreement, 

and shall meet any other established and agreed upon schedules and 

deadlines agreed upon in writing. Consultant shall commence performance 

within two business days of receiving City’s written notice to proceed. 

 

B. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be considered in default of this 

Agreement for delays in performance caused by a force majeure event. As 

used in this Agreement, the term “force majeure event” means 

circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the non-performing party 

and includes the following: abnormal weather conditions; floods; 

earthquakes; fire; epidemics; war; riots and other civil disturbances; strikes, 

lockouts, work slowdowns, and other labor disturbances; sabotage; or 

judicial restraint. Consultant’s lack of financial capability, shall not 

constitute a force majeure event unless directly attributable to any of the 

foregoing events. 

 

C. Should a force majeure event occur, the non-performing party shall, within 

a reasonable time of being prevented from performing, give written notice 

to the other party describing the circumstances preventing continued 

performance and the efforts being made to resume performance of this 

Agreement. 

 

6. Maintenance of Records. 

 

Books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the 

Services, including costs incurred, shall be maintained by Consultant and made available 

for review by City at all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement and for four 

(4) years from the date of final payment by City. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

7. Standard of Care. 

 

Consultant’s Services shall be performed in accordance with the generally accepted 

professional standards of practice and principles and in a manner consistent with the level 

of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently performing 

similar services under similar conditions. Consultant shall maintain all professional 

licenses and certifications required to lawfully perform the Services. 

 

 

8. Compliance with Law. 

A. Consultant shall comply with all applicable laws including Cal/OSHA 

requirements. 

B. Consultant shall obtain a City of Brea business license. 

C. Consultant shall comply with all other legal requirements. 

 

9. Assignment and Subcontracting. 

 

A. Consultant shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or 

obligations under, or any interest in this Agreement, or subcontract any 

required performance hereunder, without the prior written consent of City, 

which may be withheld for any reason. City shall be deemed to have 

approved Consultant’s utilization of subConsultants identified in 

Consultant’s proposal for the Services. 

 

B. Any attempt to so assign, transfer, or subcontract without City’s prior written 

consent shall be void and shall constitute grounds for City’s termination of 

this Agreement. Authorized subcontracts shall contain a provision making 

the subConsultant subject to all requirements of this Agreement. 

 

C. If use of a subConsultant is approved, then City may withhold 5% of each 

monthly payment to Consultant. Such retention shall be released upon City’s 

receipt of an unconditional release of all claims signed by any such 

subConsultant, as to work performed to date. 

 

10. Independent Consultant. 

 

A. Consultant is retained as an independent Consultant and is not an employee 

of City. No employee or agent of Consultant is or shall become an employee 

of City. 

 

B. Consultant will determine the means, methods, and details by which 

Consultant’s personnel will perform the Services. Consultant shall be solely 

responsible for the satisfactory work performance of all personnel engaged in 

performing the Services and compliance with the customary professional 

standards. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

C. Consultant’s personnel shall not wear or display any City uniform, badge, 

identification number, or other information identifying such individual as an 

employee of City. Consultant’s personnel shall not use any City e-mail 

address or City telephone number in the performance of the Services. 

Consultant shall acquire and maintain at its sole cost and expense such 

vehicles, equipment and supplies as Consultant’s personnel require to 

perform the Services. Consultant shall perform the Services off of City 

premises at locations of Consultant’s choice, except as otherwise may from 

time to time be necessary in order for Consultant’s personnel to receive 

projects from City, review plans on file at City, pick up or deliver any work 

product, or as may be necessary to inspect or visit City locations. City may 

make a computer available to Consultant from time to time for Consultant’s 

personnel to obtain information about or to check on the status of projects 

pertaining to the Services. 

 

D. Consultant shall be responsible for and pay all wages, salaries, benefits and 

other amounts due to Consultant’s personnel in connection with the Services. 

Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 

additional personnel, including Social Security taxes, other retirement or 

pension benefits, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, 

disability insurance, and workers' compensation insurance. Consultant and its 

officers, employees, agents, and subConsultants shall not become entitled to, 

and hereby waive any claims to, any wages, salaries, compensation, benefit 

or any incident of employment by City, including eligibility to enroll in, or 

reinstate to membership in, the California Public Employees Retirement 

System (“PERS”) or any other retirement program, as an employee of City, 

and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by City for employer 

contributions or employee contributions for PERS benefits or any other 

retirement benefits. 

 

11. CalPERS Compliance. 

The parties acknowledge that City is a local agency member of CalPERS, and as such has 

certain pension reporting and contribution obligations to CalPERS on behalf of 

qualifying employees. Consultant agrees that, in providing its employees and any other 

personnel to City to perform the Services, Consultant shall assure compliance with the 

Public Employees’ Retirement Law (Government Code Section 20000 et seq.), the 

regulations of CalPERS, and the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 

(Government Code Section 7522 et seq.). Without limitation to the foregoing, Consultant 

shall assure compliance with regard to personnel who have active or inactive membership 

in CalPERS and to those who are retired annuitants and in performing this Agreement 

shall not assign or utilize any of its personnel in a manner that will cause City to be in 

violation of the applicable retirement laws and regulations. 

 

12. Insurance. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

Unless otherwise permitted or waived in writing by City’s Risk Manager, Consultant 

shall not commence work until it has secured all insurance required under this section and 

provided evidence thereof that is acceptable to City. In addition, Consultant shall not 

allow any subConsultant to commence work on any subcontract until it has secured all 

insurance required under this section. 

 

A. Commercial General Liability 

 

i. Consultant shall take out and maintain, in amounts not less than specified 

herein, Commercial General Liability Insurance, in a form and with 

insurance companies acceptable to City. 

 

ii. Coverage for Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as 

broad as the following: 

 

a.  Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability 

coverage (Occurrence Form CG 00 01) or exact equivalent. 

 

iii. Commercial General Liability Insurance must include coverage for the 

following: 

 

a. Bodily Injury and Property Damage 

b. Personal Injury/Advertising Injury 

c. Premises/Operations Liability 

d. Products/Completed Operations Liability 

e. Aggregate Limits that Apply per Project 

f. Contractual Liability with respect to this Agreement 

g. Broad Form Property Damage 

h. Independent Consultants Coverage 

 

iv. The policy shall contain no endorsements or provisions limiting coverage 

for (1) contractual liability; (2) cross liability exclusion for claims or suits 

by one insured against another; (3) products/completed operations liability; 

or (4) contain any other exclusion contrary to this Agreement. 

 

v. The policy shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, 

employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as 

independent Consultants in the role of City officials, as additional insureds 

using ISO endorsement forms CG 20 10 10 01 and 20 37 10 01, or 

endorsements providing the exact same coverage. 

 

vi. The general liability coverage may utilize deductibles or provide coverage 

excess of a self-insured retention, only if approved by City’s Risk 

Manager in writing, and further provided that such deductibles shall not 

apply to coverage of the additional insureds. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

B. Automobile Liability 

 

i. Consultant shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injury 

and property damage including coverage for owned, non-owned and hired 

vehicles, in a form and with insurance companies acceptable to City. 

 

ii. Coverage for automobile liability insurance shall be at least as broad as 

Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering automobile 

liability (Coverage Symbol 1, any auto). 

 

iii. The policy shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, 

employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as 

independent Consultants in the role of City officials, as additional 

insureds. 

 

iv. Subject to City’s written approval, the automobile liability coverage may 

utilize deductibles or provide coverage excess of a self-insured retention, 

provided that such deductibles shall not apply to coverage of the 

additional insureds. 

 

C. Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability 

 

i. Consultant certifies that Consultant is aware of the provisions of Labor 

Code Section 3700 which requires every employer to be insured against 

liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in 

accordance with the provisions of that code, and he/she/it will comply 

with such provisions before commencing work under this Agreement. 

 

ii. Consultant shall maintain full compensation insurance for its employees in 

accordance with the Workers’ Compensation and Insurance Act (Labor 

Code Section 3200 et seq.) and Employer’s Liability Coverage in amounts 

indicated herein. Consultant shall require all subConsultants to obtain and 

maintain workers’ compensation coverage of the same type and limits as 

specified in this section. 

 

D. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) 

 

Consultant shall maintain professional liability or errors and omissions insurance 

appropriate to its profession, in a form and with insurance companies acceptable to City and with 

the limits required herein. This insurance shall be endorsed to include contractual liability 

applicable to this Agreement and shall be written on a policy coverage form specifically designed 

to protect against acts, errors or omissions of Consultant in the performance of professional 

services. “Covered Professional Services” as designated in the policy must specifically include 

work performed under this Agreement. The policy must “pay on behalf of” the insured and must 

include a provision establishing the insurer's duty to defend. 

 

E. Cyber Liability 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

If Cyber Liability is included in the Minimum Policy Limits Required below, then 

Consultant shall maintain cyber liability insurance providing protection against claims and 

liabilities arising from: (i) errors and omissions in connection with maintaining security of City 

Data (as defined below); (ii) data breach including theft, destruction, and/or unauthorized use of 

City Data; (iii) identity theft including bank charges assessed; and (iv) violation of privacy rights 

due to a breach of City Data. 

 

F. Minimum Policy Limits Required 

i. A.M. Best's Rating 

 

Each policy of insurance required herein shall be from a company or companies 

having a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII and admitted and authorized to transact 

the business of insurance in the State of California. 

 

ii. The following insurance limits are required for this Agreement: 

 

If ☒, then required Combined Single Limit 

☒Commercial General Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence/ $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily 

injury, personal injury, and property damage 

☒Automobile Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence (any auto) for bodily injury and 

property damage 

☒Workers’ Compensation In the amount required by California law 

☒Employer’s Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence 

☒Professional Liability $2,000,000 per claim and aggregate (errors and omissions) 

☐Cyber Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence 

iii. Defense costs shall be payable in addition to the limits. 

 

iv. Requirements of specific coverage or limits contained in this section are 

not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits, or other requirement, or a 

waiver of any coverage normally provided by any insurance. Any 

available coverage shall be provided to the parties required to be named as 

additional insured pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

G. Proof of Insurance 

 

Within five days of execution of this Agreement, but prior to 

commencement of the Services, Consultant shall file with City evidence of 

insurance from an insurer or insurers certifying to the coverage of all 

insurance required herein. Such evidence shall include original copies of the 

ISO CG 00 01 (or insurer’s equivalent) signed by the insurer’s representative 

and Certificate of Insurance (Acord Form 25-S or equivalent), together with 

required endorsements. All evidence of insurance shall be signed by a 

properly authorized officer, agent, or qualified representative of the insurer 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

and shall certify the names of the insured, any additional insureds, where 

appropriate, the type and amount of the insurance, the location and operations 

to which the insurance applies, and the expiration date of such insurance. 

 

H. Policy Provisions Required 

 

i. Consultant shall provide City at least 30 days prior written notice of 

cancellation of any policy required by this Agreement, except that 

Consultant shall provide at least 10 days prior written notice of 

cancellation of any such policy due to non-payment of premium. If any of 

the required coverage is cancelled or expires during the term of this 

Agreement, Consultant shall deliver renewal certificate(s) including the 

required additional insured endorsement to City at least 10 days prior to 

the effective date of cancellation or expiration. 

 

ii. The Commercial General Liability Policy and Automobile Liability 

Policy 

shall each contain a provision stating that Consultant’s policy is primary 

insurance and that any insurance, self-insurance or other coverage 

maintained by City or any additional insureds shall not be called upon to 

contribute to any loss. 

 

iii. The retroactive date (if any) of each policy is to be no later than the 

effective date of this Agreement. If a “claims-made” professional liability 

policy is provided, it shall include an extended reporting period of not 

less than three years. 

 

iv. All required insurance coverages, except for the professional and cyber 

liability coverage, shall contain or be endorsed to provide a waiver of 

subrogation in favor of City, its officials, officers, employees, agents, 

servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as independent 

Consultants in the role of City officials, or shall specifically allow 

Consultant or others providing insurance evidence in compliance with 

these specifications to waive their right of recovery prior to a loss. 

Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery against City, and shall 

require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each 

of its subConsultants. 

 

v. The limits set forth herein shall apply separately to each insured against 

whom claims are made or suits are brought, except with respect to the 

limits of liability. Further the limits set forth herein shall not be construed 

to relieve Consultant from liability in excess of such coverage, nor shall it 

limit Consultant’s indemnification obligations to City or preclude City 

from taking such other actions available to City under other provisions of 

this Agreement or law. 

 

I. Additional Insurance Provisions 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

i. The foregoing requirements as to the types and limits of insurance 

coverage to be maintained by Consultant, and any approval of such 

insurance by City, are not intended to and shall not in any manner limit or 

qualify the liabilities and obligations otherwise assumed by Consultant 

pursuant to this Agreement, including the provisions concerning 

indemnification. 

 

ii.  If at any time during the term of this Agreement, any policy of insurance 

required under this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or 

is canceled and not replaced, City has the right but not the duty to obtain 

the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid by City will be 

promptly reimbursed by Consultant or City will withhold amounts 

sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. In the alternative, 

City may terminate this Agreement for cause. 

 

iii.  City may require Consultant to provide for inspection by City, complete 

copies of all insurance policies in effect for the duration of the Agreement. 

 

iv.  No City official, officer, employee, agent or volunteer shall be personally 

responsible for any liability arising under or by virtue of this Agreement. 

 

v. The insurance obligations under this Agreement shall be: (1) all the 

insurance coverage and/or limits carried by or available to Consultant; or 

(2) the minimum insurance coverage requirements and/or limits shown in 

this Agreement; whichever is greater. Any insurance proceeds in excess of 

or broader than the minimum required coverage and/or minimum required 

limits, which are applicable to a given loss, shall be available to City. No 

representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this 

Agreement are sufficient to cover the obligations of Consultant under this 

Agreement. 

 

J. SubConsultant Insurance Requirements 

 

Consultant shall not allow any subConsultant to commence work on any 

subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to City that it has secured all 

insurance required under this section. Policies of commercial general liability insurance 

provided by such subConsultants shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, 

employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as independent 

Consultants in the role of City officials as additional insureds, using ISO form CG 20 38 

04 13 or an endorsement providing the same coverage. If requested by Consultant, City 

may approve different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular 

subConsultants. 

 

13. Indemnification. 

 

A. Other than in the performance of professional services, and to the fullest 

extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend (with counsel reasonably 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

approved by City), indemnify and hold City, its officials, officers, attorneys, 

agents, employees, servants, designated volunteers, successors, assigns and 

those City agents serving as independent Consultants in the role of City 

officials (collectively “Indemnitees”) free and harmless with respect to any 

and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liabilities, losses, 

damages, stop notices and/or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to property 

or persons, including bodily injury, wrongful death, personal injury and 

property damage, and destruction, or unauthorized access to, use, and/or theft 

of City Data (collectively, “Claims”) in any manner and to the extent arising 

out of, pertaining to, or incidental to any act, error, omission, or willful 

misconduct of Consultant, its owners, officials, officers, employees, servants, 

subConsultants, consultants or agents (and/or any entity or individual for 

whom Consultant shall bear legal liability) in connection with the 

performance of the Services including the payment of all damages, expert 

witness fees and attorney’s fees and other related costs and expenses actually 

incurred in connection with such defense. Consultant's obligation to 

indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by 

Consultant, or by City or any of the other Indemnitees. Consultant shall have 

no liability hereunder for claims and liabilities arising out of the sole, active 

negligence of any of the Indemnitees. 

 

B. Professional Services. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall, 

at its sole cost and expense, protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify the 

Indemnitees, from and against any and all Claims, whether actual, alleged or 

threatened, to the extent arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to, in whole or 

in part, the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of Consultant, 

and/or its officers, agents, servants, employees, subConsultants, Consultants 

or their officers, agents, servants or employees (and/or any entity or individual 

for whom Consultant shall bear legal liability) in the performance of 

professional services under this Agreement. Consultant shall defend the 

Indemnitees in any action or actions filed in connection with any Claims with 

counsel of the Indemnitees’ choice, and shall pay all costs and expenses, 

including all attorneys’ fees and experts’ costs, actually incurred in connection 

with such defense. 

 

C. Consultant’s obligations under this Section shall survive the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

 

14. Laws and Venue. 

 

This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California 

without regard for change of venue laws. If any action is brought to interpret or enforce 

any term of this Agreement, the action shall be brought in a state or federal court situated 

in the County of Orange, State of California. Consultant must comply with the claim 

procedures set forth in the Government Claims act (Government Code Section 810 et 

seq.) prior to filing any lawsuit against City. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

15. Termination. 

 

A. City may terminate any portion or all of the Services or this Agreement with or 

without cause by giving 10 days’ written notice to Consultant. In such event, City 

shall be immediately given title to and possession of all Work Product (as 

defined) below and original field notes, drawings and specifications, written 

reports and all other documents produced or developed pursuant to this 

Agreement. Provided Consultant is not then in breach, City shall pay Consultant 

for any portion of the Services satisfactorily completed prior to termination. If 

termination occurs prior to completion of any specific task for which a payment 

request has not been received, the charge for Services performed shall be the 

reasonable value of such Services, based on an amount agreed to by the parties. 

City shall not be liable for any costs other than the charges or portions thereof 

which are specified herein. Consultant shall not be entitled to payment for 

unperformed Services, and shall not be entitled to damages or compensation 

resulting from such termination. 

 

B. Consultant may terminate this Agreement only for cause and by serving written 

notice of termination to City, provided Consultant has first served City with a 

written notice of default and demand to cure, and City has failed to cure such 

default within 30 days of receipt of such notice. 

 

16. Ownership of Work Product. 

 

A. All draft and final reports, documents, and other written material, and any and all 

images, ideas, concepts, designs including website designs, source code, object 

code, electronic data and files, and/or other media whatsoever created or 

developed by Consultant in the performance of this Agreement (collectively, 

“Work Product”) shall be considered to be “works made for hire” for the benefit 

of City. All Work Product and any and all intellectual property rights arising from 

their creation, including all copyrights and other proprietary rights, shall be and 

remain the property of City without restriction or limitation upon their use, 

duplication or dissemination by City upon final payment being made, provided 

that any such use shall be at City’s sole risk. Consultant shall not obtain or 

attempt to obtain copyright protection as to any of the Work Product. Consultant 

agrees that the compensation set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement includes 

conveyance to City of ownership of all Work Product, including intellectual 

property rights, as provided in this Section 16. 

 

B. Consultant hereby assigns to City all rights of ownership to the Work Product, 

including any and all related intellectual property and proprietary rights, that are 

not otherwise vested in City pursuant to subsection A above. 

 

C. Consultant warrants and represents that it has secured all necessary licenses, 

consents or approvals necessary to the production of the Work Product, and that 

upon final payment or Consultant’s default, City shall have full legal title to the 

Work Product, and full legal authority and the right to use and reproduce the 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

Work Product for any purpose. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold City, 

and the other Indemnitees harmless from any and all losses, claims or liabilities in 

any way related to a claim that City’s use of any of the Work Product violates 

federal, state or local laws, or any contractual provisions, or any rights or laws 

relating to trade names, licenses, franchises, copyrights, patents or other means of 

protecting intellectual property rights and/or interests in products, ideas or 

inventions. Consultant shall bear all costs arising from the use of patented, 

copyrighted, trade secret or trademarked documents, materials, equipment, 

devices or processes in connection with its provision of the Work Product 

produced under this Agreement. In the event the use of any of the Work Product 

or other deliverables hereunder by City is held to constitute an infringement and 

the use of any of the same is enjoined, Consultant, at its expense, shall: (a) secure 

for City the right to continue using the Work Product and other deliverables by 

suspension of any injunction, or by procuring a license or licenses for City; or (b) 

modify the Work Product and other deliverables so that they become non- 

infringing while remaining in compliance with the requirements of this 

Agreement. Consultant’s obligations under this Section shall survive the 

expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 

17. Data Security. 

 

A. As used in this Agreement, “City Data” means any and all information and data 

provided or made accessible, directly or indirectly, to Consultant by City, or 

otherwise acquired from City, in connection with Consultant’s performance of the 

Services. Except where subject to a third party’s intellectual property rights, any 

and all City Data is solely owned by City. Consultant is granted a limited, non- 

exclusive, and revocable license to use City Data solely as necessary to perform 

the Services. At no time shall Consultant use City Data for its own purposes, or 

sell, disclose or disseminate City Data, except as required by law or to provide the 

Services. At all times herein, Consultant shall protect and maintain the security of 

City Data using methods providing not less than the level of security Consultant 

uses for its own confidential data, and that otherwise comply with recognized 

industry data security standards applicable to similar kinds of governmental data 

and information. 

 

B. To the extent any City Data consists of personal information as defined in 

Consumer Privacy Act (Civil Code Section 1798.100 et seq.), Consultant shall 

comply with that statute and with Civil Code Section 1798.80, et seq., including 

providing the required notifications in the event of any unauthorized access of 

personal information stored, maintained, accessed, used or transmitted by 

Consultant in connection with this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 

Consultant shall within 24 hours notify the City Representative by telephone and 

in writing of any unauthorized access of City Data. Thereafter, Consultant shall 

render any assistance to City and law enforcement as necessary to ascertain the 

nature and extent of such unauthorized access. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

C. Consultant shall not store City Data using cloud-based storage without City’s 

prior, written consent, unless the use of such storage is clearly described in the 

Scope of Services. Where permitted herein, any and all cloud-based storage shall 

be on servers and other hardware located within the continental United States, 

and shall be in compliance with ISO/IEC 27001 - 27018, as applicable, unless 

otherwise agreed to in writing by the City Representative. 

 

18. Party Representatives. 

 

A. Consultant hereby designates Steve Rodig or such person’s designee, as 

Consultant’s Representative for this Agreement, unless and until written 

notice of a new representative acceptable to City is provided to City. 

 

B. City hereby designates Deputy Chief Daniel Mielke  or such person’s 

designee, as the City Representative for this Agreement. 

 

C. The foregoing representatives shall be authorized to provide consent where 

required herein, and to make other administrative decisions that will be 

binding on their respective party, except as otherwise specifically required 

herein. 

 

19. Notices. 

 

Any notices, invoices, or other documents related to this Agreement shall be deemed 

received on: (a) the day of delivery, if delivered by hand during the receiving party’s regular 

business hours or by e-mail before or during the receiving party’s regular business hours; (b) the 

business day after delivery, if delivered by e-mail after the receiving party’s regular business 

hours; or (c) on the second business day following deposit in the United States mail, certified 

mail with return receipt requested and postage prepaid, to the addresses listed below, or to such 

other addresses as the parties may, from time to time, designate in writing. 
 

City Consultant 

City of Brea RCS Investigations & Consulting 

1 Civic Center Circle 1225 W. Lincoln Avenue 

Brea, CA 92821 Anaheim, CA 92805 

United States USA 

Daniel Mielke Steve Rodig 

DanielMi@cityofbrea.gov steve@rcsinvestigations.com 

714-990-7655 714-779-2300 

20. Third Party Rights. 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to anyone 

other than City and Consultant. 

mailto:steve@rcsinvestigations.com


PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

21. Conflicts of Interest. 

 

A. Consultant covenants that it presently has no interest, and shall not acquire 

any interest, direct or indirect, financial or otherwise, which would conflict in 

any manner or degree with the performance of the Services. Consultant 

certifies that no one who has or will have any financial interest under this 

Agreement is an officer or employee of City. 

 

B. Consultant further covenants that, in the performance of this Agreement, no 

subConsultant or person having any interest, direct or indirect, financial or 

otherwise, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of the Services shall be employed. Consultant has provided City 

with a list of all City-approved subConsultants and the key personnel for such 

subConsultants that are retained or to be retained by Consultant in connection 

with the performance of the Services, to assist City in affirming compliance 

with this Section. 

 

C. Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not employed nor retained any 

company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for 

Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement. Further, Consultant warrants 

that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than 

a bona fide employee working solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, 

percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or 

resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. If required, Consultant 

further agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subConsultants to file, a 

Statement of Economic Interest with the City Clerk as required under state 

law in the performance of the Services. For breach or violation of this 

warranty, City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without 

liability. No director, official, officer or employee of City, during the term of 

his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, 

or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

 

22. Severability. 

The unenforceability, invalidity or illegality of any provision(s) of this Agreement shall 

not render the provisions unenforceable, invalid or illegal. 

 

23. Successors and Assigns. 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors in 

interest, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties. 

 

24. Non-Waiver. 

 

None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be considered waived by either party, 

unless such waiver is specified in writing, and any such waiver shall be limited to that set 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

of circumstances and not to any future circumstances unless another written waiver is 

executed. 

 

25. Time of Essence. 

 

Time is of the essence in each and every provision of this Agreement. 

 

26. City’s Right to Employ Other Consultants. 

 

City reserves its right to employ other Consultants to provide the Services or similar 

services. 

 

27. Exhibits. 

 

The attached Exhibits A is incorporated herein by reference. In the event of any conflict 

or inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and any Exhibit, the 

provisions of this Agreement shall govern. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency 

between the provisions of this Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements and 

the Consultant’s Proposal set forth in the attached Attachment 1 to Exhibit A, the 

provisions of the Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements shall govern. 

 

28. Entire Agreement. 

 

This Agreement (including the attached Exhibits) represents the entire understanding of 

the parties as to the Services, and supersedes and cancels any prior or contemporaneous 

oral or written understanding, promises or representations with respect to those matters. 

Each party acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises or agreements 

have been made by any person which are not incorporated herein, and that any other 

agreements shall be void. This Agreement may not be modified or altered except in 

writing signed by both parties. This is an integrated Agreement. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT, the Parties have caused their authorized representatives 

to sign below. Digital Signatures are acceptable if they conform to all requirements of California 

Government Code Section 16.5. 

 

RCS Investigations & Consulting 
 

By:   By:   

Steve Rodig Jorge Cisneros 

Managing Partner Managing Partner 

steve@rcsinvestigations.com jorge@rcsinvestigations.com 

Date Signed:   Date Signed:   

CORPs: Chairperson, President, Vice President;  CORPs: Secretary, Asst. Secretary, Chief Finance 

LLCs: Manager Officer,  Asst. Treasurer 

LLCs: Manager 

[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 313, both signature lines must be executed unless the signatory 

holds at least one of the offices designated on each line.] 

 

[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 17703.01(d), both signature lines must be executed unless the 

articles of incorporation state that the firm is managed by only one manager.] 
 

City of Brea Attest (if over $50,000) 

By:   By:   

Kristin Griffith Lillian Harris-Neal 

City Manager City Clerk 

kristing@cityofbrea.gov Lillianhn@cityofbrea.gov 

Date Signed:   Date Signed:   

Rodig (Jun 4, 2025 11:47 PDT)

06/04/25

Jorge Cisneros (Jun 4, 2025 11:49 PDT)

06/04/25

https://cityofbrea.na2.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAJuVzUEpxlVuDgPj8xXwggzf7iMOpN1yK
https://cityofbrea.na2.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAJuVzUEpxlVuDgPj8xXwggzf7iMOpN1yK


PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

I. Introduction. 

 

The City of Brea is seeking proposals for qualified consultants to: 

 

• Provide as-needed Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for candidates 

for sworn and non-sworn employment with the Brea Fire Department. The anticipated 

average number of annual backgrounds is four (4) Firefighters and ten (10) non-sworn 

Ambulance Operators. 

This request for proposal does not obligate the City of Brea to award a contract or complete the 

project, and the City reserves the right to cancel the solicitation if is considered to be in its best 

interest. The City reserves the right to award more than one contract for the services specified 

herein in order to ensure the continuing ability to obtain timely and accurate background 

investigations of candidates for employment.  

II. Scope of Work. 

 

The successful Proposer shall: 

• Provide investigative services in a professional manner in compliance with all 

applicable federal, state, and local laws, as well as in a workmanlike manner according 

to the standards and ethics in the industry as established by the California Secretary of 

State, Department of Consumer Affairs, Bureau of Investigative Services Furnish 

everything necessary to provide the Services. 

 

Backgrounds shall include a detailed narrative report (“the narrative”) summarizing all findings 

and reports of each applicant’s background and eligibility based on Brea Fire Department 

hiring. The following areas, at minimum, should be both addressed in the narrative and 

supported by documentation included within the background file. 

• Verification of Qualification for Firefighter Appointment (for candidates for sworn 

employment). 

• A review of the candidate’s personal history statement. 

• Criminal history that advises of felony and/or misdemeanor convictions, including 

fingerprint returns, demonstrating the results of a Department of Justice and Federal 

Bureau of Investigation fingerprint check for criminal history (City of Brea HR) Motor 

vehicle driving history (all states in which applicant held an operators/driver’s license), 

including a copy of the applicant’s driver’s license and vehicle registration, and proof 

of motor vehicle insurance. 

• Inquiries with all local law enforcement departments where the candidate has lived, 

worked, attended school, or frequently visited. 

• Financial information, including monthly income/expenses, bankruptcy (if applicable). 

• Education background and verification, including copies of official transcripts, 

diplomas and accreditation verification from high school or equivalent and all colleges 

and universities attended. 

• Employment eligibility and age verification, including copies of any document 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

accepted for proof of employment eligibility, or other official documentation (e.g., birth 

certificate, driver license), verifying date of birth Military verification and Selective 

Service registrations, as applicable, including dates of service, branch of military, rank 

and discharge status, etc. Copies of DD214 Long Form, Selective Service Registration, 

or documentation for willful failure to register must be included as applicable. 

• Proof of marital status, including marriage certificate(s) and all final court-issued 

dissolution documents or legal separation decrees, as applicable. 

• Employment verification and history of at least ten years’, supported by 

comments/questionnaires completed by Human Resources, supervisors, and coworkers, 

as well as evaluations. 

• Verification and contacts with the applicant’s personal/family references (including any 

former spouses), any secondary references provided by primary contacts, and additional 

secondary references as identified by the investigator, supported by 

comments/questionnaires. 

• A thorough search of the candidate’s social media for suitability of employment and for 

bias-relevant information, including hate group affiliation and/or activities. 

(Verification and contacts with the applicant’s current and/or former neighbors, 

supported by comments/questionnaires. 

• Verification of applications to other fire agencies, including an examination of the 

status/dispositions of said applications and review of any relevant background 

documentation contained by those law enforcement agencies. 

• Drug and/or substance use history. 

• Neighborhood and rent check, including contacts with the applicant’s neighbors. 

• Polygraph examination. (Proposer does not administer the polygraph examination, but 

will provide a statement regarding the results of the examination). 

• Civil suits and legal judgments concerning the applicant (Federal, State and current 

County of residence). 

• Social Security Number (SSN) - Trace & Address Locator verification to determine 

name and name variations used by the individual such as maiden, divorced or previous 

names, other names associated with that SSN, current and former addresses associated 

with that SSN, and date of birth. 

• Photographs of the applicant’s home, vehicle, and any and all tattoos located in non- 

sensitive/non-private areas of the 

As a prerequisite for submitting a proposal, Proposers shall possess the following minimum 

qualifications or abilities: 

• Proper training and licensing as required by law, and prior experience conducting 

background investigations for fire agencies. References from all fire agencies for 

whom Proposer has performed background investigation services for in the past two 

years (up to a maximum of three) shall be incorporated into proposal. 

• The ability to provide summary invoicing, which is supported by detailed cost 

descriptions of individual background investigations. 

• Performance of background investigations in accordance with all applicable Federal, 

State and County policies, rules, regulations, laws and codes, including without 

limitation, the Federal Fair Credit Reporting Act (15 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.) and the 

California Investigative Consumer Reporting Agencies Act (Civil Code § 1786 et seq.). 

• The ability to keep itself fully informed of, and shall observe and comply with, all 

relevant laws, ordinances and regulations which in any manner affect those engaged or 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

employed on any work, the collection of data and information, or in any way affect the 

performance of any work under the contract, and of all orders and decrees of agencies 

having any jurisdiction or authority over work performed under the contract. 

• Availability to assist the City should legal action result from the background 

investigations performed by the successful Proposer. 

Written acknowledgement that information shall not be released to any candidate regarding 

their pre-employment background investigation without the express written consent of 

the Brea Fire Department. 

The final scope of work will be negotiated with the selected Consultant(s). 

 

 

 

 

 

End of this Exhibit 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services 

 

Attachment 1 to Exhibit A 

CONSULTANT’S PROPOSAL AND FEE SCHEDULE 

(attached) 



CITYoaBREA

RFP No. 2025 .05 .02 .01

Request for Proposals
Pre-Employment Background Investigation

for Fire Services

TIMELINE IKey Milestones

Key Milestone S c h e d u l e

Release of RFP May 2, 2025

Quest ion Dead l ine May 15, 2025 by 5:00 pm PST

Pre-Proposal Conference (if applicable) Not Applicable

F i n a l A d d e n d u m I s s u e d May 19, 2025

Proposal Deadline May 22, 2025 by 5:00 pm PST

Interviews (week of)* May 27, 2025

Selection of Proposer* June 2, 2025

F i n a n c e C o m m i t t e e R e c o m m e n d a t i o n * June 10, 2025

City Council Award* June 17, 2025

Contract Star t Date* July 1, 2025

*Tentative; at the discretion of the City

To obtains solicitation documents, submit questions, receive answers, and submit a
proposal, proposer’s can visit the City’s eProcurement Portal at the following hyperlink
https://www.publicpurchase.com/gems/brea,ca/buyer/public/home (registration
required).

Please note that proposals may only be submitted electronically.



CITY.rBREA

PA R T I
R E Q U E S T F O R P R O P O S A L S



R F P N o . 2 0 2 5 . 0 5 . 0 2 , 0 1

City of Brea
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire ServicesCITYw^BREA

Request for Proposals
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

I . O v e r v i e w

A. Purpose
The City of Brea ("City") is requesting proposals from qualified service providers to provide Pre-
Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services, as further set forth in Part III
hereto, the Scope of Services and Specification Section ("Services"). Those submitting proposals are
each referred to herein as "proposer". Any proposer selected to provide the foregoing services are
sometimes referred to herein as "Proposer" or "consultant."

B. Specific Processes Applicable to this Request for Proposal (RFP)
To obtain solicitation documents, submit questions, receive answers, ad submit aproposal, visit the
City’s eProcurement Portal at the following hyperlink (registration is required)

Ci ty ' s eProcurement Por ta l

h t tps : / /www.publ icpurchase.com/gems/brea.ca/buyer /publ ic /home

P R O P O S A L S M AY O N LY B E S U B M I T T E D E L E C T R O N I C A L LY

11. Questions and Answers.

A. Questions

Any person contemplating submitting aproposal in response to this RFP who has questions, requires
clarification, or finds any discrepancies with respect to any part of this RFP, the Scope of Services
and Specifications, the City's standard agreement contained herein, or any of the terms and
conditions included therein (collectively, "Solicitation" or "RFP"), must submit their questions
through the City's eProcurement Portal listed above by the Question Deadline set forth in the
Timelines referenced on page one or as may be modified by any addendum. Questions not received
by the Question Deadline will not be considered. As such questions, are non-responsive to the
Solicitation requirements.

B . A n s w e r s

The City will issue addenda to answer question(s) received by the Question Deadline and provide
clarifications and modifications to the Solicitation utilizing the City's eProcurement Portal as
provided above, when deemed to be of sufficient importance or otherwise necessary to more fully
implement the goals and intent of this RFP. Proposers must acknowledge receipt of all City-issued
addenda. Only City's written addenda can modify the requirements of this RFP. Any modifications
set forth in such addenda will supersede and take precedence over the original RFP and any
preceding addendums. Any other form of communications shall have no force or effect with respect
to this Solicitation. The City will not be bound by any verbal representations of any City official or
employee.



R F P N o . 2 0 2 5 . 0 5 . 0 2 . 0 1

City of Brea
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire ServicesCITYo/^BREA

PROPOSALS NOT RECEIVED ELECTRONICALLY BEFORE THE PROPOSAL DUE DATE, SHALL NOT BE
OPENED AND SHALL BE DISREGARDED. PROPOSERS BEAR ANY AND ALL RISKS OF UNTIMELY, OR
NON-RECEIPT OF ANY PROPOSAL, REGARDLESS OF THE CAUSE.

111. Costs Included in Proposal
A. Preparation Expense
Proposers prepare and make proposal(s) at their sole expense.

B. All-Inclusive Costs

Pricing Must Be All-Inclusive. EACH PROPOSAL MUST BE INCLUSIVE OF ALL COSTS TO PERFORM THE
REQUIRED SERVICES. Any and all costs of labor, transportation, materials, software, equipment,
proprietary licenses, and any and all other fees, costs, taxes, insurance, and expenses necessary to
comply with the requirements of this RFP and to provide the Services, must be included in the
proposal price.

IV. Proposal Submission Requirements
A . G e n e r a l

i. Checklist. Use this section as achecklist to help provide acomplete response. Failure to
include and provide all the information specified may result in rejection of the proposal
w i thou t f u r t he r eva lua t i on o r award cons ide ra t i on ,

ii. Signatures. Proposers must sign all forms where indicated. Digital Signatures are acceptable
if they conform to all requirements of California Government Code Section 16.5.

iii. Additional Material. Do not include any promotional material or any material that is not
directly relevant to the objectives of this Solicitation,

iv. Organization. Organize the proposal in the order shown below, separate each section with a
section page and title, and number each section beginning with one.

V. Sections Division and Purpose. Note the Qualifications and Forms sections will be used to
determine if the proposer is qualified and responsive, while the Technical and Costs sections
will be used to determine how well the proposer meets the requirements of this Solicitation
and if the proposed costs are fair and reasonable. The Technical and Costs sections of the
successful proposal may be attached to and incorporated as part of Exhibit Ato the City's
standard Agreement for execution.

B . I n t r o d u c t i o n S e c t i o n

i. Title Page. Provide atitle page showing the Solicitation subject; the proposer's name;
address, and the date of the proposal,

ii. Table of Contents. Provide atable of contents detailing the various sections and page
numbers of the information contained in the proposal,

iii. Letter of Transmittal. Provide aletter of transmittal signed by an individual authorized to
bind the proposer, briefly stating the proposer's understanding of the work to be done, the
commitment to perform the work within the required time period(s), astatement why the



R F P N o . 2 0 2 5 . 0 5 . 0 2 . 0 1

City of Brea
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire ServicesCITY„rBREA

proposer believes itself to be best qualified to perform the Services and astatement that the
proposal is afirm and irrevocable proposal.

C. Qualifications Section

Background. Provide the proposer company's full legal name, address, phone, fax, email,
website; Prior company names (if any) and years in business; mergers, buyouts;
Organizational structure (i.e. corp., LLC, sole proprietorship, etc.) and chart; Names and titles
of the principal owner(s); Person(s) authorized to contractually bind the company. List any
pending litigation and describe any contracts terminated for cause and any governmental
enforcement actions against proposer's company during the previous five (5) years. List any
special recognition or awards.

Experience. Provide asummary of experience with similar kinds of work; Familiarity with
state and federal procedures; Experience working with public agencies. Provide current
business references for whom your company has provided similar services, and avery brief
description of the provided services.

Qualifications. Provide asummary of financial responsibility; Demonstrated technical ability;
Capability of developing innovative or advanced techniques; Special qualifications, training,
credentials; Staff names, titles, role, qualifications, experience, and length of service and the
designated project manager to be assigned to this agreement.

Understanding. Describe proposer's understanding of the work to be done as required by
this RFP. Include any issues that will require special consideration in providing the Services
and identify any unique approaches or strengths your company may have.

D. Technical Section

Approach. Provide adetailed discussion and proposed methodologies of the proposer's
approach to the successful performance of the Services. Include thorough discussions of
methodologies proposer believes are essential to accomplishing each task. Include a
proposed work schedule to accomplish all of the required tasks and identify the team
member responsible for each.

Proposed Schedule. Provide adetailed recommended schedule of activities. If aMeet and
Confer and Presentation Requirements and/or aTentative Schedule are provided in the
Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements Section any recommended modifications
should be addressed.

I.

I I .

I V .

I .

E . Cos t Sec t ion

i. Pricing. Pricing shall be as specifically described in Exhibit "A" to the City's standard form of
agreement attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

F. Forms Section

i . S t a n d a r d F o r m s

a . N o n - C o l l u s i o n A f fi d a v i t F o r m

b . R e f e r e n c e s F o r m



R F P N o . 2 0 2 5 . 0 5 . 0 2 . 0 1

City of Brea
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire ServicesCITY.yBREA

c. SubProposers List-Standard Form

d. Statement of Compliance or Exceptions Form

e . S t a t u s o f P a s t a n d P r e s e n t C o n t r a c t s F o r m

f . I n s u r a n c e C o m m i t m e n t F o r m

g. Proposer Qualification Response Form

h. Firm Proposal Form

i . P r i c e F o r m

G. Withdrawal and Validity. Proposals may be withdrawn before the Proposal Deadline.
Otherwise, proposals are binding for 120 days from the Proposal Deadline.

V. Proposal Review
A. Opening Proposals. Proposals remained unopened until the Proposal Deadline and thereafter

will be electronically unsealed to begin the review and evaluation process set forth in the
Evaluation, Award, Contract, Notice to Proceed Section below.

B. Proposal Information Posted. Proposals received by the Proposal Deadline, will have results
posted on the City's website at www.ci.brea.ca.us/1254/Reauests-for-Bids-Proposals-and-
Quotes. The Proposal results are subject to change based on responsiveness and determination
of qualifications. Further information may be obtained by visiting the webpage, clicking on
Requests for Bids, Proposals, and Quotes, and scrolling to the desired solicitation. City will not
provide results by any other means.

C. Information Posted. For this RFP, only company names of proposers timely submitting
proposals, will be initially posted. No proposal will be available for public review until the
evaluation phase has been completed and an award recommendation, if any, has been made.

D. All Proposals Become City Property and Public Records. All submitted proposals will become
City property and public records subject to disclosure. Flowever, no proposal will be disclosed
unless and until aproposer is selected and recommended for contract award to the City Council;
all proposals are rejected; or, this RFP process is terminated.

DO NOT SUBMIT CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. Any and all notices of "trade secrets",
"confidential information", "do not disclose", and/or any similar types of notices in aproposal
will be disregarded.

VI . Eva luat ion

A. Non-Responsive Proposals. Proposals that are late or misdirected; or where the proposer did
not attend any required mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting or is suspended or debarred
(www.sam.gov) are non-responsive. Proposals that did not include the required documents or
information; modified any terms and conditions; had excessive or inadequate price relative to
the Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements may cause the Proposal to be deemed
non-responsive. Non-responsive Proposals will not be considered for further evaluations or



R F P N o . 2 0 2 5 . 0 5 . 0 2 . 0 1

City of Brea
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire ServicesCITYoaBREA

a w a r d .

B. Responsive Proposals. Proposals that conform in all material respects to the RFP and are eligible
f o r f u r t h e r c o n s i d e r a t i o n .

c . Informalities. City may waive any informalities in any proposal or this RFP process as deemed in
City's best interest.

D. Basis of Award and Evaluation Criteria. If an award is made, it shall be made based on the
proposal determined to provide the greatest benefit to the City. City will evaluate and score each
proposal based on how well it meets the Proposal Submission Requirements including, but not
limited to, the Qualifications, Technical, Cost, Forms sections; any required clarifications,
presentations, interviews; other available information; any required Best and Final Offer (BAFO)
responses; and any other requirements of this RFP not mentioned specifically in this paragraph.

The scoring for Evaluation Criteria is set forth below:
Responsiveness of the Proposal including ability to meet the City's timelines,
and acceptance of City's standard form of agreement

2 5 %

Proposer's qualifications and prior experience 2 5 %

Technical approach to provide the Services 2 0 %

Value and economy to City of the proposed Project approach 2 0 %

Pricing 1 0 %

The City reserves the right to select one or more proposers for further consideration or award of a
contract, based solely on their proposal or, on their proposal and any interviews. The City reserves
the right to negotiate afinal agreement with one or more of the top scoring proposers.

Award, Reject, Rescind.

As may be in City's best interest. City may accept and award acontract to any proposer; rescind any
award; reject any or all proposals; and/or terminate this RFP process at any time.

Agreement .

If an agreement is awarded. City will do so after the successful proposer has satisfied all post-award
requirements (insurance, bonding, etc.). The City's standard form of agreement is attached. Any
requested changes to the agreement will be considered as part of the evaluation/scoring process.
Not ice to Proceed.

City will issue anotice to proceed to Proposer(s) to commence providing the Services at the time
stated in that notice. Absent aformal notice to proceed letter, delivery of the Purchase Order
becomes the de facto notice to proceed unless otherwise stated in the Purchase Order.

End of this Section.



CITY./^BREA

PART I I
S T A N D A R D F O R M S



REQUEST EOR PROPOSALS
Pre-Employment Background Eivestigation Services for Fire Services

2 0 2 5 . 0 5 . 0 2 . 0 1

S T A N D A R D F O R M A

N O N - C O L L U S I O N A F F I D A V I T F O R M

Note: To be executed by Proposer and submitted with Proposal.

S t a t e o f

(thê  Stat̂ f̂ l̂̂ ^̂ bĵ iness)County of
(the County of the place of business)

,being first duly sworn, deposes and
(name of the person signing this form) ^ ■

says that he/she is O J o f

(title of the person signing this form)
,the party making the foregoingc3 \ / 9 S ~ r > C ^ ^ ~ r I ^

5U/ -n>’ A/ C - proposal (name of proposing company)

that the proposal is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership,
company, association, organization, or corporation; that the proposal is genuine and not collusive
or sham; that the PROPOSER has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other proposer
to put in afalse or sham proposal; that the PROPOSER has not directly or indirectly colluded,
conspired, connived, or agreed with any proposer or anyone else to put in asham proposal, or to
refrain from proposing; that the PROPOSER has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought
by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the proposal price of the
PROPOSER or any other proposer, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the proposal
price, or of that of any other proposer; that all statements contained in the proposal are true; and,
the PROPOSER has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her proposal price or any
breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, to any
corporation, partnership, company, association, organization, depository, or to any member or
agent thereof, to effectuate acollusive or sham proposal, and has not paid, and will not pay, any
person or entity for such purpose.

Any person executing this declaration on behalf of aPROPOSER that is acorporation, partnership,
joint venture, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, or any other entity, hereby
represents that they have full power to execute, and does execute, this declaration on behalf of the
P R O P O S E R .

Ideclare under penalty of perjury under the Laws of the State of California that the foregoing is
true and correct and that this declaration is executed/SS set forth.

Signature:
N a m e / T i t l e D a t e :

Notary is not required for this proposal.



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

2 0 2 5 . 0 5 . 0 2 . 0 1

S T A N D A R D F O R M B

REFE^NCES FORM
CbA/sd C

(Proposer’s Company Name)

Provide current business references for whom your company has provided similar services.
Provide very brief description of the Project services your company provided to the reference.
Any unsatisfactory references or past unsatisfactory work performance with City may
eliminate Proposer from further consideration (Brea City Code Sec. 3.24.020.M)

y(p-) JArry ^ ^

yy.y- .s
^),)hr^’^PP^ Q) cy_ F7\ roeA

/i^//g//vj d t F . O s y m T r y ? e j ^ ~

C / R ^ P ' / R f t '
● y j ) ) -
Rros,s^/) / P a / p R e ^ / v ) . a R

Hi

/ A / [ (
AJf A i l R . C E ^

CZ.hhjP'P
c D fl E

1. Company Name
Address, City, State, Zip
C o n t a c t ’ s N a m e & T i t l e

Contact ’s Phone #

C o n t a c t ’ s E m a i l

Project

Completion Date &Value

2. Company Name
Address, City, State, Zip

d s j & U - .C o n t a c t ’ s N a m e & T i t l e

Contact ’s Phone #

C o n t a c t ’ s E m a i l i

Project
Completion Date &Value

3. Company Name
Address, City, State, Zip
C o n t a c t ’ s N a m e & T i t l e

Contact ’s Phone #

C o n t a c t ’ s E m a i l

Project
AJ/-Completion Date &Value

; - r V
3do g- c p ,
/4 «. Pj P-eerTtiP—jy>{\EiC.A

4. Company Name
Address, City, State, Zip
C o n t a c t ’ s N a m e & T i t l e

Contact ’s Phone #

C o n t a c t ’ s E m a i l

Project

r ^ C - z E ^ / P ( JCompletion Date &Value



REQUEST EOR PROPOSALS
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

2 0 2 5 . 0 5 . 0 2 . 0 1

S T A N D A R D F O R M C

S U B P R Q P O S E R S X I S T - S T A N D A R D F O R M .

(Proposer’s Company Name)

Provide the information requested below. Duplicate this form as necessary to complete list.

^Check this box, if no subProposers are to be used for any of the proposed work.
Company Name

Address, City, State, Zip
C o n t a c t ’ s N a m e & T i t l e

1.

Contact ’s Phone #

C o n t a c t ’ s E m a i l

Proposed work &amounts
L i cense #s &C lass

DIR #&Exp Date

Company

Address, City, State, Zip
C o n t a c t ’ s N a m e & T i t l e

2 .

Contact ’s Phone #

C o n t a c t ’ s E m a i l

Proposed work &amounts
L i cense #s &C lass

DIR #&Exp Date

Company

Address, City, State, Zip

3 .

C o n t a c t ’ s N a m e & T i t l e

C o n t a c t ’ s P h o n e #

C o n t a c t ’ s E m a i l

Proposed work &amounts
L i cense #s &C lass

DIR #&Exp Date



REQUEST EOR PROPOSALS
Pre-Employment Background Luvestigation Serviees for Fire Services

2 0 2 5 . 0 5 . 0 2 . 0 1

S T A N D A R D F O R M D

S T A T E M E N T O F C O M P L I A N C E O R E X C E P T I O N S F O R M

Each Proposal must be accompanied by this form. Failure to provide this form will cause
the Proposal to be deemed non-responsive and that Proposal will not be considered for further
e v a l u a t i o n .

(Proposer’s Company Name)

Select one:

No Exceptions

By checking the above box, Proposer declares their Proposal was prepared in strict
compliance with the instructions, conditions, and terms of the Solicitation, Scope of Work, and
Agreement.

With Exceptions

By checking the above box. Proposer declares their Proposal was prepared in consideration
of but with exceptions to one or more of the instructions, conditions, and terms of the Solicitation,
Scope of Work, and Agreement, in which case Proposer must provide adetailed list for all such
exceptions in the following format.

S e c t i o n

Page#
City A

o r DTerm, Condition, Specification Exception &Benefit to City

Proposer acknowledges that City may accept or reject any or all of Proposer’s listed
exceptions or reject the Proposer’s entire Proposal that contain any exceptions.

Signature:

N a m e / Ti t l e D a t e : C 7



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
Pre-Emplo3Tnent Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

2 0 2 5 . 0 5 . 0 2 . 0 1

S T A N D A R D F O R M E

S T A T U S O F P A S T A N D P R E S E N T C O N T R A C T S F O R M

Each Proposal must be accompanied by this form. Failure to provide this form will cause
the Proposal to be deemed non-responsive and that Proposal will not be considered for further
evaluation. As used in this form, “Proposer” means Proposer or any 10% or greater owner of the
proposing company; “Contract Termination” means termination for cause by any other party to a
contract with the Proposer; “Settlement” means settlement of any claim or lawsuit brought against
Proposer in cormection with Proposer’s services; and, “Legal Action” means any lawsuit alleging
fraud, breach or any other misconduct by, or filed against, Proposer.' ^

/fcJ ^ L ) , C
(Proposer’s Company Name)

No Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions

By checking the above box. Proposer declares that the Proposer has not had any Contract
Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions within the past five years of the date signed hereunder
and currently does not have any pending Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions.

One or More Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions

By checking the above box. Proposer declares that the Proposer has had either one or more
Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions within the past five years of the date signed
hereunder in which case, Proposer must provide alist for all such contracts and include:
Contract Title, Contract Value, Termination Date, Company Name, Contact Name, Phone Number,
and Reasons for and descriptions of the Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions.

The Proposer acknowledges that City may: reject any declarations that are not accompanied
with the required documentation as described above; or reject any Proposals wherein Proposer has
had any Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions that City in its sole discretion deems
unacceptable. y .X*

l X - C

Signature:
N a m e / T i t l e D a t e :



REQUEST EOR PROPOSALS
Pre-Employment Background Eivestigation Services for Fire Services

2 0 2 5 . 0 5 . 0 2 . 0 1

S T A N D A R D F O R M F

I N S U R A N C E C O M M I T M E N T F O R M

Each Proposal must be accompanied by this form. Failure to provide this form will cause
the Proposal to be deemed non-responsive and that Proposal will not be considered for further
e v a l u a t i o n .

A l
(Proposer’s Company Name)

Proposer acknowledges that:

City reserves the right to modify the insurance requirements as set for in the Insurance
Requirements section of the Agreement including limits, based on nature of the risk, prior
experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

City’s acceptance and/or approval of the proposer’s insurance documents does not and shall
not be construed to relieve proposer of any obligations, responsibilities or liabilities under any
resul tant Contract .

Proposer’s failure to comply with the required insurance as set forth in the Insurance
Requirements of the Agreement is abreach of contract, which may result in one or more of the
following; suspension of work, suspension or termination of contract, remuneration of
procurement costs for obtaining areplacement Proposer, and suspension from submitting future
proposal based on proposer’s default.

Proposer, at Proposer’s sole cost and expense, hereby promises and agrees to:

Acquire required insurance set forth in the Insurance Requirements of the Agreement.

Provide policies of insurance from acompany or companies having acurrent A.M. Best's
rating of no less than A:VII and admitted and authorized to transact the business of insurance in
the State of California prior to commencing any work and allowing any subProposer to
commence work on any subcontract until it has secured all required insurance unless otherwise
permitted or waived in writing by City’s Risk Manager.

Maintain in force at all times during the term of any Contract, insurance policies as set
forth in the Insurance Requirements of the Agreement; replace any policies whose carrier’s
rating falls below AVII with policies that meet or better the required AVII rating no later than
the renewal date of the policy; amend, supplement, or endorse existing insurance policies that do
not meet the insurance requirements set forth in the Insurance Requirements.

Proposer certifies, represents, and commits to all the Insurance Requirements of the Agreement.

Signature:
N a m e / T i t l e D a t e ;

C C - O A i S c J A / b



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
Pre-Emplo3Tnent Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

2 0 2 5 . 0 5 . 0 2 . 0 1

S T A N D A R D F O R M G

PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS RESPONS
c^ ([^tJSLkyr7f t p cA .

(Proposer’s Company Name)

Proposers must have demonstrated trustworthiness, as well as the necessary quality, fitness,
capacity, and experience to satisfactorily provide the requirements specified in this Solicitation
based on prior experience with city, references, and other available information.

Provide the information requested below. Do not omit or renumber any sections. All items listed
must be submitted and checked off to ensure qualification responsiveness.

1 . Background.

Please provide the following information about your company:

□ Your company’s full legal name, address, phone, fax, email, website.

Prior company names (if any) and years in business; mergers, buyouts, etc.

Organizational structure (i.e. corp., LLC, sole proprietorship, etc.).

Names and titles of the principal owner(s).

Person(s) authorized to make commitments for your company.

Special recognition or awards.

□
□

□

□

□

2. Experience.

Provide the following infonnation relative to required services:

□Summary of Experience with similar kinds of work.
DFamiliarity with state and federal procedures.
□Experience working with public agencies.
□Narrative of the working relationship with current business references for information

not already included in the References Form.

3 . Qua l i flca t i ons .

Provide the following information relative to required services:

DFinancial responsibility,
nDemonstrated Technical Ability.
□Capability of developing innovative or advanced techniques.
□Special qualifications, training, credentials.



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

2 0 2 5 . 0 5 . 0 2 . 0 1

□Staff names, titles, role, qualifications, and experience assigned to this Project.
□Designated project manager assigned to this Project.

Understanding.

Provide the following information relative to required services:

□Understanding of the work to be done based on this Solicitation.
□Include issues that you believe will require special consideration for this Project.
□Identify unique approaches or strengths your company has relative to required
serv ices .

4 .

5 . Approach.

Provide the following information relative to required services:

DUnderstanding of the work to be done.
DAdequacy of labor and resources to satisfactorily perform the requested services and
meet the City’s needs.

□Names and titles of key management personnel.
□Team to be assigned for these services.

Submitted by:

Signature:
N a m e / Ti t l e D a t e :

f c t :



R
I N V E S T I G A T I O N S

&CONSULTING, LLC
P.O. Box 29798

Anateim Haisi CA 92809-9798
WWW.IC sinvesti gations.c om

(714) 779-2300

Request for Proposal

City of Brea

R F P # 2 0 2 5 . 0 5 . 0 2 . 0 1

May 22, 2025

S E C T I O N 1

B A C K G R O U N D

RCS Investigations &Consulting LLC has provided background and investigative services to
more than 60 public agencies in California since 2006 and have since earned asolid reputation
throughout the region. As former law enforcement managers, RCS managing partners understand
the importance of completing athorough and ethical work product in aprofessional manner.

RCS Investigations &Consulting has completed in excess of 3,000 police/fire background
investigations in the past 19 years. RCS Investigators have continually provided comprehensive
and impartial public safety background reports, which meet or exceed requirements established by
the California Commission for Police Officer Standards and Training [POST] when required.
RCS Investigators utilize astandard approach for conducting background investigations to include
interviews with relatives, neighbors, employers, and personal references, as well as by performing
acomprehensive review of all required documents for the position.

RCS Investigations &Consulting will provide all services in aprofessional manner, as well as in
aworkmanlike manner according to the standards and ethics of the industry established by the
California Department of Consumer Affairs-Bureau of Investigative Services.

RCS Investigations &Consulting is alimited liability corporation [LLC], whose two primary
partners are Steve Rodig and Jorge Cisneros [retired managers from the Anaheim Police
Department]. Both partners are qualified managers as defined through the California Bureau of
Investigative Services and are designed as individuals authorized to make commitments for the
company. The company office address is 1225 W. Lincoln Avenue, Anaheim, California 92805,
and the business mailing address is P.O. Box 29798, Anaheim, California 92809-9798. The
company office number is 714-779-2300 and the email address isjorge@rcsinvestigations.com.

1



S E C T I O N 2

E X P E R I E N C E

RCS Investigations &Consulting LLC is an insured company, whose primary partners are retired
law enforcement professionals with over 50 years of combined experience working in the public
sector. Both partners are qualified managers as defined through the California Bureau of
Investigative Services.

RCS Investigators have provided background and investigative services to more than 60 public
agencies in California since 2006. As former law enforcement managers, RCS managing partners
understand the importance of completing athorough and ethical work product in aprofessional,
and timely manner.

RCS Investigations &Consulting have completed in excess of 3,000 police/fire background
investigations in the past 19 years. RCS Investigators have continually provided comprehensive
and impartial public safety backgroimd reports, which meet or exceed requirements established by
the California Commission for Police Officer Standards and Training [POST] when required.

RCS Investigations &Consulting utilizes more than 30 select retired law enforcement/fire
department independent contractors with aminimum of 20 years of experience to conduct
background investigations in order to achieve various objectives designated by the client. Most of
the independent contractors retired as either supervisors or managers at their respective law
enforcement or fire department agencies. The designated ‘Project Managers’ from RCS
Investigations &Consulting are Steve Rodig and Jorge Cisneros.

S E C T I O N 3

Q U A L I F I C AT I O N S

RCS Investigations &Consulting LLC is an insured company, whose primary partners are retired
law enforcement professionals with over 50 years of combined experience working in the public
sector. Both partners are qualified managers as defined through the California Bureau of
Investigative Services.

RCS Investigators have provided background and investigative services to more than 60 public
agencies in California since 2006. As former law enforcement managers, RCS managing partners
understand the importance of completing athorough and ethical work product in aprofessional,
and timely manner.

2



RCS Investigations &Consulting have completed in excess of 3,000 police/fire background
investigations in the past 19 years. RCS Investigators have continually provided comprehensive
and impartial public safety background reports, which meet or exceed requirements established by
the California Commission for Police Officer Standards and Training [POST] when required.

RCS Investigations &Consulting utilizes more than 30 select retired law enforcement/fire
department independent contractors with aminimum of 20 years of experience to conduct
background investigations in order to achieve various objectives designated by the client. Most of
the independent contractors retired as either supervisors or managers at their respective law
enforcement or fire department agencies. The designated ‘Project Managers’ from RCS
Investigations &Consulting are Steve Rodig and Jorge Cisneros.

Since 2006, RCS Investigations &Consulting has provided background and or administrative
investigative services to anumber of public agencies including and not limited to the following:

City of Adelanto
City of Anaheim
City of Alhambra
City of Arcadia
City of Banning
City of Buena Park
Bear Valley Community Services District
City of Bell
City of Bell Gardens
City of Beverly Hills
City of Brea
City of Carmel by the Sea
City of Cathedral City
City of Compton
Chaffey Community College District
Chino Valley Independent Fire District
Conejo Recreation and Park District
City of Costa Mesa
City of Coronado
City of Culver City
City of Cypress
C o r o n a - N o r c o U n i fi e d S c h o o l D i s t r i c t

City of Downey
City of Desert Hot Springs
City of El Centro
City of Fountain Valley
City of Fullerton
City of Garden Grove
City of Gardena
City of Glendora

3



S o u t h e r n C a l i f o r n i a A s s o c i a t i o n o f G o v e r n m e n t s

City of Hawthorne
City of Hermosa Beach
City of Huntington Park
City of Huntington Beach
City of Indio
City of Irvine
City of Garden Grove
City of Glendora
City of Laguna Beach
City of La Habra
City of La Palma
City of Los Angeles Housing Authority
City of Lynwood
City of Maywood
City of Manhattan Beach
City of Malibu Beach
City of Montebello
City of Monterey Park
City of Montclair
City of Monrovia
City of Newport Beach
City of Glendora
City of Orange
County of Orange
City of Perris
City of Pomona
City of Placentia
City of Palos Verdes Estates
City of Rancho Palos Verdes
City of Redondo Beach
City of Riverside
City of Santa Ana
City of San Gabriel
City of San Fernando
City of Seal Beach
City of Signal Hill
City of Simi Valley
City of El Monte
City of South El Monte
City of South Pasadena
City of South Gate
City of Tehachapi
City of Walnut

4



City of West Covina
City of Westminster
City of West Hollywood
City of Whittier
Cos ta Mesa San i t a t i on D i s t r i c t
F u l l e r t o n U n i fi e d S c h o o l D i s t r i c t

Glendale Community College District
Inland Empire Utilities Commission
Inglewood Unified School District
M e s a C o n s o l i d a t e d Wa t e r D i s t r i c t

Mount San Antonio College District
Pasadena Community College District
S a n t a A n a U n i fi e d S c h o o l D i s t r i c t

South Western Community College District
S t o c k t o n U n i fi e d S c h o o l D i s t r i c t

San Bernardino Community College District
San Gabriel Valley Vector and Control District
S ta te Ba r o f Ca l i f o rn ia

Orange County Bar Association
University of California Irvine
University of California Los Angeles
University of California Riverside
University of Southern California
California State University San Bernardino
California State University Northridge
Ventura Regional Sanitation District
Vista Irrigation District

RCS Investigations &Consulting have never experienced aterminated contract for convenience,
non-performance, or any other reason; and have never entered into alegal action with aclient.

S E C T I O N 4 & S E C T I O N 5

U N D E R S T A N D I N G & A P P R O A C H

RCS Investigations &Consulting will submit acompleted background investigation report/file
within areasonable amount of time and usually prior to seven weeks, barring any unforeseen
conditions. RCS Investigations will provide amanaging partner from the company to serve as a
point of contact as needed by the City of Brea for each assigned background investigation.

RCS Investigations and Consulting will generally conduct the following work-related practices as
part of the background process for the Brea Fire Department:

5



●Conduct apreliminary review of the documents provided for the background process.
●Conduct afull review of the Personal History Statement and identify pertinent concerns

and/or responses from the applicant in the background report.
●Verify the applicant’s name, date of birth and citizenship by using approved forms of

d o c u m e n t a t i o n .

●Verify marital/divorce status by reviewing marriage certificates and divorce dissolutions.
Interview current spouses (and former spouses on an as-needed basis).

●Conduct interviews with employers, personal references, landlords, family members,
neighbors and dating partners.

●Verify the applicant’s educational backgroimd through official documents.
●Review the applicant’s driving history and government records via existing databases.
●Review the applicant’s military history (if available) and verify service status through

accepted government documents.
●Review the applicant’s credit history (when applicable), identify past financial issues, and

confirm the current payment status.
●Send local agency check letters to locations where the applicant has worked or resided in

the past three years.
●Conduct public social network searches within the confines of California law. (RCS

Investigators will not request applicants to log on to their private accounts for viewing
purposes).

●Provide acomprehensive report addressed to the Fire Chief to include the areas defined in
the background scope of services.

●Submit the background file to the Brea Fire Department within areasonable amount of
time for review, usually within seven weeks.

6



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

2025.05.02.01

S TA N D A R D F O R M H

A FIRM PROPOSAL FORM ^
KCSt f - Q 5 v J S - < J - V 7 / V 6 7

(Proposer’s Company Name)

FIRM PROPOSAL made by Proposer to the City of Brea:
I, the undersigned, hereby represent and warrant that Iam authorized to submit this Proposal on behalf of
and to bind the principals who Irepresent, to all the requirements of the City of Brea’s Terms and Conditions,
Specifications, Scope or Work, any attachments, exhibits, amendments; and Ioffer and agree to those
requirements at the prices set forth in the Proposal Form.
Further, Iunderstand that no contract exists unless City accepts this Proposal by executing the attached
Agreement

^ U J ' L j N c d u N
Federal K>#: ^

Business Name:

Business Address:

If any Work is aPublic WorksPropOSer Lic#:
Business Type:

(Proposer enter anumber)

DIR#:
1. Individual/Sole Proprietor or Single-Member LLC; 2. CCorporation;
3. Corporation; 4. Paitnership; 5. Trust/Estate; 6. Limited Liability Co.

y
c,

ByrBy: &
1

Name:^?72V^ Rc>0/C,
fnerTAJeri- , ,
:37&^e

N a m e :

Title: PA 1 ^ ^ - ^ r t 5 ^ p Z L _T i t l e :

Date Signed:
corps: Secretary, Assist. Secretary, Chief Finance
Officer, Assist. Treasurer
LLCs: Manager

[Pursuant to California (Corporations (Code Section 313, both signature lines must be executed unless the signatory
holds at least one of the offices designated on each line.]

E m a i l :

Date Signed: 3~
corps: Chairperson, President, Vice President
LLCs Manager

[Pursuant to (California Corporations Code Section 17703.01(d), for limited liability companies, both signature lines
must be executed unless the articles of incorporation state that the firm is managed by only one manager.]



REQUEST EOR PROPOSALS
Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

2 0 2 5 . 0 5 . 0 2 . 0 1

S T A N D A R D F O R M I

U S
(Proposer’s Company Name)

Separate and describe your tasks, and associated costs, for the Scope of Services requirements.
Attach additional pages if necessary.

Please note that pricing Must Be All-Inclusive. EACH PROPOSAL MUST BE INCLUSIVE
OF ALL COSTS TO PERFORM THE REQUIRED SER VICES. Any and all costs of labor,
transportation, materials, software, equipment, proprietary licenses, and any and all other fees,
costs, taxes, insurance, and expenses necessary to comply with the requirements of this RFP and
to provide the Services, must be included in the proposal price.

T a s k s Descr ip t ion R a t e

1

2

3 $

$:4

5 $

6 $

7 $

$8

$9

$1 0

Proposal Total Costs (add above lines)

A d d i t i o n a l c o m m e n t s / r e m a r k s :



CITYorBREA

PA RT I I I
A G R E E M E N T &

S C O P E O F S E R V I C E S



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated {AgreementDate} for reference
purposes and is executed by the City of Brea, aCalifornia municipal corporation (“City”), and
{Consultant Name} a(Legal Status} (“Consultant”).

R E C I T A L S

City desires to retain Consultant as an independent Consultant to provide the following
professional services; As-Needed Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire
S e r v i c e s .

A .

B . Consultant represents that it is duly licensed, fully authorized by law, and has the
necessary experience and qualifications, to provide such services.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

A G R E E M E N T

1 . Scope of Services.

Consultant shall perform the services referenced in the Recitals, as required by the RFP
and more specifically described in the Scope of Services set forth in the

attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and as otherwise required by this Agreement, all to City’s
satisfaction (collectively, “Services”).

da ted

2 . Compensation.

City shall pay for the Services satisfactorily performed, in accordance with
the Fee Schedule set for th in the at tached At tachment 1to Exhib i t A
here to .

A .

In no event shall the total amount paid for the Services over the term of this
Agreement exceed the all-inclusive sum of ${ContractAmount} (“Contract
Amounf’). This amount covers and is inclusive of all labor, materials, and
any and all other costs incurred by Consultant in performing the Services.
Consultant shall be deemed to have made all inquiries and site inspections
deemed necessary by Consultant prior to execution of this Agreement.

B .

Unless the Fee Schedule calls for payment of aone-time flat fee, periodic
payments for undisputed work shall be made within 30 days of receipt of an
invoice which includes adetailed description of the work performed.
Consultant’s invoices shall indicate the amount of time spent on each task
and the applicable rate.

C .

Unless the Fee Schedule calls for payment on adifferent schedule.
Consultant shall invoice City on amonthly basis.

D .

3 . Contingency Work.



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

The parties may agree on contingency work to be provided as part of the Services. A
written amendment to this Agreement shall be executed for contingency work that increases the
C o n t r a c t

Amount by more than {Contingency Percent} percent. The City Manager, or designee, is
authorized to approve, in writing, contingency work that is below the foregoing limit.
Consultant’s monthly invoice shall include adetailed description of any approved, contingency
work. Any work performed by Consultant without awritten amendment or approval of the City
Manager, or designee, shall be deemed to be work included within the Services.

4 . T e r m .

The term of this Agreement shall commence on {TermStartDate} (“Effective Date”).
Unless extended or earlier terminated as provided herein, this Agreement has aone-year term
with an option to extend for four additional one-year term at the City’s discretion.

5 . T i m e o f P e r f o r m a n c e .

Consultant shall complete the Services within the term of this Agreement,
and shall meet any other established and agreed upon schedules and
deadlines agreed upon in writing. Consultant shall commence performance
within two business days of receiving City’s written notice to proceed.

A .

B . Force Majeure. Neither party shall be considered in default of this
Agreement for delays in performance caused by aforce majeure event. As
used in this Agreement, the term “force majeure event” means
circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the non-performing party
and includes the following: abnormal weather conditions; floods;
earthquakes; fire; epidemics; war; riots and other civil disturbances; strikes,
lockouts, work slowdowns, and other labor disturbances; sabotage; or
judicial restraint. Consultant’s lack of financial capabilify, shall not
constitute aforce majeure event unless directly attributable to any of the
foregoing events.

C . Should aforce majeure event occur, the non-performing party shall, within
areasonable time of being prevented from performing, give written notice
to the other party describing the circumstances preventing continued
performance and the efforts being made to resume performance of this
Agreement.

6 . M a i n t e n a n c e o f R e c o r d s .

Books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the
Services, including costs incurred, shall be maintained by Consultant and made available
for review by City at all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement and for four
(4) years from the date of final payment by City.



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Serviees for Fire Services

S t a n d a r d o f C a r e .7 .

Consultant’s Services shall be performed in accordance with the generally accepted
professional standards of practice and principles and in amanner consistent with the level
of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently performing
similar services under similar conditions. Consultant shall maintain all professional
licenses and certifications required to lawfully perform the Services.

8 . Compliance with Law.
A. Consultant shall comply with all applicable laws including Cal/OSHA

requirements.
B. Consultant shall obtain aCity of Brea business license.
C. Consultant shall comply with all {AdditionalLegalRequirements}.

9 . Assignment and Subcontracting.

A . Consultant shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or
obligations under, or any interest in this Agreement, or subcontract any
required performance hereunder, without the prior written consent of City,
which may be withheld for any reason. City shall be deemed to have
approved Consultant’s utilization of subConsultants identified in
Consultant’s proposal for the Services.

B . Any attempt to so assign, transfer, or subcontract without City’s prior written
consent shall be void and shall constitute grounds for City’s termination of
this Agreement. Authorized subcontracts shall contain aprovision making
the subConsultant subject to all requirements of this Agreement.

C . If use of asubConsultant is approved, then City may withhold 5% of each
monthly payment to Consultant. Such retention shall be released upon City’s
receipt of an unconditional release of all claims signed by any such
subConsultant, as to work performed to date.

10. Independent Consultant.

Consultant is retained as an independent Consultant and is not an employee
of City. No employee or agent of Consultant is or shall become an employee
of City.

A .

B . Consultant will determine the means, methods, and details by which
Consultant’s personnel will perform the Services. Consultant shall be solely
responsible for the satisfactory work performance of all personnel engaged in
performing the Services and compliance with the customary professional
s tandards .



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Serviees

C. Consultant’s personnel shall not wear or display any City uniform, badge,
identification number, or other information identifying such individual as an
employee of City. Consultant’s personnel shall not use any City e-mail
address or City telephone number in the performance of the Services.
Consultant shall acquire and maintain at its sole cost and expense such
vehicles, equipment and supplies as Consultant’s personnel require to
perform the Services. Consultant shall perform the Services off of City
premises at locations of Consultant’s choice, except as otherwise may from
time to time be necessary in order for Consultant’s persormel to receive
projects from City, review plans on file at City, pick up or deliver any work
product, or as may be necessary to inspect or visit City locations. City may
make acomputer available to Consultant from time to time for Consultant’s
personnel to obtain information about or to check on the status of projects
pertaining to the Services.

D. Consultant shall be responsible for and pay all wages, salaries, benefits and
other amounts due to Consultant’s personnel in connection with the Services.
Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such
additional personnel, including Social Security taxes, other retirement or
pension benefits, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance,
disability insurance, and workers' compensation insurance. Consultant and its
officers, employees, agents, and subConsultants shall not become entitled to,
and hereby waive any claims to, any wages, salaries, compensation, benefit
or any incident of employment by City, including eligibility to enroll in, or
reinstate to membership in, the California Public Employees Retirement
System (“PERS”) or any other retirement program, as an employee of City,
and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by City for employer
contributions or employee contributions for PERS benefits or any other
re t i rement benefi ts .

11 . CalPERS Compliance.

The parties acknowledge that City is alocal agency member of CalPERS, and as such has
certain pension reporting and contribution obligations to CalPERS on behalf of
qualifying employees. Consultant agrees that, in providing its employees and any other
personnel to City to perform the Services, Consultant shall assure compliance with the
Public Employees’ Retirement Law (Government Code Section 20000 et seq.), the
regulations of CalPERS, and the Publie Employees’ Pension Reform Aet of 2013
(Government Code Section 7522 et seq.). Without limitation to the foregoing. Consultant
shall assure compliance with regard to personnel who have aetive or inactive membership
in CalPERS and to those who are retired annuitants and in performing this Agreement
shall not assign or utilize any of its personnel in amanner that will cause City to be in
violation of the applieable retirement laws and regulations.

1 2 . I n s u r a n c e .



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

Unless otherwise permitted or waived in writing by City’s Risk Manager, Consultant
shall not commence work until it has secured all insurance required under this section and
provided evidence thereof that is acceptable to City. In addition, Consultant shall not
allow any subConsultant to commence work on any subcontract until it has secured all
insurance required under this section.

Commercial General LiabilityA .

Consultant shall take out and maintain, in amounts not less than specified
herein. Commercial General Liability Insurance, in aform and with
insurance companies acceptable to City.

1 .

Coverage for Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as
broad as the following:

11 .

Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability
coverage (Occurrence Form CG 00 01) or exact equivalent.

a .

Commercial General Liability Insurance must include coverage for the
following:

111

Bodily Injury and Property Damage
Personal Injury/Advertising Injury
Premises/Operations Liability
Products/Completed Operations Liability
Aggregate Limits that Apply per Project
Contractual Liability with respect to this Agreement
Broad Form Property Damage
Independent Consultants Coverage

a .

b.

c .

d .

e .

f

g-

h .

iv. The policy shall contain no endorsements or provisions limiting coverage
for (1) contractual liability; (2) cross liability exclusion for claims or suits
by one insured against another; (3) products/completed operations liability;
or (4) contain any other exclusion contrary to this Agreement.

V. The policy shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers,
employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as
independent Consultants in the role of City officials, as additional insureds
using ISO endorsement forms CG 20 10 10 01 and 20 37 10 01, or
endorsements providing the exact same coverage.

vi. The general liability coverage may utilize deductibles or provide coverage
excess of aself-insured retention, only if approved by City’s Risk
Manager in writing, and further provided that such deductibles shall not
apply to coverage of the additional insureds.



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

Automobile LiabilityB .

Consultant shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injury
and property damage including coverage for owned, non-owned and hired
vehicles, in aform and with insurance companies acceptable to City.

1 .

Coverage for automobile liability insurance shall be at least as broad as
Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering automobile
liability (Coverage Symbol 1, any auto).

11 .

The policy shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers,
employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as
independent Consultants in the role of City officials, as additional
insureds.

111 .

Subject to City’s written approval, the automobile liability coverage may
utilize deductibles or provide coverage excess of aself-insured retention,
provided that such deductibles shall not apply to coverage of the
addi t iona l insureds.

I V .

C . Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability

Consultant certifies that Consultant is aware of the provisions of Labor
Code Section 3700 which requires every employer to be insured against
liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in
accordance with the provisions of that code, and he/she/it will comply
with such provisions before commencing work under this Agreement.

1.

Consultant shall maintain lull compensation insurance for its employees in
accordance with the Workers’ Compensation and Insurance Act (Labor
Code Section 3200 et seq.) and Employer’s Liability Coverage in amounts
indicated herein. Consultant shall require all subConsultants to obtain and
maintain workers’ compensation coverage of the same type and limits as
specified in this section.

11 .

Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions)D .

Consultant shall maintain professional liability or errors and omissions insurance
appropriate to its profession, in aform and with insurance companies acceptable to City and with
the limits required herein. This insurance shall be endorsed to include contractual liability
applicable to this Agreement and shall be written on apolicy coverage form specifically designed
to protect against acts, errors or omissions of Consultant in the performance of professional
services. “Covered Professional Services” as designated in the policy must specifically include
work performed under this Agreement. The policy must “pay on behalf of’ the insured and must
include aprovision establishing the insurer's duty to defend.

E . C y b e r L i a b i l i t y



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

If Cyber Liability is included in the Minimum Policy Limits Required below, then
Consultant shall maintain cyber liability insurance providing protection against claims and
liabilities arising from; (i) errors and omissions in connection with maintaining security of City
Data (as defined below); (ii) data breach including theft, destruction, and/or unauthorized use of
City Data; (iii) identity theft including bank charges assessed; and (iv) violation of privacy rights
due to abreach of City Data.

F . Minimum Policy Limits Required
A.M. Best's Rating1 .

Each policy of insurance required herein shall be from acompany or companies
having acurrent A.M. Best's rating of no less than A; VII and admitted and authorized to transact
the business of insurance in the State of California.

The following insurance limits are required for this Agreement:11 .

C o m b i n e d S i n g l e L i m i t

$1,000,000 per occurrence/ $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily
injury, personal injury, and property damage

If lEl, then required
lElCommercial General Liability

iKlAutomobile Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence (any auto) for bodily injury and
property damage

In the amount required by California lawlElWorkers’ Compensation

$1,000,000 per occurrencelElEmployer’s Liability

$2,000,000 per claim and aggregate (errors and omissions)

$2,000,000 per occurrence

Defense costs shall be payable in addition to the limits.

ix] Professional Liability

lEl Cyber Liability
111 .

Requirements of specific coverage or limits contained in this section are
not intended as alimitation on coverage, limits, or other requirement, or a
waiver of any coverage normally provided by any insurance. Any
available coverage shall be provided to the parties required to be named as
additional insured pursuant to this Agreement.

I V .

G . P r o o f o f I n s u r a n c e

Within five days of execution of this Agreement, but prior to
commencement of the Services, Consultant shall file with City evidence of
insurance from an insurer or insurers certifying to the coverage of all
insurance required herein. Such evidence shall include original copies of the
ISO CG 00 01 (or insurer’s equivalent) signed by the insurer’s representative
and Certificate of Insurance (Acord Form 25-S or equivalent), together with
required endorsements. All evidence of insurance shall be signed by a
properly authorized officer, agent, or qualified representative of the insurer



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

and shall certify the names of the insured, any additional insureds, where
appropriate, the type and amount of the insurance, the location and operations
to which the insurance applies, and the expiration date of such insurance.

Policy Provisions RequiredH .

i. Consultant shall provide City at least 30 days prior written notice of
cancellation of any policy required by this Agreement, except that
Consultant shall provide at least 10 days prior written notice of
cancellation of any such policy due to non-payment of premium. If any of
the required coverage is cancelled or expires during the term of this
Agreement, Consultant shall deliver renewal certificate(s) including the
required additional insured endorsement to City at least 10 days prior to
the effective date of cancellation or expiration.

The Commercial General Liability Policy and Automobile Liability
Policy
shall each contain aprovision stating that Consultant’s policy is primary
insurance and that any insurance, self-insurance or other coverage
maintained by City or any additional insureds shall not be called upon to
contribute to any loss.

11 .

The retroactive date (if any) of each policy is to be no later than the
effective date of this Agreement. If a“claims-made” professional liability
policy is provided, it shall include an extended reporting period of not
less than three years.

111 .

All required insurance coverages, except for the professional and cyber
liability coverage, shall contain or be endorsed to provide awaiver of
subrogation in favor of City, its officials, officers, employees, agents,
servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as independent
Consultants in the role of City officials, or shall specifically allow
Consultant or others providing insurance evidence in compliance with
these specifications to waive their right of recovery prior to aloss.
Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery against City, and shall
require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each
of i ts subConsul tants.

I V .

The limits set forth herein shall apply separately to each insured against
whom claims are made or suits are brought, except with respect to the
limits of liability. Further the limits set forth herein shall not be construed
to relieve Consultant from liability in excess of such coverage, nor shall it
limit Consultant’s indemnification obligations to City or preclude City
from taking such other actions available to City under other provisions of
this Agreement or law.

V .

I . Add i t i ona l I nsu rance P rov i s ions



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

The foregoing requirements as to the types and limits of insurance
coverage to be maintained by Consultant, and any approval of such
insurance by City, are not intended to and shall not in any manner limit or
qualify the liabilities and obligations otherwise assumed by Consultant
pursuant to this Agreement, including the provisions concerning
i n d e m n i fi c a t i o n .

1 .

If at any time during the term of this Agreement, any poliey of insurance
required under this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or
is canceled and not replaced. City has the right but not the duty to obtain
the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid by City will be
promptly reimbursed by Consultant or City will withhold amounts
sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. In the alternative.
City may terminate this Agreement for cause.

11 .

City may require Consultant to provide for inspection by City, complete
copies of all insurance policies in effect for the duration of the Agreement.

111 .

No City official, officer, employee, agent or volunteer shall be personally
responsible for any liability arising under or by virtue of this Agreement.

I V .

The insurance obligations under this Agreement shall be; (1) all the
insurance coverage and/or limits earried by or available to Consultant; or
(2) the minimum insurance coverage requirements and/or limits shown in
this Agreement; whiehever is greater. Any insurance proceeds in exeess of
or broader than the minimum required coverage and/or minimum required
limits, which are applicable to agiven loss, shall be available to City. No
representation is made that the minimum insuranee requirements of this
Agreement are sufficient to cover the obligations of Consultant under this
Agreement.

V .

J . SubConsultant Insurance Requirements

Consultant shall not allow any subConsultant to commence work on any
subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to City that it has secured all
insurance required under this section. Policies of commercial general liability insurance
provided by such subConsultants shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers,
employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as independent
Consultants in the role of City officials as additional insureds, using ISO form CG 20 38
04 13 or an endorsement providing the same coverage. If requested by Consultant, City
may approve different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular
subConsu l tan ts .

1 3 . I n d e m n i fi c a t i o n .

A. Other than in the performance of professional services, and to the fullest
extent permitted by law. Consultant shall defend (with counsel reasonably



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

approved by City), indemnify and hold City, its officials, officers, attorneys,
agents, employees, servants, designated volunteers, successors, assigns and
those City agents serving as independent Consultants in the role of City
officials (collectively “Indemnitees”) free and harmless with respect to any
and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liabilities, losses,
damages, stop notices and/or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to property
or persons, including bodily injury, wrongful death, personal injury and
property damage, and destruction, or unauthorized access to, use, and/or theft
of City Data (collectively, “Claims”) in any manner and to the extent arising
out of, pertaining to, or incidental to any act, error, omission, or willful
misconduct of Consultant, its owners, officials, officers, employees, servants,
subConsultants, consultants or agents (and/or any entity or individual for
whom Consultant shall bear legal liability) in connection with the
performance of the Services including the payment of all damages, expert
witness fees and attorney’s fees and other related costs and expenses actually
incurred in connection with such defense. Consultant's obligation to
indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by
Consultant, or by City or any of the other Indemnitees. Consultant shall have
no liability hereunder for claims and liabilities arising out of the sole, active
negligence of any of the Indemnitees.

B. Professional Services. To the fullest extent permitted by law. Consultant shall,
at its sole cost and expense, protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify the
Indemnitees, from and against any and all Claims, whether actual, alleged or
threatened, to the extent arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to, in whole or
in part, the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of Consultant,
and/or its officers, agents, servants, employees, subConsultants, Consultants
or their officers, agents, servants or employees (and/or any entity or individual
for whom Consultant shall bear legal liability) in the performance of
professional services under this Agreement. Consultant shall defend the
Indemnitees in any action or actions filed in connection with any Claims with
counsel of the Indemnitees’ choice, and shall pay all costs and expenses,
including all attorneys’ fees and experts’ costs, actually incurred in connection
with such defense.

C. Consultant’s obligations under this Section shall survive the expiration or
termination of this Agreement.

14. L a w s a n d Ve n u e .

This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California
without regard for change of venue laws. If any action is brought to interpret or enforce
any term of this Agreement, the action shall be brought in astate or federal court situated
in the County of Orange, State of California. Consultant must comply with the claim
procedures set forth in the Government Claims act (Government Code Section 810 et
seq.) prior to filing any lawsuit against City.



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

1 5 . T e r m i n a t i o n .

A. City may terminate any portion or all of the Services or this Agreement with or
without cause by giving 10 days’ written notice to Consultant. In such event, City
shall be immediately given title to and possession of all Work Product (as
defined) below and original field notes, drawings and specifications, written
reports and all other documents produced or developed pursuant to this
Agreement. Provided Consultant is not then in breach. City shall pay Consultant
for any portion of the Services satisfactorily completed prior to termination. If
termination occurs prior to completion of any specific task for which apayment
request has not been received, the charge for Services performed shall be the
reasonable value of such Services, based on an amount agreed to by the parties.
City shall not be liable for any costs other than the charges or portions thereof
which are specified herein. Consultant shall not be entitled to payment for
unperformed Services, and shall not be entitled to damages or compensation
resulting from such termination.

B. Consultant may terminate this Agreement only for cause and by serving written
notice of termination to City, provided Consultant has first served City with a
written notice of default and demand to cure, and City has failed to cure such
default within 30 days of receipt of such notice.

1 6 . Ownership of Work Product.

A. All draft and final reports, documents, and other written material, and any and all
images, ideas, concepts, designs including website designs, source code, object
code, electronic data and files, and/or other media whatsoever created or
developed by Consultant in the performance of this Agreement (collectively,
“Work Product”) shall be considered to be “works made for hire” for the benefit
of City. All Work Product and any and all intellectual property rights arising from
their creation, including all copyrights and other proprietary rights, shall be and
remain the property of City without restriction or limitation upon their use,
duplication or dissemination by City upon final payment being made, provided
that any such use shall be at City’s sole risk. Consultant shall not obtain or
attempt to obtain copyright protection as to any of the Work Product. Consultant
agrees that the compensation set forth in Section 2of this Agreement includes
conveyance to City of ownership of all Work Product, including intellectual
property rights, as provided in this Section 16.

B. Consultant hereby assigns to City all rights of ownership to the Work Product,
including any and all related intellectual property and proprietary rights, that are
not otherwise vested in City pursuant to subsection Aabove.

C. Consultant warrants and represents that it has secured all necessary licenses,
consents or approvals necessary to the production of the Work Product, and that
upon final payment or Consultant’s default, City shall have full legal title to the
Work Product, and full legal authority and the right to use and reproduce the



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

Work Product for any purpose. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold City,
and the other Indemnitees harmless from any and all losses, claims or liabilities in
any way related to aclaim that City’s use of any of the Work Product violates
federal, state or local laws, or any contractual provisions, or any rights or laws
relating to trade names, licenses, franchises, copyrights, patents or other means of
protecting intellectual property rights and/or interests in products, ideas or
inventions. Consultant shall bear all costs arising from the use of patented,
copyrighted, trade secret or trademarked documents, materials, equipment,
devices or processes in coimection with its provision of the Work Product
produced under this Agreement. In the event the use of any of the Work Product
or other deliverables hereunder by City is held to constitute an infringement and
the use of any of the same is enjoined. Consultant, at its expense, shall: (a) secure
for City the right to continue using the Work Product and other deliverables by
suspension of any injunction, or by procuring alicense or licenses for City; or (b)
modify the Work Product and other deliverables so that they become non-
infringing while remaining in compliance with the requirements of this
Agreement. Consultant’s obligations under this Section shall survive the
expiration or termination of this Agreement.

17. Data Secur i ty.

A. As used in this Agreement, “City Data” means any and all information and data
provided or made accessible, directly or indirectly, to Consultant by City, or
otherwise acquired from City, in connection with Consultant’s performance of the
Services. Except where subject to athird party’s intellectual property rights, any
and all City Data is solely owned by City. Consultant is granted alimited, non¬
exclusive, and revocable license to use City Data solely as necessary to perform
the Services. At no time shall Consultant use City Data for its own purposes, or
sell, disclose or disseminate City Data, except as required by law or to provide the
Services. At all times herein. Consultant shall protect and maintain the security of
City Data using methods providing not less than the level of security Consultant
uses for its own confidential data, and that otherwise comply with recognized
industry data security standards applicable to similar kinds of governmental data
and in fo rmat ion .

B. To the extent any City Data consists of personal information as defined in
Consumer Privacy Act (Civil Code Section 1798.100 et seq.). Consultant shall
comply with that statute and with Civil Code Section 1798.80, et seq., including
providing the required notifications in the event of any unauthorized access of
personal information stored, maintained, accessed, used or transmitted by
Consultant in connection with this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Consultant shall within 24 hours notify the City Representative by telephone and
in writing of any unauthorized access of City Data. Thereafter, Consultant shall
render any assistance to City and law enforcement as necessary to ascertain the
nature and extent of such unauthorized access.



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

C. Consultant shall not store City Data using cloud-based storage without City’s
prior, written consent, unless the use of such storage is clearly described in the
Scope of Services. Where permitted herein, any and all cloud-based storage shall
be on servers and other hardware located within the continental United States,
and shall be in compliance with ISO/IEC 27001 -27018, as applicable, unless
otherwise agreed to in writing by the City Representative.

18. Party Representatives.

Consultant hereby designates {ConsultantRepName}, or such person’s
designee, as Consultant’s Representative for this Agreement, unless and until
written notice of anew representative acceptable to City is provided to City.

A .

City hereby designates {CityRepName} or such person’s designee, as the
City Representative for this Agreement.

B .

The foregoing representatives shall be authorized to provide consent where
required herein, and to make other administrative decisions that will be
binding on their respective party, except as otherwise specifically required
here in .

C .

1 9 . N o t i c e s .

Any notices, invoices, or other documents related to this Agreement shall be deemed
received on: (a) the day of delivery, if delivered by hand during the receiving party’s regular
business hours or by e-mail before or during the receiving party’s regular business hours; (b) the
business day after delivery, if delivered by e-mail after the receiving party’s regular business
hours; or (c) on the second business day following deposit in the United States mail, certified
mail with return receipt requested and postage prepaid, to the addresses listed below, or to such
other addresses as the parties may, from time to time, designate in writing.

C o n s u l t a n t

{ConsultantF uIlN ame}

{ConPMStreetAddress}

{ConPMcity}, {ConPMstate} {ConPMzip}

{ConPMCountry}

{ConPMName}
{ConPMEmai l }
{ConPMPhone}

C i t y
City of Brea

1 C i v i c C e n t e r C i r c l e

Brea, CA 92821

U n i t e d S t a t e s

{Ci tyPMName}
{Ci tyPMEmai l }
{CityPMPhone}

20. Third Party Rights.

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to anyone
other than City and Consultant.



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

21. C o n fl i c t s o f I n t e r e s t .

A. Consultant covenants that it presently has no interest, and shall not acquire
any interest, direct or indirect, financial or otherwise, which would conflict in
any manner or degree with the performance of the Services. Consultant
certifies that no one who has or will have any financial interest under this
Agreement is an officer or employee of City.

B. Consultant further covenants that, in the performance of this Agreement, no
subConsultant or person having any interest, direct or indirect, financial or
otherwise, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the
performance of the Services shall be employed. Consultant has provided City
with alist of all City-approved subConsultants and the key personnel for such
subConsultants that are retained or to be retained by Consultant in connection
with the performance of the Services, to assist City in affirming compliance
with th is Sect ion.

C. Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not employed nor retained any
company or person, other than abona fide employee working solely for
Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement. Further, Consultant warrants
that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than
abona fide employee working solely for Consultant, any fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or
resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. If required. Consultant
further agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subConsultants to file, a
Statement of Economic Interest with the City Clerk as required under state
law in the performance of the Services. For breach or violation of this
warranty. City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without
liability. No director, official, officer or employee of City, during the term of
his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement,
or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom.

Severability.22.

The unenforceability, invalidity or illegality of any provision(s) of this Agreement shall
not render the provisions unenforceable, invalid or illegal.

2 3 . Successors and Assigns.

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors in
interest, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties.

2 4 . N o n - W a i v e r .

None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be considered waived by either party,
unless such waiver is specified in writing, and any such waiver shall be limited to that set



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

of circumstances and not to any future circumstances unless another written waiver is
execu ted .

25. Time o f Essence.

Time is of the essence in each and every provision of this Agreement.

26. City’s Right to Employ Other Consultants.

City reserves its right to employ other Consultants to provide the Services or similar
serv ices .

27. E x h i b i t s .

The attached {ExhibitsAttached} are incorporated herein by reference. In the event of
any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and any Exhibit,
the provisions of this Agreement shall govern. In the event of any conflict or
inconsistency between the provisions of this Scope of Services and Specifications
Requirements and the Consultant’s Proposal set forth in the attached Attachment 1to
Exhibit A, the provisions of the Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements
shall govern.

2 8 . Entire Agreement.

This Agreement (including the attached Exhibits) represents the entire understanding of
the parties as to the Serviees, and supersedes and cancels any prior or contemporaneous
oral or written understanding, promises or representations with respect to those matters.
Each party acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises or agreements
have been made by any person which are not incorporated herein, and that any other
agreements shall be void. This Agreement may not be modified or altered except in
writing signed by both parties. This is an integrated Agreement.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE)



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT, the Parties have caused their authorized representatives
to sign below. Digital Signatures are acceptable if they conform to all requirements of California
Government Code Sect ion 16.5 .

{Consultant Full Name}
By: By:

(Consigner IName}
{ConSigner lTi t le}
{ConSignerlEmai l}

{ConSigner2Name}
{ConSigner2Title}
(Consigner 2Email}

Date Signed:
corps: Chairperson, President, Vice President;
L L C s ;

Date Signed:
CORPs: Secretary, Asst. Secretary, Chief Finance

Officer,
LLCs: Manager

[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 313, both signature lines must be executed unless the signatory
holds at least one of the offices designated on each line.]

Manager A s s t . T r e a s u r e r

[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 17703.01(d), both signature lines must be executed unless the
articles of incorporation state that the firm is managed by only one manager.]

City of Brea Attest (if over $25,000)
By:By:

(CitySignerN ame}
(CitySignerTit le)
{CitySignerEmail}

{AttestName}
{AttestTit le}
{AttestEmail}

Date Signed: Date Signed:



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

E X H I B I T A

I . I n t r o d u c t i o n .

The City of Brea is seeking proposals for qualified consultants to:

●Provide as-needed Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for candidates
for sworn and non-swom employment with the Brea Fire Department. The anticipated
average number of annual backgrounds is four (4) Firefighters and ten (10) non-swom
Ambulance Operators.

This request for proposal does not obligate the City of Brea to award acontract or complete the
project, and the City reserves the right to cancel the solicitation if is considered to be in its best
interest. The City reserves the right to award more than one contract for the services specified
herein in order to ensure the continuing ability to obtain timely and accurate background
investigations of candidates for employment. The proposed agreement is for aone-year term
with an option to extend for four additional one-year term at the City’s discretion.

Scope of Work.I I .

The successful Proposer shall:
●Provide investigative services in aprofessional manner in compliance with all

applicable federal, state, and local laws, as well as in aworkmanlike manner according
to the standards and ethics in the industry as established by the California Secretary of
State, Department of Consumer Affairs, Bureau of Investigative Services Furnish
everything necessary to provide the Services.

Backgrounds shall include adetailed narrative report (“the narrative”) summarizing all findings
and reports of each applicant’s background and eligibility based on Brea Fire Department
hiring. The following areas, at minimum, should be both addressed in the narrative and
supported by documentation included within the background file.

●Verification of Qualification for Firefighter Appointment (for candidates for sworn
employment).

●Areview of the candidate’s personal history statement.
●Criminal history that advises of felony and/or misdemeanor convictions, including

fingerprint returns, demonstrating the results of aDepartment of Justice and Federal
Bureau of Investigation fingerprint check for criminal history (City of Brea HR) Motor
vehicle driving history (all states in which applicant held an operators/driver’s license),
including acopy of the applicant’s driver’s license and vehicle registration, and proof
of motor vehic le insurance.

●Inquiries with all local law enforcement departments where the candidate has lived,
worked, attended school, or frequently visited.

●Financial information, including monthly income/expenses, bankruptcy (if applicable).
●Education background and verification, including copies of official transcripts,

diplomas and accreditation verification from high school or equivalent and all colleges
and universi t ies attended.

●Employment eligibility and age verification, including copies of any document



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

accepted for proof of employment eligibility, or other official documentation (e.g., birth
certifieate, driver lieense), verifying date of birth Military verifieation and Selective
Service registrations, as applicable, ineluding dates of service, branch of military, rank
and discharge status, ete. Copies of DD214 Long Fonn, Seleetive Serviee Registration,
or documentation for willful failure to register must be included as applieable.
Proof of marital status, including marriage certificate(s) and all final court-issued
dissolution doeuments or legal separation deerees, as applieable.
Employment verification and history of at least ten years’, supported by
comments/questionnaires eompleted by Human Resources, supervisors, and coworkers,
as well as evaluations.

Verifieation and contaets with the applieanf spersonal/family references (including any
former spouses), any secondary references provided by primary contacts, and additional
secondary references as identified by the investigator, supported by
eomments/questionnaires.
Athorough search of the candidate’s soeial media for suitability of employment and for
bias-relevant information, including hate group affiliation and/or activities.
(Verifieation and eontacts with the applicant’s current and/or former neighbors,
supported by eomments/questionnaires.
Verification of applications to other fire ageneies, including an examination of the
status/dispositions of said applications and review of any relevant background
documentation contained by those law enforcement ageneies.
Drug and/or substanee use history.
Neighborhood and rent eheek, including contacts with the applicant’s neighbors.
Polygraph examination. (Proposer does not administer the polygraph examination, but
will provide astatement regarding the results of the examination).
Civil suits and legal judgments concerning the applieant (Federal, State and eurrent
County of residenee).
Social Security Number (SSN) -Trace &Address Loeator verifieation to determine
name and name variations used by the individual such as maiden, divoreed or previous
names, other names associated with that SSN, current and former addresses associated
with that SSN, and date of birth.
Photographs of the applicant’s home, vehicle, and any and all tattoos located in non-
sensitive/non-private areas of the

As aprerequisite for submitting aproposal. Proposers shall possess the following minimum
qualifications or abilities:

●Proper training and licensing as required by law, and prior experienee condueting
baekground investigations for fire ageneies. References from all fire agencies for
whom Proposer has performed baekground investigation serviees for in the past two
years (up to amaximum of three) shall be incorporated into proposal.

●The ability to provide summary invoieing, whieh is supported by detailed cost
descriptions of individual background investigations.

●Performance of baekground investigations in accordance with all applieable Federal,
State and County polieies, rules, regulations, laws and eodes, including without
limitation, the Federal Fair Credit Reporting Act (15 U.S.C. §1681 et seq.) and the
California Investigative Consumer Reporting Agencies Act (Civil Code §1786 et seq.).

●The ability to keep itself fully informed of, and shall observe and comply with, all
relevant laws, ordinances and regulations whieh in any manner affeet those engaged or



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

employed on any work, the collection of data and information, or in any way affect the
performance of any work under the contract, and of all orders and decrees of agencies
having any jurisdiction or authority over work performed under the contract.

●Availability to assist the City should legal action result from the background
investigations performed by the successful Proposer.

Written acknowledgement that information shall not be released to any candidate regarding
their pre-employment background investigation without the express written consent of
the Brea Fire Department.

The final scope of work will be negotiated with the selected Consultant(s).

E n d o f t h i s E x h i b i t



P R O F E S S I O N A L S E R V I C E S A G R E E M E N T

Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire Services

A t t a c h m e n t 1 t o E x h i b i t A

C O N S U L T A N T ’ S P R O P O S A L A N D F E E S C H E D U L E

(attached)



City of Brea

Finance Committee Communication

E. Road Repair and Accountability Act - Local Streets and Roads Funding Program, Fiscal Year 2025-2026
Proposed Project List

Meeting

Tuesday, June 10, 2025, 8:30 AM

Agenda Group

DISCUSSION Item: 3E.

TO

Finance Committee Members

FROM

Kristin Griffith, City Manager

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Finance Committee recommend that the City Council take the following action:

1. Adopt a Resolution approving projects funded by the Road Repair and Accountability Act.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

On April 28, 2017, the Governor signed Senate Bill 1, which is known as the Road Repair and Accountability Act of
2017 (RRAA). The RRAA increased fuel taxes and vehicle registration fees to address basic road maintenance,
rehabilitation, and critical safety needs on both the state highway and local road system.

In 2017, the State Controller (Controller) began depositing this new funding into a newly created Road Maintenance
and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) (Fund 221). A percentage of this new RMRA funding has been apportioned by
formula to eligible cities and counties pursuant to Streets and Highways Code (SHC) Section 2032(h). The City of
Brea has been receiving annual funding pursuant to a prescribed formula in the approximate amount of $1,000,000
per year.

Additionally,  RRAA emphasizes the importance of accountability and transparency in the delivery of California's
transportation programs. Therefore, in order to be eligible for RMRA funding, the statute requires cities and
counties to provide basic annual RMRA project reporting to the California Transportation Commission
(Commission) and must adopt a "Project List" by resolution and submit it to the Commission by July 1 of each year.

Therefore, for FY 2025-26, staff proposes to use RMRA funds for CIP Project 7329 – Birch Street Improvements
South Associated to Valencia Avenue.  CIP 7329 consists of the removal and reconstruction of curb, gutter, and
ADA ramps, as well as grind and overlay paving improvements on Birch Street, from Associated Road to Valencia
Avenue. Staff has prepared a Resolution to adopt the Project List, which complies with the RRAA Guidelines.

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT



The RRAA Guidelines require that cities/counties adopt a project list by resolution to demonstrate how they intend
to use the FY 2025-26 RMRA funds, and submit said resolution to the Commission by July 1, 2025. Staff has
identified Project 7329 within the FY 2025-26  CIP, and this project is eligible for these funds. Therefore, staff
recommends that the City Council consider adopting a Resolution that approves the RMRA Project List for
submittal to the Commission by July 1, 2025. RMRA funds were programmed as part of the FY2023-25 CIP Budget
for Project 7329 in the approximate amount of $3,500,000. The RMRA Fund balance is projected to be about
$1,280,000 at the beginning of FY 2025-2026. The RMRA resolution has been approved as to form and
completeness by the California Transportation Commission (CTC).

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED

Kristin Griffith, City Manager
Prepared by: Wade Whitman, Management Analyst
Concurrence: Ryan Chapman, P.E., City Engineer
                      Michael Ho, P.E., Public Works Director

 

 

Attachments

Attachment A - Resolution.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f1f894c1e31004de66123%2FAttachment%20A%20-%20Resolution.pdf?alt=media&token=193cf293-734a-423f-a059-80cd22b05a29
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f1f894c1e31004de66123%2FAttachment%20A%20-%20Resolution.pdf?alt=media&token=193cf293-734a-423f-a059-80cd22b05a29
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f1f894c1e31004de66123%2FAttachment%20A%20-%20Resolution.pdf?alt=media&token=193cf293-734a-423f-a059-80cd22b05a29


RESOLUTION NO.  
 
 RESOLUTION ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL 

YEAR 2025-26 FUNDED BY SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND  
ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017  

   
 
 
A. RECITALS: 
 
 (i) WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability 

Act of 2017 (Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and 

Signed into law by the Governor in April 2017 to address the significant multi-modal 

transportation funding shortfalls statewide; and 

 (ii) WHEREAS, SB 1 includes accountability and transparency 

provisions that will ensure the residents of our City are aware of the projects 

proposed for funding in our community and which projects have been completed 

each fiscal year; and 

(iii) WHEREAS, the City of Brea must adopt by resolution a list of 

projects proposed to receive fiscal year funding from the Road Maintenance and 

Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by SB 1, which must include a description 

and the location of each proposed project, a proposed schedule for the project’s 

completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and 

(iv)  WHEREAS, the City of Brea, will receive an estimated $1,292,555 in 

RMRA funding in Fiscal Year 2025-26 from SB 1; and  

(v)  WHEREAS, this is the ninth year in which the City of Brea is receiving 

SB 1 funding and will enable the City to continue essential road maintenance and 

rehabilitation projects, safety improvements, repairing and replacing aging bridges, 



and increasing access and mobility options for the traveling public that would not 

have otherwise been possible without SB 1; and 

(vii) WHEREAS, the City of Brea has undergone a robust public process 

to ensure public input into our community’s transportation priorities/the project list; 

and 

(viii) WHEREAS, the City of Brea used a Pavement Management System 

to develop the SB 1 project list to ensure revenues are being used on the most 

high-priority and cost-effective projects that also meet the communities priorities 

for transportation investment; and 

(ix) WHEREAS, the funding from SB 1 will help the City of Brea maintain 

and rehabilitate approximately one and half miles of street throughout the City this 

year and approximately one and a half miles of similar projects into the future; and 

(x) WHEREAS, the 2023 California Statewide Local Streets and Roads 

Needs Assessment found that the City of Brea’s streets and roads are in a “good” 

condition and this revenue will help us increase the overall quality of our road 

system and over the next decade will bring our streets and roads into a “good” 

condition; and 

(xi) WHEREAS, the SB 1 project list and overall investment in our local 

streets and roads infrastructure with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, 

investing in complete streets infrastructure, and using cutting-edge technology, 

materials and practices, will have significant positive co-benefits statewide. 

 

 

  



B. RESOLUTION: 

 NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, ORDERED AND 

FOUND by the City Council of the City of Brea, State of California, as 

follows: 

 a) The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 

 b) The following list of newly proposed projects will be funded in-part or 

solely with Fiscal Year 2025-26 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account 

revenues: 

 c) The following previously proposed and adopted projects may also 

utilize Fiscal Year 2025-26 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account 

revenues in their delivery. With the relisting of these projects in the adopted fiscal 

year resolution, the City is reaffirming to the public and the State our intent to fund 

these projects with Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues: 

 

Project Title: CIP 7329 – Birch Street Improvements S. Associated Road to 

Valencia 

Project Description: This project will improve the pavement on Birch Street 

between S. Associated Road and Valencia Avenue, pursuant to the City’s 

Pavement Management Plan.  The improvements will include paving upgrades, 

the removal and reconstruction of curb, gutter, and ADA ramps within the project 

limits. 

Project Location: Birch Street between S. Associated Road and Valencia Avenue 

Estimated Project Schedule: Start (07/24)– Completion (06/26)  

Estimated Project Useful Life: 20+ years 



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Brea, State of 

California this 17th day of June, 2025, by the following vote: 

 

        ________________________________  
              Mayor  
                    

 
  

 

ATTEST: ________________________________ 
                City Clerk 
 
 
I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 

City of Brea held on the 17th day of June 2025, by the following vote: 

    
AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSTAINED:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

     

Dated:    
 

 

      Lillian Harris-Neal 
        City Clerk 

 



City of Brea

Finance Committee Communication

F. Renewed Measure M (M2) Eligibility Submittal Package for Fiscal Year 2025-2026

Meeting

Tuesday, June 10, 2025, 8:30 AM

Agenda Group

DISCUSSION Item: 3F.

TO

Finance Committee Members

FROM

Kristin Griffith, City Manager

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Finance Committee recommend that the City Council take the following actions:

1. Approve and authorize staff to submit to Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) the Measure M2
Seven-Year Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal Years 2025-2026 through 2031-2032 to comply with
Measure M2 eligibility criteria; and

2. Adopt Resolutions concerning the status and update of the Circulation Element, Mitigation Fee Program, and
Pavement Management Plan for the Measure M (M2) Program.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

To maintain eligibility to receive Measure M2 sales tax revenue, the City must submit annual documentation on its
transportation-related programs to OCTA. Every seven years, OCTA requires an expanded submittal of the City’s
programs and projects affecting circulation and transportation to verify that these elements align with Measure M2
and countywide plans.

This year’s submittal requires the following documentation:

Eligibility Checklist
7-year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Budget presented in the OCTA format
Circulation Element / Master Plan of Arterial Highways (MPAH) Consistency*
Congestion Management Program (CMP)
Maintenance of Effort (MOE) Documentation
Mitigation Fee Program (MFP)* 
Pavement Management Plan (PMP)*
Transit / Non-Motorized Transportation Letter

*Requires Council Resolution

M2 SEVEN-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP)

The City’s Measure M2 Seven-Year CIP for Fiscal Years 2025-2026 through 2031-2032 is a transportation planning
and fiscal forecasting document used to guide future programming for transportation capital improvement
projects. The M2 Seven-Year CIP is consistent with the proposed Citywide Capital Improvement Program Budget
for Fiscal Year 2025-2026. The submittal of the M2 Seven-Year CIP does not commit the City to fund the identified
improvements.



However, projects must be included in the M2 Seven-Year CIP to be eligible to receive Measure M2 funding. This
document is updated annually for changes based on City Council priorities. The City’s Seven-Year CIP includes 72
projects with a total preliminary projected budget requirement of approximately $112 million over the seven years.
The M2 CIP document emphasizes projects that improve circulation, mitigate traffic congestion, and maintain the
City’s investment in existing transportation infrastructure. As part of the Measure M (M2) Eligibility Submittal
Package, OCTA requires the submittal of an update to the PMP every two years for arterial roads, and every six
years for local roads. This document is included in Attachment F and is provided in the formatting required by
OCTA. In addition to this document, the consultant that prepared the PMP will be providing City Staff with a
separate document that outlines a proposed maintenance schedule for recommended improvements to each
street segment. This document will serve as a tool for City Staff to further plan and prioritize future paving
maintenance projects and CIP projects.

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT

Annual submittal of Measure M2 eligibility documentation to OCTA is required to receive Measure M2 sales tax
revenue funds. The eligibility process this year requires the submittal of the eight items listed above including the
adoption of resolutions attesting to the consistency of the City’s General Plan Circulation Element with the County
Master Plan of Arterial Highways (MPAH), confirming the City’s existing transportation Mitigation Fee Programs,
and submitting to OCTA the City's approved Pavement Management Program (PMP). Approval of the
recommended action will satisfy these requirements.

Fulfilling the eligibility requirements for FY 2025-2026 will confirm the City’s ability to continue receiving M2 funds.
In addition, the City's annual M2 local jurisdiction apportionment, more commonly referred to as "Fairshare," is
anticipated to be approximately $1,410,976 for Fiscal Year 2025-2026. This action has no negative impact to the
General Fund.

 RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED

Kristin Griffith, City Manager
Prepared by: Wade Whitman, Management Analyst
Concurrence: Ryan Chapman, P.E., City Engineer
                      Michael Ho, P.E., Public Works Director

 

Attachments

Attachment A - Eligibility Checklist.pdf
Attachment B - 7-Year CIP OCTA Project Listing Report.pdf
Attachment C - MPAH and MFP Resolution.pdf
Attachment D - CMP Checklist.pdf
Attachment E - MOE Certification Form.pdf
Attachment F - PMP.pdf
Attachment G - PMP Resolution.pdf
Attachment H - General Plan Transit & Active Transportation Letter.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20A%20-%20Eligibility%20Checklist.pdf?alt=media&token=fed313f5-630a-461f-ba8d-4d951ea5cdb2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20A%20-%20Eligibility%20Checklist.pdf?alt=media&token=fed313f5-630a-461f-ba8d-4d951ea5cdb2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20A%20-%20Eligibility%20Checklist.pdf?alt=media&token=fed313f5-630a-461f-ba8d-4d951ea5cdb2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20B%20-%20CIP%20Project%20listing.pdf?alt=media&token=5ee4416e-cd28-42ec-8710-6b36fef8d580
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20B%20-%20CIP%20Project%20listing.pdf?alt=media&token=5ee4416e-cd28-42ec-8710-6b36fef8d580
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20B%20-%20CIP%20Project%20listing.pdf?alt=media&token=5ee4416e-cd28-42ec-8710-6b36fef8d580
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20C%20-%20MPAH%20and%20MFP%20Resolution.pdf?alt=media&token=55cf1471-fb79-4aee-bbf2-48ddc54d6a6a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20C%20-%20MPAH%20and%20MFP%20Resolution.pdf?alt=media&token=55cf1471-fb79-4aee-bbf2-48ddc54d6a6a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20C%20-%20MPAH%20and%20MFP%20Resolution.pdf?alt=media&token=55cf1471-fb79-4aee-bbf2-48ddc54d6a6a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20D%20-%20CMP%20Checklist.pdf?alt=media&token=9e5d9ebd-4fb2-49e2-b119-a4ec6d47f965
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20D%20-%20CMP%20Checklist.pdf?alt=media&token=9e5d9ebd-4fb2-49e2-b119-a4ec6d47f965
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20D%20-%20CMP%20Checklist.pdf?alt=media&token=9e5d9ebd-4fb2-49e2-b119-a4ec6d47f965
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20E%20-%20MOE%20Certification%20Form.pdf?alt=media&token=a275d51c-f66a-4058-842b-658e14278d1d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20E%20-%20MOE%20Certification%20Form.pdf?alt=media&token=a275d51c-f66a-4058-842b-658e14278d1d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20E%20-%20MOE%20Certification%20Form.pdf?alt=media&token=a275d51c-f66a-4058-842b-658e14278d1d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20F%20-%20PMP.pdf?alt=media&token=282e907b-f27c-4b71-a831-2ed810c4bf4a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20F%20-%20PMP.pdf?alt=media&token=282e907b-f27c-4b71-a831-2ed810c4bf4a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20F%20-%20PMP.pdf?alt=media&token=282e907b-f27c-4b71-a831-2ed810c4bf4a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20G%20-%20PMP%20Resolution.pdf?alt=media&token=210e461a-68c3-4dfb-b848-72b63852068c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20G%20-%20PMP%20Resolution.pdf?alt=media&token=210e461a-68c3-4dfb-b848-72b63852068c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20G%20-%20PMP%20Resolution.pdf?alt=media&token=210e461a-68c3-4dfb-b848-72b63852068c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20H%20-%20General%20Plan%20Transit%20%26%20Active%20Transportation%20Letter.pdf?alt=media&token=11384d0c-7127-4b10-a24b-816730a81c74
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20H%20-%20General%20Plan%20Transit%20%26%20Active%20Transportation%20Letter.pdf?alt=media&token=11384d0c-7127-4b10-a24b-816730a81c74
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f377f4c1e31004de6d1cf%2FAttachment%20H%20-%20General%20Plan%20Transit%20%26%20Active%20Transportation%20Letter.pdf?alt=media&token=11384d0c-7127-4b10-a24b-816730a81c74


�

�����������
	
����
���������
����

�

�

�

�������������� � !�����"����#���$� %�&� �'�

()� *�+��,-��-.����,-/�+/01��,/�0+,2��+�34���5�67��0/��89��,�:�;<���=-6��>?@� AB AB
0)�*�+��,-�-��
�C������/�D-�/�+�:�;<�:�E-6+�/0���/��89�+0�00��@� AB AB
)�F05���,-��6�
-+�+�2/,G�����/�D-�/�+��,�+�.,6��/0����,.2
�06���H�������60
�
��6��/,6�C0��,6I�205�.�6��.0�6��606��I������,6�����,6�3060��.�6��9/,�/0.I�06+�
�65�/,6.�6�0
��
�067-2��,..��.�6��@�

AB AB

�)�</�����/��06��6,67�/06�2,/�0��,6�/�
0��+�2/,G������6�
-+�+��6��,-/�34��89@��

JK,��L�9/,G�����1-6+�+���/,-���	�9�0/���,6��+�/�+��/06�2,/�0��,67/�
0��+M�
AB AB

+)�*�+��,-��6�
-+��0

�2/,G�������0��0/��20/��0

�I�1-

�I�,/�2,��6��0

��1-6+�+���34�K���
N�5�6-��@� AB AB

�)�;���������,-6��
OP,0/+�,1�Q-2�/5��,/��022/,50
�+0��R��,�0+,2������1�60
�S7T�0/��89���L�� �
R3-�����2/�,/��,�=-
��>(�

U��!� !�!V ��W��WW����#U'�$� %�&� �'�

4)� *�+��,-��-.�������3:	���/��1��0��,6�1,/.�J<22�6+�X�8M��,�:�;<���=-6��>?@� AB AB
0)�*�+��,-�2/,5�+���-22,/��6��-+����+,�-.�6�0��,6@� AB AB
)�F0������3:	�N�2,/��6��1,/.���6����6�+�������E�606���*�/���,/�,/�022/,2/�0���
+����6��@� AB AB

��� � !��U�!�" � !�����!�#�U�$� %�&� �'�

>)� </���,-�/�D-�/�+��,��-.���0�939�-2+0����,�:�;<�1,/�������
����
�������
�@�N�1�/��,�	X�����>�
1,/�939��-.���0
�����+-
�)� AB AB
0)�81����I�+�+��,-�-��������-//�6��939�Q-.���0
�;�.2
0���J<22�6+�X�EM@� AB AB
)�81����I��������0+,2��+�939��,6�����6��H��������:�;<��,-6��H�+��905�.�6��3060��.�6��
9
06@� AB AB

Y)� 81��,-�06�H�/�+�Z6,Z��,�D-����,6�>I�+�+��,-��-.���0�939�-2+0����,�:�;<���/,-�������
2/�5�,-���
����
�������
���������/�D-�/�+�+�0+
�6�@� AB AB

[ \��]���!��W�U��̂ ���!\�\� !V_� %�&� �'�

)̀� *�+��,-��-.���0�/��,
-��,6��6+��0��6���,61,/.06���H��������39<F@� A� A�
0)�F05���,-��6�
,��+�06��X�������,H�6��/,0+H0��+����60��,6����0��/�2/���6���,-/�.,���
�-//�6����/�-
0��,6��
�.�6�@� A� A�

a a a a

b�V���&�"!���&_!Vc��!�d����!����!�#b&&�$� %�&� �'�

e)� *�+��,-�0+,2��06+��-.���06�-2+0����,�����fQQ9�0��20/��,1������-//�6�����
�@� �g�� �g��

0)�8���,-/�fQQ9��,6�����6��H��������N���,60
�;/011���Q��60
�Q�6��/,6�C0��,6�30���/�9
06@� �g�� �g��

h]��\i�V���!j� City of Brea

X

X

X

X

X

06/17/2025

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X



�

�����������
	
����
���������
����

�

�

���������������� ����������!�"�#$��� %�&� �'�

()� *+���,-.�/-.��0����,1��,23
��0�4����������.��5��+.���2��
�2���6,.�����-���,6�7���8�9�1-���
,9�.�����
+�����+.�3�.�����.�:-�.�2�1���,-�
�1�0��1�����;.0�1+1��<� =>=>
+)�?6�1,@��+��+���2���A��1��,1���1�.�:-����0���.,-��������BCD���2�5+11-+
�.�9��4�
3.,�����6,.�6-10���-/�����,��A3�.+��,1<� =>=>

&$EEFG#��#H������"�F�E���I�������#��� %�&� �'�

J)� *+���,-.�/-.��0����,1��1�-.�0�������+9��1,���-33
+1��0�0�9�
,3�.��,22��2�1���6,.�
�.+1�3,.�+��,1�3.,/�����+10�6-10�1��4����KL�6-10�<� =>=>

M���HG���#�N������H�G��OMN�P� %�&� �'�

Q)� R,����,-.�/-.��0����,1��-..�1�
���+9��+�0�6�1�0�0�9�
,32�1���23+���KCD��1�3
+��<� =>=>
ST)� *+��+1�-30+����,�����KCD�,��-..�0���1�������
+���.�3,.��1��3�.�,0<� =>=>
SS)� ?6������,�ST@��+���,-.�/-.��0����,1��-2����0�,1��,.�2,.��,6������-33,.��1��0,�-2�1���

,-�
�1�0��1���+3��.�L)(�,6�����	
����
����U-�0�
�1��<� =>=>
�FG##�#H�&��G��H���� %�&� �'�

SL)� R,����,-.�/-.��0����,1��,1��0�.�+��3+.��,6�����U�1�.+
�D
+1@�
+10�-���3
+11�1����.+�������
��+��+��,22,0+����.+1����+10�1,152,�,.�V�0��.+1�3,.�+��,1<� =>=>

SW)� *+9���,-�3.,9�0�0�+�
����.��0�1��6��1��FG#X�$���EFG##�#H����G��H������+��+��,22,0+���
�.+1����+10�1,152,�,.�V�0��.+1�3,.�+��,1��,1��0�.+��,1��1�����U�1�.+
�D
+1<� =>=>

��G���Y�N��$��� %�&� �'�

SZ)� R�0�.�3.���1�+��9���,6��,-.�/-.��0����,1�3+.����3+����1�����.���,1+
��.+66���6,.-2[�\<� =>=>
+)�?6��,-�+1�4�.�0����@�3.,9�0��0+��[�\�,6�+���10+1��]�� �

I�#H�����#�MG#GH���#�����H�G��OIM�P� %�&� �'�

Ŝ)� *+���,-.�/-.��0����,1��,23
���0�����.�:-�.�0��KD������
���<�[_33�10�A��\� =� =�
�
�
�

�

àbcdefghijkd lhmiajngcd oajcd

10/01/24 and 02/04/25

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Michael Ho 05/29/25

X



���������	�
���������
�
�����	
����
�

����������������������������
�������������
� ������

!"#$"% &'()*+,- ".#/0.01!"12$320145 6789:;&<=>;?@

A�B��� ��C�B
�D	�E��FGHHIJKLMILNOIPQRS  ��C�B
���
��

�TT�
������ ��C�B
��UV WQXSGIGNYZ[\Y]̂GN_Z̀aGJ_bYcGdcb̂eZbGKfgc]GH

������h�i��jV LckYefcl̂ cZ_mGNm̂_cgn  ��C�B
�U�B���
���

������h�i��j�U�B���
���V LckYefcl̂ cZ_m
Nm̂_cgnGIGMgZfl_ZỲGK̂ Ze_̀Z_om̂Gp̀ê ĉG_c]GfZâe
]̂oeYbGb̀ê ĉbGfeGYcb̂eZb

qaYbGnefr̂̀ ZG\fgm]Ggb̂GJsObGZfGYcbZ_mmG̀_Z̀aGo_bYcGtYmẐebGZaefguafgZGZâGNYZ[v

A���


NYZ[\Y]̂

 ��C�B
�D�
�

N_ee[fk̂eGl_YcẐc_c̀ Ĝnefr̂̀ ZGtfeGwxXQyXRvGwgc]b
êtm̂̀ Ẑ]GYcGneYfeG[̂_ezb{v

��|��A��}�~ ��DU��� } }D� ~�i ��D��� ��� ����A ����A�}|��A��}U

��
��V�� �� �� �� �� ��

�9�=;�8�<�8��;��(**;(;��;'7?�78�� ��
��� ��������TV���

!"#$"% &'()*+,� ".#/0.01!"12$320145 6789:;&<=>;?@

A�B��� ��C�B
�D	�E��FGHXIJKLMILNOIPR�Q  ��C�B
���
��

�TT�
������ ��C�B
��UV WQXSGIGNYZ[\Y]̂GN_Z̀aGJ_bYcGdcb̂eZbGKfgc]GX

������h�i��jV LckYefcl̂ cZ_mGNm̂_cgn  ��C�B
�U�B���
���

������h�i��j�U�B���
���V LckYefcl̂ cZ_m
Nm̂_cgnGIGMgZfl_ZỲGK̂ Ze_̀Z_om̂Gp̀ê ĉG_c]GfZâe
]̂oeYbGb̀ê ĉbGfeGYcb̂eZb

qaYbGnefr̂̀ ZG\fgm]Ggb̂GJsObGZfGYcbZ_mmG̀_Z̀aGo_bYcGtYmẐebGZaefguafgZGZâGNYZ[v

A���


NYZ[\Y]̂

 ��C�B
�D�
�

N_ee[fk̂eGl_YcẐc_c̀ Ĝnefr̂̀ ZGtfeGwxXQyXRvGwgc]b
êtm̂̀ Ẑ]GYcGneYfeG[̂_ezb{v

��|��A��}�~ ��DU��� } }D� ~�i ��D��� ��� ����A ����A�}|��A��}U

��
��V�� �� �� �� �� ��

�9�=;�8�<�8��;��(**;(;��;'7?�78�� ��
��� ��������TV���

!"#$"% &'()*+,+ ".#/0.01!"12$320145 6789:;&<=>;?@

A�B��� ��C�B
�D	�E��FGHPIJKLMILNOIPR�P  ��C�B
���
��

�TT�
������ ��C�B
��UV WQXSGIGNYZ[\Y]̂GN_Z̀aGJ_bYcGdcb̂eZbGKfgc]GP

������h�i��jV LckYefcl̂ cZ_mGNm̂_cgn  ��C�B
�U�B���
���

������h�i��j�U�B���
���V LckYefcl̂ cZ_m
Nm̂_cgnGIGMgZfl_ZỲGK̂ Ze_̀Z_om̂Gp̀ê ĉG_c]GfZâe
]̂oeYbGb̀ê ĉbGfeGYcb̂eZb

qaYbGnefr̂̀ ZG\fgm]Ggb̂GJsObGZfGYcbZ_mmG̀_Z̀aGo_bYcGtYmẐebGZaefguafgZGZâGNYZ[v

A���


NYZ[\Y]̂

 ��C�B
�D�
�

N_ee[fk̂eGl_YcẐc_c̀ Ĝnefr̂̀ ZGtfeGwxXQyXRvGwgc]b
êtm̂̀ Ẑ]GYcGneYfeG[̂_ezb{v

��|��A��}�~ ��DU��� } }D� ~�i ��D��� ��� ����A ����A�}|��A��}U

��
��V�� �� �� �� �� ��

�9�=;�8�<�8��;��(**;(;��;'7?�78�� ��
��� ��������TV���

!"#$"% &'()*++* ".#/0.01!"12$320145 6789:;&<=>;?@

A�B��� ��C�B
�D	�E��FGHSIJKLMILNOIPWS�  ��C�B
���
��

�TT�
������ ��C�B
��UV WQXSGIGNYZ[\Y]̂GN_Z̀aGJ_bYcGdcb̂eZbGKfgc]GS

������h�i��jV LckYefcl̂ cZ_mGNm̂_cgn  ��C�B
�U�B���
���

������h�i��j�U�B���
���V LckYefcl̂ cZ_m
Nm̂_cgnGIGMgZfl_ZỲGK̂ Ze_̀Z_om̂Gp̀ê ĉG_c]GfZâe
]̂oeYbGb̀ê ĉbGfeGYcb̂eZb

qaYbGnefr̂̀ ZG\fgm]Ggb̂GôbZGl_c_ûl̂ cZGne_̀ZỲ̂ bGZfGYcbZ_mmG̀_Z̀aGo_bYcbGtYmẐebGZaefguafgZGZâGNYZ[v

A���


NYZ[\Y]̂

 ��C�B
�D�
�

N_ee[fk̂eGl_YcẐc_c̀ Ĝnefr̂̀ ZGtfeGwxXQyXRvGwgc]b
êtm̂̀ Ẑ]GYcGneYfeG[̂_ezb{v

��|��A��}�~ ��DU��� } }D� ~�i ��D��� ��� ����A ����A�}|��A��}U

��
��V�� �� �� �� �� ��

�9�=;�8�<�8��;��(**;(;��;'7?�78�� ��
��� ��������TV���



������ ����	
�� ������������������ �������������

� !"#$%& '(!)$*+,-(&./0123456257829:;< %& '(!)$=>)#(

?@@>)> A"#$%& '(!)$BCDE :1FG/2/7HIJKHLM/7NIOP/3NQHR/SRQMTIQ/4UVRL/1

=WX($ Y$Z &[E 5R\HTUR]MRIN̂/7̂MNRV_ %& '(!)$C(D!&>X)> A

=WX($ Y$Z &[$C(D!&>X)> AE 5R\HTUR]MRIN̂
7̂MNRV_/2/6VIU]NIHO/4MITNOIǸ M̂/aOTMMR/NRL/UIPMT
LM̀THQ/QOTMMRQ/UT/HRQMTIQ

bPHQ/_TUcMOI/VQMQ/̀MQI/]NRNdM]MRI/_TNOIHOMQ/IU/HRQIN̂̂/ONIOP/̀NQHR/eĤIMTQ/IPTUVdPUVI/IPM/7HIJf

�>,>)D

7HIJKHLM

%& '(!)$* )(D

7NTTJU\MT/]NHRIMRNROM/_TUcMOI/eUT/ghF1iFjf/gVRLQ
TMêMOIML/HR/_THUT/JMNTkQlf

mBno?�$pq?r ms*C$=p%q q*t ruZ ou*vBw% uxw =u=?� =u=?�$qno?�?=qC

= )"#DEyz yz yz yz yz yz

{�|��}�~�|�������		������������|| = )"#$%& �&",,(@E$��

������ ����	
�� ������������������ �������������

� !"#$%& '(!)$*+,-(&./0j23456257829<Gj %& '(!)$=>)#(

?@@>)> A"#$%& '(!)$BCDE :1FG/2/7HIJKHLM/7NIOP/3NQHR/SRQMTIQ/4UVRL/j

=WX($ Y$Z &[E 5R\HTUR]MRIN̂/7̂MNRV_ %& '(!)$C(D!&>X)> A

=WX($ Y$Z &[$C(D!&>X)> AE 5R\HTUR]MRIN̂
7̂MNRV_/2/6VIU]NIHO/4MITNOIǸ M̂/aOTMMR/NRL/UIPMT
LM̀THQ/QOTMMRQ/UT/HRQMTIQ

bPHQ/_TUcMOI/VQMQ/̀MQI/]NRNdM]MRI/_TNOIHOMQ/IU/HRQIN̂̂/ONIOP/̀NQHR/eĤIMTQ/IPTUVdPUVI/IPM/7HIJf/8TUcMOI
PNQ/0�/JMNT/���/]NIOP/TM�VHTM]MRI/k�91�;;F/_MT/ghl/eTU]/gh/0:i0</IPTUVdP/gh/FjiF:f

�>,>)D

7HIJKHLM

%& '(!)$* )(D

7NTTJU\MT/]NHRIMRNROM/_TUcMOI/eUT/ghF1iFjf

mBno?�$pq?r ms*C$=p%q q*t ruZ ou*vBw% uxw =u=?� =u=?�$qno?�?=qC

= )"#DEyz yz yz yz yz yz

{�|��}�~�|�������		������������|| = )"#$%& �&",,(@E$��

������ ����	
�� ������������������ �������������

� !"#$%& '(!)$*+,-(&./0j23456257829<G: %& '(!)$=>)#(

?@@>)> A"#$%& '(!)$BCDE :1FG/2/7HIJKHLM/7NIOP/3NQHR/SRQMTIQ/4UVRL/:

=WX($ Y$Z &[E 5R\HTUR]MRIN̂/7̂MNRV_ %& '(!)$C(D!&>X)> A

=WX($ Y$Z &[$C(D!&>X)> AE 5R\HTUR]MRIN̂
7̂MNRV_/2/6VIU]NIHO/4MITNOIǸ M̂/aOTMMR/NRL/UIPMT
LM̀THQ/QOTMMRQ/UT/HRQMTIQ

bPHQ/_TUcMOI/VQMQ/̀MQI/]NRNdM]MRI/_TNOIHOMQ/IU/HRQIN̂̂/ONIOP/̀NQHR/eĤIMTQ/IPTUVdPUVI/IPM/7HIJf/8TUcMOI
PNQ/0�/JMNT/���/]NIOP/TM�VHTM]MRI/k�9:�<��/_MT/ghl/eTU]/gh/0:i0</IPTUVdP/gh/FjiF:f

�>,>)D

7HIJKHLM

%& '(!)$* )(D

7NTTJU\MT/]NHRIMRNROM/_TUcMOI/eUT/ghF1iFjf

mBno?�$pq?r ms*C$=p%q q*t ruZ ou*vBw% uxw =u=?� =u=?�$qno?�?=qC

= )"#DEyz yz yz yz yz yz

{�|��}�~�|�������		������������|| = )"#$%& �&",,(@E$��

������ ����	
�� ������������������ �������������

� !"#$%& '(!)$*+,-(&./0j23456257829<G< %& '(!)$=>)#(

?@@>)> A"#$%& '(!)$BCDE :1FG/2/7HIJKHLM/7NIOP/3NQHR/SRQMTIQ/4UVRL/<

=WX($ Y$Z &[E 5R\HTUR]MRIN̂/7̂MNRV_ %& '(!)$C(D!&>X)> A

=WX($ Y$Z &[$C(D!&>X)> AE 5R\HTUR]MRIN̂
7̂MNRV_/2/6VIU]NIHO/4MITNOIǸ M̂/aOTMMR/NRL/UIPMT
LM̀THQ/QOTMMRQ/UT/HRQMTIQ

bPHQ/_TUcMOI/VQMQ/3�8Q/IU/HRQIN̂̂/ONIOP/̀NQHR/HRQMTIQ/IPTUVdPUVI/IPM/OHIJf/8TUcMOI/PNQ/0�/JMNT/���
]NIOP/TM�VHTM]MRI/k�01�1<;/_MT/ghl/eTU]/gh/0:i0</IPTUVdP/gh/FjiF:f

�>,>)D

7HIJKHLM

%& '(!)$* )(D

7NTTJU\MT/]NHRIMRNROM/_TUcMOI/eUT/ghF1iFjf

mBno?�$pq?r ms*C$=p%q q*t ruZ ou*vBw% uxw =u=?� =u=?�$qno?�?=qC

= )"#DEyz yz yz yz yz yz

{�|��}�~�|�������		������������|| = )"#$%& �&",,(@E$��



������ ����	
�� ����������������� �������������

 !"#$%&'!()"*%+,-.)'/0123 &'!()"*%45*$)

6775*5!8#$%&'!()"*%9:;< =>?0@ABC0D0EFGHHIJ0KILMGN0=OMPFONNQF0RSLFGTQ

4UV)%!W%X!'Y< EFGHHIJ0KILMGNZ &'!()"*%:);"'5V*5!8

4UV)%!W%X!'Y%:);"'5V*5!8< EFGHHIJ0KILMGNZ0D
[QSNGJQ0GMT0\SLFGTQ0PFGHHIJ0ZILMGNZ0GMT0Q]\IŜ QMP

E_IZ0SFÒQJP0aINN0FQSNGJQ0ObZONQPQ0PFGHHIJ0ZILMGN0JOMPFONNQFZc0IMZPGNN0dITQO0TQPQJPIOM0GMT0\SLFGTQ0PFGHHIJ
ZILMGN0Q]\IŜ QMP0JIPeaITQf

 5-5*;

gFQG0NÎIPZ

&'!()"*%+!*);

>̂SGJP0hQQZ0iEFGHHIJ01Qj\Zkf0=GFFeOdQF0HOF
hlAm2Anf

o9pq6 
rs6t ou+:%4r&s s+v twX qw+x9y&wzy4w46 

4w46 
spq6 64s:

A{An
|QGZ\FQ0|A0}OJGN
hGIFZ_GFQ ~Amc{{{ ~{ ~@mc{{{ ~{ ~B{{c{{{ ~B{BcC@m

A{An EFGHHIJ0>̂SGJP0hQQZ ~{ ~{ ~m{c{{{ ~{ ~m{c{{{ ~mBcAm{

A{A@
|QGZ\FQ0|A0}OJGN
hGIFZ_GFQ ~Amc{{{ ~{ ~@mc{{{ ~{ ~B{{c{{{ ~B{�c@�@

A{A@ EFGHHIJ0>̂SGJP0hQQZ ~{ ~{ ~m{c{{{ ~{ ~m{c{{{ ~mAcm�B

A{AC
|QGZ\FQ0|A0}OJGN
hGIFZ_GFQ ~Amc{{{ ~{ ~@mc{{{ ~{ ~B{{c{{{ ~B{mc@n@

A{AC EFGHHIJ0>̂SGJP0hQQZ ~{ ~{ ~m{c{{{ ~{ ~m{c{{{ ~m�cC�m

A{A�
|QGZ\FQ0|A0}OJGN
hGIFZ_GFQ ~Amc{{{ ~{ ~@mc{{{ ~{ ~B{{c{{{ ~B{@c@Cn

A{A� EFGHHIJ0>̂SGJP0hQQZ ~{ ~{ ~m{c{{{ ~{ ~m{c{{{ ~mmcB�B

A{�{
|QGZ\FQ0|A0}OJGN
hGIFZ_GFQ ~Amc{{{ ~{ ~@mc{{{ ~{ ~B{{c{{{ ~B{�cCmn

A{�{ EFGHHIJ0>̂SGJP0hQQZ ~{ ~{ ~m{c{{{ ~{ ~m{c{{{ ~mncm@{

A{�B
|QGZ\FQ0|A0}OJGN
hGIFZ_GFQ ~Amc{{{ ~{ ~@mc{{{ ~{ ~B{{c{{{ ~BBBc�@@

A{�B EFGHHIJ0>̂SGJP0hQQZ ~{ ~{ ~m{c{{{ ~{ ~m{c{{{ ~m@c�Cm

A{�A EFGHHIJ0>̂SGJP0hQQZ ~{ ~{ ~m{c{{{ ~{ ~m{c{{{ ~m�c���

A{�A
|QGZ\FQ0|A0}OJGN
hGIFZ_GFQ ~Amc{{{ ~{ ~@mc{{{ ~{ ~B{{c{{{ ~BB�cBmB

4!*#$;<���������� ���������� ��������������������

�����������������		�������������� 4!*#$%&'!�'#--)7<%~Bc{m{c{{{

������ ����	
�� ����������������� �������������

 !"#$%&'!()"*%+,-.)'/0123 &'!()"*%45*$)

6775*5!8#$%&'!()"*%9:;< =>?0@AB�0D0EFGHHIJ0=GN̂IML0>̂SFOdQ̂ QMPZ

4UV)%!W%X!'Y< KGHQPe &'!()"*%:);"'5V*5!8

4UV)%!W%X!'Y%:);"'5V*5!8< KGHQPe0D0EFGHHIJ
JGN̂IML0Z\J_0GZ0b\NbO\Pc0J_O�QFZc0ZSQQT0_\̂ Sc0QPJf

E_IZ0IZ0GM0GMM\GN0SFOLFĜ 0HOF0P_Q0TQdQNOŜ QMP0GMT0ÎSNQ̂ QMPGPIOM0OH0PFGHHIJ0JGN̂IML0ÎSFOdQ̂ QMPZ0GZ
FQJÔ Q̂MTQT0be0EFGHHIJ0=Ô ÎPPQQ0GMT0GSSFOdQT0be0=IPe0=O\MJINf

 5-5*;

=IPeaITQ

&'!()"*%+!*);

=GFFeOdQF0HOF0hlAm2Anf

o9pq6 %rs6t ou+:%4r&s s+v twX qw+x9y&wzy 4w46 4w46 %spq6 64s:

A{An �GZ0EGj ~Bmc{{{ ~{ ~B�mc{{{~{ ~Bm{c{{{ ~Bm�c�@m

A{A@ �GZ0EGj ~Bmc{{{ ~{ ~B�mc{{{~{ ~Bm{c{{{ ~BmncC��

A{AC �GZ0EGj ~Bmc{{{ ~{ ~B�mc{{{~{ ~Bm{c{{{ ~Bn{c�C{

A{A� �GZ0EGj ~Bmc{{{ ~{ ~B�mc{{{~{ ~Bm{c{{{ ~Bn�c{Bm

A{�{ �GZ0EGj ~Bmc{{{ ~{ ~B�mc{{{~{ ~Bm{c{{{ ~Bn@c@�{

A{�B �GZ0EGj ~Bmc{{{ ~{ ~B�mc{{{~{ ~Bm{c{{{ ~B@Bcmm�

A{�A �GZ0EGj ~Bmc{{{ ~{ ~B�mc{{{~{ ~Bm{c{{{ ~B@mc�@�

4!*#$;<���������� ���������� ��������������������

�����������������		�������������� 4!*#$%&'!�'#--)7<%~Bc{m{c{{{



������ �����	
� ���������������� �������������

�� !"#$%�&' (#)*+,'%-./01234516578190:; $%�&' (#<=("'

>??=(=�@!"#$%�&' (#ABCD /01234516578190:; EFG.HI;/.1.731;H.J.KLMNOPQ.3RLS.FTQOPUVLTWO.FMXPRYOMOTQZ

<[\'#�]#̂�%_D FTQOPUVLTWO $%�&' (#B'C %=\(=�@

<[\'#�]#̂�%_#B'C %=\(=�@D FTQOPUVLTWO.1
3OURT̀aWbPO.QVO.aTQOPUVLTWO.NOQcOOT.ZQPOOQ.LTS
P̀OOcLd.QR.OeaMaTLQO.QPL̀̀aU.URT̀eaUQZ

731;H.J.KLMNOPQ.3RLS.FMXPRYOMOTQZ.QR.XPRYaSO.LSSaQaRTLe.ULXLUaQd.LTS.aMXPRYO.RXOPLQaRTLe
XOP̀RPMLTUOf.gOQLaeOS.XPRhOUQ.SOZUPaXQaRT.R̀.QVO.RYOPLee.XPRhOUQ.aZ.aTUebSOS.aT.QVO.ERRXOPLQaYO
5WPOOMOTQ.E1:1/90if.8VO.XPRhOUQ.aZ.UbPPOTQed.̀bTSOS

�=+=(C

KLMNOPQ.3RLS.̀PRM.GRaTQO.gPaYO.QR.7QLQO.EReeOWOj
731;H.FTQOPUVLTWO.NOQcOOT.8RTTOP.ELTdRT.LTS
FMXOPaLe.kaWVcLd

$%�&' (#)�('C

ELPPdRYOP.̀RP.6lI;mInf

oApq>�#rs>t ou)B#<r$s s)v tŵ qw)xAy$ wzy <w<>� <w<>�#spq>�><sB

<�(!"CD{| {| {| {| {| {|

}�~������~�����
���������������~~ <�(!"#$%��%!++'?D#�i

������ �����	�� ���������������� �������������

�� !"#$%�&' (#)*+,'%-./n123451678190iI $%�&' (#<=("'

>??=(=�@!"#$%�&' (#ABCD /01234516578190:; EFG.HI;/.1.731;H.6POOcLd.m.KLMNOPQ.3RLS.FTQOPUVLTWO

<[\'#�]#̂�%_D FTQOPUVLTWO $%�&' (#B'C %=\(=�@

<[\'#�]#̂�%_#B'C %=\(=�@D FTQOPUVLTWO.1.�Oc
aTQOPUVLTWO.NOQcOOT.ZQPOOQ.LTS.̀POOcLd

8VaZ.XPRhOUQ.caee.URTZQPbUQ.L.TOc.OLZQNRbTS.QR.TRPQVNRbTS.eRRX.RT1PLMX.LTS.MRSàd.QVO.ZXLUaTW
NOQcOOT.QVO.O�aZQaTW.731;H.RT.LTS.R̀̀.PLMXZ.QR.aMXPRYO.QPL̀̀aU.̀eRcf.ELeQPLTZ.aZ.KOLS.5WOTUd.̀RP
4TYaPRTMOTQLe.J.FMXeOMOTQLQaRTf

�=+=(C

8VO.eaMaQZ.R̀.QVaZ.XPRhOUQ.LPO.QVO.731;H.6POOcLd
RT1PLMX.LTS.QVO.aMMOSaLQO.ZbPPRbTSaTWZf

$%�&' (#)�('C

ELPPdRYOP.̀RP.6lI;mInf

oApq>�#rs>t ou)B#<r$s s)v tŵ qw)xAy$ wzy <w<>� <w<>�#spq>�><sB

<�(!"CD{| {| {| {| {| {|

}�~������~�����
���������������~~ <�(!"#$%��%!++'?D#�i

������ �����	�� ���������������� �������������

�� !"#$%�&' (#)*+,'%- $%�&' (#<=("'

>??=(=�@!"#$%�&' (#ABCD EFG.HI::.1.2POL.2RbeOYLPS.7QPOOQ.FMXPRYOMOTQ

<[\'#�]#̂�%_D 3RLS.�LaTQOTLTUO $%�&' (#B'C %=\(=�@

<[\'#�]#̂�%_#B'C %=\(=�@D 3RLS.�LaTQOTLTUO.1
7ebPPd.ZOLe.R̀.PRLScLd

8VaZ.XPRhOUQ.caee.ZebPPd.ZOLe.QVO.XLYOMOTQ.RT.2POL.2RbeOYLPS.NOQcOOT.FMXOPaLe.kaWVcLd.LTS.�bTaXOP
7QPOOQf

�=+=(C

2POL.2RbeOYLPS.NOQcOOT.FMXOPaLe.kaWVcLd.LTS
�bTaXOP.7QPOOQ

$%�&' (#)�('C

ELPPdRYOP.̀RP.6lI;mInf

oApq>�#rs>t ou)B#<r$s s)v tŵ qw)xAy$ wzy <w<>� <w<>�#spq>�><sB

<�(!"CD{| {| {| {| {| {|

}�~������~�����
���������������~~ <�(!"#$%��%!++'?D#�i

������ �������� ���������������� �������������

�� !"#$%�&' (#)*+,'%-.II1234516781�i/; $%�&' (#<=("'

>??=(=�@!"#$%�&' (#ABCD EFG.H9in.1.FMXOPaLe.kcdm731;H.FTQOPUVLTWO.FMXPRYOMOTQZ

<[\'#�]#̂�%_D FTQOPUVLTWO $%�&' (#B'C %=\(=�@

<[\'#�]#̂�%_#B'C %=\(=�@D FTQOPUVLTWO.1.�aSOT
aTQOPUVLTWO.NOQcOOT.ZQPOOQ.LTS.̀POOcLd

GPRhOUQ.caee.caSOT.QVO.731;H.ZRbQVNRbTS.RT1PLMX.J.POURT̀aWbPO.OLZQNRbTS.eLTOZ.RT.FMXOPaLe.kcdf
8VO.XPRhOUQ.caee.aMXPRYO.QPL̀̀aU.RXOPLQaRTLe.XOP̀RPMLTUO.J.POSbUO.URTWOZQaRT.RT.FMXOPaLe.kcdf.ELeQPLTZ
URRPSaTLQaRT.aZ.PO�baPOSf

�=+=(C

731;H.ZRbQVNRbTS.RT1PLMX.LTS.POURT̀aWbPO
OLZQNRbTS.eLTOZ.RT.FMXOPaLe.kcdf

$%�&' (#)�('C

FMXLUQ.6OOZ.�8PL̀̀aU.�O�bZ�f.�I.6578.̀bTSZ
PO�bOZQOS.LTS.POURMMOTSOS.̀RP.LXXPRYLe.SbPaTW
IiII.E86G.ELee.̀RP.GPRhOUQZf.6bTSaTW.ZVRcT.LZ
FE4.NOULbZO.6578.cLZT�Q.RT.QVO.eaZQf.�XSLQO.cVOT
XRZZaNeOf.GPRhOUQ.FTaQaLQaRT.gRUbMOTQ.ZQLPQOS.aT
UReeLNRPLQaRT.caQV.URTZbeQLTQ.LTS.ELeQPLTZf
ELPPdRYOP.̀RP.6l.I;mInf

oApq>�#rs>tou)B#<r$s s)v tŵ qw)xAy$wzy<w<>� <w<>�#spq>�><sB

IiI0 8PL̀̀aU.FMXLUQ.6OOZ�;iijiii�i �i �i �;iijiii�;iijiii

<�(!"CD{�||�|||{| {| {| {�||�|||{�||�|||

}�~������~�����
���������������~~ <�(!"#$%��%!++'?D#�;iijiii



������ ����	
�� ����������������� �������������

 !"#$%&'!()"*%+,-.)'/0123 &'!()"*%45*$)

6775*5!8#$%&'!()"*%9:;< =>?0@ABC0D0=EFGHEIJ0KLMNNG0KJOL0?NPQNOR0S?10@ABCT

4UV)%!W%X!'Y< ZPOI0[OE\FJ\O\]J &'!()"*%:);"'5V*5!8

4UV)%!W%X!'Y%:);"'5V*5!8< ZPOI0[OE\FJ\O\]J0D
KLMNNG0̂JOL0P_0NPOIHOG

àÊ0bNPcJ]F0Ê0O\0O\\MOL0bNPO]FEdJe0̂FNJJF0ROE\FJ\O\]J0bNPQNOR0FaNPMQa0HaE]a0=EFG0̂FNJJF̂0ONJ0̂LMNNG
ĴOLJI0P\0O\0JEQaFDGJON0]G]LJf0gO]a0GJONe0O0LÊFE\Q0P_0̂bJ]E_E]0̂FNJJF̂0HELL0hJ0IJFJNRE\JI0_PN0̂LMNNG0̂JOL
E\0]PPNIE\OFEP\0HEFa0?[?0NJ]PRRJ\IOFEP\̂f

 5-5*;

iONEĴ0O\\MOLLG

&'!()"*%+!*);

=ONNGPdJN0_PN0jkCl2Cmf

n9op6 
qr6s nt+:%4q&r r+usvX pv+w9x& vyx4v46 

4v46 
rop6 64r:

CzCm
[JÔMNJ0[C0{P]OL
jOEN̂aONJ |z |z |Azzezzz |z |Azzezzz |Az@elzz

CzC@
[JÔMNJ0[C0{P]OL
jOEN̂aONJ |z |z |Azzezzz |z |Azzezzz |ABleB}}

CzC}
[JÔMNJ0[C0{P]OL
jOEN̂aONJ |z |z |Azzezzz |z |Azzezzz |ACAezm@

CzC~
[JÔMNJ0[C0{P]OL
jOEN̂aONJ |z |z |Azzezzz |z |Azzezzz |AABeB��

CzAz
[JÔMNJ0[C0{P]OL
jOEN̂aONJ |z |z |Azzezzz |z |Azzezzz |AA~e�CC

CzAB
[JÔMNJ0[C0{P]OL
jOEN̂aONJ |z |z |Azzezzz |z |Azzezzz |A�@e~z}

CzAC
[JÔMNJ0[C0{P]OL
jOEN̂aONJ |z |z |Azzezzz |z |Azzezzz |Almemzm

4!*#$;<�� �� ������������ ��������������������

�����������������		�������������� 4!*#$%&'!�'#--)7<%|CeBzzezzz

������ ����	
�� ����������������� �������������

 !"#$%&'!()"*%+,-.)'/0@ABA &'!()"*%45*$)

6775*5!8#$%&'!()"*%9:;< =>?0@ABA0D0=EFGHEIJ0KEIJHOL�0ZJbLO]JRJ\F0?NPQNOR

4UV)%!W%X!'Y< ?JIĴFNEO\ &'!()"*%:);"'5V*5!8

4UV)%!W%X!'Y%:);"'5V*5!8< ?JIĴFNEO\0D
ZJ]P\̂FNM]FEP\0PN0NJaOhELEFOFEP\0P_0̂EIJHOL�

àÊ0bNPcJ]F0OLLPĤ0_PN0NJbOEN0O\I0NJbLO]JRJ\F0P_0IÊbLO]JI0]P\]NJFJ0̂EIJHOL�̂e0]MNh0�0QMFFJNe0O\I0]MNh
O]]Ĵ 0̂NORb̂f

 5-5*;

=EFGHEIJ

&'!()"*%+!*);

=ONNG0PdJN0_PN0jkCl2Cm

n9op6 %qr6s nt+:%4q&r r+u svX pv+w9x& vyx 4v46 4v46 %rop6 64r:

CzCm �Ô0̀O� |z |z |Czzezzz |z |Czzezzz |Czlezzz

CzC@ �Ô0̀O� |z |z |Czzezzz |z |Czzezzz |CBzeBCl

CzC} �Ô0̀O� |z |z |Czzezzz |z |Czzezzz |CBleA@}

CzC~ �Ô0̀O� |z |z |Czzezzz |z |Czzezzz |CCze@mA

CzAz �Ô0̀O� |z |z |Czzezzz |z |Czzezzz |CCmeC}C

CzAB �Ô0̀O� |z |z |Czzezzz |z |Czzezzz |CABe~A~

CzAC �Ô0̀O� |z |z |Czzezzz |z |Czzezzz |CA@e@A@

4!*#$;<�� �� ���������� �� ���������� ����������

�����������������		�������������� 4!*#$%&'!�'#--)7<%|Be�zzezzz

������ ����	��� ����������������� �������������

 !"#$%&'!()"*%+,-.)'/0@ACC &'!()"*%45*$)

6775*5!8#$%&'!()"*%9:;< =>?0@ACC0D0=PM\FNG0�ELL̂0KMhIEdÊEP\0?OdJRJ\F0�0�OFJN0=P\\J]FEP\0ZJaOhELEFOFEP\

4UV)%!W%X!'Y< ZPOI0[OE\FJ\O\]J &'!()"*%:);"'5V*5!8

4UV)%!W%X!'Y%:);"'5V*5!8< ZPOI0[OE\FJ\O\]J0D
ZJaOhELEFOFEP\0P_0NPOIHOG

ZJaOhELEFOFJ0KFNJJF̂0E\0=PM\FNG0�ELL̂0̀NO]F0bMN̂MO\F0FP0?[?f0>RbNPdJRJ\F̂0E\]LMIJ0MbIOFE\Q0]MNĥe
QMFFJN̂0O\I03�30NORb̂f0�OFJN0]P\\J]FEP\0ERbNPdJRJ\F̂0ONJ0bLO\\JI0]P\]MNNJ\FLG0hMF0HELL0hJ0_M\IJI
FaNPMQa0�OFJN0jM\I0O\I0PFaJN0\P\DFNO\̂bPNFOFEP\0̂PMN]Ĵ

 5-5*;

=PM\FNG0�ELL̂0̀NO]F0D0gÔF0P_03̂ P̂]EOFJI0ZPOI
hJFHJJ\0{ORhJNF0ZPOI0�0�EN]a0KFNJJF

&'!()"*%+!*);

=ONNGPdJN0_PN0jkCl2Cmf

n9op6 %qr6s nt+:%4q&r r+u svX pv+w9x& vyx 4v46 4v46 %rop6 64r:

4!*#$;<�� �� �� �� �� ��

�����������������		�������������� 4!*#$%&'!�'#--)7<%|z



������ �����	
� ���������������� �������������

�� !"#$%�&' (#)*+,'%- $%�&' (#./("'

011/(/�2!"#$%�&' (#3456 789:;<=>:?:@ABCDE:@AF:GEHIIE:JIKALMBMEAEMNC

.OP'#�Q#R�%S6 JNAT:UAMCEICACVI $%�&' (#4'5 %/P(/�2

.OP'#�Q#R�%S#4'5 %/P(/�26 JNAT:UAMCEICACVI:?
JIKALMBMEAEMNC:NW:HNATXAF

YKMZ:[HN\IVE:XMBB:HIKALMBMEAEI:EKI:HIZMTICEMAB:HNATXAF:NC:@ABCDE:@AF:BNVAEIT:ZNDEK:NW:]HAV̂IC:ACT:NC
EKI:XIZE:ZMTI:NW:]HIA:]NDBI_AHT̀

�/+/(5

aC:@ABCDE:@AF:ZNDEK:NW:]HAV̂IC:ACT:NC:EKI:XIZE
ZMTI:NW:]HIA:]NDBI_AHT̀

$%�&' (#)�('5

7AHHFN_IH:WNH:bc=de=>̀

f3gh0�
ij0k fl)4#.i$j j)m knR hn)o3p$ nqp.n.0�

.n.0�
jgh0�0.j4

=r=> stICVF:7NCEHMLDEMNC uvrwrrrur u<>rwrrr ur uvrrwrrr uvrxwrrr

=r=y
UIAZDHI:U=:zNVAB
bAMHZKAHI ur ur udrrwrrr ur udrrwrrr ud<ywvvd

=r=y {AZ:YA| udrwrrrur u}drwrrr ur u=rrwrrr u=}}wd<v

.�(!"56~������~� ~���������~� ~���������~���������

���������������	�

�������������� .�(!"#$%��%!++'16#u}w}rrwrrr

������ �����	
� ���������������� �������������

�� !"#$%�&' (#)*+,'%- $%�&' (#./("'

011/(/�2!"#$%�&' (#3456 789:;<=;:?:7ICEHAB:s_ICDI:�:GEAEI:7NBBItI:]NDBI_AHT:GEHIIE:8�[HN_I�ICEZ

.OP'#�Q#R�%S6 JNAT:UAMCEICACVI $%�&' (#4'5 %/P(/�2

.OP'#�Q#R�%S#4'5 %/P(/�26 JNAT:UAMCEICACVI:?
JIKALMBMEAEMNC:NW:HNATXAF

YKMZ:[HN\IVE:XMBB:M�[HN_I:EKI:[A_I�ICE:[DHZDACE:EN:EKI:7MEF�Z:9A_I�ICE:UACAtI�ICE:9BAC̀
8�[HN_I�ICEZ:XMBB:MCVBDTI:D[TAEMCt:VDHLZw:tDEEIHZ:�:s�s:HA�[Z̀

�/+/(5

aC:7ICEHAB:s_ICDI:LIEXIIC:XIZE:7MEF:BM�MEZ:ACT
]HIA:]NDBI_AHT

$%�&' (#)�('5

7AHHFN_IH:WNH:bc=de=>̀

f3gh0�
ij0k fl)4#.i$j j)m knR hn)o3p$ nqp.n.0�

.n.0�
jgh0�0.j4

=r<=
UIAZDHI:U=:zNVAB
bAMHZKAHI ur ur u;drwrrr ur u;drwrrr uyx}wd}v

=r<= {AZ:YA| u}drwrrrur u>rrwrrr ur u;drwrrr uy><w=}}

.�(!"56~�������~� ~���������~� ~���������~���������

���������������	�

�������������� .�(!"#$%��%!++'16#u}wdrrwrrr

������ �������� ���������������� �������������

�� !"#$%�&' (#)*+,'%- $%�&' (#./("'

011/(/�2!"#$%�&' (#3456 789:;<=x:?:]8J7�:GỲ:8U9Ja��U��YG:G̀:sGGa78sY��:Ya:�sz��78s

.OP'#�Q#R�%S6 JNAT:UAMCEICACVI $%�&' (#4'5 %/P(/�2

.OP'#�Q#R�%S#4'5 %/P(/�26 JNAT:UAMCEICACVI:?
JIKALMBMEAEMNC:NW:HNATXAF

YKI:M�[HN_I�ICEZ:XMBB:MCVBDTI:[A_MCt:D[tHATIZ:ACT:EKI:HI�N_AB:ACT:HIVNCZEHDVEMNC:NW:VDHLw:tDEEIH
ACT:s�s:HA�[Z:XMEKMC:EKI:[HN\IVE:AHIÀ

�/+/(5

]MHVK:GÈ:WHN�:G̀:sZZNVMAEIT:JNAT:EN:�ABICVMA
s_ICDI

$%�&' (#)�('5

9HN\IVE:�NZEBF:WDCTIT:EKHNDtK:JUJs̀:zNN̂MCt:MCEN
[NZZMLMBMEF:NW:I|[ACTMCt:ZVN[I:XKMVK:�AF:HI�DMHI
ATTMEMNCAB:WDCTMCt̀:7AHHFN_IH:WNH:bc=de=>

f3gh0�
ij0k

fl)4#.i$j j)m knR hn)o3p$ nqp.n.0� .n.0�
jgh0�0.j4

=r=> zNVAB:GEHIIEZ:ACT:JNATZ
A[[NHEMNC�ICEZ

udrwrrr ur u=rrwrrr ur u=drwrrr u=ddwrrr

=r=> UIAZDHI:U=:zNVAB
bAMHZKAHI

ur ur u=drwrrr ur u=drwrrr u=d>w=dr

=r<} zNVAB:GEHIIEZ:ACT:JNATZ
A[[NHEMNC�ICEZ

u=;dwrrrur u}w}rrwrrrur u}w<;dwrrru}wddrw>><

=r<} UIAZDHI:U=:zNVAB
bAMHZKAHI

ur ur u}w<;dwrrrur u}w<;dwrrru}wdxvwd;y

.�(!"56~�������~� ~���������~� ~���������~�� � ����

���������������	�

�������������� .�(!"#$%��%!++'16#u<w=drwrrr



������ �����	�
 ���������������� �������������

�� !"#$%�&' (#)*+,'%- $%�&' (#./("'

011/(/�2!"#$%�&' (#3456 789:;<<=:>:?@ABC:DBEFG:HEI@JB:9KEG

.LM'#�N#O�%P6 Q@RJB $%�&' (#4'5 %/M(/�2

.LM'#�N#O�%P#4'5 %/M(/�26 Q@RJB:>:Q@RJB
SRFI:TBAUJV@:WFKK:FGVKXYJ:@RJ:TBJTEBE@FAG:AZ:EG:XTYE@J:@A:@RJ:7F@[\I:HEI@JB:9KEG:AZ:DBEFGE]Ĵ:EG:EGEK[IFI
AZ:@RJ:VETEVF@[:AZ:@RJ:7F@[\I:J_FI@FG]:I@ABC:YBEFGE]J:FGZBEI@BXV@XBJ̀:E:R[YBAKA]FV:EGY:R[YBEXKFV
EIIJIICJG@:a:BJVACCJGYJY:FCTBAbJCJG@:TBAUJV@Ic

�/+/(5

7F@[WFYJ

$%�&' (#)�('5

QGK[:@RAIJ:TAB@FAGI:AZ:@RJ:TKEG:BJKE@JY:@A
SBEGITAB@E@FAG:IREKK:dJ:He:fg?:JKF]FdKJc:7EBB[AbJB
ZAB:gheijekc

l3mn0�
op0q lr)4#.o$p p)s qtO nt)u3v$twv.t.0�

.t.0�
pmn0�0.p4

e=ek
x]JGV[
7AG@BFdX@FAG y<i=̀===y= y= y= y<i=̀===y<i=̀===

.�(!"56z{|}~}}}z} z} z} z{|}~}}}z{|}~}}}

��������������������������������� .�(!"#$%��%!++'16#y<i=̀===

������ �����

� ���������������� �������������

�� !"#$%�&' (#)*+,'%- $%�&' (#./("'

011/(/�2!"#$%�&' (#3456 789:;<<�:>:9EKC:?@BJJ@:9EbFG]:8CTBAbJCJG@I

.LM'#�N#O�%P6 �AEY:HEFG@JGEGVJ $%�&' (#4'5 %/M(/�2

.LM'#�N#O�%P#4'5 %/M(/�26 �AEY:HEFG@JGEGVJ:>
�JREdFKF@E@FAG:AZ:BAEYWE[

SRFI:TBAUJV@:WFKK:BJREdFKF@E@J:@RJ:J_FI@FG]:BAEYWE[:AZ:9EKC:?@BJJ@:ZBAC:�AGF@E:9KEVJ:@A:�c:7JG@BEK
xbJGXJ:WF@RFG:@RJ:7F@[:KFCF@Ic:8CTBAbJCJG@I:WFKK:EKIA:FGVKXYJ:XTYE@FG]:VXBd̀:]X@@JB̀:xDx:BECTÌ
IFYJWEK�Ì:EGY:YBEFGE]J:FCTBAbJCJG@Ic

�/+/(5

9EKC:?@c:ZBAC:�c:7JG@BEK:xbJc:@A:�AGF@E:9KEVJ

$%�&' (#)�('5

l3mn0�
op0q lr)4#.o$p p)s qtO nt)u3v$ twv.t.0�

.t.0�
pmn0�0.p4

e=ek
HJEIXBJ:He:fAVEK
gEFBIREBJ y= y= y��=̀=== y= y��=̀=== y�<è;i=

e=ek �EI:SE_ y�<=̀===y= yek=̀=== y= y<�=̀=== y<�k̀i==

.�(!"56z�{}~}}}z} z�~��}~}}}z} z�~{}}~}}}z�~{��~�|}

��������������������������������� .�(!"#$%��%!++'16#y�̀<==̀===

������ �����

� ���������������� �������������

�� !"#$%�&' (#)*+,'%- $%�&' (#./("'

011/(/�2!"#$%�&' (#3456 789:;<<i:>:�8�7�:?Sc:8H9�Q��H��S?:���x:�f�Dc:SQ:?c:x??Q78xS�D:�Dc

.LM'#�N#O�%P6 �AEY:HEFG@JGEGVJ $%�&' (#4'5 %/M(/�2

.LM'#�N#O�%P#4'5 %/M(/�26 �AEY:HEFG@JGEGVJ:>
�JREdFKF@E@FAG:AZ:BAEYWE[

SRFI:TBAUJV@:WFKK:FCTBAbJ:@RJ:TEbJCJG@:AG:�FBVR:?@BJJ@̀:ZBAC:�BJE:�AXKJbEBY:@A:?AX@R:xIIAVFE@JY
�AEỲ:TXBIXEG@:@A:@RJ:7F@[�I:9EbJCJG@:HEGE]JCJG@:9KEGc:SRJ:FCTBAbJCJG@I:WFKK:FGVKXYJ:TEbFG]
XT]BEYJÌ:@RJ:BJCAbEK:EGY:BJVAGI@BXV@FAG:AZ:VXBd̀:]X@@JB̀:IFY

�/+/(5

�FBVR:?@c:ZBAC:�BJE:�KbYc:@A:?c:xIIAVFE@JY:�Yc

$%�&' (#)�('5

l3mn0�
op0q

lr)4#.o$p p)s qtO nt)u3v$ twv.t.0� .t.0�
pmn0�0.p4

e=e� fAVEK:?@BJJ@I:EGY:�AEYI
ETTAB@FAGCJG@I

y�==̀===y= y�̀e;ì===y= y�̀<;ì===y�̀i=;̀<k�

e=e� HJEIXBJ:He:fAVEK
gEFBIREBJ

y= y= y�̀<;ì===y= y�̀<;ì===y�̀i�;̀;�<

e=<= HJEIXBJ:He:fAVEK
gEFBIREBJ

y= y= y�̀<;ì===y= y�̀<;ì===y�̀iiìk�k

e=<= fAVEK:?@BJJ@I:EGY:�AEYI
ETTAB@FAGCJG@I

y�==̀===y= y�̀e;ì===y= y�̀<;ì===y�̀i�èi�i

.�(!"56z�}}~}}}z} z|~{}}~}}}z} z|~|}}~}}}z�~��{~{{|

��������������������������������� .�(!"#$%��%!++'16#yìi==̀===



������ ����	

� ������������������ �������������

� !"#$%& '(!)$*+,-(&. %& '(!)$/0)#(

1220)0 3"#$%& '(!)$4567 89:;<==>;?;@ABCDE:F;AGHI;JK@HHK;9L:@DGHLHBKJ

/MN($ O$P &Q7 @RST;LSUVWXVSVYX %& '(!)$5(6!&0N)0 3

/MN($ O$P &Q$5(6!&0N)0 37 @RST;LSUVWXVSVYX;?
@XZS[U\UWSWURV;R];̂RST_S̀

KZUa;b̂RcXYW;_U\\;Udb̂ReX;WZX;bSeXdXVW;RV;@SVTR\bZ;AeXVfXg;]̂Rd;hÛYZ;JŴXXW;WR;9dbX̂US\;FUiZ_S̀g
bf̂afSVW;WR;WZX;8UẀja;:SeXdXVW;LSVSiXdXVW;:\SVI;KZX;Udb̂ReXdXVWa;_U\\;UVY\fTX;bSeUVi;fbîSTXag
WZX;̂XdReS\;SVT;̂XYRVaŴfYWURV;R];Yf̂[g;ifWWX̂g;aUTX_S\

�0,0)6

@SVTR\bZ;AeXI;]̂Rd;hÛYZ;JWI;WR;9dbX̂US\;F_̀

%& '(!)$* )(6

k4lm1�
no1p kq*5$/n%o o*r psP ms*t4u% svu/s/1�

/s/1�
olm1�1/o5

wx=w
LXSaf̂X;Lw;ERYS\
ySÛaZŜX zx zx z<{xgxxx zx z<{xgxxx z|}~g{~�

wx=w
ERYS\;JŴXXWa;SVT;@RSTa
SbbR̂WURVdXVWa z~{xgxxxzx z>xxgxxx zx z<{xgxxx z|>=gw~~

/ )"#67���������� ������������ ��������������������

��������������	������������������ / )"#$%& �&",,(27$z~g{xxgxxx

������ ����	

� ������������������ �������������

� !"#$%& '(!)$*+,-(&. %& '(!)$/0)#(

1220)0 3"#$%& '(!)$4567 89:;<==<;?;KAB�EH�DDC;JK@HHK;:AG9B�;9L:@DGHLHBKJ

/MN($ O$P &Q7 @RST;LSUVWXVSVYX %& '(!)$5(6!&0N)0 3

/MN($ O$P &Q$5(6!&0N)0 37 @RST;LSUVWXVSVYX;?
@XZS[U\UWSWURV;R];̂RST_S̀

KZUa;b̂RcXYW;_U\\;Udb̂ReX;WZX;bSeXdXVW;RV;KSVi\X_RRT;JŴXXW;STcSYXVW;WR;WZX;UVWX̂aXYWURV;R];:S\d
JŴXXWg;bf̂afSVW;WR;WZX;8UẀja;:SeXdXVW;LSVSiXdXVW;:\SVI;KZX;Udb̂ReXdXVWa;_U\\;UVY\fTX;bSeUVi
fbîSTXag;fWU\UẀ;SVT;ŴXVYZUVi;[SY�]U\\;dRTU]UYSWURVag;SV

�0,0)6

KSVi\X_RRT;JWI;STcSYXVW;WR;WZX;UVWX̂aXYWURV;R]
:S\d;JWI

%& '(!)$* )(6

k4lm1�
no1p kq*5$/n%o o*r psP ms*t4u%svu/s/1�

/s/1�
olm1�1/o5

wxw>
LXSaf̂X;Lw;ERYS\
ySÛaZŜX z{xgxxxzx z�{xgxxxzx z{xxgxxxz{~~gw{x

/ )"#67��������� ���������� ����������������

��������������	������������������ / )"#$%& �&",,(27$z{xxgxxx

������ ����			� ������������������ �������������

� !"#$%& '(!)$*+,-(&.;<�>w %& '(!)$/0)#(

1220)0 3"#$%& '(!)$4567 89:;<�>w;?;HVWX̂b̂UaX;K̂SYW;�SWX̂;9db̂ReXdXVWa

/MN($ O$P &Q7 @RST;LSUVWXVSVYX %& '(!)$5(6!&0N)0 3

/MN($ O$P &Q$5(6!&0N)0 37 @RST;LSUVWXVSVYX;?
@XZS[U\UWSWURV;R];̂RST_S̀

KZUa;b̂RcXYW;_U\\;̂Xb\SYX;X�UaWUVi;fVTX̂aU�XT;SVT;TXWX̂UR̂SWXT;_SWX̂;dSUVa;UV;WZX;HVWX̂b̂UaX;K̂SYW
UVY\fTUVi;@SViX̂;AeXVfXg;HVWX̂b̂UaX;JŴXXWg;GR̀SiX̂;AeXVfXg;Jf̂eX̀R̂;AeXVfXg;SVT;BSaS;JŴXXWI
ATTUWURVS\\̀g;WZUa;b̂RcXYW;_U\\;S\aR;̂XZS[U\UWSWX;WZX;X�U

�0,0)6

A\RVi;@SViX̂g;GR̀SiX̂g;Jf̂eX̀R̂;AeXg;S\RVi
HVWX̂b̂UaX;SVT;BSaS;JWg;J;R];hÛYZ;JW;SVT;B�;R]
GS\XVYUS;AeX

%& '(!)$* )(6

�bRV;YRdb\XWURV;R];_SWX̂;dSUV;Udb̂ReXdXVWag;WZX
b̂RcXYW;_U\\;YRdb\XWX;̂RST_S̀;̂XZS[U\UWSWURV;_UWZUV
WZX;b̂RcXYW;\UdUWaI;8Ŝ^̀ReX̂;]R̂;y�w{�w>I

k4lm1�
no1p

kq*5$/n%o o*r psP ms*t4u% svu/s/1� /s/1�
olm1�1/o5

wxw| AiXVỲ;8RVŴU[fWURV z{xgxxxzx z=g�{xgxxxzx z=g{xxgxxxz=g<>{gw<=

wxw| LXSaf̂X;Lw;ERYS\
ySÛaZŜX

zx zx z{{xgxxx zx z{{xgxxx z{}wgw}x

wxw| �Sa;KS� zx zx z�xxgxxx zx z�xxgxxx z�=xg<{>

/ )"#67��������� ������������ ��������������������

��������������	������������������ / )"#$%& �&",,(27$z�g�{xgxxx



������ �����	�
 ���������������� �������������

�� !"#$%�&' (#)*+,'%- $%�&' (#./("'

011/(/�2!"#$%�&' (#3456 789:;<=>:?:7@ABCDEFFB:GH@IJ:K@JDH:L@MA:NDOC@IDPDAJ

.QR'#�S#T�%U6 NF@B:L@MAJDA@AID $%�&' (#4'5 %/R(/�2

.QR'#�S#T�%U#4'5 %/R(/�26 NF@B:L@MAJDA@AID:?
NDV@WMCMJ@JMFA:FX:HF@BE@Y

GVMZ:OHF[DIJ:EMCC:HDOC@ID:D\MZJMA]:̂ABDHZM_DB:@AB:BDJDHMFH@JDB:E@JDH:P@MAZ:MA:JVD:7@ABCDEFFB:GH@IJ
ADM]VWFHVFFB:FA:JVD:ZF̂JV:ZMBD:FX:̀J@JD:7FCCD]D:aF̂CDb@HB:WDJEDDA:7CMXXEFFB:̀JHDDJ:@AB:a@CZ@
cbDÂDd

�/+/(5

ZF̂JV:ZMBD:FX:̀J@JD:7FCCD]D:aCbBd:WDJEDDA
7CMXXEFFB:̀Jd:@AB:a@CZ@:cbDd

$%�&' (#)�('5

7@HHYFbDH:XFH:efg>hg=d:8AIĈBDZ:O@bDPDAJ
HDV@WMCMJ@JMFA:JVHF̂]VF̂J:JVD:IFPP̂ AMJYd:Lg
X̂ABMA]:CMPMJDB:JF:DCM]MWCD:O@bDPDAJ:HDV@W
@IJMbMJMDZd

i3jk0�
lm0n io)4#.l$m m)p nqT kq)r3s$ qts.q.0�

.q.0�
mjk0�0.m4

gug=
c]DAIY
7FAJHMŴJMFA vwuxuuuvu vu vu vwuxuuu vwuxuuu

gugy
c]DAIY
7FAJHMŴJMFA v>uxuuuvu vzx>>uxuuuvu vzx=uuxuuuvzxy={x>z=

gugy |@Z:G@\ vu vu v{uuxuuu vu v{uuxuuu v{{zxu>u

.�(!"56}~�����}� }���������}� }���������}���~����~

��������������������������������� .�(!"#$%��%!++'16#v<x<wuxuuu

������ �����	�� ���������������� �������������

�� !"#$%�&' (#)*+,'%- $%�&' (#./("'

011/(/�2!"#$%�&' (#3456 789:;<;y:?:�FĴZ:9C@ID:K@JDH:�MAD:8POHFbDPDAJZ

.QR'#�S#T�%U6 NF@B:L@MAJDA@AID $%�&' (#4'5 %/R(/�2

.QR'#�S#T�%U#4'5 %/R(/�26 NF@B:L@MAJDA@AID:?
NDV@WMCMJ@JMFA:FX:HF@BE@Y

GVMZ:OHF[DIJ:OHFOFZDZ:JF:HDPFbD:@AB:HDOC@ID:JVD:D\MZJMA]:̂ABDHZM_DB:@AB:@]MA]:E@JDHCMADZ:FA:7DAJH@C
cbDÂDh�@:�@WH@:aF̂CDb@HB:WDJEDDA:�@CCD[F:̀JHDDJ:@AB:NFZIFD:̀JHDDJx:FA:9@CP:̀JHDDJ:WDJEDDA
7DAJH@C:cbDÂD:@AB:̀�YEFFB:̀JHDDJx:@AB:EMJVMA:JVD:HDZMBDAJM

�/+/(5

7DAJH@C:cbDh�@:�@WH@:aCbBx:FA:9@CP:̀JHDDJx:@AB
EMJVMA:@HD@:WF̂AB:WY:7DAJH@C:cbDdh�@:�@WH@:aCbB
JF:AFHJVx:̀�YEFFB:̀Jd:JF:ZF̂JVx:9@CP:JF:D@ZJ:@AB
�@CCD[F:̀J:JF:EDZJ

$%�&' (#)�('5

8AIĈBDZ:O@bDPDAJ:HDV@WMCMJ@JMFA:JVHF̂]VF̂J:JVD
IFPP̂ AMJYd:Lg:X̂ABMA]:CMPMJDB:JF:DCM]MWCD:O@bDPDAJ
HDV@W:@IJMbMJMDZd:7@HHYFbDH:XFH:efg>hg=d

i3jk0�
lm0n io)4#.l$m m)pnqT kq)r3s$ qts.q.0�

.q.0�
mjk0�0.m4

guzw |@Z:G@\ vu vu vw>uxuuu vu vw>uxuuu vw;zxy><

guzw
LD@ẐHD:Lg:�FI@C
e@MHZV@HD vu vu vguuxuuu vu vguuxuuu vgzwxyzy

guzw c]DAIY:7FAJHMŴJMFA vu vu vzx>uuxuuuvu vzx>uuxuuuv<xu>{xyg;

.�(!"56}� }� }���������}� }���������}���~�����

��������������������������������� .�(!"#$%��%!++'16#vzx{>uxuuu

������ �����	�� ���������������� �������������

�� !"#$%�&' (#)*+,'%-:;<{w $%�&' (#./("'

011/(/�2!"#$%�&' (#3456 789:;<{w:?:aHD@:7FHZMI@A:�MCC@Z:K@JDH:�MAD:8POHFbDPDAJZ

.QR'#�S#T�%U6 NF@B:L@MAJDA@AID $%�&' (#4'5 %/R(/�2

.QR'#�S#T�%U#4'5 %/R(/�26 NF@B:L@MAJDA@AID:?
NDV@WMCMJ@JMFA:FX:HF@BE@Y

GVMZ:OHF[DIJ:OHFOFZDZ:JF:HDOC@ID:JVD:D\MZJMA]:̂ABDHZM_DB:E@JDHCMADZ:EMJVMA:JVD:aHD@:7FHZMI@A:�MCC@Z
ADM]VWFHVFFBd:cBBMJMFA@CCYx:JVMZ:OHF[DIJ:EMCC:@CZF:HDV@WMCMJ@JD:JVD:D\MZJMA]:HF@BE@Y:EMJVMA:JVD:OHF[DIJ
CMPMJZ:ÔHẐ@AJ:JF:JVD:7MJY�Z:9@bDPDAJ:L@A@]DP

�/+/(5

aHD@:7FHZMI@A:�MCC@Z:ADM]VWFHVFFBx:K:7DAJH@C:cbD
@AB:̀:9@CP:̀J

$%�&' (#)�('5

�OFA:IFPOCDJMFA:FX:E@JDH:P@MA:MPOHFbDPDAJZx:JVD
OHF[DIJ:EMCC:IFPOCDJD:HF@BE@Y:HDV@WMCMJ@JMFA:EMJVMA
JVD:OHF[DIJ:CMPMJZd:7@HHYFbDH:XFH:efg>hg=d

i3jk0�
lm0n

io)4#.l$m m)p nqT kq)r3s$qts.q.0� .q.0�
mjk0�0.m4

guzu c]DAIY
7FAJHMŴJMFA

vz=uxuuuvu vu vu vz=uxuuuvz=uxuuu

.�(!"56}�~�����}� }� }� }�~�����}�~�����

��������������������������������� .�(!"#$%��%!++'16#vz=uxuuu



������ �����	
� ������������������ �������������

� !"#$%& '(!)$*+,-(&. %& '(!)$/0)#(

1220)0 3"#$%& '(!)$4567 89:;<<=>;?;@ABCDBEFG;8HIEDBIJKB;LBMMIDB;NODEM

/PQ($ R$S &T7 NIUBVG %& '(!)$5(6!&0Q)0 3

/PQ($ R$S &T$5(6!&0Q)0 37 NIUBVG;?;NODEIDB
OEMVIKKIVOWE;IEXYWC;CBZKIFBABEV

[HOM;ZCW\BFV;ZCWZWMBM;VW;OEMVIKK;FHIEDBIJKB;ABMMIDB;MODEM;VHIV;FIE;JB;IFVO]IVBX;VW;EWVOUG;XCO]BCM;WU
8ICJWE;8IEGWE;̂WIX;FKWM_CBM̀;[HB;ZCWZWMBX;MODEIDBa;b;KWFIVBX;OE;8IKVCIEM;\_COMXOFVOWE;IEX;b;KWFIVBX
OE;8OVG;WU;cCBI;\_COMXOFVOWEa;dOKK;JB;MVCIVBDOFI

�0,0)6

NODEM;dW_KX;JB;ZKIFBX;MVCIVBDOFIKKG;MW;XCO]BCM;FIE
IKVBC;VHOBC;VCI]BK;CW_VB;dHBE;8ICJWE;8IEGWE;OM
FKWMBX̀

%& '(!)$* )(6

8ICCGW]BC;UWC;efbgYbh̀

i4jk1�$lm1n io*5$/l%m m*p nqS kq*r4s% qts /q/1� /q/1�$mjk1�1/m5

/ )"#67uv uv uv uv uv uv

w�x��y�z�x�{|�}~�

������������xx / )"#$%& �&",,(27$�=

������ �������
 ������������������ �������������

� !"#$%& '(!)$*+,-(&.;b=?���c?[N:?��<g %& '(!)$/0)#(

1220)0 3"#$%& '(!)$4567 89:;<<�h;?;�IAJBCV;̂WIX;[CIUUOF;NODEIK;NGEFHCWEO�IVOWE

/PQ($ R$S &T7 [CIUUOF;NODEIKM %& '(!)$5(6!&0Q)0 3

/PQ($ R$S &T$5(6!&0Q)0 37 [CIUUOF;NODEIKM;?
8WWCXOEIVB;MODEIKM;dOVHOE;ZCW\BFV;KOAOVM

:CW\BFV;dOKK;_ZDCIXB;VCIUUOF;MODEIK;FWEVCWK;B�_OZABEVa;XB]BKWZ;VCIUUOF;MODEIK;VOAOED;ZKIEM;IEX
MGEFHCWEO�B;VCIUUOF;MODEIKM;IKWED;VHB;�IAJBCV;̂XY8ICJWE;8IEGWE;FWCCOXWC;OE;�I;�IJCI;IEX;cCBÌ;�WOEV
ZCW\BFV;dOVH;8OVG;WU;�I;�IJCI;IM;KBIX;IDBEFG̀

�0,0)6

�IAJBCV;̂XY8ICJWE;8IEGWE;FWCCOXWC;OE;�I;�IJCI
IEX;cCBI

%& '(!)$* )(6

8ICCGW]BC;UWC;efbgYbh̀;:CW\BFV;KBX;JG;8OVG;WU;�I
�IJCÌ

i4jk1�$lm1n io*5$/l%m m*p nqS kq*r4s% qts /q/1� /q/1�$mjk1�1/m5

/ )"#67uv uv uv uv uv uv

w�x��y�z�x�{|�}~�

������������xx / )"#$%& �&",,(27$�=

������ ����}��~ ������������������ �������������

� !"#$%& '(!)$*+,-(&. %& '(!)$/0)#(

1220)0 3"#$%& '(!)$4567 89:;<<�<;?;8KOUUdWWX;�BODHJWCHWWX;8IKAOED;9AZCW]BABEVM

/PQ($ R$S &T7 [CIUUOF;NODEIKM %& '(!)$5(6!&0Q)0 3

/PQ($ R$S &T$5(6!&0Q)0 37 [CIUUOF;NODEIKM;?
B̂ZKIFB;IEX;_ZDCIXB;VCIUUOF;MODEIKM;IEX;B�_OZABEV

:CW\BFV;dOKK;OEMVIKK;I;EBd;ZCWVBFVO]B;KBUV?V_CE;AW]BABEVa;CBZKIFB;VHB;B�OMV;VCIUUOF;MODEIK;FWEVCWKKBCa;IEX
OEMVIKK;I;EBd;BIMVJW_EX;ZCWVBFVO]B;KBUV?V_CE;IV;VHB;OEVBCMBFVOWE;WU;cIKMI;�]BE_B;IEX;NVIVB;8WKKBDB
cW_KB]ICX̀

�0,0)6

9EVBCMBFVOWEM;WU;�IAJBCV;̂X;IEX;8KOUUdWWX;�]Ba
NVIVB;8WKKBDB;cK]X;IEX;8KOUUdWWX;�]Ba;IEX;cIKMI
�]B;IEX;NVIVB;8WKKBDB;cK]X̀

%& '(!)$* )(6

8ICCGW]BC;UWC;efbgYbh̀

i4jk1�$lm1n io*5$/l%m m*p nqS kq*r4s% qts /q/1� /q/1�$mjk1�1/m5

/ )"#67uv uv uv uv uv uv

w�x��y�z�x�{|�}~�

������������xx / )"#$%& �&",,(27$�=

������ ����}��� ������������������ �������������

� !"#$%& '(!)$*+,-(&. %& '(!)$/0)#(

1220)0 3"#$%& '(!)$4567 89:;<<b=;?;�̂ �@L@̂ ;c���̀;̂@�9����;[̂ �ee98;N9����;Nf�8�̂ ��9��[9��

/PQ($ R$S &T7 [CIUUOF;NODEIKM %& '(!)$5(6!&0Q)0 3

/PQ($ R$S &T$5(6!&0Q)0 37 [CIUUOF;NODEIKM;?
9EVBCFWEEBFV;VCIUUOF;MODEIKM;VW;OAZCW]B;FWWCXOEIVOWE
IEX;FWAA_EOFIVOWEM

[HOM;ZCW\BFV;dOKK;_ZDCIXB;VCIUUOF;MODEIK;FWEVCWK;B�_OZABEVa;XB]BKWZ;VCIUUOF;MODEIK;VOAOED;ZKIEM;IEX
MGEFHCWEO�B;VCIUUOF;MODEIKM;IKWED;VHB;�CIBABC;cW_KB]ICXY�KIMMBKK;NVCBBVY�CIEX;�]BE_B;FWCCOXWC;OE
�EIHBOAa;�CIEDBa;:KIFBEVOIa;NIEVI;�EIa;IEX;cCBÌ;[HOM

�0,0)6

�CBIABC;cK]XY�KIMMBKK;NV̀Y�CIEX;�]B̀;FWCCOXWC;UCWA
�IAJBCV̀;̂X;NIV_CE;NV̀

%& '(!)$* )(6

i4jk1�$lm1nio*5$/l%m m*p nqS kq*r4s%qts/q/1� /q/1�$mjk1�1/m5

b=bh [CIUUOF;9AZIFV;eBBM�bb=a===�= �= �= �bb=a===�bb=a===

/ )"#67u��v�vvvuv uv uv u��v�vvvu��v�vvv

w�x��y�z�x�{|�}~�

������������xx / )"#$%& �&",,(27$�bb=a===



������ ����	

� ������������������ �������������

� !"#$%& '(!)$*+,-(&. %& '(!)$/0)#(

1220)0 3"#$%& '(!)$4567 89:;<<=>;?;@ABAC;8DEECFC;GEHIJ;KCF9DLBE;AKBMM98;@9FLBE;@NL8OKDL9PBA9DL

/QR($ S$T &U7 AVWXXYZ;@Y[\W]̂ %& '(!)$5(6!&0R)0 3

/QR($ S$T &U$5(6!&0R)0 37 AVWXXYZ;@Y[\W]̂;?
9\_̀VZa\\̀Z_;_VWXXYZ;̂Y[\W]̂;_a;YbcVad̀;ZaaVeY\W_Ya\
W\e;Zabbf\YZW_Ya\̂

AgŶ;cVah̀Z_;iY]];fc[VWè;_VWXXYZ;̂Y[\W];Za\_Va];̀jfYcb̀ \_k;èd̀]ac;_VWXXYZ;̂Y[\W];_YbY\[;c]W\̂;W\e
l̂\ZgVa\Ym̀;_VWXXYZ;̂Y[\W]̂;W]a\[;_g̀;@_W_̀;8a]]̀[̀;Gaf]̀dWVenAg̀;8Y_l;IVYd̀;ZaVVYeaV;Y\;B\Wg̀Ybk
Mf]]̀V_a\k;DVW\[̀k;W\e;GV̀WJ;AgŶ;Ŷ;W;haY\_;cVah̀Z

�0,0)6

@_W_̀;Za]]̀[̀;G]deJnAg̀;8Y_l;IVJ;ZaVVYeaV;XVab
8]YXXiaae;Bd̀J;_a;CJ;C]b;@_J

%& '(!)$* )(6

o4pq1�$rs1tou*5$/r%s s*v twT qw*x4y%wzy/w/1� /w/1�$spq1�1/s5

={=| AVWXXYZ;9bcWZ_;M̀`̂ }={{k{{{}{ }{ }{ }={{k{{{}={{k{{{

/ )"#67~�������~� ~� ~� ~�������~�������

��������������	������������������ / )"#$%& �&",,(27$}={{k{{{

������ �������� ������������������ �������������

� !"#$%& '(!)$*+,-(&. %& '(!)$/0)#(

1220)0 3"#$%& '(!)$4567 89:;<��|;?;8Y_l;MWZY]Y_l;W\e;�̀ eYW\;EW\êZWc̀;9bcVad̀b̀ \_̂

/QR($ S$T &U7 B̀ _̂g̀_YẐ %& '(!)$5(6!&0R)0 3

/QR($ S$T &U$5(6!&0R)0 37 B̀ _̂g̀_YẐ;?
EW\êZWcY\[;aX;VaWeiWl

AgŶ;cVah̀Z_;iY]];V̀c]WZ̀;_fVX;iY_g;W;Zab�Y\W_Ya\;aX;]ai;iW_̀V;f̂ ;̀c]W\_;bW_̀VYW]k;èZabcâ è;[VW\Y_̀k
W\e;bf]Zg;W_;8Y_l;XWZY]Y_Ỳ̂ ;W\e;b̀ eYW\̂J

�0,0)6

8Y_l;XWZY]Y_Ỳ̂ ;W\e;b̀ eYW\̂;�8Y_liYè�

%& '(!)$* )(6

8WVVlad̀V;XVab;MN=�n=|

o4pq1�$rs1t ou*5$/r%s s*v twT qw*x4y% wzy /w/1� /w/1�$spq1�1/s5

={=� F̀ \̀VW];Mf\e }�{k{{{ }{ }=�k{{{ }{ }<�k{{{ }<|k�==

={=� FŴ;AW� }{ }{ }<�k{{{ }{ }<�k{{{ }�{k<|<

={=� FŴ;AW� }{ }{ }<�k{{{ }{ }<�k{{{ }�=k<�|

={=� F̀ \̀VW];Mf\e }�{k{{{ }{ }=�k{{{ }{ }<�k{{{ }<<k���

={�{ FŴ;AW� }{ }{ }<�k{{{ }{ }<�k{{{ }��k��|

={�{ F̀ \̀VW];Mf\e }�{k{{{ }{ }=�k{{{ }{ }<�k{{{ }<�k=��

={�> FŴ;AW� }{ }{ }<�k{{{ }{ }<�k{{{ }�|k�<<

={�> F̀ \̀VW];Mf\e }�{k{{{ }{ }=�k{{{ }{ }<�k{{{ }<�k��=

={�= FŴ;AW� }{ }{ }<�k{{{ }{ }<�k{{{ }��k>�>

={�= F̀ \̀VW];Mf\e }�{k{{{ }{ }=�k{{{ }{ }<�k{{{ }<�k<><

/ )"#67~�������~� ~������� ~� ~�������~�������

��������������	������������������ / )"#$%& �&",,(27$}<�{k{{{



RESOLUTION NO.  
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA  

CONCERNING THE STATUS AND UPDATE OF THE CIRCULATION 
ELEMENT, AND MITIGATION FEE PROGRAM FOR THE MEASURE 
M (M2) PROGRAM 

 
A. RECITALS: 
 
 (i) WHEREAS, the City of Brea desires to maintain and improve the 

streets within its jurisdiction, including those arterials contained in the Master Plan 

of Arterial Highways (MPAH); and 

 (ii) WHEREAS, the City of Brea has endorsed a definition of and 

process for, determining consistency of the City’s Traffic Circulation Plan with the 

MPAH; and 

(iii) WHEREAS, the City of Brea has adopted a General Plan Circulation 

Element which does not preclude implementation of the MPAH within its 

jurisdiction; and 

(iv)  WHEREAS, the City of Brea is required to adopt a resolution 

biennially informing the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) that the 

City’s Circulation Element is in conformance with the MPAH and whether any 

changes to any arterial highways of said Circulation Element have been adopted 

by the City during Fiscal Years (FY) 2023-24 and FY 2024-25; and 

(v) WHEREAS, the City of Brea is required to send biennially to the 

OCTA all recommended changes to the City Circulation Element and the MPAH 

for the purposes of re-qualifying for participation in the Comprehensive 

Transportation Funding Programs; and 



(vi) WHEREAS, the City of Brea is required to adopt a resolution 

biennially certifying that the City has an existing Mitigation Fee Program that 

assesses traffic impacts of new development and requires new development to 

pay a fair share of necessary transportation improvements attributable to the new 

development; and 

  
B. RESOLUTION: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council for the City 

of Brea does hereby inform OCTA that: 

 a) The arterial highway portion of the Circulation Element of the City 

is in conformance with the MPAH. 

 b) The City attests that no unilateral reduction in through lanes has 

been made on any MPAH arterials during FY 2023-24 and FY 2024-25. 

c) The City affirms that it will bring forward requests to amend the 

MPAH, when necessary, in order to ensure that the MPAH and the General Plan 

Circulation Element remain consistent. 

d) The City reaffirms that the existing Mitigation Fee Program is in 

effect. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June 2025. 

 

        ________________________________  
                              Mayor   

 

ATTEST: ________________________________ 
                City Clerk 
 
 

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Brea 

held on the 17th day of June 2025, by the following vote: 

 

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSTAINED:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:                    

     

    Dated:  ______________________________ 

                                                                      ______________________________ 
                                                                       City Clerk  



������������	
����	�	�	���������������	������������������		�
��������	
��	�
���	
������	�
����������������	���
������������������	�	�
��������
�
�����������	
��������	
����
�����	�
������	�	���	�
������	
��
�
�������	�	�	��������	�����������������������������������	
��������	�
�	�
�������	
��	�
���������������������	����	��	�	�
������
	���������	���
�����������	�����
�	������	��
�	������������
���	��	
������	��������
�	������	�������
��������	�
�������	���
�����������	�����������	��
�	������������
���	��	
������	���������	������	�������
��������	�
��

�

�

 ��	��	�	�
��� �
�

!"#$"%&'(%)'&*$!+,-./'0(1$2,3,/$%4$5,)3'-,$62758$

9:;�9��<�	��� =>5$ ?7$ ?@A$

��� 9��<�BC��B�	���	������������������	
��������� DE DE
F

GH����������
��9:;�	
������	�
��	
���������	��	�	�
��

GHI����	
��������������	������������	�	�	���������9:;�	
������	�
���	��	
������
���	��	�	�
�����������	
�����JKL�M�N������������	
���������	�����������
�MO������������

?7P>1$7?2=$PQ75>$AR>?!S>5$PQAP$!Q>!T>U$V?7V$W7X$YZ>5PS7?$[$?>>U$P7$
A?5\>X$PQ>$X>"AS?S?R$YZ>5PS7?5]$

�̂� _���
�����������	���������	
������	�
�����������
���������	
���������9:;�JKL����
�������
F F

DE
GHFF F

GHFF F

GHFF F

�̀� a	������		�
��	
������	�
���	���
������	������������	�	���	�
����������������
	������
����	
�����
�����b���
�������	��������
��������������	
������	������������
�
�����
����
�	
����������N	������������	��	�	�
�9_;��:�������:�9_;Oc�

DE DE DE

���_��
�������������		�
�����
����
�������������������	
������	�
�������	������
������	
������������9:;�JKL����
�����c�

DE DE DE

d��	�	�
���9����
����

F

�

A##>?USe$!$
9�
����	�
�:�
�����
��;�������N9:;O�

City of Brea

X

X

X

X



������������	
����	�	�	���������������	������������������		�
��������	
��	�
���	
������	�
����������������	���
������������������	�	�
��������
�
�����������	
��������	
����
�����	�
������	�	���	�
������	
��
�
�������	�	�	��������	�����������������������������������	
��������	�
�	�
�������	
��	�
���������������������	����	��	�	�
������
	���������	���
�����������	�����
�	������	��
�	������������
���	��	
������	��������
�	������	�������
��������	�
�������	���
�����������	�����������	��
�	������������
���	��	
������	���������	������	�������
��������	�
 �

�

!""#$%&'()(
*�
����	�
�+�
�����
��,�������-*+,.�

�

�

)/"(/012304215()6789:2;3<(%7=282718>(":?1;(

*+,�*��@�	��� A#B( $C( $D!(

� � *��@�EF��E�	���	������������������	
��������� GHGH
I

JK����������
��*+,�	
������	�
��	
���������	��	�	�
 �

JKL����	
��������������	������������	�	�	���������*+,�M	������N������-*+,MN.�
	
������	�
���	��	
���������	��	�	�
�����������	
�����OPN�Q�-������������	
���������	��
���������
�Q.���������� �

$CR#<(C$SA(RTCB#(!U#$)&#B(RT!R()T#)V#%(W$CW(XCY(Z[#BR&C$(\($##%(RC(
!$B]#Y(RT#(Y#/!&$&$U(Z[#BR&C$B̂(

�� _���
�����������	���������	
������	�
�����������
���������	
���������*+,�OPN����
����� �
I I

GH
JK II I

JK II I

JK II I

 ̀� a���������	��������
��������	
��������	
������	�
���������*+,�OPN����
��������������
����������	�
����	
������
�����b���
������������������	
������	����������������*_,c� GHGHGH

$CR#<(C$SA(RTCB#(!U#$)&#B(RT!R()T#)V#%(W$CW(XCY(Z[#BR&C$(d($##%(RC(
!$B]#Y(RT#(Y#/!&$&$U(Z[#BR&C$B̂(

� � M��������		�
�����
������������������������	
�������		�
�����
����
�����	��������
P*�ac� GHGHGH

e � f�����������		�
�����
�����	�������������	
��������������g�	����
����

� �_
������
��
����	�������������������������		�
�c� GHGHGH
� �_
��������	������	��������
���
�������������	
��	
��	
	����OPN����
�������
�����
*+,MN��
���������	������������������	��������
��c� GHGHGH

 �_
��������	������	��������
�������������������	�
���
�����	������������	��������
��	���	���	�������OPN��
�����*+,MN��
��	��������	��g���	��c� GHGHGH

	 �f������	��������
�������������������	�
������������	���	��������	��������
N�����*�����a	��h���	���+�
�����
��f	���	��-N*ah+f.�-��������*+,�
,�������	�
�+�
���.c�

GHGHGH

�

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X



�

���������	�

���������������������������
����

�

�

	��������������	 !"#$�%�&��!'�"�!�"(��$)�%�*"���+,�


���
-�./0���� 1�2� �3� �4��

56� 7����-��.�8���0���8��9��������:����;��:�����-��:�;�.���.<�80���8�������:����<�=��
��9��><����
?�@� AB ABAB

C6� D�����-��:�;�.���.<�80�����.0=:��������������8�������-���E�00����=�������
��80����������@� AB ABAB

F6� D�����-��:�;�.���.<�80�����.0=:����8��.��������00�E������0�9�0��;�:�9�0�8��������
8��.��:�8��:���.����.������;��-��:�;�.���.<@� AB ABAB

G6� H�����.�����<������>I=���:�.�����0�.���:���������..=���:@� AB ABAB

JK6��0�����:��.��L����<�����9���9��8������M��;���<M���.0=:�:�����-��:�;�.���.<�80��N� AB

7::������0�
�������N�

O

X

X

X

X

X



�

���������	�

���������������������������
����

�

�

	��������������	 !"#$�%�&�'(�)�*%!�	���)��(�����


���
+�,-.���� /�0� �1� �2��

34� 5�6��7�8����������9��+��
������::�,���;�,�����.7�����<=>��;��,����7�8���.�,��9�:����+��
;��6��8��
��?� @A @A

B

�4�=:����C�+�6��7�8��8D�����9��+����6���9�<=>��;;���,+���9����+�9�.�7����E
<>�:���
��6��F���9��;;��6�.?� @A @A @A

G4� H�9���7�9�6�.�;�����;��I�,�����J8������
���<=>�98�����+���
���,7,.�?K� @A @A
B

�1L�&�1�'/�LM10���N��	��0�LM�L�	M�	O���P/�0P�Q1R�S*�0L�1��T������L1�
��0U�R�LM��R�������N�S*�0L�1�0V�

K4� =:���C�+�F����7?� �
�

W4� �.�����.������7�
��5X�.��-��Y��������,�������+���F����;��I�,��9��������������+��
���ZEX�����9��9�����9�,����
F+��+�����7������8���9���:�7�8��I8���9�,�����4�

[\ BB B

[\ BB B

[\ BB B

@A

�4�]������������������8������9�,������9����:��9�:�����,+���9���,.89�9����7�8����6��̂�
7����
=�?� @A @A @A

D4�=:���7���;�,��9�.��-��Y��������,������F�����8���9��7�8��I8���9�,����C�9�9�7�8��
I8���9�,�����,���9������F��+���+���I8���9�,���������9�6�.�;�������������������7?� @A @A @A

_4� =:���.�,�.����::�,���9�.�F��̀F�..�D��8��9C�9�9�7�8�:�..�F��+��9������9���9�.���
,��������,7���J8������������9��,��D�9�����+��
������;�����������8�.���6��.�D.����.����
���+��;à̀FFF4�,��4���̀;9:̀,�;;��;���8�.4;9:�?�

@A @A @A

>99������.�
�������a�

B

�

K�bc��;��������,.89�a���7�9�6�.�;��������������.�����+���GCWdd�9��.7����;�C���7�9�6�.�;��������������.�����+���3Cedd�9��.7����;����:����
9���,�.7��,,��������
���+�+F�7�C�:���.����,����9�;��,�.���;�C����8��,���:�D8�.9���;������C����8��,���:�,����:�,�����:�8�����9��,,8;��,7C���9�
��������9�:�,�����������;;��6�9�9�6�.�;������F+�����+��.�,��������9���������7��:�;��I�,��8����+�6��D�����;;��6�9��+��8+�;��6��8����9�
��;������.�,�.��6���������,������;��������f��8��7�3C�3ggG4�

3

X

The three infill projects entitled by the City that were subject to the provisions of the 
City's TIA Guidelines and the CMP analysis process, included two projects that eliminated
large vacant office buildings to construct a new housing complex and new Amazon 
distribtuion center.  The third project consisted of a modernization of vacant and under
utilized portions of the Brea Plaza shopping center to add new modern retail space and 
housing.  All three projects were not  with the assistance of a traffic model nor
did the traffic studies identify any significant CEQA or CMP transportation or traffic impacts. 

X

X

X

X

X

X

analyzed



�

���������	�

���������������������������
����

�

�

	��������������	 !"#$�%�&�	'(��'$��)(��*!)!��������')�+	��,�


���
-�./0���� 1�2� �3� �4��

56� 7�8�9�:��:;��������<��=9����
>�����?
@A�;9�B:���CDE� FG FGFG

H6� 7�����-��
>����.0:8��I��J�.��������������������I��<���-��I��K�����.���K��-��
��LM�
���.0:8���.�I�.��9��NI������O���K��9O����������.�O���8���-�;�0��������E� FG FGFG

C6� >�����.����������P��-�����Q:�0��9���������������:����K��������I��������=��0���8�<�-�.0��
���������E� FG FGFG

R6� S����-��?
T:�8���./���
>��I��<�8�8�;9�?
@A�:��8����I��I�����-��
>�E� FG FGFG
A88������0�
�������U�

V

X

X

X

X



�

���������	�

���������������������������
����

�

�����������	������ !�" �#�	$%&'( )!*�+%,%"-(�	��#%)! ����-�-#%.%�!�


���
/�012���� 3�4� ��� �5��

67� 8������9�:�;���229�:<�;�;�=��>�0������/��
?�����<2�����������:�0������0������������2��
�00<=����@�/�02���ABC��0�=�0��9D�

EF EF EF

����*����3��G�4���H��	��4��G���	G�	I���J3�4J�+�K�LM�4�����N���������

��4O�K��G��K�������H�LM�4����P�

Q7� ?:���R�S����/��=��>�0��;�@�2�=�;����=�����:��/��:�;���2�
����������������������0���R�
�����/���S��;�R�S����/��������==��=���������29�����:��������T2�����@�2�;����;���;<0�����
��;��=��������2����������D�

EF EF EF

U;;������2�
�������V�

W

?�0����:9��/����/����:���������0�������;�����/���0/�012���������<�7�

�

�
� � � �

XYZ[\]̂_̀abc\ d̀be[\ f̀gaYbh_[\ iYb[\

X

X

David Roseman City Traffic Engineer 05/28/25





PUBLIC WORKS            | FY 2025-27 Requested Budget Worksheets

110515121     STREET MAINTENANCE

ACCOUNT TITLE
FY 22-23 
BUDGET

FY 22-23 
ACTUALS

FY 23-24 
BUDGET

FY 23-24 
ACTUALS

FY 24-25 
BUDGET

FY 24-25 
ACTUALS

FY 24-25 YE 
ESTIMATE

FY 25-26 
BUDGET

FY 26-27 
BUDGET

4098    APPROPRIATION (NON-SPEC) 0 0 -17,636 0 -17,986 0 -17,986 0 0

4111    FULL TIME                298,716 297,991 310,771 315,679 328,816 356,186 448,640 522,096 533,367

4112    PART-TIME & SEASONAL     87,737 65,088 89,491 99,416 95,436 1,331 2,255 0 0

4113    OVERTIME                 4,000 7,858 5,000 13,338 5,000 11,310 13,000 5,000 5,000

1 MSW II                                                 5,000

5,000

4116    DISABILITY PAY           0 1,063 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

41230045 VACATION PAYOFF          3,900 3,553 3,528 0 3,528 0 3,528 2,361 2,408

41230048 VACATION BUYDOWN         1,500 4,870 595 0 595 0 595 9,000 9,180

41230064 COMP TERMINATION PAYOFF  100 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

41230137 HOLIDAY BANKS PAID       100 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

41230190 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE        1,075 75 1,075 172 1,337 52 89 1,640 1,640

41230192 WORK SHOE REIMBURSEMENT  0 1,097 1,162 1,191 1,162 382 1,162 0 0

41230196 FITNESS/WELLNESS PROGRAM 1,795 1,099 1,795 1,975 1,975 2,875 4,870 3,050 3,050

41230650 ON CALL STIPEND          3,300 1,500 2,882 19,289 2,882 22,221 2,882 19,868 20,265

4123RHSP RHSP TRANSFER            0 0 0 3,483 0 1,876 0 1,162 1,185

4131    RETIREMENT PERS          87,086 94,919 88,470 92,862 102,195 114,498 144,412 142,324 149,360

4131A   PERS COST SHARING        0 -1,187 0 -1,198 0 -1,734 0 0 0

4134    WORKERS' COMPENSATION    26,163 24,482 18,450 19,136 19,772 16,482 20,786 22,450 22,935

4141    MEDICARE                 6,144 5,448 6,515 6,409 6,868 5,489 6,965 9,079 9,243

4151    FLEXIBLE BENEFITS        35,992 45,523 47,740 46,735 47,740 52,150 67,543 98,170 98,170

4152    TUITION REIMBURSEMENT    0 0 0 171 0 0 0 0 0

May 29, 2025 1 of 4

wadew
Highlight
FY 25-26 BUDGET



PUBLIC WORKS            | FY 2025-27 Requested Budget Worksheets

110515121     STREET MAINTENANCE

ACCOUNT TITLE
FY 22-23 
BUDGET

FY 22-23 
ACTUALS

FY 23-24 
BUDGET

FY 23-24 
ACTUALS

FY 24-25 
BUDGET

FY 24-25 
ACTUALS

FY 24-25 YE 
ESTIMATE

FY 25-26 
BUDGET

FY 26-27 
BUDGET

4153    AUTOMOBILE ALLOWANCE     1,680 1,615 1,680 1,645 1,680 0 0 1,680 1,680

4155    TECHNOLOGY REIMBURSEMENT 0 0 88 88 88 0 0 88 88

EMPLOYEE COSTS SUB-TOTAL 559,288 555,011 561,606 620,391 601,088 583,118 698,741 837,968 857,571

4221    TRAINING                 1,000 619 1,000 1,748 1,020 175 1,000 1,020 1,020

4222    MEMBERSHIPS              0 0 0 114 0 93 0 0 0

4249    PROFESSIONAL SVC-OTHER   169,400 201,326 169,400 184,305 222,788 230,104 250,000 122,788 97,788

1 CONCRETE REPAIR                                        80,000

2 GRAFFITI REMOVAL                                       29,400

109,400

4259    RENTALS & LEASES-OTHER   0 586 0 0 0 610 490 0 0

4261    SVC & REPAIR-EQUIP       0 1,345 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4269    BLDG & EQUIP SVC-OTHER   285,725 197,656 295,000 199,824 443,984 345,939 430,000 245,000 220,000

1 CONTRACT ASPHALT REPAIRS                               100,000

2 LIGHT POLE INSTALLTION FROM ACCIDENTS                  35,000

3 CONTRACT TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE                    145,000

4 BREA MALL RING ROAD                                    15,000

295,000

4283    ST LGTS & TRAFFIC SVC    350,000 480,620 500,000 555,218 500,000 447,980 450,000 500,000 500,000

1 ELECTRICITY FOR STREET LIGHTS AND SIGNALS              500,000

500,000

4299    SERVICES-OTHER           1,300 755 1,300 1,181 1,326 1,200 1,100 1,300 1,400

1 UNIFORMS                                               1,300

1,300

4311    FOOD & CLOTHING          0 443 0 630 0 284 120 0 0

4321    COMPUTER SUPPLIES        0 0 510 0 0 49 49 0 0

4331    PAINT & RELATED SUPPLIES 2,500 2,529 5,000 5,994 5,000 3,152 5,000 5,000 5,000

1 PAINT FOR USA MARKINGS AND GRAFFITI REMOVAL WIPES      5,000

5,000

4334    ROCK ASPHALT SAND ETC    4,000 11,234 4,000 5,744 4,080 3,963 3,500 4,080 4,080

1 ROAD BASE, SAND, ASPHALT                               4,080

4,080

4335    PLUMBING SUPPLIES & PARTS 0 258 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

May 29, 2025 2 of 4

wadew
Highlight
500,000

wadew
Highlight
4283    ST LGTS & TRAFFIC SVC    350,000 480,620 500,000 555,218 500,000 447,980 450,000 500,000 500,000



PUBLIC WORKS            | FY 2025-27 Requested Budget Worksheets

110515121     STREET MAINTENANCE

ACCOUNT TITLE
FY 22-23 
BUDGET

FY 22-23 
ACTUALS

FY 23-24 
BUDGET

FY 23-24 
ACTUALS

FY 24-25 
BUDGET

FY 24-25 
ACTUALS

FY 24-25 YE 
ESTIMATE

FY 25-26 
BUDGET

FY 26-27 
BUDGET

4337    ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES&PARTS 25,000 52,656 30,000 49,017 30,000 68,634 72,000 30,000 30,000

1 ST LIGHT POLE REPAIR PARTS INCLUDING POLES, INCLUDES   30,000

30,000

4339    CONSTR/MAINT SUPPLIES-OTH 1,000 3,599 2,000 5,045 2,000 2,530 2,000 2,000 2,000

1 LUMBER, HARDWARE ITEMS                                 2,000

2,000

4343    SAFETY EQUIPMENT         1,500 7,180 3,000 3,955 3,000 8,579 3,000 3,000 3,000

1 TRAF.CNTRL SIGNS, CONES, DELINEATORS, EVENT BARRICADES 2,500

2 SAFETY JACKETS AND RAINGEAR                            500

3,000

4345    SIGNS-SAFETY & STREET    10,000 20,627 24,490 29,847 25,000 10,345 25,000 25,000 25,000

4349    MINOR TOOLS & EQUIP-OTHER 2,000 2,146 2,000 1,420 2,000 405 2,000 2,000 2,000

1 POWER AND HAND TOOLS                                   2,000

2,000

4432    UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS   5,000 0 5,000 41,670 5,100 31,494 5,100 5,100 5,100

OPERATING COSTS SUB-TOTAL 858,425 983,578 1,042,700 1,085,711 1,245,298 1,155,536 1,250,359 946,288 896,388

5819    VEHICLES - OTHER         134,631 134,631 115,940 115,940 115,940 106,278 115,940 130,659 164,642

5822    TECHNOLOGY CHARGES       34,057 34,057 32,250 32,250 32,250 29,562 32,250 36,467 37,126

5823    BUILDING OCCUPANCY CHRG  16,760 16,760 18,107 18,107 18,717 17,157 18,717 19,896 20,573

5826    RETIREE BENEFIT CHARGES  10,015 10,015 9,552 9,552 9,695 8,887 9,695 16,749 18,839

5827    GENERAL LIABILITY CHG    26,496 26,496 19,877 19,877 20,387 18,688 20,387 21,377 23,703

OVERHEAD COSTS SUB-TOTAL 221,959 221,959 195,726 195,726 196,989 180,573 196,989 225,148 264,883

110515121  TOTAL 1,639,672 1,760,549 1,800,032 1,901,828 2,043,375 1,919,227 2,146,089 2,009,404 2,018,842

FUND 110 TOTAL 1,639,672 1,760,549 1,800,032 1,901,828 2,043,375 1,919,227 2,146,089 2,009,404 2,018,842

May 29, 2025 3 of 4

wadew
Highlight
4432    UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS   5,000 0 5,000 41,670 5,100 31,494 5,100 5,100 5,100

wadew
Highlight
2,009,404

wadew
Typewritten Text
Less: Uncollectible Accounts     (5,100)

wadew
Typewritten Text
Total MOE Expenditures: $2,004,304

wadew
Typewritten Text
Street Maintenance: ($500,000)

wadew
Typewritten Text
Other Street Maintenance: $1,504,304 

wadew
Typewritten Text
Total Per Report:

wadew
Typewritten Text
Other Street Maintenance: $1,504,304

wadew
Typewritten Text
Other Traffic Engineering: $647,664

wadew
Line

wadew
Typewritten Text
Total: $2,151,968



PUBLIC WORKS            | FY 2025-27 Requested Budget Worksheets

110515171     ENGINEERING SERVICES

ACCOUNT TITLE
FY 22-23 
BUDGET

FY 22-23 
ACTUALS

FY 23-24 
BUDGET

FY 23-24 
ACTUALS

FY 24-25 
BUDGET

FY 24-25 
ACTUALS

FY 24-25 YE 
ESTIMATE

FY 25-26 
BUDGET

FY 26-27 
BUDGET

4098    APPROPRIATION (NON-SPEC) 0 0 -13,328 0 -13,662 0 -13,662 0 0

4111    FULL TIME                241,883 243,004 312,037 377,555 341,368 196,803 236,745 383,793 401,673

4113    OVERTIME                 0 5,898 0 3,178 0 28 28 0 0

4123    SPECIAL PAY              0 0 679 156 679 0 679 279 285

41230045 VACATION PAYOFF          500 3,219 305 5,724 305 1,026 305 3,083 3,145

41230064 COMP TERMINATION PAYOFF  0 103 0 0 0 241 0 35 36

41230137 HOLIDAY BANKS PAID       0 711 0 1,037 0 158 0 583 595

41230190 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE        0 0 41 0 41 0 0 0 0

41230196 FITNESS/WELLNESS PROGRAM 993 2,531 1,630 2,075 1,775 1,350 2,287 1,975 1,975

4131    RETIREMENT PERS          70,702 78,216 89,303 109,399 106,259 62,926 75,620 105,127 112,999

4131A   PERS COST SHARING        0 0 0 -548 0 -450 0 0 0

4134    WORKERS' COMPENSATION    16,375 16,375 14,640 17,405 16,436 9,073 10,914 16,503 17,272

4141    MEDICARE                 3,843 3,737 5,001 5,584 5,455 2,798 3,368 6,207 6,467

4151    FLEXIBLE BENEFITS        21,001 33,575 33,040 42,116 33,040 22,918 27,430 40,202 40,202

4152    TUITION REIMBURSEMENT    0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,000 5,000

1 W. WHITMAN                                             5,000

5,000

4153    AUTOMOBILE ALLOWANCE     2,400 0 0 1,574 0 1,046 1,161 2,400 2,400

4155    TECHNOLOGY REIMBURSEMENT 0 0 125 0 125 0 0 125 125

EMPLOYEE COSTS SUB-TOTAL 357,697 387,368 443,473 565,255 491,821 297,917 344,875 565,312 592,174

4212    TELEPHONE & FAXES        2,800 1,111 4,200 1,888 3,386 1,831 2,000 2,656 2,656

1 CELL PHONES                                            2,800

2,800

4221    TRAINING                 0 1,830 5,000 3,915 5,100 2,810 5,100 2,600 2,600

May 28, 2025 1 of 9



PUBLIC WORKS            | FY 2025-27 Requested Budget Worksheets

110515171     ENGINEERING SERVICES

ACCOUNT TITLE
FY 22-23 
BUDGET

FY 22-23 
ACTUALS

FY 23-24 
BUDGET

FY 23-24 
ACTUALS

FY 24-25 
BUDGET

FY 24-25 
ACTUALS

FY 24-25 YE 
ESTIMATE

FY 25-26 
BUDGET

FY 26-27 
BUDGET

1 APWA WORKSHOPS, CEQA, ETC (FY25-26 $2500)              2,500

2,500

4222    MEMBERSHIPS              750 50 1,000 304 1,000 125 500 500 500

1 PW ASSOC, SOC OF CIV ENG, PROF ENG, ETC (FY25-26 $500) 500

500

4232    SUBSCRIPTIONS            50 108 150 0 153 100 150 150 150

1 ENR (FY25-26 $150)                                     150

150

4233    BOOKS MANUALS & PAMPHLETS 250 98 250 98 255 0 0 200 200

1 SUBDIVISION MAP ACT                                    200

200

4244    LEGAL                    0 3,563 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4249    PROFESSIONAL SVC-OTHER   175,500 172,600 175,500 191,177 179,010 210,502 175,500 175,500 175,500

1 TE SVCS, ICC COMMS SUPPORT                             150,000

2 ADAPTIVE TRAFFIC CONTROL SYSTEM PROG                   25,500

175,500

4271    MILEAGE REIMBT - AUTO    0 129 500 190 500 268 500 250 250

4279    TRAVEL & MEETING EXPENSE 360 501 360 0 367 144 0 0 0

1 CITY ENGINEER ASSOCIATION MEETINGS                     360

360

4311    FOOD & CLOTHING          100 690 1,300 439 1,075 55 500 500 500

1 VEST, HARD HATS, ETC. (FY25-26 $100)                   100

2 CIP MEETINGS (FY25-26 $400)                            400

500

4321    COMPUTER SUPPLIES        500 69 500 616 510 0 510 510 510

1 MISC COMPUTER SUPPLIES                                 500

500

4329    OFFICE SUPPLIES-OTHER    1,700 2,314 1,700 1,760 1,734 732 1,734 1,700 1,700

1 PLOTTER PAPER AND INK ($3,400/YEAR) (PW, IT, CD)       1,200

2 MISC                                                   500

1,700

4349    MINOR TOOLS & EQUIP-OTHER 50 0 50 0 51 0 0 0 0

4641    MOBILE EQUIPMENT         0 0 23,333 0 23,333 0 23,333 0 0

1 DP: FIELD INSPECTOR POSITION VEHICLE PURCHASE          23,333

23,333

OPERATING COSTS SUB-TOTAL 182,060 183,062 213,843 200,388 216,474 216,567 209,827 184,566 184,566

5819    VEHICLES - OTHER         6,988 6,988 9,867 9,867 9,867 9,045 9,867 1,744 6,231

May 28, 2025 2 of 9

wadew
Highlight
175,500

wadew
Highlight
FY 25-26 BUDGET

wadew
Highlight
4249    PROFESSIONAL SVC-OTHER   175,500 172,600 175,500 191,177 179,010 210,502 175,500



PUBLIC WORKS            | FY 2025-27 Requested Budget Worksheets

110515171     ENGINEERING SERVICES

ACCOUNT TITLE
FY 22-23 
BUDGET

FY 22-23 
ACTUALS

FY 23-24 
BUDGET

FY 23-24 
ACTUALS

FY 24-25 
BUDGET

FY 24-25 
ACTUALS

FY 24-25 YE 
ESTIMATE

FY 25-26 
BUDGET

FY 26-27 
BUDGET

5822    TECHNOLOGY CHARGES       18,122 18,122 17,161 17,161 17,161 15,731 17,161 26,185 26,657

5823    BUILDING OCCUPANCY CHRG  13,221 13,221 14,396 14,396 14,852 13,614 14,852 16,052 16,690

5826    RETIREE BENEFIT CHARGES  8,109 8,109 9,223 9,223 9,419 8,634 9,419 12,027 13,639

5827    GENERAL LIABILITY CHG    21,455 21,455 19,191 19,191 19,865 18,210 19,865 17,278 19,936

OVERHEAD COSTS SUB-TOTAL 67,895 67,895 69,838 69,838 71,164 65,234 71,164 73,286 83,153

110515171  TOTAL 607,652 638,324 727,154 835,481 779,459 579,718 625,866 823,164 859,893

FUND 110 TOTAL 607,652 638,324 727,154 835,481 779,459 579,718 625,866 823,164 859,893

May 28, 2025 3 of 9

wadew
Highlight
823,164

wadew
Typewritten Text
Traffic Engineering: ($175,500) 

wadew
Typewritten Text
Other Traffic Engineering: $647,664



Actual Adopted Estimated Budget Budget
FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Beginning Balance 7/1 1,215,015$    1,499,607$    1,499,607$    80,666$         80,666$         

Resources
  Revenues
     State Gasoline Taxes 1,323,262      1,379,460      1,379,460      
     Interest 24,253           8,600             8,600             

     Total Resources 1,347,515      1,388,060 1,388,060 -                -                

   Total Available 2,562,530      2,887,667 2,887,667 80,666           80,666           

Requirements
  Expenditures 2,464             1,700             1,700             

  Transfers-out
     General Fund (110) 450,000         450,000         450,000         
     Capital Improvement (510) 610,458         705,000         2,355,301      

  Total Requirements 1,062,922      1,156,700      2,807,001      -                -                

Ending Balance 6/30 1,499,607$    1,730,967$    80,666$         80,666$         80,666$         

2 2 0   G A S   T A X   F U N D

     This fund is used to account for revenues received and expenditures made for street improvements and street maintenance.  
Financing is provided by the City's share of State gasoline taxes pursuant to the California State Constitution and authorized 

by the State Legislature. 

DRAFT VERSION 
BUDGET KICK-OFF

wadew
Highlight
450,000

wadew
Typewritten Text
continues perpetually



 

 
FINAL REPORT 

 
UPDATED CITYWIDE 

PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PLAN 
OC Go 

2025-2032 
 

 
 

Submitted to: 
 

City of Brea, CA 
May 28, 2025 

 



 
 

May 28, 2025 
 
Mr. Ryan Chapman, P.E. 
City Engineer 
CITY OF BREA 
1 Civic Center Circle 
Brea, CA 92821 
 
Subject: City of Brea – OCTA Pavement Management Compliance Report 2025 
 
Dear Ryan: 
 
As part of the 2025 Update of the Pavement Management Plan (PMP) for the City of Brea, Bucknam 
Infrastructure Group, Inc. is pleased to submit the PMP Final Report required by the Orange County 
Transportation Authority (OCTA).  This data/report will be submitted to OCTA as part of the City’s required 
biennial PMP prior to June 30, 2025.   
 
The information contained in this report was used to develop the recommended improvement program for 
the pavement network.  The report covers the following categories: 
 

• Pavement Management Plan Certification 
 
• Quality Assurance / Quality Control (QA/QC) Plan 

 
• Pavement Management Data Files (electronic Brea.e70 file format) 

 
• Pavement Management Plan that includes the following: 
 

• Average Pavement Conditions For Each Segment in the Network (PCI Report) 
 The Pavement Condition Index report shows the present condition of each street in 

the pavement network (MPAH and Locals).  In addition, the report shows the basic 
geometry of each street segment. 

 
• Seven-year Projected PCI Under Existing Funding Levels 
 This report identifies the projected PCI’s based on the local agencies current funding 

programs.  This report details the PCI projects for the entire network, MPAH roadways 
and Local streets. 

 
• Seven-year Plan for Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation (Forecast Maintenance & 

Rehabilitation (FMR) Report 
 The Forecast Maintenance & Rehabilitation (FMR) Report projects the street 

maintenance activities required for the next seven years, broken down to show 
maintenance levels for all streets.  This includes all scheduled projects provided by the 
City for fiscal years 2025 through 2032. 



 
 

• Alternative Funding Levels 
OCTA has requested two reports indicating the necessary funding to maintain the 
City’s current weighted average PCI as well as the necessary funding to improve the 
weighted average PCI by one PCI point over the next seven years. 
 

• Backlog by Fiscal Year (re: unfunded restoration, rehabilitation and reconstruction) 
 

• Percentage of total network in each of the five condition categories based on centerline 
mileage 

 
• Local Match Reduction Reporting 

 
 In order to be eligible for Local Match Reduction of 10%, the following must be 

submitted: 
o Measurable improvement of paved road conditions during the previous 

reporting period defined as an overall weighted (by area) average system 
improvement of one PCI point. 

o No reduction in the overall weighted (by area) average PCI in the MPAH 
or local street categories 

- or – 
o  Have road pavement conditions, for the overall network, during the 

previous reporting period within the highest twenty (20%) of the scale for 
road pavement conditions in conformance with OCTA Ordinance No. 3, 
defined as a PCI of 75 or higher, otherwise defined as in “good condition”. 
 

These reports will be submitted to the City of Brea as part of the biennial Pavement Management Plan that is 
due prior to June 30, 2025.  These reports will be packaged in a way that it will be easy for staff to review.   

 
All comments received from the City have been incorporated in the reports that follow.  All of the City’s issues 
and needs that were brought to our attention are included in the report.  It has been a pleasure working with 
you and the City on updating your Pavement Management Plan.  We look forward to the continued success of 
this project and future teamwork with City staff.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
Bucknam Infrastructure Group, Inc. 
 
 
 
Peter J. Bucknam 
Project Manager 
Infrastructure Management – GIS Services 



City of Brea, CA Page i 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

AGENCY SUBMITTAL TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
I. Pavement Management Plan Certification.............................................................................. 2 

 
II. Executive Summary ................................................................................................................. 3 

 
III. Background  ...................................................................................................................... 4 
 

IV. Current Pavement Conditions (PCI) ......................................................................................... 7 
 
V. Projected Pavement Conditions (PCI) ...................................................................................... 8 
 

VI. Alternative Funding Levels ....................................................................................................... 9 
a. Maintain Existing Average Network PCI ................................................................ 9 
b. Improve Average Network PCI ............................................................................... 9 

 
VII. Current and Projected Backlog by Year of Pavement Maintenance Needs ............................ 9 

 
VIII. Centerline Mileage ................................................................................................................. 10 

 
IX. Percentage of Network in Each of Five Condition Categories Based on Centerline mileage 10 
 

X. Reduction in M2 Local Match ................................................................................................ 11 
 
XI. Appendix A – Seven-Year Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Plan Based on Current 
                                  or Expected Funding Level .............................................................................. 12 
 
XII. Appendix B – Complete Street Listing Current Conditions .................................................... 13 

 
XIII. Appendix C – GIS Digital Data ................................................................................................ 14 

 
XIV. Appendix D – Quality Assurance / Quality Control Plan ........................................................ 15 

• Introduction ......................................................................................................... 15 
• Objectives ............................................................................................................ 15 
• Structure of QA/QC Plan ...................................................................................... 16 
• Condition Survey Procedures ............................................................................... 16 
• Accuracy Required for Data Collection ................................................................ 17 
• Random and Systematic Re-Inspections .............................................................. 17 
• PCI Comparison with Past Surveys ....................................................................... 18 
• Inspector Qualifications and Experience ............................................................. 18 
• Safety Procedures ................................................................................................ 18 

 
XV. Appendix E – Pavement Management Data Files ............................................................. 19 

 
XVI. Appendix F – GIS Maps – Current Conditions ................................................................... 20 

 



City of Brea, CA Page 1 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF BREA PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 

- part of - 
 

COUNTYWIDE PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PLAN GUIDELINES 
(OCTA Guideline – March 2025) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Bucknam Infrastructure Group, Inc. 
Submitted to OCTA: June 30, 2025 

  





City of Brea, CA Page 3 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

II. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
2025 UPDATE OF PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PLAN (PMP) 
 
As the City of Brea’s infrastructure continues to mature Public Works priorities such as Local street 
maintenance and Arterial rehabilitation are key projects to City staff.  With the City mostly built-out, wear 
and tear on the infrastructure will occur at an ever increasing rate.  Pavement aging through annual 
weathering, dynamic and static vehicle loading, and increased usage, compounded with the increased 
cost of performing maintenance and rehabilitation, add to the yearly operational budget of the pavement 
network.  System sustainability can only be achieved through proactive scheduling and the 
implementation of cost-efficient pavement applications. 
 
In the upcoming years as the City continues to build upon this study through future inspections and 
maintenance work history, Brea pavement data will continue to provide reliable data.  This will enhance 
the PMP through detailed Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) OC Go funding analysis, City 
specific budgetary reporting and level of service reporting. 
 
The Brea PMP has been developed to assist City personnel by providing current data on the City’s street 
network and to develop cost-effective maintenance strategies to maintain a desirable level of pavement 
performance on a network scale, while optimizing the expenditure of limited fiscal resources. The project 
consisted of analyzing the City’s 2023 dataset for quality and usability.  In doing this, we were tasked to 
generate an updated Capital Improvement Program report that identified recommendations and 
deficiencies in the current operating and maintenance efforts put forth by the City.   
 
We surveyed all designated arterial, collector (MPAH) and 25% of the Local routes this past winter/spring 
to assist the City in being compliant with OCTA – OC Go March 2025 guidelines.  Additionally, we updated 
the City’s unique Pavement Management – GIS layer that will continue to assist the City in analyzing 
pavement conditions and other attribute information through the use of MyRoads® and ESRI ArcMap. 
 
Bucknam Infrastructure Group reviewed the City’s previous maintenance efforts, current 2025-26 and 
proposed FY 2026-2032 projects.  These street improvements/locations are essential historical pavement 
data that are utilized to generate a more accurate recommended CIP and opportunities for improvement 
in the current operating efforts put forth by the City.  The result of these work efforts is this report. 
 
 
  



City of Brea, CA Page 4 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

III. BACKGROUND – CITY OF BREA PMP 
 
In late 1990, voters throughout Orange County approved a ½-cent sales tax for transportation 
improvements known as OC Go, formerly known as Measure M2.  Funding for streets and roads are 
included within the sales tax and are distributed to locals agencies through both formula and a 
competitive method.  In late 2006, the renewal of OC Go was approved by voters that would continue the 
½-cent sales tax for thirty additional years, starting in 2011. 
 
The primary of goal of this report is to comply with established guidelines from OCTA to ensure that field 
data collection and reporting efforts performed by outside consultants or local agency staff are consistent.  
This is required in order that funding allocations can be reviewed and based on agency comparable 
pavement conditions. Specifically, our findings and recommendations provide Public Works 
administrators, managers and field personnel with: 
 

*   PMP report consistent with OCTA OC Go guidelines 
 

* the present condition status of the pavement network (arterial, collector, residential and 
industrial streets), as a whole and of any grouping or individual component within the City; 

* a ranked list of all streets, or segments of streets, by condition within the network; 

* rehabilitation/maintenance needs of each street segment by year; 

* an optimized priority maintenance and rehabilitation program based on cost/benefit analysis 
and various levels of funding 

* optimum annual pavement expenditure  levels for pavement maintenance for the next seven 
(7) years; 

* prediction of the life-cycle performance of the City’s pavement network and each individual 
street section; and 

* pavement condition data and analysis presented in GIS through MyRoads® and ESRI ArcGIS 
 
Pavement is a dynamic structure where deterioration is constantly occurring; thus the pavement 
management system needs to be updated on a regular basis to reflect these changes in pavement 
conditions, pavement maintenance histories, and maintenance strategies based upon budgetary 
constraints.  In our approach to develop the City’s forecasted maintenance recommendations we worked 
with Brea Public Works/Engineering staff in identifying unit costs for maintenance practices used on an 
annual basis.  Currently, based upon the City’s maintenance/rehabilitation practices/unit costs, the total 
replacement value of the Brea pavement network is $258,817,800.   This value clearly indicates that the 
City’s pavement network is the most valuable and essential asset to Brea.  The City’s use of slurry seal, AC 
Overlay and R&R practices are typically applied at a five year, ten year and 25 year frequency respectively 
subject to funding availability (source; PMP industry guidelines/recommendations).   
 
These frequencies are preferred but if not implemented the City may see increases in deterioration rates 
due to environmental, load and high average daily traffic (ADT) volumes.  For example, high ADT volumes 
along one of Brea’s arterial streets will increase deterioration rates for a previously applied AC Overlay 
compared to a small local street.  These deterioration rates are monitored through frequent inspections 
and functional class deterioration analysis within the City’s PMP database. 



City of Brea, CA Page 5 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Through our assessment of historical maintenance performed within the City as well as the conditional 
data found across the network, it clearly shows that more proactive and creative funding mechanisms 
need to occur on the Brea PMP network.  Pavement management involves frequent preventative 
maintenance; as pavement deteriorates through heavy traffic impacts, weathering and time, preventative 
maintenances (such as slurry seal, stop gap, etc.) have limited benefits.  More aggressive maintenance 
applications have to be used.   
 
Our study has shown, at a minimum, that key overlay projects will be needed immediately over the next 
several years to maintain the network’s level of condition.  Currently, the City’s two major streets 
networks (Arterial & Local) hold above average weighted PCI values; it is our recommendation that a 
proactive, common sense overlay program and a continued slurry seal program be scheduled over the 
next several fiscal years.  This will ensure that the citywide weighted PCI will sustain itself and allow for 
routine slurry seal maintenance to continue.  We have found and recommend the following detailed items 
which should be reviewed and considered for a proactive approach to the future management of the 
PMP. 
 
ARTERIAL / COLLECTOR (MPAH) FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
The actual workload requirements identified indicate that the Arterial (MPAH) street network is currently 
in “Good” condition.  To maintain this condition, it is essential that preventive maintenance and overlay 
activities are funded at the levels identified on page 9 to maintain a “Good” network weighted average 
PCI value.   Our MPAH findings for conditional data and recommendations for revenue expenditures are 
shown below:  
 

• The MPAH network has a weighted PCI of 78.7; 
 
• The MPAH network consists of 31.2 centerline miles and 8,172,881 SF of pavement;   
 
• Currently, 48% of the MPAH network (14.9 centerline miles) qualify for slurry seal/stop gap 

maintenance; 8% of the Arterial network (2.4 centerline miles) qualify for 
rehabilitation/reconstruction maintenance; 

 
• At a minimum, MPAH maintenance projects should focus on the maintaining the current PCI 

above a weighted average of 80 over the next 7 years; 
 

o Maintain Arterial PCI by providing revenues at the $2,752,000/yr level for the term of the 
CIP to generate the projects identified on page 9 (Maintain Existing Average Network PCI); 

 
• Increase funding and develop a proactive approach to identify MPAH overlay projects based on 

the deterioration modeling within MicroPAVER; 
 

o Increasing current funding levels will improve the MPAH weighted PCI of 78.7 to 79.4 and 
decrease the citywide backlog from $22.4 million to $4.0 million over the next seven 
years; 

 



City of Brea, CA Page 6 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

• Perform pavement inspections on the MPAH network every two years to continue the City’s 
solid planning model within MicroPAVER to track PCI deterioration; also follows new OCTA 
guidelines for Measure M2. 
 

• Implement True Area Calculation technologies across all MPAH Arterial/Collector routes to 
improve the accuracy of CIP Engineering cost projections 

 
 
LOCAL FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
The actual workload requirements identified indicate that the Local street network is currently in “Good” 
condition.  To maintain this condition, it is critical that preventive maintenance and overlay activities are 
funded at the levels identified on page 9 to maintain a “good” network weighted average PCI value.   Our 
Local network findings for conditional data and recommendations for revenue expenditures are shown 
below:  
 

• The Local network has a weighted PCI of 82.9; 
 
• The Local network consists of 93.2 centerline miles and 17,680,008 SF of pavement;   
 
• Currently, 31% of the Local network (29.3 centerline miles) qualifies for slurry seal/stop gap 

maintenance; 8% of the Local network (7.3 centerline miles) qualify for 
rehabilitation/reconstruction maintenance; 
 

o With Local conditions showing approximately nine (9) miles of streets in need of major 
rehabilitation or reconstruction a proactive and aggressive Local CIP program needs to be 
implemented and sustained; 

 
• At a minimum, Local maintenance projects should focus on the maintaining the current PCI above 

a weighted average of 82 over the next 7 years; 
 

o Maintain Local PCI by providing revenues at the $3,731,000 Million/yr level for the term 
of the CIP to generate the projects identified on page 9 (Maintain Existing Average 
Network PCI); 

 
• Increase funding and develop a proactive approach to identify Local overlay projects based on the 

deterioration modeling within MicroPAVER; 
 

o Increase current funding levels will improve the Local PCI of 82.9 to 84.2 and decrease the 
citywide backlog from $22.4 million to $4.0 million over the next seven years; 

 
• Perform pavement inspections on the Local network every year (following the City’s maintenance 

zone schedule) to continue the City’s solid planning model within MicroPAVER to track PCI 
deterioration; also follows new OCTA guidelines for Measure M2; 
 

• Implement True Area Calculation technologies across all Local routes to improve the accuracy of 
CIP/maintenance engineering cost projections 



City of Brea, CA Page 7 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

IV.  CURRENT PAVEMENT CONDITION INDEX (PCI) 
   

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



City of Brea, CA Page 8 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

 
V. PROJECTED PAVEMENT CONDITIONS (PCI)  

 
The City’s projected annual budgets are funded through Gas Tax, RMRA, M2 and Traffic Impact 
revenues. 

 
 

 
   



City of Brea, CA Page 9 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

VI. ALTERNATIVE FUNDING LEVELS 
 
 Maintain Existing Average Network PCI 

 
Improve Average Network PCI  

 
 
VII. CURRENT AND PROJECTED BACKLOG BY YEAR OF PAVEMENT 

MAINTENANCE NEEDS 
 

DEFERRED MAINTENANCE 
Delaying repairs on streets where pavement conditions indicate a need generates deferred 
maintenance or “backlog”.  Deferred maintenance is work that is postponed to a future budget 
cycle, or until funds are available. As maintenance is deferred, the opportunity to apply 
preventive, life extending pavement treatments is forfeited and the ultimate cost of rehabilitation 
multiplies (i.e. slurry seal costs to overlay costs).  By using the City’s pavement maintenance 
applications and their associated unit costs, when a budgetary model is exercised within the PMP 
software the amount of deferred maintenance is calculated.  Based upon the available budget 
applied to the model, deferred maintenance will increase or decrease. 
 
As maintenance is deferred, the opportunity to apply life extending preventive pavement 
applications is lost and the ultimate cost of rehabilitation multiples. 



City of Brea, CA Page 10 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

In the case of Brea, the City’s projected annual funding through FY 2031-32 will continue to 
generate a increase in the amount of deferred maintenance on the network from a level of $22.4 
million to $51.8 million FY 2032.  

 
 

VIII. CENTERLINE MILEAGE 

 
 
 
IX. PERCENTAGE OF NETWORK IN EACH OF FIVE CONDITION CATEGORIES 

BASED ON CENTERLINE MILES 



City of Brea, CA Page 11 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

 
 
 
X. REDUCTION IN M2 LOCAL MATCH 
 
A local agency match reduction of 10% of the eligible cost for projects submitted for consideration of 
funding through the M2 Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs (CTFP) call for projects is 
available if the local agency either: 
 

a. Shows measurable improvement of paved road conditions during the previous reporting 
period defined as an overall weighted (by area) average system improvement of one 
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) point with no reduction in the overall weighted (by area) 
average PCI in the Master Plan of Arterial Highways (MPAH) or local categories: 

 
or 
 

b. Have road pavement conditions during the previous reporting period, within the highest 20% 
of the scale for road pavement conditions in conformance with OCTA Ordinance No. 3, 
defined as a PCI of 75 or higher, otherwise defined as in “good condition”. 

 
Road conditions found through our 2025 PMP management study shows that the City is eligible for 
Local Match Reduction based on the current network weighted PCI of 81.6. 
 

 
 

  



City of Brea, CA Page 12 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

XI. APPENDIX A – SEVEN YEAR ROAD MAINTENANCE AND REHABILITATION 
PLAN BASED ON CURRENT OR EXPECTED FUNDING LEVEL 

 
 
  



City of Brea, CA
Forecast Maintenance / Rehabilitation (FMR) Report - FY 2025-2032

Sorted by Rank, FY, Name Order (A-Z)

FY BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Maint. Type Total $ City Projected $

Arterials / Collectors (MPAH)
2025-26 40 1490 Birch St Kraemer Blvd Ranger Ave A AC 1,228 70 89,460 58 65 31 4 Grind - ARHM $524,236
2025-26 40 1500 Birch St Ranger Ave Flower Hill St A AC 1,062 70 74,340 59 48 45 7 Grind - ARHM $435,632
2025-26 40 1510 Birch St Flower Hill St Voyager Ave A AC 713 74 54,762 48 47 36 17 Grind - ARHM $320,905
2025-26 40 1515 Birch St Voyager Ave Flower Hill St A AC 713 28 21,464 55 45 30 25 Grind - ARHM $125,779
2025-26 40 1520 Birch St Voyager Ave Valencia Ave A AC 1,770 28 55,060 69 57 43 0 Type II Slurry $30,834
2025-26 40 1525 Birch St Valencia ave Voyager Ave A AC 1,770 28 55,060 78 22 76 2 Type II Slurry $30,834
2025-26 212 1700 Lambert Rd Pomelo Ave State College Blvd A AC 510 102 52,020 82 25 75 0 Type II Slurry $29,131
2025-26 212 1710 Lambert Rd State College Blvd 57 Freeway SB/Ramp A AC 463 64 29,632 93 39 61 0 Stop Gap Preventive $4,445
2025-26 212 1715 Lambert Rd 57 Freeway SB/Ramp State College Blvd A AC 463 44 20,147 72 6 43 51 Type II Slurry $11,282
2025-26 212 1720 Lambert Rd 57 Freeway SB/Ramp 57 Freeway NB/Ramp A AC 603 98 59,094 98 0 100 0 Stop Gap Preventive $8,864
2025-26 212 1721 Lambert Rd 57 Freeway NB/Ramp Point Dr A AC 611. 63. 37,518 92 0 100 0 Stop Gap Preventive $5,628
2025-26 212 1725 Lambert Rd Point Dr 57 Freeway NB/Ramp A AC 611 45 27,495 67 22 71 7 Grind - AC Overlay $132,801
2025-26 212 1730 Lambert Rd Pointe Dr Associated Rd A AC 540 41 29,840 70 6 51 43 Type II Slurry $16,710
2025-26 279 10 Palm St City Limit Skywood St A AC 691 60 41,460 60 38 56 6 Grind - AC Overlay $200,252
2025-26 279 20 Palm St Skywood St Kerrwood Ct A AC 191 60 11,460 66 48 31 21 Grind - AC Overlay $55,352
2025-26 279 30 Palm St Kerrwood Ct La Habra Blvd A AC 411 60 31,160 61 49 39 12 Grind - ARHM $182,598
2025-26 279 5 Palm St Moonstone St Lambert Rd A AC 998 30 29,940 44 67 29 4 Grind - ARHM $175,448

$2,290,731
2026-27 26 760 Associated Rd Imperial Hwy Greenbriar Ln A AC 1,195 32 40,240 66 4 54 42 Grind - AC Overlay $202,005
2026-27 26 800 Associated Rd Birch St Country Hills Rd A AC 527 60 31,620 73 0 63 37 Grind - ARHM $192,566
2026-27 26 825 Associated Rd Donnybrook Rd Sleepy Hollow Ln A AC 210 23 5,680 71 0 37 63 Grind - ARHM $34,591
2026-27 26 835 Associated Rd Meadowcreek Rd Donnybrook Rd A AC 348 23 8,004 69 0 35 65 Type II Slurry $4,642
2026-27 26 860 Associated Rd Windwood Ln Woodhill Ln A AC 595 60 35,700 73 0 56 44 Type II Slurry $20,706
2026-27 51 590 Brea Blvd Canyondale Dr Canyon Country Rd A AAC 805 56 42,680 72 51 36 13 Type II Slurry $24,754
2026-27 51 600 Brea Blvd Canyon Country Rd City Limit A AAC 425 50 20,600 68 73 22 5 Grind - ARHM $125,454
2026-27 78 1820 Central Ave Roscoe St De Jur St A AC 875 60 13,800 63 65 28 7 Grind - ARHM $84,042
2026-27 78 1830 Central Ave De Jur St Puente St A AC 798 70 53,085 70 48 40 12 Grind - ARHM $323,288
2026-27 78 1890 Central Ave Tamarack Ave Brea Blvd A AC 1,529 80 118,370 71 38 53 9 Type II Slurry $68,655
2026-27 143 3060 Elm St Property Line Sievers Ave C AC 141. 32. 4,314 40 63 37 0 Grind - ARHM $26,272
2026-27 143 3130 Elm St Magnolia Ave Sycamore Ave C AC 295. 37. 10,915 70 0 88 12 Type II Slurry $6,331
2026-27 300 130 Puente St Lambert Rd Beacon St A AAC 743 80 57,690 73 20 62 18 Type II Slurry $33,460
2026-27 300 160 Puente St Columbia St Central Ave A AAC 703 80 56,240 74 4 95 1 Type II Slurry $32,619
2026-27 300 210 Puente St Wardman Dr Baywood Dr A AC 972 36 39,492 74 30 70 0 Type II Slurry $22,905
2026-27 315 4850 Rose Dr Blake Rd Vesuvius Dr A AAC 503 45 22,635 67 37 63 0 Grind - AC Overlay $113,628
2026-27 348 670 State College Blvd Avocado St Redbud St A AAC 593 60 35,580 72 43 57 0 Type II Slurry $20,636

$1,336,555
2027-28 39 280 Berry St Imperial Hwy Mercury Ln A AAC 843 60 51,885 90 41 56 3 Type II Slurry $31,650
2027-28 39 290 Berry St Mercury Ln Railroad Tracks A AAC 493 60 29,580 73 6 94 0 Grind - AC Overlay $154,408
2027-28 39 300 Berry St Railroad Tracks Vanguard Way A AAC 847 60 50,820 73 56 44 0 Grind - ARHM $322,199
2027-28 39 310 Berry St Vanguard Way Lambert Rd A AAC 417 60 25,020 70 38 54 8 Grind - AC Overlay $130,604
2027-28 39 320 Berry St Lambert Rd Berry Way A AAC 687 60 41,220 74 24 74 2 Grind - AC Overlay $215,168
2027-28 39 330 Berry St Berry Way Apollo St A AAC 553 60 33,180 72 0 64 36 Grind - AC Overlay $173,200
2027-28 39 340 Berry St Apollo St Challenger St A AAC 363 60 21,780 73 19 66 15 Grind - AC Overlay $113,692
2027-28 39 350 Berry St Challenger St Explorer St A AAC 120 64 7,680 75 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,685
2027-28 39 360 Berry St Explorer St Columbia St A AAC 393 60 23,580 81 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $14,384
2027-28 39 370 Berry St Columbia St Central Ave A AAC 480 80 37,000 77 0 95 5 Type II Slurry $22,570
2027-28 39 380 Berry St Central Ave Salveson Rd. A AC 1,160 27 34,820 77 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $21,240
2027-28 39 381 Berry St Salveson Rd. Central Ave A AC 1,160 27 33,320 77 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $20,325
2027-28 39 390 Berry St Salveson Rd. Stonebridge Ln A AC 1,296 80 102,080 82 8 88 4 Type II Slurry $62,269
2027-28 39 400 Berry St Stonebridge Dr Amber Hill Dr A AC 743 32 23,776 76 21 69 10 Type II Slurry $14,503
2027-28 39 401 Berry St Amber Hill Dr Stonebridge Dr A AC 736 32 23,552 83 15 79 6 Type II Slurry $14,367
2027-28 39 410 Berry St Amber Hill Dr Northwood Ave A AC 828 32 28,496 78 0 64 36 Type II Slurry $17,383
2027-28 39 411 Berry St Northwood Ave Amber Hill Dr A AC 940 32 32,080 80 25 69 6 Type II Slurry $19,569
2027-28 39 415 Berry St Northwood Ave End A AC 145 80 8,200 59 34 63 3 Grind - AC Overlay $42,804

$1,395,018
2028-29 40 1360 Birch St Brea Blvd Orange Ave A AC 351 22 5,672 86 38 57 5 Grind - ARHM $37,378
2028-29 40 1365 Birch St Orange Ave Brea Blvd A AC 296 22 2,512 91 24 76 0 Type II Slurry $1,583
2028-29 40 1370 Birch St Orange Ave Flower Ave A AC 381 60 22,860 85 13 46 41 Grind - ARHM $150,647
2028-29 40 1380 Birch St Flower Ave Redwood Ave A AC 494 60 29,640 68 46 27 27 Grind - ARHM $195,328

$2,200,000

$2 750 000

GREEN HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTE PROPOSED / SCHEDULED ARTERIAL/COLLECTOR SECTIONS - FY 2025-2032 Page 1 of 12



City of Brea, CA
Forecast Maintenance / Rehabilitation (FMR) Report - FY 2025-2032

Sorted by Rank, FY, Name Order (A-Z)

FY BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Maint. Type Total $ City Projected $
2028-29 40 1390 Birch St Redwood Ave Laurel Ave A AC 308 60 18,480 69 59 35 6 Grind - ARHM $121,783
2028-29 40 1400 Birch St Laurel Ave Poplar Ave A AC 342 64 21,888 77 61 37 2 Grind - ARHM $144,242
2028-29 40 1410 Birch St Poplar Ave Randolph Ave A AC 1,047 60 61,570 81 0 100 0 Grind - ARHM $405,746
2028-29 40 1420 Birch St Randolph Ave Brea Mall Entrance A AC 1,032 80 80,480 70 58 26 16 Grind - ARHM $530,363

$1,587,071
2029-30 40 1440 Birch St Brea Mall Entrance State College Blvd A AC 1,027 40 41,080 74 77 23 0 Grind - ARHM $281,809
2029-30 40 1445 Birch St State College Blvd Brea Mall Entrance A AC 1,027 40 41,080 66 71 29 0 Grind - ARHM $281,809
2029-30 40 1450 Birch St State College Blvd 57 Freeway A AC 630 25 17,625 62 83 17 0 Grind - ARHM $120,908
2029-30 40 1455 Birch St 57 Freeway State College Blvd A AC 630 30 24,100 64 65 15 20 Grind - ARHM $165,326
2029-30 40 1460 Birch St 57 Freeway Associated Rd A AC 1,487 80 118,960 69 75 12 13 Type II Slurry $78,514
2029-30 40 1470 Birch St Associated Rd Associated Rd A AC 1,707 60 110,920 62 75 13 12 Grind - ARHM $760,911

$1,689,276
2030-31 40 1480 Birch St Associated Rd Kraemer Blvd A AC 2,036 60 127,160 40 84 10 6 Grind - ARHM $745,158 $2,750,000
2030-31 379 1000 Valencia Ave Date St Imperial Hwy A AAC 490 23 16,270 70 0 100 0 Grind - AC Overlay $95,668
2030-31 379 1001 Valencia Ave Imperial Hwy Date St A AC 490 33 17,420 69 7 93 0 Grind - AC Overlay $102,430
2030-31 379 13560 Valencia Ave Lambert Rd Santa Fe Rd A AC 1,389 58 88,037 70 26 74 0 Grind - AC Overlay $517,658
2030-31 379 13570 Valencia Ave Santa Fe Rd Sandpiper Way A AC 832 58 48,256 68 30 51 19 Grind - AC Overlay $283,745
2030-31 379 980 Valencia Ave City Limit Date St A AAC 1,040 60 62,400 80 0 100 0 Grind - AC Overlay $366,912
2030-31 403 11030 Whittier Ave City Limit San Juan Dr C AC 400 36 14,400 68 20 80 0 Grind - AC Overlay $84,672
2030-31 403 11040 Whittier Ave San Juan Dr Havenhurst Dr C AAC 320 36 11,520 67 0 82 18 Grind - AC Overlay $67,738
2030-31 403 11050 Whittier Ave Havenhurst Dr Puente St C AAC 542 36 19,512 64 20 63 17 Grind - AC Overlay $114,731

$2,378,710
2031-32 348 690 State College Blvd Lambert Rd Citrus Pl A AC 558 66 36,828 69 4 64 32 Grind - AC Overlay $225,019
2031-32 348 700 State College Blvd Citrus Pl Balsa Ave A AC 555 60 33,300 78 17 80 3 Type II Slurry $23,643
2031-32 348 710 State College Blvd Balsa Ave Cliffwood Ave A AC 1,396 60 83,760 73 12 72 16 Grind - AC Overlay $511,774
2031-32 348 720 State College Blvd Cliffwood Ave Live Oak St A AC 572 60 34,320 73 12 80 8 Grind - AC Overlay $209,695
2031-32 348 730 State College Blvd Live Oak St Park Ln A AC 637 60 38,220 70 13 55 32 Grind - AC Overlay $233,524
2031-32 348 740 State College Blvd Park Ln Blossom Pl A AC 675 60 40,500 73 14 58 28 Grind - AC Overlay $247,455

$1,451,110

Locals
2025-26 15 6270 Appleblossom Cir End Newhaven Dr E AAC 65 63 3,170 52 49 51 0 Grind - AC Overlay $12,680
2025-26 19 2190 Arovista Ave Imperial Hwy Aspen St E AC 585 44 25,388 78 0 83 17 Type II Slurry $11,425
2025-26 20 2200 Arovista Cir Mariner St End E AC 428 44 20,326 68 21 68 11 Type II Slurry $9,147
2025-26 34 10720 Beacon St Neptune Way Delta Ave E AC 658 44 28,952 62 54 46 0 Grind - AC Overlay $115,808
2025-26 75 6180 Cattail Cir End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 210 44 6,445 56 72 28 0 Grind - AC Overlay $25,780
2025-26 93 10730 Columbia St Puente St Neptune Way E AC 645 44 28,380 60 37 63 0 Cape Seal $113,520
2025-26 93 10740 Columbia St Neptune Way Berry St E AC 2,141 44 93,852 49 67 33 0 Grind - AC Overlay $375,408
2025-26 104 6160 Creekwood Ct End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 185 44 6,139 67 41 59 0 Grind - AC Overlay $24,556
2025-26 133 2130 Eadington Dr Linden Way Catalpa Ave E AC 885 36 31,860 93 0 100 0 Stop Gap Preventive $4,779
2025-26 133 2140 Eadington Dr Catalpa Ave Arovista Ave E AC 285 36 10,260 81 52 48 0 Type II Slurry $4,617
2025-26 138 5400 Edgemont Ln Kraemer Blvd Thistle Rd E AAC 173 46 5,892 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,651
2025-26 162 5470 Flanders Ct End Ambling Dr E AC 342 32 10,944 78 40 40 20 Type II Slurry $4,925
2025-26 163 2770 Flower Ave Imperial Hwy Birch St E AC 760 36 27,360 55 59 40 1 Grind - AC Overlay $109,440
2025-26 163 2780 Flower Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 561 36 20,196 40 72 28 0 Grind - AC Overlay $80,784
2025-26 184 5350 Hawthorne Ave Sorrel St Covey Ct E AAC 365 32 11,680 64 18 82 0 Cape Seal $46,720
2025-26 341 5340 Sorrel St End Hawthorne Ave E AAC 268 32 8,576 67 19 81 0 Cape Seal $34,304
2025-26 355 6240 Strawberry Ln End Newhaven Dr E AAC 118 44 3,501 57 34 66 0 Cape Seal $14,004
2025-26 366 12140 Tanglewood St Palm St Archwood Ave E AC 117 44 4,196 71 49 41 10 Grind - AC Overlay $16,784
2025-26 366 12150 Tanglewood St Archwood Ave Breezewood Ct E AC 217 36 7,812 65 20 80 0 Grind - AC Overlay $31,248
2025-26 366 12160 Tanglewood St Breezewood Ct Dogwood Ct E AC 220 36 7,920 70 0 100 0 Cape Seal $31,680
2025-26 366 12170 Tanglewood St Dogwood Ct Elkwood Ct E AC 162 36 5,832 69 0 100 0 Cape Seal $23,328
2025-26 369 5280 Thistle Rd Seneca Ct Woodacre St E AAC 275 32 8,800 65 13 87 0 Cape Seal $35,200
2025-26 384 11540 Verbena Ln Olinda Dr City Limit E AC 959 36 34,524 61 42 50 8 Grind - AC Overlay $138,096

$1,266,884
2026-27 1 11720 Acacia St End Lantana Ave E AC 180 33 7,518 76 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,533
2026-27 1 11730 Acacia St Lantana Ave Chestnut Ave E AC 357 33 11,261 82 12 88 0 Type II Slurry $5,293
2026-27 1 11790 Acacia St Mulberry Ave Walnut Ave E AC 292 28 8,176 74 9 87 4 Type II Slurry $3,843
2026-27 1 11800 Acacia St Brea Blvd End E AC 794 36 30,096 61 51 49 0 Grind - AC Overlay $125,199
2026-27 3 11950 Alder St Brea Blvd Magnolia Ave E AC 1,248 37 46,176 81 2 98 0 Type II Slurry $21,703
2026-27 3 11960 Alder St Magnolia Ave Fir St E AC 333 37 12,321 78 0 98 2 Type II Slurry $5,791

$2,750,000

$2,750,000

$1,500,000

$500,000

GREEN HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTE PROPOSED / SCHEDULED ARTERIAL/COLLECTOR SECTIONS - FY 2025-2032 Page 2 of 12



City of Brea, CA
Forecast Maintenance / Rehabilitation (FMR) Report - FY 2025-2032

Sorted by Rank, FY, Name Order (A-Z)

FY BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Maint. Type Total $ City Projected $
2026-27 3 11970 Alder St Fir St Locust St E AC 320 37 11,840 80 0 98 2 Type II Slurry $5,565
2026-27 3 11980 Alder St Locust St Cherry St E AC 207 37 7,659 80 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,600
2026-27 3 11990 Alder St Cherry St Laurel Ave E AC 289 37 10,693 77 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,026
2026-27 3 12000 Alder St Laurel ST Laurel Ave E AC 210 37 7,770 77 40 53 7 Type II Slurry $3,652
2026-27 3 12010 Alder St Laurel Ave Poplar Ave E AC 373 37 15,401 63 64 36 0 Grind - AC Overlay $64,068
2026-27 8 10670 Alta Mesa Way End Alta Mesa Dr E AC 400 36 16,200 58 77 20 3 Grind - AC Overlay $67,392
2026-27 8 10680 Alta Mesa Way End Alta Mesa Dr E AC 150 36 5,400 49 52 40 8 Grind - AC Overlay $22,464
2026-27 27 9030 Atlas St Lunar Ave Tamarack Ave E AC 643 44 30,240 70 4 96 0 Type II Slurry $14,213
2026-27 2031 12730 Bobwhite Rd Brea Hills Ave East End E AC 497 32 17,669 68 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $8,304
2026-27 52 1940 Briarwood Dr Puente St Eadington Dr E AC 1,942 37 71,854 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $33,771
2026-27 52 1950 Briarwood Dr Briarwood Dr End E AC 90 65 5,985 73 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,813
2026-27 52 1960 Briarwood Dr End Briarwood Dr E AC 92 70 6,936 72 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,260
2026-27 99 5540 Country Hills Rd Associated Rd Wandering Ln E AC 302 36 13,158 35 80 20 0 Grind - AC Overlay $54,737
2026-27 99 5550 Country Hills Rd Wandering Ln Country Club Dr E AC 342 36 12,312 41 49 48 3 Grind - AC Overlay $51,218
2026-27 99 5560 Country Hills Rd Country Club Dr Kraemer Blvd E AC 1,364 36 49,104 38 80 20 0 Grind - AC Overlay $204,273
2026-27 101 5330 Covey Ct End Hawthorne Ave E AAC 221 32 6,816 68 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,204
2026-27 126 6315 Donnybrook Rd End Newhaven Dr E AAC 184 44 5,261 69 62 38 0 Grind - AC Overlay $21,886
2026-27 170 12180 Foxwood Ave Tanglewood St Gatewood Ct E AC 189 36 6,804 68 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,198
2026-27 170 12190 Foxwood Ave Gatewood Ct Honeywood Ct E AC 228 36 8,208 65 0 100 0 Cape Seal $34,145
2026-27 170 12200 Foxwood Ave Honeywood Ct Ironwood Ct E AC 230 36 8,280 60 36 64 0 Cape Seal $34,445
2026-27 170 12210 Foxwood Ave Ironwood Ct Kerrwood Ct E AC 190 36 6,840 52 55 45 0 Grind - AC Overlay $28,454
2026-27 2040 12960 Hillside Rd Brea Hills Ave East End E AC 329 32 10,528 68 26 74 0 Type II Slurry $4,948
2026-27 201 10300 Joyce Dr Puente St Berenice Dr E AC 219 36 7,596 42 81 14 5 Grind - AC Overlay $31,599
2026-27 201 10310 Joyce Dr Berenice Dr Poinsettia Ave E AC 235 36 11,960 34 72 28 0 Grind - AC Overlay $49,754
2026-27 205 12100 Kerrwood Ct Palm St Archwood Ave E AC 183 44 7,100 52 48 47 5 Grind - AC Overlay $29,536
2026-27 205 12110 Kerrwood Ct Archwood Ave Merrywood Ct E AC 337 36 12,132 55 41 59 0 Grind - AC Overlay $50,469
2026-27 205 12120 Kerrwood Ct Merrywood Ct Leafwood Ct E AC 174 36 6,264 62 34 66 0 Grind - AC Overlay $26,058
2026-27 205 12130 Kerrwood Ct Leafwood Ct Jaywood Ct E AC 153 36 5,508 69 52 48 0 Type II Slurry $2,589
2026-27 215 5190 Larkspur Ave End Baler Ave E AAC 300 32 9,600 69 24 76 0 Type II Slurry $4,512
2026-27 229 11600 Lotus Pl Vallejo St Sonora St E AC 1,023 36 36,540 46 63 37 0 Grind - AC Overlay $152,006
2026-27 229 8040 Lotus Pl End Buttonwood Dr E AC 437 36 17,244 88 19 81 0 Type II Slurry $8,105
2026-27 230 9020 Lunar Ave Apollo St Atlas St E AC 459 44 22,144 69 19 81 0 Type II Slurry $10,408
2026-27 249 11390 Moonstone St End Palm St E AC 717 44 33,130 56 42 45 13 Grind - AC Overlay $137,821
2026-27 252 6300 Morningflower Cir End Newhaven Dr E AAC 110 63 5,506 68 63 37 0 Grind - AC Overlay $22,905
2026-27 253 4730 Mujica Pl End Tolbert St E AAC 255 36 10,980 70 17 79 4 Type II Slurry $5,161
2026-27 2047 13150 Orange Grove Ln Tangerine Pl North End E AC 258 32 10,021 69 37 63 0 Type II Slurry $4,710
2026-27 295 10360 Poinsettia Ave Joyce Dr Walling Ave E AC 835 36 33,560 45 53 47 0 Grind - AC Overlay $139,610
2026-27 2057 13310 Santa Fe Rd Cardinal St Condor Ave E AC 603 36 21,708 67 30 70 0 Grind - AC Overlay $90,305
2026-27 334 7394 Silver Canyon Way End Apricot Ave E AC 369 29 7,537 56 46 47 7 Grind - AC Overlay $31,354
2026-27 335 6170 Singingwood Ln End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 191 44 5,837 69 7 88 5 Type II Slurry $2,743
2026-27 337 11610 Skywood St Vallejo St Sonora St E AC 1,056 36 39,766 44 60 40 0 Grind - AC Overlay $165,427
2026-27 337 11620 Skywood St Sonora St Palm St E AC 112 36 3,744 44 77 23 0 Grind - AC Overlay $15,575
2026-27 337 7670 Skywood St Buttonwood St Cliffwood Ave E AC 318 36 11,232 83 46 29 25 Type II Slurry $5,279
2026-27 340 11615 Sonora St Skywood St Lotus Pl E AC 207 36 7,102 64 78 22 0 Grind - AC Overlay $29,544
2026-27 340 11625 Sonora St Lotus Pl Blossom Pl E AC 216 36 9,526 67 43 57 0 Grind - AC Overlay $39,628
2026-27 369 5270 Thistle Rd Edgemont Ln Seneca Ct E AAC 124 32 3,968 69 16 84 0 Type II Slurry $1,865
2026-27 375 10750 Tracie Dr End Puente St E AC 764 32 29,660 82 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $13,940
2026-27 381 11560 Vallejo St Skywood St Lotus Pl E AC 222 36 9,742 54 56 44 0 Grind - AC Overlay $40,527
2026-27 381 11570 Vallejo St Lotus Pl Blossom Pl E AC 213 36 7,668 60 49 51 0 Grind - AC Overlay $31,899
2026-27 381 11580 Vallejo St Blossom Pl City Limit E AC 107 36 3,564 56 63 37 0 Grind - AC Overlay $14,826
2026-27 391 10320 Walling Ave Puente St Berenice Dr E AC 254 36 8,856 52 40 59 1 Grind - AC Overlay $36,841
2026-27 391 10330 Walling Ave Berenice Dr Poinsettia Ave E AC 247 36 10,642 50 54 46 0 Grind - AC Overlay $44,271
2026-27 391 10850 Walling Ave City Limit De Lay St E AC 153 37 5,661 77 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,661
2026-27 391 10860 Walling Ave De Lay St De Jur St E AC 356 37 13,172 76 0 91 9 Type II Slurry $6,191
2026-27 391 10870 Walling Ave De Jur St Lockhaven Dr E AC 694 37 29,178 60 58 42 0 Grind - AC Overlay $121,380
2026-27 391 10880 Walling Ave Lockhaven Dr Puente St E AC 256 37 9,176 73 60 40 0 Type II Slurry $4,313
2026-27 403 11055 Whittier Ave Bexley Ln End E AC 410 35 15,970 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $7,506
2026-27 403 22220 Whittier Ave Whittier Ave North End E AC 95 57 5,565 69 56 44 0 Type II Slurry $2,616

$2,223,929
2027-28 2 6230 Acorn Cir End Newhaven Dr E AAC 100 63 4,876 74 24 76 0 Type II Slurry $2,389

GREEN HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTE PROPOSED / SCHEDULED ARTERIAL/COLLECTOR SECTIONS - FY 2025-2032 Page 3 of 12



City of Brea, CA
Forecast Maintenance / Rehabilitation (FMR) Report - FY 2025-2032

Sorted by Rank, FY, Name Order (A-Z)

FY BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Maint. Type Total $ City Projected $
2027-28 2108 15011 Alley E/O Brea Bl Elm St Date St O AAC 660 20 12,960 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,350
2027-28 2108 15012 Alley E/O Brea Bl Date St Imperial Hwy O AAC 570 20 9,300 78 0 63 37 Type II Slurry $4,557
2027-28 2116 15026 Alley E/O Orange Av Lambert Rd Cypress St O AC 800 20 13,600 63 66 34 0 Grind - AC Overlay $58,888
2027-28 2109 15023 Alley S/O Imperial Hwy 300 Imperial Hwy Sycamore Ave O AC 500 20 8,500 88 62 38 0 Type II Slurry $4,165
2027-28 2109 15055 Alley S/O Imperial Hwy Walnut Ave Alley W/O Walnut Ave O AC 182 23 4,186 65 6 76 18 Grind - AC Overlay $18,125
2027-28 2103 15004 Alley W/O Brea Bl Date St Imperial Hwy O AAC 580 20 11,600 73 30 26 44 Type II Slurry $5,684
2027-28 2100 15001 Alley W/O Flower Ave Birch St South End O AC 340 19 5,270 59 8 90 2 Grind - AC Overlay $22,819
2027-28 2112 15019 Alley W/O Laurel Ave Imperial Hwy Birch St O AC 1,100 20 22,000 79 71 22 7 Type II Slurry $10,780
2027-28 2115 15024 Alley W/O Magnolia Ave 300 Imperial Hwy Date St O AC 500 20 8,500 89 20 76 4 Type II Slurry $4,165
2027-28 2115 15025 Alley W/O Magnolia Ave Date St Magnolia Ave O AC 610 20 12,200 71 74 14 12 Grind - AC Overlay $52,826
2027-28 2111 15017 Alley W/O Poplar Ave Imperial Hwy Madison Wy O AC 500 20 8,500 81 0 96 4 Type II Slurry $4,165
2027-28 2113 15020 Alley W/O Redwood Ave Imperial Hwy Birch St O AAC 940 20 18,620 87 19 29 52 Type II Slurry $9,124
2027-28 2113 15021 Alley W/O Redwood Ave Birch St Ash St O AC 420 20 7,850 85 60 23 17 Type II Slurry $3,847
2027-28 2105 15006 Alley W/O Walnut Ave Date St Alley S/O Imperial Hwy O AC 580 19 9,280 74 53 29 18 Type II Slurry $4,547
2027-28 7 11120 Alta Mesa Dr Puente St Alta Mesa Way E AC 402 36 14,147 78 65 35 0 Type II Slurry $6,932
2027-28 9 12270 Alwick Pl Midbury St End E AAC 210 32 9,505 82 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,657
2027-28 11 4340 Amberwick Cir End Eucalyptus Ave E AC 147 36 6,804 82 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,334
2027-28 13 9050 Apollo St Berry St Explorer St E AC 853 36 30,412 78 36 64 0 Type II Slurry $14,902
2027-28 13 9060 Apollo St Explorer St Lunar Ave E AC 448 36 16,128 66 34 66 0 Cape Seal $69,834
2027-28 13 9070 Apollo St Lunar Ave Tamarack Ave E AC 633 36 22,788 73 15 85 0 Type II Slurry $11,166
2027-28 18 12440 Aria Dr Arts Ave Studio Dr E AC 430 32 14,030 74 24 76 0 Type II Slurry $6,875
2027-28 19 2150 Arovista Ave Eadington Dr Lime St E AC 177 36 6,372 71 66 34 0 Type II Slurry $3,122
2027-28 19 2160 Arovista Ave Lime St Carob St E AC 235 37 8,695 77 57 36 7 Type II Slurry $4,261
2027-28 19 2170 Arovista Ave Carob St Lemon St E AC 253 37 9,361 77 65 35 0 Type II Slurry $4,587
2027-28 19 2180 Arovista Ave Lemon St Imperial Hwy E AC 647 37 23,939 72 60 23 17 Type II Slurry $11,730
2027-28 23 12430 Arts Ave Placentia Ave Aria Dr E AAC 730 32 22,784 73 8 92 0 Type II Slurry $11,164
2027-28 29 6895 Avocado St Guava Pl Woodland Ave E AAC 293 36 12,698 74 28 72 0 Type II Slurry $6,222
2027-28 31 7440 Balsa Ave State College Blvd Buttonwood Dr E AC 140 36 5,190 82 59 41 0 Type II Slurry $2,543
2027-28 34 10710 Beacon St Puente St Neptune Way E AC 643 44 28,292 73 15 85 0 Type II Slurry $13,863
2027-28 2032 12740 Boxcar Ln Whistle Train Ln Trolley Ct E AC 316 32 11,362 76 24 76 0 Type II Slurry $5,567
2027-28 61 7150 Cameron Ct End Carmichael Dr E AC 317 32 11,656 76 45 55 0 Type II Slurry $5,711
2027-28 63 7610 Candlewood St Cashew Ave Balsa Ave E AAC 249 36 8,964 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,392
2027-28 64 7841 Canyon Country Rd Brea Blvd Grand Canyon Rd E AC 175 16 3,155 72 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $1,546
2027-28 66 9000 Capricorn St Nibus St Tamarack Ave E AC 538 44 23,672 79 13 87 0 Type II Slurry $11,599
2027-28 67 10810 Carey Ave Worthington St De Jur St E AC 320 37 13,294 78 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,514
2027-28 69 7100 Carmichael Dr Balsa Ave Davidson Ct E AC 937 36 33,732 80 51 39 10 Type II Slurry $16,529
2027-28 69 7110 Carmichael Dr Davidson Ct Chisholm Ct E AC 286 36 10,296 84 0 75 25 Type II Slurry $5,045
2027-28 69 7120 Carmichael Dr Chisholm Ct Buchanan Ct E AC 312 36 11,232 81 36 64 0 Type II Slurry $5,504
2027-28 69 7130 Carmichael Dr Buchanan Ct Cameron Ct E AC 302 36 10,872 84 0 97 3 Type II Slurry $5,327
2027-28 69 7140 Carmichael Dr Cameron Ct Newhall Terrace E AC 1,234 36 44,426 80 10 82 8 Type II Slurry $21,769
2027-28 70 2270 Carob St End Arovista Ave E AC 461 33 16,725 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $8,195
2027-28 74 2000 Catalpa Ave Eadington Dr Oleander St E AC 1,100 37 40,478 81 27 73 0 Type II Slurry $19,834
2027-28 79 12095 Challenger St Berry St Endeavor Cir E AC 997 40 39,560 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $19,384
2027-28 79 12096 Challenger St Endeavor Cir Columbia St E AC 1,185 40 50,900 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $24,941
2027-28 81 11900 Cherry St Locust St Alder St E AC 1,200 33 42,902 80 10 86 4 Type II Slurry $21,022
2027-28 81 11910 Cherry St Alder St Spruce St E AC 700 33 23,100 65 48 52 0 Grind - AC Overlay $100,023
2027-28 81 11920 Cherry St Spruce St Peach Ave E AC 145 33 4,587 66 65 35 0 Grind - AC Overlay $19,862
2027-28 81 11930 Cherry St End Peach Ave E AC 241 33 9,729 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,767
2027-28 84 7170 Chisholm Ct End Carmichael Dr E AC 447 32 15,816 80 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $7,750
2027-28 85 6130 Cinnamon Ridge Rd Clear Springs Rd Deer Springs Ln E AC 247 16 4,147 85 27 69 4 Type II Slurry $2,032
2027-28 85 6131 Cinnamon Ridge Rd Deer Springs Ln Clear Springs Rd E AC 225 16 3,795 90 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $1,860
2027-28 85 6140 Cinnamon Ridge Rd Deer Springs Ln Associated Rd E AC 300 16 5,215 89 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,555
2027-28 85 6141 Cinnamon Ridge Rd Associated Rd Deer Springs Ln E AC 247 16 4,367 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,140
2027-28 86 7000 Citrus Pl State College Blvd Butoonwood Dr E AC 169 36 5,796 90 0 83 17 Type II Slurry $2,840
2027-28 86 7010 Citrus Pl Buttonwood Dr Buttonwood Dr E AC 186 36 6,696 91 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,281
2027-28 86 7020 Citrus Pl End Buttonwood Dr E AC 233 36 10,188 84 0 64 36 Type II Slurry $4,992
2027-28 91 6410 Cloverdale Dr Cattail Cir Harvest Ln E AAC 803 16 16,448 83 36 53 11 Type II Slurry $8,060
2027-28 91 6411 Cloverdale Dr Cloverdale Dr Harvest Ln E AAC 158 16 2,528 76 0 94 6 Type II Slurry $1,239
2027-28 91 6415 Cloverdale Dr Cattail Cir Newhaven Dr E AAC 490 16 7,840 68 22 78 0 Type II Slurry $3,842
2027-28 91 6430 Cloverdale Dr Cattail Cir Singingwood Ln E AAC 80 16 1,280 71 9 91 0 Type II Slurry $627

GREEN HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTE PROPOSED / SCHEDULED ARTERIAL/COLLECTOR SECTIONS - FY 2025-2032 Page 4 of 12



City of Brea, CA
Forecast Maintenance / Rehabilitation (FMR) Report - FY 2025-2032

Sorted by Rank, FY, Name Order (A-Z)

FY BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Maint. Type Total $ City Projected $
2027-28 91 6431 Cloverdale Dr Singingwood Ln Cattail Cir E AAC 55 16 880 74 32 68 0 Type II Slurry $431
2027-28 91 6440 Cloverdale Dr Singingwood Ln Creekwood Ct E AAC 187 16 2,992 72 53 47 0 Type II Slurry $1,466
2027-28 91 6441 Cloverdale Dr Creekwood Ct Singingwood Ln E AAC 196 16 3,136 77 12 88 0 Type II Slurry $1,537
2027-28 91 6450 Cloverdale Dr Creekwood Ct Waterwheel Ln E AAC 75 16 1,200 66 0 95 5 Cape Seal $5,196
2027-28 91 6451 Cloverdale Dr Waterwheel Ln Creekwood Ct E AAC 69 16 1,104 69 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $541
2027-28 91 6460 Cloverdale Dr Waterwheel Ln Associated Rd E AAC 111 16 1,776 78 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $870
2027-28 91 6461 Cloverdale Dr Associated Rd Waterwheel Ln E AAC 104 16 1,664 75 4 96 0 Type II Slurry $815
2027-28 92 7400 Cocao Pl Balsa Ave End E AAC 341 36 14,076 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,897
2027-28 102 7391 Coyote Canyon Way End Apricot Ave E AC 383 29 7,943 58 55 45 0 Grind - AC Overlay $34,393
2027-28 109 6280 Daisy Cir End Newhaven Dr E AAC 60 63 3,276 58 44 56 0 Grind - AC Overlay $14,185
2027-28 112 6250 Dapplegray Cir End Newhaven Dr E AAC 98 63 5,254 77 39 57 4 Type II Slurry $2,574
2027-28 113 1 Date St End Cedar Ave E AC 364 37 15,268 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $7,481
2027-28 113 3240 Date St Brea Blvd Orange Ave E AC 352 33 11,778 87 0 94 6 Type II Slurry $5,771
2027-28 113 3270 Date St Magnolia Ave Sycamore Ave E AC 317 37 11,729 82 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,747
2027-28 113 3280 Date St Sycamore Ave Redwood Ave E AC 310 37 11,470 74 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,620
2027-28 113 3290 Date St Redwood Ave Laurel Ave E AC 380 37 14,060 68 49 51 0 Grind - AC Overlay $60,880
2027-28 113 3300 Date St Laurel Ave Poplar Ave E AC 338 37 12,506 47 61 39 0 Grind - AC Overlay $54,151
2027-28 113 3310 Date St Poplar Ave Pine Ave E AC 308 37 11,396 71 52 48 0 Type II Slurry $5,584
2027-28 113 4710 Date St Elm St Oakhaven Ave E AAC 1,546 36 57,406 70 10 66 24 Type II Slurry $28,129
2027-28 113 4720 Date St Oakhaven Ave Valencia Ave E AAC 157 36 5,652 80 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,769
2027-28 114 7180 Davidson Ct End Carmichael Dr E AC 462 32 16,296 83 31 69 0 Type II Slurry $7,985
2027-28 115 10760 De Jur St Central Ave Carey Ave E AC 157 37 5,809 79 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,846
2027-28 115 10770 De Jur St Carey Ave Hodson Ave E AC 330 37 12,210 82 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,983
2027-28 115 10780 De Jur St Hodson Ave McCart Ave E AC 275 37 10,175 82 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,986
2027-28 115 10790 De Jur St McCart Ave Walling Ave E AC 345 37 12,765 80 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,255
2027-28 116 10920 De Lay St Walling Ave Southridge Dr E AC 293 37 10,545 81 0 95 5 Type II Slurry $5,167
2027-28 116 10930 De Lay St Southridge Dr Havenhurst Dr E AC 290 37 10,730 75 51 49 0 Type II Slurry $5,258
2027-28 116 10940 De Lay St Havenhurst Dr Baywood Dr E AC 545 37 21,915 71 42 58 0 Type II Slurry $10,738
2027-28 120 10690 Delta Ave Lambert Rd Beacon St E AC 628 44 27,280 70 27 73 0 Type II Slurry $13,367
2027-28 122 7310 Desert Canyon Rd Zion Canyon Way Apricot Ave E AC 470 28 12,510 61 61 39 0 Grind - AC Overlay $54,168
2027-28 122 7320 Desert Canyon Rd Apricot Ave Forbes Dr E AC 843 28 23,604 69 62 38 0 Grind - AC Overlay $102,205
2027-28 123 7315 Desert Canyon Rd FrontageDesert Canyon Rd Desert Canyon Rd E AC 151 35 5,285 66 29 70 1 Cape Seal $22,884
2027-28 126 6311 Donnybrook Rd Whispering Ln Newhaven Dr E AAC 177 16 2,832 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $1,388
2027-28 128 4230 Dover Ave Hillhaven Dr Heather Ln E AC 315 36 11,052 75 55 45 0 Type II Slurry $5,415
2027-28 132 7240 Dundee Ct End Forbes Dr E AC 609 32 21,256 76 28 67 5 Type II Slurry $10,415
2027-28 518 14210 El Temblor Ranch Dr N Belridge Terrace N Cable Canyon Pl E AC 1,437 30 43,110 82 13 77 10 Type II Slurry $21,124
2027-28 143 4670 Elm St End Date St E AAC 363 36 14,868 72 6 67 27 Type II Slurry $7,285
2027-28 144 12097 Endeavor Cir Challenger St End E AC 308 40 13,827 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,775
2027-28 147 4770 Etna Cir End Vesuvius Dr E AAC 178 36 7,920 75 14 86 0 Type II Slurry $3,881
2027-28 149 4320 Eucalyptus Ln Associated Rd Amberwick Ln E AC 653 36 23,508 81 0 78 22 Type II Slurry $11,519
2027-28 153 9040 Explorer St Apollo St Berry St E AC 1,222 36 43,396 72 30 69 1 Type II Slurry $21,264
2027-28 156 10105 Fawnridge Dr Ethelinda Way Oakknoll St E AAC 360 36 14,422 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $7,067
2027-28 161 11660 Firethorne St Juniper St Larchwood Dr E AC 642 37 27,610 77 0 95 5 Type II Slurry $13,529
2027-28 166 7190 Forbes Dr Balsa Ave Desert Canyon Rd E AC 556 36 20,016 81 18 82 0 Type II Slurry $9,808
2027-28 166 7210 Forbes Dr Dundde Ct Lennox Ct E AC 258 36 9,288 73 6 57 37 Type II Slurry $4,551
2027-28 2037 12900 Grandview Dr Valley Crossing Rd West End E AC 655 32 22,725 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $11,135
2027-28 2037 12910 Grandview Dr Valley Crossing Rd Railway Ave E AC 923 32 29,536 80 33 67 0 Type II Slurry $14,473
2027-28 2037 12920 Grandview Dr Railway Ave East End E AC 474 32 16,963 81 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $8,312
2027-28 177 4690 Greenleaf Dr Elm St Elm St E AAC 1,299 36 50,488 71 13 80 7 Type II Slurry $24,739
2027-28 183 10980 Havenhurst Dr Wickford Dr Baywood Dr E AC 292 37 10,804 81 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,294
2027-28 183 10990 Havenhurst Dr Baywood Dr Whittier Blvd E AC 266 19 5,304 70 36 58 6 Type II Slurry $2,599
2027-28 183 10991 Havenhurst Dr Whittier Blvd Baywood Dr E AC 266 19 5,304 73 0 89 11 Type II Slurry $2,599
2027-28 184 5360 Hawthorne Ave Covey Ct Woodacre St E AAC 235 32 7,520 72 17 83 0 Type II Slurry $3,685
2027-28 187 6190 Heathcliff Pl End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 112 63 5,256 78 41 59 0 Type II Slurry $2,575
2027-28 195 4420 Holly St Aurora Ave Valverde Ave E AC 1,032 36 36,864 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $18,063
2027-28 2042 13060 Landmark Ln Railway Ave Valley Crossing Rd E AC 778 32 24,896 75 61 39 0 Type II Slurry $12,199
2027-28 215 5200 Larkspur Ave Baler Ave Starflower St E AC 363 32 11,488 73 14 86 0 Type II Slurry $5,629
2027-28 225 10890 Lockhaven Dr Walling Ave Southridge Dr E AC 487 27 13,149 77 44 56 0 Type II Slurry $6,443
2027-28 225 10900 Lockhaven Dr Southridge Dr Rutledge Pl E AC 306 37 11,100 75 70 30 0 Type II Slurry $5,439
2027-28 226 11870 Locust St Brea Blvd Cherry E AC 830 33 27,126 72 35 52 13 Type II Slurry $13,292

GREEN HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTE PROPOSED / SCHEDULED ARTERIAL/COLLECTOR SECTIONS - FY 2025-2032 Page 5 of 12



City of Brea, CA
Forecast Maintenance / Rehabilitation (FMR) Report - FY 2025-2032

Sorted by Rank, FY, Name Order (A-Z)

FY BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Maint. Type Total $ City Projected $
2027-28 226 11880 Locust St Cherry Alder St E AC 808 33 26,664 76 9 91 0 Type II Slurry $13,065
2027-28 228 11140 Los Altos Dr Las Lomas Dr Alta Mesa Way E AC 433 36 16,938 76 53 47 0 Type II Slurry $8,300
2027-28 237 2690 Maple Ave Elm St Dead End E AC 780 37 28,638 80 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $14,033
2027-28 259 9010 Nibus St Capricorn St Tamarack Ave E AC 657 44 28,556 77 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $13,992
2027-28 2052 13220 Railway Ave Santa Fe Rd Whistle Train Ln E AC 214 32 6,848 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,356
2027-28 2057 13300 Santa Fe Rd Valley Crossing Rd Cardinal St E AC 1,277 36 45,972 75 56 44 0 Type II Slurry $22,526
2027-28 2057 13320 Santa Fe Rd Condor Ave Valencia Ave E AC 517 36 18,612 75 22 78 0 Type II Slurry $9,120
2027-28 2057 13330 Santa Fe Rd Railway Ave Valley Crossing Rd E AC 816 36 29,376 82 33 67 0 Type II Slurry $14,394
2027-28 2057 13340 Santa Fe Rd Merrifield Dr Railway Ave E AC 855 36 30,780 76 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $15,082
2027-28 2057 13350 Santa Fe Rd Carbon Canyon Rd Merrifield Dr E AC 871 36 31,356 75 18 82 0 Type II Slurry $15,364
2027-28 322 7290 Santiago Canyon Way End Kings Canyon Rd E AC 642 29 15,370 72 7 93 0 Type II Slurry $7,531
2027-28 324 5290 Seneca Ct End Thistle Rd E AAC 208 32 6,656 74 23 77 0 Type II Slurry $3,261
2027-28 519 14220 Shackle Line Dr E El Temblor Ranch Dr CDS (NW) E AC 870 30 26,100 82 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $12,789
2027-28 339 5240 Snowfield St Thistle Rd Baler Ave E AAC 642 32 20,544 73 19 81 0 Type II Slurry $10,067
2027-28 342 10440 Southridge Dr Lockhaven Dr Puente St E AC 257 28 7,446 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,649
2027-28 342 10441 Southridge Dr Puente St Lockhaven Dr E AC 257 28 7,446 71 54 46 0 Type II Slurry $3,649
2027-28 343 12080 Spruce St Laurel Ave Poplar Ave E AC 329 33 10,659 75 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,223
2027-28 344 4790 Spurr Cir End Vesuvius Dr E AAC 246 36 10,368 79 20 80 0 Type II Slurry $5,080
2027-28 535 14440 Stearns St CDS (W) CDS (E) P AC 1,826 40 73,040 75 14 86 0 Type II Slurry $35,790
2027-28 354 9810 Strattford St End Amber Hill Dr E AC 365 36 14,940 80 0 43 57 Type II Slurry $7,321
2027-28 356 12450 Studio Dr Aria Dr Legacy Dr E AAC 360 32 12,060 75 22 78 0 Type II Slurry $5,909
2027-28 357 6200 Summerfield Cir End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 219 44 6,733 73 52 46 2 Type II Slurry $3,299
2027-28 364 2700 Sycamore Ave Elm St Date St E AC 762 36 27,144 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $13,301
2027-28 364 2710 Sycamore Ave Date St Union Pl E AC 294 37 10,878 83 0 68 32 Type II Slurry $5,330
2027-28 2061 13430 Tangerine Pl Merriefild Dr North End E AC 558 32 19,621 73 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $9,614
2027-28 2061 13440 Tangerine Pl Merrifield Dr South End E AC 627 32 21,829 74 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $10,696
2027-28 369 5250 Thistle Rd Snowfield St Wayward Ct E AAC 247 32 7,904 73 11 89 0 Type II Slurry $3,873
2027-28 369 5260 Thistle Rd Wayward Ct Edgemont Ln E AAC 1,087 32 43,524 76 21 79 0 Type II Slurry $21,327
2027-28 2062 13461 Trolley Ct  Boxcar Ln West End E AC 597 32 20,869 74 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $10,226
2027-28 378 3320 Union Pl Magnolia Ave Sycamore Ave E AC 307 37 12,413 79 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,082
2027-28 378 3330 Union Pl Sycamore Ave Redwood Ave E AC 356 37 14,226 76 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,971
2027-28 379 13580 Valencia Ave Sandpipper Way Gate E AC 822 26 21,672 47 36 45 19 Grind - AC Overlay $93,840
2027-28 385 4800 Vesuvius Dr Tolbert St Etna Cir E AAC 238 36 8,568 72 7 93 0 Type II Slurry $4,198
2027-28 385 4810 Vesuvius Dr Etna Cir Mauna Loa St E AAC 637 36 22,932 72 7 93 0 Type II Slurry $11,237
2027-28 385 4820 Vesuvius Dr Mauna Loa St Spurr Cir E AAC 228 36 8,208 74 10 68 22 Type II Slurry $4,022
2027-28 385 4830 Vesuvius Dr Spurr Cir Rose Dr E AAC 400 36 15,984 73 11 89 0 Type II Slurry $7,832
2027-28 389 7620 Wake Forest St Cliffwood Ave Apricot Ave E AAC 263 36 9,252 84 16 84 0 Type II Slurry $4,533
2027-28 389 7630 Wake Forest St Apricot Ave Aspen St E AAC 426 36 15,336 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $7,515
2027-28 389 7640 Wake Forest St Aspen St Cycod Pl E AAC 272 36 9,792 81 20 75 5 Type II Slurry $4,798
2027-28 390 5320 Walden Rd Woodacre St Lambert Rd E AAC 146 46 5,386 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,639
2027-28 393 8850 Walnut Way Brea Blvd End E AC 661 20 12,470 60 43 56 1 Grind - AC Overlay $53,995 $500,000
2027-28 396 6370 Waterfall Ln End Newhaven Dr E AAC 306 44 9,033 73 12 88 0 Type II Slurry $4,426
2027-28 397 6150 Waterwheel Ln End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 171 44 5,703 56 52 46 2 Grind - AC Overlay $24,694
2027-28 398 5370 Wayward Ct End Thistle Rd E AAC 280 32 8,704 72 25 75 0 Type II Slurry $4,265
2027-28 148 4 Weeping Willow Rd Railway Ave Parking Lot E AC 335 31 10,385 80 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,089
2027-28 399 12280 Wesham Pl Midbury St End E AAC 170 32 6,525 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,197
2027-28 402 6330 Whispering Glen Ln Donnybrook Rd End E AC 105 63 4,561 70 78 22 0 Grind - AC Overlay $19,749
2027-28 404 11000 Wickford Dr End Havenhurst Dr E AC 313 27 10,168 81 7 93 0 Type II Slurry $4,982
2027-28 404 11010 Wickford Dr Havenhurst Dr Lockhaven Dr E AC 298 37 12,154 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,955
2027-28 407 11670 Wildrose Dr Larchwood Dr Lantana Ave E AC 874 37 39,616 77 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $19,412
2027-28 410 4350 Windermere Cir End Eucalyptus Ave E AC 151 36 9,386 80 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,599
2027-28 414 6210 Wisteria Dr End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 199 44 6,123 72 20 73 7 Type II Slurry $3,000
2027-28 415 3 Woodacre St Thistle Rd Walden Rd E AAC 280 32 8,960 64 16 84 0 Cape Seal $38,797
2027-28 415 5310 Woodacre St Walden Rd Hawthorne Ave E AAC 299 32 9,568 69 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,688
2027-28 418 6900 Woodland Ave Avocado St Redbud St E AAC 623 36 24,578 60 27 72 1 Grind - AC Overlay $106,423
2027-28 418 6910 Woodland Ave Redbud St Papaya Pl E AAC 244 36 10,934 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,358
2027-28 420 10800 Worthington St Carey Ave Hodson Ave E AC 325 37 13,775 79 24 76 0 Type II Slurry $6,750
2027-28 422 7300 Zion Canyon Way End Kings Canyon Rd E PCC 126 21 4,428 74 0 0 100 Type II Slurry $2,170

$2,262,137
2028-29 16 7330 Apricot Ave Buttonwood Dr Brookwood St E AC 279 36 9,828 77 65 31 4 Type II Slurry $5,012

GREEN HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTE PROPOSED / SCHEDULED ARTERIAL/COLLECTOR SECTIONS - FY 2025-2032 Page 6 of 12



City of Brea, CA
Forecast Maintenance / Rehabilitation (FMR) Report - FY 2025-2032

Sorted by Rank, FY, Name Order (A-Z)

FY BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Maint. Type Total $ City Projected $
2028-29 16 7340 Apricot Ave Brookwood St Silver Canyon Way E AAC 135 36 4,860 75 18 52 30 Type II Slurry $2,479
2028-29 16 7350 Apricot Ave Silver Canyon Way Laguna Canyon Way E AAC 229 36 8,244 65 27 45 28 Grind - AC Overlay $37,098
2028-29 16 7360 Apricot Ave Laguna Canyon Way Coyote Canyon Way E AAC 198 36 7,128 74 37 63 0 Type II Slurry $3,635
2028-29 16 7370 Apricot Ave Coyote Canyon Way Bryce Canyon Way E AAC 96 36 3,456 64 5 91 4 Cape Seal $15,552
2028-29 16 7380 Apricot Ave Bryce Canyon Way Desert Canyon Rd E AAC 131 28 2,968 44 59 34 7 Grind - AC Overlay $13,356
2028-29 16 7530 Apricot Ave Wake Forest St Aspen St E AAC 317 36 11,196 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,710
2028-29 16 7540 Apricot Ave Aspen St Candlewood St E AAC 305 36 10,980 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,600
2028-29 30 5220 Baler Ave Snowfield St Belmont Ct E AAC 245 32 7,840 71 10 90 0 Type II Slurry $3,998
2028-29 30 5230 Baler Ave Belmont Ct Larkspur Ave E AAC 218 32 6,976 68 14 86 0 Type II Slurry $3,558
2028-29 32 8970 Basse Ln Vanguard Way End E AC 315 40 14,427 82 0 74 26 Type II Slurry $7,358
2028-29 32 8980 Basse Ln Vanguard Way Lambert Rd E AC 385 40 15,400 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $7,854
2028-29 33 10950 Baywood Dr De Lay St Havenhurst Dr E AC 580 37 23,210 76 0 78 22 Type II Slurry $11,837
2028-29 33 10960 Baywood Dr Havenhurst Dr Puente St E AC 548 37 19,684 71 49 51 0 Type II Slurry $10,039
2028-29 36 5210 Belmont Ct End Baler Ave E AAC 260 32 8,064 67 18 82 0 Cape Seal $36,288
2028-29 37 10340 Berenice Dr Joyce Dr Joyce Dr E AC 111 36 3,996 31 54 46 0 AC Recon $59,021
2028-29 37 10350 Berenice Dr Joyce Dr Walling Ave E AC 717 36 25,812 29 63 37 0 AC Recon $381,243
2028-29 37 10560 Berenice Dr Oakcrest Ave Birchcrest Ave E AAC 385 36 16,560 98 0 65 35 Type II Slurry $8,446
2028-29 44 11590 Blossom Pl Vallejo St Sonora St E AC 994 36 37,246 52 58 29 13 Grind - AC Overlay $167,607
2028-29 44 8020 Blossom Pl End Buttonwood Dr E AC 481 36 19,116 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $9,749
2028-29 44 8030 Blossom Pl State College Blvd Buttonwood Dr E AC 235 36 8,460 90 0 52 48 Type II Slurry $4,315
2028-29 2030 12725 Blue Jay Dr Pheasant Ln Hawks Dr E AC 476 30 14,280 85 40 60 0 Type II Slurry $7,283
2028-29 47 7280 Bonita Canyon Way End Kings Canyon Rd E AC 460 28 10,136 64 11 70 19 Cape Seal $45,612
2028-29 49 8840 Bracken St Brea Blvd Madrona Ave E AC 233 32 7,200 82 0 97 3 Type II Slurry $3,672
2028-29 2033 12750 Brea Hills Ave Carbon Canyon Rd Hillside Rd E AC 1,159 32 39,458 68 31 69 0 Grind - AC Overlay $177,561
2028-29 54 7990 Brookshire Pl Evening Canyon Grand Canyon Rd E AC 462 32 14,784 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $7,540
2028-29 55 6260 Brookside Ln End Newhaven Dr E AAC 261 44 8,109 70 21 73 6 Type II Slurry $4,136
2028-29 57 7392 Bryce Canyon Way End Apricot Ave E AC 220 21 2,688 25 91 7 2 AC Recon $39,702
2028-29 58 7160 Buchanan Ct End Carmichael Dr E AC 498 32 17,448 75 56 44 0 Type II Slurry $8,898
2028-29 60 7040 Buttonwood Dr citrus Pl Olive Ave E AC 304 36 10,728 88 0 97 3 Type II Slurry $5,471
2028-29 60 8050 Buttonwood Dr Balsa Ave Apricot Ave E AC 1,030 36 36,864 87 0 46 54 Type II Slurry $18,801
2028-29 60 8090 Buttonwood Dr Lotus Pl Blossom Pl E AC 333 36 11,772 83 0 38 62 Type II Slurry $6,004
2028-29 190 12650 Hickory St Pine Ave Maple Ave E AC 265 33 8,481 62 67 33 0 Grind - AC Overlay $38,165
2028-29 190 12660 Hickory St Maple Ave Cedar Ave E AC 294 33 9,438 53 69 31 0 Grind - AC Overlay $42,471
2028-29 194 10820 Hodson Ave City Limit Worthington St E AC 119 37 4,107 77 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,095
2028-29 194 10830 Hodson Ave Worthington St De Jur St E AC 362 37 13,098 80 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,680
2028-29 199 2300 Jasmine Dr End Lime St E AC 376 33 14,176 82 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $7,230
2028-29 199 2310 Jasmine Dr Lime St Oleander St E AC 845 33 27,885 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $14,221
2028-29 199 2320 Jasmine Dr Oleander St Imperial Frontage E AC 211 33 6,765 84 17 81 2 Type II Slurry $3,450
2028-29 206 7250 Kings Canyon Rd Zion Canyon Way Santiago Canyon Way E AC 293 29 7,847 61 35 65 0 Cape Seal $35,312
2028-29 206 7260 Kings Canyon Rd Santiago Canyon Way Bonita Canyon Way E AC 164 19 3,566 65 30 58 12 Grind - AC Overlay $16,047
2028-29 206 7270 Kings Canyon Rd End Bonita Canyon Way E AC 471 19 9,799 52 52 47 1 Grind - AC Overlay $44,096
2028-29 211 7393 Laguna Canyon Way End Apricot Ave E AC 446 29 9,770 60 43 51 6 Grind - AC Overlay $43,965
2028-29 213 11680 Lantana Ave Juniper St Wildrose Dr E AC 753 37 27,861 76 0 98 2 Type II Slurry $14,209
2028-29 213 11690 Lantana Ave Wildrose Dr Acacia St E AC 315 37 11,655 76 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,944
2028-29 213 11700 Lantana Ave Acacia St Larchwood Dr E AC 276 37 10,212 78 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,208
2028-29 213 11710 Lantana Ave Larchwood Dr Fir St E AC 221 37 10,477 78 14 83 3 Type II Slurry $5,343
2028-29 214 11630 Larchwood Dr Juniper St Firethorne St E AC 262 37 9,694 75 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,944
2028-29 214 11640 Larchwood Dr Firethorne St Wildrose Dr E AC 270 37 9,990 74 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,095
2028-29 214 11650 Larchwood Dr Wildrose Dr Lantana Ave E AC 1,261 37 46,657 80 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $23,795
2028-29 2043 13070 Lark Ln Santa Fe Rd Starling Wy E AC 151 46 6,946 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,542
2028-29 2043 13080 Lark Ln Starling wy Sandpiper Wy E AC 583 32 19,906 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $10,152
2028-29 218 2425 Laurel Ave City Limit Alder St E AC 155 33 5,115 74 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,609
2028-29 218 2440 Laurel Ave Spruce St Elm St E AC 693 33 22,869 67 39 61 0 Cape Seal $102,911
2028-29 218 2450 Laurel Ave Elm St Date St E AC 672 31 20,646 69 45 55 0 Grind - AC Overlay $92,907
2028-29 218 2460 Laurel Ave Date St Imperial Hwy E AC 644 31 20,466 69 52 47 1 Grind - AC Overlay $92,097
2028-29 218 2470 Laurel Ave Imperial Hwy Madison Way E AC 445 32 14,240 69 64 36 0 Grind - AC Overlay $64,080
2028-29 218 2480 Laurel Ave Madison Way Birch St E AC 810 32 25,728 82 53 47 0 Type II Slurry $13,121
2028-29 218 2490 Laurel Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 489 32 15,264 74 50 50 0 Type II Slurry $7,785
2028-29 220 2260 Lemon St End Arovista Ave E AC 465 33 16,857 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $8,597
2028-29 223 2280 Lime St Arovista Ave Jasmine Dr E AC 713 33 23,331 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $11,899

GREEN HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTE PROPOSED / SCHEDULED ARTERIAL/COLLECTOR SECTIONS - FY 2025-2032 Page 7 of 12



City of Brea, CA
Forecast Maintenance / Rehabilitation (FMR) Report - FY 2025-2032

Sorted by Rank, FY, Name Order (A-Z)

FY BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Maint. Type Total $ City Projected $
2028-29 223 2290 Lime St End Jasmine Dr E AC 158 32 6,824 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,480
2028-29 238 2210 Mariner St Arovista Ave Arovista Cir E AC 130 44 5,720 69 0 50 50 Type II Slurry $2,917
2028-29 238 2220 Mariner St Arovista Cir Viking Ave E AC 318 44 13,992 73 13 69 18 Type II Slurry $7,136
2028-29 238 2230 Mariner St Viking Ave Property Line E AC 162 44 7,128 70 4 62 34 Type II Slurry $3,635
2028-29 238 2235 Mariner St Puente St Arovista Ave E AC 1,446 48 69,408 71 0 64 36 Type II Slurry $35,398
2028-29 246 8960 Mercury Ln Berry St End E AC 932 46 44,357 72 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $22,622
2028-29 257 10700 Neptune Ave Beacon St Columbia St E AC 1,190 44 52,360 61 49 51 0 Grind - AC Overlay $235,620
2028-29 300 230 Puente St Whittier Blvd El Encanto Dr E AC 442 37 16,354 82 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $8,341
2028-29 300 240 Puente St El Encanto Dr Alta Mesa Way E AC 729 37 26,973 79 21 53 26 Type II Slurry $13,756
2028-29 300 250 Puente St Alta Mesa Way Northwood Ave E AC 275 48 13,200 90 22 78 0 Type II Slurry $6,732
2028-29 300 260 Puente St Northwood Ave Woodcrest Ave E AC 921 48 44,208 82 12 86 2 Type II Slurry $22,546
2028-29 300 270 Puente St Woodcrest Ave City Limit E AAC 408 48 19,584 87 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $9,988
2028-29 383 8990 Vanguard Way Berry St Basse Ln E AC 1,253 40 49,800 76 31 49 20 Type II Slurry $25,398
2028-29 386 2240 Viking Ave Imperial Hwy Mariner St E AC 482 41 18,930 74 10 76 14 Type II Slurry $9,654
2028-29 386 2250 Viking Ave Mariner St End E AC 671 41 28,286 71 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $14,426

$2,274,051
2029-30 5 12510 Allyson Ct Roscoe St End E AC 257 32 9,736 87 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,160
2029-30 6 3820 Almond Dr Oak Pl Olive Pl E AC 881 33 32,573 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $17,264
2029-30 423 4260 Amberwick Ln Hillhaven Dr Heather Ln E AC 279 36 9,756 87 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,171
2029-30 423 4270 Amberwick Ln End Heather Ln E AAC 251 36 10,836 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,743
2029-30 22 12340 Arthur Dr Oakcrest Ave End E AC 646 36 25,056 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $13,280
2029-30 56 7390 Brookwood St Apricot Ave Balsa Ave E AC 1,019 36 36,252 87 0 72 28 Type II Slurry $19,214
2029-30 63 7480 Candlewood St Balsa Ave End E AAC 658 36 25,488 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $13,509
2029-30 63 7590 Candlewood St Cliffwood Ave Apricot Ave E AAC 247 36 8,676 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,598
2029-30 63 7600 Candlewood St Apricot Ave Cashew Ave E AAC 965 36 34,740 85 0 79 21 Type II Slurry $18,412
2029-30 64 7842 Canyon Country Rd Grand Canyon Rd Glen Canyon Way E AC 478 36 20,076 85 0 60 40 Type II Slurry $10,640
2029-30 64 7844 Canyon Country Rd Stone Canyon Way Shadow Canyon Way E AC 409 36 14,724 87 0 92 8 Type II Slurry $7,804
2029-30 64 7845 Canyon Country Rd Shadow Canyon Rd Malibu Canyon Rd E AC 444 36 15,984 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $8,472
2029-30 64 7850 Canyon Country Rd Canyon Country Rd Canyon Country Rd E AC 278 17 4,726 87 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,505
2029-30 68 10250 Carlson Dr Carlson Dr End E AC 209 36 9,324 87 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,942
2029-30 72 7490 Cashew Ave Lambert Rd Wake Forest St E AAC 158 36 5,472 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,900
2029-30 72 7500 Cashew Ave Wake Forest St Candlewood St E AC 298 36 10,728 86 0 96 4 Type II Slurry $5,686
2029-30 76 2580 Cedar Ave End Pine Ave E AC 109 46 5,014 76 23 55 22 Type II Slurry $2,657
2029-30 76 2590 Cedar Ave Pine Ave Maple Ave E AC 340 37 12,284 66 53 47 0 Grind - AC Overlay $57,489
2029-30 76 2600 Cedar Ave Maple Ave Hickory St E AC 728 37 30,140 78 36 64 0 Type II Slurry $15,974
2029-30 76 2610 Cedar Ave Hickory St Elm St E AC 280 37 10,360 68 56 44 0 Type II Slurry $5,491
2029-30 76 2670 Cedar Ave Date St End E AC 438 37 17,206 74 41 59 0 Grind - AC Overlay $80,524
2029-30 76 2680 Cedar Ave Elm St Date St E AC 294 37 10,878 81 24 76 0 Type II Slurry $5,765
2029-30 424 13005 Cedarwood Ct Whispering Willow End E AAC 720 36 25,920 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $13,738
2029-30 2012 12790 Charleston Wy Tremaine Rd Johnson Ln E AC 578 27 15,606 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $8,271
2029-30 2012 12800 Charleston Wy Johnson Ln Reynoso Pk E AC 388 27 10,476 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,552
2029-30 83 4300 Chevy Chase Dr Associated Rd Dover Ave E AC 403 36 14,508 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $7,689
2029-30 83 4310 Chevy Chase Dr Dover Ave Windermere Cir E AC 583 36 23,138 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $12,263
2029-30 103 12470 Craftsman Cir Arts Ave End E AAC 420 32 15,048 88 19 81 0 Type II Slurry $7,975
2029-30 111 12360 Daniel Ct Woodcrest Ave End E AC 145 36 6,732 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,568
2029-30 126 6310 Donnybrook Rd Newhaven Dr Whispering Glen Ln E AAC 177 16 2,832 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $1,501
2029-30 128 4240 Dover Ave Heather Cir Chevy Chase Dr E AC 359 36 12,636 85 13 87 0 Type II Slurry $6,697
2029-30 129 4130 Dover Cir End Westmoreland Dr E AC 505 36 23,992 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $12,716
2029-30 136 7980 Echo Canyon Pl Evening Canyon Rd Grand Canyon Rd E AC 254 32 7,872 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,172
2029-30 137 9830 Eden Way Strattford St Robert Ct E AC 281 36 10,116 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,361
2029-30 142 4700 Elm Cir End Elm St E AAC 167 66 11,022 70 29 71 0 Type II Slurry $5,842
2029-30 143 3070 Elm St Sievers Ave Madrona Ave E AC 362 31 11,036 83 24 68 8 Type II Slurry $5,849
2029-30 143 3080 Elm St Madrona Ave Walnut Ave E AC 362 28 9,716 83 0 90 10 Type II Slurry $5,149
2029-30 143 3100 Elm St Brea Blvd Orange Ave E AC 352 37 12,210 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,471
2029-30 143 3110 Elm St Orange Ave Flower Ave E AC 330 37 12,210 91 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,471
2029-30 143 3120 Elm St Flower Ave Magnolia Ave E AC 378 37 13,986 87 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $7,413
2029-30 143 3140 Elm St Sycamore Ave Laurel Ave E AC 698 37 25,826 88 0 55 45 Type II Slurry $13,688
2029-30 143 3150 Elm St Laurel Ave Poplar Ave E AC 325 37 12,025 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,373
2029-30 143 3160 Elm St Poplar Ave Maple Ave E AC 693 37 25,641 74 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $13,590
2029-30 143 3170 Elm St Maple Ave Cedar Ave E AC 348 37 12,876 70 8 92 0 Type II Slurry $6,824

GREEN HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTE PROPOSED / SCHEDULED ARTERIAL/COLLECTOR SECTIONS - FY 2025-2032 Page 8 of 12



City of Brea, CA
Forecast Maintenance / Rehabilitation (FMR) Report - FY 2025-2032

Sorted by Rank, FY, Name Order (A-Z)

FY BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Maint. Type Total $ City Projected $
2029-30 143 3180 Elm St Cedar Ave State College Blvd E AC 666 37 24,642 75 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $13,060
2029-30 143 4620 Elm St Valencia Ave Oakhaven Ave E AAC 161 36 5,796 88 18 82 0 Type II Slurry $3,072
2029-30 143 4630 Elm St Oakhaven Ave Greenleaf Dr E AAC 289 36 10,404 77 21 76 3 Type II Slurry $5,514
2029-30 143 4640 Elm St Greenleaf Dr Elm Cir E AAC 345 36 12,420 77 8 92 0 Type II Slurry $6,583
2029-30 143 4650 Elm St Elm Cir Greenleaf Dr E AAC 565 36 20,340 71 21 79 0 Type II Slurry $10,780
2029-30 143 4660 Elm St Greenleaf Dr Date St E AAC 600 36 21,600 62 47 53 0 Grind - AC Overlay $101,088
2029-30 149 4330 Eucalyptus Ln Amberwick Ln Windermere Cir E AC 256 36 11,366 84 0 98 2 Type II Slurry $6,024
2029-30 151 7920 Evening Canyon Rd Brookshire Pl Echo Canyon Pl E AC 264 32 8,448 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,477
2029-30 159 6990 Filbert Pl End Pomelo Ave E AAC 450 36 17,712 80 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $9,387
2029-30 160 11840 Fir St Brea Blvd Magnolia Ave E AC 402 33 12,804 82 2 81 17 Type II Slurry $6,786
2029-30 160 11850 Fir St Magnolia Ave Alder St E AC 1,102 33 36,102 77 3 97 0 Type II Slurry $19,134
2029-30 160 11860 Fir St Alder St End E AC 252 33 9,828 79 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,209
2029-30 163 2750 Flower Ave Elm St Date St E AC 692 37 25,604 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $13,570
2029-30 166 7200 Forbes Dr Desert Canyon Rd Dundee Ct E AC 238 36 8,568 85 38 62 0 Type II Slurry $4,541
2029-30 166 7220 Forbes Dr End Lennox Ct E AC 685 36 26,460 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $14,024
2029-30 175 7950 Grand Canyon Rd Echo Canyon Pl Evening Canyon Rd E AC 603 32 18,976 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $10,057
2029-30 175 7960 Grand Canyon Rd Evening Canyon Canyon Country Rd E AC 487 32 15,328 87 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $8,124
2029-30 175 8000 Grand Canyon Rd Brookshire Pl Echo Canyon Pl E AC 380 32 12,160 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,445
2029-30 179 6880 Guava Pl End Avocado E AAC 357 36 14,364 88 0 96 4 Type II Slurry $7,613
2029-30 181 6220 Harvest Ln End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 222 44 6,829 87 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,619
2029-30 188 4250 Heather Cir End Dover Ave E AC 331 36 13,716 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $7,269
2029-30 189 4280 Heather Ln Amberwick Ln Devonshire E AC 250 36 10,862 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,757
2029-30 198 3750 Jacaranda Pl Cottonwood Dr Pepperwood Dr E AC 226 33 8,676 84 47 53 0 Type II Slurry $4,598
2029-30 219 12460 Legacy Dr Studio Dr Arts Ave E AAC 420 34 14,550 86 24 76 0 Type II Slurry $7,712
2029-30 221 7230 Lennox Ct End Forbes Dr E AC 447 32 16,072 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $8,518
2029-30 225 10910 Lockhaven Dr Rutledge Pl Wickford Dr E AC 332 37 13,634 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $7,226
2029-30 232 3540 Madison Way Laurel Ave Poplar Ave E AC 341 36 11,988 85 0 90 10 Type II Slurry $6,354
2029-30 233 3000 Madrona Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 578 36 18,358 93 0 93 7 Type II Slurry $9,730
2029-30 233 8860 Madrona Ave End Napoli Dr E AC 343 36 14,004 67 49 51 0 Grind - AC Overlay $65,539
2029-30 233 8870 Madrona Ave Napoli Dr Bracken St E AC 435 36 15,660 72 52 45 3 Grind - AC Overlay $73,289
2029-30 233 8880 Madrona Ave Bracken St Cypress St E AC 410 36 14,760 51 61 34 5 Grind - AC Overlay $69,077
2029-30 233 8890 Madrona Ave Cypress St Lambert Rd E AC 390 36 13,230 70 48 51 1 Grind - AC Overlay $61,916
2029-30 234 12020 Magnolia Ave Fir St Alder St E AC 1,150 33 37,422 78 9 89 2 Type II Slurry $19,834
2029-30 234 12050 Magnolia Ave Elm St Date St E AC 711 37 26,307 71 38 62 0 Type II Slurry $13,943
2029-30 234 12060 Magnolia Ave Date St Union Pl E AC 271 37 11,081 80 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,873
2029-30 237 2560 Maple Ave City Limit Cedar Ave E AC 161 33 5,313 100 0 85 15 Type II Slurry $2,816
2029-30 237 2570 Maple Ave Cedar Ave Hickory St E AC 557 33 18,381 81 21 79 0 Type II Slurry $9,742
2029-30 240 99996 Mason Ct Birch St End E AC 177 43 6,995 70 64 36 0 Grind - AC Overlay $32,737
2029-30 250 3990 Moorpark Dr Brittany Ln Larkstone Ln E AC 979 36 39,544 86 63 37 0 Type II Slurry $20,958
2029-30 264 3780 Oak Pl Willow Dr Almond Dr E AC 365 33 12,392 86 32 68 0 Type II Slurry $6,568
2029-30 275 2800 Orange Ave Elm St Date St E AC 671 36 23,940 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $12,688
2029-30 275 2810 Orange Ave Date St Imperial Hwy E AC 652 36 23,472 83 0 75 25 Type II Slurry $12,440
2029-30 275 2820 Orange Ave Imperial Hwy Birch St E AAC 672 32 21,248 81 48 33 19 Type II Slurry $11,261
2029-30 275 2830 Orange Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 680 32 21,504 61 66 34 0 Grind - AC Overlay $100,639
2029-30 275 2840 Orange Ave Ash St Property Line E AC 688 36 24,768 63 71 29 0 Grind - AC Overlay $115,914
2029-30 275 8680 Orange Ave Cypress St Lambert Rd E AC 707 36 25,092 73 60 17 23 Grind - AC Overlay $117,431
2029-30 275 8685 Orange Ave Cypress St End E AC 370 36 14,832 92 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $7,861
2029-30 280 6970 Palmetto Pl End Pomelo Ave E AAC 493 36 19,260 86 0 97 3 Type II Slurry $10,208
2029-30 289 3770 Pepperwood Dr Pecan Pl Jacaranda Pl E AC 489 33 17,487 87 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $9,268
2029-30 2051 13200 Pheasant Ln Blue Jay Dr West End E AC 327 30 9,810 87 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,199
2029-30 296 6930 Pomelo Ave Avocado St Filbert Pl E AAC 246 36 11,006 82 12 88 0 Type II Slurry $5,833
2029-30 296 6940 Pomelo Ave Filbert Pl Sungrove Pl E AAC 252 36 9,072 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,808
2029-30 296 6950 Pomelo Ave Sungrove Pl Palmetto Pl E AAC 253 36 9,108 87 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,827
2029-30 296 6960 Pomelo Ave Palmetto Pl Lambert Rd E AAC 234 36 6,924 75 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,670
2029-30 298 2500 Poplar Ave Alder St Spruce St E AC 522 36 20,792 72 27 73 0 Type II Slurry $11,020
2029-30 298 2510 Poplar Ave Spruce St Elm St E AC 687 37 25,419 74 33 67 0 Type II Slurry $13,472
2029-30 298 2520 Poplar Ave Elm St Date St E AC 660 37 24,198 72 7 91 2 Type II Slurry $12,825
2029-30 298 3370 Poplar Ave Imperial Hwy Madison Way E AC 587 32 18,272 83 49 51 0 Type II Slurry $9,684
2029-30 298 3380 Poplar Ave Madison Way Birch St E AC 739 32 23,392 87 0 96 4 Type II Slurry $12,398
2029-30 298 3390 Poplar Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 347 36 12,492 92 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,621

GREEN HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTE PROPOSED / SCHEDULED ARTERIAL/COLLECTOR SECTIONS - FY 2025-2032 Page 9 of 12



City of Brea, CA
Forecast Maintenance / Rehabilitation (FMR) Report - FY 2025-2032

Sorted by Rank, FY, Name Order (A-Z)

FY BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Maint. Type Total $ City Projected $
2029-30 298 3400 Poplar Ave Ash St Willow Dr E AC 291 36 10,476 91 29 71 0 Type II Slurry $5,552
2029-30 298 3410 Poplar Ave Willow Dr Cottonwood Dr E AC 287 36 10,332 83 48 44 8 Type II Slurry $5,476
2029-30 298 3420 Poplar Ave Cottonwood Dr Paseo De Toner E AC 325 36 13,500 87 0 96 4 Type II Slurry $7,155
2029-30 2052 13210 Railway Ave Santa Fe Rd Landmark Ln E AC 528 32 16,896 85 24 76 0 Type II Slurry $8,955
2029-30 305 3480 Randolph Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 350 37 12,950 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,864
2029-30 305 3490 Randolph Ave Ash St Willow Dr E AC 354 37 13,098 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,942
2029-30 305 3500 Randolph Ave Willow Dr Willow Dr E AC 238 36 8,568 91 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,541
2029-30 305 3510 Randolph Ave Willow Dr Cottonwood Dr E AC 106 37 3,922 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,079
2029-30 305 3520 Randolph Ave End Cottonwood Dr E AC 404 37 16,635 84 49 51 0 Type II Slurry $8,817
2029-30 2025 13240 Reynoso Pk Skyler Wy Jones Dr E AC 371 30 11,130 87 0 29 71 Type II Slurry $5,899
2029-30 323 4590 Saturn St Kraemer Blvd Imperial Hwy E AC 2,797 46 128,662 75 12 75 13 Type II Slurry $68,191
2029-30 323 4600 Saturn St Imperial Hwy Orbiter St E AC 1,163 46 53,498 65 69 29 2 Grind - AC Overlay $250,371
2029-30 342 10430 Southridge Dr De Lay St Lockhaven Dr E AC 934 37 35,662 84 5 68 27 Type II Slurry $18,901
2029-30 359 14460 Sunflower St Lambert Rd Stearns St P AC 172 40 6,880 85 36 64 0 Type II Slurry $3,646
2029-30 360 6980 Sungrove Pl End Pomelo Ave E AAC 461 36 18,108 87 0 98 2 Type II Slurry $9,597
2029-30 425 13001 Sunrose Ct Cederwood Ct End E AAC 220 36 9,370 87 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,966
2029-30 364 2720 Sycamore Ave Union Pl Imperial Hwy E AC 315 37 11,655 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,177
2029-30 2063 13480 Valley Crossing Rd Santa Fe Rd Landmark Ln E AC 526 32 16,832 84 13 87 0 Type II Slurry $8,921
2029-30 2063 13490 Valley Crossing Rd Landmark Ln Dr South End E AC 300 32 9,600 86 16 84 0 Type II Slurry $5,088
2029-30 389 7650 Wake Forest St Cycod Pl Cashew Ave E AAC 233 36 8,388 87 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,446
2029-30 390 14450 Walden Rd Lambert Rd Stearns St P AC 157 40 6,280 88 33 67 0 Type II Slurry $3,328
2029-30 2064 13500 Whistle Train Rd Valley Crossing Rd West End E AC 515 32 16,480 87 0 75 25 Type II Slurry $8,734
2029-30 2064 13510 Whistle Train Rd Boxcar Ln Valley Crossing Rd E AC 800 32 26,850 88 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $14,231

$2,135,879
2030-31 256 4870 Nasa St End Surveyor Ave E AC 375 46 18,337 56 64 9 27 Grind - AC Overlay $88,751
2030-31 256 4880 Nasa St Surveyor Ave Valencia Ave E AC 589 46 27,094 33 58 19 23 Grind - AC Overlay $131,135
2030-31 266 4680 Oakhaven Ave Elm St Date St E AAC 980 36 34,992 72 24 76 0 Grind - AC Overlay $169,361
2030-31 271 11500 Olinda Dr Carbon Canyon Rd Olinda Pl E AC 493 36 17,748 61 28 38 34 Grind - AC Overlay $85,900
2030-31 271 11510 Olinda Dr Olinda Pl Verbana Ln E AC 679 36 24,444 63 52 48 0 Grind - AC Overlay $118,309
2030-31 271 11520 Olinda Dr Verbana Ln Buckthorn Dr E AC 360 36 12,960 73 32 65 3 Grind - AC Overlay $62,726
2030-31 271 11530 Olinda Dr Buckthorn Dr City Limit E AC 1,325 36 47,700 59 29 51 20 Grind - AC Overlay $230,868
2030-31 272 11410 Olinda Pl Carbon Canyon Rd Lilac Ln E AC 295 36 10,620 63 50 50 0 Grind - AC Overlay $51,401
2030-31 299 5080 Primrose Ave Starflower St Foxglove St E AC 186 32 5,952 94 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,274
2030-31 299 5090 Primrose Ave Foxglove St Wintergreen St E AC 293 32 9,376 94 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,157
2030-31 299 5100 Primrose Ave End Wintergreen St E AC 478 32 17,064 93 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $9,385
2030-31 306 4930 Ranger Ave End Enterprise St E AC 350 46 17,187 44 70 24 6 Grind - AC Overlay $83,185
2030-31 306 4940 Ranger Ave Enterprise St Birch St E AC 619 46 28,474 47 57 37 6 Grind - AC Overlay $137,814
2030-31 373 4740 Tolbert St End Mujica Pl E AAC 261 36 11,196 81 10 90 0 Type II Slurry $6,158
2030-31 373 4750 Tolbert St Mujica Pl Vesuvius Dr E AAC 261 36 9,180 71 11 56 33 Grind - AC Overlay $44,431
2030-31 373 4760 Tolbert St Vesuvius Dr Mauna Loa St E AAC 363 36 15,218 73 11 87 2 Type II Slurry $8,370
2030-31 388 4900 Voyager Ave Enterprise St Birch St E AC 595 46 26,995 36 80 19 1 Grind - AC Overlay $130,656
2030-31 413 5120 Wintergreen St End Primrose Ave E AC 261 32 10,120 94 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,566

$1,372,447
2031-32 21 9190 Arrowwood Dr Glenoaks St Pineridge St E AC 232 37 8,584 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,893
2031-32 21 9200 Arrowwood Dr Pineridge St Nutwood St E AC 813 37 29,785 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $16,977
2031-32 21 9210 Arrowwood Dr Nutwood St Tamarack Ave E AC 1,558 37 57,646 80 0 96 4 Type II Slurry $32,858
2031-32 521 14240 Belridge Terrace N Tonner Ridge Dr E Ojai Dr E AC 884 30 26,520 85 0 90 10 Type II Slurry $15,116
2031-32 108 8690 Cypress St End Orange Ave E AC 244 44 11,137 76 26 44 30 Type II Slurry $6,348
2031-32 108 8700 Cypress St Orange Ave Brea Blvd E AC 343 44 15,092 84 0 31 69 Type II Slurry $8,602
2031-32 108 8710 Cypress St Brea Blvd Madrona Ave E AC 272 32 7,954 85 0 42 58 Type II Slurry $4,534
2031-32 110 8820 Dalewood Pl Pepper Tree Dr End E AAC 420 36 16,632 78 0 94 6 Type II Slurry $9,480
2031-32 131 7720 Driftwood Pl Driftwood Ave Driftwood Ave E PCC 117 20 2,840 72 63 18 19 Grind - AC Overlay $14,370
2031-32 131 9120 Driftwood Pl End Ponderosa Ave E AC 406 37 16,746 89 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $9,545
2031-32 135 8810 Eastwood Pl Pepper Tree Dr End E AAC 522 36 20,304 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $11,573
2031-32 152 9220 Evergreen Dr Pineridge St Nutwood St E AC 565 36 20,044 76 9 91 0 Type II Slurry $11,425
2031-32 152 9230 Evergreen Dr Nutwood St Tamarack Ave E AC 1,112 37 40,552 78 23 77 0 Type II Slurry $23,115
2031-32 173 9320 Glenoaks St Site Dr Arrowwood Dr E AC 139 37 5,143 76 44 56 0 Type II Slurry $2,932
2031-32 173 9330 Glenoaks St Arrowwood Dr Lynwood Dr E AC 634 37 23,162 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $13,202
2031-32 173 9340 Glenoaks St Lynwood Dr Tamarack Ave E AC 243 37 8,695 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,956
2031-32 185 9130 Hazelwood Pl End Ponderosa Ave E AC 429 37 17,597 84 0 95 5 Type II Slurry $10,030

GREEN HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTE PROPOSED / SCHEDULED ARTERIAL/COLLECTOR SECTIONS - FY 2025-2032 Page 10 of 12



City of Brea, CA
Forecast Maintenance / Rehabilitation (FMR) Report - FY 2025-2032

Sorted by Rank, FY, Name Order (A-Z)

FY BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Maint. Type Total $ City Projected $
2031-32 231 9180 Lynwood Dr Tamarack Ave Glenoaks St E AC 733 37 30,325 73 35 43 22 Grind - AC Overlay $153,445
2031-32 235 7810 Malibu Canyon Rd End Shadow Canyon Rd E AC 515 29 12,762 93 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $7,274
2031-32 235 7820 Malibu Canyon Rd Shadow Canyon Rd Malibu Canyon Way E AC 209 29 6,061 93 0 96 4 Type II Slurry $3,455
2031-32 235 7830 Malibu Canyon Rd Malibu Canyon Way Canyon Country Rd E AC 426 29 11,513 93 0 60 40 Type II Slurry $6,562
2031-32 235 7840 Malibu Canyon Rd End Malibu Canyon Way E PCC 149 29 6,059 64 12 0 88 Grind - AC Overlay $30,659
2031-32 2022 13100 Matthews Ln Charleston Wy Salveson Rd E AC 361 30 10,830 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,173
2031-32 243 10840 McCart Ave City Limit De Jur St E AC 470 37 17,390 82 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $9,912
2031-32 244 10845 McCart Cir McCart Ave End E AC 107 37 5,497 80 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,133
2031-32 245 6290 Meadowcreek Rd End Newhaven Dr E AAC 83 63 4,329 80 0 89 11 Type II Slurry $2,468
2031-32 245 6340 Meadowcreek Rd Newhaven Dr Associated Rd E AAC 300 16 5,550 73 18 82 0 Type II Slurry $3,164
2031-32 245 6341 Meadowcreek Rd Associated Rd Newhaven Dr E AAC 300 16 5,550 80 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,164
2031-32 245 6350 Meadowcreek Rd End Meadowcreek Rd E AAC 74 63 3,858 82 46 54 0 Type II Slurry $2,199
2031-32 245 6360 Meadowcreek Rd Meadowcreek Rd End E AAC 85 63 4,351 65 68 32 0 Grind - AC Overlay $17,404
2031-32 2044 13110 Merrifield Dr Santa Fe Rd Tangerine Pl E AC 218 32 6,976 69 21 79 0 Type II Slurry $3,976
2031-32 247 12630 Midbury St Puente St Wesham Pl E AAC 726 32 22,976 80 0 97 3 Type II Slurry $13,096
2031-32 247 12640 Midbury St Wesham Pl Alwick Pl E AAC 293 32 11,126 76 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,342
2031-32 248 10010 Mooncrest Cir End Fawnridge Dr E AAC 379 36 15,156 84 12 69 19 Type II Slurry $8,639
2031-32 251 5170 Morning Glory St End Flowerhill St E AC 606 32 21,160 94 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $12,061
2031-32 251 5180 Morning Glory St Flowerhill St Property Line E AC 543 32 19,144 93 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $10,912
2031-32 254 11760 Mulberry Ave Juniper St Acacia St E AC 670 33 21,912 90 0 93 7 Type II Slurry $12,490
2031-32 254 11770 Mulberry Ave Acacia St Chestnut Ave E AC 198 33 6,534 91 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,724
2031-32 254 11780 Mulberry Ave Chestnut Ave Fir St E AC 512 33 16,632 89 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $9,480
2031-32 254 2410 Mulberry Ave Juniper St City Limit E AC 139 33 4,389 58 71 15 14 Grind - AC Overlay $22,208
2031-32 501 14000 Newhall Terrace CARMICHAEL DR CDS (N) E AC 678 36 4,068 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,319
2031-32 501 14010 Newhall Terrace CARMICHAEL DR CDS (W) E AC 715 36 4,288 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,444
2031-32 258 6500 Newhaven Dr Donnybrook Rd Morningflower Cir E AAC 158 16 4,128 82 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,353
2031-32 258 6510 Newhaven Dr Morningflower Cir Meadowcreek Rd E AAC 247 32 7,904 79 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,505
2031-32 258 6520 Newhaven Dr Meadowcreek Rd Waterfall Ln E AAC 317 16 5,072 81 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,891
2031-32 258 6530 Newhaven Dr Waterfall Ln Brookside Ln E AAC 249 16 3,984 80 34 62 4 Type II Slurry $2,271
2031-32 258 6540 Newhaven Dr Brookside Ln Dapplegray Cir E AAC 191 16 3,056 76 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $1,742
2031-32 258 6550 Newhaven Dr Dapplegray Cir Strawberry Ln E AAC 54 32 1,728 62 0 97 3 Grind - AC Overlay $6,912
2031-32 258 6560 Newhaven Dr Strawberry Ln Acorn Cir E AAC 189 16 3,024 69 7 91 2 Type II Slurry $1,724
2031-32 258 6570 Newhaven Dr Acorn Cir Cloverdale Dr E AAC 38 17 646 82 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $368
2031-32 258 6590 Newhaven Dr Appleblossom Cir Daisy Cir E AAC 267 16 4,272 75 33 67 0 Grind - AC Overlay $21,616
2031-32 258 6600 Newhaven Dr Waterfall Dr Brookside Ln E AAC 236 16 3,776 74 9 28 63 Type II Slurry $2,152
2031-32 258 6601 Newhaven Dr Apple Blossom Cir Dapplegray Cir E AAC 250 16 4,000 70 41 58 1 Grind - AC Overlay $20,240
2031-32 261 11256 Northwood Ave Dorothy Dr Old Mill Dr E AC 503 21 13,503 88 0 96 4 Type II Slurry $7,697
2031-32 261 11262 Northwood Ave Berry St End E AC 473 32 15,963 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $9,099
2031-32 262 9270 Nutwood St Site Dr Arrowwood Dr E AC 186 37 6,882 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,923
2031-32 262 9280 Nutwood St Arrowwood Dr Evergreen Dr E AC 296 37 10,952 74 30 70 0 Grind - AC Overlay $55,417
2031-32 262 9290 Nutwood St Evergreen Dr Tamarack Ave E AC 1,178 37 43,586 82 39 61 0 Type II Slurry $24,844
2031-32 265 10620 Oakcrest Ave Berenice Dr Poinsettia Ave E AAC 267 36 10,962 95 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,248
2031-32 265 10630 Oakcrest Ave Poinsettia Ave Wardman Dr E AAC 410 36 14,760 95 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $8,413
2031-32 265 10640 Oakcrest Ave Wardman Dr Cedarcrest Dr E AAC 229 36 10,394 95 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,925
2031-32 265 11350 Oakcrest Ave End Sandalwood Dr E AC 496 36 19,368 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $11,040
2031-32 265 12400 Oakcrest Ave Old Mill Rd Kellen St E AC 1,135 36 45,160 91 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $25,741
2031-32 267 10090 Oakknoll St Forestview Dr End E AAC 470 36 18,720 80 41 59 0 Type II Slurry $10,670
2031-32 267 10095 Oakknoll St Old Mill Ct Forestview Dr E AAC 164 36 5,904 89 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $3,365
2031-32 267 10100 Oakknoll St Fawnridge Ave Old Mill Ct E AAC 350 36 14,350 87 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $8,180
2031-32 273 7050 Olive Ave End Buttonwood Dr E AC 290 36 12,240 84 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,977
2031-32 273 7060 Olive Ave Buttonwood Dr Mango St E AC 537 36 21,482 89 0 97 3 Type II Slurry $12,245
2031-32 274 3810 Olive Pl Willow Ave Almond Dr E AC 379 33 15,743 87 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $8,974
2031-32 278 2 Palm Dr End Elm St E AC 681 33 24,249 67 64 36 0 Grind - AC Overlay $122,700
2031-32 284 11940 Peach Ave End Cherry St E AC 492 33 21,314 76 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $12,149
2031-32 288 8720 Pepper Tree Dr Forest Pl Lambert Rd E AAC 558 36 19,800 75 77 23 0 Grind - AC Overlay $100,188
2031-32 288 8730 Pepper Tree Dr Eastwood Pl Forest Pl E AAC 280 36 10,080 63 75 25 0 Grind - AC Overlay $40,320
2031-32 288 8740 Pepper Tree Dr Dalewood Pl Eastwood Pl E AAC 280 36 10,080 88 0 56 44 Type II Slurry $5,746
2031-32 288 8750 Pepper Tree Dr Clove Pl Dalewood Pl E AAC 240 36 8,640 80 72 25 3 Type II Slurry $4,925
2031-32 288 8760 Pepper Tree Dr Brea Blvd Clove Pl E AAC 552 36 24,172 82 36 41 23 Type II Slurry $13,778
2031-32 509 14110 Pico Canyon Ln Alamitos Rd N San Ardo Dr E AC 797 36 28,680 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $16,348

GREEN HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTE PROPOSED / SCHEDULED ARTERIAL/COLLECTOR SECTIONS - FY 2025-2032 Page 11 of 12



City of Brea, CA
Forecast Maintenance / Rehabilitation (FMR) Report - FY 2025-2032

Sorted by Rank, FY, Name Order (A-Z)

FY BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Maint. Type Total $ City Projected $
2031-32 291 9300 Pineridge St Arrowwood Dr Evergreen Dr E AC 256 37 9,176 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,230
2031-32 291 9310 Pineridge St Evergreen Dr Tamarack Ave E AC 828 37 30,340 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $17,294
2031-32 292 11400 Pioneer St Lambert Rd Puente St E AC 1,649 44 72,556 56 43 38 19 Grind - AC Overlay $367,133
2031-32 297 9140 Ponderosa Ave Orangewood Dr Mariposa Dr E AC 289 37 10,693 89 0 89 11 Type II Slurry $6,095
2031-32 297 9150 Ponderosa Ave Mariposa Dr Driftwood Ave E AC 426 37 15,762 88 0 65 35 Type II Slurry $8,984
2031-32 297 9160 Ponderosa Ave Driftwood Ave Hazelwood Pl E AC 549 37 20,313 86 0 82 18 Type II Slurry $11,578
2031-32 297 9170 Ponderosa Ave Hazelwood Pl City Limit E AC 262 37 9,694 89 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,526
2031-32 305 3451 Randolph Ave Imperial Ave Imperial Ave E AC 445 30 19,737 89 0 90 10 Type II Slurry $11,250
2031-32 305 3460 Randolph Ave Imperial Hwy Madison Way E AC 1,046 23 30,008 45 76 21 3 Grind - AC Overlay $151,840
2031-32 305 3461 Randolph Ave Madison Way Imperial Hwy E AC 1,049 23 29,533 59 78 16 6 Grind - AC Overlay $149,437
2031-32 305 3470 Randolph Ave Madison Way Birch St E AC 724 60 43,440 61 38 54 8 Grind - AC Overlay $219,806
2031-32 2053 13230 Redtail Dr Pheasant Ln  Hawks Dr E AC 456 30 13,680 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $7,798
2031-32 310 2730 Redwood Ave End Date St E AC 356 33 11,748 83 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $6,696
2031-32 310 2740 Redwood Ave Date St Union Pl E AC 335 37 13,449 77 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $7,666
2031-32 2054 13270 Roadrunner Dr Cardinal St Condor Ave E AC 585 30 18,800 86 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $10,716
2031-32 313 9840 Robert Ct End Eden Way E AC 572 36 22,104 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $12,599
2031-32 313 9850 Robert Ct Northwood Ave Eden Way E AC 416 36 14,976 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $8,536
2031-32 317 11020 Rutledge Pl End Lockhaven Dr E AC 267 27 8,764 50 66 33 1 Grind - AC Overlay $44,346
2031-32 2013 12700 Salveson Rd Tremaine Rd Berry St E AC 180 24 4,320 89 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $2,462
2031-32 2013 12830 Salveson Rd Matthews Ln Tremaine Rd E AC 435 30 13,050 85 15 85 0 Type II Slurry $7,439
2031-32 2056 13290 Sandpiper Way Lark Ln Valencia Ave E AC 1,021 32 33,922 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $19,336
2031-32 336 9240 Site Dr Central Ave Glenoaks St E AC 1,123 36 40,428 86 0 59 41 Type II Slurry $23,044
2031-32 336 9250 Site Dr Glenoaks St Nutwood St E AC 1,225 36 44,100 81 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $25,137
2031-32 336 9260 Site Dr Nutwood St City Limit E AC 494 36 17,784 78 0 88 12 Type II Slurry $10,137
2031-32 365 9400 Tamarack Ave Central Ave Orangewood Dr E AC 490 36 17,352 82 32 57 11 Type II Slurry $9,891
2031-32 365 9410 Tamarack Ave Orangewood Dr Mariposa Dr E AC 250 36 9,000 67 0 79 21 Cape Seal $45,540
2031-32 365 9430 Tamarack Ave Mariposa Dr Glenoaks St E AC 472 36 16,992 85 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $9,685
2031-32 365 9440 Tamarack Ave Glenoaks St Pineridge St E AC 225 36 8,100 78 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $4,617
2031-32 365 9450 Tamarack Ave Pineridge St Nutwood St E AC 708 36 25,488 81 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $14,528
2031-32 365 9460 Tamarack Ave Nutwood St Evergreen Dr E AC 289 36 10,404 80 0 100 0 Type II Slurry $5,930

$2,378,624

$1,500,000

GREEN HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTE PROPOSED / SCHEDULED ARTERIAL/COLLECTOR SECTIONS - FY 2025-2032 Page 12 of 12



City of Brea, CA Page 13 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

XII. APPENDIX B – COMPLETE STREET LISTING CURRENT CONDITIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

Arterials / Collectors (MPAH)
26 760 Associated Rd Imperial Hwy Greenbriar Ln A AC 1,195 32 40,240 66 4 54 42 2/12/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
26 761 Associated Rd Greenbriar Ln Imperial Hwy A AC 1,195 30 38,775 84 0 96 4 2/14/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
26 770 Associated Rd Greenbriar Ln Chevy Chase Dr A AC 980 30 30,900 89 0 100 0 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
26 771 Associated Rd Chevy Chase Dr Greenbriar Ln A AC 980 30 30,900 81 28 56 16 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
26 780 Associated Rd Chevy Chase Dr Eucalyptus Ln A AC 419 31 12,989 84 24 47 29 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
26 781 Associated Rd Eucalyptus Ln Chevy Chase Dr A AC 420 32 14,190 84 0 82 18 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
26 790 Associated Rd Eucalyptus Ln Birch St A AC 412 38 18,656 86 0 76 24 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
26 791 Associated Rd Birch St Eucalyptus Ln A AC 415 27 12,205 77 0 77 23 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
26 800 Associated Rd Birch St Country Hills Rd A AC 527 60 31,620 73 0 63 37 2/14/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07
26 810 Associated Rd Country Hills Rd Sleepy Hollow Ln A AC 898 60 53,880 80 0 45 55 2/14/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07
26 820 Associated Rd Sleepy Hollow Ln Donnybrook Rd A AC 210 23 4,830 88 0 100 0 2/20/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07
26 825 Associated Rd Donnybrook Rd Sleepy Hollow Ln A AC 210 23 5,680 71 0 37 63 2/20/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07
26 830 Associated Rd Donnybrook Rd Meadowcreek Rd A AC 348 23 8,854 88 0 100 0 2/20/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07
26 835 Associated Rd Meadowcreek Rd Donnybrook Rd A AC 348 23 8,004 69 0 35 65 2/20/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07
26 840 Associated Rd Meadowcreek Rd Cloverdale Dr A AC 630 60 37,800 77 0 63 37 2/20/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07
26 850 Associated Rd Cloverdale Dr Windwood Ln A AC 189 60 11,340 78 0 57 43 2/20/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07
26 860 Associated Rd Windwood Ln Woodhill Ln A AC 595 60 35,700 73 0 56 44 2/20/25 New Construction - AC 4/27/07
26 870 Associated Rd Woodhill Ln Lambert Rd A AC 425 60 25,500 77 0 51 49 2/20/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07
39 280 Berry St Imperial Hwy Mercury Ln A AAC 843 60 51,885 90 41 56 3 3/30/23 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07
39 290 Berry St Mercury Ln Railroad Tracks A AAC 493 60 29,580 73 6 94 0 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07
39 300 Berry St Railroad Tracks Vanguard Way A AAC 847 60 50,820 73 56 44 0 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07
39 310 Berry St Vanguard Way Lambert Rd A AAC 417 60 25,020 70 38 54 8 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07
39 320 Berry St Lambert Rd Berry Way A AAC 687 60 41,220 74 24 74 2 3/30/23 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07
39 330 Berry St Berry Way Apollo St A AAC 553 60 33,180 72 0 64 36 3/30/23 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07
39 340 Berry St Apollo St Challenger St A AAC 363 60 21,780 73 19 66 15 3/30/23 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07
39 350 Berry St Challenger St Explorer St A AAC 120 64 7,680 75 0 100 0 3/30/23 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07
39 360 Berry St Explorer St Columbia St A AAC 393 60 23,580 81 0 100 0 3/30/23 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07
39 370 Berry St Columbia St Central Ave A AAC 480 80 37,000 77 0 95 5 3/30/23 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07
39 380 Berry St Central Ave Salveson Rd. A AC 1,160 27 34,820 77 0 100 0 2/17/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
39 381 Berry St Salveson Rd. Central Ave A AC 1,160 27 33,320 77 0 100 0 2/17/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
39 390 Berry St Salveson Rd. Stonebridge Ln A AC 1,296 80 102,080 82 8 88 4 2/17/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
39 400 Berry St Stonebridge Dr Amber Hill Dr A AC 743 32 23,776 76 21 69 10 2/17/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
39 401 Berry St Amber Hill Dr Stonebridge Dr A AC 736 32 23,552 83 15 79 6 2/17/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
39 410 Berry St Amber Hill Dr Northwood Ave A AC 828 32 28,496 78 0 64 36 2/17/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
39 411 Berry St Northwood Ave Amber Hill Dr A AC 940 32 32,080 80 25 69 6 2/17/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
39 415 Berry St Northwood Ave End A AC 145 80 8,200 59 34 63 3 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
40 1350 Birch St Walnut Ave Brea Blvd A AC 369. 38. 11,772 89 0 100 0 3/20/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
40 1360 Birch St Brea Blvd Orange Ave A AC 351 22 5,672 86 38 57 5 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
40 13630 Birch St Shopping Center Madrona A AC 180. 38. 6,840 85 0 23 77 3/20/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
40 1365 Birch St Orange Ave Brea Blvd A AC 296 22 2,512 91 24 76 0 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
40 1370 Birch St Orange Ave Flower Ave A AC 381 60 22,860 85 13 46 41 3/31/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/02
40 1380 Birch St Flower Ave Redwood Ave A AC 494 60 29,640 68 46 27 27 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
40 1390 Birch St Redwood Ave Laurel Ave A AC 308 60 18,480 69 59 35 6 3/31/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/02
40 1400 Birch St Laurel Ave Poplar Ave A AC 342 64 21,888 77 61 37 2 3/31/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/02
40 1410 Birch St Poplar Ave Randolph Ave A AC 1,047 60 61,570 81 0 100 0 3/31/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/02
40 1420 Birch St Randolph Ave Brea Mall Entrance A AC 1,032 80 80,480 70 58 26 16 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
40 1440 Birch St Brea Mall Entrance State College Blvd A AC 1,027 40 41,080 74 77 23 0 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
40 1445 Birch St State College Blvd Brea Mall Entrance A AC 1,027 40 41,080 66 71 29 0 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
40 1450 Birch St State College Blvd 57 Freeway A AC 630 25 17,625 62 83 17 0 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
40 1455 Birch St 57 Freeway State College Blvd A AC 630 30 24,100 64 65 15 20 3/31/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
40 1460 Birch St 57 Freeway Associated Rd A AC 1,487 80 118,960 69 75 12 13 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
40 1470 Birch St Associated Rd Associated Rd A AC 1,707 60 110,920 62 75 13 12 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
40 1480 Birch St Associated Rd Kraemer Blvd A AC 2,036 60 127,160 40 84 10 6 2/26/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
40 1490 Birch St Kraemer Blvd Ranger Ave A AC 1,228 70 89,460 58 65 31 4 2/26/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/98
40 1500 Birch St Ranger Ave Flower Hill St A AC 1,062 70 74,340 59 48 45 7 2/26/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/98
40 1510 Birch St Flower Hill St Voyager Ave A AC 713 74 54,762 48 47 36 17 2/26/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 11/1/07
40 1515 Birch St Voyager Ave Flower Hill St A AC 713 28 21,464 55 45 30 25 2/26/25 New Construction - Initial 11/1/07
40 1520 Birch St Voyager Ave Valencia Ave A AC 1,770 28 55,060 69 57 43 0 2/5/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 11/1/07
40 1525 Birch St Valencia ave Voyager Ave A AC 1,770 28 55,060 78 22 76 2 2/5/25 New Construction - Initial 11/1/07
51 420 Brea Blvd Juniper St Acacia St A AC 493 31 14,155 96 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24
51 421 Brea Blvd Acacia St Juniper St A AC 493 31 16,033 91 0 100 0 3/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24

Page 1 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
51 430 Brea Blvd Acacia St Locust St A AC 323 31 11,013 94 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24
51 431 Brea Blvd Locust St Acacia St A AC 323 29 9,367 88 0 100 0 3/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24
51 440 Brea Blvd Locust St Fir St A AC 315 31 12,865 95 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24
51 441 Brea Blvd Fir St. Locust St. A AC 315 29 9,885 84 0 100 0 3/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24
51 450 Brea Blvd Fir St Alder St A AC 696 29 21,434 90 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24
51 451 Brea Blvd Alder St Fir St. A AC 696 29 22,184 89 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24
51 460 Brea Blvd Alder St Elm St A AC 647 29 20,013 95 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24
51 461 Brea Blvd Elm St. Alder St. A AC 647 31 21,557 93 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24
51 470 Brea Blvd Elm St Date St A AC 700 31 22,950 91 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24
51 471 Brea Blvd Date St. Elm St. A AC 700 31 22,950 92 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24
51 480 Brea Blvd Date St Imperial Hwy A AC 631 33 24,323 94 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24
51 481 Brea Blvd Imperial Hwy Date St A AC 631 31 23,561 90 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24
51 490 Brea Blvd Imperial Hwy Birch St A AC 667 39 24,323 91 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
51 495 Brea Blvd Birch St Imperial Hwy A AC 667 33 35,679 88 17 61 22 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
51 500 Brea Blvd Birch St Ash St A AC 678 36 26,748 78 0 100 0 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
51 505 Brea Blvd Ash St Birch St A AC 678 36 30,068 78 12 88 0 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
51 510 Brea Blvd Ash St Railroad Tracks A AC 580 36 20,880 78 0 87 13 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
51 515 Brea Blvd Railroad Tracks Ash St A AC 580 36 22,630 84 0 100 0 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
51 520 Brea Blvd Railroad Tracks Bracken St A AAC 416 80 32,105 85 0 100 0 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
51 540 Brea Blvd Bracken St Cypress St A AAC 412 70 28,840 84 0 96 4 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
51 550 Brea Blvd Cypress St Lambert Rd A AAC 547 25 22,427 82 0 100 0 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
51 555 Brea Blvd Lambert Rd Cypress St A AAC 547 37 22,062 89 0 100 0 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
51 560 Brea Blvd Lambert Rd Pepper Tree Dr A AAC 1,463 78 112,364 77 21 62 17 2/21/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/1/07
51 570 Brea Blvd Pepper Tree Dr Central Ave A AAC 1,230 78 96,190 77 0 53 47 2/21/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/1/07
51 580 Brea Blvd Central Ave Canyondale Dr A AAC 810 70 60,750 79 0 98 2 2/20/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/1/07
51 590 Brea Blvd Canyondale Dr Canyon Country Rd A AAC 805 56 42,680 72 51 36 13 2/21/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/1/07
51 600 Brea Blvd Canyon Country Rd City Limit A AAC 425 50 20,600 68 73 22 5 2/20/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/1/07

536 16000 Brea Canyon Blvd West City Limits City Limits (1300' W/ Tomer Canyon) A AC 1,120. 28. 31,360 95 0 100 0 3/20/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/23
78 1810 Central Ave City Limit Roscoe St A AC 957 70 24,150 81 15 40 45 3/31/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
78 1820 Central Ave Roscoe St De Jur St A AC 875 60 13,800 63 65 28 7 3/31/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
78 1830 Central Ave De Jur St Puente St A AC 798 70 53,085 70 48 40 12 3/31/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
78 1850 Central Ave Puente St Steele Dr A AC 1,220 80 91,500 77 25 66 9 2/17/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
78 1860 Central Ave Steele Dr Berry St A AC 1,539 70 107,730 77 8 83 9 3/25/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/00
78 1870 Central Ave Berry St Site Dr A AC 1,284 80 100,970 76 55 45 0 3/25/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
78 1880 Central Ave Site Dr Tamarack Ave A AC 913 80 70,140 77 26 50 24 3/25/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/00
78 1890 Central Ave Tamarack Ave Brea Blvd A AC 1,529 80 118,370 71 38 53 9 3/25/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/00

143 3060 Elm St Property Line Sievers Ave C AC 141. 32. 4,314 40 63 37 0 3/20/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/15
143 3090 Elm St Walnut Ave Brea Blvd C AAC 362. 30. 9,780 87 0 88 12 3/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
143 3130 Elm St Magnolia Ave Sycamore Ave C AC 295. 37. 10,915 70 0 88 12 3/20/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
208 890 Kraemer Blvd City Limit Saturn St A AC 420 40 16,800 95 0 100 0 2/26/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
208 900 Kraemer Blvd Saturn St Imperial Hwy A AC 914 80 73,120 88 0 39 61 2/26/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
208 910 Kraemer Blvd Imperial Hwy Orbiter St A AC 1,161 28 44,008 94 0 41 59 2/7/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
208 915 Kraemer Blvd Orbiter St Imperial Hwy A AC 1,161 36 57,946 91 0 28 72 2/7/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
208 930 Kraemer Blvd Orbiter St Birch St A AC 1,414 88 124,612 93 0 33 67 2/7/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
208 940 Kraemer Blvd Birch St Country Hlls Rd A AC 511 47 24,017 96 0 100 0 2/7/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
208 945 Kraemer Blvd Country Hills Rd Birch St A AC 511 40 20,440 93 0 46 54 2/7/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
208 950 Kraemer Blvd Country Hills Rd Edgemont Ln A AC 663 80 53,040 97 0 100 0 2/7/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
208 960 Kraemer Blvd Edgemont Ln Lambert Rd A AC 592 80 47,360 94 0 73 27 2/7/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1530 Lambert Rd City Limit Pioneer St A AC 480 33 15,840 89 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1535 Lambert Rd Pioneer St City Limit A AC 480 33 18,340 94 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1540 Lambert Rd Pioneer St Puente St A AC 947 43 40,721 91 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1545 Lambert Rd Puente St Pioneer St A AC 947 33 33,501 91 0 100 0 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
212 1560 Lambert Rd Puente St Delta Ave A AC 1,307 33 46,631 93 0 69 31 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1565 Lambert Rd Delta Ave Puente St A AC 1,307 33 47,631 88 51 49 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1570 Lambert Rd Delta Ave Berry St A AC 1,374 80 108,170 82 23 74 3 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1575 Lambert Rd Berry St Delta Ave A AC 1,374 43 59,082 75 10 61 29 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1580 Lambert Rd Berry St Basse Ln A AC 1,286 80 99,380 79 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1585 Lambert Rd Basse Ln Berry St A AC 1,286 43 55,298 82 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/00
212 1590 Lambert Rd Basse Ln Tamarack Ave A AC 699 33 25,567 82 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1595 Lambert Rd Tamarack Ave Basse Ln A AC 699 43 28,307 86 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1600 Lambert Rd Tamarack Ave Napoli Dr A AC 380 80 22,080 88 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1605 Lambert Rd Napoli Dr Tamarack Ave A AC 380 43 16,340 82 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01

Page 2 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
212 1610 Lambert Rd Napoli Dr Pepper Tree Dr A AC 417 80 33,360 84 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1615 Lambert Rd Pepper Tree Dr Napoli Dr A AC 417 43 17,931 79 38 62 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1620 Lambert Rd Pepper Tree Dr Madrona Ave A AC 203 33 6,699 94 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1625 Lambert Rd Madrona Ave Pepper Tree Dr A AC 203 43 8,479 82 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1630 Lambert Rd Madrona Ave Brea Blvd A AC 323 43 16,139 89 36 64 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1635 Lambert Rd Brea Blvd Madrona Ave A AC 323 33 10,659 83 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1640 Lambert Rd Brea Blvd Orange Ave A AC 419 33 13,827 87 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1645 Lambert Rd Orange Ave Brea Blvd A AC 419 43 18,017 89 0 100 0 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/98
212 1650 Lambert Rd Orange Ave Country Ln A AC 820 33 29,560 90 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1655 Lambert Rd Country Ln Orange Ave A AC 820 33 29,660 87 0 100 0 2/21/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1660 Lambert Rd Country Ln Cliffwood Park St A AC 643 33 24,719 87 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1665 Lambert Rd Cliffwood Park St Country Ln A AC 643 33 23,469 86 0 97 3 2/21/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1670 Lambert Rd Cliffwood Park St Oak Pl A AC 666 80 53,280 85 28 50 22 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1680 Lambert Rd Oak Pl Cashew Ave A AC 576 80 46,080 86 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1690 Lambert Rd Cashew Ave Pomelo Ave A AC 400 80 32,000 85 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1700 Lambert Rd Pomelo Ave State College Blvd A AC 510 102 52,020 82 25 75 0 3/25/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1710 Lambert Rd State College Blvd 57 Freeway SB/Ramp A AC 463 64 29,632 93 39 61 0 2/17/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1715 Lambert Rd 57 Freeway SB/Ramp State College Blvd A AC 463 44 20,147 72 6 43 51 3/25/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1720 Lambert Rd 57 Freeway SB/Ramp 57 Freeway NB/Ramp A AC 603 98 59,094 98 0 100 0 3/25/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1721 Lambert Rd 57 Freeway NB/Ramp Point Dr A AC 611. 63. 37,518 92 0 100 0 3/20/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1725 Lambert Rd Point Dr 57 Freeway NB/Ramp A AC 611 45 27,495 67 22 71 7 3/25/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1730 Lambert Rd Pointe Dr Associated Rd A AC 540 41 29,840 70 6 51 43 3/25/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1735 Lambert Rd Associated Rd Pointe Dr A AC 540 36 21,615 84 15 85 0 5/3/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1740 Lambert Rd Associated Rd Wandering Ln A AC 990 36 35,640 94 0 100 0 2/14/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1745 Lambert Rd Wandering Ln Associated Rd A AC 990 36 38,890 92 0 100 0 2/14/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1750 Lambert Rd Wandering Ln Sommerset Dr A AC 985 36 35,460 90 0 100 0 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1755 Lambert Rd Sommerset Dr Wandering Ln A AC 985 36 37,960 95 0 100 0 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1760 Lambert Rd Sommerset Dr Sunrise Rd A AC 835 36 32,310 95 0 100 0 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1765 Lambert Rd Sunrise Rd Sommerset Dr A AC 835 36 30,060 94 0 100 0 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1770 Lambert Rd Sunrise Rd Kraemer Blvd A AC 764 36 30,754 91 0 100 0 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1775 Lambert Rd Kraemer Blvd Sunrise Rd A AC 764 33 28,712 97 0 100 0 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1780 Lambert Rd Kraemer Blvd Walden Rd A AC 515 36 18,540 95 0 100 0 2/13/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1785 Lambert Rd Walden Rd Kraemer Blvd A AC 530 36 21,580 92 0 100 0 2/7/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1790 Lambert Rd Walden Rd Sunflower St A AC 1,362 36 50,282 93 0 93 7 2/7/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1795 Lambert Rd Sunflower St Walden Rd A AC 1,362 36 50,532 94 0 71 29 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1800 Lambert Rd Sunflower St Pavement Change A AC 740 86 63,640 94 0 100 0 2/13/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1805 Lambert Rd Pavement Change Valencia Ave A AC 2,257. 47. 143,307 86 0 97 3 3/20/25 New Construction - AC 1/1/80
279 10 Palm St City Limit Skywood St A AC 691 60 41,460 60 38 56 6 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
279 20 Palm St Skywood St Kerrwood Ct A AC 191 60 11,460 66 48 31 21 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
279 30 Palm St Kerrwood Ct La Habra Blvd A AC 411 60 31,160 61 49 39 12 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
279 5 Palm St Moonstone St Lambert Rd A AC 998 30 29,940 44 67 29 4 3/31/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
293 4040 Placentia Ave City Limit Imperial Hwy A AC 704 60 42,240 82 31 67 2 2/26/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
300 100 Puente St Imperial Hwy Railroad Tracks A AAC 1,353 60 73,805 85 0 56 44 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
300 110 Puente St Railroad Tracks Pioneer St A AAC 526 70 36,820 90 0 100 0 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
300 120 Puente St Pioneer St Lambert Rd A AAC 753 80 58,990 83 35 65 0 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
300 130 Puente St Lambert Rd Beacon St A AAC 743 80 57,690 73 20 62 18 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
300 140 Puente St Beacon St Lake Park Brea A AAC 703 80 56,240 76 0 100 0 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
300 150 Puente St Lake Park Brea Columbia St A AAC 489 80 39,120 75 0 96 4 2/14/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
300 160 Puente St Columbia St Central Ave A AAC 703 80 56,240 74 4 95 1 2/14/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
300 170 Puente St Central Ave Joyce Dr A AC 326 48 15,648 86 56 44 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
300 180 Puente St Joyce Dr Tracie Dr A AC 220 48 11,940 80 24 76 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
300 190 Puente St Tracie Dr Walling Ave A AC 274 48 14,532 75 9 64 27 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
300 200 Puente St Walling Ave Wardman Dr A AC 547 48 26,656 77 26 74 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
300 210 Puente St Wardman Dr Baywood Dr A AC 972 36 39,492 74 30 70 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
300 220 Puente St Baywood Dr Whittier Blvd A AC 274 36 9,864 75 44 56 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
300 40 Puente St Briarwood Dr Linden Way C AAC 632. 18. 11,376 75 0 78 22 3/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
300 50 Puente St Linden Way Fern Ave C AAC 249. 18. 4,482 66 21 79 0 3/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
300 60 Puente St Fern Ave Eadington Dr C AAC 527. 18. 9,486 74 45 55 0 3/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
300 70 Puente St Eadington Dr Pecan St C AAC 260. 18. 4,680 76 44 56 0 3/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
300 80 Puente St Pecan St Cienega-City Fullerton C AAC 698. 18. 12,564 88 0 73 27 3/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
300 90 Puente St Cienega-City Fullerton Imperial Hwy C AAC 300. 18. 7,200 84 0 100 0 3/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
315 4850 Rose Dr Blake Rd Vesuvius Dr A AAC 503 45 22,635 67 37 63 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 1/1/09

Page 3 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
315 4860 Rose Dr Vesuvius Dr Birch St A AAC 3,130 45 142,800 76 18 82 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 1/1/09
348 610 State College Blvd City Limit Timbergate Ln A AC 164 33 5,412 85 13 87 0 2/24/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/02
348 611 State College Blvd Timbergate Ln City Limit A AC 164 33 5,830 83 32 68 0 2/24/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/02
348 620 State College Blvd Timbergate Ln Elm St A AAC 358 35 14,280 86 0 100 0 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
348 621 State College Blvd Elm St Timbergate Ln A AC 398 33 13,134 79 49 51 0 2/24/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/02
348 630 State College Blvd Elm St Imperial Hwy A AAC 1,343 33 49,234 88 46 41 13 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
348 631 State College Blvd Imperial Hwy Elm St A AC 1,334 33 50,737 82 0 90 10 2/24/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/02
348 640 State College Blvd Imperial Hwy Birch St A AAC 3,250 28 121,250 78 0 69 31 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
348 641 State College Blvd Birch St Imperial Hwy A AC 3,250 28 103,500 75 30 57 13 2/24/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
348 650 State College Blvd Birch St Railroad Tracks A AAC 1,360 28 43,830 80 0 99 1 2/20/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 1/1/09
348 651 State College Blvd Railroad Tracks Birch St A AAC 1,370 34 60,030 86 0 100 0 2/20/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 1/1/09
348 660 State College Blvd Railroad Tracks Avocado St A AAC 186 60 11,160 75 53 22 25 2/20/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 1/1/09
348 670 State College Blvd Avocado St Redbud St A AAC 593 60 35,580 72 43 57 0 2/20/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 1/1/09
348 680 State College Blvd Redbud St Lambert Rd A AAC 462 75 33,120 82 0 100 0 2/20/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 1/1/09
348 690 State College Blvd Lambert Rd Citrus Pl A AC 558 66 36,828 69 4 64 32 2/14/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
348 700 State College Blvd Citrus Pl Balsa Ave A AC 555 60 33,300 78 17 80 3 2/17/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
348 710 State College Blvd Balsa Ave Cliffwood Ave A AC 1,396 60 83,760 73 12 72 16 2/17/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
348 720 State College Blvd Cliffwood Ave Live Oak St A AC 572 60 34,320 73 12 80 8 2/17/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
348 730 State College Blvd Live Oak St Park Ln A AC 637 60 38,220 70 13 55 32 2/17/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
348 740 State College Blvd Park Ln Blossom Pl A AC 675 60 40,500 73 14 58 28 2/17/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
348 750 State College Blvd Blossom Pl Brea Blvd A AC 280 81 21,420 76 14 51 35 2/17/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
365 9350 Tamarack Ave Lambert Rd Capricorn St C AAC 556. 36. 20,016 86 0 100 0 3/20/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
365 9360 Tamarack Ave Capricorn St Nibus St C AAC 293. 36. 10,548 79 0 100 0 3/20/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
365 9370 Tamarack Ave Nibus St Apollo St C AAC 438. 36. 15,768 91 0 100 0 3/20/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
365 9380 Tamarack Ave Apollo St Atlas St C AAC 492. 36. 17,712 80 0 100 0 3/20/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
365 9390 Tamarack Ave Atlas St Central Ave C AAC 907. 36. 32,652 83 0 100 0 3/20/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
379 1000 Valencia Ave Date St Imperial Hwy A AAC 490 23 16,270 70 0 100 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
379 1001 Valencia Ave Imperial Hwy Date St A AC 490 33 17,420 69 7 93 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
379 13560 Valencia Ave Lambert Rd Santa Fe Rd A AC 1,389 58 88,037 70 26 74 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
379 13570 Valencia Ave Santa Fe Rd Sandpiper Way A AC 832 58 48,256 68 30 51 19 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
379 980 Valencia Ave City Limit Date St A AAC 1,040 60 62,400 80 0 100 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
403 11030 Whittier Ave City Limit San Juan Dr C AC 400 36 14,400 68 20 80 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
403 11040 Whittier Ave San Juan Dr Havenhurst Dr C AAC 320 36 11,520 67 0 82 18 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
403 11050 Whittier Ave Havenhurst Dr Puente St C AAC 542 36 19,512 64 20 63 17 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16

2200 1601 Wildcat Way Lambert End C AAC 2,460 60 147,600 71 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 3/8/15
31.2 8,172,881

Locals
1 11720 Acacia St End Lantana Ave E AC 180 33 7,518 76 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
1 11730 Acacia St Lantana Ave Chestnut Ave E AC 357 33 11,261 82 12 88 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
1 11790 Acacia St Mulberry Ave Walnut Ave E AC 292 28 8,176 74 9 87 4 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
1 11800 Acacia St Brea Blvd End E AC 794 36 30,096 61 51 49 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
2 6230 Acorn Cir End Newhaven Dr E AAC 100 63 4,876 74 24 76 0 2/12/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

529 14360 Aera Ct E Piru Ln Unnamed E AC 276 30 8,280 95 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
508 14100 Alamitos Rd Shepherd Ln Pico Canyon Ln E AC 1,207 30 36,210 89 0 95 5 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12

3 11950 Alder St Brea Blvd Magnolia Ave E AC 1,248 37 46,176 81 2 98 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
3 11960 Alder St Magnolia Ave Fir St E AC 333 37 12,321 78 0 98 2 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
3 11970 Alder St Fir St Locust St E AC 320 37 11,840 80 0 98 2 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
3 11980 Alder St Locust St Cherry St E AC 207 37 7,659 80 0 100 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
3 11990 Alder St Cherry St Laurel Ave E AC 289 37 10,693 77 0 100 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
3 12000 Alder St Laurel ST Laurel Ave E AC 210 37 7,770 77 40 53 7 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
3 12010 Alder St Laurel Ave Poplar Ave E AC 373 37 15,401 63 64 36 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
4 12520 Alexander Ct Roscoe St End E AC 236 32 9,064 91 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
5 12510 Allyson Ct Roscoe St End E AC 257 32 9,736 87 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
6 3820 Almond Dr Oak Pl Olive Pl E AC 881 33 32,573 88 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
7 11090 Alta Mesa Dr San Juan Dr La Serena Dr E AC 245 36 10,170 93 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
7 11100 Alta Mesa Dr La Serena Dr Los Altos Dr E AC 360 36 12,960 90 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
7 11105 Alta Mesa Dr Alta Mesa Dr End E AC 73 66 4,818 90 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
7 11110 Alta Mesa Dr Los Altos Dr Puente St E AC 300 36 10,800 91 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
7 11120 Alta Mesa Dr Puente St Alta Mesa Way E AC 402 36 14,147 78 65 35 0 2/9/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
8 10670 Alta Mesa Way End Alta Mesa Dr E AC 400 36 16,200 58 77 20 3 2/9/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
8 10680 Alta Mesa Way End Alta Mesa Dr E AC 150 36 5,400 49 52 40 8 2/9/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
9 12270 Alwick Pl Midbury St End E AAC 210 32 9,505 82 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16

Page 4 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
10 9800 Amber Hill Dr Berry St Strattford St E AC 155 36 5,580 89 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
11 4340 Amberwick Cir End Eucalyptus Ave E AC 147 36 6,804 82 0 100 0 2/6/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

423 4260 Amberwick Ln Hillhaven Dr Heather Ln E AC 279 36 9,756 87 0 100 0 2/7/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
423 4270 Amberwick Ln End Heather Ln E AAC 251 36 10,836 84 0 100 0 2/7/25 Cold Mill and Overlay - 2 Inches 1/1/16
12 5430 Ambling Dr Branch Ln Flander Ct E AAC 280 32 11,110 100 0 0 0 2/3/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/3/24
12 5440 Ambling Dr Flanders Ct Edgemont Ln E AAC 189 32 6,048 100 0 0 0 2/3/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/3/24
12 5450 Ambling Dr Edgemont Ln Chelsea Ct E AAC 55 32 1,760 100 0 0 0 2/3/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/3/24
12 5460 Ambling Dr Chelsea Ct End E AAC 523 32 21,036 100 0 0 0 2/6/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/6/24
13 9050 Apollo St Berry St Explorer St E AC 853 36 30,412 78 36 64 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
13 9060 Apollo St Explorer St Lunar Ave E AC 448 36 16,128 66 34 66 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
13 9070 Apollo St Lunar Ave Tamarack Ave E AC 633 36 22,788 73 15 85 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
14 7070 Apple Dr Buttonwood Dr Mango St E AC 370 36 15,470 90 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
15 6270 Appleblossom Cir End Newhaven Dr E AAC 65 63 3,170 52 49 51 0 2/14/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
16 7330 Apricot Ave Buttonwood Dr Brookwood St E AC 279 36 9,828 77 65 31 4 1/21/21 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/29/05
16 7340 Apricot Ave Brookwood St Silver Canyon Way E AAC 135 36 4,860 75 18 52 30 1/21/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
16 7350 Apricot Ave Silver Canyon Way Laguna Canyon Way E AAC 229 36 8,244 65 27 45 28 1/25/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
16 7360 Apricot Ave Laguna Canyon Way Coyote Canyon Way E AAC 198 36 7,128 74 37 63 0 3/20/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
16 7370 Apricot Ave Coyote Canyon Way Bryce Canyon Way E AAC 96 36 3,456 64 5 91 4 3/20/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
16 7380 Apricot Ave Bryce Canyon Way Desert Canyon Rd E AAC 131 28 2,968 44 59 34 7 3/20/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
16 7530 Apricot Ave Wake Forest St Aspen St E AAC 317 36 11,196 85 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
16 7540 Apricot Ave Aspen St Candlewood St E AAC 305 36 10,980 86 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
17 6070 Arbor Cir Sleepy Hollow Ln End E AAC 424 33 15,292 100 79 21 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
17 6080 Arbor Cir End Sleepy Hollow Ln E AAC 564 33 19,912 100 61 30 9 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
18 12440 Aria Dr Arts Ave Studio Dr E AC 430 32 14,030 74 24 76 0 2/5/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11

2003 13800 Armstrong Dr Skyler Wy Casner Wy E AC 377 30 11,310 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
19 2150 Arovista Ave Eadington Dr Lime St E AC 177 36 6,372 71 66 34 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
19 2160 Arovista Ave Lime St Carob St E AC 235 37 8,695 77 57 36 7 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
19 2170 Arovista Ave Carob St Lemon St E AC 253 37 9,361 77 65 35 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
19 2180 Arovista Ave Lemon St Imperial Hwy E AC 647 37 23,939 72 60 23 17 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
19 2190 Arovista Ave Imperial Hwy Aspen St E AC 585 44 25,388 78 0 83 17 1/30/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
20 2200 Arovista Cir Mariner St End E AC 428 44 20,326 68 21 68 11 1/31/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
21 9190 Arrowwood Dr Glenoaks St Pineridge St E AC 232 37 8,584 85 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
21 9200 Arrowwood Dr Pineridge St Nutwood St E AC 813 37 29,785 84 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
21 9210 Arrowwood Dr Nutwood St Tamarack Ave E AC 1,558 37 57,646 80 0 96 4 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
22 12340 Arthur Dr Oakcrest Ave End E AC 646 36 25,056 88 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
23 12430 Arts Ave Placentia Ave Aria Dr E AAC 730 32 22,784 73 8 92 0 2/5/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
24 3570 Ash St Madrona Ave Walnut Ave E AC 370 36 13,120 94 0 100 0 2/8/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
24 3580 Ash St Walnut Ave Brea Blvd E AC 370 42 15,040 93 0 100 0 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
24 3590 Ash St Brea Blvd End E AC 136 26 3,536 84 0 31 69 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
24 3600 Ash St Orange Ave Flower Ave E AC 339 52 17,628 72 57 43 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
24 3610 Ash St Flower Ave Redwood Ave E AC 308 37 11,396 81 46 54 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
24 3620 Ash St Redwood Ave Bandera Way E AC 84 37 3,108 81 30 70 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
24 3630 Ash St Bandera Way Laurel Ave E AC 234 37 8,658 80 27 73 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
24 3640 Ash St Laurel Ave Property Line E AC 138 36 6,768 71 56 44 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
24 3650 Ash St Poplar Ave Randolph Ave E AC 774 33 25,014 87 0 100 0 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
25 7510 Aspen St Wake Forest St Apricot Ave E AAC 608 36 24,956 89 0 100 0 1/13/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05

2008 12680 Atkins Ln Kitaoka Ln Jones Dr E AC 269 22 5,918 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
27 9030 Atlas St Lunar Ave Tamarack Ave E AC 643 44 30,240 70 4 96 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
28 4550 Aurora Ave Greenbriar Ln Hillhaven Dr E AC 198 36 9,278 94 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
28 4560 Aurora Ave Hillhaven Dr Chevy Chase Dr E AC 240 36 8,640 95 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
28 4570 Aurora Ave Chevy Chase Dr Holly St E AC 250 36 9,000 94 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
28 4580 Aurora Ave Holly St Eucalyptus St E AC 238 36 10,718 93 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
29 6890 Avocado St State College Blvd Guava Pl E AAC 196 36 6,768 89 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
29 6895 Avocado St Guava Pl Woodland Ave E AAC 293 36 12,698 74 28 72 0 5/3/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
29 6920 Avocado St Pomelo Ave State College Blvd E AAC 468 36 18,710 91 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
30 5220 Baler Ave Snowfield St Belmont Ct E AAC 245 32 7,840 71 10 90 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
30 5230 Baler Ave Belmont Ct Larkspur Ave E AAC 218 32 6,976 68 14 86 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
31 7410 Balsa Ave Cocao Pl End E AAC 150 36 6,378 89 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
31 7420 Balsa Ave Cocao Pl Candlewood St E AAC 240 36 8,640 89 0 100 0 3/19/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
31 7430 Balsa Ave Candlewood St State College Blvd E AC 162 36 5,832 91 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Reconstruction - PCC 12/1/05
31 7440 Balsa Ave State College Blvd Buttonwood Dr E AC 140 36 5,190 82 59 41 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
31 7450 Balsa Ave Buttowood Dr Brookwood St E AC 276 36 9,936 92 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

Page 5 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
31 7460 Balsa Ave Brookwood St Mango St E AC 151 36 5,436 91 23 77 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
31 7470 Balsa Ave Mango St Carmichael Dr E AC 223 36 8,028 91 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

516 14190 Bardsdale Pl E Kern River Ln E Roughneck Pl E AC 262 30 7,848 94 0 100 0 2/2/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
32 8970 Basse Ln Vanguard Way End E AC 315 40 14,427 82 0 74 26 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 11/1/05
32 8980 Basse Ln Vanguard Way Lambert Rd E AC 385 40 15,400 88 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 11/1/05

2009 12690 Baxter Pk Charleston Wy Salveson Rd E AC 375 30 11,250 93 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
33 10950 Baywood Dr De Lay St Havenhurst Dr E AC 580 37 23,210 76 0 78 22 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
33 10960 Baywood Dr Havenhurst Dr Puente St E AC 548 37 19,684 71 49 51 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
34 10710 Beacon St Puente St Neptune Way E AC 643 44 28,292 73 15 85 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
34 10720 Beacon St Neptune Way Delta Ave E AC 658 44 28,952 62 54 46 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
35 9870 Beechwood Dr End Shadowgrove St E AAC 150 36 7,200 100 0 77 23 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
35 9880 Beechwood Dr Shadowgrove St Stonebridge Dr E AAC 785 36 28,260 100 0 39 61 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
35 9890 Beechwood Dr Stonebridge Dr Parkcrest Way E AAC 220 36 7,920 100 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
35 9900 Beechwood Dr Parkcrest Way Stonecrest Cir E AAC 210 36 7,560 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
35 9910 Beechwood Dr Stonecrest Cir Starcrest St E AAC 308 36 11,088 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
35 9920 Beechwood Dr Starcrest St Forestview Dr E AAC 310 36 11,160 89 0 100 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
35 9930 Beechwood Dr Forestview Dr End E AAC 673 36 26,028 90 0 95 5 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
36 5210 Belmont Ct End Baler Ave E AAC 260 32 8,064 67 18 82 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13

521 14240 Belridge Terrace N Tonner Ridge Dr E Ojai Dr E AC 884 30 26,520 85 0 90 10 2/2/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
2010 12710 Bennett Ln Berry St Charleston Wy E AC 110 22 2,420 91 0 65 35 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2010 12720 Bennett Ln Skyler Wy Berry St E AC 110 24 2,640 92 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17

37 10210 Berenice Dr Wardman Dr Steele Dr E AAC 970 33 33,162 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
37 10340 Berenice Dr Joyce Dr Joyce Dr E AC 111 36 3,996 31 54 46 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Cape Seal 6/28/25
37 10350 Berenice Dr Joyce Dr Walling Ave E AC 717 36 25,812 29 63 37 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Cape Seal 6/28/25
37 10560 Berenice Dr Oakcrest Ave Birchcrest Ave E AAC 385 36 16,560 98 0 65 35 5/4/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
38 12560 Bergman Ct Roscoe St End E AC 236 32 9,064 91 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
40 1340 Birch St Madrona Ave Walnut Ave E AC 348 38 12,474 93 0 100 0 3/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
41 10570 Birchcrest Ave Berenice Dr Birchcrest Cir E AAC 515 36 19,890 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
41 10580 Birchcrest Ave Birchcrest Cir Wardman Dr E AAC 236 36 8,496 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
41 11340 Birchcrest Ave End Sandalwood Dr E AAC 490 36 19,152 100 61 25 14 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
42 10590 Birchcrest Cir End Birchcrest Ave E AAC 174 36 7,776 93 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
43 4840 Blake Rd Rose Dr Property Line E AC 522 17 8,874 40 43 57 0 2/5/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
44 11590 Blossom Pl Vallejo St Sonora St E AC 994 36 37,246 52 58 29 13 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
44 8020 Blossom Pl End Buttonwood Dr E AC 481 36 19,116 88 0 100 0 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
44 8030 Blossom Pl State College Blvd Buttonwood Dr E AC 235 36 8,460 90 0 52 48 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

2030 12725 Blue Jay Dr Pheasant Ln Hawks Dr E AC 476 30 14,280 85 40 60 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
45 5030 Bluebell Ave End Starflower St E AC 169 32 7,176 90 41 59 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
45 5040 Bluebell Ave Starflower St Sunflower St E AC 275 32 8,800 92 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
46 5160 Bluegrass St End Flowerhill St E AC 508 32 18,024 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10

2031 12730 Bobwhite Rd Brea Hills Ave East End E AC 497 32 17,669 68 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
47 7280 Bonita Canyon Way End Kings Canyon Rd E AC 460 28 10,136 64 11 70 19 1/21/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
48 10180 Bonnie Wy End Wardman Dr E AAC 458 33 16,890 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21

2032 12740 Boxcar Ln Whistle Train Ln Trolley Ct E AC 316 32 11,362 76 24 76 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
49 8840 Bracken St Brea Blvd Madrona Ave E AC 233 32 7,200 82 0 97 3 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
50 5410 Branch Ln Wandering Ln Rainbow Ln E AAC 1,120 32 35,840 100 0 0 0 11/1/22 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
50 5420 Branch Ln Rainbow Ln Ambling Dr E AAC 402 32 15,014 98 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 2/6/24

2033 12750 Brea Hills Ave Carbon Canyon Rd Hillside Rd E AC 1,159 32 39,458 68 31 69 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
52 1940 Briarwood Dr Puente St Eadington Dr E AC 1,942 37 71,854 88 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
52 1950 Briarwood Dr Briarwood Dr End E AC 90 65 5,985 73 0 100 0 3/30/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
52 1960 Briarwood Dr End Briarwood Dr E AC 92 70 6,936 72 0 100 0 3/30/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
53 3970 Brittany Ln Moorpark Dr Ravencrest Dr E AC 303 36 13,058 94 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
53 3980 Brittany Ln End Ravencrest Dr E AC 262 36 10,912 95 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
54 7990 Brookshire Pl Evening Canyon Grand Canyon Rd E AC 462 32 14,784 86 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
55 6260 Brookside Ln End Newhaven Dr E AAC 261 44 8,109 70 21 73 6 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
56 7390 Brookwood St Apricot Ave Balsa Ave E AC 1,019 36 36,252 87 0 72 28 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
57 7392 Bryce Canyon Way End Apricot Ave E AC 220 21 2,688 25 91 7 2 1/25/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
58 7160 Buchanan Ct End Carmichael Dr E AC 498 32 17,448 75 56 44 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
59 11550 Buckthorn Dr End Olinda Dr E AC 927 36 35,172 65 17 30 53 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
60 7030 Buttonwood Dr Apple Dr Citrus Pl E AC 314 36 13,166 91 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
60 7040 Buttonwood Dr citrus Pl Olive Ave E AC 304 36 10,728 88 0 97 3 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
60 8050 Buttonwood Dr Balsa Ave Apricot Ave E AC 1,030 36 36,864 87 0 46 54 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
60 8060 Buttonwood Dr Apricot Ave Cliffwood Ave E AC 570 36 20,520 90 0 79 21 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

Page 6 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
60 8070 Buttonwood Dr Cliffwood Ave Skywood St E AC 860 36 30,960 92 0 94 6 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
60 8080 Buttonwood Dr Skywood St Lotus Pl E AC 267 36 9,612 92 0 81 19 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
60 8090 Buttonwood Dr Lotus Pl Blossom Pl E AC 333 36 11,772 83 0 38 62 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

514 14170 Cable Canyon Pl N El Temblor Ranch Dr E Kern River Ln E AC 945 30 28,338 90 0 100 0 2/2/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
61 7150 Cameron Ct End Carmichael Dr E AC 317 32 11,656 76 45 55 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
62 4500 Camphor Cir End Valverde Ave E AC 529 32 22,828 93 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
63 7480 Candlewood St Balsa Ave End E AAC 658 36 25,488 88 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
63 7590 Candlewood St Cliffwood Ave Apricot Ave E AAC 247 36 8,676 88 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
63 7600 Candlewood St Apricot Ave Cashew Ave E AAC 965 36 34,740 85 0 79 21 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
63 7610 Candlewood St Cashew Ave Balsa Ave E AAC 249 36 8,964 83 0 100 0 3/25/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
64 7841 Canyon Country Rd Brea Blvd Grand Canyon Rd E AC 175 16 3,155 72 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
64 7842 Canyon Country Rd Grand Canyon Rd Glen Canyon Way E AC 478 36 20,076 85 0 60 40 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
64 7843 Canyon Country Rd Glen Canyon Way Stone Canyon Way E AC 550 36 19,800 89 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
64 7844 Canyon Country Rd Stone Canyon Way Shadow Canyon Way E AC 409 36 14,724 87 0 92 8 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
64 7845 Canyon Country Rd Shadow Canyon Rd Malibu Canyon Rd E AC 444 36 15,984 88 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
64 7846 Canyon Country Rd Malibu Canyon Rd City Limit E AC 119 36 4,284 89 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
64 7850 Canyon Country Rd Canyon Country Rd Canyon Country Rd E AC 278 17 4,726 87 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
64 7870 Canyon Country Rd Canyon Country Rd Canyon Country Rd E AC 296 17 5,032 91 0 57 43 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
64 7871 Canyon Country Rd Grand Canyon Rd Brea Blvd E AC 175 16 2,736 91 0 82 18 3/25/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
65 8010 Canyondale Dr Brea Blvd Evening Canyon E AC 107 21 2,247 91 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
65 8015 Canyondale Dr Evening Canyon Brea Blvd E AC 107 21 2,247 92 0 100 0 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
66 9000 Capricorn St Nibus St Tamarack Ave E AC 538 44 23,672 79 13 87 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19

2034 12760 Cardinal St Santa Fe Rd Roadrunner Dr E AC 664 30 21,170 89 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
67 10810 Carey Ave Worthington St De Jur St E AC 320 37 13,294 78 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
68 10220 Carlson Dr Joyce St Tracie Dr E AC 272 36 11,542 91 0 100 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
68 10230 Carlson Dr Tracie Dr Deanna Dr E AC 282 36 10,152 90 0 100 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
68 10240 Carlson Dr Deanna Dr Steele Dr E AC 613 36 21,780 90 0 100 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
68 10250 Carlson Dr Carlson Dr End E AC 209 36 9,324 87 0 100 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
69 7100 Carmichael Dr Balsa Ave Davidson Ct E AC 937 36 33,732 80 51 39 10 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
69 7110 Carmichael Dr Davidson Ct Chisholm Ct E AC 286 36 10,296 84 0 75 25 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
69 7120 Carmichael Dr Chisholm Ct Buchanan Ct E AC 312 36 11,232 81 36 64 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
69 7130 Carmichael Dr Buchanan Ct Cameron Ct E AC 302 36 10,872 84 0 97 3 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
69 7140 Carmichael Dr Cameron Ct Newhall Terrace E AC 1,234 36 44,426 80 10 82 8 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
70 2270 Carob St End Arovista Ave E AC 461 33 16,725 84 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
71 5510 Carrotwood Dr Country Club Dr End E AAC 415 34 15,860 100 0 0 0 2/6/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/6/24
72 7490 Cashew Ave Lambert Rd Wake Forest St E AAC 158 36 5,472 85 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
72 7500 Cashew Ave Wake Forest St Candlewood St E AC 298 36 10,728 86 0 96 4 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - PCC 12/1/05

2011 12770 Casner Way Williams St Dan Pl E AC 368 30 11,040 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
73 4050 Castlegate Ln Imperial Hwy Devonshire Dr E AC 212 36 7,344 93 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
73 4060 Castlegate Ln Devonshire Dr Ravencrest Dr E AC 375 36 13,500 94 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
73 4070 Castlegate Ln Ravencrest Dr Wetmoreland Dr E AC 242 36 8,712 95 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
73 4080 Castlegate Ln Westmoreland Dr Hillhaven Dr E AC 272 36 9,504 98 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
74 2000 Catalpa Ave Eadington Dr Oleander St E AC 1,100 37 40,478 81 27 73 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
74 2005 Catalpa Ave Imperial Hwy Oleander St E AC 124 35 3,780 90 0 69 31 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
75 6180 Cattail Cir End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 210 44 6,445 56 72 28 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
76 2580 Cedar Ave End Pine Ave E AC 109 46 5,014 76 23 55 22 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
76 2590 Cedar Ave Pine Ave Maple Ave E AC 340 37 12,284 66 53 47 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
76 2600 Cedar Ave Maple Ave Hickory St E AC 728 37 30,140 78 36 64 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
76 2610 Cedar Ave Hickory St Elm St E AC 280 37 10,360 68 56 44 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
76 2670 Cedar Ave Date St End E AC 438 37 17,206 74 41 59 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
76 2680 Cedar Ave Elm St Date St E AC 294 37 10,878 81 24 76 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
77 10650 Cedarcrest Dr Oakcrest Ave Woodcrest Ave E AAC 671 36 28,456 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21

424 13005 Cedarwood Ct Whispering Willow End E AAC 720 36 25,920 86 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
79 12095 Challenger St Berry St Endeavor Cir E AC 997 40 39,560 84 0 100 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
79 12096 Challenger St Endeavor Cir Columbia St E AC 1,185 40 50,900 84 0 100 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19

2012 12780 Charleston Wy Bennett Ln Tremaine Rd E AC 158 24 3,792 91 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2012 12790 Charleston Wy Tremaine Rd Johnson Ln E AC 578 27 15,606 85 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2012 12800 Charleston Wy Johnson Ln Reynoso Pk E AC 388 27 10,476 85 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17

80 5480 Chelsea Ct Ambling Dr End E AAC 327 32 10,464 100 0 0 0 2/6/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/6/24
81 11900 Cherry St Locust St Alder St E AC 1,200 33 42,902 80 10 86 4 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/1/13
81 11910 Cherry St Alder St Spruce St E AC 700 33 23,100 65 48 52 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
81 11920 Cherry St Spruce St Peach Ave E AC 145 33 4,587 66 65 35 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13

Page 7 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
81 11930 Cherry St End Peach Ave E AC 241 33 9,729 86 0 100 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
82 11740 Chestnut Ave Juniper St Acacia St E AC 886 33 29,040 88 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
82 11750 Chestnut Ave Acacia St Mulberry Ave E AC 138 33 4,554 92 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
83 4300 Chevy Chase Dr Associated Rd Dover Ave E AC 403 36 14,508 88 0 100 0 2/7/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
83 4310 Chevy Chase Dr Dover Ave Windermere Cir E AC 583 36 23,138 86 0 100 0 2/6/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
83 4410 Chevy Chase Dr End Aurora Ave E AC 610 32 21,320 89 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
84 7170 Chisholm Ct End Carmichael Dr E AC 447 32 15,816 80 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
85 6130 Cinnamon Ridge Rd Clear Springs Rd Deer Springs Ln E AC 247 16 4,147 85 27 69 4 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
85 6131 Cinnamon Ridge Rd Deer Springs Ln Clear Springs Rd E AC 225 16 3,795 90 0 100 0 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
85 6140 Cinnamon Ridge Rd Deer Springs Ln Associated Rd E AC 300 16 5,215 89 0 100 0 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
85 6141 Cinnamon Ridge Rd Associated Rd Deer Springs Ln E AC 247 16 4,367 85 0 100 0 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
86 7000 Citrus Pl State College Blvd Butoonwood Dr E AC 169 36 5,796 90 0 83 17 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
86 7010 Citrus Pl Buttonwood Dr Buttonwood Dr E AC 186 36 6,696 91 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
86 7020 Citrus Pl End Buttonwood Dr E AC 233 36 10,188 84 0 64 36 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
87 6100 Clear Springs Rd Cinnamon Ridge Rd Cool Oak Rd E AC 456 16 11,621 91 0 100 0 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
87 6101 Clear Springs Rd Cool Oak Rd Cinnamon Ridge Rd E AC 414 16 10,984 91 0 93 7 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
88 7550 Cliffwood Ave Lambert Rd Wake Forest St E AAC 197 36 6,876 88 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
88 7560 Cliffwood Ave Wake Forest St Candlewood St E AAC 692 36 24,912 91 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
88 7570 Cliffwood Ave Candlewood St State College Blvd E AAC 170 36 6,120 91 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
88 7580 Cliffwood Ave State College Blvd Buttonwood Dr E AC 180 36 6,480 89 0 100 0 1/25/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/95
88 7660 Cliffwood Ave Buttonwood Dr Skywood St E AC 801 36 32,704 88 0 57 43 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
89 8100 Cliffwood Park St Lambert Rd Thor Pl E AAC 638 36 22,968 100 0 100 0 1/8/21 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
89 8110 Cliffwood Park St Thor Pl Telstar Way E AAC 287 36 10,332 99 0 100 0 1/8/21 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
89 8120 Cliffwood Park St Telstar Way Oak Pl E AAC 1,038 36 37,368 99 0 100 0 1/8/21 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
90 8830 Clove Pl Pepper Tree Dr End E AAC 350 36 14,112 87 0 80 20 1/14/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
91 6410 Cloverdale Dr Cattail Cir Harvest Ln E AAC 803 16 16,448 83 36 53 11 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
91 6411 Cloverdale Dr Cloverdale Dr Harvest Ln E AAC 158 16 2,528 76 0 94 6 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
91 6415 Cloverdale Dr Cattail Cir Newhaven Dr E AAC 490 16 7,840 68 22 78 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
91 6430 Cloverdale Dr Cattail Cir Singingwood Ln E AAC 80 16 1,280 71 9 91 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
91 6431 Cloverdale Dr Singingwood Ln Cattail Cir E AAC 55 16 880 74 32 68 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
91 6440 Cloverdale Dr Singingwood Ln Creekwood Ct E AAC 187 16 2,992 72 53 47 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
91 6441 Cloverdale Dr Creekwood Ct Singingwood Ln E AAC 196 16 3,136 77 12 88 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
91 6450 Cloverdale Dr Creekwood Ct Waterwheel Ln E AAC 75 16 1,200 66 0 95 5 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
91 6451 Cloverdale Dr Waterwheel Ln Creekwood Ct E AAC 69 16 1,104 69 0 100 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
91 6460 Cloverdale Dr Waterwheel Ln Associated Rd E AAC 111 16 1,776 78 0 100 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
91 6461 Cloverdale Dr Associated Rd Waterwheel Ln E AAC 104 16 1,664 75 4 96 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

524 14300 Coalinga Dr E Pacific Ct Roundabout E AC 1,147 30 34,410 90 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
524 14310 Coalinga Dr E Roundabout Naranjal Dr E AC 991 30 29,745 90 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
92 7400 Cocao Pl Balsa Ave End E AAC 341 36 14,076 84 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
93 10730 Columbia St Puente St Neptune Way E AC 645 44 28,380 60 37 63 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
93 10740 Columbia St Neptune Way Berry St E AC 2,141 44 93,852 49 67 33 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19

2035 12810 Condor Ave Santa Fe Rd Hawks Dr E AC 816 32 26,112 90 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2035 12820 Condor Ave Hawks Dr Mockingbird Ln E AC 353 32 12,546 93 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/03
511 14130 Conejo Pl Tonner Ridge Dr N San Ardo Dr E AC 181 36 6,528 93 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 8/28/17
94 6110 Cool Oak Rd Clear Springs Rd Deer Springs Ln E AC 270 33 8,910 91 0 100 0 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
95 11470 Copa De Oro Dr End Mariposa Dr E AC 1,693 36 62,748 51 17 36 47 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
95 11480 Copa De Oro Dr Mariposa Dr Lilac Ln E AC 1,437 36 51,732 66 68 32 0 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
95 11490 Copa De Oro Dr Lilac Ln End E AC 297 36 13,192 70 33 67 0 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
96 3710 Cottonwood Dr Poplar Ave Pecan Pl E AC 236 37 8,732 85 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
96 3720 Cottonwood Dr Pecan Pl Jacaranda Pl E AC 528 37 19,536 85 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
96 3730 Cottonwood Dr Jacaranda Pl Randolph Ave E AC 243 37 8,991 92 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
98 5520 Country Club Dr Raintree Dr Carrotwood Dr E AAC 258 33 10,664 100 0 0 0 2/6/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/6/24
98 5530 Country Club Dr Carrotwood Dr Country Hills Rd E AAC 98 33 2,772 100 0 0 0 2/6/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/6/24
99 5380 Country Hills Rd Kraemer Blvd Thistle Rd E AAC 182 46 6,306 86 17 83 0 11/7/18 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
99 5540 Country Hills Rd Associated Rd Wandering Ln E AC 302 36 13,158 35 80 20 0 1/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
99 5550 Country Hills Rd Wandering Ln Country Club Dr E AC 342 36 12,312 41 49 48 3 1/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
99 5560 Country Hills Rd Country Club Dr Kraemer Blvd E AC 1,364 36 49,104 38 80 20 0 1/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

100 8180 Country Ln Lambert Rd Shady Ct E AAC 322 36 12,437 100 0 0 0 1/1/22 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/22
100 8190 Country Ln Shady Ct Orchard Ct E AAC 226 36 8,136 100 0 0 0 1/1/22 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/22
100 8200 Country Ln Meadow Ct Live Oak Ave E AAC 915 36 33,675 100 0 0 0 1/1/22 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/22
101 5330 Covey Ct End Hawthorne Ave E AAC 221 32 6,816 68 0 100 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/13
102 7391 Coyote Canyon Way End Apricot Ave E AC 383 29 7,943 58 55 45 0 1/21/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

Page 8 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
103 12470 Craftsman Cir Arts Ave End E AAC 420 32 15,048 88 19 81 0 2/5/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/10
104 6160 Creekwood Ct End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 185 44 6,139 67 41 59 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
105 5830 Crestview Cir Rimview Ln End E AAC 359 33 12,472 100 54 46 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
105 5840 Crestview Cir End Rimview Ln E AAC 370 33 12,610 100 61 39 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
106 6090 Crystal Springs Ct Deer Springs Ln Property Line E AC 135 42 7,210 92 0 70 30 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
107 7520 Cycod Pl Wake Forest St End E AAC 147 36 6,804 91 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
108 8690 Cypress St End Orange Ave E AC 244 44 11,137 76 26 44 30 2/9/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
108 8700 Cypress St Orange Ave Brea Blvd E AC 343 44 15,092 84 0 31 69 2/9/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
108 8710 Cypress St Brea Blvd Madrona Ave E AC 272 32 7,954 85 0 42 58 2/9/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
109 6280 Daisy Cir End Newhaven Dr E AAC 60 63 3,276 58 44 56 0 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
110 8820 Dalewood Pl Pepper Tree Dr End E AAC 420 36 16,632 78 0 94 6 1/14/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
111 12360 Daniel Ct Woodcrest Ave End E AC 145 36 6,732 88 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22

2014 12850 Dans Pl Skyler Wy Casner Wy E AC 364 30 10,920 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
112 6250 Dapplegray Cir End Newhaven Dr E AAC 98 63 5,254 77 39 57 4 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
113 1 Date St End Cedar Ave E AC 364 37 15,268 83 0 100 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
113 3200 Date St Property Line Sievers Ave E AAC 234 32 7,488 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
113 3210 Date St Sievers Ave Madrona Ave E AAC 356 32 11,392 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
113 3220 Date St Madrona Ave Walnut Ave E AAC 350 26 8,852 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
113 3230 Date St Walnut Ave Brea Blvd E AAC 350 30 10,320 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
113 3240 Date St Brea Blvd Orange Ave E AC 352 33 11,778 87 0 94 6 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
113 3250 Date St Orange Ave Flower Ave E AC 368 33 11,616 92 0 92 8 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
113 3260 Date St Flower Ave Magnolia Ave E AC 328 37 11,840 91 0 90 10 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
113 3270 Date St Magnolia Ave Sycamore Ave E AC 317 37 11,729 82 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
113 3280 Date St Sycamore Ave Redwood Ave E AC 310 37 11,470 74 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
113 3290 Date St Redwood Ave Laurel Ave E AC 380 37 14,060 68 49 51 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
113 3300 Date St Laurel Ave Poplar Ave E AC 338 37 12,506 47 61 39 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
113 3310 Date St Poplar Ave Pine Ave E AC 308 37 11,396 71 52 48 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
113 4710 Date St Elm St Oakhaven Ave E AAC 1,546 36 57,406 70 10 66 24 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
113 4720 Date St Oakhaven Ave Valencia Ave E AAC 157 36 5,652 80 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
114 7180 Davidson Ct End Carmichael Dr E AC 462 32 16,296 83 31 69 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
115 10760 De Jur St Central Ave Carey Ave E AC 157 37 5,809 79 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
115 10770 De Jur St Carey Ave Hodson Ave E AC 330 37 12,210 82 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
115 10780 De Jur St Hodson Ave McCart Ave E AC 275 37 10,175 82 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
115 10790 De Jur St McCart Ave Walling Ave E AC 345 37 12,765 80 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
116 10920 De Lay St Walling Ave Southridge Dr E AC 293 37 10,545 81 0 95 5 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
116 10930 De Lay St Southridge Dr Havenhurst Dr E AC 290 37 10,730 75 51 49 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
116 10940 De Lay St Havenhurst Dr Baywood Dr E AC 545 37 21,915 71 42 58 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
117 10270 Deanna Dr Carlson Dr Steele Dr E AC 399 36 13,932 90 0 100 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
118 6120 Deer Springs Ln Cinnamon Ridge Rd Cool Oak Rd E AC 296 16 4,886 92 0 100 0 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
118 6121 Deer Springs Ln Cool Oak Rd Cinnamon Ridge Rd E AC 265 16 4,390 93 0 100 0 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

2015 12860 Delaney Dr Charleston Wy Launer Rd E AC 372 30 11,160 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
119 8950 Delphia Ave St Crispen Ave Napoli Dr E AAC 1,240 36 49,890 100 0 0 0 7/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/21
120 10690 Delta Ave Lambert Rd Beacon St E AC 628 44 27,280 70 27 73 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
121 10120 Denise Ct End Ethelinda Way E AAC 342 33 12,864 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
122 7310 Desert Canyon Rd Zion Canyon Way Apricot Ave E AC 470 28 12,510 61 61 39 0 3/20/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
122 7320 Desert Canyon Rd Apricot Ave Forbes Dr E AC 843 28 23,604 69 62 38 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
123 7315 Desert Canyon Rd Frontage Desert Canyon Rd Desert Canyon Rd E AC 151 35 5,285 66 29 70 1 5/3/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
124 4120 Devonshire Cir End Devonshire Dr E AC 142 36 6,624 89 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
125 4090 Devonshire Dr Castlegate Ln Devonshire Cir E AC 635 36 22,572 91 0 83 17 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
125 4100 Devonshire Dr Devonshire Cir Westmoreland Dr E AC 504 36 18,144 90 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
125 4110 Devonshire Dr Westmoreland Dr Hillhaven Dr E AC 250 36 11,150 95 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
125 4290 Devonshire Dr Heather Ln Chevy Chase Dr E AC 497 36 22,192 95 0 88 12 3/24/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
126 6310 Donnybrook Rd Newhaven Dr Whispering Glen Ln E AAC 177 16 2,832 86 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
126 6311 Donnybrook Rd Whispering Ln Newhaven Dr E AAC 177 16 2,832 83 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
126 6312 Donnybrook Rd Whispering Glen Ln Associated Rd E AAC 198 13 2,574 94 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
126 6315 Donnybrook Rd End Newhaven Dr E AAC 184 44 5,261 69 62 38 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
127 10160 Dorothy Dr End Wardman Dr E AAC 703 32 24,089 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
127 10170 Dorothy Dr End Wardman Dr E AAC 146 32 6,201 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
127 10530 Dorothy Dr Northwood Ave Woodcrest Ave E AAC 736 36 25,776 97 0 100 0 2/9/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
128 4230 Dover Ave Hillhaven Dr Heather Ln E AC 315 36 11,052 75 55 45 0 2/6/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
128 4240 Dover Ave Heather Cir Chevy Chase Dr E AC 359 36 12,636 85 13 87 0 2/6/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
129 4130 Dover Cir End Westmoreland Dr E AC 505 36 23,992 86 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20

Page 9 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
130 7690 Driftwood Ave End Skywood St E AC 269 36 9,934 90 0 70 30 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
130 7700 Driftwood Ave Skywood St Driftwood Pl E AC 724 36 26,064 91 0 93 7 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
130 7710 Driftwood Ave Driftwood Pl Stone Canyon Way E AC 267 29 7,743 91 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
131 7720 Driftwood Pl Driftwood Ave Driftwood Ave E PCC 117 20 2,840 72 63 18 19 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
131 9120 Driftwood Pl End Ponderosa Ave E AC 406 37 16,746 89 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
132 7240 Dundee Ct End Forbes Dr E AC 609 32 21,256 76 28 67 5 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
133 2120 Eadington Dr Puente St Linden Way E AC 247 36 8,892 97 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
133 2130 Eadington Dr Linden Way Catalpa Ave E AC 885 36 31,860 93 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
133 2140 Eadington Dr Catalpa Ave Arovista Ave E AC 285 36 10,260 81 52 48 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
134 3800 Eastridge Way End Willow Dr E AC 163 33 6,891 90 0 89 11 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
135 8810 Eastwood Pl Pepper Tree Dr End E AAC 522 36 20,304 85 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
136 7980 Echo Canyon Pl Evening Canyon Rd Grand Canyon Rd E AC 254 32 7,872 88 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
137 9830 Eden Way Strattford St Robert Ct E AC 281 36 10,116 88 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
138 5390 Edgemont Ln Ambling Dr Kraemer Blvd E AAC 169 16 2,704 100 0 0 0 2/6/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/6/24
138 5391 Edgemont Ln Kraemer Blvd Ambling Dr E AC 172 16 2,752 90 27 73 0 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
138 5400 Edgemont Ln Kraemer Blvd Thistle Rd E AAC 173 46 5,892 85 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
139 11155 El Encanto Dr San Juan Dr La Canada Dr E AC 283 36 12,338 90 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
140 11150 El Encanto Drive San Juan Dr Puente St E AC 890 36 31,752 89 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
518 14210 El Temblor Ranch Dr N Belridge Terrace N Cable Canyon Pl E AC 1,437 30 43,110 82 13 77 10 5/4/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
141 10020 Elkridge St Fawnridge Dr Sunnyhills Ave E AAC 521 36 20,546 100 0 63 37 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
142 4700 Elm Cir End Elm St E AAC 167 66 11,022 70 29 71 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
143 3070 Elm St Sievers Ave Madrona Ave E AC 362 31 11,036 83 24 68 8 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/15
143 3080 Elm St Madrona Ave Walnut Ave E AC 362 28 9,716 83 0 90 10 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/15
143 3100 Elm St Brea Blvd Orange Ave E AC 352 37 12,210 85 0 100 0 1/13/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
143 3110 Elm St Orange Ave Flower Ave E AC 330 37 12,210 91 0 100 0 1/13/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
143 3120 Elm St Flower Ave Magnolia Ave E AC 378 37 13,986 87 0 100 0 1/13/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
143 3140 Elm St Sycamore Ave Laurel Ave E AC 698 37 25,826 88 0 55 45 1/13/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
143 3150 Elm St Laurel Ave Poplar Ave E AC 325 37 12,025 83 0 100 0 1/13/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
143 3160 Elm St Poplar Ave Maple Ave E AC 693 37 25,641 74 0 100 0 1/13/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
143 3170 Elm St Maple Ave Cedar Ave E AC 348 37 12,876 70 8 92 0 1/13/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
143 3180 Elm St Cedar Ave State College Blvd E AC 666 37 24,642 75 0 100 0 1/13/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
143 4620 Elm St Valencia Ave Oakhaven Ave E AAC 161 36 5,796 88 18 82 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
143 4630 Elm St Oakhaven Ave Greenleaf Dr E AAC 289 36 10,404 77 21 76 3 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
143 4640 Elm St Greenleaf Dr Elm Cir E AAC 345 36 12,420 77 8 92 0 1/31/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
143 4650 Elm St Elm Cir Greenleaf Dr E AAC 565 36 20,340 71 21 79 0 1/31/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
143 4660 Elm St Greenleaf Dr Date St E AAC 600 36 21,600 62 47 53 0 1/31/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
143 4670 Elm St End Date St E AAC 363 36 14,868 72 6 67 27 1/31/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
144 12097 Endeavor Cir Challenger St End E AC 308 40 13,827 83 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
145 4910 Enterprise St Ranger Ave Voyager Ave E AC 1,772 46 81,144 38 87 10 3 2/14/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
145 4920 Enterprise St Voyager Ave Surveyor Ave E AC 376 46 19,796 34 67 18 15 2/26/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
146 10130 Ethelinda Way Wardman Dr Denise Ct E AAC 525 37 19,425 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
146 10140 Ethelinda Way Denise Ct Fawnridge Ave E AAC 993 37 36,741 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
146 10150 Ethelinda Way Fawnridge Ave End E AAC 256 36 11,016 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
147 4770 Etna Cir End Vesuvius Dr E AAC 178 36 7,920 75 14 86 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
149 4320 Eucalyptus Ln Associated Rd Amberwick Ln E AC 653 36 23,508 81 0 78 22 2/6/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
149 4330 Eucalyptus Ln Amberwick Ln Windermere Cir E AC 256 36 11,366 84 0 98 2 2/6/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
150 4430 Eucalyptus St Aurora Ave Fig Ave E AC 120 36 6,470 93 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
150 4440 Eucalyptus St Fig Ave Plum Ave E AC 286 36 10,296 93 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
150 4450 Eucalyptus St Plum Ave Redbay Ave E AC 205 36 7,380 92 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
150 4460 Eucalyptus St Redbay Ave Valverde Ave E AC 367 36 13,212 91 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
151 7920 Evening Canyon Rd Brookshire Pl Echo Canyon Pl E AC 264 32 8,448 86 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
151 7930 Evening Canyon Rd Echo Canyon Pl Canyondale Dr E AC 263 32 8,416 89 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
151 7940 Evening Canyon Rd Canyondale Dr Grand Canyon Rd E AC 247 32 7,904 90 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
152 9220 Evergreen Dr Pineridge St Nutwood St E AC 565 36 20,044 76 9 91 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
152 9230 Evergreen Dr Nutwood St Tamarack Ave E AC 1,112 37 40,552 78 23 77 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
153 9040 Explorer St Apollo St Berry St E AC 1,222 36 43,396 72 30 69 1 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19

2036 12870 Falcon Way Robins Pl Condor Ave E AC 210 30 6,300 93 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2036 12880 Falcon Way Condor Ave Hummingbird Dr E AC 337 30 10,110 92 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
154 5960 Fallcreek Cir End Heartwood Cir E AAC 308 33 12,840 100 48 52 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
155 6050 Falling Leaf Cir End Sleepy Hollow Ln E AAC 251 33 9,583 100 60 40 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
155 6060 Falling Leaf Cir Sleepy Hollow Ln End E AAC 189 33 7,537 100 70 30 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
156 10105 Fawnridge Dr Ethelinda Way Oakknoll St E AAC 360 36 14,422 84 0 100 0 5/4/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15

Page 10 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
156 99997 Fawnridge Dr Elkridge St Harvey Dr E AAC 175 36 8,450 100 0 67 33 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
156 99998 Fawnridge Dr Harvey Dr Mooncrest Cir E AAC 305 36 10,980 92 41 59 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
156 99999 Fawnridge Dr Mooncrest Cir Starcrest St E AAC 279 36 12,194 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
157 1990 Fern Ave Puente St Linden Way E AC 453 33 14,751 94 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
158 4470 Fig Ave End Eucalyptus St E AC 188 32 7,560 92 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
159 6990 Filbert Pl End Pomelo Ave E AAC 450 36 17,712 80 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
160 11810 Fir St Lantana Ave Mulberry Ave E AAC 285 37 12,845 96 0 18 82 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
160 11820 Fir St Mulberry Ave Walnut Ave E AAC 589 37 21,793 99 0 100 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
160 11830 Fir St Walnut Ave Brea Blvd S E AAC 333 37 11,507 95 0 100 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
160 11840 Fir St Brea Blvd Magnolia Ave E AC 402 33 12,804 82 2 81 17 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/1/13
160 11850 Fir St Magnolia Ave Alder St E AC 1,102 33 36,102 77 3 97 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/1/13
160 11860 Fir St Alder St End E AC 252 33 9,828 79 0 100 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
161 11660 Firethorne St Juniper St Larchwood Dr E AC 642 37 27,610 77 0 95 5 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
162 5470 Flanders Ct End Ambling Dr E AC 342 32 10,944 78 40 40 20 1/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
163 2750 Flower Ave Elm St Date St E AC 692 37 25,604 88 0 100 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
163 2760 Flower Ave Date St Imperial Hwy E AC 659 36 23,474 92 0 94 6 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
163 2770 Flower Ave Imperial Hwy Birch St E AC 760 36 27,360 55 59 40 1 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
163 2780 Flower Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 561 36 20,196 40 72 28 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
164 13540 Flowerhill St Flowerhill St East End E AC 110 32 5,317 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
164 5130 Flowerhill St Birch St Bluegrass St E AC 863 36 31,068 92 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
164 5140 Flowerhill St Bluegrass St Morning Glory St E AC 302 36 10,872 91 0 91 9 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
164 5150 Flowerhill St Morning Glory St Sunflower St E AC 250 36 8,488 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
165 5590 Foothill Ln End Sunrise Rd E AAC 376 36 15,304 100 40 60 0 1/23/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
165 5670 Foothill Ln Wandering Ln Roundtree Ct E AAC 231 36 8,316 100 72 28 0 1/23/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
165 5680 Foothill Ln Roundtree Ct Winding Ln E AAC 218 36 7,848 100 65 35 0 1/23/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
165 5690 Foothill Ln Winding Ln Sunrise Rd E AAC 289 36 10,404 100 20 80 0 1/23/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
166 7190 Forbes Dr Balsa Ave Desert Canyon Rd E AC 556 36 20,016 81 18 82 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
166 7200 Forbes Dr Desert Canyon Rd Dundee Ct E AC 238 36 8,568 85 38 62 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
166 7210 Forbes Dr Dundde Ct Lennox Ct E AC 258 36 9,288 73 6 57 37 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
166 7220 Forbes Dr End Lennox Ct E AC 685 36 26,460 86 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
167 8790 Forest Pl Gum Pl End E AAC 202 36 9,072 92 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
167 8800 Forest Pl Gum Pl Pepper Tree Dr E AAC 325 36 11,412 89 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
168 9950 Forestview Dr Beechwood Dr Oakknoll St E AAC 721 36 25,668 89 0 100 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
169 5110 Foxglove St End Primrose Ave E AC 406 32 14,760 94 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
170 12180 Foxwood Ave Tanglewood St Gatewood Ct E AC 189 36 6,804 68 0 100 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
170 12190 Foxwood Ave Gatewood Ct Honeywood Ct E AC 228 36 8,208 65 0 100 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
170 12200 Foxwood Ave Honeywood Ct Ironwood Ct E AC 230 36 8,280 60 36 64 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
170 12210 Foxwood Ave Ironwood Ct Kerrwood Ct E AC 190 36 6,840 52 55 45 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

2016 12890 Freeman Ln Matthews Ln Baxter Pk E AC 222 22 4,884 93 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
171 11360 Gemini Ave Imperial Hwy Titan Way E AAC 756 44 32,912 92 0 100 0 2/13/25 Overlay - AC Structural 10/1/20
171 11370 Gemini Ave End Titan Way E AAC 372 44 18,230 90 0 100 0 2/13/25 Overlay - AC Structural 10/1/20
172 7890 Glen Canyon Way End Canyon Country Rd E AC 321 29 6,438 89 0 96 4 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
173 9320 Glenoaks St Site Dr Arrowwood Dr E AC 139 37 5,143 76 44 56 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
173 9330 Glenoaks St Arrowwood Dr Lynwood Dr E AC 634 37 23,162 83 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
173 9340 Glenoaks St Lynwood Dr Tamarack Ave E AC 243 37 8,695 83 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
174 5050 Goldenrod St Starflower St Shamrock Ave E AC 707 36 32,007 92 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
175 7910 Grand Canyon Rd End Canyon Country Rd E AC 358 29 7,511 93 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
175 7950 Grand Canyon Rd Echo Canyon Pl Evening Canyon Rd E AC 603 32 18,976 86 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
175 7960 Grand Canyon Rd Evening Canyon Canyon Country Rd E AC 487 32 15,328 87 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
175 8000 Grand Canyon Rd Brookshire Pl Echo Canyon Pl E AC 380 32 12,160 86 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01

2037 12900 Grandview Dr Valley Crossing Rd West End E AC 655 32 22,725 83 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2037 12910 Grandview Dr Valley Crossing Rd Railway Ave E AC 923 32 29,536 80 33 67 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2037 12920 Grandview Dr Railway Ave East End E AC 474 32 16,963 81 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
176 4360 Greenbriar Ln Ravencrest Dr Hillhaven Dr E AC 384 36 13,824 94 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
176 4370 Greenbriar Ln Hillhaven Dr Associated Rd E AC 190 36 6,840 91 0 93 7 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
176 4380 Greenbriar Ln Associated Rd Plum Ave E AC 630 36 22,515 94 0 89 11 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
176 4390 Greenbriar Ln Plum Ave Aurora Ave E AC 614 36 24,254 92 0 87 13 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
177 4690 Greenleaf Dr Elm St Elm St E AAC 1,299 36 50,488 71 13 80 7 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
178 5570 Grove Hill Ct End Stony Ln E AAC 238 32 9,091 100 73 24 3 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
179 6880 Guava Pl End Avocado E AAC 357 36 14,364 88 0 96 4 5/3/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
180 8780 Gum Pl Forest Pl End E AAC 195 36 8,532 91 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
181 6220 Harvest Ln End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 222 44 6,829 87 0 100 0 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

Page 11 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
182 10190 Harvey Dr Wardman Dr Fawnridge Dr E AAC 526 37 19,024 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
183 10970 Havenhurst Dr De Lay St Wickford Dr E AC 698 37 27,280 89 19 81 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
183 10980 Havenhurst Dr Wickford Dr Baywood Dr E AC 292 37 10,804 81 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
183 10990 Havenhurst Dr Baywood Dr Whittier Blvd E AC 266 19 5,304 70 36 58 6 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
183 10991 Havenhurst Dr Whittier Blvd Baywood Dr E AC 266 19 5,304 73 0 89 11 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16

2038 12930 Hawks Dr Heron Pl Condor Ave E AC 254 32 8,128 93 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2038 12940 Hawks Dr Paloma Ct Condor Ave E AC 585 32 19,608 92 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
184 5350 Hawthorne Ave Sorrel St Covey Ct E AAC 365 32 11,680 64 18 82 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/13
184 5360 Hawthorne Ave Covey Ct Woodacre St E AAC 235 32 7,520 72 17 83 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
185 9130 Hazelwood Pl End Ponderosa Ave E AC 429 37 17,597 84 0 95 5 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
186 5940 Heartwood Cir End Woodhill Ln E AAC 216 33 8,528 100 70 30 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
186 5950 Heartwood Cir Woodhill Ln Fallcreek Cir E AAC 228 33 8,374 100 47 45 8 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
187 6190 Heathcliff Pl End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 112 63 5,256 78 41 59 0 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
188 4250 Heather Cir End Dover Ave E AC 331 36 13,716 88 0 100 0 2/6/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
189 4280 Heather Ln Amberwick Ln Devonshire E AC 250 36 10,862 84 0 100 0 2/7/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

2039 12950 Heron Pl Woodpecker St Hawks Dr E AC 288 30 9,890 94 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
190 12650 Hickory St Pine Ave Maple Ave E AC 265 33 8,481 62 67 33 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
190 12660 Hickory St Maple Ave Cedar Ave E AC 294 33 9,438 53 69 31 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
191 4220 Hillhaven Cir End Hillhaven Dr E AC 131 36 6,228 91 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
192 4170 Hillhaven Dr Greenbriar Ln Hillhaven Cir E AC 510 36 18,360 94 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
192 4180 Hillhaven Dr Hillhaven Cir Castlegate Ln E AC 226 36 8,136 91 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
192 4190 Hillhaven Dr Castlegate Ln Dover Ln E AC 220 36 7,920 89 0 49 51 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
192 4200 Hillhaven Dr Dover Ln Amberwick Ln E AC 272 36 9,792 92 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
192 4210 Hillhaven Dr Amberwick Ln Devonshire Dr E AC 259 36 11,474 93 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
192 4400 Hillhaven Dr Aurora Ave Plum E AC 473 32 19,116 92 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

2040 12960 Hillside Rd Brea Hills Ave East End E AC 329 32 10,528 68 26 74 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
193 5580 Hilltop Ln Sunrise Rd End E AAC 660 32 26,999 100 55 39 6 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
194 10820 Hodson Ave City Limit Worthington St E AC 119 37 4,107 77 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
194 10830 Hodson Ave Worthington St De Jur St E AC 362 37 13,098 80 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
195 4420 Holly St Aurora Ave Valverde Ave E AC 1,032 36 36,864 86 0 100 0 5/3/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

2041 12970 Hummingbird Dr Mockingbird Ln Woodpecker St E AC 681 30 21,680 92 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2041 12980 Hummingbird Dr Owl Pl Falcon Wy E AC 184 30 5,520 92 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2017 13990 Hurst Pl Skyler Wy Jones Dr E AC 307 30 8,405 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
196 2340 Imperial Frontage Jasmine Dr Imperial Hwy E AC 529 33 19,957 99 0 100 0 3/30/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
196 2345 Imperial Frontage Jasmine Dr End E AC 82 32 2,624 99 0 100 0 3/30/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
197 5890 Ironbark Cir End Shadyvale Ln E AAC 273 33 10,559 100 79 21 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
197 5900 Ironbark Cir Shadyvale Ln Wandering Ln E AAC 157 33 4,931 100 66 34 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
198 3750 Jacaranda Pl Cottonwood Dr Pepperwood Dr E AC 226 33 8,676 84 47 53 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
199 2300 Jasmine Dr End Lime St E AC 376 33 14,176 82 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
199 2310 Jasmine Dr Lime St Oleander St E AC 845 33 27,885 85 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
199 2320 Jasmine Dr Oleander St Imperial Frontage E AC 211 33 6,765 84 17 81 2 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23

2018 13000 Johnson Ln Charleston Wy Launer Rd E AC 346 30 10,380 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
200 12410 Jonathan Dr Northwood Ave Oakcrest Ave E AC 135 36 4,572 93 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22

2019 13010 Jones Dr Hurst Pl Reynoso Pk E AC 450 30 13,500 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
201 10290 Joyce Dr Carlson Dr Steele Dr E AC 395 36 15,970 93 0 100 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
201 10300 Joyce Dr Puente St Berenice Dr E AC 219 36 7,596 42 81 14 5 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Cape Seal 6/28/25
201 10310 Joyce Dr Berenice Dr Poinsettia Ave E AC 235 36 11,960 34 72 28 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Cape Seal 6/28/25
202 12380 Juliet Ct Woodcrest Ave End E AC 230 36 10,580 93 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
203 2350 Juniper St City Limit Larchwood Dr E AAC 168 37 6,216 99 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
203 2360 Juniper St Larchwood Dr Firethorne St E AAC 628 37 23,236 99 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
203 2370 Juniper St Firethorne St Lantana Ave E AAC 300 37 11,100 99 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
203 2380 Juniper St Lantana Ave Chestnut Ave E AAC 275 37 10,175 96 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
203 2390 Juniper St Chestnut Ave Mulberry Ave E AAC 337 37 12,469 94 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
203 2400 Juniper St Mulberry Ave Walnut Ave E AAC 361 37 13,357 92 0 89 11 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
203 2420 Juniper St Walnut Ave Brea Blvd E AAC 276 36 9,504 97 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
204 12390 Kellen Dr Oakcrest Ave Woodcrest Ave E AC 235 36 12,760 90 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
515 14180 Kern River Ln E N Cable Canyon Pl Bardsdale Pl E AC 656 30 19,671 94 0 100 0 2/2/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
205 12100 Kerrwood Ct Palm St Archwood Ave E AC 183 44 7,100 52 48 47 5 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
205 12110 Kerrwood Ct Archwood Ave Merrywood Ct E AC 337 36 12,132 55 41 59 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
205 12120 Kerrwood Ct Merrywood Ct Leafwood Ct E AC 174 36 6,264 62 34 66 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
205 12130 Kerrwood Ct Leafwood Ct Jaywood Ct E AC 153 36 5,508 69 52 48 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
206 7250 Kings Canyon Rd Zion Canyon Way Santiago Canyon Way E AC 293 29 7,847 61 35 65 0 3/20/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

Page 12 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
206 7260 Kings Canyon Rd Santiago Canyon Way Bonita Canyon Way E AC 164 19 3,566 65 30 58 12 3/20/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
206 7270 Kings Canyon Rd End Bonita Canyon Way E AC 471 19 9,799 52 52 47 1 3/20/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
207 12530 Kinsler Ct Roscoe St End E AC 236 32 9,064 91 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22

2020 13020 Kitaoka Ln Dans Pl Millen Ln E AC 111 22 2,442 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2020 13030 Kitaoka Ln Millen Ln Hurst Pl E AC 110 17 1,870 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2020 13040 Kitaoka Ln Hurst P l West End E AC 173 17 2,941 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2020 13050 Kitaoka Ln Reynoso Pk East End E AC 170 17 2,890 96 0 100 0 3/30/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
209 11160 La Canada Dr El Canto Dr La Serena Dr E AC 842 36 32,462 93 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
209 11170 La Canada Dr La Serena Dr Northwood Ave E AC 190 36 11,070 99 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
209 11180 La Canada Dr Northwood Ave Woodcrest Ave E AAC 1,058 36 39,950 100 66 23 11 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
512 14140 La Goleta Pl Tonner Ridge Dr N San Ardo Dr E AC 254 36 9,144 92 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
210 11190 La Serena Dr La Canada Dr Alta Mesa Dr E AC 586 36 23,508 89 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
211 7393 Laguna Canyon Way End Apricot Ave E AC 446 29 9,770 60 43 51 6 1/21/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
505 14060 Landa Way N McKittrick Pl CDS (NE) E AC 691 36 24,876 93 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 8/28/17

2042 13060 Landmark Ln Railway Ave Valley Crossing Rd E AC 778 32 24,896 75 61 39 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
213 11680 Lantana Ave Juniper St Wildrose Dr E AC 753 37 27,861 76 0 98 2 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
213 11690 Lantana Ave Wildrose Dr Acacia St E AC 315 37 11,655 76 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
213 11700 Lantana Ave Acacia St Larchwood Dr E AC 276 37 10,212 78 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
213 11710 Lantana Ave Larchwood Dr Fir St E AC 221 37 10,477 78 14 83 3 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
214 11630 Larchwood Dr Juniper St Firethorne St E AC 262 37 9,694 75 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
214 11640 Larchwood Dr Firethorne St Wildrose Dr E AC 270 37 9,990 74 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
214 11650 Larchwood Dr Wildrose Dr Lantana Ave E AC 1,261 37 46,657 80 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15

2043 13070 Lark Ln Santa Fe Rd Starling Wy E AC 151 46 6,946 86 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2043 13080 Lark Ln Starling wy Sandpiper Wy E AC 583 32 19,906 83 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
215 5190 Larkspur Ave End Baler Ave E AAC 300 32 9,600 69 24 76 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
215 5200 Larkspur Ave Baler Ave Starflower St E AC 363 32 11,488 73 14 86 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
216 4000 Larkstone Ln Moorpark Dr Ravencrest Dr E AC 254 36 11,294 89 39 61 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
217 11130 Las Lomas Dr San Juan Dr Los Altos Dr E AC 565 36 21,402 90 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16

2021 13090 Launer Rd Johnson  Ln Reynoso Pk E AC 382 30 11,460 93 0 84 16 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
218 2425 Laurel Ave City Limit Alder St E AC 155 33 5,115 74 0 100 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
218 2430 Laurel Ave Alder St Spruce St E AAC 661 33 21,813 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
218 2440 Laurel Ave Spruce St Elm St E AC 693 33 22,869 67 39 61 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
218 2450 Laurel Ave Elm St Date St E AC 672 31 20,646 69 45 55 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
218 2460 Laurel Ave Date St Imperial Hwy E AC 644 31 20,466 69 52 47 1 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
218 2470 Laurel Ave Imperial Hwy Madison Way E AC 445 32 14,240 69 64 36 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
218 2480 Laurel Ave Madison Way Birch St E AC 810 32 25,728 82 53 47 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
218 2490 Laurel Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 489 32 15,264 74 50 50 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
219 12460 Legacy Dr Studio Dr Arts Ave E AAC 420 34 14,550 86 24 76 0 2/5/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/10
220 2260 Lemon St End Arovista Ave E AC 465 33 16,857 84 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
221 7230 Lennox Ct End Forbes Dr E AC 447 32 16,072 88 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
222 11430 Lilac Ln Olinda Pl Mariposa Dr E AC 856 36 30,816 68 37 40 23 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
222 11440 Lilac Ln Mariposa Dr Copa De Oro Dr E AC 1,186 36 42,696 72 43 57 0 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
222 11450 Lilac Ln Copa De Oro Dr City Limit E AC 414 36 14,904 80 44 49 7 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
223 2280 Lime St Arovista Ave Jasmine Dr E AC 713 33 23,331 83 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
223 2290 Lime St End Jasmine Dr E AC 158 32 6,824 85 0 100 0 2/13/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
224 1970 Linden Way Puente St Fern Ave E AC 702 33 24,916 93 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
224 1980 Linden Way Fern Ave Eadington Dr E AC 749 33 26,203 92 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23

2005 13610 Live Oak Ave Park Ln State College Blvd E AAC 888 36 31,968 100 0 0 0 1/1/22 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/22
225 10890 Lockhaven Dr Walling Ave Southridge Dr E AC 487 27 13,149 77 44 56 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
225 10900 Lockhaven Dr Southridge Dr Rutledge Pl E AC 306 37 11,100 75 70 30 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
225 10910 Lockhaven Dr Rutledge Pl Wickford Dr E AC 332 37 13,634 84 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
226 11870 Locust St Brea Blvd Cherry E AC 830 33 27,126 72 35 52 13 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/1/14
226 11880 Locust St Cherry Alder St E AC 808 33 26,664 76 9 91 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/1/14
227 6010 Longbranch Cir Windwood Ln End E AAC 617 33 21,661 100 63 36 1 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
227 6020 Longbranch Cir End Windwood Ln E AAC 303 33 11,299 100 29 71 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
228 11140 Los Altos Dr Las Lomas Dr Alta Mesa Way E AC 433 36 16,938 76 53 47 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
229 11600 Lotus Pl Vallejo St Sonora St E AC 1,023 36 36,540 46 63 37 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
229 8040 Lotus Pl End Buttonwood Dr E AC 437 36 17,244 88 19 81 0 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
230 9020 Lunar Ave Apollo St Atlas St E AC 459 44 22,144 69 19 81 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
231 9180 Lynwood Dr Tamarack Ave Glenoaks St E AC 733 37 30,325 73 35 43 22 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
232 3540 Madison Way Laurel Ave Poplar Ave E AC 341 36 11,988 85 0 90 10 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
232 3550 Madison Way Poplar Ave Pine Ave E AC 382 36 13,752 90 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21

Page 13 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
232 3560 Madison Way Pine Ave Randolph Ave E AC 611 36 21,996 95 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
233 2950 Madrona Ave Property Line Valencia St E AAC 340 36 12,240 98 0 57 43 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
233 2960 Madrona Ave Valencia St Elm St E AAC 321 36 11,556 99 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
233 2970 Madrona Ave Elm St Date St E AAC 697 36 24,876 99 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
233 2980 Madrona Ave Date St End E AAC 564 36 22,104 92 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
233 3000 Madrona Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 578 36 18,358 93 0 93 7 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
233 8860 Madrona Ave End Napoli Dr E AC 343 36 14,004 67 49 51 0 5/3/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
233 8870 Madrona Ave Napoli Dr Bracken St E AC 435 36 15,660 72 52 45 3 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
233 8880 Madrona Ave Bracken St Cypress St E AC 410 36 14,760 51 61 34 5 5/3/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
233 8890 Madrona Ave Cypress St Lambert Rd E AC 390 36 13,230 70 48 51 1 5/3/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
234 12020 Magnolia Ave Fir St Alder St E AC 1,150 33 37,422 78 9 89 2 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
234 12030 Magnolia Ave Alder St Orange Ave E AAC 430 33 13,992 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
234 12040 Magnolia Ave Orange Ave Elm St E AAC 329 33 10,857 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
234 12050 Magnolia Ave Elm St Date St E AC 711 37 26,307 71 38 62 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
234 12060 Magnolia Ave Date St Union Pl E AC 271 37 11,081 80 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
235 7810 Malibu Canyon Rd End Shadow Canyon Rd E AC 515 29 12,762 93 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
235 7820 Malibu Canyon Rd Shadow Canyon Rd Malibu Canyon Way E AC 209 29 6,061 93 0 96 4 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
235 7830 Malibu Canyon Rd Malibu Canyon Way Canyon Country Rd E AC 426 29 11,513 93 0 60 40 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
235 7840 Malibu Canyon Rd End Malibu Canyon Way E PCC 149 29 6,059 64 12 0 88 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
236 7080 Mango St Balsa Ave Apple Dr E AC 244 36 8,496 90 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
236 7090 Mango St Apple Dr Olive Ave E AC 589 36 23,354 88 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
237 2560 Maple Ave City Limit Cedar Ave E AC 161 33 5,313 100 0 85 15 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
237 2570 Maple Ave Cedar Ave Hickory St E AC 557 33 18,381 81 21 79 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
237 2690 Maple Ave Elm St Dead End E AC 780 37 28,638 80 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
238 2210 Mariner St Arovista Ave Arovista Cir E AC 130 44 5,720 69 0 50 50 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 11/1/05
238 2220 Mariner St Arovista Cir Viking Ave E AC 318 44 13,992 73 13 69 18 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 11/1/05
238 2230 Mariner St Viking Ave Property Line E AC 162 44 7,128 70 4 62 34 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 11/1/05
238 2235 Mariner St Puente St Arovista Ave E AC 1,446 48 69,408 71 0 64 36 1/31/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
239 11460 Mariposa Dr Lilac Ln Copa De Oro Dr E AC 341 36 12,276 79 35 65 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
239 9100 Mariposa Dr Tamarack Ave Ponderosa Ave E AC 1,305 37 48,285 79 62 38 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
239 9110 Mariposa Dr Ponderosa Ave City Limit E AC 735 37 27,195 91 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
240 99996 Mason Ct Birch St End E AC 177 43 6,995 70 64 36 0 2/8/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
241 12480 Masters Cir Arts Ave End E AAC 420 32 15,048 89 20 80 0 2/5/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/10

2022 13100 Matthews Ln Charleston Wy Salveson Rd E AC 361 30 10,830 86 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
242 4780 Mauna Loa St Tolbert St Vesuvius Dr E AAC 641 36 25,010 73 15 85 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
243 10840 McCart Ave City Limit De Jur St E AC 470 37 17,390 82 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
244 10845 McCart Cir McCart Ave End E AC 107 37 5,497 80 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
506 14070 McKittrick Pl N Landa Way CDS (W) E AC 1,381 36 49,712 92 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 8/28/17
506 14080 McKittrick Pl Tonner Ridge Drive N Landa Way E AC 304 36 10,937 94 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
245 6290 Meadowcreek Rd End Newhaven Dr E AAC 83 63 4,329 80 0 89 11 2/14/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
245 6340 Meadowcreek Rd Newhaven Dr Associated Rd E AAC 300 16 5,550 73 18 82 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
245 6341 Meadowcreek Rd Associated Rd Newhaven Dr E AAC 300 16 5,550 80 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
245 6350 Meadowcreek Rd End Meadowcreek Rd E AAC 74 63 3,858 82 46 54 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
245 6360 Meadowcreek Rd Meadowcreek Rd End E AAC 85 63 4,351 65 68 32 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
246 8960 Mercury Ln Berry St End E AC 932 46 44,357 72 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07

2044 13110 Merrifield Dr Santa Fe Rd Tangerine Pl E AC 218 32 6,976 69 21 79 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
247 12630 Midbury St Puente St Wesham Pl E AAC 726 32 22,976 80 0 97 3 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
247 12640 Midbury St Wesham Pl Alwick Pl E AAC 293 32 11,126 76 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16

2023 13120 Millen Ln Kiaoka Ln Hurst Pl E AC 317 17 5,389 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2045 13130 Mockingbird Ln Condor Ave Hummingbird Dr E AC 413 30 12,390 91 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
248 10010 Mooncrest Cir End Fawnridge Dr E AAC 379 36 15,156 84 12 69 19 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
249 11390 Moonstone St End Palm St E AC 717 44 33,130 56 42 45 13 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
250 3990 Moorpark Dr Brittany Ln Larkstone Ln E AC 979 36 39,544 86 63 37 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/21

2046 13140 Morning Dove Pl Roadrunner Dr Swallow Ln E AC 470 30 14,100 95 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
251 5170 Morning Glory St End Flowerhill St E AC 606 32 21,160 94 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
251 5180 Morning Glory St Flowerhill St Property Line E AC 543 32 19,144 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
252 6300 Morningflower Cir End Newhaven Dr E AAC 110 63 5,506 68 63 37 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
253 4730 Mujica Pl End Tolbert St E AAC 255 36 10,980 70 17 79 4 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
254 11760 Mulberry Ave Juniper St Acacia St E AC 670 33 21,912 90 0 93 7 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
254 11770 Mulberry Ave Acacia St Chestnut Ave E AC 198 33 6,534 91 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
254 11780 Mulberry Ave Chestnut Ave Fir St E AC 512 33 16,632 89 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
254 2410 Mulberry Ave Juniper St City Limit E AC 139 33 4,389 58 71 15 14 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15

Page 14 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
255 8900 Napoli Dr Madrona Ave St Crispen Ave E AAC 189 36 6,516 100 0 0 0 7/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/21
255 8910 Napoli Dr St Crispen Ave Delphia Ave E AAC 692 36 28,124 100 0 0 0 7/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/21
255 8920 Napoli Dr Delphia Ave Lambert Rd E AAC 112 36 3,816 100 0 0 0 7/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/21
525 14320 Naranjal Dr Santa Fe Dr E Coalinga Dr E AC 854 30 25,617 93 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
256 4870 Nasa St End Surveyor Ave E AC 375 46 18,337 56 64 9 27 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
256 4880 Nasa St Surveyor Ave Valencia Ave E AC 589 46 27,094 33 58 19 23 2/26/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
257 10700 Neptune Ave Beacon St Columbia St E AC 1,190 44 52,360 61 49 51 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
501 14000 Newhall Terrace CARMICHAEL DR CDS (N) E AC 678 36 4,068 83 0 100 0 5/3/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
501 14010 Newhall Terrace CARMICHAEL DR CDS (W) E AC 715 36 4,288 84 0 100 0 2/8/23 New Construction - AC 8/28/17
258 6500 Newhaven Dr Donnybrook Rd Morningflower Cir E AAC 158 16 4,128 82 0 100 0 2/14/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
258 6510 Newhaven Dr Morningflower Cir Meadowcreek Rd E AAC 247 32 7,904 79 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
258 6520 Newhaven Dr Meadowcreek Rd Waterfall Ln E AAC 317 16 5,072 81 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
258 6530 Newhaven Dr Waterfall Ln Brookside Ln E AAC 249 16 3,984 80 34 62 4 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
258 6540 Newhaven Dr Brookside Ln Dapplegray Cir E AAC 191 16 3,056 76 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
258 6550 Newhaven Dr Dapplegray Cir Strawberry Ln E AAC 54 32 1,728 62 0 97 3 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
258 6560 Newhaven Dr Strawberry Ln Acorn Cir E AAC 189 16 3,024 69 7 91 2 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
258 6570 Newhaven Dr Acorn Cir Cloverdale Dr E AAC 38 17 646 82 0 100 0 11/13/18 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
258 6590 Newhaven Dr Appleblossom Cir Daisy Cir E AAC 267 16 4,272 75 33 67 0 2/14/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
258 6600 Newhaven Dr Waterfall Dr Brookside Ln E AAC 236 16 3,776 74 9 28 63 2/14/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
258 6601 Newhaven Dr Apple Blossom Cir Dapplegray Cir E AAC 250 16 4,000 70 41 58 1 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
259 9010 Nibus St Capricorn St Tamarack Ave E AC 657 44 28,556 77 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
260 7900 Niguel Canyon Rd End Canyon Country Rd E AC 158 29 1,711 95 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
261 11200 Northwood Ave La Canada Dr La Canada Dr E AAC 109 36 3,924 100 27 73 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11220 Northwood Ave La Canada Dr San Juan Dr E AAC 182 36 12,060 100 78 21 1 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11230 Northwood Ave San Juan Dr Sandalwood Dr E AAC 334 36 12,792 100 73 27 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11240 Northwood Ave Sandalwood Dr Puente St E AAC 523 36 18,828 100 74 5 21 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11250 Northwood Ave Puente St Poinsettia Ave E AAC 460 21 11,620 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11251 Northwood Ave Poinsettia Ave Puente St E AAC 460 21 11,028 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11252 Northwood Ave Poinsettia Ave Wardman Dr E AAC 410 21 10,110 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11253 Northwood Ave Wardman Dr Poinsettia Ave E AAC 410 21 9,730 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11254 Northwood Ave Wardman Dr Dorothy Dr E AAC 486 21 11,956 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11255 Northwood Ave Dorothy Dr Wardman Ave E AAC 486 21 12,306 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11256 Northwood Ave Dorothy Dr Old Mill Dr E AC 503 21 13,503 88 0 96 4 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/21
261 11257 Northwood Ave Old Mill Dr Dorothy Dr E AC 503 21 10,563 91 0 93 7 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/21
261 11258 Northwood Ave Old Mill Dr Jonathan Dr E AC 682 21 16,422 90 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/21
261 11259 Northwood Ave Jonathan Dr Old Mill Dr E AC 682 21 16,772 91 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/21
261 11260 Northwood Ave Jonathan Dr Berry St E AC 417 22 9,874 92 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/21
261 11261 Northwood Ave Berry St Jonathan Dr E AC 417 21 9,107 93 0 91 9 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/21
261 11262 Northwood Ave Berry St End E AC 473 32 15,963 84 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
533 14400 Nuevo Pl Rubel Dr CDS (E) E AC 370 30 11,091 93 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
262 9270 Nutwood St Site Dr Arrowwood Dr E AC 186 37 6,882 83 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
262 9280 Nutwood St Arrowwood Dr Evergreen Dr E AC 296 37 10,952 74 30 70 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
262 9290 Nutwood St Evergreen Dr Tamarack Ave E AC 1,178 37 43,586 82 39 61 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
263 7790 Oak Canyon Way End Canyon Country Rd E AC 249 29 4,205 90 0 41 59 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
264 3780 Oak Pl Willow Dr Almond Dr E AC 365 33 12,392 86 32 68 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
264 8130 Oak Pl End Cliffwood Park St E AAC 131 57 9,267 95 0 100 0 3/20/21 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
264 8140 Oak Pl Cliffwood Ave Lambert Rd E AAC 762 57 43,434 99 0 100 0 1/8/21 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
265 10620 Oakcrest Ave Berenice Dr Poinsettia Ave E AAC 267 36 10,962 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
265 10630 Oakcrest Ave Poinsettia Ave Wardman Dr E AAC 410 36 14,760 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
265 10640 Oakcrest Ave Wardman Dr Cedarcrest Dr E AAC 229 36 10,394 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
265 11350 Oakcrest Ave End Sandalwood Dr E AC 496 36 19,368 85 0 100 0 2/2/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
265 12400 Oakcrest Ave Old Mill Rd Kellen St E AC 1,135 36 45,160 91 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
266 4680 Oakhaven Ave Elm St Date St E AAC 980 36 34,992 72 24 76 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
267 10090 Oakknoll St Forestview Dr End E AAC 470 36 18,720 80 41 59 0 5/4/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
267 10095 Oakknoll St Old Mill Ct Forestview Dr E AAC 164 36 5,904 89 0 100 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
267 10100 Oakknoll St Fawnridge Ave Old Mill Ct E AAC 350 36 14,350 87 0 100 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
520 14230 Ojai Dr E N Belridge Terrace Bardsdale Pl E AC 1,356 30 40,689 88 0 94 6 2/2/23 New Construction - AC 5/12/12
268 10110 Old Mill Rd Oakknoll St Northwood Ave E AAC 130 22 3,320 95 0 100 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
268 10115 Old Mill Rd Northwood Ave Oak Knoll St E AAC 130 22 2,860 94 0 85 15 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/13
268 12300 Old Mill Rd Northwood Ave Oakcrest Ave E AC 130 40 7,062 92 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
270 12090 Oleander St End Jasmine Dr E AC 415 32 15,048 82 33 53 14 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
270 2100 Oleander St Sequoia Ave Poinsettia Ave E AC 285 37 12,295 91 0 82 18 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23

Page 15 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
270 2110 Oleander St Poinsettia Ave Catalpa Ave E AC 582 37 21,534 84 46 54 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
271 11500 Olinda Dr Carbon Canyon Rd Olinda Pl E AC 493 36 17,748 61 28 38 34 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
271 11510 Olinda Dr Olinda Pl Verbana Ln E AC 679 36 24,444 63 52 48 0 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
271 11520 Olinda Dr Verbana Ln Buckthorn Dr E AC 360 36 12,960 73 32 65 3 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
271 11530 Olinda Dr Buckthorn Dr City Limit E AC 1,325 36 47,700 59 29 51 20 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
272 11410 Olinda Pl Carbon Canyon Rd Lilac Ln E AC 295 36 10,620 63 50 50 0 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
272 11420 Olinda Pl Lilac Ln Olinda Dr E AC 573 36 20,628 55 46 32 22 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
273 7050 Olive Ave End Buttonwood Dr E AC 290 36 12,240 84 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
273 7060 Olive Ave Buttonwood Dr Mango St E AC 537 36 21,482 89 0 97 3 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
274 3810 Olive Pl Willow Ave Almond Dr E AC 379 33 15,743 87 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
275 2790 Orange Ave Magnolia Ave Elm St E AAC 966 33 31,680 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
275 2800 Orange Ave Elm St Date St E AC 671 36 23,940 83 0 100 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
275 2810 Orange Ave Date St Imperial Hwy E AC 652 36 23,472 83 0 75 25 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
275 2820 Orange Ave Imperial Hwy Birch St E AAC 672 32 21,248 81 48 33 19 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/19
275 2830 Orange Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 680 32 21,504 61 66 34 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
275 2840 Orange Ave Ash St Property Line E AC 688 36 24,768 63 71 29 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
275 8680 Orange Ave Cypress St Lambert Rd E AC 707 36 25,092 73 60 17 23 2/9/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/94
275 8685 Orange Ave Cypress St End E AC 370 36 14,832 92 0 100 0 2/9/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

2047 13150 Orange Grove Ln Tangerine Pl North End E AC 258 32 10,021 69 37 63 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
276 9080 Orangewood Dr Tamarack Ave Ponderosa Ave E AC 1,710 37 63,270 90 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
276 9090 Orangewood Dr Ponderosa Ave City Limit E AC 516 37 19,092 93 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
277 4610 Orbiter St Kraemer Blvd Saturn St E AC 1,884 46 86,664 63 27 47 26 2/13/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02

2048 13160 Owl Pl Condor Ave Hummingbird Dr E AC 363 30 10,890 90 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
523 14290 Pacific Ct CDS (W) END (E) E AC 1,158 30 34,749 93 0 100 0 2/2/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
278 2 Palm Dr End Elm St E AC 681 33 24,249 67 64 36 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
280 6970 Palmetto Pl End Pomelo Ave E AAC 493 36 19,260 86 0 97 3 2/1/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08

2049 13170 Paloma Ct Hawks Dr South End E AC 261 30 9,577 94 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
281 6860 Papaya Pl End Woodland Ave E AAC 172 36 10,142 88 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
282 8600 Park Ln State College Blvd End E AAC 982 35 36,570 100 0 0 0 1/1/22 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/22
283 10042 Parkcrest Way End Sunnyhills Ave E AAC 285 36 12,060 100 0 75 25 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
283 10044 Parkcrest Way Sunnyhills Ave Beechwood Dr E AAC 225 36 7,812 100 0 84 16 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15

2050 13180 Partridge Cir Sandpiper Wy North End E AC 207 30 7,957 91 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
284 11940 Peach Ave End Cherry St E AC 492 33 21,314 76 0 100 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
285 2050 Pear St End Poinsettia Ave E AC 363 37 14,943 89 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
286 3740 Pecan Pl Cottonwood Dr Pepperwood Dr E AC 243 33 7,887 89 0 100 0 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
287 2010 Pecan St Puente St Sequoia Ave E AC 273 37 10,101 90 0 85 15 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
287 2020 Pecan St Sequoia Ave Poinsettia Ave E AC 250 37 9,250 95 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
287 2030 Pecan St End Poinsettia Ave E AC 357 37 15,009 91 0 52 48 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
288 8720 Pepper Tree Dr Forest Pl Lambert Rd E AAC 558 36 19,800 75 77 23 0 1/14/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
288 8730 Pepper Tree Dr Eastwood Pl Forest Pl E AAC 280 36 10,080 63 75 25 0 1/21/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
288 8740 Pepper Tree Dr Dalewood Pl Eastwood Pl E AAC 280 36 10,080 88 0 56 44 1/21/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
288 8750 Pepper Tree Dr Clove Pl Dalewood Pl E AAC 240 36 8,640 80 72 25 3 1/21/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
288 8760 Pepper Tree Dr Brea Blvd Clove Pl E AAC 552 36 24,172 82 36 41 23 1/14/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
289 3760 Pepperwood Dr End Pecan Pl E AC 150 33 6,726 90 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
289 3770 Pepperwood Dr Pecan Pl Jacaranda Pl E AC 489 33 17,487 87 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21

2024 13190 Peterkin Pl Skyler  Wy Jones Dr E AC 269 22 5,918 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2051 13200 Pheasant Ln Blue Jay Dr West End E AC 327 30 9,810 87 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
532 14390 Philips Ct Rubel Dr CDS (S) E AC 882 30 26,460 91 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
509 14110 Pico Canyon Ln Alamitos Rd N San Ardo Dr E AC 797 36 28,680 86 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
290 2530 Pine Ave Cedar Ave Hickory St E AC 720 37 26,640 79 11 89 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
290 2540 Pine Ave Hickory St Elm St E AC 302 37 11,174 64 63 37 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
290 2550 Pine Ave Elm St Date St E AC 664 37 24,568 71 28 72 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
290 3440 Pine Ave Madison Way End E AC 619 36 22,784 94 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
290 3445 Pine Ave Imperial Hwy End E AC 141 37 5,217 91 0 68 32 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
291 9300 Pineridge St Arrowwood Dr Evergreen Dr E AC 256 37 9,176 83 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
291 9310 Pineridge St Evergreen Dr Tamarack Ave E AC 828 37 30,340 83 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
292 11400 Pioneer St Lambert Rd Puente St E AC 1,649 44 72,556 56 43 38 19 5/4/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
528 14350 Piru Ln E Naranja Dr Signal Hill Ct E AC 413 30 12,381 93 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
534 14410 Plains Ct E Rubel Dr CDS (E) E AC 309 30 9,270 93 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
294 13600 Plum Ave Hillhaven Dr Greenbriar Ln E AC 225 32 7,200 95 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
294 4480 Plum Ave End Eucalyptus St E AC 245 32 9,384 93 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
295 10360 Poinsettia Ave Joyce Dr Walling Ave E AC 835 36 33,560 45 53 47 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Cape Seal 6/28/25

Page 16 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
295 10600 Poinsettia Ave Northwood Ave Oakcrest Ave E AAC 148 36 5,040 100 56 28 16 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
295 10610 Poinsettia Ave End Oakcrest Ave E AAC 166 36 5,976 100 87 13 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
295 2070 Poinsettia Ave Pecan St Teak St E AC 314 37 11,840 91 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
295 2080 Poinsettia Ave Teak St Pear St E AC 279 37 10,323 92 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
295 2090 Poinsettia Ave Pear St Oleander St E AC 229 37 8,473 96 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
296 6930 Pomelo Ave Avocado St Filbert Pl E AAC 246 36 11,006 82 12 88 0 5/3/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
296 6940 Pomelo Ave Filbert Pl Sungrove Pl E AAC 252 36 9,072 88 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
296 6950 Pomelo Ave Sungrove Pl Palmetto Pl E AAC 253 36 9,108 87 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
296 6960 Pomelo Ave Palmetto Pl Lambert Rd E AAC 234 36 6,924 75 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
297 9140 Ponderosa Ave Orangewood Dr Mariposa Dr E AC 289 37 10,693 89 0 89 11 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
297 9150 Ponderosa Ave Mariposa Dr Driftwood Ave E AC 426 37 15,762 88 0 65 35 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
297 9160 Ponderosa Ave Driftwood Ave Hazelwood Pl E AC 549 37 20,313 86 0 82 18 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
297 9170 Ponderosa Ave Hazelwood Pl City Limit E AC 262 37 9,694 89 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
298 2500 Poplar Ave Alder St Spruce St E AC 522 36 20,792 72 27 73 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
298 2510 Poplar Ave Spruce St Elm St E AC 687 37 25,419 74 33 67 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
298 2520 Poplar Ave Elm St Date St E AC 660 37 24,198 72 7 91 2 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
298 3370 Poplar Ave Imperial Hwy Madison Way E AC 587 32 18,272 83 49 51 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
298 3380 Poplar Ave Madison Way Birch St E AC 739 32 23,392 87 0 96 4 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
298 3390 Poplar Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 347 36 12,492 92 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
298 3400 Poplar Ave Ash St Willow Dr E AC 291 36 10,476 91 29 71 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
298 3410 Poplar Ave Willow Dr Cottonwood Dr E AC 287 36 10,332 83 48 44 8 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
298 3420 Poplar Ave Cottonwood Dr Paseo De Toner E AC 325 36 13,500 87 0 96 4 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
299 5080 Primrose Ave Starflower St Foxglove St E AC 186 32 5,952 94 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
299 5090 Primrose Ave Foxglove St Wintergreen St E AC 293 32 9,376 94 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
299 5100 Primrose Ave End Wintergreen St E AC 478 32 17,064 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
300 12290 Puente St Briarwood Dr End E AC 132 18 2,376 96 0 100 0 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
300 230 Puente St Whittier Blvd El Encanto Dr E AC 442 37 16,354 82 0 100 0 2/2/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
300 240 Puente St El Encanto Dr Alta Mesa Way E AC 729 37 26,973 79 21 53 26 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
300 250 Puente St Alta Mesa Way Northwood Ave E AC 275 48 13,200 90 22 78 0 2/2/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
300 260 Puente St Northwood Ave Woodcrest Ave E AC 921 48 44,208 82 12 86 2 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
300 270 Puente St Woodcrest Ave City Limit E AAC 408 48 19,584 87 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
301 9960 Quail Cir End Quail Ln E AAC 221 36 9,468 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
302 9970 Quail Ln Quail Ct End E AAC 173 36 7,473 95 0 57 43 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
302 9980 Quail Ln Starcrest St Quail Ct E AAC 208 36 7,200 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15

2052 13210 Railway Ave Santa Fe Rd Landmark Ln E AC 528 32 16,896 85 24 76 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2052 13220 Railway Ave Santa Fe Rd Whistle Train Ln E AC 214 32 6,848 83 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
303 5490 Rainbow Ln Wandering Ln Branch Ln E AAC 1,228 32 43,666 100 0 0 0 11/1/22 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
304 5500 Raintree Dr Country Club Dr End E AAC 498 33 20,334 100 0 0 0 2/6/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/6/24
305 3451 Randolph Ave Imperial Ave Imperial Ave E AC 445 30 19,737 89 0 90 10 10/30/18 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
305 3460 Randolph Ave Imperial Hwy Madison Way E AC 1,046 23 30,008 45 76 21 3 11/21/18 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
305 3461 Randolph Ave Madison Way Imperial Hwy E AC 1,049 23 29,533 59 78 16 6 11/6/18 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
305 3470 Randolph Ave Madison Way Birch St E AC 724 60 43,440 61 38 54 8 10/30/18 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
305 3480 Randolph Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 350 37 12,950 86 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
305 3490 Randolph Ave Ash St Willow Dr E AC 354 37 13,098 88 0 100 0 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
305 3500 Randolph Ave Willow Dr Willow Dr E AC 238 36 8,568 91 0 100 0 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
305 3510 Randolph Ave Willow Dr Cottonwood Dr E AC 106 37 3,922 86 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
305 3520 Randolph Ave End Cottonwood Dr E AC 404 37 16,635 84 49 51 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
306 4930 Ranger Ave End Enterprise St E AC 350 46 17,187 44 70 24 6 2/26/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
306 4940 Ranger Ave Enterprise St Birch St E AC 619 46 28,474 47 57 37 6 2/26/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
307 4010 Ravencrest Dr Brittany Ln Greenbriar Ln E AC 476 36 16,848 92 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
307 4020 Ravencrest Dr Greenbriar Ln Larkstone Ln E AC 390 36 14,040 94 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
307 4030 Ravencrest Dr Larkstone Ln Castlegate Ln E AC 248 36 8,928 98 0 21 79 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
308 4490 Redbay Ave Eucalyptus St Birch St E AC 428 36 15,408 93 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
309 6870 Redbud St State College Blvd Woodland Ave E AAC 356 36 12,501 92 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08

2053 13230 Redtail Dr Pheasant Ln  Hawks Dr E AC 456 30 13,680 86 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
310 2730 Redwood Ave End Date St E AC 356 33 11,748 83 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
310 2740 Redwood Ave Date St Union Pl E AC 335 37 13,449 77 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
310 3340 Redwood Ave Imperial Hwy Birch St E AC 1,060 32 33,920 92 0 93 7 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
310 3360 Redwood Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 481 30 9,630 97 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21

2025 13240 Reynoso Pk Skyler Wy Jones Dr E AC 371 30 11,130 87 0 29 71 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2025 13250 Reynoso Pk Skyler Wy Charleston Wy E AC 251 30 7,530 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2025 13460 Reynoso Pk Charleston Wy Launer Rd E AC 354 30 10,620 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17

Page 17 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
312 5820 Rimview Ln Shadetree Cir Crestview Cir E AAC 232 33 7,392 100 30 40 30 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22

2054 13270 Roadrunner Dr Cardinal St Condor Ave E AC 585 30 18,800 86 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
313 9840 Robert Ct End Eden Way E AC 572 36 22,104 85 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
313 9850 Robert Ct Northwood Ave Eden Way E AC 416 36 14,976 85 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17

2055 13280 Robins Pl Roadrunner Dr Falcon Wy E AC 469 30 14,070 93 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
314 12500 Roscoe St Central Ave End E AC 1,265 32 43,098 91 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
504 14050 Rosecrans Ct Sutter Ct CDS (W) E AC 418 30 12,555 95 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
517 14200 Roughneck Pl E Bardsdale Pl N Cable Canyon Pl E AC 451 30 13,530 95 0 100 0 2/2/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
316 5660 Roundtree Ct End Foothill Ln E AAC 577 32 20,114 100 42 58 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
531 14380 Rubel Dr Santa Fe RD Philips Ct E AC 948 30 28,440 88 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
317 11020 Rutledge Pl End Lockhaven Dr E AC 267 27 8,764 50 66 33 1 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16

2013 12700 Salveson Rd Tremaine Rd Berry St E AC 180 24 4,320 89 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2013 12830 Salveson Rd Matthews Ln Tremaine Rd E AC 435 30 13,050 85 15 85 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
510 14120 San Ardo Dr N Alamitos Rd CDS (S) E AC 1,670 36 60,109 89 0 94 6 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
318 11060 San Juan Dr Whittier Blvd El Encanto Dr E AC 275 36 9,468 94 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
318 11070 San Juan Dr El Encanto Las Lomas Dr E AC 275 36 9,900 90 0 82 18 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
318 11080 San Juan Dr Las Lomas Dr Alta Mesa Dr E AC 266 36 10,926 93 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
318 11280 San Juan Dr Northwood Ave Woodcrest Ave E AAC 1,015 36 38,690 100 49 34 17 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
319 7770 Sand Canyon Way End Stone Canyon Way E AC 353 29 3,625 93 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
320 11290 Sandalwood Dr Northwood Ave Oakcrest Ave E AAC 267 36 9,612 100 60 19 21 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
320 11300 Sandalwood Dr Oakcrest Ave Birchcrest E AAC 270 36 9,720 100 74 26 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
320 11310 Sandalwood Dr Birchcrest Woodcrest Ave E AAC 270 36 9,720 100 57 24 19 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
320 11320 Sandalwood Dr Woodcrest Ave Midbury St E AAC 358 36 12,888 100 64 36 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21

2056 13290 Sandpiper Way Lark Ln Valencia Ave E AC 1,021 32 33,922 85 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
321 10200 Sandra Ct End Wardman Dr E AAC 200 33 8,178 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21

2057 13300 Santa Fe Rd Valley Crossing Rd Cardinal St E AC 1,277 36 45,972 75 56 44 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2057 13310 Santa Fe Rd Cardinal St Condor Ave E AC 603 36 21,708 67 30 70 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2057 13320 Santa Fe Rd Condor Ave Valencia Ave E AC 517 36 18,612 75 22 78 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2057 13330 Santa Fe Rd Railway Ave Valley Crossing Rd E AC 816 36 29,376 82 33 67 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2057 13340 Santa Fe Rd Merrifield Dr Railway Ave E AC 855 36 30,780 76 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2057 13350 Santa Fe Rd Carbon Canyon Rd Merrifield Dr E AC 871 36 31,356 75 18 82 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2057 14250 Santa Fe Rd Lambert Rd Tapia Ln E AC 1,362 60 81,720 95 0 100 0 1/23/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
2057 14260 Santa Fe Rd Naranjal Dr Valencia Ave E AC 2,249 40 89,960 95 0 100 0 1/23/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
2057 14270 Santa Fe Rd Tapia Ln Naranjal Dr E AC 1,932 40 77,280 95 0 100 0 1/23/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
502 14020 Santa Paula Dr Sutter Ct CDS (N) E AC 672 37 24,857 93 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
502 14030 Santa Paula Dr N Landa Way Sutter Ct E AC 1,581 37 58,497 91 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
322 7290 Santiago Canyon Way End Kings Canyon Rd E AC 642 29 15,370 72 7 93 0 1/21/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
323 4590 Saturn St Kraemer Blvd Imperial Hwy E AC 2,797 46 128,662 75 12 75 13 2/7/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
323 4600 Saturn St Imperial Hwy Orbiter St E AC 1,163 46 53,498 65 69 29 2 2/13/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
324 5290 Seneca Ct End Thistle Rd E AAC 208 32 6,656 74 23 77 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
325 2060 Sequoia Ave Pecan St Oleander St E AC 831 37 32,275 96 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23

2026 13360 Sexton Ln Freeman Ln Salveson Rd E AC 264 22 5,808 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
519 14220 Shackle Line Dr E El Temblor Ranch Dr CDS (NW) E AC 870 30 26,100 82 0 100 0 5/4/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
326 5850 Shadetree Cir End Rimview Ln E AAC 361 33 12,538 100 77 23 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
326 5860 Shadetree Cir Wandering Ln Rimview Ln E AAC 203 33 6,549 100 0 97 3 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
327 7800 Shadow Canyon Rd Malibu Canyon Rd Canyon Country Rd E AC 333 29 8,816 94 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
328 10040 Shadowgrove St End Sunnyhills Ave E AAC 475 36 17,100 100 0 82 18 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
328 10050 Shadowgrove St Sunnyhills Ave Beechwood Dr E AAC 361 36 12,996 100 0 59 41 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
329 5870 Shadyvale Ln Ironbark Cir Windbreak Cir E AAC 241 33 9,839 100 26 71 3 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
330 12540 Shaffer Ct Roscoe St End E AC 236 32 9,064 91 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
331 5060 Shamrock Ave Goldenrod St Sunflower St E AC 792 32 27,529 89 0 52 48 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
331 5070 Shamrock Ave End Shamrock Ave E AC 114 30 6,051 92 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
332 12310 Shelly Ct Woodcrest Ave End E AC 140 36 6,552 88 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
507 14090 Shepherd Ln Tonner Ridge Dr CDS (N) E AC 563 36 20,268 89 0 93 7 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
333 3020 Sievers Ave Elm St Date St E AAC 614 36 21,600 92 0 48 52 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
530 14370 Signal Hill Ct E Piru Ln Unnamed E AC 323 30 9,690 92 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
530 14420 Signal Hill Ct END (E) END (W) E AC 475 30 14,250 95 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
334 7394 Silver Canyon Way End Apricot Ave E AC 369 29 7,537 56 46 47 7 1/21/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
335 6170 Singingwood Ln End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 191 44 5,837 69 7 88 5 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
336 9240 Site Dr Central Ave Glenoaks St E AC 1,123 36 40,428 86 0 59 41 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
336 9250 Site Dr Glenoaks St Nutwood St E AC 1,225 36 44,100 81 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
336 9260 Site Dr Nutwood St City Limit E AC 494 36 17,784 78 0 88 12 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07

Page 18 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
2058 13370 Skylark Way Lark Ln West End E AC 763 32 26,181 91 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2027 13380 Skyler Way Bennett Ln Williams St E AC 174 24 4,176 91 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2027 13390 Skyler Way Williams St Hurst Pl E AC 605 27 16,335 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2027 13400 Skyler Way Hurst Pl Reynoso Pk E AC 430 30 12,900 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
337 11610 Skywood St Vallejo St Sonora St E AC 1,056 36 39,766 44 60 40 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
337 11620 Skywood St Sonora St Palm St E AC 112 36 3,744 44 77 23 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
337 7670 Skywood St Buttonwood St Cliffwood Ave E AC 318 36 11,232 83 46 29 25 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
337 7680 Skywood St Cliffwood Ave Driftwood Ave E AC 242 36 8,496 93 0 100 0 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
338 6030 Sleepy Hollow Ln Associated Rd Arbor Cir E AAC 103 24 1,416 100 67 33 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
338 6035 Sleepy Hollow Ln Arbor Cir Associated Rd E AAC 103 24 1,416 100 55 45 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
338 6040 Sleepy Hollow Ln Arbor Cir Falling Leaf Cir E AAC 238 33 7,854 100 31 69 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
339 5240 Snowfield St Thistle Rd Baler Ave E AAC 642 32 20,544 73 19 81 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
340 11615 Sonora St Skywood St Lotus Pl E AC 207 36 7,102 64 78 22 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
340 11625 Sonora St Lotus Pl Blossom Pl E AC 216 36 9,526 67 43 57 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
527 14340 Soriano Pl Walking Beam Pl Unnamed E AC 837 30 25,101 99 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
341 5340 Sorrel St End Hawthorne Ave E AAC 268 32 8,576 67 19 81 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
342 10430 Southridge Dr De Lay St Lockhaven Dr E AC 934 37 35,662 84 5 68 27 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
342 10440 Southridge Dr Lockhaven Dr Puente St E AC 257 28 7,446 83 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
342 10441 Southridge Dr Puente St Lockhaven Dr E AC 257 28 7,446 71 54 46 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
343 12070 Spruce St Cherry St Laurel Ave E AAC 237 33 7,821 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
343 12080 Spruce St Laurel Ave Poplar Ave E AC 329 33 10,659 75 0 100 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
344 4790 Spurr Cir End Vesuvius Dr E AAC 246 36 10,368 79 20 80 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
345 8930 St Crispen Ave Delphia Ave Napoli Dr E AAC 698 36 26,878 100 0 0 0 7/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/21
345 8940 St Crispen Ave Napoli Dr Napoli Dr E AAC 1,176 36 45,836 100 0 0 0 7/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/21
346 10000 Starcrest St Quail Ln Beechwood Dr E AAC 221 36 7,740 100 0 27 73 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
346 9990 Starcrest St Fawnridge Dr Quail Ln E AAC 175 36 8,450 97 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
347 4950 Starflower St Birch St Primrose Ave E AC 140 36 5,040 95 0 100 0 2/26/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
347 4960 Starflower St Primrose Ave Larkspur Ave E AC 500 36 18,000 94 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
347 4970 Starflower St Larkspur Ave Goldenrod St E AC 367 36 13,212 94 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
347 4980 Starflower St Goldenrod St Bluebell Ave E AC 290 36 10,440 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
347 4981 Starflower St West End Starflower St E AC 85 36 3,060 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10

2059 13410 Starling Way Lark Ln West End E AC 637 32 22,149 92 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
535 14440 Stearns St CDS (W) CDS (E) P AC 1,826 40 73,040 75 14 86 0 1/31/25 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
349 10370 Steele Dr Central Ave Joyce Dr E AC 160 36 5,472 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Complete Reconstruction - AC 6/1/21
349 10380 Steele Dr Joyce Dr Tracie Dr E AC 258 36 9,288 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Complete Reconstruction - AC 6/1/21
349 10390 Steele Dr Tracie Dr Deanna Dr E AC 273 36 9,828 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Complete Reconstruction - AC 6/1/21
349 10400 Steele Dr Deanna Dr Carlson Dr E AAC 283 36 10,188 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
349 10410 Steele Dr Carlson Dr Wardman Dr E AAC 827 36 29,772 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
349 10420 Steele Dr Wardman Dr Berenice Dr E AAC 1,073 33 36,561 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
350 7730 Stone Canyon Way End Driftwood Ave E AC 550 29 13,949 90 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
350 7740 Stone Canyon Way Driftwood Ave Sand Canyon Way E AC 196 29 5,684 89 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
350 7750 Stone Canyon Way Sand Canyon Way Trabuco Canyon Way E AC 279 29 8,091 89 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
350 7760 Stone Canyon Way Trabuco Canyon Way Canyon Country Rd E AC 366 29 9,628 91 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
351 9860 Stonebridge Dr Beechwood Dr Berry St E AAC 253 44 8,008 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
352 9940 Stonecrest Cir Beechwood Dr End E AAC 338 36 13,680 100 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
353 5640 Stony Ln Winding Ln Grove Hill Ct E AAC 684 32 21,888 100 43 49 8 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
353 5650 Stony Ln Grove Hill Ct Sunrise Rd E AAC 131 32 4,192 100 0 100 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
354 9810 Strattford St End Amber Hill Dr E AC 365 36 14,940 80 0 43 57 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
354 9820 Strattford St End Amber Hill Dr E AC 597 36 23,292 87 0 94 6 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
355 6240 Strawberry Ln End Newhaven Dr E AAC 118 44 3,501 57 34 66 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
356 12450 Studio Dr Aria Dr Legacy Dr E AAC 360 32 12,060 75 22 78 0 2/5/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/10
357 6200 Summerfield Cir End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 219 44 6,733 73 52 46 2 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
358 5930 Suncrest Cir End Woodhill Ln E AAC 295 33 12,811 100 54 40 6 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
359 14460 Sunflower St Lambert Rd Stearns St P AC 172 40 6,880 85 36 64 0 1/31/25 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
359 4990 Sunflower St End Bluebell Ave E AC 450 32 16,168 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
359 5000 Sunflower St Bluebell Ave Flowerhill St E AC 144 32 4,608 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
359 5010 Sunflower St Flowerhill St Shamrock Ave E AC 190 50 9,500 94 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
359 5020 Sunflower St Shamrock Ave Lambert Rd E AC 314 50 14,130 95 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
360 6980 Sungrove Pl End Pomelo Ave E AAC 461 36 18,108 87 0 98 2 2/1/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
361 10060 Sunnyhills Ave Shadowgrove St Vista Cir E AAC 263 36 9,468 100 0 68 32 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
361 10070 Sunnyhills Ave Vista Cir Elkridge St E AAC 260 36 9,360 100 0 61 39 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
361 10080 Sunnyhills Ave Elkridge St Parkcrest Way E AAC 398 36 14,328 100 0 71 29 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15

Page 19 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
362 5600 Sunrise Rd Foothill Ln Hilltop Ln E AAC 217 36 7,812 100 42 58 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
362 5610 Sunrise Rd Hilltop Ln Stony Ln E AAC 285 36 10,260 100 86 14 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
362 5620 Sunrise Rd Stony Ln Lambert Rd E AAC 290 36 9,952 100 30 65 5 2/1/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
425 13001 Sunrose Ct Cederwood Ct End E AAC 220 36 9,370 87 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
363 4890 Surveyor Ave Nasa St Enterprise St E AC 1,214 46 58,344 31 81 18 1 2/14/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
503 14040 Sutter Ct Santa Paula Dr CDS (S) E AC 629 30 18,885 93 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12

2060 13420 Swallow Ln Morning Dove Pl Cardinal st E AC 187 30 5,610 95 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
364 2700 Sycamore Ave Elm St Date St E AC 762 36 27,144 83 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
364 2710 Sycamore Ave Date St Union Pl E AC 294 37 10,878 83 0 68 32 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
364 2720 Sycamore Ave Union Pl Imperial Hwy E AC 315 37 11,655 84 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
365 9400 Tamarack Ave Central Ave Orangewood Dr E AC 490 36 17,352 82 32 57 11 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
365 9410 Tamarack Ave Orangewood Dr Mariposa Dr E AC 250 36 9,000 67 0 79 21 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
365 9430 Tamarack Ave Mariposa Dr Glenoaks St E AC 472 36 16,992 85 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
365 9440 Tamarack Ave Glenoaks St Pineridge St E AC 225 36 8,100 78 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
365 9450 Tamarack Ave Pineridge St Nutwood St E AC 708 36 25,488 81 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
365 9460 Tamarack Ave Nutwood St Evergreen Dr E AC 289 36 10,404 80 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07

2061 13430 Tangerine Pl Merriefild Dr North End E AC 558 32 19,621 73 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2061 13440 Tangerine Pl Merrifield Dr South End E AC 627 32 21,829 74 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Single Bitum. 8/1/12
366 12140 Tanglewood St Palm St Archwood Ave E AC 117 44 4,196 71 49 41 10 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
366 12150 Tanglewood St Archwood Ave Breezewood Ct E AC 217 36 7,812 65 20 80 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
366 12160 Tanglewood St Breezewood Ct Dogwood Ct E AC 220 36 7,920 70 0 100 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
366 12170 Tanglewood St Dogwood Ct Elkwood Ct E AC 162 36 5,832 69 0 100 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
522 14280 Tapia Ln Santa Fe Rd E Pacific Ct E AC 213 30 6,390 95 0 100 0 2/2/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
367 2040 Teak St End Poinsettia Ave E AC 354 37 14,610 88 23 60 17 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
368 8170 Telstar Way Thor Pl Cliffwood Ave E AAC 207 36 6,876 99 0 100 0 1/8/21 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
369 5250 Thistle Rd Snowfield St Wayward Ct E AAC 247 32 7,904 73 11 89 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
369 5260 Thistle Rd Wayward Ct Edgemont Ln E AAC 1,087 32 43,524 76 21 79 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
369 5270 Thistle Rd Edgemont Ln Seneca Ct E AAC 124 32 3,968 69 16 84 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
369 5280 Thistle Rd Seneca Ct Woodacre St E AAC 275 32 8,800 65 13 87 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
370 8150 Thor Pl End Telstar Way E AAC 357 36 14,652 100 0 100 0 1/8/21 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
370 8160 Thor Pl Telstar Way Cliffwood Ave E AAC 392 36 13,824 99 0 100 0 1/8/21 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
371 5800 Timbercreek Cir End Wandering Ln E AAC 275 33 9,925 100 30 63 7 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
372 11380 Titan Way End Gemini Ave E AAC 455 44 21,532 92 0 100 0 2/13/25 Overlay - AC Structural 10/1/20
373 4740 Tolbert St End Mujica Pl E AAC 261 36 11,196 81 10 90 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
373 4750 Tolbert St Mujica Pl Vesuvius Dr E AAC 261 36 9,180 71 11 56 33 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
373 4760 Tolbert St Vesuvius Dr Mauna Loa St E AAC 363 36 15,218 73 11 87 2 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
513 14150 Tonner Ridge Dr N Belridge Terrace McKittrick Pl E AC 1,476 40 59,034 90 0 96 4 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
513 14160 Tonner Ridge Dr E Santa Fe Rd N Belridge Terrace E AC 1,010 40 40,394 92 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
374 7780 Trabuco Canyon Way End Stone Canyon Way E AC 279 29 2,900 93 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
375 10280 Tracie Dr Carlson Dr Steele Dr E AC 404 36 14,112 90 0 100 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
375 10750 Tracie Dr End Puente St E AC 764 32 29,660 82 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
376 5990 Trailview Cir Windwood Ln End E AAC 308 33 11,464 100 39 61 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
376 6000 Trailview Cir End Windwood Ln E AAC 168 33 6,694 100 38 62 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
377 5810 Treeridge Cir End Wandering Ln E AAC 633 33 22,639 100 46 54 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22

2028 13450 Tremaine Rd Charleston Wy Salveson Rd E AC 372 30 11,160 88 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2062 13461 Trolley Ct  Boxcar Ln West End E AC 597 32 20,869 74 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
378 3320 Union Pl Magnolia Ave Sycamore Ave E AC 307 37 12,413 79 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
378 3330 Union Pl Sycamore Ave Redwood Ave E AC 356 37 14,226 76 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
379 13580 Valencia Ave Sandpipper Way Gate E AC 822 26 21,672 47 36 45 19 2/14/25 New Construction - AC 1/1/80
380 2940 Valencia St Madrona Ave Walnut Ave E AAC 377 36 13,572 98 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
381 11560 Vallejo St Skywood St Lotus Pl E AC 222 36 9,742 54 56 44 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
381 11570 Vallejo St Lotus Pl Blossom Pl E AC 213 36 7,668 60 49 51 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
381 11580 Vallejo St Blossom Pl City Limit E AC 107 36 3,564 56 63 37 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10

2063 13470 Valley Crossing Rd Santa Fe Rd Whistle Train Ln E AC 241 32 7,712 88 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2063 13480 Valley Crossing Rd Santa Fe Rd Landmark Ln E AC 526 32 16,832 84 13 87 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2063 13490 Valley Crossing Rd Landmark Ln Dr South End E AC 300 32 9,600 86 16 84 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
382 4510 Valverde Ave End Holly St E AC 160 36 7,560 92 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
382 4520 Valverde Ave Holly St Eucalyptus St E AC 292 36 10,512 93 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
382 4530 Valverde Ave Eucalyptus St Camphor Cir E AC 235 36 8,460 93 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
382 4540 Valverde Ave End Camphor Cir E AC 587 32 24,884 92 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
383 8990 Vanguard Way Berry St Basse Ln E AC 1,253 40 49,800 76 31 49 20 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 11/1/04
384 11540 Verbena Ln Olinda Dr City Limit E AC 959 36 34,524 61 42 50 8 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05

Page 20 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
385 4800 Vesuvius Dr Tolbert St Etna Cir E AAC 238 36 8,568 72 7 93 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
385 4810 Vesuvius Dr Etna Cir Mauna Loa St E AAC 637 36 22,932 72 7 93 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
385 4820 Vesuvius Dr Mauna Loa St Spurr Cir E AAC 228 36 8,208 74 10 68 22 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
385 4830 Vesuvius Dr Spurr Cir Rose Dr E AAC 400 36 15,984 73 11 89 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
386 2240 Viking Ave Imperial Hwy Mariner St E AC 482 41 18,930 74 10 76 14 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 11/1/05
386 2250 Viking Ave Mariner St End E AC 671 41 28,286 71 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 11/1/05
387 10030 Vista Cir End Sunnyhills Ave E AAC 486 36 19,296 100 0 65 35 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
388 4900 Voyager Ave Enterprise St Birch St E AC 595 46 26,995 36 80 19 1 2/26/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
389 7620 Wake Forest St Cliffwood Ave Apricot Ave E AAC 263 36 9,252 84 16 84 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
389 7630 Wake Forest St Apricot Ave Aspen St E AAC 426 36 15,336 84 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
389 7640 Wake Forest St Aspen St Cycod Pl E AAC 272 36 9,792 81 20 75 5 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
389 7650 Wake Forest St Cycod Pl Cashew Ave E AAC 233 36 8,388 87 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
390 14450 Walden Rd Lambert Rd Stearns St P AC 157 40 6,280 88 33 67 0 1/31/25 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
390 5320 Walden Rd Woodacre St Lambert Rd E AAC 146 46 5,386 83 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/13
526 14330 Walking Beam Pl Naranjal Dr Unnamed E AC 871 30 26,145 90 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
391 10320 Walling Ave Puente St Berenice Dr E AC 254 36 8,856 52 40 59 1 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Cape Seal 6/28/25
391 10330 Walling Ave Berenice Dr Poinsettia Ave E AC 247 36 10,642 50 54 46 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Cape Seal 6/28/25
391 10850 Walling Ave City Limit De Lay St E AC 153 37 5,661 77 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
391 10860 Walling Ave De Lay St De Jur St E AC 356 37 13,172 76 0 91 9 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
391 10870 Walling Ave De Jur St Lockhaven Dr E AC 694 37 29,178 60 58 42 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
391 10880 Walling Ave Lockhaven Dr Puente St E AC 256 37 9,176 73 60 40 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
392 2850 Walnut Ave Juniper St Acacia St E AAC 462 36 16,632 90 0 94 6 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
392 2860 Walnut Ave Acacia St Fir St E AAC 673 36 24,228 93 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
392 2870 Walnut Ave Fir St Valencia St E AAC 1,230 36 44,496 95 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
392 2880 Walnut Ave Valencia St Elm St E AAC 113 36 4,068 88 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
392 2890 Walnut Ave Elm St Date St E AAC 672 36 24,192 92 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
392 2900 Walnut Ave Date St Imperial Hwy E AAC 651 36 23,086 94 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
392 2930 Walnut Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 565 36 17,890 94 0 100 0 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
393 8850 Walnut Way Brea Blvd End E AC 661 20 12,470 60 43 56 1 2/9/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
394 5700 Wandering Ln Country Hills Rd Branch Ln E AAC 156 36 5,616 100 84 16 0 2/7/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
394 5710 Wandering Ln Branch Ln Rainbow Ln E AAC 269 36 9,684 100 89 11 0 2/7/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
394 5720 Wandering Ln Rainbow Ln Foothill Ln E AAC 245 36 8,820 100 83 17 0 2/7/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
394 5730 Wandering Ln Foothill Ln Wildflower Cir E AAC 758 36 27,288 100 30 70 0 2/7/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
394 5740 Wandering Ln Wildflower Cir Timbercreek Cir E AAC 176 36 6,336 100 0 100 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
394 5750 Wandering Ln Timbercreek Cir Treeridge Cir E AAC 91 35 3,185 100 0 100 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
394 5760 Wandering Ln Treeridge Cir Shadetree Cir E AAC 153 35 5,355 100 0 100 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
394 5770 Wandering Ln Shadetree Cir Ironbark Cir E AAC 153 35 5,355 100 44 56 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
394 5780 Wandering Ln Ironbark Cir Lambert Rd E AAC 334 35 10,840 100 54 46 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
395 10450 Wardman Dr Puente St Berenice Dr E AAC 320 26 8,320 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10455 Wardman Dr Berenice Dr Puente St E AAC 320 26 8,320 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10460 Wardman Dr Berenice Dr Steele Dr E AAC 598 36 29,302 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10470 Wardman Dr Steele Dr Sandra Ct E AAC 363 36 13,068 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10480 Wardman Dr Sandra Ct Harvey Dr E AAC 291 36 10,476 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10490 Wardman Dr Harvey Dr Bonnie Way E AAC 232 36 8,352 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10500 Wardman Dr Bonnie Way Ethelinda Way E AAC 345 36 12,420 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10510 Wardman Dr Ethelinda Way Dorothy Dr E AAC 857 36 30,852 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10520 Wardman Dr Dorothy Dr Northwood Ave E AAC 631 36 22,716 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10550 Wardman Dr Birchcrest Dr Woodcrest Ave E AAC 516 36 18,576 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
395 12240 Wardman Dr Oakcrest Ave Birchcrest E AAC 210 36 7,272 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
396 6370 Waterfall Ln End Newhaven Dr E AAC 306 44 9,033 73 12 88 0 2/12/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
397 6150 Waterwheel Ln End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 171 44 5,703 56 52 46 2 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
398 5370 Wayward Ct End Thistle Rd E AAC 280 32 8,704 72 25 75 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
148 4 Weeping Willow Rd Railway Ave Parking Lot E AC 335 31 10,385 80 0 100 0 1/31/25 New Construction - AC 1/1/80
399 12280 Wesham Pl Midbury St End E AAC 170 32 6,525 86 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
400 4140 Westmoreland Dr End Castlegate Ln E AC 360 36 14,472 94 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
400 4150 Westmoreland Dr Castlegate Ln Dover Cir E AC 298 36 10,440 92 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
400 4160 Westmoreland Dr Dover Cir Devonshire Dr E AC 466 36 16,776 90 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
401 3790 Westridge Way End Willow Dr E AC 160 33 6,858 90 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
402 6320 Whispering Glen Ln End Donnybrook Rd E AC 87 63 4,352 94 0 100 0 2/8/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
402 6330 Whispering Glen Ln Donnybrook Rd End E AC 105 63 4,561 70 78 22 0 2/8/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

2064 13500 Whistle Train Rd Valley Crossing Rd West End E AC 515 32 16,480 87 0 75 25 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2064 13510 Whistle Train Rd Boxcar Ln Valley Crossing Rd E AC 800 32 26,850 88 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12

Page 21 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
403 11055 Whittier Ave Bexley Ln End E AC 410 35 15,970 84 0 100 0 3/30/23 Complete Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
403 22220 Whittier Ave Whittier Ave North End E AC 95 57 5,565 69 56 44 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
404 11000 Wickford Dr End Havenhurst Dr E AC 313 27 10,168 81 7 93 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
404 11010 Wickford Dr Havenhurst Dr Lockhaven Dr E AC 298 37 12,154 83 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
406 5790 Wildflower Cir End Wandering Ln E AAC 621 33 22,243 100 30 66 4 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
407 11670 Wildrose Dr Larchwood Dr Lantana Ave E AC 874 37 39,616 77 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15

2029 13520 Williams St Skyler Wy Casner Wy E AC 365 30 10,950 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
408 3660 Willow Dr Poplar Ave Randolph Ave E AC 847 33 27,591 90 0 100 0 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
408 3670 Willow Dr Randolph Ave Oak Pl E AC 275 33 8,811 90 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
408 3680 Willow Dr Oak Pl Westridge Way E AC 290 33 9,306 91 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
408 3690 Willow Dr Westridge Way Eastridge Way E AC 295 33 9,735 91 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
408 3700 Willow Dr Eastridge Way Almond Dr E AC 290 37 12,480 92 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
409 5880 Windbreak Cir End Shadyvale Ln E AAC 211 34 9,599 100 75 25 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
410 4350 Windermere Cir End Eucalyptus Ave E AC 151 36 9,386 80 0 100 0 2/6/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
411 5630 Winding Ln Foothill Ln Stony Ln E AAC 1,102 32 35,264 100 37 63 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
412 5970 Windwood Ln Associated Rd Longbranch Cir E AAC 160 21 4,596 100 21 79 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
412 5975 Windwood Ln Longbranch Cir Associated Rd E AAC 160 21 2,068 100 34 66 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
412 5980 Windwood Ln Longbranch Cir Trailview Cir E AAC 240 33 7,656 100 39 61 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
413 5120 Wintergreen St End Primrose Ave E AC 261 32 10,120 94 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
414 6210 Wisteria Dr End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 199 44 6,123 72 20 73 7 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
415 3 Woodacre St Thistle Rd Walden Rd E AAC 280 32 8,960 64 16 84 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/13
415 5310 Woodacre St Walden Rd Hawthorne Ave E AAC 299 32 9,568 69 0 100 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/13
416 10660 Woodcrest Ave Cedarcrest Dr End E AAC 392 36 16,262 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
416 11270 Woodcrest Ave La Canada Dr San Juan Dr E AAC 190 36 11,140 100 54 46 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
416 11330 Woodcrest Ave Sandalwood Dr Puente St E AAC 534 36 18,936 100 52 28 20 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
416 12230 Woodcrest Ave Puente St Wardman Dr E AAC 1,073 36 38,628 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
416 12350 Woodcrest Ave Arthur Dr Kellen E AC 1,120 36 42,470 89 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
417 5910 Woodhill Ln Associated Rd Heartwood Cir E AAC 137 23 2,301 100 54 46 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
417 5915 Woodhill Ln Heartwood Cir Associated Rd E AAC 137 23 2,301 100 40 60 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
417 5920 Woodhill Ln Heartwood Cir Suncrest Cir E AAC 235 33 6,903 100 32 68 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
418 6900 Woodland Ave Avocado St Redbud St E AAC 623 36 24,578 60 27 72 1 5/3/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
418 6910 Woodland Ave Redbud St Papaya Pl E AAC 244 36 10,934 85 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08

2065 13530 Woodpecker St Hummingbird Dr Condor Ave E AC 417 30 12,510 92 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/04
420 10800 Worthington St Carey Ave Hodson Ave E AC 325 37 13,775 79 24 76 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
421 12550 Zachary Ct Roscoe St End E AC 317 32 12,856 89 21 79 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
422 7300 Zion Canyon Way End Kings Canyon Rd E PCC 126 21 4,428 74 0 0 100 3/20/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

93.2 17,680,008

Alleys
2108 15011 Alley E/O Brea Bl Elm St Date St O AAC 660 20 12,960 84 0 100 0 2/6/25 Overlay - AC Structural 3/4/15
2108 15012 Alley E/O Brea Bl Date St Imperial Hwy O AAC 570 20 9,300 78 0 63 37 2/6/25 Overlay - AC Structural 3/4/15
2107 15009 Alley E/O Madrona Ave Valencia St South End O AC 380 19 6,460 90 0 100 0 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2116 15026 Alley E/O Orange Av Lambert Rd Cypress St O AC 800 20 13,600 63 66 34 0 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2102 15003 Alley E/O Puente St Joyce Dr Walling Ave O AAC 700 20 11,200 97 0 100 0 2/13/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
2101 15002 Alley N/O Birch St Randolph Ave Poplar Ave O AC 780 25 19,250 92 0 100 0 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2114 15022 Alley S/O Birch St Laurel Ave Alley W/O Poplar Ave O AC 176 30 3,540 98 0 100 0 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2109 15023 Alley S/O Imperial Hwy 300 Imperial Hwy Sycamore Ave O AC 500 20 8,500 88 62 38 0 2/6/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 10/1/06
2109 15055 Alley S/O Imperial Hwy Walnut Ave Alley W/O Walnut Ave O AC 182 23 4,186 65 6 76 18 1/30/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2103 15004 Alley W/O Brea Bl Date St Imperial Hwy O AAC 580 20 11,600 73 30 26 44 2/6/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 10/1/08
2100 15000 Alley W/O Flower Ave Birch St Ash St O AC 600 19 9,600 90 0 100 0 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2100 15001 Alley W/O Flower Ave Birch St South End O AC 340 19 5,270 59 8 90 2 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2100 15013 Alley W/O Flower Ave Date St Imperial Hwy O AC 570 20 11,400 97 0 100 0 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2112 15018 Alley W/O Laurel Ave Birch St Ash St O AAC 420 19 7,980 94 0 100 0 2/6/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
2112 15019 Alley W/O Laurel Ave Imperial Hwy Birch St O AC 1,100 20 22,000 79 71 22 7 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2106 15008 Alley W/O Madrona Ave Elm St Date St O AAC 590 19 9,440 93 0 100 0 2/6/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 10/1/08
2115 15024 Alley W/O Magnolia Ave 300 Imperial Hwy Date St O AC 500 20 8,500 89 20 76 4 2/6/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 10/1/06
2115 15025 Alley W/O Magnolia Ave Date St Magnolia Ave O AC 610 20 12,200 71 74 14 12 2/6/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 10/1/06
2111 15016 Alley W/O Poplar Ave Madison Wy North End O AC 700 22 12,600 91 0 51 49 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2111 15017 Alley W/O Poplar Ave Imperial Hwy Madison Wy O AC 500 20 8,500 81 0 96 4 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2113 15020 Alley W/O Redwood Ave Imperial Hwy Birch St O AAC 940 20 18,620 87 19 29 52 2/6/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
2113 15021 Alley W/O Redwood Ave Birch St Ash St O AC 420 20 7,850 85 60 23 17 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2110 15014 Alley W/O Sycarmore Elm St Date St O AC 650 20 11,700 98 0 72 28 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2105 15006 Alley W/O Walnut Ave Date St Alley S/O Imperial Hwy O AC 580 19 9,280 74 53 29 18 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

Page 22 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, Name Order (A-Z)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date
2105 15007 Alley W/O Walnut Ave Elm St Date St O AC 660 19 10,560 94 0 100 0 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2105 15015 Alley W/O Walnut Ave Acacia St Fir St O AC 610 28 14,640 97 0 100 0 1/31/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

2.9 280,736

Page 23 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

Arterials / Collectors (MPAH)
143 3060 Elm St Property Line Sievers Ave C AC 141. 32. 4,314 40 63 37 0 3/20/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/15
40 1480 Birch St Associated Rd Kraemer Blvd A AC 2,036 60 127,160 40 84 10 6 2/26/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02

279 5 Palm St Moonstone St Lambert Rd A AC 998 30 29,940 44 67 29 4 3/31/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
40 1510 Birch St Flower Hill St Voyager Ave A AC 713 74 54,762 48 47 36 17 2/26/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 11/1/07
40 1515 Birch St Voyager Ave Flower Hill St A AC 713 28 21,464 55 45 30 25 2/26/25 New Construction - Initial 11/1/07
40 1490 Birch St Kraemer Blvd Ranger Ave A AC 1,228 70 89,460 58 65 31 4 2/26/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/98
40 1500 Birch St Ranger Ave Flower Hill St A AC 1,062 70 74,340 59 48 45 7 2/26/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/98
39 415 Berry St Northwood Ave End A AC 145 80 8,200 59 34 63 3 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

279 10 Palm St City Limit Skywood St A AC 691 60 41,460 60 38 56 6 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
279 30 Palm St Kerrwood Ct La Habra Blvd A AC 411 60 31,160 61 49 39 12 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
40 1470 Birch St Associated Rd Associated Rd A AC 1,707 60 110,920 62 75 13 12 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
40 1450 Birch St State College Blvd 57 Freeway A AC 630 25 17,625 62 83 17 0 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
78 1820 Central Ave Roscoe St De Jur St A AC 875 60 13,800 63 65 28 7 3/31/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
40 1455 Birch St 57 Freeway State College Blvd A AC 630 30 24,100 64 65 15 20 3/31/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

403 11050 Whittier Ave Havenhurst Dr Puente St C AAC 542 36 19,512 64 20 63 17 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
40 1445 Birch St State College Blvd Brea Mall Entrance A AC 1,027 40 41,080 66 71 29 0 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13

300 50 Puente St Linden Way Fern Ave C AAC 249. 18. 4,482 66 21 79 0 3/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
26 760 Associated Rd Imperial Hwy Greenbriar Ln A AC 1,195 32 40,240 66 4 54 42 2/12/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

279 20 Palm St Skywood St Kerrwood Ct A AC 191 60 11,460 66 48 31 21 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
212 1725 Lambert Rd Point Dr 57 Freeway NB/Ramp A AC 611 45 27,495 67 22 71 7 3/25/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
403 11040 Whittier Ave San Juan Dr Havenhurst Dr C AAC 320 36 11,520 67 0 82 18 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
315 4850 Rose Dr Blake Rd Vesuvius Dr A AAC 503 45 22,635 67 37 63 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 1/1/09
40 1380 Birch St Flower Ave Redwood Ave A AC 494 60 29,640 68 46 27 27 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
51 600 Brea Blvd Canyon Country Rd City Limit A AAC 425 50 20,600 68 73 22 5 2/20/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/1/07

379 13570 Valencia Ave Santa Fe Rd Sandpiper Way A AC 832 58 48,256 68 30 51 19 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
403 11030 Whittier Ave City Limit San Juan Dr C AC 400 36 14,400 68 20 80 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
40 1520 Birch St Voyager Ave Valencia Ave A AC 1,770 28 55,060 69 57 43 0 2/5/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 11/1/07

379 1001 Valencia Ave Imperial Hwy Date St A AC 490 33 17,420 69 7 93 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
26 835 Associated Rd Meadowcreek Rd Donnybrook Rd A AC 348 23 8,004 69 0 35 65 2/20/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07
40 1390 Birch St Redwood Ave Laurel Ave A AC 308 60 18,480 69 59 35 6 3/31/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/02
40 1460 Birch St 57 Freeway Associated Rd A AC 1,487 80 118,960 69 75 12 13 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02

348 690 State College Blvd Lambert Rd Citrus Pl A AC 558 66 36,828 69 4 64 32 2/14/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1730 Lambert Rd Pointe Dr Associated Rd A AC 540 41 29,840 70 6 51 43 3/25/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
40 1420 Birch St Randolph Ave Brea Mall Entrance A AC 1,032 80 80,480 70 58 26 16 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13

379 13560 Valencia Ave Lambert Rd Santa Fe Rd A AC 1,389 58 88,037 70 26 74 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
143 3130 Elm St Magnolia Ave Sycamore Ave C AC 295. 37. 10,915 70 0 88 12 3/20/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
379 1000 Valencia Ave Date St Imperial Hwy A AAC 490 23 16,270 70 0 100 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
348 730 State College Blvd Live Oak St Park Ln A AC 637 60 38,220 70 13 55 32 2/17/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
39 310 Berry St Vanguard Way Lambert Rd A AAC 417 60 25,020 70 38 54 8 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07
78 1830 Central Ave De Jur St Puente St A AC 798 70 53,085 70 48 40 12 3/31/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
78 1890 Central Ave Tamarack Ave Brea Blvd A AC 1,529 80 118,370 71 38 53 9 3/25/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/00
26 825 Associated Rd Donnybrook Rd Sleepy Hollow Ln A AC 210 23 5,680 71 0 37 63 2/20/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07

2200 1601 Wildcat Way Lambert End C AAC 2,460 60 147,600 71 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 3/8/15
212 1715 Lambert Rd 57 Freeway SB/Ramp State College Blvd A AC 463 44 20,147 72 6 43 51 3/25/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
39 330 Berry St Berry Way Apollo St A AAC 553 60 33,180 72 0 64 36 3/30/23 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07
51 590 Brea Blvd Canyondale Dr Canyon Country Rd A AAC 805 56 42,680 72 51 36 13 2/21/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/1/07

348 670 State College Blvd Avocado St Redbud St A AAC 593 60 35,580 72 43 57 0 2/20/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 1/1/09
348 740 State College Blvd Park Ln Blossom Pl A AC 675 60 40,500 73 14 58 28 2/17/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
26 800 Associated Rd Birch St Country Hills Rd A AC 527 60 31,620 73 0 63 37 2/14/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07

348 720 State College Blvd Cliffwood Ave Live Oak St A AC 572 60 34,320 73 12 80 8 2/17/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
39 340 Berry St Apollo St Challenger St A AAC 363 60 21,780 73 19 66 15 3/30/23 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07

300 130 Puente St Lambert Rd Beacon St A AAC 743 80 57,690 73 20 62 18 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
39 290 Berry St Mercury Ln Railroad Tracks A AAC 493 60 29,580 73 6 94 0 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07
39 300 Berry St Railroad Tracks Vanguard Way A AAC 847 60 50,820 73 56 44 0 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07

348 710 State College Blvd Balsa Ave Cliffwood Ave A AC 1,396 60 83,760 73 12 72 16 2/17/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
26 860 Associated Rd Windwood Ln Woodhill Ln A AC 595 60 35,700 73 0 56 44 2/20/25 New Construction - AC 4/27/07

300 160 Puente St Columbia St Central Ave A AAC 703 80 56,240 74 4 95 1 2/14/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
40 1440 Birch St Brea Mall Entrance State College Blvd A AC 1,027 40 41,080 74 77 23 0 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
39 320 Berry St Lambert Rd Berry Way A AAC 687 60 41,220 74 24 74 2 3/30/23 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07

300 210 Puente St Wardman Dr Baywood Dr A AC 972 36 39,492 74 30 70 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
300 60 Puente St Fern Ave Eadington Dr C AAC 527. 18. 9,486 74 45 55 0 3/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21

Page 1 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

300 190 Puente St Tracie Dr Walling Ave A AC 274 48 14,532 75 9 64 27 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
300 150 Puente St Lake Park Brea Columbia St A AAC 489 80 39,120 75 0 96 4 2/14/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
348 641 State College Blvd Birch St Imperial Hwy A AC 3,250 28 103,500 75 30 57 13 2/24/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1575 Lambert Rd Berry St Delta Ave A AC 1,374 43 59,082 75 10 61 29 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
348 660 State College Blvd Railroad Tracks Avocado St A AAC 186 60 11,160 75 53 22 25 2/20/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 1/1/09
300 40 Puente St Briarwood Dr Linden Way C AAC 632. 18. 11,376 75 0 78 22 3/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
39 350 Berry St Challenger St Explorer St A AAC 120 64 7,680 75 0 100 0 3/30/23 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07

300 220 Puente St Baywood Dr Whittier Blvd A AC 274 36 9,864 75 44 56 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
39 400 Berry St Stonebridge Dr Amber Hill Dr A AC 743 32 23,776 76 21 69 10 2/17/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18

300 70 Puente St Eadington Dr Pecan St C AAC 260. 18. 4,680 76 44 56 0 3/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
348 750 State College Blvd Blossom Pl Brea Blvd A AC 280 81 21,420 76 14 51 35 2/17/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
78 1870 Central Ave Berry St Site Dr A AC 1,284 80 100,970 76 55 45 0 3/25/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01

315 4860 Rose Dr Vesuvius Dr Birch St A AAC 3,130 45 142,800 76 18 82 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 1/1/09
300 140 Puente St Beacon St Lake Park Brea A AAC 703 80 56,240 76 0 100 0 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
51 570 Brea Blvd Pepper Tree Dr Central Ave A AAC 1,230 78 96,190 77 0 53 47 2/21/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/1/07
78 1860 Central Ave Steele Dr Berry St A AC 1,539 70 107,730 77 8 83 9 3/25/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/00
40 1400 Birch St Laurel Ave Poplar Ave A AC 342 64 21,888 77 61 37 2 3/31/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/02
39 381 Berry St Salveson Rd. Central Ave A AC 1,160 27 33,320 77 0 100 0 2/17/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
78 1850 Central Ave Puente St Steele Dr A AC 1,220 80 91,500 77 25 66 9 2/17/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
26 870 Associated Rd Woodhill Ln Lambert Rd A AC 425 60 25,500 77 0 51 49 2/20/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07
39 380 Berry St Central Ave Salveson Rd. A AC 1,160 27 34,820 77 0 100 0 2/17/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
26 840 Associated Rd Meadowcreek Rd Cloverdale Dr A AC 630 60 37,800 77 0 63 37 2/20/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07
39 370 Berry St Columbia St Central Ave A AAC 480 80 37,000 77 0 95 5 3/30/23 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07
26 791 Associated Rd Birch St Eucalyptus Ln A AC 415 27 12,205 77 0 77 23 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

300 200 Puente St Walling Ave Wardman Dr A AC 547 48 26,656 77 26 74 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
78 1880 Central Ave Site Dr Tamarack Ave A AC 913 80 70,140 77 26 50 24 3/25/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/00
51 560 Brea Blvd Lambert Rd Pepper Tree Dr A AAC 1,463 78 112,364 77 21 62 17 2/21/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/1/07
51 505 Brea Blvd Ash St Birch St A AC 678 36 30,068 78 12 88 0 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
51 500 Brea Blvd Birch St Ash St A AC 678 36 26,748 78 0 100 0 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
39 410 Berry St Amber Hill Dr Northwood Ave A AC 828 32 28,496 78 0 64 36 2/17/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
51 510 Brea Blvd Ash St Railroad Tracks A AC 580 36 20,880 78 0 87 13 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20

348 700 State College Blvd Citrus Pl Balsa Ave A AC 555 60 33,300 78 17 80 3 2/17/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
40 1525 Birch St Valencia ave Voyager Ave A AC 1,770 28 55,060 78 22 76 2 2/5/25 New Construction - Initial 11/1/07
26 850 Associated Rd Cloverdale Dr Windwood Ln A AC 189 60 11,340 78 0 57 43 2/20/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07

348 640 State College Blvd Imperial Hwy Birch St A AAC 3,250 28 121,250 78 0 69 31 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
212 1615 Lambert Rd Pepper Tree Dr Napoli Dr A AC 417 43 17,931 79 38 62 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1580 Lambert Rd Berry St Basse Ln A AC 1,286 80 99,380 79 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
348 621 State College Blvd Elm St Timbergate Ln A AC 398 33 13,134 79 49 51 0 2/24/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/02
51 580 Brea Blvd Central Ave Canyondale Dr A AAC 810 70 60,750 79 0 98 2 2/20/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/1/07

365 9360 Tamarack Ave Capricorn St Nibus St C AAC 293. 36. 10,548 79 0 100 0 3/20/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
300 180 Puente St Joyce Dr Tracie Dr A AC 220 48 11,940 80 24 76 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
348 650 State College Blvd Birch St Railroad Tracks A AAC 1,360 28 43,830 80 0 99 1 2/20/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 1/1/09
26 810 Associated Rd Country Hills Rd Sleepy Hollow Ln A AC 898 60 53,880 80 0 45 55 2/14/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07

365 9380 Tamarack Ave Apollo St Atlas St C AAC 492. 36. 17,712 80 0 100 0 3/20/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
39 411 Berry St Northwood Ave Amber Hill Dr A AC 940 32 32,080 80 25 69 6 2/17/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18

379 980 Valencia Ave City Limit Date St A AAC 1,040 60 62,400 80 0 100 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
26 771 Associated Rd Chevy Chase Dr Greenbriar Ln A AC 980 30 30,900 81 28 56 16 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
78 1810 Central Ave City Limit Roscoe St A AC 957 70 24,150 81 15 40 45 3/31/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
39 360 Berry St Explorer St Columbia St A AAC 393 60 23,580 81 0 100 0 3/30/23 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07
40 1410 Birch St Poplar Ave Randolph Ave A AC 1,047 60 61,570 81 0 100 0 3/31/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/02

212 1570 Lambert Rd Delta Ave Berry St A AC 1,374 80 108,170 82 23 74 3 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
39 390 Berry St Salveson Rd. Stonebridge Ln A AC 1,296 80 102,080 82 8 88 4 2/17/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18

212 1585 Lambert Rd Basse Ln Berry St A AC 1,286 43 55,298 82 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/00
212 1700 Lambert Rd Pomelo Ave State College Blvd A AC 510 102 52,020 82 25 75 0 3/25/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1605 Lambert Rd Napoli Dr Tamarack Ave A AC 380 43 16,340 82 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1625 Lambert Rd Madrona Ave Pepper Tree Dr A AC 203 43 8,479 82 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
293 4040 Placentia Ave City Limit Imperial Hwy A AC 704 60 42,240 82 31 67 2 2/26/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
51 550 Brea Blvd Cypress St Lambert Rd A AAC 547 25 22,427 82 0 100 0 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20

348 631 State College Blvd Imperial Hwy Elm St A AC 1,334 33 50,737 82 0 90 10 2/24/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/02
348 680 State College Blvd Redbud St Lambert Rd A AAC 462 75 33,120 82 0 100 0 2/20/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 1/1/09
212 1590 Lambert Rd Basse Ln Tamarack Ave A AC 699 33 25,567 82 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1635 Lambert Rd Brea Blvd Madrona Ave A AC 323 33 10,659 83 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01

Page 2 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

365 9390 Tamarack Ave Atlas St Central Ave C AAC 907. 36. 32,652 83 0 100 0 3/20/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
39 401 Berry St Amber Hill Dr Stonebridge Dr A AC 736 32 23,552 83 15 79 6 2/17/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18

348 611 State College Blvd Timbergate Ln City Limit A AC 164 33 5,830 83 32 68 0 2/24/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/02
300 120 Puente St Pioneer St Lambert Rd A AAC 753 80 58,990 83 35 65 0 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
26 780 Associated Rd Chevy Chase Dr Eucalyptus Ln A AC 419 31 12,989 84 24 47 29 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

300 90 Puente St Cienega-City Fullerton Imperial Hwy C AAC 300. 18. 7,200 84 0 100 0 3/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
26 761 Associated Rd Greenbriar Ln Imperial Hwy A AC 1,195 30 38,775 84 0 96 4 2/14/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

212 1610 Lambert Rd Napoli Dr Pepper Tree Dr A AC 417 80 33,360 84 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
26 781 Associated Rd Eucalyptus Ln Chevy Chase Dr A AC 420 32 14,190 84 0 82 18 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
51 515 Brea Blvd Railroad Tracks Ash St A AC 580 36 22,630 84 0 100 0 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
51 540 Brea Blvd Bracken St Cypress St A AAC 412 70 28,840 84 0 96 4 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
51 441 Brea Blvd Fir St. Locust St. A AC 315 29 9,885 84 0 100 0 3/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24

212 1735 Lambert Rd Associated Rd Pointe Dr A AC 540 36 21,615 84 15 85 0 5/3/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
40 1370 Birch St Orange Ave Flower Ave A AC 381 60 22,860 85 13 46 41 3/31/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/02

300 100 Puente St Imperial Hwy Railroad Tracks A AAC 1,353 60 73,805 85 0 56 44 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
212 1670 Lambert Rd Cliffwood Park St Oak Pl A AC 666 80 53,280 85 28 50 22 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
51 520 Brea Blvd Railroad Tracks Bracken St A AAC 416 80 32,105 85 0 100 0 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
40 13630 Birch St Shopping Center Madrona A AC 180. 38. 6,840 85 0 23 77 3/20/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

212 1690 Lambert Rd Cashew Ave Pomelo Ave A AC 400 80 32,000 85 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
348 610 State College Blvd City Limit Timbergate Ln A AC 164 33 5,412 85 13 87 0 2/24/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/02
348 620 State College Blvd Timbergate Ln Elm St A AAC 358 35 14,280 86 0 100 0 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
26 790 Associated Rd Eucalyptus Ln Birch St A AC 412 38 18,656 86 0 76 24 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

212 1680 Lambert Rd Oak Pl Cashew Ave A AC 576 80 46,080 86 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
365 9350 Tamarack Ave Lambert Rd Capricorn St C AAC 556. 36. 20,016 86 0 100 0 3/20/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
212 1805 Lambert Rd Pavement Change Valencia Ave A AC 2,257. 47. 143,307 86 0 97 3 3/20/25 New Construction - AC 1/1/80
40 1360 Birch St Brea Blvd Orange Ave A AC 351 22 5,672 86 38 57 5 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11

212 1665 Lambert Rd Cliffwood Park St Country Ln A AC 643 33 23,469 86 0 97 3 2/21/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1595 Lambert Rd Tamarack Ave Basse Ln A AC 699 43 28,307 86 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
348 651 State College Blvd Railroad Tracks Birch St A AAC 1,370 34 60,030 86 0 100 0 2/20/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 1/1/09
300 170 Puente St Central Ave Joyce Dr A AC 326 48 15,648 86 56 44 0 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
212 1655 Lambert Rd Country Ln Orange Ave A AC 820 33 29,660 87 0 100 0 2/21/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
143 3090 Elm St Walnut Ave Brea Blvd C AAC 362. 30. 9,780 87 0 88 12 3/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
212 1640 Lambert Rd Brea Blvd Orange Ave A AC 419 33 13,827 87 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1660 Lambert Rd Country Ln Cliffwood Park St A AC 643 33 24,719 87 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
348 630 State College Blvd Elm St Imperial Hwy A AAC 1,343 33 49,234 88 46 41 13 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
212 1565 Lambert Rd Delta Ave Puente St A AC 1,307 33 47,631 88 51 49 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
208 900 Kraemer Blvd Saturn St Imperial Hwy A AC 914 80 73,120 88 0 39 61 2/26/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
51 495 Brea Blvd Birch St Imperial Hwy A AC 667 33 35,679 88 17 61 22 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20

300 80 Puente St Pecan St Cienega-City Fullerton C AAC 698. 18. 12,564 88 0 73 27 3/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
51 431 Brea Blvd Locust St Acacia St A AC 323 29 9,367 88 0 100 0 3/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24

212 1600 Lambert Rd Tamarack Ave Napoli Dr A AC 380 80 22,080 88 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
26 820 Associated Rd Sleepy Hollow Ln Donnybrook Rd A AC 210 23 4,830 88 0 100 0 2/20/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07
26 830 Associated Rd Donnybrook Rd Meadowcreek Rd A AC 348 23 8,854 88 0 100 0 2/20/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/27/07

212 1530 Lambert Rd City Limit Pioneer St A AC 480 33 15,840 89 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
51 555 Brea Blvd Lambert Rd Cypress St A AAC 547 37 22,062 89 0 100 0 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20

212 1630 Lambert Rd Madrona Ave Brea Blvd A AC 323 43 16,139 89 36 64 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
40 1350 Birch St Walnut Ave Brea Blvd A AC 369. 38. 11,772 89 0 100 0 3/20/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
26 770 Associated Rd Greenbriar Ln Chevy Chase Dr A AC 980 30 30,900 89 0 100 0 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

212 1645 Lambert Rd Orange Ave Brea Blvd A AC 419 43 18,017 89 0 100 0 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/98
51 451 Brea Blvd Alder St Fir St. A AC 696 29 22,184 89 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24

212 1750 Lambert Rd Wandering Ln Sommerset Dr A AC 985 36 35,460 90 0 100 0 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
51 450 Brea Blvd Fir St Alder St A AC 696 29 21,434 90 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24
39 280 Berry St Imperial Hwy Mercury Ln A AAC 843 60 51,885 90 41 56 3 3/30/23 Overlay - AC Structural 8/21/07

212 1650 Lambert Rd Orange Ave Country Ln A AC 820 33 29,560 90 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
51 481 Brea Blvd Imperial Hwy Date St A AC 631 31 23,561 90 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24

300 110 Puente St Railroad Tracks Pioneer St A AAC 526 70 36,820 90 0 100 0 2/24/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
40 1365 Birch St Orange Ave Brea Blvd A AC 296 22 2,512 91 24 76 0 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11

212 1770 Lambert Rd Sunrise Rd Kraemer Blvd A AC 764 36 30,754 91 0 100 0 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
365 9370 Tamarack Ave Nibus St Apollo St C AAC 438. 36. 15,768 91 0 100 0 3/20/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
51 421 Brea Blvd Acacia St Juniper St A AC 493 31 16,033 91 0 100 0 3/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24

212 1540 Lambert Rd Pioneer St Puente St A AC 947 43 40,721 91 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1545 Lambert Rd Puente St Pioneer St A AC 947 33 33,501 91 0 100 0 2/21/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01

Page 3 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

51 470 Brea Blvd Elm St Date St A AC 700 31 22,950 91 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24
208 915 Kraemer Blvd Orbiter St Imperial Hwy A AC 1,161 36 57,946 91 0 28 72 2/7/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
51 490 Brea Blvd Imperial Hwy Birch St A AC 667 39 24,323 91 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
51 471 Brea Blvd Date St. Elm St. A AC 700 31 22,950 92 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24

212 1721 Lambert Rd 57 Freeway NB/Ramp Point Dr A AC 611. 63. 37,518 92 0 100 0 3/20/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1785 Lambert Rd Walden Rd Kraemer Blvd A AC 530 36 21,580 92 0 100 0 2/7/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1745 Lambert Rd Wandering Ln Associated Rd A AC 990 36 38,890 92 0 100 0 2/14/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
208 945 Kraemer Blvd Country Hills Rd Birch St A AC 511 40 20,440 93 0 46 54 2/7/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1710 Lambert Rd State College Blvd 57 Freeway SB/Ramp A AC 463 64 29,632 93 39 61 0 2/17/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
208 930 Kraemer Blvd Orbiter St Birch St A AC 1,414 88 124,612 93 0 33 67 2/7/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1790 Lambert Rd Walden Rd Sunflower St A AC 1,362 36 50,282 93 0 93 7 2/7/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
51 461 Brea Blvd Elm St. Alder St. A AC 647 31 21,557 93 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24

212 1560 Lambert Rd Puente St Delta Ave A AC 1,307 33 46,631 93 0 69 31 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
208 960 Kraemer Blvd Edgemont Ln Lambert Rd A AC 592 80 47,360 94 0 73 27 2/7/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
208 910 Kraemer Blvd Imperial Hwy Orbiter St A AC 1,161 28 44,008 94 0 41 59 2/7/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1765 Lambert Rd Sunrise Rd Sommerset Dr A AC 835 36 30,060 94 0 100 0 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1620 Lambert Rd Pepper Tree Dr Madrona Ave A AC 203 33 6,699 94 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1800 Lambert Rd Sunflower St Pavement Change A AC 740 86 63,640 94 0 100 0 2/13/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
212 1740 Lambert Rd Associated Rd Wandering Ln A AC 990 36 35,640 94 0 100 0 2/14/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
51 430 Brea Blvd Acacia St Locust St A AC 323 31 11,013 94 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24

212 1795 Lambert Rd Sunflower St Walden Rd A AC 1,362 36 50,532 94 0 71 29 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
51 480 Brea Blvd Date St Imperial Hwy A AC 631 33 24,323 94 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24

212 1535 Lambert Rd Pioneer St City Limit A AC 480 33 18,340 94 0 100 0 2/21/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
51 460 Brea Blvd Alder St Elm St A AC 647 29 20,013 95 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24

212 1780 Lambert Rd Kraemer Blvd Walden Rd A AC 515 36 18,540 95 0 100 0 2/13/25 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
536 16000 Brea Canyon Blvd West City Limits City Limits (1300' W/ Tomer Canyon) A AC 1,120. 28. 31,360 95 0 100 0 3/20/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/23
208 890 Kraemer Blvd City Limit Saturn St A AC 420 40 16,800 95 0 100 0 2/26/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1755 Lambert Rd Sommerset Dr Wandering Ln A AC 985 36 37,960 95 0 100 0 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1760 Lambert Rd Sommerset Dr Sunrise Rd A AC 835 36 32,310 95 0 100 0 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
51 440 Brea Blvd Locust St Fir St A AC 315 31 12,865 95 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24
51 420 Brea Blvd Juniper St Acacia St A AC 493 31 14,155 96 0 100 0 2/24/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 9/18/24

208 940 Kraemer Blvd Birch St Country Hlls Rd A AC 511 47 24,017 96 0 100 0 2/7/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1775 Lambert Rd Kraemer Blvd Sunrise Rd A AC 764 33 28,712 97 0 100 0 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
208 950 Kraemer Blvd Country Hills Rd Edgemont Ln A AC 663 80 53,040 97 0 100 0 2/7/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
212 1720 Lambert Rd 57 Freeway SB/Ramp 57 Freeway NB/Ramp A AC 603 98 59,094 98 0 100 0 3/25/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01

31.2 8,172,881

Locals
57 7392 Bryce Canyon Way End Apricot Ave E AC 220 21 2,688 25 91 7 2 1/25/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
37 10350 Berenice Dr Joyce Dr Walling Ave E AC 717 36 25,812 29 63 37 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Cape Seal 6/28/25
37 10340 Berenice Dr Joyce Dr Joyce Dr E AC 111 36 3,996 31 54 46 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Cape Seal 6/28/25

363 4890 Surveyor Ave Nasa St Enterprise St E AC 1,214 46 58,344 31 81 18 1 2/14/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
256 4880 Nasa St Surveyor Ave Valencia Ave E AC 589 46 27,094 33 58 19 23 2/26/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
145 4920 Enterprise St Voyager Ave Surveyor Ave E AC 376 46 19,796 34 67 18 15 2/26/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
201 10310 Joyce Dr Berenice Dr Poinsettia Ave E AC 235 36 11,960 34 72 28 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Cape Seal 6/28/25
99 5540 Country Hills Rd Associated Rd Wandering Ln E AC 302 36 13,158 35 80 20 0 1/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

388 4900 Voyager Ave Enterprise St Birch St E AC 595 46 26,995 36 80 19 1 2/26/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
99 5560 Country Hills Rd Country Club Dr Kraemer Blvd E AC 1,364 36 49,104 38 80 20 0 1/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

145 4910 Enterprise St Ranger Ave Voyager Ave E AC 1,772 46 81,144 38 87 10 3 2/14/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
43 4840 Blake Rd Rose Dr Property Line E AC 522 17 8,874 40 43 57 0 2/5/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

163 2780 Flower Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 561 36 20,196 40 72 28 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
99 5550 Country Hills Rd Wandering Ln Country Club Dr E AC 342 36 12,312 41 49 48 3 1/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

201 10300 Joyce Dr Puente St Berenice Dr E AC 219 36 7,596 42 81 14 5 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Cape Seal 6/28/25
306 4930 Ranger Ave End Enterprise St E AC 350 46 17,187 44 70 24 6 2/26/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
16 7380 Apricot Ave Bryce Canyon Way Desert Canyon Rd E AAC 131 28 2,968 44 59 34 7 3/20/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05

337 11610 Skywood St Vallejo St Sonora St E AC 1,056 36 39,766 44 60 40 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
337 11620 Skywood St Sonora St Palm St E AC 112 36 3,744 44 77 23 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
305 3460 Randolph Ave Imperial Hwy Madison Way E AC 1,046 23 30,008 45 76 21 3 11/21/18 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
295 10360 Poinsettia Ave Joyce Dr Walling Ave E AC 835 36 33,560 45 53 47 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Cape Seal 6/28/25
229 11600 Lotus Pl Vallejo St Sonora St E AC 1,023 36 36,540 46 63 37 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
113 3300 Date St Laurel Ave Poplar Ave E AC 338 37 12,506 47 61 39 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13

Page 4 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

306 4940 Ranger Ave Enterprise St Birch St E AC 619 46 28,474 47 57 37 6 2/26/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
379 13580 Valencia Ave Sandpipper Way Gate E AC 822 26 21,672 47 36 45 19 2/14/25 New Construction - AC 1/1/80

8 10680 Alta Mesa Way End Alta Mesa Dr E AC 150 36 5,400 49 52 40 8 2/9/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
93 10740 Columbia St Neptune Way Berry St E AC 2,141 44 93,852 49 67 33 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19

317 11020 Rutledge Pl End Lockhaven Dr E AC 267 27 8,764 50 66 33 1 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
391 10330 Walling Ave Berenice Dr Poinsettia Ave E AC 247 36 10,642 50 54 46 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Cape Seal 6/28/25
95 11470 Copa De Oro Dr End Mariposa Dr E AC 1,693 36 62,748 51 17 36 47 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05

233 8880 Madrona Ave Bracken St Cypress St E AC 410 36 14,760 51 61 34 5 5/3/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
15 6270 Appleblossom Cir End Newhaven Dr E AAC 65 63 3,170 52 49 51 0 2/14/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
44 11590 Blossom Pl Vallejo St Sonora St E AC 994 36 37,246 52 58 29 13 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10

170 12210 Foxwood Ave Ironwood Ct Kerrwood Ct E AC 190 36 6,840 52 55 45 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
205 12100 Kerrwood Ct Palm St Archwood Ave E AC 183 44 7,100 52 48 47 5 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
206 7270 Kings Canyon Rd End Bonita Canyon Way E AC 471 19 9,799 52 52 47 1 3/20/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
391 10320 Walling Ave Puente St Berenice Dr E AC 254 36 8,856 52 40 59 1 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Cape Seal 6/28/25
190 12660 Hickory St Maple Ave Cedar Ave E AC 294 33 9,438 53 69 31 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
381 11560 Vallejo St Skywood St Lotus Pl E AC 222 36 9,742 54 56 44 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
163 2770 Flower Ave Imperial Hwy Birch St E AC 760 36 27,360 55 59 40 1 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
205 12110 Kerrwood Ct Archwood Ave Merrywood Ct E AC 337 36 12,132 55 41 59 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
272 11420 Olinda Pl Lilac Ln Olinda Dr E AC 573 36 20,628 55 46 32 22 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
397 6150 Waterwheel Ln End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 171 44 5,703 56 52 46 2 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
249 11390 Moonstone St End Palm St E AC 717 44 33,130 56 42 45 13 3/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
292 11400 Pioneer St Lambert Rd Puente St E AC 1,649 44 72,556 56 43 38 19 5/4/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
334 7394 Silver Canyon Way End Apricot Ave E AC 369 29 7,537 56 46 47 7 1/21/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
381 11580 Vallejo St Blossom Pl City Limit E AC 107 36 3,564 56 63 37 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
75 6180 Cattail Cir End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 210 44 6,445 56 72 28 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

256 4870 Nasa St End Surveyor Ave E AC 375 46 18,337 56 64 9 27 2/14/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
355 6240 Strawberry Ln End Newhaven Dr E AAC 118 44 3,501 57 34 66 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
254 2410 Mulberry Ave Juniper St City Limit E AC 139 33 4,389 58 71 15 14 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15

8 10670 Alta Mesa Way End Alta Mesa Dr E AC 400 36 16,200 58 77 20 3 2/9/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
102 7391 Coyote Canyon Way End Apricot Ave E AC 383 29 7,943 58 55 45 0 1/21/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
109 6280 Daisy Cir End Newhaven Dr E AAC 60 63 3,276 58 44 56 0 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
305 3461 Randolph Ave Madison Way Imperial Hwy E AC 1,049 23 29,533 59 78 16 6 11/6/18 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
271 11530 Olinda Dr Buckthorn Dr City Limit E AC 1,325 36 47,700 59 29 51 20 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
93 10730 Columbia St Puente St Neptune Way E AC 645 44 28,380 60 37 63 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19

170 12200 Foxwood Ave Honeywood Ct Ironwood Ct E AC 230 36 8,280 60 36 64 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
211 7393 Laguna Canyon Way End Apricot Ave E AC 446 29 9,770 60 43 51 6 1/21/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
381 11570 Vallejo St Lotus Pl Blossom Pl E AC 213 36 7,668 60 49 51 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
391 10870 Walling Ave De Jur St Lockhaven Dr E AC 694 37 29,178 60 58 42 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
393 8850 Walnut Way Brea Blvd End E AC 661 20 12,470 60 43 56 1 2/9/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
418 6900 Woodland Ave Avocado St Redbud St E AAC 623 36 24,578 60 27 72 1 5/3/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
384 11540 Verbena Ln Olinda Dr City Limit E AC 959 36 34,524 61 42 50 8 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
305 3470 Randolph Ave Madison Way Birch St E AC 724 60 43,440 61 38 54 8 10/30/18 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

1 11800 Acacia St Brea Blvd End E AC 794 36 30,096 61 51 49 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
122 7310 Desert Canyon Rd Zion Canyon Way Apricot Ave E AC 470 28 12,510 61 61 39 0 3/20/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
206 7250 Kings Canyon Rd Zion Canyon Way Santiago Canyon Way E AC 293 29 7,847 61 35 65 0 3/20/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
257 10700 Neptune Ave Beacon St Columbia St E AC 1,190 44 52,360 61 49 51 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
275 2830 Orange Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 680 32 21,504 61 66 34 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
271 11500 Olinda Dr Carbon Canyon Rd Olinda Pl E AC 493 36 17,748 61 28 38 34 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
143 4660 Elm St Greenleaf Dr Date St E AAC 600 36 21,600 62 47 53 0 1/31/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
258 6550 Newhaven Dr Dapplegray Cir Strawberry Ln E AAC 54 32 1,728 62 0 97 3 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
34 10720 Beacon St Neptune Way Delta Ave E AC 658 44 28,952 62 54 46 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19

190 12650 Hickory St Pine Ave Maple Ave E AC 265 33 8,481 62 67 33 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
205 12120 Kerrwood Ct Merrywood Ct Leafwood Ct E AC 174 36 6,264 62 34 66 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
277 4610 Orbiter St Kraemer Blvd Saturn St E AC 1,884 46 86,664 63 27 47 26 2/13/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
271 11510 Olinda Dr Olinda Pl Verbana Ln E AC 679 36 24,444 63 52 48 0 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05

3 12010 Alder St Laurel Ave Poplar Ave E AC 373 37 15,401 63 64 36 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
275 2840 Orange Ave Ash St Property Line E AC 688 36 24,768 63 71 29 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
288 8730 Pepper Tree Dr Eastwood Pl Forest Pl E AAC 280 36 10,080 63 75 25 0 1/21/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
272 11410 Olinda Pl Carbon Canyon Rd Lilac Ln E AC 295 36 10,620 63 50 50 0 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
16 7370 Apricot Ave Coyote Canyon Way Bryce Canyon Way E AAC 96 36 3,456 64 5 91 4 3/20/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
47 7280 Bonita Canyon Way End Kings Canyon Rd E AC 460 28 10,136 64 11 70 19 1/21/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

184 5350 Hawthorne Ave Sorrel St Covey Ct E AAC 365 32 11,680 64 18 82 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/13

Page 5 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

235 7840 Malibu Canyon Rd End Malibu Canyon Way E PCC 149 29 6,059 64 12 0 88 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
290 2540 Pine Ave Hickory St Elm St E AC 302 37 11,174 64 63 37 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
340 11615 Sonora St Skywood St Lotus Pl E AC 207 36 7,102 64 78 22 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
415 3 Woodacre St Thistle Rd Walden Rd E AAC 280 32 8,960 64 16 84 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/13
245 6360 Meadowcreek Rd Meadowcreek Rd End E AAC 85 63 4,351 65 68 32 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
59 11550 Buckthorn Dr End Olinda Dr E AC 927 36 35,172 65 17 30 53 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
16 7350 Apricot Ave Silver Canyon Way Laguna Canyon Way E AAC 229 36 8,244 65 27 45 28 1/25/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
81 11910 Cherry St Alder St Spruce St E AC 700 33 23,100 65 48 52 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13

170 12190 Foxwood Ave Gatewood Ct Honeywood Ct E AC 228 36 8,208 65 0 100 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
206 7260 Kings Canyon Rd Santiago Canyon Way Bonita Canyon Way E AC 164 19 3,566 65 30 58 12 3/20/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
366 12150 Tanglewood St Archwood Ave Breezewood Ct E AC 217 36 7,812 65 20 80 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
323 4600 Saturn St Imperial Hwy Orbiter St E AC 1,163 46 53,498 65 69 29 2 2/13/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
369 5280 Thistle Rd Seneca Ct Woodacre St E AAC 275 32 8,800 65 13 87 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
95 11480 Copa De Oro Dr Mariposa Dr Lilac Ln E AC 1,437 36 51,732 66 68 32 0 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
13 9060 Apollo St Explorer St Lunar Ave E AC 448 36 16,128 66 34 66 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
76 2590 Cedar Ave Pine Ave Maple Ave E AC 340 37 12,284 66 53 47 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
81 11920 Cherry St Spruce St Peach Ave E AC 145 33 4,587 66 65 35 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13

123 7315 Desert Canyon Rd Frontage Desert Canyon Rd Desert Canyon Rd E AC 151 35 5,285 66 29 70 1 5/3/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
91 6450 Cloverdale Dr Creekwood Ct Waterwheel Ln E AAC 75 16 1,200 66 0 95 5 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

341 5340 Sorrel St End Hawthorne Ave E AAC 268 32 8,576 67 19 81 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
218 2440 Laurel Ave Spruce St Elm St E AC 693 33 22,869 67 39 61 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
233 8860 Madrona Ave End Napoli Dr E AC 343 36 14,004 67 49 51 0 5/3/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
278 2 Palm Dr End Elm St E AC 681 33 24,249 67 64 36 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
340 11625 Sonora St Lotus Pl Blossom Pl E AC 216 36 9,526 67 43 57 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
365 9410 Tamarack Ave Orangewood Dr Mariposa Dr E AC 250 36 9,000 67 0 79 21 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
36 5210 Belmont Ct End Baler Ave E AAC 260 32 8,064 67 18 82 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13

104 6160 Creekwood Ct End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 185 44 6,139 67 41 59 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
2057 13310 Santa Fe Rd Cardinal St Condor Ave E AC 603 36 21,708 67 30 70 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2031 12730 Bobwhite Rd Brea Hills Ave East End E AC 497 32 17,669 68 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2040 12960 Hillside Rd Brea Hills Ave East End E AC 329 32 10,528 68 26 74 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
222 11430 Lilac Ln Olinda Pl Mariposa Dr E AC 856 36 30,816 68 37 40 23 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
76 2610 Cedar Ave Hickory St Elm St E AC 280 37 10,360 68 56 44 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13

113 3290 Date St Redwood Ave Laurel Ave E AC 380 37 14,060 68 49 51 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
170 12180 Foxwood Ave Tanglewood St Gatewood Ct E AC 189 36 6,804 68 0 100 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
30 5230 Baler Ave Belmont Ct Larkspur Ave E AAC 218 32 6,976 68 14 86 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
20 2200 Arovista Cir Mariner St End E AC 428 44 20,326 68 21 68 11 1/31/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
91 6415 Cloverdale Dr Cattail Cir Newhaven Dr E AAC 490 16 7,840 68 22 78 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

101 5330 Covey Ct End Hawthorne Ave E AAC 221 32 6,816 68 0 100 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/13
252 6300 Morningflower Cir End Newhaven Dr E AAC 110 63 5,506 68 63 37 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

2033 12750 Brea Hills Ave Carbon Canyon Rd Hillside Rd E AC 1,159 32 39,458 68 31 69 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2047 13150 Orange Grove Ln Tangerine Pl North End E AC 258 32 10,021 69 37 63 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12

91 6451 Cloverdale Dr Waterwheel Ln Creekwood Ct E AAC 69 16 1,104 69 0 100 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
126 6315 Donnybrook Rd End Newhaven Dr E AAC 184 44 5,261 69 62 38 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
258 6560 Newhaven Dr Strawberry Ln Acorn Cir E AAC 189 16 3,024 69 7 91 2 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
369 5270 Thistle Rd Edgemont Ln Seneca Ct E AAC 124 32 3,968 69 16 84 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
415 5310 Woodacre St Walden Rd Hawthorne Ave E AAC 299 32 9,568 69 0 100 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/13
122 7320 Desert Canyon Rd Apricot Ave Forbes Dr E AC 843 28 23,604 69 62 38 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
205 12130 Kerrwood Ct Leafwood Ct Jaywood Ct E AC 153 36 5,508 69 52 48 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
218 2450 Laurel Ave Elm St Date St E AC 672 31 20,646 69 45 55 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
218 2460 Laurel Ave Date St Imperial Hwy E AC 644 31 20,466 69 52 47 1 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
218 2470 Laurel Ave Imperial Hwy Madison Way E AC 445 32 14,240 69 64 36 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
230 9020 Lunar Ave Apollo St Atlas St E AC 459 44 22,144 69 19 81 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
366 12170 Tanglewood St Dogwood Ct Elkwood Ct E AC 162 36 5,832 69 0 100 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
403 22220 Whittier Ave Whittier Ave North End E AC 95 57 5,565 69 56 44 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16

2044 13110 Merrifield Dr Santa Fe Rd Tangerine Pl E AC 218 32 6,976 69 21 79 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
215 5190 Larkspur Ave End Baler Ave E AAC 300 32 9,600 69 24 76 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
238 2210 Mariner St Arovista Ave Arovista Cir E AC 130 44 5,720 69 0 50 50 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 11/1/05
335 6170 Singingwood Ln End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 191 44 5,837 69 7 88 5 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
258 6601 Newhaven Dr Apple Blossom Cir Dapplegray Cir E AAC 250 16 4,000 70 41 58 1 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
95 11490 Copa De Oro Dr Lilac Ln End E AC 297 36 13,192 70 33 67 0 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05

253 4730 Mujica Pl End Tolbert St E AAC 255 36 10,980 70 17 79 4 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
55 6260 Brookside Ln End Newhaven Dr E AAC 261 44 8,109 70 21 73 6 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

Page 6 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

142 4700 Elm Cir End Elm St E AAC 167 66 11,022 70 29 71 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
27 9030 Atlas St Lunar Ave Tamarack Ave E AC 643 44 30,240 70 4 96 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19

120 10690 Delta Ave Lambert Rd Beacon St E AC 628 44 27,280 70 27 73 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
143 3170 Elm St Maple Ave Cedar Ave E AC 348 37 12,876 70 8 92 0 1/13/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
183 10990 Havenhurst Dr Baywood Dr Whittier Blvd E AC 266 19 5,304 70 36 58 6 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
233 8890 Madrona Ave Cypress St Lambert Rd E AC 390 36 13,230 70 48 51 1 5/3/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
238 2230 Mariner St Viking Ave Property Line E AC 162 44 7,128 70 4 62 34 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 11/1/05
240 99996 Mason Ct Birch St End E AC 177 43 6,995 70 64 36 0 2/8/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
366 12160 Tanglewood St Breezewood Ct Dogwood Ct E AC 220 36 7,920 70 0 100 0 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
402 6330 Whispering Glen Ln Donnybrook Rd End E AC 105 63 4,561 70 78 22 0 2/8/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
113 4710 Date St Elm St Oakhaven Ave E AAC 1,546 36 57,406 70 10 66 24 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
386 2250 Viking Ave Mariner St End E AC 671 41 28,286 71 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 11/1/05
373 4750 Tolbert St Mujica Pl Vesuvius Dr E AAC 261 36 9,180 71 11 56 33 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
177 4690 Greenleaf Dr Elm St Elm St E AAC 1,299 36 50,488 71 13 80 7 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
24 3640 Ash St Laurel Ave Property Line E AC 138 36 6,768 71 56 44 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
33 10960 Baywood Dr Havenhurst Dr Puente St E AC 548 37 19,684 71 49 51 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16

113 3310 Date St Poplar Ave Pine Ave E AC 308 37 11,396 71 52 48 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
116 10940 De Lay St Havenhurst Dr Baywood Dr E AC 545 37 21,915 71 42 58 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
234 12050 Magnolia Ave Elm St Date St E AC 711 37 26,307 71 38 62 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
290 2550 Pine Ave Elm St Date St E AC 664 37 24,568 71 28 72 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
342 10441 Southridge Dr Puente St Lockhaven Dr E AC 257 28 7,446 71 54 46 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
366 12140 Tanglewood St Palm St Archwood Ave E AC 117 44 4,196 71 49 41 10 3/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
19 2150 Arovista Ave Eadington Dr Lime St E AC 177 36 6,372 71 66 34 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
30 5220 Baler Ave Snowfield St Belmont Ct E AAC 245 32 7,840 71 10 90 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13

143 4650 Elm St Elm Cir Greenleaf Dr E AAC 565 36 20,340 71 21 79 0 1/31/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
91 6430 Cloverdale Dr Cattail Cir Singingwood Ln E AAC 80 16 1,280 71 9 91 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

238 2235 Mariner St Puente St Arovista Ave E AC 1,446 48 69,408 71 0 64 36 1/31/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
184 5360 Hawthorne Ave Covey Ct Woodacre St E AAC 235 32 7,520 72 17 83 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
398 5370 Wayward Ct End Thistle Rd E AAC 280 32 8,704 72 25 75 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
385 4800 Vesuvius Dr Tolbert St Etna Cir E AAC 238 36 8,568 72 7 93 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
24 3600 Ash St Orange Ave Flower Ave E AC 339 52 17,628 72 57 43 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
52 1960 Briarwood Dr End Briarwood Dr E AC 92 70 6,936 72 0 100 0 3/30/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
64 7841 Canyon Country Rd Brea Blvd Grand Canyon Rd E AC 175 16 3,155 72 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01

131 7720 Driftwood Pl Driftwood Ave Driftwood Ave E PCC 117 20 2,840 72 63 18 19 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
153 9040 Explorer St Apollo St Berry St E AC 1,222 36 43,396 72 30 69 1 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
226 11870 Locust St Brea Blvd Cherry E AC 830 33 27,126 72 35 52 13 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/1/14
233 8870 Madrona Ave Napoli Dr Bracken St E AC 435 36 15,660 72 52 45 3 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
298 2500 Poplar Ave Alder St Spruce St E AC 522 36 20,792 72 27 73 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
298 2520 Poplar Ave Elm St Date St E AC 660 37 24,198 72 7 91 2 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
322 7290 Santiago Canyon Way End Kings Canyon Rd E AC 642 29 15,370 72 7 93 0 1/21/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
91 6440 Cloverdale Dr Singingwood Ln Creekwood Ct E AAC 187 16 2,992 72 53 47 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

143 4670 Elm St End Date St E AAC 363 36 14,868 72 6 67 27 1/31/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
246 8960 Mercury Ln Berry St End E AC 932 46 44,357 72 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
266 4680 Oakhaven Ave Elm St Date St E AAC 980 36 34,992 72 24 76 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
19 2180 Arovista Ave Lemon St Imperial Hwy E AC 647 37 23,939 72 60 23 17 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23

222 11440 Lilac Ln Mariposa Dr Copa De Oro Dr E AC 1,186 36 42,696 72 43 57 0 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
385 4810 Vesuvius Dr Etna Cir Mauna Loa St E AAC 637 36 22,932 72 7 93 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
414 6210 Wisteria Dr End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 199 44 6,123 72 20 73 7 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
242 4780 Mauna Loa St Tolbert St Vesuvius Dr E AAC 641 36 25,010 73 15 85 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
215 5200 Larkspur Ave Baler Ave Starflower St E AC 363 32 11,488 73 14 86 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
339 5240 Snowfield St Thistle Rd Baler Ave E AAC 642 32 20,544 73 19 81 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
385 4830 Vesuvius Dr Spurr Cir Rose Dr E AAC 400 36 15,984 73 11 89 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
23 12430 Arts Ave Placentia Ave Aria Dr E AAC 730 32 22,784 73 8 92 0 2/5/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11

238 2220 Mariner St Arovista Cir Viking Ave E AC 318 44 13,992 73 13 69 18 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 11/1/05
271 11520 Olinda Dr Verbana Ln Buckthorn Dr E AC 360 36 12,960 73 32 65 3 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
13 9070 Apollo St Lunar Ave Tamarack Ave E AC 633 36 22,788 73 15 85 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
34 10710 Beacon St Puente St Neptune Way E AC 643 44 28,292 73 15 85 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
52 1950 Briarwood Dr Briarwood Dr End E AC 90 65 5,985 73 0 100 0 3/30/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23

166 7210 Forbes Dr Dundde Ct Lennox Ct E AC 258 36 9,288 73 6 57 37 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
183 10991 Havenhurst Dr Whittier Blvd Baywood Dr E AC 266 19 5,304 73 0 89 11 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
231 9180 Lynwood Dr Tamarack Ave Glenoaks St E AC 733 37 30,325 73 35 43 22 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
275 8680 Orange Ave Cypress St Lambert Rd E AC 707 36 25,092 73 60 17 23 2/9/23 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/94

Page 7 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

369 5250 Thistle Rd Snowfield St Wayward Ct E AAC 247 32 7,904 73 11 89 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
391 10880 Walling Ave Lockhaven Dr Puente St E AC 256 37 9,176 73 60 40 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16

2061 13430 Tangerine Pl Merriefild Dr North End E AC 558 32 19,621 73 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
245 6340 Meadowcreek Rd Newhaven Dr Associated Rd E AAC 300 16 5,550 73 18 82 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
396 6370 Waterfall Ln End Newhaven Dr E AAC 306 44 9,033 73 12 88 0 2/12/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
357 6200 Summerfield Cir End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 219 44 6,733 73 52 46 2 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
373 4760 Tolbert St Vesuvius Dr Mauna Loa St E AAC 363 36 15,218 73 11 87 2 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
385 4820 Vesuvius Dr Mauna Loa St Spurr Cir E AAC 228 36 8,208 74 10 68 22 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
18 12440 Aria Dr Arts Ave Studio Dr E AC 430 32 14,030 74 24 76 0 2/5/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
91 6431 Cloverdale Dr Singingwood Ln Cattail Cir E AAC 55 16 880 74 32 68 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

214 11640 Larchwood Dr Firethorne St Wildrose Dr E AC 270 37 9,990 74 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
2062 13461 Trolley Ct  Boxcar Ln West End E AC 597 32 20,869 74 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12

1 11790 Acacia St Mulberry Ave Walnut Ave E AC 292 28 8,176 74 9 87 4 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
386 2240 Viking Ave Imperial Hwy Mariner St E AC 482 41 18,930 74 10 76 14 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 11/1/05

2 6230 Acorn Cir End Newhaven Dr E AAC 100 63 4,876 74 24 76 0 2/12/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
16 7360 Apricot Ave Laguna Canyon Way Coyote Canyon Way E AAC 198 36 7,128 74 37 63 0 3/20/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
29 6895 Avocado St Guava Pl Woodland Ave E AAC 293 36 12,698 74 28 72 0 5/3/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
76 2670 Cedar Ave Date St End E AC 438 37 17,206 74 41 59 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

113 3280 Date St Sycamore Ave Redwood Ave E AC 310 37 11,470 74 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
143 3160 Elm St Poplar Ave Maple Ave E AC 693 37 25,641 74 0 100 0 1/13/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
218 2425 Laurel Ave City Limit Alder St E AC 155 33 5,115 74 0 100 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
218 2490 Laurel Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 489 32 15,264 74 50 50 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
262 9280 Nutwood St Arrowwood Dr Evergreen Dr E AC 296 37 10,952 74 30 70 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
298 2510 Poplar Ave Spruce St Elm St E AC 687 37 25,419 74 33 67 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
422 7300 Zion Canyon Way End Kings Canyon Rd E PCC 126 21 4,428 74 0 0 100 3/20/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

2061 13440 Tangerine Pl Merrifield Dr South End E AC 627 32 21,829 74 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Single Bitum. 8/1/12
324 5290 Seneca Ct End Thistle Rd E AAC 208 32 6,656 74 23 77 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
258 6600 Newhaven Dr Waterfall Dr Brookside Ln E AAC 236 16 3,776 74 9 28 63 2/14/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
91 6461 Cloverdale Dr Associated Rd Waterwheel Ln E AAC 104 16 1,664 75 4 96 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

323 4590 Saturn St Kraemer Blvd Imperial Hwy E AC 2,797 46 128,662 75 12 75 13 2/7/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
2042 13060 Landmark Ln Railway Ave Valley Crossing Rd E AC 778 32 24,896 75 61 39 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
258 6590 Newhaven Dr Appleblossom Cir Daisy Cir E AAC 267 16 4,272 75 33 67 0 2/14/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

2057 13320 Santa Fe Rd Condor Ave Valencia Ave E AC 517 36 18,612 75 22 78 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
128 4230 Dover Ave Hillhaven Dr Heather Ln E AC 315 36 11,052 75 55 45 0 2/6/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
356 12450 Studio Dr Aria Dr Legacy Dr E AAC 360 32 12,060 75 22 78 0 2/5/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/10
16 7340 Apricot Ave Brookwood St Silver Canyon Way E AAC 135 36 4,860 75 18 52 30 1/21/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
58 7160 Buchanan Ct End Carmichael Dr E AC 498 32 17,448 75 56 44 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01

116 10930 De Lay St Southridge Dr Havenhurst Dr E AC 290 37 10,730 75 51 49 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
143 3180 Elm St Cedar Ave State College Blvd E AC 666 37 24,642 75 0 100 0 1/13/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
225 10900 Lockhaven Dr Southridge Dr Rutledge Pl E AC 306 37 11,100 75 70 30 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
288 8720 Pepper Tree Dr Forest Pl Lambert Rd E AAC 558 36 19,800 75 77 23 0 1/14/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
296 6960 Pomelo Ave Palmetto Pl Lambert Rd E AAC 234 36 6,924 75 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
343 12080 Spruce St Laurel Ave Poplar Ave E AC 329 33 10,659 75 0 100 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
535 14440 Stearns St CDS (W) CDS (E) P AC 1,826 40 73,040 75 14 86 0 1/31/25 New Construction - AC 5/17/12

2057 13350 Santa Fe Rd Carbon Canyon Rd Merrifield Dr E AC 871 36 31,356 75 18 82 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
214 11630 Larchwood Dr Juniper St Firethorne St E AC 262 37 9,694 75 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15

2057 13300 Santa Fe Rd Valley Crossing Rd Cardinal St E AC 1,277 36 45,972 75 56 44 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
147 4770 Etna Cir End Vesuvius Dr E AAC 178 36 7,920 75 14 86 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
213 11690 Lantana Ave Wildrose Dr Acacia St E AC 315 37 11,655 76 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15

1 11720 Acacia St End Lantana Ave E AC 180 33 7,518 76 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
2057 13340 Santa Fe Rd Merrifield Dr Railway Ave E AC 855 36 30,780 76 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2032 12740 Boxcar Ln Whistle Train Ln Trolley Ct E AC 316 32 11,362 76 24 76 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
369 5260 Thistle Rd Wayward Ct Edgemont Ln E AAC 1,087 32 43,524 76 21 79 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
33 10950 Baywood Dr De Lay St Havenhurst Dr E AC 580 37 23,210 76 0 78 22 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
61 7150 Cameron Ct End Carmichael Dr E AC 317 32 11,656 76 45 55 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
76 2580 Cedar Ave End Pine Ave E AC 109 46 5,014 76 23 55 22 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13

108 8690 Cypress St End Orange Ave E AC 244 44 11,137 76 26 44 30 2/9/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
132 7240 Dundee Ct End Forbes Dr E AC 609 32 21,256 76 28 67 5 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
152 9220 Evergreen Dr Pineridge St Nutwood St E AC 565 36 20,044 76 9 91 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
173 9320 Glenoaks St Site Dr Arrowwood Dr E AC 139 37 5,143 76 44 56 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
226 11880 Locust St Cherry Alder St E AC 808 33 26,664 76 9 91 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/1/14
228 11140 Los Altos Dr Las Lomas Dr Alta Mesa Way E AC 433 36 16,938 76 53 47 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16

Page 8 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

247 12640 Midbury St Wesham Pl Alwick Pl E AAC 293 32 11,126 76 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
258 6540 Newhaven Dr Brookside Ln Dapplegray Cir E AAC 191 16 3,056 76 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
284 11940 Peach Ave End Cherry St E AC 492 33 21,314 76 0 100 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
378 3330 Union Pl Sycamore Ave Redwood Ave E AC 356 37 14,226 76 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
391 10860 Walling Ave De Lay St De Jur St E AC 356 37 13,172 76 0 91 9 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
91 6411 Cloverdale Dr Cloverdale Dr Harvest Ln E AAC 158 16 2,528 76 0 94 6 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

213 11680 Lantana Ave Juniper St Wildrose Dr E AC 753 37 27,861 76 0 98 2 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
383 8990 Vanguard Way Berry St Basse Ln E AC 1,253 40 49,800 76 31 49 20 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 11/1/04
91 6441 Cloverdale Dr Creekwood Ct Singingwood Ln E AAC 196 16 3,136 77 12 88 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

112 6250 Dapplegray Cir End Newhaven Dr E AAC 98 63 5,254 77 39 57 4 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
161 11660 Firethorne St Juniper St Larchwood Dr E AC 642 37 27,610 77 0 95 5 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
19 2160 Arovista Ave Lime St Carob St E AC 235 37 8,695 77 57 36 7 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
19 2170 Arovista Ave Carob St Lemon St E AC 253 37 9,361 77 65 35 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23

143 4630 Elm St Oakhaven Ave Greenleaf Dr E AAC 289 36 10,404 77 21 76 3 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
3 11990 Alder St Cherry St Laurel Ave E AC 289 37 10,693 77 0 100 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
3 12000 Alder St Laurel ST Laurel Ave E AC 210 37 7,770 77 40 53 7 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13

16 7330 Apricot Ave Buttonwood Dr Brookwood St E AC 279 36 9,828 77 65 31 4 1/21/21 Complete Reconstruction - AC 4/29/05
143 4640 Elm St Greenleaf Dr Elm Cir E AAC 345 36 12,420 77 8 92 0 1/31/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
160 11850 Fir St Magnolia Ave Alder St E AC 1,102 33 36,102 77 3 97 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/1/13
194 10820 Hodson Ave City Limit Worthington St E AC 119 37 4,107 77 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
225 10890 Lockhaven Dr Walling Ave Southridge Dr E AC 487 27 13,149 77 44 56 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
259 9010 Nibus St Capricorn St Tamarack Ave E AC 657 44 28,556 77 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
310 2740 Redwood Ave Date St Union Pl E AC 335 37 13,449 77 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
391 10850 Walling Ave City Limit De Lay St E AC 153 37 5,661 77 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
407 11670 Wildrose Dr Larchwood Dr Lantana Ave E AC 874 37 39,616 77 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
187 6190 Heathcliff Pl End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 112 63 5,256 78 41 59 0 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
91 6460 Cloverdale Dr Waterwheel Ln Associated Rd E AAC 111 16 1,776 78 0 100 0 2/20/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

213 11700 Lantana Ave Acacia St Larchwood Dr E AC 276 37 10,212 78 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
3 11960 Alder St Magnolia Ave Fir St E AC 333 37 12,321 78 0 98 2 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
7 11120 Alta Mesa Dr Puente St Alta Mesa Way E AC 402 36 14,147 78 65 35 0 2/9/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

13 9050 Apollo St Berry St Explorer St E AC 853 36 30,412 78 36 64 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
67 10810 Carey Ave Worthington St De Jur St E AC 320 37 13,294 78 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
76 2600 Cedar Ave Maple Ave Hickory St E AC 728 37 30,140 78 36 64 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13

110 8820 Dalewood Pl Pepper Tree Dr End E AAC 420 36 16,632 78 0 94 6 1/14/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
152 9230 Evergreen Dr Nutwood St Tamarack Ave E AC 1,112 37 40,552 78 23 77 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
162 5470 Flanders Ct End Ambling Dr E AC 342 32 10,944 78 40 40 20 1/23/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
213 11710 Lantana Ave Larchwood Dr Fir St E AC 221 37 10,477 78 14 83 3 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
234 12020 Magnolia Ave Fir St Alder St E AC 1,150 33 37,422 78 9 89 2 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
336 9260 Site Dr Nutwood St City Limit E AC 494 36 17,784 78 0 88 12 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
365 9440 Tamarack Ave Glenoaks St Pineridge St E AC 225 36 8,100 78 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
19 2190 Arovista Ave Imperial Hwy Aspen St E AC 585 44 25,388 78 0 83 17 1/30/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

239 11460 Mariposa Dr Lilac Ln Copa De Oro Dr E AC 341 36 12,276 79 35 65 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
258 6510 Newhaven Dr Morningflower Cir Meadowcreek Rd E AAC 247 32 7,904 79 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
66 9000 Capricorn St Nibus St Tamarack Ave E AC 538 44 23,672 79 13 87 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19

115 10760 De Jur St Central Ave Carey Ave E AC 157 37 5,809 79 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
160 11860 Fir St Alder St End E AC 252 33 9,828 79 0 100 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
239 9100 Mariposa Dr Tamarack Ave Ponderosa Ave E AC 1,305 37 48,285 79 62 38 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
290 2530 Pine Ave Cedar Ave Hickory St E AC 720 37 26,640 79 11 89 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
300 240 Puente St El Encanto Dr Alta Mesa Way E AC 729 37 26,973 79 21 53 26 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
378 3320 Union Pl Magnolia Ave Sycamore Ave E AC 307 37 12,413 79 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
420 10800 Worthington St Carey Ave Hodson Ave E AC 325 37 13,775 79 24 76 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
344 4790 Spurr Cir End Vesuvius Dr E AAC 246 36 10,368 79 20 80 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
258 6530 Newhaven Dr Waterfall Ln Brookside Ln E AAC 249 16 3,984 80 34 62 4 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
113 4720 Date St Oakhaven Ave Valencia Ave E AAC 157 36 5,652 80 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13

2037 12910 Grandview Dr Valley Crossing Rd Railway Ave E AC 923 32 29,536 80 33 67 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
3 11970 Alder St Fir St Locust St E AC 320 37 11,840 80 0 98 2 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
3 11980 Alder St Locust St Cherry St E AC 207 37 7,659 80 0 100 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13

21 9210 Arrowwood Dr Nutwood St Tamarack Ave E AC 1,558 37 57,646 80 0 96 4 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
24 3630 Ash St Bandera Way Laurel Ave E AC 234 37 8,658 80 27 73 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
69 7100 Carmichael Dr Balsa Ave Davidson Ct E AC 937 36 33,732 80 51 39 10 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
69 7140 Carmichael Dr Cameron Ct Newhall Terrace E AC 1,234 36 44,426 80 10 82 8 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
81 11900 Cherry St Locust St Alder St E AC 1,200 33 42,902 80 10 86 4 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/1/13

Page 9 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

84 7170 Chisholm Ct End Carmichael Dr E AC 447 32 15,816 80 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
115 10790 De Jur St McCart Ave Walling Ave E AC 345 37 12,765 80 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
159 6990 Filbert Pl End Pomelo Ave E AAC 450 36 17,712 80 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
194 10830 Hodson Ave Worthington St De Jur St E AC 362 37 13,098 80 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
234 12060 Magnolia Ave Date St Union Pl E AC 271 37 11,081 80 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
237 2690 Maple Ave Elm St Dead End E AC 780 37 28,638 80 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
244 10845 McCart Cir McCart Ave End E AC 107 37 5,497 80 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
247 12630 Midbury St Puente St Wesham Pl E AAC 726 32 22,976 80 0 97 3 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
267 10090 Oakknoll St Forestview Dr End E AAC 470 36 18,720 80 41 59 0 5/4/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
288 8750 Pepper Tree Dr Clove Pl Dalewood Pl E AAC 240 36 8,640 80 72 25 3 1/21/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
354 9810 Strattford St End Amber Hill Dr E AC 365 36 14,940 80 0 43 57 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
365 9460 Tamarack Ave Nutwood St Evergreen Dr E AC 289 36 10,404 80 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
222 11450 Lilac Ln Copa De Oro Dr City Limit E AC 414 36 14,904 80 44 49 7 1/30/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 8/23/05
245 6341 Meadowcreek Rd Associated Rd Newhaven Dr E AAC 300 16 5,550 80 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
214 11650 Larchwood Dr Wildrose Dr Lantana Ave E AC 1,261 37 46,657 80 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
245 6290 Meadowcreek Rd End Newhaven Dr E AAC 83 63 4,329 80 0 89 11 2/14/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
148 4 Weeping Willow Rd Railway Ave Parking Lot E AC 335 31 10,385 80 0 100 0 1/31/25 New Construction - AC 1/1/80
410 4350 Windermere Cir End Eucalyptus Ave E AC 151 36 9,386 80 0 100 0 2/6/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
149 4320 Eucalyptus Ln Associated Rd Amberwick Ln E AC 653 36 23,508 81 0 78 22 2/6/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
373 4740 Tolbert St End Mujica Pl E AAC 261 36 11,196 81 10 90 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07

3 11950 Alder St Brea Blvd Magnolia Ave E AC 1,248 37 46,176 81 2 98 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
24 3610 Ash St Flower Ave Redwood Ave E AC 308 37 11,396 81 46 54 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
24 3620 Ash St Redwood Ave Bandera Way E AC 84 37 3,108 81 30 70 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
69 7120 Carmichael Dr Chisholm Ct Buchanan Ct E AC 312 36 11,232 81 36 64 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
76 2680 Cedar Ave Elm St Date St E AC 294 37 10,878 81 24 76 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

116 10920 De Lay St Walling Ave Southridge Dr E AC 293 37 10,545 81 0 95 5 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
166 7190 Forbes Dr Balsa Ave Desert Canyon Rd E AC 556 36 20,016 81 18 82 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
183 10980 Havenhurst Dr Wickford Dr Baywood Dr E AC 292 37 10,804 81 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
237 2570 Maple Ave Cedar Ave Hickory St E AC 557 33 18,381 81 21 79 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
336 9250 Site Dr Glenoaks St Nutwood St E AC 1,225 36 44,100 81 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
365 9450 Tamarack Ave Pineridge St Nutwood St E AC 708 36 25,488 81 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
389 7640 Wake Forest St Aspen St Cycod Pl E AAC 272 36 9,792 81 20 75 5 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
404 11000 Wickford Dr End Havenhurst Dr E AC 313 27 10,168 81 7 93 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
133 2140 Eadington Dr Catalpa Ave Arovista Ave E AC 285 36 10,260 81 52 48 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
74 2000 Catalpa Ave Eadington Dr Oleander St E AC 1,100 37 40,478 81 27 73 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23

2037 12920 Grandview Dr Railway Ave East End E AC 474 32 16,963 81 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
258 6520 Newhaven Dr Meadowcreek Rd Waterfall Ln E AAC 317 16 5,072 81 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
275 2820 Orange Ave Imperial Hwy Birch St E AAC 672 32 21,248 81 48 33 19 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/19

1 11730 Acacia St Lantana Ave Chestnut Ave E AC 357 33 11,261 82 12 88 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
32 8970 Basse Ln Vanguard Way End E AC 315 40 14,427 82 0 74 26 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 11/1/05

199 2300 Jasmine Dr End Lime St E AC 376 33 14,176 82 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
245 6350 Meadowcreek Rd End Meadowcreek Rd E AAC 74 63 3,858 82 46 54 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
270 12090 Oleander St End Jasmine Dr E AC 415 32 15,048 82 33 53 14 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23

2057 13330 Santa Fe Rd Railway Ave Valley Crossing Rd E AC 816 36 29,376 82 33 67 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
258 6500 Newhaven Dr Donnybrook Rd Morningflower Cir E AAC 158 16 4,128 82 0 100 0 2/14/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

9 12270 Alwick Pl Midbury St End E AAC 210 32 9,505 82 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
31 7440 Balsa Ave State College Blvd Buttonwood Dr E AC 140 36 5,190 82 59 41 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
49 8840 Bracken St Brea Blvd Madrona Ave E AC 233 32 7,200 82 0 97 3 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02

113 3270 Date St Magnolia Ave Sycamore Ave E AC 317 37 11,729 82 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
115 10770 De Jur St Carey Ave Hodson Ave E AC 330 37 12,210 82 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
115 10780 De Jur St Hodson Ave McCart Ave E AC 275 37 10,175 82 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
518 14210 El Temblor Ranch Dr N Belridge Terrace N Cable Canyon Pl E AC 1,437 30 43,110 82 13 77 10 5/4/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
160 11840 Fir St Brea Blvd Magnolia Ave E AC 402 33 12,804 82 2 81 17 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/1/13
218 2480 Laurel Ave Madison Way Birch St E AC 810 32 25,728 82 53 47 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
243 10840 McCart Ave City Limit De Jur St E AC 470 37 17,390 82 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
258 6570 Newhaven Dr Acorn Cir Cloverdale Dr E AAC 38 17 646 82 0 100 0 11/13/18 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
262 9290 Nutwood St Evergreen Dr Tamarack Ave E AC 1,178 37 43,586 82 39 61 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
288 8760 Pepper Tree Dr Brea Blvd Clove Pl E AAC 552 36 24,172 82 36 41 23 1/14/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
296 6930 Pomelo Ave Avocado St Filbert Pl E AAC 246 36 11,006 82 12 88 0 5/3/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
300 230 Puente St Whittier Blvd El Encanto Dr E AC 442 37 16,354 82 0 100 0 2/2/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
300 260 Puente St Northwood Ave Woodcrest Ave E AC 921 48 44,208 82 12 86 2 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
519 14220 Shackle Line Dr E El Temblor Ranch Dr CDS (NW) E AC 870 30 26,100 82 0 100 0 5/4/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12

Page 10 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

365 9400 Tamarack Ave Central Ave Orangewood Dr E AC 490 36 17,352 82 32 57 11 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
375 10750 Tracie Dr End Puente St E AC 764 32 29,660 82 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
11 4340 Amberwick Cir End Eucalyptus Ave E AC 147 36 6,804 82 0 100 0 2/6/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

223 2280 Lime St Arovista Ave Jasmine Dr E AC 713 33 23,331 83 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
126 6311 Donnybrook Rd Whispering Ln Newhaven Dr E AAC 177 16 2,832 83 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12

2052 13220 Railway Ave Santa Fe Rd Whistle Train Ln E AC 214 32 6,848 83 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
91 6410 Cloverdale Dr Cattail Cir Harvest Ln E AAC 803 16 16,448 83 36 53 11 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
60 8090 Buttonwood Dr Lotus Pl Blossom Pl E AC 333 36 11,772 83 0 38 62 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
63 7610 Candlewood St Cashew Ave Balsa Ave E AAC 249 36 8,964 83 0 100 0 3/25/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05

113 1 Date St End Cedar Ave E AC 364 37 15,268 83 0 100 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
114 7180 Davidson Ct End Carmichael Dr E AC 462 32 16,296 83 31 69 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
143 3070 Elm St Sievers Ave Madrona Ave E AC 362 31 11,036 83 24 68 8 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/15
143 3080 Elm St Madrona Ave Walnut Ave E AC 362 28 9,716 83 0 90 10 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/15
143 3150 Elm St Laurel Ave Poplar Ave E AC 325 37 12,025 83 0 100 0 1/13/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
144 12097 Endeavor Cir Challenger St End E AC 308 40 13,827 83 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
173 9330 Glenoaks St Arrowwood Dr Lynwood Dr E AC 634 37 23,162 83 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
173 9340 Glenoaks St Lynwood Dr Tamarack Ave E AC 243 37 8,695 83 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07

2043 13080 Lark Ln Starling wy Sandpiper Wy E AC 583 32 19,906 83 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
501 14000 Newhall Terrace CARMICHAEL DR CDS (N) E AC 678 36 4,068 83 0 100 0 5/3/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
262 9270 Nutwood St Site Dr Arrowwood Dr E AC 186 37 6,882 83 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
275 2800 Orange Ave Elm St Date St E AC 671 36 23,940 83 0 100 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
275 2810 Orange Ave Date St Imperial Hwy E AC 652 36 23,472 83 0 75 25 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
291 9300 Pineridge St Arrowwood Dr Evergreen Dr E AC 256 37 9,176 83 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
291 9310 Pineridge St Evergreen Dr Tamarack Ave E AC 828 37 30,340 83 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
298 3370 Poplar Ave Imperial Hwy Madison Way E AC 587 32 18,272 83 49 51 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
298 3410 Poplar Ave Willow Dr Cottonwood Dr E AC 287 36 10,332 83 48 44 8 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
310 2730 Redwood Ave End Date St E AC 356 33 11,748 83 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
337 7670 Skywood St Buttonwood St Cliffwood Ave E AC 318 36 11,232 83 46 29 25 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
342 10440 Southridge Dr Lockhaven Dr Puente St E AC 257 28 7,446 83 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
364 2700 Sycamore Ave Elm St Date St E AC 762 36 27,144 83 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
364 2710 Sycamore Ave Date St Union Pl E AC 294 37 10,878 83 0 68 32 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
404 11010 Wickford Dr Havenhurst Dr Lockhaven Dr E AC 298 37 12,154 83 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16

2037 12900 Grandview Dr Valley Crossing Rd West End E AC 655 32 22,725 83 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
390 5320 Walden Rd Woodacre St Lambert Rd E AAC 146 46 5,386 83 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/13
70 2270 Carob St End Arovista Ave E AC 461 33 16,725 84 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23

220 2260 Lemon St End Arovista Ave E AC 465 33 16,857 84 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
21 9200 Arrowwood Dr Pineridge St Nutwood St E AC 813 37 29,785 84 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
24 3590 Ash St Brea Blvd End E AC 136 26 3,536 84 0 31 69 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
69 7110 Carmichael Dr Davidson Ct Chisholm Ct E AC 286 36 10,296 84 0 75 25 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
69 7130 Carmichael Dr Buchanan Ct Cameron Ct E AC 302 36 10,872 84 0 97 3 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/02
79 12095 Challenger St Berry St Endeavor Cir E AC 997 40 39,560 84 0 100 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
79 12096 Challenger St Endeavor Cir Columbia St E AC 1,185 40 50,900 84 0 100 0 1/13/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/19
86 7020 Citrus Pl End Buttonwood Dr E AC 233 36 10,188 84 0 64 36 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
92 7400 Cocao Pl Balsa Ave End E AAC 341 36 14,076 84 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05

108 8700 Cypress St Orange Ave Brea Blvd E AC 343 44 15,092 84 0 31 69 2/9/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
156 10105 Fawnridge Dr Ethelinda Way Oakknoll St E AAC 360 36 14,422 84 0 100 0 5/4/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
185 9130 Hazelwood Pl End Ponderosa Ave E AC 429 37 17,597 84 0 95 5 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
198 3750 Jacaranda Pl Cottonwood Dr Pepperwood Dr E AC 226 33 8,676 84 47 53 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
225 10910 Lockhaven Dr Rutledge Pl Wickford Dr E AC 332 37 13,634 84 0 100 0 1/25/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
248 10010 Mooncrest Cir End Fawnridge Dr E AAC 379 36 15,156 84 12 69 19 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
501 14010 Newhall Terrace CARMICHAEL DR CDS (W) E AC 715 36 4,288 84 0 100 0 2/8/23 New Construction - AC 8/28/17
261 11262 Northwood Ave Berry St End E AC 473 32 15,963 84 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
273 7050 Olive Ave End Buttonwood Dr E AC 290 36 12,240 84 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
305 3520 Randolph Ave End Cottonwood Dr E AC 404 37 16,635 84 49 51 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
342 10430 Southridge Dr De Lay St Lockhaven Dr E AC 934 37 35,662 84 5 68 27 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
364 2720 Sycamore Ave Union Pl Imperial Hwy E AC 315 37 11,655 84 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
389 7620 Wake Forest St Cliffwood Ave Apricot Ave E AAC 263 36 9,252 84 16 84 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
389 7630 Wake Forest St Apricot Ave Aspen St E AAC 426 36 15,336 84 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
403 11055 Whittier Ave Bexley Ln End E AC 410 35 15,970 84 0 100 0 3/30/23 Complete Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
149 4330 Eucalyptus Ln Amberwick Ln Windermere Cir E AC 256 36 11,366 84 0 98 2 2/6/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
199 2320 Jasmine Dr Oleander St Imperial Frontage E AC 211 33 6,765 84 17 81 2 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
270 2110 Oleander St Poinsettia Ave Catalpa Ave E AC 582 37 21,534 84 46 54 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23

Page 11 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

2063 13480 Valley Crossing Rd Santa Fe Rd Landmark Ln E AC 526 32 16,832 84 13 87 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
423 4270 Amberwick Ln End Heather Ln E AAC 251 36 10,836 84 0 100 0 2/7/25 Cold Mill and Overlay - 2 Inches 1/1/16
189 4280 Heather Ln Amberwick Ln Devonshire E AC 250 36 10,862 84 0 100 0 2/7/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

2052 13210 Railway Ave Santa Fe Rd Landmark Ln E AC 528 32 16,896 85 24 76 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
199 2310 Jasmine Dr Lime St Oleander St E AC 845 33 27,885 85 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
232 3540 Madison Way Laurel Ave Poplar Ave E AC 341 36 11,988 85 0 90 10 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
223 2290 Lime St End Jasmine Dr E AC 158 32 6,824 85 0 100 0 2/13/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
128 4240 Dover Ave Heather Cir Chevy Chase Dr E AC 359 36 12,636 85 13 87 0 2/6/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
16 7530 Apricot Ave Wake Forest St Aspen St E AAC 317 36 11,196 85 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
21 9190 Arrowwood Dr Glenoaks St Pineridge St E AC 232 37 8,584 85 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07

521 14240 Belridge Terrace N Tonner Ridge Dr E Ojai Dr E AC 884 30 26,520 85 0 90 10 2/2/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
2030 12725 Blue Jay Dr Pheasant Ln Hawks Dr E AC 476 30 14,280 85 40 60 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12

63 7600 Candlewood St Apricot Ave Cashew Ave E AAC 965 36 34,740 85 0 79 21 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
64 7842 Canyon Country Rd Grand Canyon Rd Glen Canyon Way E AC 478 36 20,076 85 0 60 40 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
72 7490 Cashew Ave Lambert Rd Wake Forest St E AAC 158 36 5,472 85 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05

2012 12790 Charleston Wy Tremaine Rd Johnson Ln E AC 578 27 15,606 85 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2012 12800 Charleston Wy Johnson Ln Reynoso Pk E AC 388 27 10,476 85 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17

85 6130 Cinnamon Ridge Rd Clear Springs Rd Deer Springs Ln E AC 247 16 4,147 85 27 69 4 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
85 6141 Cinnamon Ridge Rd Associated Rd Deer Springs Ln E AC 247 16 4,367 85 0 100 0 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
96 3710 Cottonwood Dr Poplar Ave Pecan Pl E AC 236 37 8,732 85 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
96 3720 Cottonwood Dr Pecan Pl Jacaranda Pl E AC 528 37 19,536 85 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21

108 8710 Cypress St Brea Blvd Madrona Ave E AC 272 32 7,954 85 0 42 58 2/9/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
135 8810 Eastwood Pl Pepper Tree Dr End E AAC 522 36 20,304 85 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
143 3100 Elm St Brea Blvd Orange Ave E AC 352 37 12,210 85 0 100 0 1/13/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
166 7200 Forbes Dr Desert Canyon Rd Dundee Ct E AC 238 36 8,568 85 38 62 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
265 11350 Oakcrest Ave End Sandalwood Dr E AC 496 36 19,368 85 0 100 0 2/2/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
313 9840 Robert Ct End Eden Way E AC 572 36 22,104 85 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
313 9850 Robert Ct Northwood Ave Eden Way E AC 416 36 14,976 85 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17

2013 12830 Salveson Rd Matthews Ln Tremaine Rd E AC 435 30 13,050 85 15 85 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2056 13290 Sandpiper Way Lark Ln Valencia Ave E AC 1,021 32 33,922 85 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
365 9430 Tamarack Ave Mariposa Dr Glenoaks St E AC 472 36 16,992 85 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
418 6910 Woodland Ave Redbud St Papaya Pl E AAC 244 36 10,934 85 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
138 5400 Edgemont Ln Kraemer Blvd Thistle Rd E AAC 173 46 5,892 85 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13
359 14460 Sunflower St Lambert Rd Stearns St P AC 172 40 6,880 85 36 64 0 1/31/25 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
126 6310 Donnybrook Rd Newhaven Dr Whispering Glen Ln E AAC 177 16 2,832 86 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
83 4310 Chevy Chase Dr Dover Ave Windermere Cir E AC 583 36 23,138 86 0 100 0 2/6/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

219 12460 Legacy Dr Studio Dr Arts Ave E AAC 420 34 14,550 86 24 76 0 2/5/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/10
16 7540 Apricot Ave Aspen St Candlewood St E AAC 305 36 10,980 86 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
54 7990 Brookshire Pl Evening Canyon Grand Canyon Rd E AC 462 32 14,784 86 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
72 7500 Cashew Ave Wake Forest St Candlewood St E AC 298 36 10,728 86 0 96 4 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - PCC 12/1/05

424 13005 Cedarwood Ct Whispering Willow End E AAC 720 36 25,920 86 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
81 11930 Cherry St End Peach Ave E AC 241 33 9,729 86 0 100 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13

129 4130 Dover Cir End Westmoreland Dr E AC 505 36 23,992 86 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
151 7920 Evening Canyon Rd Brookshire Pl Echo Canyon Pl E AC 264 32 8,448 86 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
166 7220 Forbes Dr End Lennox Ct E AC 685 36 26,460 86 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
175 7950 Grand Canyon Rd Echo Canyon Pl Evening Canyon Rd E AC 603 32 18,976 86 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
175 8000 Grand Canyon Rd Brookshire Pl Echo Canyon Pl E AC 380 32 12,160 86 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
195 4420 Holly St Aurora Ave Valverde Ave E AC 1,032 36 36,864 86 0 100 0 5/3/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

2043 13070 Lark Ln Santa Fe Rd Starling Wy E AC 151 46 6,946 86 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2022 13100 Matthews Ln Charleston Wy Salveson Rd E AC 361 30 10,830 86 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
250 3990 Moorpark Dr Brittany Ln Larkstone Ln E AC 979 36 39,544 86 63 37 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/21
264 3780 Oak Pl Willow Dr Almond Dr E AC 365 33 12,392 86 32 68 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
280 6970 Palmetto Pl End Pomelo Ave E AAC 493 36 19,260 86 0 97 3 2/1/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
509 14110 Pico Canyon Ln Alamitos Rd N San Ardo Dr E AC 797 36 28,680 86 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
297 9160 Ponderosa Ave Driftwood Ave Hazelwood Pl E AC 549 37 20,313 86 0 82 18 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
305 3480 Randolph Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 350 37 12,950 86 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
305 3510 Randolph Ave Willow Dr Cottonwood Dr E AC 106 37 3,922 86 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21

2053 13230 Redtail Dr Pheasant Ln  Hawks Dr E AC 456 30 13,680 86 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2054 13270 Roadrunner Dr Cardinal St Condor Ave E AC 585 30 18,800 86 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
336 9240 Site Dr Central Ave Glenoaks St E AC 1,123 36 40,428 86 0 59 41 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
399 12280 Wesham Pl Midbury St End E AAC 170 32 6,525 86 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
99 5380 Country Hills Rd Kraemer Blvd Thistle Rd E AAC 182 46 6,306 86 17 83 0 11/7/18 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/13

Page 12 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

2063 13490 Valley Crossing Rd Landmark Ln Dr South End E AC 300 32 9,600 86 16 84 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2064 13500 Whistle Train Rd Valley Crossing Rd West End E AC 515 32 16,480 87 0 75 25 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12

5 12510 Allyson Ct Roscoe St End E AC 257 32 9,736 87 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
24 3650 Ash St Poplar Ave Randolph Ave E AC 774 33 25,014 87 0 100 0 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
56 7390 Brookwood St Apricot Ave Balsa Ave E AC 1,019 36 36,252 87 0 72 28 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
60 8050 Buttonwood Dr Balsa Ave Apricot Ave E AC 1,030 36 36,864 87 0 46 54 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
64 7844 Canyon Country Rd Stone Canyon Way Shadow Canyon Way E AC 409 36 14,724 87 0 92 8 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
64 7850 Canyon Country Rd Canyon Country Rd Canyon Country Rd E AC 278 17 4,726 87 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
68 10250 Carlson Dr Carlson Dr End E AC 209 36 9,324 87 0 100 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
90 8830 Clove Pl Pepper Tree Dr End E AAC 350 36 14,112 87 0 80 20 1/14/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05

113 3240 Date St Brea Blvd Orange Ave E AC 352 33 11,778 87 0 94 6 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
143 3120 Elm St Flower Ave Magnolia Ave E AC 378 37 13,986 87 0 100 0 1/13/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
175 7960 Grand Canyon Rd Evening Canyon Canyon Country Rd E AC 487 32 15,328 87 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
181 6220 Harvest Ln End Cloverdale Dr E AAC 222 44 6,829 87 0 100 0 2/17/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
267 10100 Oakknoll St Fawnridge Ave Old Mill Ct E AAC 350 36 14,350 87 0 100 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
274 3810 Olive Pl Willow Ave Almond Dr E AC 379 33 15,743 87 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
289 3770 Pepperwood Dr Pecan Pl Jacaranda Pl E AC 489 33 17,487 87 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21

2051 13200 Pheasant Ln Blue Jay Dr West End E AC 327 30 9,810 87 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
296 6950 Pomelo Ave Sungrove Pl Palmetto Pl E AAC 253 36 9,108 87 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
298 3380 Poplar Ave Madison Way Birch St E AC 739 32 23,392 87 0 96 4 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
298 3420 Poplar Ave Cottonwood Dr Paseo De Toner E AC 325 36 13,500 87 0 96 4 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
300 270 Puente St Woodcrest Ave City Limit E AAC 408 48 19,584 87 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16

2025 13240 Reynoso Pk Skyler Wy Jones Dr E AC 371 30 11,130 87 0 29 71 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
354 9820 Strattford St End Amber Hill Dr E AC 597 36 23,292 87 0 94 6 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
360 6980 Sungrove Pl End Pomelo Ave E AAC 461 36 18,108 87 0 98 2 2/1/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
425 13001 Sunrose Ct Cederwood Ct End E AAC 220 36 9,370 87 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
389 7650 Wake Forest St Cycod Pl Cashew Ave E AAC 233 36 8,388 87 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
423 4260 Amberwick Ln Hillhaven Dr Heather Ln E AC 279 36 9,756 87 0 100 0 2/7/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
83 4300 Chevy Chase Dr Associated Rd Dover Ave E AC 403 36 14,508 88 0 100 0 2/7/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

390 14450 Walden Rd Lambert Rd Stearns St P AC 157 40 6,280 88 33 67 0 1/31/25 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
32 8980 Basse Ln Vanguard Way Lambert Rd E AC 385 40 15,400 88 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 11/1/05

103 12470 Craftsman Cir Arts Ave End E AAC 420 32 15,048 88 19 81 0 2/5/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/10
188 4250 Heather Cir End Dover Ave E AC 331 36 13,716 88 0 100 0 2/6/25 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

2064 13510 Whistle Train Rd Boxcar Ln Valley Crossing Rd E AC 800 32 26,850 88 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
6 3820 Almond Dr Oak Pl Olive Pl E AC 881 33 32,573 88 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21

22 12340 Arthur Dr Oakcrest Ave End E AC 646 36 25,056 88 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
44 8020 Blossom Pl End Buttonwood Dr E AC 481 36 19,116 88 0 100 0 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
52 1940 Briarwood Dr Puente St Eadington Dr E AC 1,942 37 71,854 88 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
60 7040 Buttonwood Dr citrus Pl Olive Ave E AC 304 36 10,728 88 0 97 3 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
63 7480 Candlewood St Balsa Ave End E AAC 658 36 25,488 88 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
63 7590 Candlewood St Cliffwood Ave Apricot Ave E AAC 247 36 8,676 88 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
64 7845 Canyon Country Rd Shadow Canyon Rd Malibu Canyon Rd E AC 444 36 15,984 88 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
88 7550 Cliffwood Ave Lambert Rd Wake Forest St E AAC 197 36 6,876 88 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
88 7660 Cliffwood Ave Buttonwood Dr Skywood St E AC 801 36 32,704 88 0 57 43 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

111 12360 Daniel Ct Woodcrest Ave End E AC 145 36 6,732 88 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
136 7980 Echo Canyon Pl Evening Canyon Rd Grand Canyon Rd E AC 254 32 7,872 88 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
137 9830 Eden Way Strattford St Robert Ct E AC 281 36 10,116 88 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
143 3140 Elm St Sycamore Ave Laurel Ave E AC 698 37 25,826 88 0 55 45 1/13/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
163 2750 Flower Ave Elm St Date St E AC 692 37 25,604 88 0 100 0 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
179 6880 Guava Pl End Avocado E AAC 357 36 14,364 88 0 96 4 5/3/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
221 7230 Lennox Ct End Forbes Dr E AC 447 32 16,072 88 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
229 8040 Lotus Pl End Buttonwood Dr E AC 437 36 17,244 88 19 81 0 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
236 7090 Mango St Apple Dr Olive Ave E AC 589 36 23,354 88 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
261 11256 Northwood Ave Dorothy Dr Old Mill Dr E AC 503 21 13,503 88 0 96 4 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/21
520 14230 Ojai Dr E N Belridge Terrace Bardsdale Pl E AC 1,356 30 40,689 88 0 94 6 2/2/23 New Construction - AC 5/12/12
281 6860 Papaya Pl End Woodland Ave E AAC 172 36 10,142 88 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
288 8740 Pepper Tree Dr Dalewood Pl Eastwood Pl E AAC 280 36 10,080 88 0 56 44 1/21/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
296 6940 Pomelo Ave Filbert Pl Sungrove Pl E AAC 252 36 9,072 88 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
297 9150 Ponderosa Ave Mariposa Dr Driftwood Ave E AC 426 37 15,762 88 0 65 35 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
305 3490 Randolph Ave Ash St Willow Dr E AC 354 37 13,098 88 0 100 0 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
531 14380 Rubel Dr Santa Fe RD Philips Ct E AC 948 30 28,440 88 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
332 12310 Shelly Ct Woodcrest Ave End E AC 140 36 6,552 88 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22

Page 13 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

2028 13450 Tremaine Rd Charleston Wy Salveson Rd E AC 372 30 11,160 88 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
143 4620 Elm St Valencia Ave Oakhaven Ave E AAC 161 36 5,796 88 18 82 0 2/5/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 6/1/07
367 2040 Teak St End Poinsettia Ave E AC 354 37 14,610 88 23 60 17 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23

2063 13470 Valley Crossing Rd Santa Fe Rd Whistle Train Ln E AC 241 32 7,712 88 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
392 2880 Walnut Ave Valencia St Elm St E AAC 113 36 4,068 88 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
82 11740 Chestnut Ave Juniper St Acacia St E AC 886 33 29,040 88 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15

331 5060 Shamrock Ave Goldenrod St Sunflower St E AC 792 32 27,529 89 0 52 48 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
508 14100 Alamitos Rd Shepherd Ln Pico Canyon Ln E AC 1,207 30 36,210 89 0 95 5 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
10 9800 Amber Hill Dr Berry St Strattford St E AC 155 36 5,580 89 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
25 7510 Aspen St Wake Forest St Apricot Ave E AAC 608 36 24,956 89 0 100 0 1/13/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
29 6890 Avocado St State College Blvd Guava Pl E AAC 196 36 6,768 89 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
31 7410 Balsa Ave Cocao Pl End E AAC 150 36 6,378 89 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
31 7420 Balsa Ave Cocao Pl Candlewood St E AAC 240 36 8,640 89 0 100 0 3/19/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
35 9920 Beechwood Dr Starcrest St Forestview Dr E AAC 310 36 11,160 89 0 100 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
64 7843 Canyon Country Rd Glen Canyon Way Stone Canyon Way E AC 550 36 19,800 89 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
64 7846 Canyon Country Rd Malibu Canyon Rd City Limit E AC 119 36 4,284 89 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01

2034 12760 Cardinal St Santa Fe Rd Roadrunner Dr E AC 664 30 21,170 89 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
83 4410 Chevy Chase Dr End Aurora Ave E AC 610 32 21,320 89 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
85 6140 Cinnamon Ridge Rd Deer Springs Ln Associated Rd E AC 300 16 5,215 89 0 100 0 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
88 7580 Cliffwood Ave State College Blvd Buttonwood Dr E AC 180 36 6,480 89 0 100 0 1/25/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/95

124 4120 Devonshire Cir End Devonshire Dr E AC 142 36 6,624 89 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
131 9120 Driftwood Pl End Ponderosa Ave E AC 406 37 16,746 89 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
140 11150 El Encanto Drive San Juan Dr Puente St E AC 890 36 31,752 89 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
151 7930 Evening Canyon Rd Echo Canyon Pl Canyondale Dr E AC 263 32 8,416 89 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
167 8800 Forest Pl Gum Pl Pepper Tree Dr E AAC 325 36 11,412 89 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
168 9950 Forestview Dr Beechwood Dr Oakknoll St E AAC 721 36 25,668 89 0 100 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
172 7890 Glen Canyon Way End Canyon Country Rd E AC 321 29 6,438 89 0 96 4 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
183 10970 Havenhurst Dr De Lay St Wickford Dr E AC 698 37 27,280 89 19 81 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
192 4190 Hillhaven Dr Castlegate Ln Dover Ln E AC 220 36 7,920 89 0 49 51 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
210 11190 La Serena Dr La Canada Dr Alta Mesa Dr E AC 586 36 23,508 89 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
216 4000 Larkstone Ln Moorpark Dr Ravencrest Dr E AC 254 36 11,294 89 39 61 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
267 10095 Oakknoll St Old Mill Ct Forestview Dr E AAC 164 36 5,904 89 0 100 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
273 7060 Olive Ave Buttonwood Dr Mango St E AC 537 36 21,482 89 0 97 3 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
285 2050 Pear St End Poinsettia Ave E AC 363 37 14,943 89 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
286 3740 Pecan Pl Cottonwood Dr Pepperwood Dr E AC 243 33 7,887 89 0 100 0 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
297 9140 Ponderosa Ave Orangewood Dr Mariposa Dr E AC 289 37 10,693 89 0 89 11 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
297 9170 Ponderosa Ave Hazelwood Pl City Limit E AC 262 37 9,694 89 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07

2013 12700 Salveson Rd Tremaine Rd Berry St E AC 180 24 4,320 89 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
510 14120 San Ardo Dr N Alamitos Rd CDS (S) E AC 1,670 36 60,109 89 0 94 6 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
507 14090 Shepherd Ln Tonner Ridge Dr CDS (N) E AC 563 36 20,268 89 0 93 7 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
350 7740 Stone Canyon Way Driftwood Ave Sand Canyon Way E AC 196 29 5,684 89 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
350 7750 Stone Canyon Way Sand Canyon Way Trabuco Canyon Way E AC 279 29 8,091 89 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
416 12350 Woodcrest Ave Arthur Dr Kellen E AC 1,120 36 42,470 89 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
421 12550 Zachary Ct Roscoe St End E AC 317 32 12,856 89 21 79 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
241 12480 Masters Cir Arts Ave End E AAC 420 32 15,048 89 20 80 0 2/5/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/10
254 11780 Mulberry Ave Chestnut Ave Fir St E AC 512 33 16,632 89 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
305 3451 Randolph Ave Imperial Ave Imperial Ave E AC 445 30 19,737 89 0 90 10 10/30/18 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
392 2850 Walnut Ave Juniper St Acacia St E AAC 462 36 16,632 90 0 94 6 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
74 2005 Catalpa Ave Imperial Hwy Oleander St E AC 124 35 3,780 90 0 69 31 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
45 5030 Bluebell Ave End Starflower St E AC 169 32 7,176 90 41 59 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10

254 11760 Mulberry Ave Juniper St Acacia St E AC 670 33 21,912 90 0 93 7 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
7 11100 Alta Mesa Dr La Serena Dr Los Altos Dr E AC 360 36 12,960 90 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
7 11105 Alta Mesa Dr Alta Mesa Dr End E AC 73 66 4,818 90 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16

14 7070 Apple Dr Buttonwood Dr Mango St E AC 370 36 15,470 90 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
35 9930 Beechwood Dr Forestview Dr End E AAC 673 36 26,028 90 0 95 5 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
44 8030 Blossom Pl State College Blvd Buttonwood Dr E AC 235 36 8,460 90 0 52 48 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
60 8060 Buttonwood Dr Apricot Ave Cliffwood Ave E AC 570 36 20,520 90 0 79 21 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

514 14170 Cable Canyon Pl N El Temblor Ranch Dr E Kern River Ln E AC 945 30 28,338 90 0 100 0 2/2/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
68 10230 Carlson Dr Tracie Dr Deanna Dr E AC 282 36 10,152 90 0 100 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
68 10240 Carlson Dr Deanna Dr Steele Dr E AC 613 36 21,780 90 0 100 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
85 6131 Cinnamon Ridge Rd Deer Springs Ln Clear Springs Rd E AC 225 16 3,795 90 0 100 0 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
86 7000 Citrus Pl State College Blvd Butoonwood Dr E AC 169 36 5,796 90 0 83 17 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

Page 14 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

524 14300 Coalinga Dr E Pacific Ct Roundabout E AC 1,147 30 34,410 90 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
524 14310 Coalinga Dr E Roundabout Naranjal Dr E AC 991 30 29,745 90 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12

2035 12810 Condor Ave Santa Fe Rd Hawks Dr E AC 816 32 26,112 90 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
117 10270 Deanna Dr Carlson Dr Steele Dr E AC 399 36 13,932 90 0 100 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
125 4100 Devonshire Dr Devonshire Cir Westmoreland Dr E AC 504 36 18,144 90 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
130 7690 Driftwood Ave End Skywood St E AC 269 36 9,934 90 0 70 30 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
134 3800 Eastridge Way End Willow Dr E AC 163 33 6,891 90 0 89 11 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
138 5391 Edgemont Ln Kraemer Blvd Ambling Dr E AC 172 16 2,752 90 27 73 0 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
139 11155 El Encanto Dr San Juan Dr La Canada Dr E AC 283 36 12,338 90 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
151 7940 Evening Canyon Rd Canyondale Dr Grand Canyon Rd E AC 247 32 7,904 90 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
171 11370 Gemini Ave End Titan Way E AAC 372 44 18,230 90 0 100 0 2/13/25 Overlay - AC Structural 10/1/20
204 12390 Kellen Dr Oakcrest Ave Woodcrest Ave E AC 235 36 12,760 90 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
217 11130 Las Lomas Dr San Juan Dr Los Altos Dr E AC 565 36 21,402 90 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
232 3550 Madison Way Poplar Ave Pine Ave E AC 382 36 13,752 90 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
236 7080 Mango St Balsa Ave Apple Dr E AC 244 36 8,496 90 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
261 11258 Northwood Ave Old Mill Dr Jonathan Dr E AC 682 21 16,422 90 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/21
263 7790 Oak Canyon Way End Canyon Country Rd E AC 249 29 4,205 90 0 41 59 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
276 9080 Orangewood Dr Tamarack Ave Ponderosa Ave E AC 1,710 37 63,270 90 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07

2048 13160 Owl Pl Condor Ave Hummingbird Dr E AC 363 30 10,890 90 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
289 3760 Pepperwood Dr End Pecan Pl E AC 150 33 6,726 90 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
300 250 Puente St Alta Mesa Way Northwood Ave E AC 275 48 13,200 90 22 78 0 2/2/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/18
318 11070 San Juan Dr El Encanto Las Lomas Dr E AC 275 36 9,900 90 0 82 18 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
350 7730 Stone Canyon Way End Driftwood Ave E AC 550 29 13,949 90 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
513 14150 Tonner Ridge Dr N Belridge Terrace McKittrick Pl E AC 1,476 40 59,034 90 0 96 4 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
375 10280 Tracie Dr Carlson Dr Steele Dr E AC 404 36 14,112 90 0 100 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
526 14330 Walking Beam Pl Naranjal Dr Unnamed E AC 871 30 26,145 90 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
400 4160 Westmoreland Dr Dover Cir Devonshire Dr E AC 466 36 16,776 90 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
401 3790 Westridge Way End Willow Dr E AC 160 33 6,858 90 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
408 3660 Willow Dr Poplar Ave Randolph Ave E AC 847 33 27,591 90 0 100 0 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
408 3670 Willow Dr Randolph Ave Oak Pl E AC 275 33 8,811 90 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
287 2010 Pecan St Puente St Sequoia Ave E AC 273 37 10,101 90 0 85 15 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
290 3445 Pine Ave Imperial Hwy End E AC 141 37 5,217 91 0 68 32 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
287 2030 Pecan St End Poinsettia Ave E AC 357 37 15,009 91 0 52 48 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
254 11770 Mulberry Ave Acacia St Chestnut Ave E AC 198 33 6,534 91 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15
270 2100 Oleander St Sequoia Ave Poinsettia Ave E AC 285 37 12,295 91 0 82 18 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23

4 12520 Alexander Ct Roscoe St End E AC 236 32 9,064 91 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
7 11110 Alta Mesa Dr Los Altos Dr Puente St E AC 300 36 10,800 91 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16

29 6920 Avocado St Pomelo Ave State College Blvd E AAC 468 36 18,710 91 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
31 7430 Balsa Ave Candlewood St State College Blvd E AC 162 36 5,832 91 0 100 0 1/8/21 Surface Reconstruction - PCC 12/1/05
31 7460 Balsa Ave Brookwood St Mango St E AC 151 36 5,436 91 23 77 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
31 7470 Balsa Ave Mango St Carmichael Dr E AC 223 36 8,028 91 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

2010 12710 Bennett Ln Berry St Charleston Wy E AC 110 22 2,420 91 0 65 35 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
38 12560 Bergman Ct Roscoe St End E AC 236 32 9,064 91 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
60 7030 Buttonwood Dr Apple Dr Citrus Pl E AC 314 36 13,166 91 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
64 7870 Canyon Country Rd Canyon Country Rd Canyon Country Rd E AC 296 17 5,032 91 0 57 43 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
64 7871 Canyon Country Rd Grand Canyon Rd Brea Blvd E AC 175 16 2,736 91 0 82 18 3/25/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
65 8010 Canyondale Dr Brea Blvd Evening Canyon E AC 107 21 2,247 91 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
68 10220 Carlson Dr Joyce St Tracie Dr E AC 272 36 11,542 91 0 100 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22

2012 12780 Charleston Wy Bennett Ln Tremaine Rd E AC 158 24 3,792 91 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
86 7010 Citrus Pl Buttonwood Dr Buttonwood Dr E AC 186 36 6,696 91 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
87 6100 Clear Springs Rd Cinnamon Ridge Rd Cool Oak Rd E AC 456 16 11,621 91 0 100 0 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
87 6101 Clear Springs Rd Cool Oak Rd Cinnamon Ridge Rd E AC 414 16 10,984 91 0 93 7 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
88 7560 Cliffwood Ave Wake Forest St Candlewood St E AAC 692 36 24,912 91 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
88 7570 Cliffwood Ave Candlewood St State College Blvd E AAC 170 36 6,120 91 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
94 6110 Cool Oak Rd Clear Springs Rd Deer Springs Ln E AC 270 33 8,910 91 0 100 0 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

107 7520 Cycod Pl Wake Forest St End E AAC 147 36 6,804 91 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 4/28/05
113 3260 Date St Flower Ave Magnolia Ave E AC 328 37 11,840 91 0 90 10 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
125 4090 Devonshire Dr Castlegate Ln Devonshire Cir E AC 635 36 22,572 91 0 83 17 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
130 7700 Driftwood Ave Skywood St Driftwood Pl E AC 724 36 26,064 91 0 93 7 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
130 7710 Driftwood Ave Driftwood Pl Stone Canyon Way E AC 267 29 7,743 91 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
143 3110 Elm St Orange Ave Flower Ave E AC 330 37 12,210 91 0 100 0 1/13/21 Grinding (Localized) 7/1/01
150 4460 Eucalyptus St Redbay Ave Valverde Ave E AC 367 36 13,212 91 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

Page 15 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

176 4370 Greenbriar Ln Hillhaven Dr Associated Rd E AC 190 36 6,840 91 0 93 7 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
180 8780 Gum Pl Forest Pl End E AAC 195 36 8,532 91 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
191 4220 Hillhaven Cir End Hillhaven Dr E AC 131 36 6,228 91 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
192 4180 Hillhaven Dr Hillhaven Cir Castlegate Ln E AC 226 36 8,136 91 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
207 12530 Kinsler Ct Roscoe St End E AC 236 32 9,064 91 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
239 9110 Mariposa Dr Ponderosa Ave City Limit E AC 735 37 27,195 91 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07

2045 13130 Mockingbird Ln Condor Ave Hummingbird Dr E AC 413 30 12,390 91 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
261 11257 Northwood Ave Old Mill Dr Dorothy Dr E AC 503 21 10,563 91 0 93 7 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/21
261 11259 Northwood Ave Jonathan Dr Old Mill Dr E AC 682 21 16,772 91 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/21
265 12400 Oakcrest Ave Old Mill Rd Kellen St E AC 1,135 36 45,160 91 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22

2050 13180 Partridge Cir Sandpiper Wy North End E AC 207 30 7,957 91 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
532 14390 Philips Ct Rubel Dr CDS (S) E AC 882 30 26,460 91 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
298 3400 Poplar Ave Ash St Willow Dr E AC 291 36 10,476 91 29 71 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
305 3500 Randolph Ave Willow Dr Willow Dr E AC 238 36 8,568 91 0 100 0 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
314 12500 Roscoe St Central Ave End E AC 1,265 32 43,098 91 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
502 14030 Santa Paula Dr N Landa Way Sutter Ct E AC 1,581 37 58,497 91 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
330 12540 Shaffer Ct Roscoe St End E AC 236 32 9,064 91 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22

2058 13370 Skylark Way Lark Ln West End E AC 763 32 26,181 91 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2027 13380 Skyler Way Bennett Ln Williams St E AC 174 24 4,176 91 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
350 7760 Stone Canyon Way Trabuco Canyon Way Canyon Country Rd E AC 366 29 9,628 91 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
408 3680 Willow Dr Oak Pl Westridge Way E AC 290 33 9,306 91 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
408 3690 Willow Dr Westridge Way Eastridge Way E AC 295 33 9,735 91 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
164 5140 Flowerhill St Bluegrass St Morning Glory St E AC 302 36 10,872 91 0 91 9 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
295 2070 Poinsettia Ave Pecan St Teak St E AC 314 37 11,840 91 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
171 11360 Gemini Ave Imperial Hwy Titan Way E AAC 756 44 32,912 92 0 100 0 2/13/25 Overlay - AC Structural 10/1/20
45 5040 Bluebell Ave Starflower St Sunflower St E AC 275 32 8,800 92 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10

333 3020 Sievers Ave Elm St Date St E AAC 614 36 21,600 92 0 48 52 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
82 11750 Chestnut Ave Acacia St Mulberry Ave E AC 138 33 4,554 92 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 3/8/15

392 2890 Walnut Ave Elm St Date St E AAC 672 36 24,192 92 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
31 7450 Balsa Ave Buttowood Dr Brookwood St E AC 276 36 9,936 92 0 100 0 1/13/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

2010 12720 Bennett Ln Skyler Wy Berry St E AC 110 24 2,640 92 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
60 8070 Buttonwood Dr Cliffwood Ave Skywood St E AC 860 36 30,960 92 0 94 6 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
60 8080 Buttonwood Dr Skywood St Lotus Pl E AC 267 36 9,612 92 0 81 19 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
65 8015 Canyondale Dr Evening Canyon Brea Blvd E AC 107 21 2,247 92 0 100 0 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
96 3730 Cottonwood Dr Jacaranda Pl Randolph Ave E AC 243 37 8,991 92 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21

106 6090 Crystal Springs Ct Deer Springs Ln Property Line E AC 135 42 7,210 92 0 70 30 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
113 3250 Date St Orange Ave Flower Ave E AC 368 33 11,616 92 0 92 8 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
118 6120 Deer Springs Ln Cinnamon Ridge Rd Cool Oak Rd E AC 296 16 4,886 92 0 100 0 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
150 4450 Eucalyptus St Plum Ave Redbay Ave E AC 205 36 7,380 92 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

2036 12880 Falcon Way Condor Ave Hummingbird Dr E AC 337 30 10,110 92 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
156 99998 Fawnridge Dr Harvey Dr Mooncrest Cir E AAC 305 36 10,980 92 41 59 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
158 4470 Fig Ave End Eucalyptus St E AC 188 32 7,560 92 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
163 2760 Flower Ave Date St Imperial Hwy E AC 659 36 23,474 92 0 94 6 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
167 8790 Forest Pl Gum Pl End E AAC 202 36 9,072 92 0 100 0 1/14/21 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/05
176 4390 Greenbriar Ln Plum Ave Aurora Ave E AC 614 36 24,254 92 0 87 13 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

2038 12940 Hawks Dr Paloma Ct Condor Ave E AC 585 32 19,608 92 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
192 4200 Hillhaven Dr Dover Ln Amberwick Ln E AC 272 36 9,792 92 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
192 4400 Hillhaven Dr Aurora Ave Plum E AC 473 32 19,116 92 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

2041 12970 Hummingbird Dr Mockingbird Ln Woodpecker St E AC 681 30 21,680 92 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2041 12980 Hummingbird Dr Owl Pl Falcon Wy E AC 184 30 5,520 92 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
512 14140 La Goleta Pl Tonner Ridge Dr N San Ardo Dr E AC 254 36 9,144 92 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
506 14070 McKittrick Pl N Landa Way CDS (W) E AC 1,381 36 49,712 92 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 8/28/17
261 11260 Northwood Ave Jonathan Dr Berry St E AC 417 22 9,874 92 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/21
268 12300 Old Mill Rd Northwood Ave Oakcrest Ave E AC 130 40 7,062 92 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
275 8685 Orange Ave Cypress St End E AC 370 36 14,832 92 0 100 0 2/9/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
295 2080 Poinsettia Ave Teak St Pear St E AC 279 37 10,323 92 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
298 3390 Poplar Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 347 36 12,492 92 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
307 4010 Ravencrest Dr Brittany Ln Greenbriar Ln E AC 476 36 16,848 92 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
309 6870 Redbud St State College Blvd Woodland Ave E AAC 356 36 12,501 92 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Reconstruction - AC 12/1/08
310 3340 Redwood Ave Imperial Hwy Birch St E AC 1,060 32 33,920 92 0 93 7 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
530 14370 Signal Hill Ct E Piru Ln Unnamed E AC 323 30 9,690 92 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12

2059 13410 Starling Way Lark Ln West End E AC 637 32 22,149 92 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12

Page 16 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

513 14160 Tonner Ridge Dr E Santa Fe Rd N Belridge Terrace E AC 1,010 40 40,394 92 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
382 4510 Valverde Ave End Holly St E AC 160 36 7,560 92 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
382 4540 Valverde Ave End Camphor Cir E AC 587 32 24,884 92 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
400 4150 Westmoreland Dr Castlegate Ln Dover Cir E AC 298 36 10,440 92 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
408 3700 Willow Dr Eastridge Way Almond Dr E AC 290 37 12,480 92 0 100 0 2/1/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21

2065 13530 Woodpecker St Hummingbird Dr Condor Ave E AC 417 30 12,510 92 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/04
164 5130 Flowerhill St Birch St Bluegrass St E AC 863 36 31,068 92 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
372 11380 Titan Way End Gemini Ave E AAC 455 44 21,532 92 0 100 0 2/13/25 Overlay - AC Structural 10/1/20
224 1980 Linden Way Fern Ave Eadington Dr E AC 749 33 26,203 92 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
203 2400 Juniper St Mulberry Ave Walnut Ave E AAC 361 37 13,357 92 0 89 11 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
174 5050 Goldenrod St Starflower St Shamrock Ave E AC 707 36 32,007 92 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
233 2980 Madrona Ave Date St End E AAC 564 36 22,104 92 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
331 5070 Shamrock Ave End Shamrock Ave E AC 114 30 6,051 92 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
164 5150 Flowerhill St Morning Glory St Sunflower St E AC 250 36 8,488 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
164 13540 Flowerhill St Flowerhill St East End E AC 110 32 5,317 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
224 1970 Linden Way Puente St Fern Ave E AC 702 33 24,916 93 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
347 4981 Starflower St West End Starflower St E AC 85 36 3,060 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
359 5000 Sunflower St Bluebell Ave Flowerhill St E AC 144 32 4,608 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10

7 11090 Alta Mesa Dr San Juan Dr La Serena Dr E AC 245 36 10,170 93 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
24 3580 Ash St Walnut Ave Brea Blvd E AC 370 42 15,040 93 0 100 0 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
28 4580 Aurora Ave Holly St Eucalyptus St E AC 238 36 10,718 93 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

2009 12690 Baxter Pk Charleston Wy Salveson Rd E AC 375 30 11,250 93 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
40 1340 Birch St Madrona Ave Walnut Ave E AC 348 38 12,474 93 0 100 0 3/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
42 10590 Birchcrest Cir End Birchcrest Ave E AAC 174 36 7,776 93 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
46 5160 Bluegrass St End Flowerhill St E AC 508 32 18,024 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
62 4500 Camphor Cir End Valverde Ave E AC 529 32 22,828 93 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
73 4050 Castlegate Ln Imperial Hwy Devonshire Dr E AC 212 36 7,344 93 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20

2035 12820 Condor Ave Hawks Dr Mockingbird Ln E AC 353 32 12,546 93 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/03
511 14130 Conejo Pl Tonner Ridge Dr N San Ardo Dr E AC 181 36 6,528 93 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 8/28/17
118 6121 Deer Springs Ln Cool Oak Rd Cinnamon Ridge Rd E AC 265 16 4,390 93 0 100 0 2/7/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
150 4430 Eucalyptus St Aurora Ave Fig Ave E AC 120 36 6,470 93 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
150 4440 Eucalyptus St Fig Ave Plum Ave E AC 286 36 10,296 93 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

2036 12870 Falcon Way Robins Pl Condor Ave E AC 210 30 6,300 93 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
2016 12890 Freeman Ln Matthews Ln Baxter Pk E AC 222 22 4,884 93 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
175 7910 Grand Canyon Rd End Canyon Country Rd E AC 358 29 7,511 93 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01

2038 12930 Hawks Dr Heron Pl Condor Ave E AC 254 32 8,128 93 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
192 4210 Hillhaven Dr Amberwick Ln Devonshire Dr E AC 259 36 11,474 93 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
200 12410 Jonathan Dr Northwood Ave Oakcrest Ave E AC 135 36 4,572 93 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
201 10290 Joyce Dr Carlson Dr Steele Dr E AC 395 36 15,970 93 0 100 0 3/23/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
202 12380 Juliet Ct Woodcrest Ave End E AC 230 36 10,580 93 0 100 0 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/22
209 11160 La Canada Dr El Canto Dr La Serena Dr E AC 842 36 32,462 93 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
505 14060 Landa Way N McKittrick Pl CDS (NE) E AC 691 36 24,876 93 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 8/28/17

2021 13090 Launer Rd Johnson  Ln Reynoso Pk E AC 382 30 11,460 93 0 84 16 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
233 3000 Madrona Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 578 36 18,358 93 0 93 7 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
235 7810 Malibu Canyon Rd End Shadow Canyon Rd E AC 515 29 12,762 93 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
235 7820 Malibu Canyon Rd Shadow Canyon Rd Malibu Canyon Way E AC 209 29 6,061 93 0 96 4 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
235 7830 Malibu Canyon Rd Malibu Canyon Way Canyon Country Rd E AC 426 29 11,513 93 0 60 40 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
525 14320 Naranjal Dr Santa Fe Dr E Coalinga Dr E AC 854 30 25,617 93 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
261 11261 Northwood Ave Berry St Jonathan Dr E AC 417 21 9,107 93 0 91 9 1/25/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/21
533 14400 Nuevo Pl Rubel Dr CDS (E) E AC 370 30 11,091 93 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
276 9090 Orangewood Dr Ponderosa Ave City Limit E AC 516 37 19,092 93 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
523 14290 Pacific Ct CDS (W) END (E) E AC 1,158 30 34,749 93 0 100 0 2/2/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
528 14350 Piru Ln E Naranja Dr Signal Hill Ct E AC 413 30 12,381 93 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
534 14410 Plains Ct E Rubel Dr CDS (E) E AC 309 30 9,270 93 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
294 4480 Plum Ave End Eucalyptus St E AC 245 32 9,384 93 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
308 4490 Redbay Ave Eucalyptus St Birch St E AC 428 36 15,408 93 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

2055 13280 Robins Pl Roadrunner Dr Falcon Wy E AC 469 30 14,070 93 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
318 11080 San Juan Dr Las Lomas Dr Alta Mesa Dr E AC 266 36 10,926 93 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
319 7770 Sand Canyon Way End Stone Canyon Way E AC 353 29 3,625 93 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
502 14020 Santa Paula Dr Sutter Ct CDS (N) E AC 672 37 24,857 93 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
337 7680 Skywood St Cliffwood Ave Driftwood Ave E AC 242 36 8,496 93 0 100 0 1/15/21 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
503 14040 Sutter Ct Santa Paula Dr CDS (S) E AC 629 30 18,885 93 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12

Page 17 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

374 7780 Trabuco Canyon Way End Stone Canyon Way E AC 279 29 2,900 93 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
382 4520 Valverde Ave Holly St Eucalyptus St E AC 292 36 10,512 93 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
382 4530 Valverde Ave Eucalyptus St Camphor Cir E AC 235 36 8,460 93 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
392 2860 Walnut Ave Acacia St Fir St E AAC 673 36 24,228 93 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
133 2130 Eadington Dr Linden Way Catalpa Ave E AC 885 36 31,860 93 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/26/07
251 5180 Morning Glory St Flowerhill St Property Line E AC 543 32 19,144 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
359 4990 Sunflower St End Bluebell Ave E AC 450 32 16,168 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
299 5100 Primrose Ave End Wintergreen St E AC 478 32 17,064 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
347 4980 Starflower St Goldenrod St Bluebell Ave E AC 290 36 10,440 93 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
392 2900 Walnut Ave Date St Imperial Hwy E AAC 651 36 23,086 94 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
169 5110 Foxglove St End Primrose Ave E AC 406 32 14,760 94 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
203 2390 Juniper St Chestnut Ave Mulberry Ave E AAC 337 37 12,469 94 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
347 4960 Starflower St Primrose Ave Larkspur Ave E AC 500 36 18,000 94 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
413 5120 Wintergreen St End Primrose Ave E AC 261 32 10,120 94 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
299 5080 Primrose Ave Starflower St Foxglove St E AC 186 32 5,952 94 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
347 4970 Starflower St Larkspur Ave Goldenrod St E AC 367 36 13,212 94 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10

2003 13800 Armstrong Dr Skyler Wy Casner Wy E AC 377 30 11,310 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
24 3570 Ash St Madrona Ave Walnut Ave E AC 370 36 13,120 94 0 100 0 2/8/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

2008 12680 Atkins Ln Kitaoka Ln Jones Dr E AC 269 22 5,918 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
28 4550 Aurora Ave Greenbriar Ln Hillhaven Dr E AC 198 36 9,278 94 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
28 4570 Aurora Ave Chevy Chase Dr Holly St E AC 250 36 9,000 94 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

516 14190 Bardsdale Pl E Kern River Ln E Roughneck Pl E AC 262 30 7,848 94 0 100 0 2/2/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
35 9910 Beechwood Dr Stonecrest Cir Starcrest St E AAC 308 36 11,088 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
53 3970 Brittany Ln Moorpark Dr Ravencrest Dr E AC 303 36 13,058 94 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20

2011 12770 Casner Way Williams St Dan Pl E AC 368 30 11,040 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
73 4060 Castlegate Ln Devonshire Dr Ravencrest Dr E AC 375 36 13,500 94 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20

2014 12850 Dans Pl Skyler Wy Casner Wy E AC 364 30 10,920 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
156 99999 Fawnridge Dr Mooncrest Cir Starcrest St E AAC 279 36 12,194 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
176 4360 Greenbriar Ln Ravencrest Dr Hillhaven Dr E AC 384 36 13,824 94 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
176 4380 Greenbriar Ln Associated Rd Plum Ave E AC 630 36 22,515 94 0 89 11 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16

2039 12950 Heron Pl Woodpecker St Hawks Dr E AC 288 30 9,890 94 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
192 4170 Hillhaven Dr Greenbriar Ln Hillhaven Cir E AC 510 36 18,360 94 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20

2017 13990 Hurst Pl Skyler Wy Jones Dr E AC 307 30 8,405 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2019 13010 Jones Dr Hurst Pl Reynoso Pk E AC 450 30 13,500 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
515 14180 Kern River Ln E N Cable Canyon Pl Bardsdale Pl E AC 656 30 19,671 94 0 100 0 2/2/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
506 14080 McKittrick Pl Tonner Ridge Drive N Landa Way E AC 304 36 10,937 94 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
268 10115 Old Mill Rd Northwood Ave Oak Knoll St E AAC 130 22 2,860 94 0 85 15 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/13

2049 13170 Paloma Ct Hawks Dr South End E AC 261 30 9,577 94 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
290 3440 Pine Ave Madison Way End E AC 619 36 22,784 94 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
301 9960 Quail Cir End Quail Ln E AAC 221 36 9,468 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
307 4020 Ravencrest Dr Greenbriar Ln Larkstone Ln E AC 390 36 14,040 94 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
318 11060 San Juan Dr Whittier Blvd El Encanto Dr E AC 275 36 9,468 94 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16

2026 13360 Sexton Ln Freeman Ln Salveson Rd E AC 264 22 5,808 94 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
327 7800 Shadow Canyon Rd Malibu Canyon Rd Canyon Country Rd E AC 333 29 8,816 94 0 100 0 1/15/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
392 2930 Walnut Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 565 36 17,890 94 0 100 0 2/8/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/11
400 4140 Westmoreland Dr End Castlegate Ln E AC 360 36 14,472 94 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
402 6320 Whispering Glen Ln End Donnybrook Rd E AC 87 63 4,352 94 0 100 0 2/8/23 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
126 6312 Donnybrook Rd Whispering Glen Ln Associated Rd E AAC 198 13 2,574 94 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/12
157 1990 Fern Ave Puente St Linden Way E AC 453 33 14,751 94 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
251 5170 Morning Glory St End Flowerhill St E AC 606 32 21,160 94 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
299 5090 Primrose Ave Foxglove St Wintergreen St E AC 293 32 9,376 94 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
359 5010 Sunflower St Flowerhill St Shamrock Ave E AC 190 50 9,500 94 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
359 5020 Sunflower St Shamrock Ave Lambert Rd E AC 314 50 14,130 95 0 100 0 1/31/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
529 14360 Aera Ct E Piru Ln Unnamed E AC 276 30 8,280 95 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
28 4560 Aurora Ave Hillhaven Dr Chevy Chase Dr E AC 240 36 8,640 95 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
35 9900 Beechwood Dr Parkcrest Way Stonecrest Cir E AAC 210 36 7,560 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
41 10570 Birchcrest Ave Berenice Dr Birchcrest Cir E AAC 515 36 19,890 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
41 10580 Birchcrest Ave Birchcrest Cir Wardman Dr E AAC 236 36 8,496 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
53 3980 Brittany Ln End Ravencrest Dr E AC 262 36 10,912 95 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
73 4070 Castlegate Ln Ravencrest Dr Wetmoreland Dr E AC 242 36 8,712 95 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
77 10650 Cedarcrest Dr Oakcrest Ave Woodcrest Ave E AAC 671 36 28,456 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21

2015 12860 Delaney Dr Charleston Wy Launer Rd E AC 372 30 11,160 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17

Page 18 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

125 4110 Devonshire Dr Westmoreland Dr Hillhaven Dr E AC 250 36 11,150 95 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
125 4290 Devonshire Dr Heather Ln Chevy Chase Dr E AC 497 36 22,192 95 0 88 12 3/24/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
127 10160 Dorothy Dr End Wardman Dr E AAC 703 32 24,089 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
160 11830 Fir St Walnut Ave Brea Blvd S E AAC 333 37 11,507 95 0 100 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24

2018 13000 Johnson Ln Charleston Wy Launer Rd E AC 346 30 10,380 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2020 13020 Kitaoka Ln Dans Pl Millen Ln E AC 111 22 2,442 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2020 13030 Kitaoka Ln Millen Ln Hurst Pl E AC 110 17 1,870 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2020 13040 Kitaoka Ln Hurst P l West End E AC 173 17 2,941 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
232 3560 Madison Way Pine Ave Randolph Ave E AC 611 36 21,996 95 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21

2023 13120 Millen Ln Kiaoka Ln Hurst Pl E AC 317 17 5,389 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2046 13140 Morning Dove Pl Roadrunner Dr Swallow Ln E AC 470 30 14,100 95 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
260 7900 Niguel Canyon Rd End Canyon Country Rd E AC 158 29 1,711 95 0 100 0 1/20/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/01
261 11250 Northwood Ave Puente St Poinsettia Ave E AAC 460 21 11,620 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11251 Northwood Ave Poinsettia Ave Puente St E AAC 460 21 11,028 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11252 Northwood Ave Poinsettia Ave Wardman Dr E AAC 410 21 10,110 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11253 Northwood Ave Wardman Dr Poinsettia Ave E AAC 410 21 9,730 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11254 Northwood Ave Wardman Dr Dorothy Dr E AAC 486 21 11,956 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11255 Northwood Ave Dorothy Dr Wardman Ave E AAC 486 21 12,306 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
264 8130 Oak Pl End Cliffwood Park St E AAC 131 57 9,267 95 0 100 0 3/20/21 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
265 10620 Oakcrest Ave Berenice Dr Poinsettia Ave E AAC 267 36 10,962 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
265 10630 Oakcrest Ave Poinsettia Ave Wardman Dr E AAC 410 36 14,760 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
265 10640 Oakcrest Ave Wardman Dr Cedarcrest Dr E AAC 229 36 10,394 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
268 10110 Old Mill Rd Oakknoll St Northwood Ave E AAC 130 22 3,320 95 0 100 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15

2024 13190 Peterkin Pl Skyler  Wy Jones Dr E AC 269 22 5,918 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
294 13600 Plum Ave Hillhaven Dr Greenbriar Ln E AC 225 32 7,200 95 0 100 0 1/23/23 Cold Mill and Overlay 1/1/16
302 9970 Quail Ln Quail Ct End E AAC 173 36 7,473 95 0 57 43 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
302 9980 Quail Ln Starcrest St Quail Ct E AAC 208 36 7,200 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15

2025 13250 Reynoso Pk Skyler Wy Charleston Wy E AC 251 30 7,530 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2025 13460 Reynoso Pk Charleston Wy Launer Rd E AC 354 30 10,620 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
504 14050 Rosecrans Ct Sutter Ct CDS (W) E AC 418 30 12,555 95 0 100 0 2/1/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
517 14200 Roughneck Pl E Bardsdale Pl N Cable Canyon Pl E AC 451 30 13,530 95 0 100 0 2/2/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12

2057 14250 Santa Fe Rd Lambert Rd Tapia Ln E AC 1,362 60 81,720 95 0 100 0 1/23/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
2057 14260 Santa Fe Rd Naranjal Dr Valencia Ave E AC 2,249 40 89,960 95 0 100 0 1/23/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
2057 14270 Santa Fe Rd Tapia Ln Naranjal Dr E AC 1,932 40 77,280 95 0 100 0 1/23/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
530 14420 Signal Hill Ct END (E) END (W) E AC 475 30 14,250 95 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12

2027 13390 Skyler Way Williams St Hurst Pl E AC 605 27 16,335 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
2027 13400 Skyler Way Hurst Pl Reynoso Pk E AC 430 30 12,900 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
347 4950 Starflower St Birch St Primrose Ave E AC 140 36 5,040 95 0 100 0 2/26/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/8/10
351 9860 Stonebridge Dr Beechwood Dr Berry St E AAC 253 44 8,008 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15

2060 13420 Swallow Ln Morning Dove Pl Cardinal st E AC 187 30 5,610 95 0 100 0 1/31/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 8/1/12
522 14280 Tapia Ln Santa Fe Rd E Pacific Ct E AC 213 30 6,390 95 0 100 0 2/2/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
392 2870 Walnut Ave Fir St Valencia St E AAC 1,230 36 44,496 95 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
395 10550 Wardman Dr Birchcrest Dr Woodcrest Ave E AAC 516 36 18,576 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
395 12240 Wardman Dr Oakcrest Ave Birchcrest E AAC 210 36 7,272 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21

2029 13520 Williams St Skyler Wy Casner Wy E AC 365 30 10,950 95 0 100 0 1/24/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
416 10660 Woodcrest Ave Cedarcrest Dr End E AAC 392 36 16,262 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
416 12230 Woodcrest Ave Puente St Wardman Dr E AAC 1,073 36 38,628 95 0 100 0 1/25/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
287 2020 Pecan St Sequoia Ave Poinsettia Ave E AC 250 37 9,250 95 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
295 2090 Poinsettia Ave Pear St Oleander St E AC 229 37 8,473 96 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
203 2380 Juniper St Lantana Ave Chestnut Ave E AAC 275 37 10,175 96 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24

2020 13050 Kitaoka Ln Reynoso Pk East End E AC 170 17 2,890 96 0 100 0 3/30/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/17
300 12290 Puente St Briarwood Dr End E AC 132 18 2,376 96 0 100 0 2/13/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
160 11810 Fir St Lantana Ave Mulberry Ave E AAC 285 37 12,845 96 0 18 82 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
325 2060 Sequoia Ave Pecan St Oleander St E AC 831 37 32,275 96 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
203 2420 Juniper St Walnut Ave Brea Blvd E AAC 276 36 9,504 97 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
127 10530 Dorothy Dr Northwood Ave Woodcrest Ave E AAC 736 36 25,776 97 0 100 0 2/9/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
310 3360 Redwood Ave Birch St Ash St E AC 481 30 9,630 97 0 100 0 5/4/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 7/1/21
346 9990 Starcrest St Fawnridge Dr Quail Ln E AAC 175 36 8,450 97 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
133 2120 Eadington Dr Puente St Linden Way E AC 247 36 8,892 97 0 100 0 1/30/25 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
233 2950 Madrona Ave Property Line Valencia St E AAC 340 36 12,240 98 0 57 43 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
380 2940 Valencia St Madrona Ave Walnut Ave E AAC 377 36 13,572 98 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
37 10560 Berenice Dr Oakcrest Ave Birchcrest Ave E AAC 385 36 16,560 98 0 65 35 5/4/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21

Page 19 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

73 4080 Castlegate Ln Westmoreland Dr Hillhaven Dr E AC 272 36 9,504 98 0 100 0 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
307 4030 Ravencrest Dr Larkstone Ln Castlegate Ln E AC 248 36 8,928 98 0 21 79 5/3/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 1/1/20
50 5420 Branch Ln Rainbow Ln Ambling Dr E AAC 402 32 15,014 98 0 100 0 2/7/25 Overlay - AC Structural 2/6/24

233 2960 Madrona Ave Valencia St Elm St E AAC 321 36 11,556 99 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
89 8110 Cliffwood Park St Thor Pl Telstar Way E AAC 287 36 10,332 99 0 100 0 1/8/21 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
89 8120 Cliffwood Park St Telstar Way Oak Pl E AAC 1,038 36 37,368 99 0 100 0 1/8/21 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20

196 2340 Imperial Frontage Jasmine Dr Imperial Hwy E AC 529 33 19,957 99 0 100 0 3/30/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
196 2345 Imperial Frontage Jasmine Dr End E AC 82 32 2,624 99 0 100 0 3/30/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 2/28/23
209 11170 La Canada Dr La Serena Dr Northwood Ave E AC 190 36 11,070 99 0 100 0 2/9/23 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 6/1/16
264 8140 Oak Pl Cliffwood Ave Lambert Rd E AAC 762 57 43,434 99 0 100 0 1/8/21 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
527 14340 Soriano Pl Walking Beam Pl Unnamed E AC 837 30 25,101 99 0 100 0 1/31/23 New Construction - AC 5/17/12
368 8170 Telstar Way Thor Pl Cliffwood Ave E AAC 207 36 6,876 99 0 100 0 1/8/21 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
370 8160 Thor Pl Telstar Way Cliffwood Ave E AAC 392 36 13,824 99 0 100 0 1/8/21 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
203 2370 Juniper St Firethorne St Lantana Ave E AAC 300 37 11,100 99 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
233 2970 Madrona Ave Elm St Date St E AAC 697 36 24,876 99 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
160 11820 Fir St Mulberry Ave Walnut Ave E AAC 589 37 21,793 99 0 100 0 1/31/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
203 2360 Juniper St Larchwood Dr Firethorne St E AAC 628 37 23,236 99 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
203 2350 Juniper St City Limit Larchwood Dr E AAC 168 37 6,216 99 0 100 0 1/30/25 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
12 5430 Ambling Dr Branch Ln Flander Ct E AAC 280 32 11,110 100 0 0 0 2/3/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/3/24
12 5440 Ambling Dr Flanders Ct Edgemont Ln E AAC 189 32 6,048 100 0 0 0 2/3/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/3/24
12 5450 Ambling Dr Edgemont Ln Chelsea Ct E AAC 55 32 1,760 100 0 0 0 2/3/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/3/24
12 5460 Ambling Dr Chelsea Ct End E AAC 523 32 21,036 100 0 0 0 2/6/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/6/24
17 6070 Arbor Cir Sleepy Hollow Ln End E AAC 424 33 15,292 100 79 21 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
17 6080 Arbor Cir End Sleepy Hollow Ln E AAC 564 33 19,912 100 61 30 9 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
35 9870 Beechwood Dr End Shadowgrove St E AAC 150 36 7,200 100 0 77 23 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
35 9880 Beechwood Dr Shadowgrove St Stonebridge Dr E AAC 785 36 28,260 100 0 39 61 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
35 9890 Beechwood Dr Stonebridge Dr Parkcrest Way E AAC 220 36 7,920 100 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
37 10210 Berenice Dr Wardman Dr Steele Dr E AAC 970 33 33,162 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
41 11340 Birchcrest Ave End Sandalwood Dr E AAC 490 36 19,152 100 61 25 14 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
48 10180 Bonnie Wy End Wardman Dr E AAC 458 33 16,890 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
50 5410 Branch Ln Wandering Ln Rainbow Ln E AAC 1,120 32 35,840 100 0 0 0 11/1/22 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
71 5510 Carrotwood Dr Country Club Dr End E AAC 415 34 15,860 100 0 0 0 2/6/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/6/24
80 5480 Chelsea Ct Ambling Dr End E AAC 327 32 10,464 100 0 0 0 2/6/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/6/24
89 8100 Cliffwood Park St Lambert Rd Thor Pl E AAC 638 36 22,968 100 0 100 0 1/8/21 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
98 5520 Country Club Dr Raintree Dr Carrotwood Dr E AAC 258 33 10,664 100 0 0 0 2/6/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/6/24
98 5530 Country Club Dr Carrotwood Dr Country Hills Rd E AAC 98 33 2,772 100 0 0 0 2/6/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/6/24

100 8180 Country Ln Lambert Rd Shady Ct E AAC 322 36 12,437 100 0 0 0 1/1/22 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/22
100 8190 Country Ln Shady Ct Orchard Ct E AAC 226 36 8,136 100 0 0 0 1/1/22 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/22
100 8200 Country Ln Meadow Ct Live Oak Ave E AAC 915 36 33,675 100 0 0 0 1/1/22 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/22
105 5830 Crestview Cir Rimview Ln End E AAC 359 33 12,472 100 54 46 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
105 5840 Crestview Cir End Rimview Ln E AAC 370 33 12,610 100 61 39 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
113 3200 Date St Property Line Sievers Ave E AAC 234 32 7,488 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
113 3210 Date St Sievers Ave Madrona Ave E AAC 356 32 11,392 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
113 3220 Date St Madrona Ave Walnut Ave E AAC 350 26 8,852 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
113 3230 Date St Walnut Ave Brea Blvd E AAC 350 30 10,320 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
119 8950 Delphia Ave St Crispen Ave Napoli Dr E AAC 1,240 36 49,890 100 0 0 0 7/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/21
121 10120 Denise Ct End Ethelinda Way E AAC 342 33 12,864 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
127 10170 Dorothy Dr End Wardman Dr E AAC 146 32 6,201 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
138 5390 Edgemont Ln Ambling Dr Kraemer Blvd E AAC 169 16 2,704 100 0 0 0 2/6/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/6/24
141 10020 Elkridge St Fawnridge Dr Sunnyhills Ave E AAC 521 36 20,546 100 0 63 37 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
146 10130 Ethelinda Way Wardman Dr Denise Ct E AAC 525 37 19,425 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
146 10140 Ethelinda Way Denise Ct Fawnridge Ave E AAC 993 37 36,741 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
146 10150 Ethelinda Way Fawnridge Ave End E AAC 256 36 11,016 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
154 5960 Fallcreek Cir End Heartwood Cir E AAC 308 33 12,840 100 48 52 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
155 6050 Falling Leaf Cir End Sleepy Hollow Ln E AAC 251 33 9,583 100 60 40 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
155 6060 Falling Leaf Cir Sleepy Hollow Ln End E AAC 189 33 7,537 100 70 30 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
156 99997 Fawnridge Dr Elkridge St Harvey Dr E AAC 175 36 8,450 100 0 67 33 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
165 5590 Foothill Ln End Sunrise Rd E AAC 376 36 15,304 100 40 60 0 1/23/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
165 5670 Foothill Ln Wandering Ln Roundtree Ct E AAC 231 36 8,316 100 72 28 0 1/23/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
165 5680 Foothill Ln Roundtree Ct Winding Ln E AAC 218 36 7,848 100 65 35 0 1/23/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
165 5690 Foothill Ln Winding Ln Sunrise Rd E AAC 289 36 10,404 100 20 80 0 1/23/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
178 5570 Grove Hill Ct End Stony Ln E AAC 238 32 9,091 100 73 24 3 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22

Page 20 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

182 10190 Harvey Dr Wardman Dr Fawnridge Dr E AAC 526 37 19,024 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
186 5940 Heartwood Cir End Woodhill Ln E AAC 216 33 8,528 100 70 30 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
186 5950 Heartwood Cir Woodhill Ln Fallcreek Cir E AAC 228 33 8,374 100 47 45 8 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
193 5580 Hilltop Ln Sunrise Rd End E AAC 660 32 26,999 100 55 39 6 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
197 5890 Ironbark Cir End Shadyvale Ln E AAC 273 33 10,559 100 79 21 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
197 5900 Ironbark Cir Shadyvale Ln Wandering Ln E AAC 157 33 4,931 100 66 34 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
209 11180 La Canada Dr Northwood Ave Woodcrest Ave E AAC 1,058 36 39,950 100 66 23 11 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
218 2430 Laurel Ave Alder St Spruce St E AAC 661 33 21,813 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24

2005 13610 Live Oak Ave Park Ln State College Blvd E AAC 888 36 31,968 100 0 0 0 1/1/22 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/22
227 6010 Longbranch Cir Windwood Ln End E AAC 617 33 21,661 100 63 36 1 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
227 6020 Longbranch Cir End Windwood Ln E AAC 303 33 11,299 100 29 71 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
234 12030 Magnolia Ave Alder St Orange Ave E AAC 430 33 13,992 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
234 12040 Magnolia Ave Orange Ave Elm St E AAC 329 33 10,857 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
237 2560 Maple Ave City Limit Cedar Ave E AC 161 33 5,313 100 0 85 15 1/21/21 Surface Treatment - Slurry Seal 4/1/13
255 8900 Napoli Dr Madrona Ave St Crispen Ave E AAC 189 36 6,516 100 0 0 0 7/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/21
255 8910 Napoli Dr St Crispen Ave Delphia Ave E AAC 692 36 28,124 100 0 0 0 7/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/21
255 8920 Napoli Dr Delphia Ave Lambert Rd E AAC 112 36 3,816 100 0 0 0 7/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/21
261 11200 Northwood Ave La Canada Dr La Canada Dr E AAC 109 36 3,924 100 27 73 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11220 Northwood Ave La Canada Dr San Juan Dr E AAC 182 36 12,060 100 78 21 1 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11230 Northwood Ave San Juan Dr Sandalwood Dr E AAC 334 36 12,792 100 73 27 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
261 11240 Northwood Ave Sandalwood Dr Puente St E AAC 523 36 18,828 100 74 5 21 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
275 2790 Orange Ave Magnolia Ave Elm St E AAC 966 33 31,680 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
282 8600 Park Ln State College Blvd End E AAC 982 35 36,570 100 0 0 0 1/1/22 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/22
283 10042 Parkcrest Way End Sunnyhills Ave E AAC 285 36 12,060 100 0 75 25 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
283 10044 Parkcrest Way Sunnyhills Ave Beechwood Dr E AAC 225 36 7,812 100 0 84 16 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
295 10600 Poinsettia Ave Northwood Ave Oakcrest Ave E AAC 148 36 5,040 100 56 28 16 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
295 10610 Poinsettia Ave End Oakcrest Ave E AAC 166 36 5,976 100 87 13 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
303 5490 Rainbow Ln Wandering Ln Branch Ln E AAC 1,228 32 43,666 100 0 0 0 11/1/22 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
304 5500 Raintree Dr Country Club Dr End E AAC 498 33 20,334 100 0 0 0 2/6/24 Overlay - AC Structural 2/6/24
312 5820 Rimview Ln Shadetree Cir Crestview Cir E AAC 232 33 7,392 100 30 40 30 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
316 5660 Roundtree Ct End Foothill Ln E AAC 577 32 20,114 100 42 58 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
318 11280 San Juan Dr Northwood Ave Woodcrest Ave E AAC 1,015 36 38,690 100 49 34 17 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
320 11290 Sandalwood Dr Northwood Ave Oakcrest Ave E AAC 267 36 9,612 100 60 19 21 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
320 11300 Sandalwood Dr Oakcrest Ave Birchcrest E AAC 270 36 9,720 100 74 26 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
320 11310 Sandalwood Dr Birchcrest Woodcrest Ave E AAC 270 36 9,720 100 57 24 19 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
320 11320 Sandalwood Dr Woodcrest Ave Midbury St E AAC 358 36 12,888 100 64 36 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
321 10200 Sandra Ct End Wardman Dr E AAC 200 33 8,178 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
326 5850 Shadetree Cir End Rimview Ln E AAC 361 33 12,538 100 77 23 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
326 5860 Shadetree Cir Wandering Ln Rimview Ln E AAC 203 33 6,549 100 0 97 3 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
328 10040 Shadowgrove St End Sunnyhills Ave E AAC 475 36 17,100 100 0 82 18 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
328 10050 Shadowgrove St Sunnyhills Ave Beechwood Dr E AAC 361 36 12,996 100 0 59 41 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
329 5870 Shadyvale Ln Ironbark Cir Windbreak Cir E AAC 241 33 9,839 100 26 71 3 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
338 6030 Sleepy Hollow Ln Associated Rd Arbor Cir E AAC 103 24 1,416 100 67 33 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
338 6035 Sleepy Hollow Ln Arbor Cir Associated Rd E AAC 103 24 1,416 100 55 45 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
338 6040 Sleepy Hollow Ln Arbor Cir Falling Leaf Cir E AAC 238 33 7,854 100 31 69 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
343 12070 Spruce St Cherry St Laurel Ave E AAC 237 33 7,821 100 0 0 0 5/7/24 Overlay - AC Structural 5/7/24
345 8930 St Crispen Ave Delphia Ave Napoli Dr E AAC 698 36 26,878 100 0 0 0 7/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/21
345 8940 St Crispen Ave Napoli Dr Napoli Dr E AAC 1,176 36 45,836 100 0 0 0 7/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 7/1/21
346 10000 Starcrest St Quail Ln Beechwood Dr E AAC 221 36 7,740 100 0 27 73 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
349 10370 Steele Dr Central Ave Joyce Dr E AC 160 36 5,472 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Complete Reconstruction - AC 6/1/21
349 10380 Steele Dr Joyce Dr Tracie Dr E AC 258 36 9,288 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Complete Reconstruction - AC 6/1/21
349 10390 Steele Dr Tracie Dr Deanna Dr E AC 273 36 9,828 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Complete Reconstruction - AC 6/1/21
349 10400 Steele Dr Deanna Dr Carlson Dr E AAC 283 36 10,188 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
349 10410 Steele Dr Carlson Dr Wardman Dr E AAC 827 36 29,772 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
349 10420 Steele Dr Wardman Dr Berenice Dr E AAC 1,073 33 36,561 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
352 9940 Stonecrest Cir Beechwood Dr End E AAC 338 36 13,680 100 0 100 0 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
353 5640 Stony Ln Winding Ln Grove Hill Ct E AAC 684 32 21,888 100 43 49 8 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
353 5650 Stony Ln Grove Hill Ct Sunrise Rd E AAC 131 32 4,192 100 0 100 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
358 5930 Suncrest Cir End Woodhill Ln E AAC 295 33 12,811 100 54 40 6 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
361 10060 Sunnyhills Ave Shadowgrove St Vista Cir E AAC 263 36 9,468 100 0 68 32 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
361 10070 Sunnyhills Ave Vista Cir Elkridge St E AAC 260 36 9,360 100 0 61 39 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
361 10080 Sunnyhills Ave Elkridge St Parkcrest Way E AAC 398 36 14,328 100 0 71 29 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15

Page 21 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

362 5600 Sunrise Rd Foothill Ln Hilltop Ln E AAC 217 36 7,812 100 42 58 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
362 5610 Sunrise Rd Hilltop Ln Stony Ln E AAC 285 36 10,260 100 86 14 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
362 5620 Sunrise Rd Stony Ln Lambert Rd E AAC 290 36 9,952 100 30 65 5 2/1/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
370 8150 Thor Pl End Telstar Way E AAC 357 36 14,652 100 0 100 0 1/8/21 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
371 5800 Timbercreek Cir End Wandering Ln E AAC 275 33 9,925 100 30 63 7 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
376 5990 Trailview Cir Windwood Ln End E AAC 308 33 11,464 100 39 61 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
376 6000 Trailview Cir End Windwood Ln E AAC 168 33 6,694 100 38 62 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
377 5810 Treeridge Cir End Wandering Ln E AAC 633 33 22,639 100 46 54 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
387 10030 Vista Cir End Sunnyhills Ave E AAC 486 36 19,296 100 0 65 35 1/24/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/15
394 5700 Wandering Ln Country Hills Rd Branch Ln E AAC 156 36 5,616 100 84 16 0 2/7/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
394 5710 Wandering Ln Branch Ln Rainbow Ln E AAC 269 36 9,684 100 89 11 0 2/7/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
394 5720 Wandering Ln Rainbow Ln Foothill Ln E AAC 245 36 8,820 100 83 17 0 2/7/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
394 5730 Wandering Ln Foothill Ln Wildflower Cir E AAC 758 36 27,288 100 30 70 0 2/7/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
394 5740 Wandering Ln Wildflower Cir Timbercreek Cir E AAC 176 36 6,336 100 0 100 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
394 5750 Wandering Ln Timbercreek Cir Treeridge Cir E AAC 91 35 3,185 100 0 100 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
394 5760 Wandering Ln Treeridge Cir Shadetree Cir E AAC 153 35 5,355 100 0 100 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
394 5770 Wandering Ln Shadetree Cir Ironbark Cir E AAC 153 35 5,355 100 44 56 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
394 5780 Wandering Ln Ironbark Cir Lambert Rd E AAC 334 35 10,840 100 54 46 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
395 10450 Wardman Dr Puente St Berenice Dr E AAC 320 26 8,320 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10455 Wardman Dr Berenice Dr Puente St E AAC 320 26 8,320 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10460 Wardman Dr Berenice Dr Steele Dr E AAC 598 36 29,302 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10470 Wardman Dr Steele Dr Sandra Ct E AAC 363 36 13,068 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10480 Wardman Dr Sandra Ct Harvey Dr E AAC 291 36 10,476 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10490 Wardman Dr Harvey Dr Bonnie Way E AAC 232 36 8,352 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10500 Wardman Dr Bonnie Way Ethelinda Way E AAC 345 36 12,420 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10510 Wardman Dr Ethelinda Way Dorothy Dr E AAC 857 36 30,852 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
395 10520 Wardman Dr Dorothy Dr Northwood Ave E AAC 631 36 22,716 100 0 0 0 6/1/21 Overlay - AC Structural 6/1/21
406 5790 Wildflower Cir End Wandering Ln E AAC 621 33 22,243 100 30 66 4 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
409 5880 Windbreak Cir End Shadyvale Ln E AAC 211 34 9,599 100 75 25 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
411 5630 Winding Ln Foothill Ln Stony Ln E AAC 1,102 32 35,264 100 37 63 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
412 5970 Windwood Ln Associated Rd Longbranch Cir E AAC 160 21 4,596 100 21 79 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
412 5975 Windwood Ln Longbranch Cir Associated Rd E AAC 160 21 2,068 100 34 66 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
412 5980 Windwood Ln Longbranch Cir Trailview Cir E AAC 240 33 7,656 100 39 61 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
416 11270 Woodcrest Ave La Canada Dr San Juan Dr E AAC 190 36 11,140 100 54 46 0 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
416 11330 Woodcrest Ave Sandalwood Dr Puente St E AAC 534 36 18,936 100 52 28 20 2/2/23 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/21
417 5910 Woodhill Ln Associated Rd Heartwood Cir E AAC 137 23 2,301 100 54 46 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
417 5915 Woodhill Ln Heartwood Cir Associated Rd E AAC 137 23 2,301 100 40 60 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22
417 5920 Woodhill Ln Heartwood Cir Suncrest Cir E AAC 235 33 6,903 100 32 68 0 2/8/23 Overlay - AC Structural 11/1/22

93.2 17,680,008

Alleys
2100 15001 Alley W/O Flower Ave Birch St South End O AC 340 19 5,270 59 8 90 2 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2116 15026 Alley E/O Orange Av Lambert Rd Cypress St O AC 800 20 13,600 63 66 34 0 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2109 15055 Alley S/O Imperial Hwy Walnut Ave Alley W/O Walnut Ave O AC 182 23 4,186 65 6 76 18 1/30/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2115 15025 Alley W/O Magnolia Ave Date St Magnolia Ave O AC 610 20 12,200 71 74 14 12 2/6/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 10/1/06
2103 15004 Alley W/O Brea Bl Date St Imperial Hwy O AAC 580 20 11,600 73 30 26 44 2/6/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 10/1/08
2105 15006 Alley W/O Walnut Ave Date St Alley S/O Imperial Hwy O AC 580 19 9,280 74 53 29 18 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2108 15012 Alley E/O Brea Bl Date St Imperial Hwy O AAC 570 20 9,300 78 0 63 37 2/6/25 Overlay - AC Structural 3/4/15
2112 15019 Alley W/O Laurel Ave Imperial Hwy Birch St O AC 1,100 20 22,000 79 71 22 7 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2111 15017 Alley W/O Poplar Ave Imperial Hwy Madison Wy O AC 500 20 8,500 81 0 96 4 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2108 15011 Alley E/O Brea Bl Elm St Date St O AAC 660 20 12,960 84 0 100 0 2/6/25 Overlay - AC Structural 3/4/15
2113 15021 Alley W/O Redwood Ave Birch St Ash St O AC 420 20 7,850 85 60 23 17 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2113 15020 Alley W/O Redwood Ave Imperial Hwy Birch St O AAC 940 20 18,620 87 19 29 52 2/6/25 Overlay - AC Structural 4/8/11
2109 15023 Alley S/O Imperial Hwy 300 Imperial Hwy Sycamore Ave O AC 500 20 8,500 88 62 38 0 2/6/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 10/1/06
2115 15024 Alley W/O Magnolia Ave 300 Imperial Hwy Date St O AC 500 20 8,500 89 20 76 4 2/6/25 Complete Reconstruction - AC 10/1/06
2100 15000 Alley W/O Flower Ave Birch St Ash St O AC 600 19 9,600 90 0 100 0 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2107 15009 Alley E/O Madrona Ave Valencia St South End O AC 380 19 6,460 90 0 100 0 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2111 15016 Alley W/O Poplar Ave Madison Wy North End O AC 700 22 12,600 91 0 51 49 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2101 15002 Alley N/O Birch St Randolph Ave Poplar Ave O AC 780 25 19,250 92 0 100 0 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2106 15008 Alley W/O Madrona Ave Elm St Date St O AAC 590 19 9,440 93 0 100 0 2/6/25 Surface Reconstruction - AC 10/1/08
2105 15007 Alley W/O Walnut Ave Elm St Date St O AC 660 19 10,560 94 0 100 0 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2112 15018 Alley W/O Laurel Ave Birch St Ash St O AAC 420 19 7,980 94 0 100 0 2/6/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20

Page 22 of 23



City of Brea, CA
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Report - All Streets

Sorted by Rank, PCI (0-100)

BranchID Sec ID Name From To Rank Surface Type L W Area PCI % Load % Climate % Other Insp. Date Work History Type Work History Date

2100 15013 Alley W/O Flower Ave Date St Imperial Hwy O AC 570 20 11,400 97 0 100 0 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2105 15015 Alley W/O Walnut Ave Acacia St Fir St O AC 610 28 14,640 97 0 100 0 1/31/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2102 15003 Alley E/O Puente St Joyce Dr Walling Ave O AAC 700 20 11,200 97 0 100 0 2/13/25 Overlay - AC Structural 1/1/20
2114 15022 Alley S/O Birch St Laurel Ave Alley W/O Poplar Ave O AC 176 30 3,540 98 0 100 0 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80
2110 15014 Alley W/O Sycarmore Elm St Date St O AC 650 20 11,700 98 0 72 28 2/6/25 New Construction - Initial 1/1/80

2.9 280,736

Page 23 of 23



City of Brea, CA Page 14 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

XIII. APPENDIX C – GIS DIGITAL DATA 
 
Introduction 

The OCTA GIS Section maintains a spatial inventory of transportation infrastructure which mostly consists 
of major arterial streets, roads, and highways. A key component of road information is pavement 
condition. Maintaining an inventory of pavement condition will enhance OCTA’s GIS visualization and 
analysis capabilities and assist in understanding the transportation investment needs throughout the 
region. Therefore, a GIS dataset in digital format should be included in this report. 

Structure of GIS Data 

The GIS dataset must consist of linear geographic features that represent road/street segments. All 
segments that are part of the report should be included in the GIS dataset.  The attribute information of 
each segment should generally follow the format of the Complete Listing of Current Street Conditions in 
Appendix B above. 

The GIS data requirements are discussed below. Most commercial and open-source GIS software provide 
industry-standard tools to manage GIS data to meet these requirements. 

GIS Digital Data Format 

The GIS data must be submitted in either one of the following formats: 

• Esri Shapefile, or 
• Esri File Geodatabase 

Metadata 

The GIS data are required to have associated metadata. The minimum metadata items required are: 

• Title of Dataset 
• Tags (A set of words that can be used by GIS to search for the resource. For example: “pavement”, 

“transportation”, “roads”) 
• Summary (A brief purpose statement of the dataset) 
• Description (A brief narrative of the dataset’s content) 
• Credits (A recognition of those who created or contributed to the resource) 

Spatial Geometry Type 

The spatial geometry of the segment features must be lines that represent the roadway centerline as 
accurately as possible. 

Projection 

The GIS data must have spatial reference information and have its coordinate system identified and 



City of Brea, CA Page 15 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

embedded in or associated with the data file(s). All GIS data submitted to OCTA should be in the following 
projected coordinate system: 

• NAD 1983 State Plane California VI FIPS 0406 (US Feet) - More information about this system can 
be found at: https://spatialreference.org/ref/epsg/nad83-california-zone-6-ftus/ 

GIS Feature Attributes 

The required segment attributes are: 

• Street name 
• Unique segment identifier (Segment ID from original source if available) 
• Name of intersecting road at the beginning of a segment 
• Name of intersecting road at the end of the segment 
• Current pavement condition index (PCI) 
• Current PCI inspection date 
• Length of road segment in feet 
• Width of road segment in feet 
• Paved area of road segment in square feet or square yards 
• Projected PCI at end of Seven-Year Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Plan 

Additional attributes such as number of through travel lanes, direction of travel and pavement surface 
type may be provided.  

 
XIV. APPENDIX D – QUALITY ASSURANCE / QUALITY CONTROL PLAN 

 
Introduction 
When performing data collection in any field, the need for quality control is paramount as it is essential 
for accurate planning, analysis and design.  This is particularly true for collecting pavement distress data 
for a pavement management program. 
 
The Quality Assurance / Quality Control (QA/QC) Plan establishes minimum quality standards for 
performance and procedures for update of the pavement management program. 
 
Objectives 
This document constitutes a formal QA/QC Plan for the City of Brea.  It was prepared on March, 2018 and 
last revised in March, 2024. 
 
Specifically, it is intended for the 2025 Pavement Management Plan Update.  The focus is on the collection 
of network-level pavement distress data (defined by National Cooperative Highway Research Program 
(NCHRP) Synthesis 401 Quality Management of Pavement Data Collection, as “Network-level data 
collection involves collection of large quantities of pavement condition data, which is often converted to 
individual condition indices or aggregated into composite condition indices”. 
 
This document also addresses the QA/QC plan requirements of the Orange County Transportation 

https://spatialreference.org/ref/epsg/nad83-california-zone-6-ftus/


City of Brea, CA Page 16 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

Authority (OCTA)’s “Countywide Pavement Management Plan Guidelines” (Section 2.4), adopted in May 
2010. 
 
Structure of QA/QC Plan 
The following components are addressed in this QA/QC Plan: 
 

• Condition survey procedures used; 
• Accuracy required for data collection; 
• Inspector qualifications and experience; and  
• Safety. 

 
Condition Survey Procedures 
The governing document in performing condition surveys for the City of Brea is ASTM D6433 “Standard 
Practice for Roads and Parking Lots Pavement Condition Index (PCI) Surveys.”  Both asphalt concrete (AC) 
and Portland cement concrete (PCC) pavements are included in this protocol.  The following distresses are 
collected for each pavement type: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As required by the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), the City of Brea must prepare and 
implement a quality assurance / quality control (QA/QC) plan regarding pavement management 
inspection as they pertain to MicroPAVER.  For the purposes of this report, Bucknam has demonstrated 
below how our project team implemented QA/QC procedures during the project. 
 



City of Brea, CA Page 17 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

Our QA/QC plan focuses on the how each pavement inspection is performed, what distresses are collected 
and ensures that it complies with the OCTA guidelines defined within the “Countywide Pavement 
Management Plan Guidelines (CPMPG)”. 

As shown within the OCTA (CPMPG), our staff followed and delivered on the requirements stated within 
Chapter 2, page 2-5 which require specific QA/QC data (Items A through G).  Additionally, Chapter 3 
requires numerous data/deliverables from local agencies for OC Go eligibility.  All general PCI budgetary 
report submittals will follow the Chapter 3 guidelines.  

In conjunction with the outlined items within the CPMPG Section 2 we have summarized our QA/QC 
procedures below: 

a. Descriptions of condition survey - Our staff follows the required Condition Survey Protocols 
(CPMPG, Chapter 2); our staff assesses each pavement section for the minimum distresses 
outlined within Chapter 2, page  2-1.  Additionally, based on the pavement conditions found, we 
collect all MicroPAVER/StreetSaver Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) distresses, if found within 
the sample sections; for example, if slippage cracking, potholes, etc. are found our survey 
technicians record the proper information. 

b. How data was collected - Our surveys follow the OCTA accepted walking requirements.  All 
sections that our staff surveys are performed through the walking method, approximately 10% of 
all sections surveyed were complemented with windshield surveys based on unique conditions 
found.  Our staff physically measures the width of every section as well as measure for any square 
footage adjustment that need to be added or taken away from a sections “true area” (i.e. cul-de-
sac, bus pads, street width variances, etc.).  Samples taken always include a minimum of 2,500 SF 
coverage unless specific section limits prohibit this.  Arterial section samples utilize a 3,500 SF 
sample size due to the larger section area (this is within the ASTM D6433 sample size calculation).  
Field crews typically include one individual for residential pavement sections while Arterial 
(MPAH) routes utilize a two-person crew for safety, traffic control and increases quality control. 

c. Accuracy required for data collection - We use a statistical sampling approach for measuring the 
quality of our field technician’s work.  In this manner, 10 percent of the original surveys are re-
surveyed by a different survey crew than the original, supervised by a field supervisor, and the 
results are compared to the original surveys.  Our QC process involves checking the field crews’ 
work in a “blind study” fashion.  Quality control checks are performed at the end of each survey 
week.  This ensures that all field personnel are properly collecting section samples, distress types 
and distress severities for all street segments. 

 When QA/QC issues are found, our staff documents the issues within MicroPAVER’s user 
interface.  If distress types found are not within the 97% accuracy our QA/QC is expanded 
beyond our minimum 10% resurvey to 20% of the original survey 

d. Random and Systematic Re-Inspections – As described above our staff re-inspects, as a minimum, 
10% of the original survey (OCTA only requires 5%).  Per the agencies requests, our staff will 
submit PCI reports to the agency as project status reports for their review.  Agencies will typically 
review specific pavement sections for PCI accuracy based on recent overlay or slurry seal 
maintenance; this serves as an initial accuracy check on our surveys (outside Bucknam QC efforts).  
Additionally, our staff performs “ride-a-long” surveys with local agency staff to build consensus 
on how our MicroPAVER/StreetSaver USACE surveys are performed, recorded and reported on. 



City of Brea, CA Page 18 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

Random re-inspections will include a representative selection across the following categories: 

• Functional classed (i.e. MPAH, locals); 

• Surface types (e.g. AC or PCC); 

• Pavement conditions (e.g. good, fair, poor); 

• Inspectors; 

• Geographical areas, if applicable. 

For systematic re-inspections, this could be due to noticed trends such as specific treatment types 
(e.g. open-graded mixed), a specific inspector or geographical area.  In these cases Bucknam 
continues to utilize a 10% re-inspection policy. 

e. PCI Comparison with Past Surveys - if previous inspection data is available, new PCI’s calculated 
through the most recent inspections will be compared to previous PCI’s.  If the variance in PCI is 
greater than +/- 10 PCI points, these sections will be flagged for further investigation and/or re-
inspection (In the cases that a PCI increases or decreases by 10 points follows the established 
CPMPG guidelines; Appendix A, page A-18). 

f. Schedule of data submittal – Pending on the City’s last major PMP submittal, Bucknam will assist 
the agency in submitting the following: 

 Master Plan of Arterial Highways (MPAH) routes will be surveyed and reported on at least 
once every two years 

 Local streets will be surveyed and reported on every six years 

 Corresponding MPAH and local PCI reporting and budgetary reporting will be submitted 
every two years 

g. Experience of Inspectors – Bucknam staff have been trained on the use of MicroPAVER and the 
USACE segment calibration and inspection practices.  Mr. Peter Bucknam (Project Manager) and 
staff (see below) have completed the PMP Certification of Professional Development courses.  
Bucknam field technicians are trained using the USACE survey methodologies and have passed 
OCTA’s prequalification testing.   

Bucknam Infrastructure Group inspectors have attended formal training on pavement condition 
distress surveys.  This training was conducted prior to performing any work using the ASTM D6433 
protocols, consistent with OCTA’s requirements 

 
h. Field data collection safety procedures – Bucknam field survey techniques utilize the following 

procedures: 



City of Brea, CA Page 19 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

a. All vehicles are properly marked or flagged with appropriate sign markings indicating that 
a “PAVEMENT SURVEY IS IN PROGRESS” 

b. All vehicles have the proper flashing amber light beacons placed on the top of the vehicle 
to allow for proper visibility and line-of-site warning 

c. Large MPAH routes are surveyed using two field technicians to increase traffic control 
warning and safety 

d. While parking or stopping along the survey route, vehicles legally park within the right-
of-way or use a parking lot 

e. All field technicians wear ANSI – 105 Class II safety vests 

As indicated in our scope of work, we performed numerous quality control checks in the field during 
survey efforts.  Field check efforts were performed at the end of each week of survey as well as a final 
effort once all required inspections were complete.  10% of the pavement inspection set was resurveyed 
by a second team to ensure the quantities and distress types were collected properly (approx. 7 miles).   
 
During the project, Bucknam staff reviewed and assessed the existing MicroPAVER database, City 
centerline file, previous PMP – GIS map link and the previous street segmentation for Brea.  Typical 
segmentation updates were made to ensure that all sections across the network contain similar pavement 
type, age, and condition.  
 
During in-house and field operations, we came across minor changes and some typical updates that 
needed to be made to the previous database.  These changes included minor length and width corrections 
from field operations; Bucknam performed the necessary changes within the Brea PMP database.   

 

XV. APPENDIX E – PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT DATA FILES 
 
The City of Brea MicroPAVER database (.e70 file) has been enclosed for City and OCTA use.  This data and 
the associated reporting data includes: 
 

• Street names and limits for the City’s public streets 
• Street identifiers (Branch ID, Section ID) 
• Direction 
• Begin and end of section 
• Length, width and true areas 
• Functional Classification (MPAH, Local) 
• Number of travel lanes 
• Pavement Condition Index (PCI) and date of inspection 
• Type of recommended treatment 
• Cost of recommended treatment  



City of Brea, CA Page 20 
2025 Citywide Pavement Management Plan – OCTA Submittal 
Final Report – May 28, 2025   
 

 
  

XVI.  APPENDIX F – GIS MAPS / CURRENT CONDITIONS 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA  
 CONCERNING THE STATUS AND UPDATE OF THE PAVEMENT  
 MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR THE MEASURE M2 (M2) PROGRAM 
 
 
A. RECITALS: 
 
 (i) WHEREAS, the local jurisdiction is required to meet eligibility 

requirements and submit eligibility verification packages to the Orange County 

Transportation Authority (OCTA) in order to remain eligible to receive M2 funds; 

and 

 (ii) WHEREAS, the local jurisdiction is required to adopt and update a 

Pavement Management Plan (PMP), using the required format, regarding the 

status of road pavement conditions and implementation of the PMP on a biennial 

basis; and 

(iii) WHEREAS, the local jurisdiction is required to provide a plan that 

manages the preservation, rehabilitation, and maintenance of paved roads by 

analyzing pavement life cycles, assessing overall system performance costs, and 

determining alternative strategies and costs necessary to improve paved roads.   

  
B. RESOLUTION: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council for the City 

of Brea does hereby inform OCTA that: 

 a) The PMP is in conformance with the PMP Submittal Template 

provided in the Countywide Pavement Management Plan Guidelines.   

 b) The City/County hereby adopts a PMP and has provided an updated 

PMP report, using the required format, to OCTA.     



c) The Public Works Director, City Engineer or designee is authorized 

to sign the PMP certification form.   

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June 2025. 

 

        ________________________________  
                              Mayor   

 

ATTEST: ________________________________ 
                City Clerk 
 
 

I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Brea 

held on the 17th day of June 2025, by the following vote: 

 

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSTAINED:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:                    

     

    Dated:  ______________________________ 

                                                                      ______________________________ 
                                                                       City Clerk  



Blair Stewart Cecilia Hupp Christine Marick Marty Simonoff Steven Vargas
Mayor Mayor Pro Tem Council Member Council Member Council Member

City of Brea • 1 Civic Center Circle • Brea, California   92821-5732 • 714-990-7600 • FAX 714-990-2258 • www.cityofbrea.gov

June 17, 2025

Ms. Charvalen Alacar, Section Manager
Orange County Transportation Authority
550 South Main Street
P.O. Box 14184
Orange, CA 92863-1584

Subject:  City of Brea Land Use Planning Strategies that Accommodate Transit and Active 
Transportation

Dear Ms. Alacar,

The following excerpts from the City of Brea’s General Plan (GP) satisfy the item related to 
Renewed Measure M (M2) Eligibility for FY 2025-26: “to consider, as part of the Eligible 
Jurisdiction’s General Plan, land use strategies that accommodate transit and non-motorized 
transportation.”  The GP contains the Circulation Element (CE) located in Chapter 2: Community 
Development, and is included as an attachment to this letter (in CD format).   The CE covers the 
following transit and non-motorized transportation items in detail:

 Public Transit
 Regional Transportation Facilities
 Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities

Additionally, the CE contains listed goals, objectives and policies to assist in meeting strategies 
that will accommodate transit and non-motorized items in the near future.  The following 
summarize the goals, objectives and policies from the City’s CE:

Local Circulation System

Goal CD-11: Provide a safe and efficient circulation system that meets the needs of the 
community. 

Policy CD-11.3: Plan neighborhood streets, pedestrian walks, and bicycle paths as a system of 
fully connected routes throughout the City. 

Policy CD-11.11: Examine alternative methods such as traffic calming, landscaping, provision of 
bike/transit lanes to slow traffic, improve street capacity, and increase safety.



Blair Stewart Cecilia Hupp Christine Marick Marty Simonoff Steven Vargas
Mayor Mayor Pro Tem Council Member Council Member Council Member

City of Brea • 1 Civic Center Circle • Brea, California   92821-5732 • 714-990-7600 • FAX 714-990-2258 • www.cityofbrea.gov

Public Transit

Goal CD-12: Promote and support an efficient public transportation system

Policy CD-12.1: Support transit providers such as the Orange County Transportation Authority in 
granting additional service routes within the City as needed. 

Policy CD-12.3: Establish the Birch Street corridor between Downtown Brea and the Civic and 
Cultural Center/Brea Mall as a pedestrian and bicycle-friendly travel way.

Policy CD-13.4: Require new developments to provide for the use of alternative modes of transit 
via internal trails or travel ways – public or private – for pedestrians and vehicles other than cars.  
New developments shall include such features as well-designed sidewalks and parkways, bike 
lanes and paths, and dedicated bus turn-outs.  

Excerpt from “Public Transportation System”:

Promoting the use of alternative transportation modes such as transit, bicycling, and 
walking produces a number of community benefits, including reduced traffic, reduced need for 
costly roadway improvement projects, improved air quality, and a healthier population…..

Public bus service is provided by OCTA…transit routes link Brea to other communities such as 
La Habra, Fullerton, Orange, Santa Ana, Costa Mesa, Tustin, Anaheim, Garden Grove, Irvine, 
and Newport Beach….

Paratransit services are provided by ACCESS, OCTA’s shared-ride service for people who are 
unable to use the regular, fixed-route bus service because of functional limitations caused by a 
disability.  The City operates the Brea Shuttle Express, a curb-to-curb transportation shuttle…

OCTA also oversees commuter rail planning and operations.  Brea supports efforts of OCTA to 
extend light rail or other commuter rail services to North Orange County, provided such program 
maintains the quality of life in the City. 

Regional Transportation Facilities
Transportation in Brea is directly related to an overall transportation network for the four-county 
area.  Roadway facilities in Brea accommodate regional traffic resulting from congestion on State 
Route 57 and limited access between San Bernardino and Riverside counties to Orange and Los 
Angeles counties.  Planning for the needs of the community necessarily includes recognition of 
the related transportation needs and planning efforts of the surrounding communities, County, 
and region. With that recognition is the need for the City to actively monitor transportation planning 
in the surrounding area and strongly encourage regional transportation improvements.  



Blair Stewart Cecilia Hupp Christine Marick Marty Simonoff Steven Vargas
Mayor Mayor Pro Tem Council Member Council Member Council Member

City of Brea • 1 Civic Center Circle • Brea, California   92821-5732 • 714-990-7600 • FAX 714-990-2258 • www.cityofbrea.gov

Goal CD-10: Maintain an effective regional transportation network.

Policies that support this goal are detailed in the General Plan (Chapter 2-60).  They include the 
following: working with Caltrans to improve access to and from State Route 57; supporting efforts 
to establish a regional network of rail travel connections; cooperating with surrounding 
jurisdictions to ensure the efficient operation of the arterial network system; working with Caltrans, 
OCTA, and surrounding jurisdictions to provide adequate capacity on regional routes; ensuring 
that the County Master Plan of Arterial Highways is consistent with the City’s Master Plan of 
Roadways; examining design solution alternatives that can improve the safety and efficiency of 
Carbon Canyon Road, which serves high volumes of regional traffic; and working with the Four 
Corners Group to explore regional solutions to the four-county area.  

Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities  

Goal CD-13: Provide for an extensive, integrated, and safe bicycle, hiking, and pedestrian 
network throughout the community, and make Brea a pedestrian-friendly community. 

Policy CD-13.1: Develop and maintain a comprehensive and integrated system of bikeways that 
promotes bicycling riding for commuting and recreation. 

Policy CD-13.2: Provide for safe and convenient pedestrian connections to and from Downtown, 
other commercial districts, neighborhoods, and major activity centers within the City.   

Excerpt from “Pedestrian Circulation System”:

Walkability, access, and connections are necessary components of a circulation system that 
easily and specifically accommodates pedestrians. Walkability includes wide sidewalks, safe 
street crossings, features that encourage cautious driving, and a pleasant and safe walking 
environment.  Walkways, mid-block crossings, pathways, and pedestrian short-cuts allow people 
to get from one destination point to another with ease and quickly. Dedicated pedestrian paths 
can provide access between residential and retail areas, especially if streets are not feasible.  
Pedestrian connections should be provided primarily to and from intense commercial activity 
centers such as Downtown Brea and transit stops. Handicapped access strategies should be 
incorporated into all street and pathway plans.  

Residential development tracts designed inward or isolated from adjoining neighborhoods create 
obstacles to pedestrian movement due to walls, limited access ways, and long walking distances. 
Residential tracts should have pathways to commercial centers, parks, schools, and transit stops.  
Activities of daily life must be within walking distance so that people will opt to walk rather than 
use the automobile for short trips. 



Blair Stewart Cecilia Hupp Christine Marick Marty Simonoff Steven Vargas
Mayor Mayor Pro Tem Council Member Council Member Council Member

City of Brea • 1 Civic Center Circle • Brea, California   92821-5732 • 714-990-7600 • FAX 714-990-2258 • www.cityofbrea.gov

Excerpt from “Accommodating Bicyclists”:

In Brea and throughout Orange County, where rain falls less than 30 days a year and 
temperatures are generally moderate, the climate is perfect for bicycling.  People can easily cycle 
to work or school, provided safe routes are available.  Allowing bicycles on buses or providing 
secure bicycle parking facilities can further encourage bicycling for longer trips.  Cycling is also a 
major recreational activity, both on mountain tracks and along the roads. The numerous backbone 
and single-track trails for the advanced and beginning mountain bikers in Chino Hills Park are 
purely for fun and exercise.   For the road cyclist, Rose Drive leads cyclists to a paved pathway 
in Yorba Linda that guides them to the Santa Ana River Bike Trail, a great paved bike path that 
follows the Santa Ana River to the Pacific Ocean.  

Bikeways, like roadways, come in several forms.   Brea has adopted three bikeway standards 
that parallel those presented in OCTA’s Bikeways Strategic Plan. Descriptions of these 
classifications are presented in Table CD-5 and illustrated in Figure CD-9 [see General Plan CD 
submitted with original M2 Eligibility package].

Should you have any further questions or concerns regarding the City of Brea’s Circulation 
Element and/or the City’s strategies that accommodate transit and non-motorized transportation, 
please contact me at (714) 990-7698 to discuss. 

Sincerely,

Michael Ho, P.E.                                              
Director of Public Works 



City of Brea

Finance Committee Communication

G. Approve Amenment No. 1 with Geocon West, Inc. and Amendment No. 2 with BKF Engineers for Additional as-
needed Arovista Park Geotechnical and Civil Engineering Services

Meeting

Tuesday, June 10, 2025, 8:30 AM

Agenda Group

DISCUSSION Item: 3G.

TO

Finance Committee Members

FROM

Kristin Griffith, City Manager

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Finance Committee recommend the City Council to take the following actions:

1. Approve Amendment No. 1 with Geocon West, Inc. in the amount not-to-exceed $168,000 resulting in a total
contract amount not-to-exceed $418,000 for as-needed materials testing, soils inspection and special
inspections. 

2. Approve Amendment No. 2 with BKF Engineers in the amount not-to-exceed $32,100 resulting in a total
contract amount not-to-exceed $74,100 for as-needed engineering services. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

On March 19, 2024, the City Council awarded a construction contract for the Arovista Park Modernization Project,
CIP No. 7978, for $16,511,884.55, along with eight on-call, as-needed support services for consultants for
$1,295,479. Staff required these on-call service agreements to support the Project as it progressed, managing,
answering, clarifying, approving, and providing inspections throughout construction as they have the expertise in
each field. Many of the consultants are the engineers and architects who designed the plans.

Of the eight awarded on-call agreements, GeoCon West, Inc., the soil engineer who prepared the geotechnical
report analyzing the soil for the entire Arovista project site, and BKF Engineers, the civil engineer who designed the
project plans, require additional funding to carry out the remainder of the construction phase. The current contract
amounts for GeoCon and BKF are $250,000 and $42,000, respectively. The additional funding amounts needed for
GeoCon West, Inc. are $168,000 and $32,100 for BKF Engineers to continue their services.

During construction, the structural engineer made changes to the wall and foundation sizes based on the soil
conditions found near the flood control channel. Much of the soil was soft and collapsed at times during the
excavation of the foundations for the walls. To accommodate unforeseen soil conditions, modifications to the
foundation design and the addition of inspection, testing, and design elements are required to continue
construction, which falls within GeoCon's scope of services. GeoCon not only provides the inspection scope but
also performs testing of materials for concrete, rebar, and compaction, all within their own company. Having a one-
stop inspection firm ensures continuity and consistency, benefiting the Project.  Additional funding is required for
BKF's scope of services to provide grading elevations for the wall footings and to continue construction support in
clarifying design questions and approving field changes, thereby keeping the Project on track.



To mitigate any other unforeseen soil conditions, staff will take the following measures to proactively  identify
additional areas adjacent to the channel where excavation is required. These design changes, which involve
enlarging the wall foundations, will impact the overall timeline and budget of the Project. Staff is currently
negotiating the additional cost and days that the contingency allowance will absorbed.

The Project remains on target for completion in Fall 2025.

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT

Previous on-call agreements were awarded to GeoCon for $250,000 and to BKF for $42,000 to provide support
services for answering, clarifying, approving, and conducting inspections throughout the construction process, as
they are the engineers who designed the project plans. The additional increase needed for GeoCon are $168,000
and $32,100 for BKF Engineers to continue their services.

No additional funding is requested for these contract amendments, as there is adequate funding within the existing
Capital Improvement Project.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED

Kristin Griffith, City Manager

Prepared by: Michael Ho, Public Works Director

 

 

Attachments

Amendment No. 1 with Geocon West, Inc.
Amendment No. 2 with BKF Engineers

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f70614c1e31004de7ae76%2FGEOCON-WEST-INC.-06-17-2025%20-%20Draft%20Amendment.pdf?alt=media&token=bbbffd48-e7af-4453-b564-94aae5b5d3a9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f70614c1e31004de7ae76%2FGEOCON-WEST-INC.-06-17-2025%20-%20Draft%20Amendment.pdf?alt=media&token=bbbffd48-e7af-4453-b564-94aae5b5d3a9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f70614c1e31004de7ae76%2FGEOCON-WEST-INC.-06-17-2025%20-%20Draft%20Amendment.pdf?alt=media&token=bbbffd48-e7af-4453-b564-94aae5b5d3a9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f70614c1e31004de7ae76%2FBKF-Engineers-06-17-2025%20-%20draft%20Amendment.pdf?alt=media&token=c71bb351-ccdf-47af-9e1c-903b54ed1884
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f70614c1e31004de7ae76%2FBKF-Engineers-06-17-2025%20-%20draft%20Amendment.pdf?alt=media&token=c71bb351-ccdf-47af-9e1c-903b54ed1884
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F683f70614c1e31004de7ae76%2FBKF-Engineers-06-17-2025%20-%20draft%20Amendment.pdf?alt=media&token=c71bb351-ccdf-47af-9e1c-903b54ed1884


Amendment No. 01
to Professional Services Agreement

This Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement dated Tuesday, March 19, 2024, is made 
and entered into this Tuesday, June 3, 2025 by and between the City of Brea ("City") and GEOCON 
WEST, INC., ("Consultant").

RECITALS

A. On or about Tuesday, March 19, 2024 and Consultant entered into an agreement for Professional 
Services, whereby Consultant agreed to provide Materials Testing, Soils Inspection and Special 
Inspections to the City ("Agreement".)

B. By its original terms, or by amendment(s), the Agreement will expire upon satisfactory 
completion of the Services  and provided for compensation in the lumpsum not-to-exceed amount 
of $ 250,000.00. The Agreement has no options to extend the term. 

C.  The parties desire to provide for additional compensation payable to Contractor for 
additional work in the amount of $ 168,000.00

AGREEMENT

1. Notwithstanding any provision of the Agreement: the term of the Agreement is hereby 
extended and shall expire upon satisfactory completion of the Services . Notwithstanding any 
provision of the Agreement: compensation payable to Contractor, calculated as a flat amount, or 
as an hourly rate, as applicable, shall be increased by the not-to-exceed amount of $ 
168,000.00. The scope of Services remains unchanged. 

2. Except as amended by this Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain 
unaffected and in full force and effect.

3. The persons executing this Amendment warrant that they are authorized to execute this Addendum 
and that this Amendment is binding on the parties hereto.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

1



WHEREAS, the parties have executed this Amendment as of Tuesday, June 3, 2025. Digital 
Signatures are acceptable if they conform to all requirements of California Government Code Section 
16.5.

GEOCON WEST, INC.

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________
Jelisa Thomas Adams Willi Lydon
Vice President Chief Finance Officer
jelisa@geoconinc.com
  
Date Signed: ________________ Date Signed: _________________

[Corporation: pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 313, both signature lines must be executed unless the signatory holds at least 
one of the offices designated on each line. Limited liability company: Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 17703.01(d), both 

signature lines must be executed unless the articles of incorporation state that the firm is managed by only one manager.]

City of Brea Attest (if over $50,000)
  
By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________
Blair Stewart Lillian Harris-Neal
Mayor City Clerk

LillianHN@CityofBrea.net
  
Date Signed: ________________ Date Signed: _________________

2



 

2807 McGaw Avenue ■ Irvine, CA 92618 ■ Telephone (949) 491-6570 ■ oc@geoconinc.com 

 
 
Project No. W1628-88-02 
May 19, 2025 
 
Mr. Michael Ho, PE 
Public Works Director 
Public Works Department 
545 North Berry Street  
Brea, California 92821 
 
Subject: REQUEST FOR CHANGE ORDER NO 1 

AROVISTA PARK MODERNIZATION PROJECT  
  500 WEST IMPERIAL HIGHWAY, BREA, CALIFORNIA 
 
Dear Mr. Ho: 
 
We prepared this request for Change Order No. 1 to accommodate our continued construction 
observation services at the subject site. Our proposal outlined a scope of work for an estimated fee of 
$250,000. 
 
To determine a suitable budget, we have requested input from the project superintendent on the 
remaining scope of inspection and testing services. Based on information provided by the 
superintendent, this change order is based on an additional 95 days in inspection and testing, as well 
as laboratory testing, project management, and final reports. Additional change orders may be 
submitted, if necessary. All services will be provided at the request of the project superintendent or 
the owner’s authorized representative. 
 
We respectfully request an increase of $168,000 for a revised contract amount of $418,000.  
 
Geocon proposes to provide the services described herein on a lump sum basis in accordance with 
the previously negotiated and executed Professional Services Agreement (“the Agreement”), dated 
March 19, 2024 and enclosed Schedule of Fees. However, other than as set forth herein, all of the 
terms and conditions of the Agreement and all exhibits attached thereto shall remain in full force and 
effect. Except to the extent specifically set forth herein, this Acknowledgment specifically 
incorporates by this reference all the terms and conditions of the Agreement and all exhibits attached 
thereto as though set forth in full herein. To the extent of any inconsistency between this 
Acknowledgment and the Agreement, this Acknowledgment shall control.  
 
If this Change Order request meets with your approval, please prepare a change order and send a 
copy to our attention or sign below and return.  
 



Project W1628-88-02 - 2 - May 19, 2025 

If you have any questions regarding this request or if we may be of further service, please contact the 
undersigned at your convenience. 
 
Very truly yours,    
 

GEOCON WEST, INC. 

 
 
 
 
Jelisa Thomas Adams, GE 
Vice President 

 

 
(EMAIL)  Addressee 
 
 
 
 

 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
      CLIENT:  

 
Authorized By:   
 
Print Name:   
 
Title:   
 
Date:   



 

 

2023 SCHEDULE OF FEES 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
Word Processor/Non-Technical Assistant/Draftsman/Dispatcher .................................................................................................... $95/hr 
Engineering Assistant/Lab Technician. ............................................................................................................................................. 95/hr 
Engineering Field Technician (Earthwork/Compaction Testing/Backfill) ........................................................................................  *85/hr 
Special Inspector (Concrete, Rebar, Masonry, Welding, etc.) ..........................................................................................................  *90/hr 
Engineering Inspector (Bottom Approval / Shoring / Foundations / Piles) .......................................................................................  *110/hr 
LA City Deputy Grading Inspector (Bottom Approval / Shoring / Foundations / Piles) ..................................................................  *125/hr 
Staff Engineer/Geologist ................................................................................................................................................................... *125/hr 
Senior Staff Engineer/Geologist ....................................................................................................................................................... *135/hr 
Project Engineer/Geologist ............................................................................................................................................................... *145/hr 
Senior Project Engineer/Geologist .................................................................................................................................................... *155/hr 
Senior Engineer/Geologist ................................................................................................................................................................ *175/hr 
Associate Engineer/Geologist ........................................................................................................................................................... *200/hr 
Principal Engineer/Geologist/Litigation Support .............................................................................................................................. 400/hr 
Attorney Fees (General) .................................................................................................................................................................... 500/hr 
Deposition or Court Appearance ....................................................................................................................................................... 550/hr 
Overtime/Saturday Rate/Night Rate (7pm – 6am w/ 8-Hour minimum per call out) .......................................  1.5 X Regular Hourly Rate 
Sunday and Holiday Rate .....................................................................................................................................  2 X Regular Hourly Rate 
Minimum Field Services Fee per call-out, 4 Hours (if 4 hours or less), 8 Hours (if more than 4 hours and less than 8 Hours) 
Short-Notice Cancellation, 4 Hours (if after 4 pm of the day prior to the scheduled inspection time) 
Short-Notice Cancellation, 4 Hours (upon or after arrival at jobsite) 

*Prevailing Wage (PW) California Labor Code §1720, et. Seq add $50/hr 

TRAVEL 
Personnel ......................................................................................................................................................................... Regular Hourly Rate 
Subsistence (Per Diem) .................................................................................................................................................................... $300/day 
Vehicle Mileage  ............................................................................................................................................................................. 0.75/mile 

EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS, & ANALYTICAL TESTS 

Nuclear Density Gauge / Sand Cone Testing Equipment ....... $10/hr 55-Gallon Drum .................................................................... 120/ea 

Vehicle ..................................................................................... 10/hr Visqeen (6 mil 20X100’) ..................................................... 135/roll 

Special Inspection Equipment  ................................................... 5/hr Traffic Cones/Barricades  ......................................................35/day 

Asphalt Cold Patch/Concrete ................................................ 30/bag TPHg(EPA 8015B)  ................................................................. 70/ea 
Double Ring Infiltrometer Equipment ................................ 200/day TPHd/TPHmo .................................................. (EPA 8015M) 75/ea 
GPS Unit ............................................................................. 160/day TPH Carbon Chain Breakdown  .................... (EPA 8015M) 110/ea 
Pick-up Truck ..................................................................... 150/day 
Water Buffalo........................................................................ 75/day 
Dynamic Cone Penetrometer .............................................. 400/day 

Methanol and/or Ethanol (EPA 8015M)  ............................... 125/ea 
Volatile Organic Compounds  .......................  (EPA 8260B) 125/ea 
Semi-Volatile Organic Compounds ..................  (EPA 8270) 225/ea 

Hand-Auger .......................................................................... 50/day PAHs (EPA 8270SIM)  ......................................................... 185/ea 
Distilled Water (5-gallon)  ...................................................... 20/ea 
Bailer (Reusable) .................................................................. 35/day 

CAM 17 Metals (EPA 6010B)  ............................................. 170/ea 
Single Metal  .................................................... (EPA 6010B) 30/ea 

Bailer (Disposable) ................................................................. 15/ea Hexavalent Chrome (EPA 7199)  ............................................ 75/ea 
Stainless Sampling Pump  ................................................. $150/day 
Battery-Powered Pump  ........................................................ 75/day 

Organochlorine Pesticides (EPA 8081)  ................................ 110/ea 
Organophosphorus Pesticides (EPA 8141)  ........................... 125/ea 

Water Level Indicator  .......................................................... 40/day 
Interface Probe  ................................................................... 125/day 
Photo-Ionization Meter  ...................................................... 150/day 
Combustible Gas Meter  ..................................................... 150/day 

Chlorinated Herbicides (EPA 8151)  ..................................... 125/ea 
PCBs (EPA 8082)  ................................................................... 95/ea 
Soil pH (EPA 9045C) .............................................................. 20/ea 
WET or TCLP Extraction  ....................................................... 85/ea 

pH/Conductivity/Temperature Meter  ................................. 150/day 
Turbidity Meter  .................................................................... 80/day 
Air Sampling Pump  .............................................................. 80/day 
Level D PPE/Decon Rinse Equipment  ................................. 50/day 
Concrete Coring Equipment  ............................................... 285/day 
Generator or Air Compressor  ............................................. 150/day 

EPA 5035 Sample Kits  ........................................................... 40/ea 
Asbestos (PLM)  ...................................................................... 25/ea 
Asbestos (400-point count) ...................................................... 50/ea 
Sample Compositing ................................................   20/composite 
48-hour Turnaround Time  ....................................... 60% surcharge 
72-hour Turnaround Time  ....................................... 40% surcharge 



 

- 2 - 

 

LABORATORY TESTS* 
COMPACTION CURVES SOIL AND AGGREGATE PROPERTIES 
(D698/D1557/T99/T108) 4-inch mold................................ $300/ea (D422/T88) Particle Size, Hydrometer w/out Sieve ............ $250/ea 
(D698/D1557/T99/T108) 6-inch mold.................................. 300/ea (C136/D6913/T27) Sieve, Coarse to Fine w/ #200 Wash ..... 175/ea 
(CT 216) California Impact .................................................. 300/ea (C136/D6913/T27) Sieve, Coarse or Fine w/ #200 Wash ..... 150/ea 
Check Point........................................................................... 125/ea (C136/D6913/T27) Sieve, Coarse or Fine No #200 Wash .... 125/ea 
(D1632/CT312) Soil Cement Cyl. Fabrication (Set of 3)  ... 200/set (C117/D1140/T11) Materials Finer than #200 ...................... 115/ea 
(D1632/CT312) Soil Cement Cyl. Fabrication (Addtl. Spec.)  75/ea (D2216/T265/CT226) Moisture Content ................................. 40/ea 
(D1633/CT312) Soil Cement Comp. Strength (Set of 3)  .... 350/set (D2487/D2488) Visual Soil Classification .............................. 40/ea 
(D1633/CT312) Soil Cement Comp. Strength (Addtl. Spec.) 125/ea (D2937) Density of In-Place Soil, Drive-Cyl. Method ........... 50/ea 
SOIL AND AGGREGATE STABILITY (D4943) Shrinkage Factors of Soils, Wax Method ................. 75/ea 
(D2844/CT301) Resistance Value ...................................... $350/ea (C131/C535/CT211) L.A. Abrasion Resistance .................. $250/ea 
(D2844/CT301) Resistance Value, Treated .......................... 350/ea (C142/T112) Clay Lumps and Friable Particles .................... 155/ea 
(D1883) California Bearing Ratio ........................................ 600/ea SOIL AND AGGREGATE PROPERTIES (CONTD.) 
(C977) Stabilization Ability of Lime .................................... 185/ea (C123/T113) Light Weight Particles ..................................... 250/ea 
(D1883) Calif. Bearing Ratio (Army Corp of Engineers)  .... 600/ea (D3744/CT229/T210) Durability Index Fine ........................ 200/ea 
CHEMICAL ANALYSIS (D3744/CT229/T210) Durability Index Coarse .................... 200/ea 
(G187/CT643/T288) pH and Resistivity ............................. $175/ea (CT227) Cleanness Value ..................................................... 200/ea 
(D4972/T289) pH Only .......................................................... 75/ea (D4791) Flat & Elongated Particles ...................................... 175/ea 
(CT417) Sulfate Content ....................................................... 125/ea (D693/CT205) Percent Crushed Particles ............................. 200/ea 
(CT422) Chloride Content .................................................... 125/ea (D5821) Percent. of Fractured Particles, Coarse Aggregate .. 200/ea 
(D2974) Organic Content ..................................................... 100/ea (C40/CT213/T21) Organic Impurities ................................... 100/ea 
PERMEABILITY, CONSOLIDATION AND EXPANSION (C235) Soft Hardness (Scratch Hardness)  ............................ 125/ea 
(D5084) Permeability, Flexible Wall .................................. $270/ea (C88/CT214/T104) Sulfate Soundness ................................. 500/ea 
(D5856) Permeability, Rigid Wall ........................................ 260/ea (C1252/T304) Uncompact. Void Content, Fine Aggregate ... 175/ea 
(D2434) Permeability, Constant Head .................................. 280/ea (C127/CT206/T85) Coarse Specific Gravity ......................... 150/ea 
(D2434) Permeability, FHA Slab-on-Grade ......................... 110/ea (C128/CT207/T84) Fine Specific Gravity............................. 175/ea 
(D2434) Permeability, Hourly ................................................ 55/ea (D854/CT209/T100) Specific Gravity of Soil ....................... 200/ea 
(D2435/T216) Consolidation (6 pts. w/ Unload) ................ $400/ea (C29/CT212/T19) Unit Weight & Percent Voids ................. 125/ea 
(D2435/T216) Consolidation Additional Point w/ Unload ... $90/ea (D2419/CT217/T176) Sand Equivalent ................................ 150/ea 
(D4546) Swell/Compression Testing & Density .................. 125/ea (D4318/CT204/T89/T90) Plastic Index (Plastic/Liq. Limit)  250/ea 
(D4546) Swell/Settlement Testing & Density (ea. addtl. pt.)  85/ea (D4318/CT204/T89) Liquid Limit ........................................ 125/ea 
(D4546) Swell/Settlement Testing & Density (County) ....... 100/ea (D4318/CT204/T90) Plastic Limit ........................................ 125/ea 
(D4546) Swell/Settlement Testing & Density (FHA)  ............ 90/ea (C330) Spec. for Lightweight Aggregates, Struc. Concrete ... Quote 
(D4829) Expansion Index of Soils ........................................ 250/ea SHEAR STRENGTH 
STEEL TESTING (D2166) Unconfined Compression ..................................... $100/ea 
Reinforcing Steel Tests: (D3080/T236) Direct Shear (3 points)  ................................ 350/set 
(A370) Tensile Strength & Elongation  (D3080/T236) Direct Shear Addtl. Points/ea. residual pass $125/ea 

#11 Bar & Smaller ............................................... $100/ea (D2850) Unconsolidated-Undrained Triaxial Shear .............. 115/ea 
#14 Bar ................................................................ $125/ea (D2850) Unconsolidated-Undrained Triaxial Staged ............ 160/ea 
#18 Bar (Proof Test)  ........................................... $150/ea (D4767) Consolidated-Undrained Triaxial Shear.................. 265/ea 

(A370) Bend Test (D4767) Consolidated-Undrained Triaxial Staged ................ 340/ea 
#11 Bar & Smaller ................................................. $50/ea (EM1110) Consolidated-Drained Triaxial Shear .................. 375/ea 
#14 & #18 Bar ....................................................... $75/ea (EM1110) Consolidated-Drained Triaxial Staged ................. 480/ea 

(A370) Tensile - Mechanically Spliced Bar MASONRY** 
#11 Bar & Smaller ............................................... $175/ea Concrete Block Test (Sets of 3 Required): 
#14 Bar & Larger ................................................. $225/ea (C140) Unit Weight Moisture Content & Absorption ......... $350/ea 

(A370) Tensile – Electric Resist. Butt Splice w/ Control ..... 175/ea (C140) Moisture Content/Absorption (ea. addtl. specimen)  125/ea 
(A370) Straightening of bar (if required) ................................ 50/ea (C140) Compression Test ..................................................... 300/ea 
Structural Steel Tests: (C140) Compression Test (ea. addtl. specimen)  .................. 125/ea 
(A370) Machining & Prep of Test Specimen ............... Cost + 20% (C426) Linear Drying Shrinkage ........................................... 350/ea 

(A370) Tensile Strength & Elongation (C109/UBC 21-16) Mortar Cylinder (2”x4”)  ......................... 30/ea 
Up to 200,000 lbs ................................................. $125/ea (C942) Grout Prism (3”x3”x6”), trimming included ............... 35/ea 
200,000 – 300,000 lbs ............................................ 150/ea Masonry Prism (Assemblage): 

300,000 – 400,000 lbs ........................................................... 175/ea (C1314) 8”x8”x16” – 8”x12”x16”  ..................................... $200/ea 
Pre-stressing Wire & Tendon Tests: (C1314) 8”x16”x16” – 10”x12”x16”  ................................... 225/ea 
(A421) Tensile Strength, Single Wire................................. $175/ea (C1314) 12”x12”x16” – 12”x16”x16”  ................................. 250/ea 
(A416) Tensile Strength, 7-Wire Strand ............................. $200/ea (C1314) Larger than 12”x16”x16”  ........................................ Quote 



- 3 -

LABORATORY TESTS* (CONTINUED) 
High Strength Bolt, Nut, & Washer Tests: Brick Test (Set of 5 Specimens): 
(A325/A490) Tensile Test on Bolts .................................... $100/ea (C67) 24-Hour Absorption, Cold Water ............................. $250/set 
(A563) Proof Load Test on Nuts ........................................ $100/ea (C67) 5-Hour Absorption, Boiling Water .......................... $250/set 
(A325/A490) Hardness Test on Bolts ................................... $50/ea (C67) Compression Test or Modulus of Rupture ............... $300/set 
(A536) Hardness Test on Nuts .............................................. $50/ea (C67) Each Additional Specimen ........................................ $100/ea 
(F436) Hardness Test on Washers ........................................ $50/ea CONCRETE** 
Weld Specimen Tests: Mix Designs: 

(E164) Ultrasonic Examination .............................. Quote (ACI211/ACI214) Concrete Mix Design ............................ $450/ea 
Machining & Prep of Test Specimen ............................ Cost + 20% (ACI211/ACI214) Review of Concrete Mix Design ........... $450/ea 
(E381) Macrotech Test (3 Faces)  ............................................ $355 (C192) Concrete Trial Mix (includes equipment & labor) .. $650/ea 
ASPHALT TESTING Concrete Properties:
Asphalt Properties: (C39/CT521/T22) Comp. Strength, Concrete Cyl................. $30/ea 
(D2726/CT308/T166) Bulk Spec. Grav. Compacted HMA $100/ea (C42/CT521/T22) Comp. Strength, Concrete/Gunite Core ... $60/ea 
(D1560/CT366) Stabilometer Value (HVEEM)  ................ $225/ea (C78/CT523) Flex. Strength of 6”x6”x21” Concrete Beam .. 125/ea 
(D2041) Theoretical Max Specific Gravity ........................ $200/ea (C174) Length Measuring of Drilled Cores ........................ $100/ea 
(D5444) Sieve Analysis of Extracted Asphalt .................... $250/ea (C1140) Shotcrete Panel-Coring & Testing (Set of 3) ....... $350/set 
(D6307/CT382) Percent Asphalt, Ignition Method............. $175/ea (C1140) Shotcrete Panel (each addtl. specimen) ................. $125/ea 
(D1188) Unit Weight of Asphalt Core .................................. $95/ea (C496) Static Modulus of Elasticity .................................... $250/ea 
MISCELLANEOUS TESTING SERVICES (C496) Drying Shrinkage (Set of 3, up to 28 days) ............ $650/set 
Calibration of Hydraulic Ram: (C642) Spec. Gravity, Absorp., Voids in Hardened Concrete . 95/ea 
100 Ton & Under ................................................................ $250/ea 

(F1869) Vapor Emission Rate, Concrete Subfloor .................. 50/ea 101 Tons – 200 Tons ............................................................ 350/ea 
Use of Universal Testing Machine: 
UTM with One Operator .................................................... $400/ea  
Additional Technician ...................................... Regular Tech Rate 
Spray Applied Fireproofing: 
(E605/E736) Fireproofing Oven Dry Density/Thickness ... $125/ea *2X Surcharge on rush turn-around for laboratory testing. 

**Fee applies for sample storage, testing, or disposal. 

1. Listed are typical charges for the services most frequently performed by Geocon. Prices for unlisted services as well as special 
quotations for programs involving volume work will be provided upon request. Laboratory test prices shown are for laboratory work 
only, and include reporting of routine results not calling for comments, recommendations or conclusions.

2. Sampling and testing is conducted in substantial conformance with the latest applicable or designated specifications of the American 
Society for Testing and Materials, Caltrans, American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials, or other pertinent 
agencies.

3. Saturday, night work, and overtime hours are charged at time and one-half; Sundays and holidays at double time. Per diem is $300.00 
per day when location of work dictates.

4. Equipment and materials will be billed at cost plus 15%. Outside services including subcontractors and rental of special equipment 
are billed at cost plus 15%. Hourly services are billed portal to portal from closest office in accordance with the stated hourly rates 
herein, with a minimum two-hour charge

5. Invoices will be submitted at four-week intervals. Terms of payment are met upon presentation of invoice. Invoices become 
delinquent thirty (30) days from invoice date and subject to one and one-half percent (1-1/2%) service charge per month, or the 
maximum rate allowed by law, whichever is lower. If Client objects to all or any portion of any invoice, Client will so notify Geocon 
in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of the invoice date, identify the cause of disagreement, and pay that portion of the 
invoice not in dispute. The parties will immediately make every effort to settle the disputed portion of the invoice. Payment on 
delinquent invoices will first be applied to accrued interest and then to the principal amount. All time spent and expenses incurred 
(including any attorney's fees and costs) in connection with collection of any delinquent amount will be paid by Client to Geocon per 
Geocon's current fee schedule.

6. Client and Geocon shall allocate certain of the risks so that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Geocon’s (the term “Geocon” 
includes Geocon’s partners, officers, directors, employees, agents, affiliates, subcontractors and subconsultants) total aggregate 
liability to Client is limited to the greater of $500,000 or the total compensation received from Client by Geocon for services 
rendered on this project, for any and all of Client’s injuries, damages, claims, losses, expenses, or claim expenses arising out of this 
Agreement from any cause or causes, including attorneys’ fees and costs which may be awarded to the prevailing party, and 
Client agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Geocon from and against all liabilities in excess of the monetary limit established 
above.

7. Client and Geocon shall allocate certain of the other risks so that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Client shall limit Geocon’s 
total aggregate liability to all third parties, including contractors, subcontractors of all tiers, materialmen, and others involved in 
Client’s project, as well as persons and other entities not involved in the project, to the greater of $1,000,000 or the total 
compensation received from Client by Geocon for services rendered on this project, for any and all injuries, damages, cause or 
causes, including attorneys’ fees and costs which may be awarded to the prevailing party, and Client agrees to indemnify and hold 
harmless Geocon from and against all liabilities in excess of the monetary limit established above, including all liability incurred by 
Geocon for acts, errors, or omissions, pursuant to entering into agreements with third parties on behalf of Client in order to 
obtain access or entry onto property not owned by Client.  Client agrees to notify all contractors and subcontractors of any 
limitation of Geocon’s liability to them, and require them to abide by such limitation for damages suffered by any contractor or 
subcontractor arising from Geocon’s actions or inactions.  Neither the contractor nor any subcontractor assumes any liability for 
damages to others which may arise on account of Geocon’s actions or inactions.



Amendment No. 02
to Professional Services Agreement

This Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement dated Wednesday, April 30, 2025, is made 
and entered into this Tuesday, June 3, 2025 by and between the City of Brea ("City") and BKF 
Engineers, ("Consultant").

RECITALS

A. On or about Wednesday, April 30, 2025 and Consultant entered into an agreement for 
Professional Services, whereby Consultant agreed to provide Civil Engineering Services to the City 
("Agreement".)

B. By its original terms, or by amendment(s), the Agreement will expire upon satisfactory 
completion of the Services  and provided for compensation in the lumpsum not-to-exceed amount 
of $ 42,000.00. The Agreement has no options to extend the term. 

C.  The parties desire to provide for additional compensation payable to Contractor for 
additional work in the amount of $ 32,100.00

AGREEMENT

1. Notwithstanding any provision of the Agreement: the term of the Agreement is hereby 
extended and shall expire upon satisfactory completion of the Services . Notwithstanding any 
provision of the Agreement: compensation payable to Contractor, calculated as a flat amount, or 
as an hourly rate, as applicable, shall be increased by the not-to-exceed amount of $ 
32,100.00. The scope of Services remains unchanged. 

2. Except as amended by this Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain 
unaffected and in full force and effect.

3. The persons executing this Amendment warrant that they are authorized to execute this Addendum 
and that this Amendment is binding on the parties hereto.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

1



WHEREAS, the parties have executed this Amendment as of Tuesday, June 3, 2025. Digital 
Signatures are acceptable if they conform to all requirements of California Government Code Section 
16.5.

BKF Engineers

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________
Chris Rideout Brian sc
Vice President Secretary
crideout@bkf.com
  
Date Signed: ________________ Date Signed: _________________

[Corporation: pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 313, both signature lines must be executed unless the signatory holds at least 
one of the offices designated on each line. Limited liability company: Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 17703.01(d), both 

signature lines must be executed unless the articles of incorporation state that the firm is managed by only one manager.]

City of Brea Attest (if over $50,000)
  
By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________
Blair Stewart Lillian Harris-Neal
Mayor City Clerk

LillianHN@CityofBrea.net
  
Date Signed: ________________ Date Signed: _________________

2



  

 
BKF ENGINEERS 

 4675 MacArthur Court, Suite 400, Newport Beach, CA  92660 | 949.526.8460 

October 30, 2024 

Updated February 20, 2025 

BKF No.20220551-11 

 

City of Brea   

1 Civic Center Circle   

Brea, California 92821 

 

ATTN: Michael Ho, PE 

C/O: Jenn Colacion, Senior Management Analyst 

Community Services Department / Administration Division 

P: 714.671.4452   

E: jenniferc@cityofbrea.net   

Transmitted Via Email 

 

Subject: Arovista Park Modernization Project   

 500 West Imperial Highway, Brea CA  

 ADD SERVICE REQUEST (ASR) #02 

 Wall Profile Review 
  

Dear Michael: 

 

This additional work has been requested by the City and completed to maintain the project schedule. All 

conditions of performance involved in this Add Service Request shall be in accordance with the provisions of the 

City Master Agreement, for work as described in the scope of work below. 

 

BASIS OF FEE  
 

To address RFI #3, we utilized a significant portion of our original construction administration budget to conduct a 

comprehensive review of wall profile drawings prepared by DVD. To account for the additional time and effort 

required for this review, we are requesting an additional construction administration budget allocation through 

this ASR. 

  

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
TASK 1 – WALL PROFILE REVIEW 

In response to the contractors request for additional top of wall and top of footing information (RFI #3), we 

reviewed wall profiles prepared by DVD for concurrence with the civil drawings. This includes reviewing the wall 

profile drawings against our finished grade and finished surface elevations, as well as reviewing the top of wall 

and top of footing elevations provided to confirm the wall design is aligned with the minimum cover and wall 

height specified in the structural details. We went through a couple of iterations with DVD, providing comments 

on the profiles drawn and then backchecking the revisions made to the profiles. This included the review of 56 

walls (16 wall profile sheets), consisting of both block walls and cast in place walls, with different levels of 

retaining. BKF provided a stamped reviewed set of wall profile drawings for concurrence.  

 

Total fee for coordination and review of all wall profiles: $15,222.50 (~$950 per sheet). 

 

The review of the walls was billed to our original construction administration scope and has exhausted a large 

majority of the original scoped fee. This task includes a separate budget for the review of the wall profiles. 



February 20, 2025  

Page 2 of 2 BKF ENGINEERS 

COMPENSATION 
BKF proposes to provide the services on a Time and Material (T&M) basis, per the Schedule of Fees in the current 

City of Brea /BKF Master Agreement. We will invoice for our services on a monthly basis per task summarized as 

follows: 

 

Task Description  Fee 

1 Wall Profile Review $15,300 

TOTAL LABOR FEE  $ 15,300  

 

AGREED and ACCEPTED:  

 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Signature          Date  

Name / Title:  

 

Thank you for the opportunity to present this proposal. We look forward to assisting in developing this project. 

Please contact me at (949) 573- if you have any questions regarding our scope of services. 

 

Sincerely 

 

BKF ENGINEERS 

 

 

Bruce W. Kirby, PE  

Associate Principal  

 

 

 



  

 
BKF ENGINEERS 

 4675 MacArthur Court, Suite 400, Newport Beach, CA  92660 | 949.526.8460 

February 20, 2025 

 

BKF No.20220551-11 

 

City of Brea   

1 Civic Center Circle   

Brea, California 92821 

 

ATTN: Michael Ho, PE 

C/O: Jenn Colacion, Senior Management Analyst 

Community Services Department / Administration Division 

P: 714.671.4452   

E: jenniferc@cityofbrea.net   

Transmitted Via Email 

 

Subject: Arovista Park Modernization Project   

 500 West Imperial Highway, Brea CA  

 ADD SERVICE REQUEST (ASR) #03 

 Extended Construction Administration (CA) 
  

Dear Michael: 

 

This additional work has been requested by the City and completed to maintain the project schedule. All 

conditions of performance involved in this Add Service Request shall be in accordance with the provisions of the 

City Master Agreement, for work as described in the scope of work below. 

 

BASIS OF FEE  
 

Construction of the project commenced in May 2024, with the first submittals and RFIs received for review in June 

2024. The initial BKF CA fee was $25,000 with construction estimated to last 12 months for civil improvements 

(rate of $2,100 per month). BKF has participated in many coordination calls with the construction team, reviewed 

28 contractor material submittals, and responded to 27 RFIs. As a result, we have exhausted the original CA fee by 

the end of January 2025.  

 

We have maintained a log of all reviewed RFIs and identified those resulting from unclear items or items requiring 

clarifications on the civil drawings. Of the 27 RFI’s responded to, 5 were a result of clarifications needed. The 

review of these RFIs has been excluded from the CA efforts billed to the project. Please refer to the attached log 

for details on the RFIs excluded from the CA scope. 

 

Total Spent to Date: $29,500 

Total Absorbed by BKF: $4,500 

Total CA Billed to Project: $25,000 

 

We understand that construction is now estimated to be completed by Fall 2025. To accommodate the extended 

CA schedule, we are requesting an additional CA budget allocation through this ASR. 

 

 

 



February 20, 2025  

Page 2 of 2 BKF ENGINEERS 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
TASK 1 – EXTENDED CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION (CA) 

As noted above, we have exhausted our CA scope. We have continued to receive RFI’s and submittals from the 

contractor. We are requesting additional budget to provide CA services through the anticipated completion date 

(8 months). Based on the initial monthly review rate of $2,100 per month for 8 additional months, we are 

requesting a total additional budget of $16,800. BKF proposes to provide these services on a T&M basis.  

 

COMPENSATION 
BKF proposes to provide the services on a Time and Material (T&M) basis, per the Schedule of Fees in the current 

City of Brea /BKF Master Agreement. We will invoice for our services on a monthly basis per task summarized as 

follows: 

 

Task Description  Fee 

1 Extended CA (T&M) $ 16,800 

TOTAL LABOR FEE  $ 16,800  

 

AGREED and ACCEPTED:  

 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Signature          Date  

Name / Title:  

 

Thank you for the opportunity to present this proposal. We look forward to assisting in developing this project. 

Please contact me at (949) 573-1369 if you have any questions regarding our scope of services. 

 

Sincerely 

 

BKF ENGINEERS 

 

 

Bruce W. Kirby, PE  

Associate Principal  

 

Attachments: Exhibit A (RFI Log) 



C20220551-11

Arovista Park 2/20/2025

RFI Log

RFI # Received Returned From Description Action Responsibility

1 6/6/24 6/13/24 CONTECH CONTECH REQUEST MODULAR WETLAND DESIGN INFO. BKF PROVIDED DETAILS FOR MWS.

IN SCOPE - Provided details for contech to provide 

submittal/ shop drawing

3 6/25/24 URBAN HABITAT

URBAN HABITAT REQUESTING TOP OF FOOTING ELEVATIONS 

FOR CIP AND CMU WALLS

BKF AND DVD COORDINATED TO PROVIDE WALL PROFILES 

REQUESTED BY CONTRACTOR

IN SCOPE - (see separate ASR02) Supplemental 

coordination and review of all wall profiles to provide 

wall plan requested by contractor

6 7/2/24 7/3/24 URBAN HABITAT

URBAN HABITAT NEEDS CLARIFICATION IF SANITARY SEWER 

POC IS REQUIRED. BKF CONFIRMED CONNECTION DETAILS REQUESTED.

IN SCOPE - Reviewed with DVD to confirm a SS point 

of connection is required as designed

11 7/25/24 7/26/24

TELACU 

CONSTRUCTION 

MANAGEMENT

TELACU REQUESTING CLARIFICATION ON SITE IMPROVEMENT 

WITH WALL. BKF PROVIDED CLARIFICATION FOR DEMO.

IN SCOPE - Coordinated with DVD and landscape 

drawings to confirm extent of demo. Extent of wall to 

remain shown on landscape plan

11.1 8/5/24 TELACU CM TELACU REQUEST NEW WALL PLAN. BKF PROVIDED CLARIFICATION FOR WALL.

IN SCOPE - Coordinated with DVD, Telacu, and City 

to confirm wall removal. Reviewed existing plan and 

grading plan to confirm no retaining and wall can be 

removed without additional wall details

25 8/29/24 9/10/24 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUEST CONFIRMATION FOR EXISTING ELECTRICAL 

EQUIPMENT TO BE REMOVED OR TO BE PROTECTED IN PLACE.

BKF PROVIDED UPDATED ELEVATION FOR PANEL TO BE RAISED 

TO.

IN SCOPE - Coordinated with Design West to confirm 

if panel is to remain. Reviewed grading plan to provide 

new pad elevation for relocated panel

28 9/9/24 10/9/24 URBAN HABITAT UH REQUEST TOW ELEVATIONS FOR WALLS. BKF PROVIDED TOW ELEVATIONS.

BKF - TOW was not included in grading plan and the 

requested location. BKF reviewed and provided wall 

elevations needed

30 9/11/24 9/12/24 URBAN HABITAT UH REQUEST FOR REVISED INV ELEV. FOR LANDSCAPE DRAIN. BKF PROVIDED REVISED INV ELEVATIONS. BKF - Reviewed inverts to provide downstream flow

35 10/14/24 10/15/24 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUEST FOR REVISED INV ELEV. FOR SD MANHOLE AND SD 

LINE.

BKF PROVIDED REVISED INV ELEVATIONS AND CLARIFICATION 

ON PIPE LAYOUT DESIGN.

IN SCOPE - revised storm drain invert based on 

existing conditions of existing sewer line.

36 10/21/24 10/25/24 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUEST FOR ELIMINATION OF A PORTION OF DOMESTIC 

WATER LINE BENEATH WALL E25. BKF APPROVES REQUEST.

IN SCOPE - reviewed UH request to modify design. 

No exception taken to requesteed adjustment

42 10/22/24 10/25/24 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUEST CLARIFICATION FOR INSTALLATION OF SD AND 

WALL DUE TO ELEV CONFLICTS. BKF PROVIDED DETAILS FOR SD INSTALLATION.

BKF - Revised storm drain routing per field conflicts 

with proposed wall footings

45 10/29/24 11/19/24 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUEST UPDATED DETAIL FOR HDPE TO RCP 

CONNECTION.

BKF PROVIDED CLARIFICATION ON INSTALLATION 

INSTRUCTIONS.

IN SCOPE - connection was adjusted based on 

existing conditions, provided alternate connection 

detail

48 10/31/24 11/3/24 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUEST NEW DETAIL OR DIMENSIONS TO CONSTRUCTION 

MH CONNECTION B/N 24" SD AND MH'S.

BKF PROVIDED ALTERNATIVE DETAIL AND CLARIFICATION FOR 

MH CONNECTION DESIGN.

IN SCOPE - Coordinated with Telacu to provide 

connection detail for manhole to be installed in lieu of 

junction structure

50 11/4/24 11/19/24 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUEST CLARIFICATION FOR INSTALLATION OF 24" SD PIPE 

AND MANHOLE. BKF PROVIDED DETAILS FOR PIPE AND MANHOLE CONNECTION.

IN SCOPE - field visit to review existing condition 

which differed from as-built information collected. 

Revised storm drain connections based on existing 

conditions.

50.1 11/25/24 12/5/24 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUEST UPDATED ELEVATIONS & LOCATION FOR 

MANHOLE. UH REQUEST DIRECTIONS ON HOW TO INSTALL 

MANHOLE AT CONNECTION.

BKF PROVIDED DETAILS FOR UPDATED ELEV. & LOCATION FOR 

MANHOLE AT CONNECTION. BKF PROVIDED DETAILS FOR 

INSTALLATION OF MH AT CONNECTION.

IN SCOPE - provided additional details requested by 

contractor for connection to existing manhole. Revised 

CAD files and shared with contractor to located 

revised connection based on field survey of existing 

line

52 11/12/24 11/19/24 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUEST CLARIFCATION FOR CONFLICTS WITH WALL AND 

SD.

BKF LOWERED SD LINE ELEVATIONS. BKF PROVIDED NEW WALL 

DETAIL. BKF PROVIDED CLARIFICATION ON WQMP PLAN 

VERSIONS.

IN SCOPE - UH flagged multiple areas where there 

were thought to be issues. BKF reviewed all areas 

noted in this initial RFI and found that many areas did 

not result in actual conflicts as noted by UH. One area 

where there was a conflict (Wall 20) was a result of 

staking the wall per an outdated sheet which had been 

revised and issued to the field. One SD line was 

adjusted to route under wall footing (Wall 13). Total 

time of effort alloted reduced to account for conflict not 

accounted for in BKF design.

- Items requiring clarification on
the civil drawings. BKF to absorb

- Items flagged as elevation issues caused by using
incorrect control. No issues found when RFI was reviewed



52.1 11/20/24 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUEST INSTRUCTIONS ON HOW TO PROCEED IN 

CONFLICT AREAS. BKF REVIEWED AREAS AND PROVIDED CLARIFICATIONS

IN SCOPE - BKF and Telacu reviewed additional 

areas flagged as concerns by UH and found that there 

were no conflicts. Two areas where there appeared to 

be conflicts were actually addresed by sleeving 

through the wall per the structural details

52.2 11/22/24 12/3/24 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUEST CLARIFICATION WITH ELEV CONFLICTS FOR 

WATERLINE. BKF PROVIDED CLARIFICATION ON PLANS.

IN SCOPE - UH requested rerouting to avoid crossing 

wall. Telacu reviewed and provided revised routing 

and BKF provided concurrence. 

52.3 12/3/24 12/10/24 URBAN HABITAT UH REQUEST UPDATED PLAN PAGE & CAD FILE. BKF PROVIDED REVISED PLANS.

IN SCOPE - UH required revised CAD files and 

drawings to show adjustments made after responses 

were issued to the field in the form of RFI responses. 

No formal plan revision was required.

52.5 12/17/24 12/18/24 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUEST DIRECTION ON LOCATION AND TYPE OF ANGLE 

REQUIRED TO AVOID DW LINE BEING ABOVE GRADE. BKF PROVIDED CLARIFICATION FOR DW LINE.

IN SCOPE - BKF reviewed area of concern and 

advised UH to install water line per standard depth of 

cover to avoid UH anticipated conflict

52.7 1/21/25 1/27/25 URBAN HABITAT UH REQUESTING TO MODIFY SD SUBDRAIN INSTALL BKF TAKES NO EXCEPTION TO PROPOSED ALTERNATIVE

IN SCOPE - BKF reviewed and concurs with UH's 

installation alternative proposed.

56 11/25/24 12/2/24 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUESTS CONFIRMATION TO INSTALL LANDSCAPE DRAIN 

OR CONNECTION TO RETAININING WALL SUBDRAIN. BKF PROVIDED CLARIFCATION FOR DRAIN ORIENTATION.

IN SCOPE - BKF provided clarification on design per 

UH request

57 11/25/24 12/3/24 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUESTS UPDATED DETAIL FOR NEW STORM DRAIN CATCH 

BASIN. BKF PROVIDED CLARIFCATION FOR CATCH BASIN DESIGN.

IN SCOPE - BKF coordinated with Telacu on catch 

basin issue as catch basin connection was already 

being made. Noted that existing catch basin was not 

able to be modified as needed. BKF reviewed and 

directed to install alternate shown on drawings.

57.1 12/17/24 12/17/24 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUEST CONFIRMATION TO USE DIFFERENT CATCH BASIN 

OR TO CONTINUE WITH CALTRANS STANDARD.

BKF TAKES NO EXCEPTION TO UH'S ATTACHED CATCH BASIN, 

CITY TO CONFIRM.

IN SCOPE - UH proposed alternate from what BKF 

instructred. BKF reviewed and takes no exception

68 12/19/24 12/31/24 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUEST CLARIFCATION FOR CONFLICTS WITH WALL 

INSTALLATION.

BKF FORWARDED TO LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. ALSO UH TO 

CONFIRM IF THERE IS A RESOLUTION BASED ON FIELD 

CONDITION.

IN SCOPE - Reviewed and directed contractor to DVD 

for final response.

79 2/13/25 2/13/25 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUEST CLARIFCATION FOR DEMO AT SIDEWALK 

CONFORM

BKF PROVIDED CORRECT DEMOLITION LIMITS WHICH INCLUDES 

THE AREA IDENTIFIED BY THE CONTRACTOR FOR DEMOLITION. BKF - Drawings did not accurately reflect demo limits.

83 2/12/25 URBAN HABITAT

UH REQUEST CLARIFCATION FOR CB LOCATED ADJACENT TO 

PROPOSED WALL PENDING

- Items requiring clarification on the civil drawings.
BKF to absorb.

- Items flagged as elevation issues caused by using
incorrect control. No issues found when RFI was reviewed



City of Brea

Finance Committee Communication

H. Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services

Meeting

Tuesday, June 10, 2025, 8:30 AM

Agenda Group

DISCUSSION Item: 3H.

TO

Finance Committee Members

FROM

Kristin Griffith, City Manager

RECOMMENDATION
Approve a Professional Services Agreement with PM AM Corporation to provide business and residential

alarm registration and false alarm incident management services; including billing services, permit

registration, and handling related correspondence with citizens and businesses.

 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
The current alarm permit and false alarm process is inefficient and labor intensive.  This process is

completed by a combination of Police Records and Finance staff.  The preferred option was to have the

process absorbed in full by Accounts Receivable; however after an evaluation in 2021 from the IT

department, this option was not available since there was no way to export the data from the Police

Department's Computer Aided Dispatch/Records Management System (CAD/RMS).  Also, due to logistics

and Department of Justice security policies, Finance staff can not have direct access to the system.  Police

Records still prepares a billing summary for Accounts Receivable.  Also, since the permit records are

maintained in the Police Department's Record Management System, Police Records issues the permits and

then transfers them to Accounts Receivable for future renewals.  The City requires all alarm users to obtain

an alarm permit according to City Ordinance Chapter 8.38 and the amendment to the original ordinance. 

There are currently 2,162 permits issued, and last fiscal year officers responded to 1,611 false alarm

calls.  The Police Department and Finance Department looked to see if outsourcing these processes would

be more efficient, while enhancing features for citizens and city businesses.  A Request for Proposal (RFP)

was opened on July 9, 2024, and produced three proposals.  During the review process, PM AM Corporation

was identified to most closely meet the needs of the Police and Finance departments in terms of the scope

of work.  Their services include a web based solution that allows citizens to access services from any

device, and false alarm reduction educational materials for residents and businesses.  Further, PM AM has a

pre-established interface with the Police Department's current CAD/RMS vendor due to having contracts

with other cities who use the same software.  PM AM Corporation would perform the following functions

and processes: 

Alarm Permitting and Renewal - track issue and expiration dates, send out renewal notices, process

payments, and monitor non compliance

False Alarm Tracking and Invoicing - track complete account history, send notifications and invoices,

process payments

Interfaces - export alarm incidents from the Police Department's CAD (Computer Aided Dispatch)

system

Hearing and Appeals Support - process appeals for false alarm fees, send follow up correspondence

after decision is made



Collections - collect payments and correspondence, provide monthly reports, issue payment to the

City, issue refunds, skip tracing

Reporting/Analytics - maintain over 100 reports for analytics and data management

Customer Service - maintain citizen self service web portal, corporate portal for businesses with

multiple locations, toll free customer service center

False Alarm Reduction Process - identify repetitive violators, provide educational material 

Marketing and Public Service Information - create a plan in conjunction with City staff to publicize the

alarm ordinance program through various processes

Data Security and Reliability - maintain disaster recovery plan, use established IT policies, processes,

and data security practices

 

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT

Pricing is via a revenue sharing plan.  The split of alarm fees collected is as follows:  City of Brea 74%, PM

AM Corporation, 26%.  There are no implementation, annual renewal or technical support fees. PM AM has

a proven track record of increased revenue.  PM AM deploys multiple time-proven internal processes to

identify non-compliant businesses/residents, and an engagement strategy that almost always results in

higher compliance (permitting), driving baseline revenue to grow substantially.  There will be staff time

savings of 18 hours a week in the Police Department and 20 hours per week in the Finance Department. 

 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
Kristin Griffith, City Manager

Prepared by:  Mary Logue, Police Records/Property & Evidence Supervisor

Concurrence by: Adam Hawley, Chief of Police

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Attachments

PM AM - RFP Response for Brea CA For Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and CollectionServices_Final.pdf
RFP 2024.07.09.01 Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services_clean.pdf
Addendum No. 1_RFP 2024.07.09.01_Final.pdf
PMAM Agreement Final 061725 (part 1) - signed.pdf
PMAM Agreement Final 061725 - audit.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6840e4984c1e31004debd452%2FPM%20AM%20-%20RFP%20Response%20for%20Brea%20CA%20For%20Police%20Alarm%20Permit%20and%20False%20Alarm%20Billing%20and%20Collection%20Services_Final.pdf?alt=media&token=acb0d132-a709-417d-a598-8e294c2bbd63
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6840e4984c1e31004debd452%2FPM%20AM%20-%20RFP%20Response%20for%20Brea%20CA%20For%20Police%20Alarm%20Permit%20and%20False%20Alarm%20Billing%20and%20Collection%20Services_Final.pdf?alt=media&token=acb0d132-a709-417d-a598-8e294c2bbd63
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6840e4984c1e31004debd452%2FPM%20AM%20-%20RFP%20Response%20for%20Brea%20CA%20For%20Police%20Alarm%20Permit%20and%20False%20Alarm%20Billing%20and%20Collection%20Services_Final.pdf?alt=media&token=acb0d132-a709-417d-a598-8e294c2bbd63
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6840e4984c1e31004debd452%2FPM%20AM%20-%20RFP%20Response%20for%20Brea%20CA%20For%20Police%20Alarm%20Permit%20and%20False%20Alarm%20Billing%20and%20Collection%20Services_Final.pdf?alt=media&token=acb0d132-a709-417d-a598-8e294c2bbd63
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6840e4984c1e31004debd452%2FRFP%202024.07.09.01%20Police%20Alarm%20Permit%20and%20False%20Alarm%20Billing%20and%20Collection%20Services_clean.pdf?alt=media&token=65514fc7-c171-4550-b663-2fbe948bb256
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6840e4984c1e31004debd452%2FRFP%202024.07.09.01%20Police%20Alarm%20Permit%20and%20False%20Alarm%20Billing%20and%20Collection%20Services_clean.pdf?alt=media&token=65514fc7-c171-4550-b663-2fbe948bb256
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6840e4984c1e31004debd452%2FRFP%202024.07.09.01%20Police%20Alarm%20Permit%20and%20False%20Alarm%20Billing%20and%20Collection%20Services_clean.pdf?alt=media&token=65514fc7-c171-4550-b663-2fbe948bb256
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6840e4984c1e31004debd452%2FAddendum%20No.%201_RFP%202024.07.09.01_Final.pdf?alt=media&token=67df95f6-7a25-42a6-acc9-bf6a6d6f593e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6840e4984c1e31004debd452%2FAddendum%20No.%201_RFP%202024.07.09.01_Final.pdf?alt=media&token=67df95f6-7a25-42a6-acc9-bf6a6d6f593e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6840e4984c1e31004debd452%2FAddendum%20No.%201_RFP%202024.07.09.01_Final.pdf?alt=media&token=67df95f6-7a25-42a6-acc9-bf6a6d6f593e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6840e4984c1e31004debd452%2FPMAM%20Agreement%20Final%20061725%20(part%201)%20-%20signed.pdf?alt=media&token=0853037c-3ae7-4006-b6e6-0721449dcd78
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6840e4984c1e31004debd452%2FPMAM%20Agreement%20Final%20061725%20(part%201)%20-%20signed.pdf?alt=media&token=0853037c-3ae7-4006-b6e6-0721449dcd78
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6840e4984c1e31004debd452%2FPMAM%20Agreement%20Final%20061725%20(part%201)%20-%20signed.pdf?alt=media&token=0853037c-3ae7-4006-b6e6-0721449dcd78
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6840e4984c1e31004debd452%2FPMAM%20Agreement%20Final%20061725%20-%20audit.pdf?alt=media&token=ced7bbde-6edb-4658-bed1-4aded484e29c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6840e4984c1e31004debd452%2FPMAM%20Agreement%20Final%20061725%20-%20audit.pdf?alt=media&token=ced7bbde-6edb-4658-bed1-4aded484e29c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/breaca%2Factions%2F6840e4984c1e31004debd452%2FPMAM%20Agreement%20Final%20061725%20-%20audit.pdf?alt=media&token=ced7bbde-6edb-4658-bed1-4aded484e29c


PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 1PM AM Responsee totooo RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Puuublblic Disclosure) 1

CITY OF BREA, CA

1 CIVIC CENTER CIRCLE
BREA, CA 92821

RREQUESTT FORR PROPOSALSS 
 

POLICEE ALARMM PERMITT AANDD FALSEE ALARMM 
BILLINGG ANDD COLLECTIOONN SERVICES 

PREPARED FOR:

PM AM CORPORATION
5430 LBJ FREEWAY, SUITE 370

DALLAS, TEXAS 75240
(972) 831-7400

www.pmam.com

PROVIDED BY:



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 
 

22  

COVER LETTER 
 

August 9th, 2024 
 

City of Brea, CA 
1 Civic Center Circle 
Brea, CA 92821 
 
For:  RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 

Request for Proposals - Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 
 
To Whom It May Concern, 

We, PM AM Corporation, are delighted to submit our response to the City of Brea’s (hereinafter 
the “City”) Request for Proposals (RFP No. 2024.07.09.01) to perform all work necessary and 
incidental to provide business and residential alarm registration and false alarm incident 
management services; including billing services, permit registration, and handling related 
correspondence with citizens and businesses.  

With pride, we present our experience in providing and managing similar programs nationwide, 
and we eagerly anticipate offering detailed insights into our existing footprint, cutting-edge 
technology, and "Best Practices" that will ensure the success of your false alarm program. 

As an industry leader, PM AM has consistently assisted municipal and county jurisdictions in 
achieving the following benefits: 

1. A significant reduction in false alarm calls. 
2. Increased revenue through the City’s alarm program. 
3. A robust and accessible service framework for the city and its citizens. 
4. The effective use of innovative technology and processes to achieve program goals. 

Within this proposal, we provide a comprehensive overview of PM AM's proprietary, 100% Cloud-
based technology, best practices, and a thoughtfully crafted approach to enable the City of Brea 
to achieve its alarm program objectives. PM AM is proud to offer the most comprehensive and 
distinctive solution for alarm administration and collection services. 

Presently, PM AM serves over 525 municipal and county jurisdictions and has contributed to the 
development of 140+ alarm ordinances, drafts, revisions, updates, and alarm policy changes. Our 
esteemed client portfolio includes jurisdictions of various sizes, such as City of Oakland, City of 
Dixon and City of Vacaville in California; Orlando, FL; Houston, TX; Irving, TX; and Large Canadian 
cities like Calgary and Edmonton over a million population. Our extensive presence both nationally 
and internationally establishes PM AM's commitment to delivering quality services. 

Our dedication to innovation has been unwavering. From introducing a 100% web-based alarm 
management solution in 2004 to launching mobile apps (FAMS-ALARM) for Apple and Android 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 
 

33  

devices in 2016, PM AM consistently invests in cutting-edge technologies for the benefit of our 
clients, differentiating us in the industry. 

Having thoroughly reviewed the City of Brea’s requirements, our technical team is confident in 
meeting the outlined program needs. We affirm our capability to handle all aspects of the False 
Alarm Management System and related managerial tasks. 

This proposal will remain valid for 90 calendar days from the date of the proposal opening. PM 
AM hereby assures that we have no conflicts of interest as a proposer. PM AM acknowledges that 
PM AM is capable of completing the Scope of Work, as well as, all reasonably associated 
managerial tasks.  

Primary Contact of PM AM Corporation for City of Brea: 
Name   :  James McReynolds 
Designation  :  Director of Sales 
Email Address  :  JamesM@PMAM.com 
Phone Number :  972-573-4824 

Furthermore, PM AM would like to mention that we use “Pitney Bowes Inc.” as a subcontractor to 
meet our mailing needs for 140+ cities using their Mail Stream on Demand solution. 

Pitney Bowes Inc. 
Mailing Address : 3001 Summer Street, Stamford, CT 06926 
Email   : judy.cardinale@pb.com 
Telephone  : 916-284-3650 

This is a special revenue-share service, that needs a contract to cover terms that are specific to 
this kind of services; a sample PM AM Service Agreement is being submitted for the City’s review 
and if awarded we will negotiate with good faith.  

We look forward to building a long-term working relationship with the city. 

Please, do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions regarding this response. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
Pankaj Kumar - Chief Executive Officer 
PM AM Corporation 
972-831-7401 - PankajK@pmam.com 
 
 

PM AM Corporation | 5430 LBJ Fwy, Suite 370, Dallas, TX, 75240 | www.pmam-copsource.com |  
Phone: 972-831-7404 | Email: pankajk@pmam.com  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 
 

44  

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE 
 
Kindly be informed that the present proposal, offering the requested services on behalf of the City 
of Brea, includes specific proprietary and confidential information belonging to PM AM 
Corporation. This information is being shared in utmost confidence, with the sole intention of 
enabling the City of Brea, along with its authorized employees, counsel, and representatives, to 
carefully assess and evaluate our proposal's suitability for acceptance. 
 
In the event that the City of Brea receives a request from a third party under the relevant open 
records act, freedom of information act, or similar statute or ordinance, seeking a copy of our 
proposal, we sincerely ask that the City abstains from disclosing it. Instead, we kindly urge the City 
to promptly notify Pankaj Kumar, the Chief Executive Officer of PM AM Corporation, at 
pankajk@pmam.com, about the request. This will enable us to respond appropriately and in a 
timely manner to such disclosure with the appropriate authority. Consequently, the authority can 
then assess whether our proposal, in its entirety or in part (with redactions, if necessary), should 
be disclosed to the requesting party. 
 
Regarding this matter, we wish to highlight that PM AM has acquired two opinions from a State's 
Attorney General. These opinions affirm that the disclosure of specific proprietary information, 
akin to the proprietary information presented in the following Proposal, is exempt from disclosure 
under Section 552.104(a) of the Texas Government Code. The exemption is based on the 
circumstances of those cases, as revealing such information would provide a competitive 
advantage to a competitor of PM AM. 
 

Thank you for your consideration of our proposal. 
© 2024. PM AM. All rights reserved. 

 
  

All PM AM documents 
included 

Trade Secret- Proprietary 
Information (Not for disclosure) 

 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

55  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
COVER LETTER 2 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE 4 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  5 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 8 

PROPOSED SOLUTION | SCOPE OF SERVICES 14 

FALSE ALARM MANAGEMENT SOLUTION OVERVIEW 23 

ALARM PERMITTING AND RENEWAL 23 
Permit Renewal 26 
Continually Updated Permitting Renewal Payment Information 26 
Additional Permitting Processes 26 

FALSE ALARM TRACKING AND INVOICING 27 
INTERFACES 29 
HEARING AND APPEALS SUPPORT 30 
COLLECTIONS 32 

Collection of Funds 33 
Collections Processing 34 
Meeting Collection Goals 35 
Collection Business Processes | Workflow 35 
Increased City Alarm Program Margins 36 

REPORTING 37 
Reporting and Data Management 37 
Dashboards and Analytics Reports 43 

CUSTOMER SERVICE 43 
Citizen Self- Service Web Portal 43 
Security Companies Self Service Web Portal 45 
Corporate Portal for Multiple Accounts 45 
Mobile Strategy 46 
Customer Service Center 46 
Citizen Service Representative Team 47 
Utilizing FAMS to Create a Superior Customer Experience 48 
Customer Care Call Center 49 
Customer Representative Service Philosophy 50 

FALSE ALARM REDUCTION PROCESSES 51 
Repetitive False Alarm Violators Identification 52 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

66  

Educational Material 52 
Online False Alarm Academy 52 

MARKETING AND PUBLIC SERVICE INFORMATION 53 
Public Relations 53 

DATA SECURITY | RELIABILITY 56 
Maintenance Agreements and Requirements 56 
Disaster Recovery Plan 56 
Data Back-up and Storage 57 
IT Policies, Processes and Systems 57 
Data Security Practices 58 
PM AM IT Processes 59 
Change Management and Product Enhancements 61 

IMPLEMENTATION PLANNING | TIMELINE 62 

STAFF TO BE ASSIGNED 64 

KEY PERSONNEL COMMITTED TO PROJECT 66 

FIRM PROFILE, QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 70 

AWARDS AND CERTIFICATIONS 72 
VALUE ADD FEATURES AND SERVICES 74 

State Of The Art Call Centers | Protection Against Disasters 74 
PM AM Advantages 75 

PM AM CUSTOMER PROFILE | EXPERIENCES 78 
FAMS Customer Success – Oakland Police Department, CA 79 
FAMS Customer Success – City of Houston, TX ARA Department 80 

CLIENT REFERENCES 81 

PRICING 82 

STANDARD FORM A - NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT FORM 84 

STANDARD FORM B - REFERENCES FORM 86 

STANDARD FORM C - SUBCONTRACTORS LIST-STANDARD FORM 88 

STANDARD FORM D - STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE OR EXCEPTIONS FORM 90 

STANDARD FORM E - STATUS OF PAST AND PRESENT CONTRACTS FORM 95 

STANDARD FORM F - INSURANCE COMMITMENT FORM 97 

STANDARD FORM G - PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS RESPONSE FORM 99 

STANDARD FORM H - FIRM PROPOSAL FORM 102 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

77  

STANDARD FORM I - PRICE FORM 104 

SAMPLE PM AM SERVICE AGREEMENT TEMPLATE 106 

 

  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

88  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

PM AM has provided software solution that is being deployed for 140+ cities in last 20 years and as 
stated, we have provided effective turnkey and services for alarm billing and tracking with excellent 
customer service and administered alarm ordinances resulting false alarm reduction. Our solution 
includes billing for fees and all mailings generated from ordinance, false alarm processing, 
coordination with alarm companies, hearing, and appeals support, reporting and a lot more that 
fulfills complete alarm ordinance of the City of Brea. 
 
As is all too common with many Cities and Counties throughout the United States, excessive false 
alarm occurrences rob the city of valuable law enforcement resources along with taxpayer dollars if 
not addressed. 

 
PM AM initially launched a web-based solution in 2004 and has advanced to now rolling out digital 
initiatives in 2020/2021 that make PM AM FAMS both device and platform-independent. Now, 
citizens, businesses, and City officials can access services from any device, whether it is a smartphone, 
laptop, or iPad. Citizens can now apply for a permit, make payments, update contact information etc. 
through the City’s website maintained by PM AM or through their personal social media (e.g., 
Facebook) where they are not required to remember any URLs/website addresses. 
 
PM AM's 20-year journey with FAMS reflects its commitment to aligning with user behavior and 
adopting cutting-edge technological solutions to benefit cities and their residents, with a focus on 
reducing false alarms and enhancing ordinance compliance. PM AM has developed its solution from 
the ground up, avoiding patchwork integration with unrelated off-the-shelf programs like 
Salesforce.com. This unique approach sets PM AM apart in the marketplace. 
 
The company remains dedicated to achieving industry certifications, ensuring that its procedures, 
protocols, and personnel supporting the FAMS platform are up-to-date and in line with industry-wide 
"Best Practices." PM AM boasts numerous awards and certifications, including the prestigious "CJIS 
Ready" (Criminal Justice Information Services) Certification, of which they are exceptionally 
proud. 
 
While the FAMS solution may appear straightforward, PM AM has implemented over 100 different 
real-time, data-driven reporting functions in response to the requests of their partner cities and 
counties. PM AM values its user community's input and consistently tailors its program to effectively 
reduce false alarms and boost revenue. The strong relationship between PM AM and its user 
community is founded on the principle that innovations are promptly integrated into FAMS, provided 
at no extra cost to customers. 
 
PM AM has developed several unique processes that could warrant patents, but the company's 
commitment to technological innovation often renders the need for patents unnecessary. Instead, 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

99  

they have consciously chosen not to file for patents to avoid offering solutions that have remained 
unchanged for a decade or more. 

In this section, we wish to state and demonstrate with examples of how PM AM’s dollars are invested 
in continuous improvements/ innovations that result in achieving four key result areas that our partner 
community places a significant importance to: 

  
FALSE ALARM REDUCTION  

- through education and awareness 
HIGHER COLLECTION RATES  
- through ultra-modern skip  

tracking techniques 
 

   

 
 

REVENUE GROWTH  
- through state-of-the-art collection  

compliance techniques 
 

CITY PERSONNEL 
- personnel involvement 

 
False Alarm Reduction: 
 
FAMSTM | False Alarm Reduction 
 
PM AM currently manages alarm programs in over 140 cities and has witnessed a substantial year-
to-year decrease in false alarm calls. This reduction helps eliminate inefficiencies linked to false alarms 
and encourages both alarm companies and users to maintain operational reliability and utilize alarm 
systems properly, thereby reducing false alarm dispatch requests. 
 
The reduction of false alarms is a crucial objective for each of PM AM's partner cities. PM AM has 
dedicated a substantial pool of resources, including manpower and educational methods, to engage 
with those repeatedly responsible for false alarms, whether they are businesses or residents. While 
the initial results in the first month may not always be promising, our consistent outreach efforts over 
an extended period of 12 to 18 months have shown significant progress in raising awareness among 
repeat violators. Often, they are able to identify and rectify the causes of false alarm calls with our 
guidance. PM AM's personnel provide continuous support to these repeat violators throughout the 
process. You can find a detailed description of our engagement strategy in the "False Alarm Reduction 
Processes" section of this RFP response. 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

110  

Below are a few examples of similar size cities and counties as City of Brea that through our consistent 
outreach engagement model have resulted in false alarm reduction that usually is the priority for our 
partner cities. 
  

CITY NAMES 

 
FALSE ALARMS 
DURING FIRST  
YEAR OF 
IMPLEMENTATION 
 

FALSE ALARMS 
COUNT FIVE 
YEARS INTO 
PROGRAM 

% FALSE ALARMS 
REDUCTION 

Miami Shores, FL 991 443 55% 

Hialeah, FL 8,861 4,110 54% 
Rowlett, TX 2,140 1,075 50% 

Cobb County, GA 16,124 8,043 51% 

Palatka, FL 1,103 671 39% 
 
Higher Collection Rates: PM AM usually targets up to 85%+ collections and in most cases, it is 
successful in collecting 90% plus. This higher collection rate is attributed to a workflow that is 
proprietary to PM AM. These sophisticated collection methods that analyze the payment trends and 
the preferred payment platforms used by the citizens to make payments help PM AM’s CSR’s in 
outreach to citizens with unpaid invoices. We have compared this proprietary workflow outreach 
methods with the typical conventional outreach efforts of others and our findings are that our 
collection rate is 10% to 12% higher using the proprietary workflow. 
 
Revenue Growth: In almost 100% of cases, PM AM achieves increased baseline revenue when it takes 
charge of a cities’ alarm program. While it grows baseline revenue, PM AM always faces the hurdle of 
reduced false alarms, which results in reduced billing and collections for the false alarms, which were 
eliminated through PM AM’s false alarm reduction approaches. PM AM deploys multiple time-proven 
internal processes to identify non-compliant businesses/residents and an engagement strategy that 
almost always results in higher compliance (permitting), driving baseline revenue to grow substantially 
for our partner cities. These strategies are discussed in detail in later parts of this RFP response.  
 
FAMSTM | Revenue 
 
PM AM is able to increase the revenue for the cities in spite of the fact that there has been a consistent 
reduction in false alarms. PM AM has efficient collection rates in the 90% range that have significantly 
helped cities have poor collection rates. 
 
Below examples illustrate where unique FAMS techniques resulted in higher revenue growth. In some 
cases, PM AM’s initial share is “paid for” by this increase in revenue, making PM AM services free from 
second year onward. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

111  

 

 
City - Personnel involvement: The FAMS portal ensures easy access and engagement for all 
stakeholders, with our CSRs available in two call centers, Dallas and Houston, providing 
comprehensive support at every step. The seamless integration of technology, processes, and human 
interaction leads to higher customer satisfaction while minimizing the time cities need to dedicate to 
alarm management activities. 

Furthermore, we have been presented with 14 opportunities to introduce the FAMS solution to the 
following municipalities, all of whom were previously using our competitor's product: 
 

CITY NAMES 

 
REVENUE DURING 
FIRST YEAR OF 
IMPLEMENTATION 

REVENUE FOR 
YEAR 2022 

% REVENUE 
INCREASE 

Middle Township, NJ $ 30,995 $         43,114.01 39% 

Rialto, CA $ 56,906.56 $      135,811.80 139% 
San Marcos, TX $ 30,290 $         81,288.80 168% 
Long Beach, NY $ 42,100 $         69,650.79 65% 

Richardson, TX $ 191,175 $       305,285.95 60% 

Houston, TX $ 6,400,000 $  11,100,963.03 73% 

Little Elm, TX $ 37,729 $        79,869.90 112% 

Lincoln, CA $ 30,765 $       52,747.27 71% 

11   PEMBROKE PINES, FL 88  SUFFOLK, CA 

22   COBB COUNTY, GA 99  COLUMBUS, OH 

33   DURHAM, NC 110  IRVING, TX* 

44    NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FL       111  ROSEVILLE, CA* 

55    DOUGLAS COUNTY, CO   12  ARCADIA, CA* 

6   HIGHLAND VILLAGE, TX  13  TOMS RIVER, NJ* 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

112  

 
These agencies were utilizing the services of our competitors, APS / City Support, or CentralSquare 
Technologies’ CryWolf, for their alarm management needs. However, they expressed interest in 
exploring other available alarm management offerings in the market. This presented an excellent 
opportunity for PM AM to present our solution. 
 
While most of these agencies were content with their current vendors, they were impressed by PM 
AM's distinct approach to customer service and our innovative technology solutions. During the 
comparison between both solutions, it became evident to them the advantages they could gain from 
PM AM's processes in achieving their key goals. As a result, all 14 agencies made the decision to 
switch their alarm program management to PM AM Corporation. Notably, several of these 
accounts have been loyal PM AM customers for multiple years since making the switch. 

 
In summary, PM AM would like to offer…  

Because of the broad experience PM AM has gained working with some the more demanding 
municipal environments in the nation, along with our commitment to being the industry’s innovation 
leader… 

We firmly believe that PM AM is in a unique position to continue to provide unparalleled 
technological innovations and managed services in support of the City’s current and any new 
alarm ordinance revisions for the next several years to come. 

 

This complete section fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and 
Specifications Requirements - Scope of Work - V. Customer Service – d” of by the City. 

77    DAVIE, FL   14  HUNTSVILLE, TX 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

113  

 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

114  

PROPOSED SOLUTION | SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

After a comprehensive assessment of the City of Brea’s requirements, our technical team is confident 
in our ability to fulfill the specified program requirements. We confirm our competence in managing 
all aspects of the False Alarm Management System, including associated administrative 
responsibilities. 
 
 

Police Alarm Permit And False Alarm Billing Services 

Sr. 
No. Scope Of Services 

RFP 
Reference  

Page 

Available In The 
Proposed FAMS 

Solution 
I. Online Permit Tracking 

a. The Proposer shall be responsible for working with 
residential and commercial alarm companies to 
ensure that existing and new alarm subscribers 
acquire a police alarm permit annually. 

36 Yes 

b. The Proposer shall be responsible for issuing notices 
to alarm subscribers when there is evidence that an 
alarm-subscriber has failed to secure the required 
permit for an alarm system. 

36 Yes 

c. The Proposer shall be responsible for providing 
information on a frequency to be determined 
including, but not limited to, the first and last name 
of the alarm subscriber, permit type (residential 
versus business) and address of the property where 
the required permit has not been obtained. 

37 Yes 

d. The Proposer shall be responsible for the billing and 
collection of any fees associated with the failure of the 
alarm subscriber to secure a police alarm permit. 

37 Yes 

e. The Proposer shall provide the City online, web-based 
access to the data associated with permits for audit 
and ad-hoc reporting purposes. System access by City 
staff shall not be limited to less than 5 users. 

37 Yes 

f. The Proposer shall provide the ability to register 
police alarm systems and obtain alarm permits by 
connecting to an Internet-based portal integrated 
with the City of Brea existing website. 

37 Yes 

g. The Proposer must describe any features or services 
provided to create an initial permitting database. 

37 Yes 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

115  

II. Billing 
a. The Proposer system must interface and receive a 

daily data set from the intermediary server that 
identifies false alarm events for the previous calendar 
date. This process shall be automatic and not require 
City staff intervention. 

37 Yes 

b. The Proposer shall be responsible for producing bills 
on a frequency specified by the City (daily/weekly) to 
businesses and residents who owe a false alarm 
service fee based on a fee structure articulated by City 
Ordinances and Resolutions. 

37 Yes 

c. Flexibility shall be inherent in the Proposer’s system 
should the false alarm fee structure change with 
future fee updates. 

37 Yes 

d. The Proposer shall provide a local or toll-free phone 
number to assist citizens and businesses and answer 
questions as to the administration and billing of this 
program. Customer service shall be available at 
minimum 8:00am to 5:00pm, Monday through Friday, 
PST. If Proposer offers different language services, 
please include within proposal. 

37 Yes 

e. The Proposer shall provide a secure and user-friendly 
online system for customer bill payment and 
provisions for those without internet access. The 
online payment process should be PCI-compliant. 

37 Yes 

f. The Proposer shall provide the City with all available 
payment options that will be provided to the 
customer (i.e. Check, EFT, Visa, Mastercard, Discover, 
American Express, ApplePay, Venmo, etc.). 

37 Yes *1 

 *1 - We currently do not support American Express, ApplePay, and Venmo as payment
methods. 

g. Monthly payment reconciliation data must be 
provided by the Proposer so they can be accounted 
for within the City’s financial system. 

37 Yes 

III. Collections 
a. The Proposer shall be responsible for the collection 

of all fees. All fees collected shall be deposited in an 
account controlled by the Proposer. Deposits shall be 
disbursed at least monthly based on their respective 
percentages of the revenues collected as provided by 
the contract between the City and the Proposer. At 
minimum, the reconciliation of payment information 
must be provided in electronic format to the City and 

37 Yes 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

116  

include the breakdown of payment methods and the 
daily quantity of permits collected that correspond 
the amount being reported. 

b. To enhance the public convenience and program 
perception, it is preferred that the Proposer provide 
a nearby program mailing address and mail-in 
payment processing. 

38 Yes 

c. The Proposer shall be responsible for seeking 
collections from delinquent and/or uncollectible 
accounts and shall receive a percentage of the 
delinquent revenue as provided by the contract 
between the City and the Proposer. 

38 Yes 

d. The Proposer shall be responsible for providing 
information on a frequency to be determined that 
includes the name of the alarm-subscriber, permit 
number and address of the property where false 
alarm service fees are delinquent. 

38 Yes 

e. The Proposer shall provide the City online web-based 
access to the data associated with collections for 
audit and ad-hoc reporting purposes. The City 
requires that the database utilized falls within City IT 
standards. 

38 Yes 

f. The Proposer shall support the 
billing/suspension/revocation appeals process. 

38 Yes 

g. The Proposer will provide the City access to the data 
associated with collections for audit and ad-hoc 
reporting purposes. System access by City staff shall 
not be limited to less than 5 users. 

38 Yes 

h. The Proposer shall obtain, at its own expense, regular, 
independently certified (i.e., SSAE16, SOC 1) audits of 
internal financial controls, data security, and alarm 
management services. The reports on such audits 
shall be shared with the City. 

38 Yes 

IV. Interface with Computer-Aided Dispatch Intermediary Server 
a. To minimize technical issues related to the sharing of 

alarm data, short-listed Proposers must be able to 
show the successful implementation of an automated 
alarm permit interface with a one-way directional 
flow of alarm incident data from the intermediary 
server to the Proposer’s proposed system and alarm 
permit data from the proposed system to the CAD. 
Proposer must provide three references of agencies 
utilizing a one-way directional intermediary server 

38 Yes 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

117  

interface with which they contract. The City’s 
intermediary server is a Windows 2019 Standard, SQL 
2014 Management Studio. All data is replicated from 
the City’s FlexRMS tables. The interface must run as a 
service. 

b. Transferred permit data should include at least 
permit status, permit number, emergency contacts, 
and site condition information. 

38 Yes 

c. The Proposer shall also provide proof and references 
demonstrating successful program use with other 
jurisdictions comparable to the City that use a 
different CAD system. 

38 Yes 

d. The Proposer shall provide gratis system 
enhancements as they become available and backup 
system/disaster recovery functions. 

38 Yes 

e. Should the Proposer be selected for the contract but 
fail to provide and maintain a database capable of 
sharing bi-directional information with the current 
CAD or other CAD Contractors, as it may be 
upgraded, changed, or modified over time, it shall be 
considered a material breach of contract and grounds 
for immediate termination of Contractors contract. 

38 Yes 

V. Customer Service 
a. The Proposer shall provide an internet-based portal 

which will give public interactivity for purposes of 
education, registration, and support services, as well 
as an automated or personnel-staffed telephone 
system with similar attributes for those needing alarm 
program services, but without internet access. 

39 Yes 

b. The Proposer will develop written educational 
materials for citizens and businesses, coordinate a 
public education notification plan and provide alarm 
user training and education via the Internet and other 
methods for those without computer access. 

39 Yes 

c. The Proposer shall provide the City current online 
access to the alarm program data with the ability to 
search accounts by multiple search criteria, view 
supporting documents such as letters and invoices, 
generate management reports, and create ad-hoc 
(custom) reports where the custom report template 
can be saved and re-generated on demand. System 
access by City staff shall not be limited to less than 5 
users. 

39 Yes 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

118  

d. The Proposer shall have a track record demonstrating 
experience and expertise in advising residents and 
businesses on alarm ordinance provisions. 

39 Yes 

VI. Data Security and Reliability 
a. The Proposer shall ensure the security and reliability 

of the City’s public safety data maintained by the 
Proposer. Please describe the policies, processes, and 
systems the Proposer has in place to protect the data. 

39 Yes 

b. Proposer shall provide information as to where the 
data collected from the City is stored. 

39 Yes 

c. The Proposer shall follow generally accepted 
practices for ensuring that its alarm management 
services are provided with adequate internal controls. 
Please describe these practices. 

39 Yes 

d. The Proposer shall provide gratis System 
enhancements as they become available and backup 
system/disaster recovery functions. 

39 Yes 

e. Proof of PCI DSS compliance. 39 Yes 
f. A functional explanation of the electronic payment 

process between the alarm system subscriber, the 
City, and the Proposer’s system, including details on 
procedures and processes relating to typical payment 
transactions, reversals, payment refunds, and how 
funds are transmitted to the designated City bank 
account including any/all costs involved. 

39 Yes 

g. A schedule or fee structure for all customer 
transaction costs. 

39 Yes 

VII. Reporting 
a. Provide a complete list and sample of reports 

available online to the City. 
39 Yes 

b. Provide an audit trail of all system transactions and 
histories. 

39 Yes 

c. Provide a monthly reconciliation and any supporting 
documentation the City will receive monthly before 
approving the monthly invoice from the Proposer. 

40 Yes 

d. Provide an account history that is accessible by the 
City online. 

40 Yes 

e. Provide any features and functions available for 
printing and saving the reports available to the City 
online. 

40 Yes 

f. If available, provide average violation billing time, 
average call wait time, average number of calls 
processed per hour by customer service 

40 Yes 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

119  

representatives, and percentage of calls/issues 
resolved in one phone call. 

g. Describe any additional features and capabilities of 
the online reporting function the City will have access 
to through the program web portal. 

40 Yes 

h. The City reserves the opportunity to review all 
required online reports and website performance 
with the Proposer upon request. 

40 Yes 

VIII. Cost Proposal 
i. The Proposer shall provide pricing options whether 

the City absorbs all or a portion of banking fees or if 
the customer will pay the associated banking fees or 
a convenience fee. 

40 See Page 82 

j. The Proposer shall quote on whether fees are based 
upon a percentage or a per processed permit fee or 
a combination of both. 

40 See Page 82 

k. The Proposer shall state implicitly whether banking 
fees are included in the fees paid the Proposer or if 
they are paid separately. 

40 See Page 82 

 
 Permitting  

PM AM’s False Alarm Management System (FAMS) solution is the only 
100% web-based solution available in the alarm management industry. 
FAMS supports the permitting process for the citizens choosing to apply 
for a permit proactively as well as built-in innovative processes to identify 
non-compliant locations: 
 

 Identify locations with False alarm but that are non-permitted 
 Engage with alarm companies to identify non-permitted locations 

based on the alarm company subscriber listings 
 
FAMS provides multiple ways to your citizens to apply for a permit: 
 

 Traditional mail-in application process 
 Interactive self-service web portal application 
 iPhone and Android app to apply for a permit 

 
Alarm Tracking and Billing 
FAMS imports the alarm incident dataset from the City’s CAD/RMS and 
generates notifications, invoices etc. on a configurable frequency, as 
needed by the city.  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

220  

 
FAMS also tracks the registered and unregistered locations and has a 
business-rule-based billing criterion which can be easily modified to 
accommodate the City of Brea’s business rules. FAMS maintains a table of 
incidents and corresponding charges to generate invoices, notices etc. 
This ensures quick and error-free invoices are received by your citizens. 
 

  
  
  
  
  
 

  

Hearing and Appeals Support 
FAMS, a 100% web-based solution store, updates and maintains the 
complete documentation required for appeal hearings. This allows cities to 
conduct appeal hearings in-person or via mail. 
 
FAMS intuitive appeals module provides the flexibility to the hearing 
officers to review the information in real-time, from the office or while 
using a mobile device. This enables them to make informed decisions in a 
timely manner. 
 

 Collections 
PM AM offers multiple payment options to your citizens: 

 Checks or money-orders 
 Pay with Customer service via phone 
 On-line, via self-service web portal 
 Via iPhone/Android app 
 Via Interactive Voice Response (IVR) over the weekends 

 
PM AM maintains robust data and financial controls for safe and reliable 
administration of the alarm program. PM AM is SSAE-16, SOC I certified 
through BDO USA, LLP. All online payments are made in compliance with 
PCI guidelines. 
 
FAMS has integrated billing and accounting software. Unlike working 
with external accounting applications like Quick Books, all billing, 
collections, account receivables are part of our 100% web-based system. 
As such, city personnel are provided with online real-time access to view 
all account statuses, at any time. This integrated approach saves time and 
money and improves data accuracy since all the information is integrated 
as part of one system. 
 
Our solution is capable of collecting and reporting cash, credit cards, and 
check payments through Payment Gateway integration with your 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 221 

processor. The reports detail the location and person who received the
payment, including full reconciliation details.

Collection efforts are maximized utilizing a scientific process called trend
analysis. Trend analysis reports give collection specialists detailed
knowledge to setup and execute debtor callback patterns using a
scientific process that generates a call list, which PM AM personnel use
for collection efforts.

Interfaces

CAD Interface

PM AM realizes the significance the City of Brea places on CAD and its vital 
importance in providing the alarm data to FAMS and receiving Permit 
information back if required. PM AM has worked for the past 15 years to 
develop robust integration processes that constantly work with a large 
number of CAD system. 

PM AM has accomplished this data exchange with the CAD vendor’s 
cooperation and without the CAD vendor’s active participation where cities 
directed us to do so on our own initiative. Out of 100+ clients that PM AM 
serves, it is only 5% places where CAD vendors provided the interfaces, in 
other 95% cases, PM AM built the data exchange routine on its own with 
City’s help.

PM AM would like to assure City of Brea’s officials that PM AM has not 
missed or been delayed on a single implementation due to a lack of CAD 
data exchange and it would not be the case with the City of Brea.

Citizen Self- Service Web Portal and Customer Service
FAMS offers a reputable citizen self-service portal accessible from the city’s 
website 24/7 allowing your citizens to apply for permits, pay fees and fines, 
and update contact information in real-time. The portal provides an un-
matched citizen experience by providing video demonstrations of the 
important functionalities to first-time visitors. More importantly, the self-
service portal provides educational content focused on false alarm 
reduction coupled with the false alarm academy.



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

222  

 
 

PM AM has a dedicated staff of multiple customer support representatives, 
coupled with best practices and advanced call center technology to 
provide superior customer service to your citizens. The customer support 
representatives undergo extensive training and coaching to answer 
questions related to the ordinance, invoices, false alarm reduction 
initiatives, etc. 
 
Reporting 
The City of Brea will have complete insight into all functions of False Alarm 
Management Services on a real-time basis through various reports and 
queries. FAMS has more than 100 reports that can be generated based on 
variable parameters. Most of these reports can be exported in PDF or 
Microsoft Excel. Such reports are very helpful for the  City of Brea’s Police, 
Finance and other officials to review progress of the program.  
 
By specific design, the City will witness a program where all information is 
readily available, independent of any need to engage PM AM’s award-
winning support staff. 
 

 Citizen Education 
PM AM offers several features like a proprietary educational CD, online 
academy, bill inserts, high violator’s identification, etc. at no additional cost 
to the City of Brea, which helps in engaging citizens and provides them 
important information to reduce false alarms and increase ordinance 
compliance. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

223  

FALSE ALARM MANAGEMENT SOLUTION OVERVIEW 
 

After a thorough analysis of the City’s specific false alarm reduction program requirements and 
objectives as listed in Bid’s “Standard Requirements of Technical Proposal,” the PM AM FAMS 100% 
web-based solution will be comprised of 10 core processes to deliver upon the City’s program 
expectations. 
 
PM AM will perform the following functions and processes as outlined in the RFP: 
 

1 Alarm Permitting and Renewal 6       Reporting | Analytics 

2 False Alarm Tracking And Invoicing 7       Customer Service 

3 Interfaces 8       False Alarm Reduction 
      Processes   

4 Hearing and Appeals Support 9       Marketing and Public Service 
      Information 

5  Collections 10       Data Security and Reliability 

 
These all functions fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and 

Specifications Requirements - Scope of Work” of by the City. 
 
 ALARM PERMITTING AND RENEWAL 

 
 PM AM maintains the alarm permit database for the City in real time. Citizens and businesses can 

apply online for permit registration or can use traditional paper applications. PM AM will continue 
to use the current numbering system to issue permits. 
 
FAMS customer service staff are always available during business hours to handle questions and 
provide assistance to your citizens/businesses. Messages left after hours are returned the next 
business day. Our Customer Service Specialists are trained to provide step-by-step guidance to 
callers regarding completing the permit application. This service is available in English, Spanish 
and 175 plus other languages as required by the caller. 
 
PM AM’s document specialist will review the existing alarm permit registration form and work 
with the City’s alarm administrator to finalize the permit registration form that incorporates the 
requirements of the City’s ordinance and the best practices that PM AM suggests, this results in 
City officials having the accurate and complete information about the permit location that is 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

224  

readily available to dispatch, police officers, fire responders, emergency personnel, alarm 
administrator and PM AM CSR. 
 
All the addresses that are entered into FAMS, whether online or by PM AM’s back-office data 
entry team, are first verified with the City’s GIS database before a permit is created. This process 
ensures that the permitting and alarm management service is offered to only City residents. PM 
AM has followed this process since 2004 and has been successful in eliminating the problem for 
the residents who do not live in the City limits who, for some reason, apply for a permit, and on 
an occurrence of an alarm do not get a police or fire response and later try to create problems 
for the City for issuing the permit and failing to respond. It is PM AM’s commitment to follow 
100% accurate information with complete transparency and full access to the City officials. 
 
PM AM’s proven web-based citizen self-service portal is integrated with the City’s existing 
website striving to create a safe, transparent, and risk-free environment for the City’s community. 
The citizen portal is designed to make the alarm permit application process easy and accurate. 
The application module is designed to capture all relevant citizen and alarm company data 
proven to be necessary to support a successful alarm program through the use of pre-requisite 
fields along with address validation of the alarm site. All data is presented to the citizen for review 
prior submission. This process ensures that all information submitted in the permit application is 
complete and accurate.  

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - I. Online Permit Tracking – f” of by the City. 

Immediately upon logging on to the City website, your citizens are provided with a video 
demonstration to complete the permit application. Your citizens are confident in completing this 
process after learning the step-by-step instructions provided in the video demonstration. This 
sophisticated web-portal informs your citizens regarding the receipt of application and notifies 
them of the acceptance/denial of the application. Your citizens discover that in just a few minutes, 
the permit is applied, with a permit copy emailed to them. PM AM has invested a great deal of 
time, money and resources in maturing these sophisticated processes. These processes ensure 
that all information is cross-referenced and verified and is 100% accurate and up to date. PM AM 
references City databases like GIS, utilities etc. to enforce the accuracy of the information. Our 
partner cities and counties constantly express the positive feedback they receive from their 
citizens and staff.  

Once a permit is registered in FAMS database, then all subsequent alarms that happen at the 
permit location are assigned to the permit. City staff and PM AM staff are able to see the permit 
status, invoices, payments, and all past incidents including the number of incidents in the last 12 
months in real-time. FAMS maintains the original registration issue date, date of each false alarm 
including incident count (true/false), historical information on registration issuance and current 
registration status (active, expired, suspended, no-response etc.) information on real time basis. 
Your citizens, City’s alarm administrator and PM AM’s CSR, all have the ability to maintain the key 
holder information in real time through FAMS administrative and citizen portal. PM AM will 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

225  

continue to conduct all aspects of alarm permitting including but not limited to registration, 
annual updates and maintaining the alarm permit status. 
 
FAMS maintains the following required information for the permits: 

 Permit Number 
 Permit Issue date | Expiration/Renewal date. 
 Permit name, alarm site address with apt/suite #, phone number, and email address of 

the person responsible for proper maintenance. 
 Type of property (residential | commercial | exempt). 
 Permit Type: Permit Holder | non-permit holder 
 Permit Status: Active | Inactive | Cancelled | Suspended etc. 
 Billing name, address and contact information (if different). 
 Holder name, address and contact information (if different). 
 Name, address and contact information for the alarm company responsible for installing 

the alarm system. 
 Name, address and contact information for the alarm company responsible for 

maintaining/ monitoring the alarm system 
 Type of alarm system 
 Date of installation 
 Names and phone numbers for four contact persons. 
 Date of 1st and subsequent suspensions 
 Date of reinstatement etc. 

 
FAMS provides an online fully web-based portal with unlimited simultaneous access to the City 
staff, dispatchers and officers allowing them to search or cross reference permit information by 
multiple partial, wild card and ASCII search options including but not limited to permit holder 
name, address and three other search criterion to view the account history and other alarm 
enforcement actions. This portal further allows the City staff to review and audit all data 
associated with the permits and run ad hoc reports as needed. 
 
Since FAMS is 100% web based, the City officials, including the alarm administrator, will continue 
to have full privileges and complete access to FAMS in real time including local access to make 
any changes like billing address update, name and phone number of the emergency contact etc. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - I. Online Permit Tracking – e” of by the City. 

FAMS can interact with various Computer-Aided Dispatch (CAD) Systems, enabling the transfer 
of necessary alarm permit information to the City's dedicated FTP location in a plain text CSV 
format. This information encompasses details such as the Permit Number, Permit Name, Alarm 
Site Address, Permit Status, Issue and Expiry Dates, Special Conditions, Pet Information, among 
others , in alignment with the agreements established with the City's CAD systems. We have 
successfully integrated our system with several CAD platforms, including Motorola’s PremierOne 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

226  

CAD, utilized by agencies like Jacksonville Sheriff’s Department in Florida and in Coppell, Texas, 
as well as the Central Square One Solution, adopted by Midland, Texas, and Suffolk, Virginia. 
 

Permit Renewal 
 
PM AM’s FAMS has a business rules-based, automatic billing process; this eliminates errors and 
provides accurate information. PM AM has several reports that are executed by the Customer 
Service Billing Specialist to ensure all permit renewal notifications have been processed. As 
required by the City’s Alarm Ordinance, FAMS has detailed and well-defined processes to 
generate letters, invoices and electronic notifications to residences and businesses on the City’s 
letterhead. The content for invoices, correspondence etc. has been approved by the City during 
the implementation phase and can be revised by the City at any time at no cost.  
 
FAMS permitting and permit renewal processes include: 

 Monitoring the issue date and expiration date of permits, thus identifying the permits due 
to expire in at least 30 days. 

 Permits requiring renewal in the upcoming month are automatically generated and a 
permit renewal notice is sent. This provides the permit holder with sufficient time to 
always remain compliant with the City’s Ordinance. 

 FAMS utilizes business rules to send non-compliant notices and permit applications to all 
alarm holders that have reported false alarm incidents but do not have a valid alarm 
permit. Your citizens thus apply for the permit, which results in additional revenue 
rightfully due to the City, as well as up to date key holder information to dispatch and 
police officers. 

 If residents and businesses do not complete alarm permits after receiving the non-
compliant notice, FAMS automatically generates a report for PM AM processes to engage 
these non-compliant citizens through phone contact to reapply for a permit. 

Continually Updated Permitting Renewal Payment Information 
 
PM AM provides citizens an opportunity to update the responsible party and key holder 
information in real time in the citizen portal or by informing PM AM through phone calls or 
written correspondence. Such best practices result in responsible party and key holder 
information being accurate and always available to the responding law enforcement officers.  
 

Additional Permitting Processes  
 
PM AM has outlined several key permitting processes within this section. There are additional 
processes within PM AM’s Billing, Security Company, Citizen Web Portal, and Customer Service 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

227  

programs that also enhance permitting compliance. PM AM’s permitting goal is to greatly 
increase alarm permit compliance and in turn, significantly increase City revenue from the 
permitting process. We have repeatedly increased permitting revenue by between 100 – 300% 
for our partner cities. 
 
This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 

Requirements - Scope of Work - I. Online Permit Tracking – a, d & g” of by the City. 

 FALSE ALARM TRACKING AND INVOICING 
 

 FAMS, a 100% web-based solution is a business rules-based solution and our false alarm billing 
process has been set up to incorporate the City’s alarm ordinance. FAMS has the flexibility to 
modify alarm ordinance attributes to reflect new changes in the alarm ordinance as needed. This 
allows our customers to make changes or adopt revisions to their ordinance from time to time 
without worrying about PM AM’s ability to incorporate these changes.  
 
Based on this customizable rule-based solution, FAMS adopts the billing criterion and all 
associated fees including false alarms charges on a one-year permit period that are billable based 
on the location type (residential, commercial, exempt) false alarm count, and the total fine for 
each location.  
 
This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 

Requirements - Scope of Work - II. Billing – c” of by the City. 
 
FAMS tracks the false alarm data, alarm activations and maintains the complete account history 
in real-time. FAMS is designed to receive a data set on a daily basis from the City’s CAD/RMS 
system identifying all alarm calls including the false alarms (along with accompanying final 
disposition codes) for the previous calendar date. FAMS maintains the incident count (true and 
false) for each location and provides the ability to track alarms not reported by the alarm 
monitoring companies.  

PM AM has created a utility that interfaces with many CAD platform, enabling the automatic 
extraction and transfer of necessary alarm incident data from the City's CAD system to PM AM's 
FAMS every day. This process does not require any intervention from City staff. Several agencies, 
including those in Richland Hills, Abilene, and Montgomery County in Texas, are already using 
this interface. 
 
This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 

Requirements - Scope of Work - II. Billing – a” of by the City. 
 
Notifications and invoices are sent to the citizens to inform them of any violations of the alarm 
ordinance on a frequency specified by the City. The invoices provide historic false alarm details 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

228  

and fines so the recipient is able to cross reference the invoice with the City’s municipal code 
requirements.  

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - II. Billing – b” of by the City. 

This provides your citizens the confidence in the alarm program and they pay their invoices on 
time. Invoices are sent with the following information: 

• Account number, Invoice number and Invoice date 
• New incidents for false alarm. All incidents are verified by FAMS business rules that are 

initially set and tested in accordance with the ordinance 
• Time, date, type, sequence number, and response fee for each new incident including 

“Waived calls” 
• Amounts paid, adjustments 
• Amount of previously unpaid or delinquent response fees outstanding 
• Procedure to appeal a response fee 
• History of incidents etc. 

 
The FAMS billing process is robust and well defined, resulting in accurate billing. FAMS meets 
billing objectives by using several reports to check the accuracy of the billing to ensure bills are 
correct and received in a timely manner.  
 
All correspondence including invoices, delinquent notices, email notifications, permit applications 
etc. that are sent to the citizens are customized and provided to the City officials for their 
approval. All invoices are printed on City color letterhead with logo and mailed in City logo 
envelopes. All stationary expenses are paid by PM AM. 

All correspondences identify PM AM’s payment receiving address along with the toll-free number 
to assist your citizens and businesses to address any questions related to the administration or 
billing of the alarm program. All invoice formats for false alarms, penalties etc. provide a 
remittance stub to be sent along with the payments. All payments are posted within 24 hours. 

PM AM invoices those customers whose checks were returned by the bank for insufficient funds. 
PM AM staff creates the additional NSF invoice and sends this new invoice along with all previous 
outstanding  charges to the permit holder.  
 
FAMS will continue to utilize the City’s ordinance business rules including but not limited to 
invoicing registered as well as unregistered locations, notifying citizens of every false alarm 
occurrence or when they are close to exceeding false alarm limits, notifying citizens delinquent 
by 30 days and 60 days along with the verbiage informing them of enforcement action, notifying 
the City regarding locations being placed or removed from no-response etc. Similar rules are 
already incorporated into the FAMS system for other municipalities. Additionally, FAMS can track 
organizations that have filed for Chapter 11 status; business rules within FAMS prevent billing 
these organizations. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

229  

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - I. Online Permit Tracking – b, c & d” of by the City. 

 INTERFACES 
 
CAD Interface  
 
PM AM interfaces with many leading “industry-standard” Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) 
systems. 
 
PM AM will establish Data Exchange Communications for the City of Brea’s CAD to accomplish 
two primary goals during the start of the program, or at any time during the contract period:  
 

 Export alarm incidents from the City’s CAD system when installation is complete into 
FAMS database at a City-determined frequency, daily or weekly. 

 Transfer alarm permit data to the City’s CAD, allowing Emergency  Communications (911) 
dispatchers to view permit status, emergency contacts, site condition, and other relevant 
information of the permit, as required by City. This data transfer will happen at a frequency 
determined by the City. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

330  

PM AM has accomplished the data exchange with CAD vendor’s cooperation and without CAD 
vendor’s active participation where cities directed PM AM to do so. Out of 100+ clients that PM 
AM serves, in only 5% of these programs the CAD vendor provided the interface. In the other 
95% of the programs PM AM built the data exchange routine on its own with City IT input. 

 
If required, PM AM will make modifications to its secure Application Programming Interface (API) 
to accomplish this integration by Coordinating with the City’s IT team. 
 
PM AM will provide the FAMS Interface for free for the bi-directional interface with the City of 
Brea’s Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) system, but any cost payable to the CAD company would 
be the responsibility of the City of Brea. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - IV. Interface with Computer-Aided Dispatch 

Intermediary Server – a, b, c, d & e” of by the City. 

 HEARING AND APPEALS SUPPORT 
 

 PM AM offers its FAMS managed service as a complete 100% web-based solution to store, 
update and maintain all documentation required for appeal hearings.  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 331 

FAMS has an intuitive appeals function that contains all the requisite information for a hearing 
officer to make a decision from the office or while using a mobile device.

Citizens receiving an invoice for false alarm fees may choose to contest their false alarms through 
the alarm hearing.

PM AM is happy to share the following approaches to handle the appeal hearing and shall work 
with the City in development of the appeal process consistent with the City’s ordinance. 

In Person Hearings

When a citizen elects the option to have an in-person hearing, the invoice will direct him or her 
to call FAMS Customer Support, or fill out a form and submit it by mail to schedule the hearing. 

Alternatively, in cases where the permit may have been revoked due to excessive false alarms, a 
revocation notice is mailed to the citizen along with the instructions to request an appeal hearing. 
The FAMS solution provides a function for scheduling appeal hearings that allows the City to 
schedule the requested hearing in the time slots that the hearing officer has notified FAMS that 
he or she is available. 

In the event that all the available time slots are taken, the City designee will enter the appeal 
request into a queue that will be called to schedule as soon as a new time slot becomes available. 
Hence, all appeal requests are handled in the order received. The hearing officer is provided with 
the complete account history enabling him/her to make the decision in an efficient manner. 

Alternative Process for Appeals by Mail

When a citizen elects to appeal by mail, the CSR who takes the information by phone or by mail 
will submit the appeal request with all the relevant permit account details for the hearing officer 
to review at his or her convenience.

In the case of both in-person hearings and appeals by mail, the hearing officer can enter the 
appeal decision and any corresponding notes into the FAMS 
solution. Once this information has been provided, a FAMS 
CSR will generate a notice to the contestant providing the 
details of the appeal decision that was made and make any 
accounting adjustments like waiving a fine or creating a new 
invoice for an existing fine to the citizen’s account.

In the case of both in person he

Appeals - Hearings, as 
simple as holdiing them 
from your local Starbucks.



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

332  

 

 
 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - III. Collections – f” of by the City. 

 COLLECTIONS 
 

 PM AM has evolved to be the industry leading service provider, realizing the highest collection 
rates for our partner cities. 
 
The FAMS accounts receivable solution is a complete integrated solution which maintains all 
invoices, payment details, statements, and financial accounting details and is available to the City 
officials on a real time basis. Additionally, PM AM provides a monthly financial report including 
but not limited to invoices, payments, adjustments, refunds etc. 
 
FAMS has proven proprietary integrated billing and accounting software that guarantees 
accurate accounting. This solution is feature rich with multiple choices to empower you by 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

333  

presenting accurate information in the most flexible way to support your day-to-day needs, 
analysis, and decision support.  
 
City officials are provided with online real-time access, this enables them to make the decisions 
with zero downtime and with no dependence on PM AM’s staff. 
 

Collection of Funds  
 
PM AM will provide a nearby program mailing address where Citizens can submit payments 
related to registration, violation, miscellaneous charges. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - III. Collections – b” of by the City. 

PM AM collects all payments and correspondence mail daily from this remittance address. We 
then scan all collected mail into the OPEX System. Once scanning is completed, our proprietary 
process identifies the associated permit and its invoice using the scanned remittance slip and 
automatically applies to most payments. Subsequently, our payment processing team addresses 
all remaining exceptions, applying them to the permits to ensure that accounts are reconciled on 
a daily, weekly, and monthly basis. All fees collected through the alarm program are deposited 
into the City’s dedicated bank account, which PM AM owns. Funds are dispersed to the City after 
monthly reconciliation, based on a percentage of the revenues collected, as per the agreed-upon 
contract. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - II. Billing – g & III. Collections – g” of by the City. 

Citizens can pay by sending their payments through USPS mail or pay online. They will also have 
an option to visit the City and pay for their outstanding invoices. The City will have the option of 
forwarding all these payments in an envelope to this dedicated remittance address. Alternatively, 
the City can deposit these payments into the City’s bank account and enter the payment 
information into FAMS from the convenience of their office. FAMS will track all the payments 
received in the City and provide the summary and transaction details in the monthly financial 
report. 
 
PM AM at its own expense, regularly performs an audit of its financial controls, data security and 
alarm management services through an independently- certified firm and shall be delighted to 
share its latest SSAE- 16 SOC I report, as needed by the City. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - III. Collections – h” of by the City. 

Secured Payment Processing Gateway 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

334  

PM AM has integrated necessary payment gateways to support ACH, debit, and credit card 
transactions online, imposing a minimal convenience charge of $3.00 for each transaction. This 
integration guarantees that payments are processed successfully at the same time, and no 
information regarding the credit card is kept in FAMS. This process results in no liability on the 
part of PM AM or the City. Since FAMS captures all the information in real time, accounts are 
reconciled on an ongoing basis. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - VI. Data Security and Reliability – g” of by the City. 

PM AM partners with Authorize.Net and EVO Merchant Services as a payment gateway hosted 
software application on PM AM’s server which authorizes credit card payments between the self-
service website and each credit card processor. Information such as credit card numbers, amount, 
and customer name are encrypted and passed to the credit card processor, who then processes 
the payment through the Visa/MasterCard network. All payments are made in compliance 
with PCI. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - II. Billing – e, f & III. Collections – a” of by the City. 

Collections Processing  
 
The processing of all funds associated within the FAMS environment is thorough and complete.  
 
The FAMS collections system includes the ability to:  

 Input cash receipts indicating which charges/fees to apply payment; 
 Apply partial payments; 
 Process payments the same day 
 Process and record returned checks; 
 Accept credit card payments transactions online and via phone; 
 Accept bank routing information for online e-payment transactions. 

 
Adjustments 

FAMS allows adjustments that the City officials may deem necessary on the invoices that were 
sent out. An example of this is an alarm that was disposed as false and later it was determined to 
be true but the information of the alarm being true was not communicated to PM AM. In such 
events FAMS allows a functionality to enter the true alarm for a prior date. This aids in the 
documentation for any adjustments/cancellations that are requested by the City. 
 
Refunds 

Alarm Companies/citizens at times may send overpayments, PM AM has a transparent process 
through which all refund requests go through two levels of authorization and are submitted to 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

335  

the City for taking the appropriate action. Once payments are received from the City, PM AM will 
remit a refund check to the individual/business accounts and or alarm companies. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - V. Customer Service – f & g” of by the City. 

Meeting Collection Goals 
 
PM AM’s ability to meet up to 90%+ collections goal is based on utilizing FAMS collection 
processes as outlined in this section and supported by the other program process areas. FAMS 
uses scientific processes and payment trend analysis to identify which outstanding collections 
require attention. Additionally, PM AM’s ability to deliver superior service from its Customer Care 
Center will create a great customer experience for the City’s citizens. PM AM has utilized these 
processes to deliver the highest collection percentages possible with current partners including 
the City. 
 

Collection Business Processes | Workflow 
 
PM AM collection efforts are based on a scientific process by utilizing trend analysis. These trend 
analyses give collection specialists detailed knowledge to setup and execute debtor callback 
patterns using a scientific process that generates a call list.  
 
PM AM utilizes these customized trend analysis reports as part of their collection efforts. This 
exclusive list that is unique for each city does magic in collection efforts that are fast, and 
consistent resulting in sky rocketing collection rates. This way PM AM deploys the most effective 
collection process that is most suitable for each of its partner cities. PM AM has come to 
understand that every City/County is unique and has mastered the science of managing the 
collection processes.  
 
PM AM’s also provides information of alarm holders where false alarm service fees are delinquent 
which allows City to make collection efforts. 

PM AM has set up an effective workflow for collection services. However, if the City of Brea opt 
for a third-party collection agency, PM AM is open to integrating data exchange and 
collaborating with the third-party agency without additional charges. Any collections made by a 
third-party agency is supported by PM AM, however any revenue realized through their efforts 
shall be communicated to PM AM and PM AM’s revenue share shall be paid as stated above from 
such realized revenue. 
 
PM AM’s fully integrated approach also allows it to partner and integrate with any debt collection 
service chosen by the City. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

336  

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - III. Collections – c & d” of by the City. 

Return Mail and Collections Through Skip Tracing 
 
PM AM employs proactive and reactive skip tracing processes to process return mail and track 
alarm users to clear outstanding balances in a timely fashion by tracking their contact information 
changes. Our most effective skip tracing process is a proprietary database that is number one in 
the nation and is routinely used by law enforcement agencies as well. This service comes at a 
high cost, but PM AM invests in such services and tools to ensure our leadership in the industry.  
 
We also use the following methods for skip tracing: 

Forwarding Addresses  
 
PM AM has identified processes and software that is updated every 10 days by USPS and provides 
forwarding address information to PM AM. This enables PM AM to track and reach out to debtors 
and forward outstanding invoice information to the correct addresses. 
 
Integration With City’s Water/Utilities Database  
 
PM AM has developed processes to integrate perform skip tracing through various cities 
water/utilities database and provides citizen’s updated address and phone number. Such 
processes provide the most up to date and accurate information. PM AM utilizes this information 
to engage with citizens who have moved to a new address in the City but have not paid the 
outstanding charges.  
 
Other Skip Tracing Methods 
 
PM AM has also developed processes to perform skip tracing utilizing several other informational 
databases. These databases include: 
 

Online Criss-Cross Directories 
Google 

Contacting the alarm customer 
Yellow Pages 
 

The depth and breadth of PM AM skip tracing abilities ensures our Customer Service Specialists 
have the processes to track down missing persons for billing and collections. 
 

Increased City Alarm Program Margins 
 
PM AM has constantly been innovating processes and looking at modern solutions that are 
required to fulfill the large mail processing requirements that a partner City brings. PM AM’s 
relationship with industry leader, Pitney Bowes is almost a decade old. During this period, both 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

337  

sides have collaborated to create unique processes that fulfill the current demand of accuracy 
and speed with which large volumes of postal mail needs to be sent out every month.  
 
PM AM utilizes the current mailing technologies that qualify its mail for bulk mail discounts, this 
will deliver additional cost savings to the City. 
  
Undeliverable Mail 
 
USPS national studies suggest that 17 percent of consumers and almost 20 percent of businesses 
move every year and the cost of handling “Undeliverable as Addressed” (UAA) mail is estimated 
at $2 billion annually. Advanced technology solutions are now available that constantly update 
the most current address information into the United States Postal Service database. In the 
absence of such solutions, US consumers stand to lose billions of dollars.  
 
PM AM estimates that the 17% inaccurate mailings could cost the City a substantial amount of 
the false alarm revenue. This otherwise unrecoverable revenue is easily collected by PM AM as 
we use processes for eliminating mailing errors for our partner cities and counties include using 
the forwarding information for alarm holders to reduce incorrect addresses, wasted mailings and 
utilizing latest industry leading solutions to obtain updated and current address information prior 
to mailing, in real time over the Internet, available 24 x 7. This service is available to PM AM 
through its business partners.  
 
Integrated Document Printing 
 
The partnership with Pitney Bowes has brought many best practices to PM AM and its customers. 
One such benefit is Integrated Document Printing. This innovation provides PM AM and its 
customers an assured solution where documents of any length are customized during the 
implementation phase for invoices, and other citizen outreach purposes without ever worrying if 
the mail pieces will have any problems of sorting through this complicated document printing 
process. PM AM sends out accurate mailings that are guaranteed by the time proven processes 
matured by industry players like, Pitney Bowes over several decades of their research and 
development in this area and their willingness to co-develop processes with their customers like 
PM AM. 

 
 REPORTING 
 Reporting and Data Management 

 
FAMS offers more than 100 available reports to the City Alarm administrator and other officials. 
Since FAMS is 100% web-based, all system-wide reports used or available to PM AM staff are 
also available and accessible by the City’s staff via a web-browser. 
 
These reports are in always available mode and the City has access to these reports 24 x 7. These 
reports present correct and accurate information with 100% visibility to the City officials on real 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

338  

time basis. The majority of the reports have an option to export the results in PDF or Microsoft 
Excel formats. Several reports can be set up standard or ad-hoc with multiple variable parameters, 
date ranges and status of an account, etc.  

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - VII. Reporting – e & h.” of by the City. 

These reports are available to the City at no additional cost. This unique, transparent, detailed, 
and extensive reporting capability of FAMS allows PM AM to provide all records and statements 
required for audit purposes and submit to regular independently certified audits or special audit 
of controls, services and billing as may be needed by the City.  
 
This reporting capabilities also allows PM AM to provide a cooperative proactive approach for 
the regular reviews by the City including the topics like quality, customer service approach, 
business issues, problem solving and future planning on an ongoing basis. These reviews and 
meetings can be conducted in person or via teleconferences etc.  
 
Among all reports, we have listed a few reports which will provide detailed insight on FAMS 
reporting capability to the City: 

 Ability to search accounts by multiple search criteria. 
 Listing of alarm users by number, name, address, or alarm company. 
 Outstanding bills with aging of past due balances 30 days, 60 days etc. 
 Revenue receipt report including adjustments, refunds, returned checks etc. per day or by 

specific dates. 
 Full alarm history per alarm user (including appeal history); 
 False alarm rates by alarm owner; 
 Top offenders list with ability to break down by hours, days, months, etc.; 
 List of all non-response or suspended accounts with account information; 
 List of accounts by status; 
 Other reports as requested by the Alarm Administrator. 

 
This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - III. Collections – e, V. Customer Service – c & VII. Reporting 

- a” of by the City. 
 
Following are screenshots of few sample reports: 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 339 

Account Receivable Aging Summary Report

Ledger Report

Payment Received Report

Ledger Report



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 440 

Monthly Reconciliation Statement Report

Additionally PM AM have developed an option which can be used by City User to create ad-hoc 
(custom) reports where the custom report template can be saved and re-generated whenever it 
is required.

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - VII. Reporting - c” of by the City.



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 441 

Custom Report

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - VII. Reporting - g” of by the City.

City officials will have access to the "Permit Analysis" feature, providing them with precise and 
accurate data in real-time. This includes comprehensive details and history of permits with audit 
trail of all system transactions, detailing every action taken, invoices, payments as well as all forms 
of communication with customers, such as text messages, traditional mail, and emails. 
Additionally, this feature offers visibility into all correspondence related to the City's alarm 
program, including images of mailed items like permit applications, checks or appeal documents 
sent to the designated P.O. Box.



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 442 

Permit Analysis



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

443  

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - VII. Reporting – d & VII. Reporting - b” of by the City. 

 

Dashboards and Analytics Reports  
 
FAMS is the pioneer alarm management solution that provides City decision makers with secure, 
online, real-time statistical dashboards and analytic reports. City officials can monitor false alarms, 
billing, and collections information instantly at any time. 
  
Additionally, PM AM had the vision in 2003 to utilize “Drillable Reports”. Data points on 
dashboards and reports incorporate a drill-down technique from the FAMS user interface to 
access unit level data. 

 
 CUSTOMER SERVICE 

 
 Citizen Self- Service Web Portal 

 
PM AM’s FAMS offers a safe and reliable self-service web portal that has been customized for the 
City’s citizens to complete online payments, learn about issues related to false alarms and its 
education, complete alarm awareness online class etc. It is critical to give citizens a self-service 
portal with 24 hour, 7 days a week availability. We recognize technically savvy citizens are more 
likely to complete a web-based, self-enrollment rather than using mail-in or call center options. 
This self-service web portal will be accessible by a link on the City’s website. 
 
The City citizen web portal will accomplish the following processes and objectives: 
 

  
 

 
 

Alarm & Billing History 
Citizens can log into FAMS™ secured area to check all historical False 
Alarms history, unpaid bills, and contact information. Citizens can 
access such information at no additional cost or fee. Most 
importantly, citizens are able to update their contact information 
online.  
This will enable first responders to have the most accurate data for 
each alarm location. 
 

  
 

Bill Payment 
Citizens will routinely pay bills from the comfort of their home using 
FAMS™ easy-to-use, no-hassle, reliable, and proven citizen portal. 
FAMS™ citizen portal is secured through 256-bit encryption and is 
PCI compliant. 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

444  

  
  

Citizen Education & Awareness 
Citizens can review the educational content focused on reduction of 
false alarms and also undergo the false alarm prevention class. 
Citizens with limited access to the internet/knowledge to internet will 
be able to receive the educational material via USPS. They can also 
review information related to the State’s Alarm Statute like fine 
schedule, police response, appeal process etc. 
  

 
 
 

Email Notifications 
Citizens receive email notifications for new permit/registration 
applications are submitted and they also receive email notification 
for outstanding bills, payment confirmations etc. 
 
Citizens can also opt-in to receive email notifications on false alarms 
educational material as well as tips to reduce false alarms. 
 
For sending email notification by default PM AM’s FAMS™ utilizes its 
own email system, PM AM’s implementation team will work with City 
of Brea’s IT team to get requited credentials to send emails from 
City’s email system. 

 
 

  
 Permit holders also have the option of paying by USPS mail as well as through walk-in at the City 

Cashier's desk. PM AM is committed to providing all methods of payment including payment by 
phone. Payments made through USPS are sent to a financial institution chosen by the City.  
 
PM AM is the pioneer in that we provide an unmatched user experience in each of our Tow’s 
custom-designed citizen portals. Immediately upon logging on to the City website, your citizen 
is guided through the false alarm payment with a video guide. Through video demonstrations, 
citizens can quickly learn and conduct any business that they choose including view ordinances, 
review and pay outstanding bills, change contact details, and view their account and false alarm 
history. PM AM launched this initiative eight years back and was the first in the False Alarm 
Management industry to create such a unique citizen experience. Since that time, this module 
has been somewhat copied and reproduced. 
 
PM AM’s implementation team uses creative designs to make each portal unique for each partner 
city or county and in line with the same theme, look and feel as the City’s website. The web portal 
is encrypted and secure to ensure safety for its users and information submitted and is accessed 
through a link at the City’s website. All payments are processed in compliance with PCI.  

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - V. Customer Service – a & VI. Data Security and 

Reliability - e” of by the City. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

445  

 

Security Companies Self Service Web Portal 
 
Alarm security companies can always be engaged through a cumbersome process by phone; 
however, PM AM has invested significant research on the City’s need to engage alarm companies 
through a self-service web portal.  
 
 Compliance – Alarm security companies can check their customer list to determine if all of 

their customers are compliant with the City ordinance. This way, alarm companies can ensure 
that alarm permits are acquired by existing and new alarm holders.  

 Identifying Non-Compliance – PM AM also requests alarm security companies to upload 
their customer lists to this portal, so FAMS can identify non-compliance and ask alarm 
companies to make their customers compliance through the permitting process also available 
in the self-service web portal.  

 Reduction of False Alarms – PM AM will provide security companies with a list of the City’s 
high alarm violators and ask for assurances that their systems are operating correctly. 
Identifying systems operating outside of tolerances can significantly reduce false alarm calls.  

 Self-service Capability – The self-service portal has several reports so the alarm security 
companies can check their customer’s list. 

 
PM AM maintains comprehensive information about the alarm companies. 

 
The Security Company portal is a significant effort that PM AM has undertaken to ensure that 
security companies and their customers comply with the applicable alarm laws. The results show 
that this effort has helped reduce noncompliance and false alarms by using security company 
resources. 
 

Corporate Portal for Multiple Accounts 
 
FAMS has an integrated portal that allows business entities with multiple locations to access all 
of their account information in one place. The portal enables them to view alarm history and 
outstanding invoices for multiple locations on a single screen, batch pay invoices and update 
information. This FAMS portal provides a complete solution for businesses that utilize a central 
accounts payable department. With cross-reference capabilities, the accounts payable team can 
link all of their locations under one login, allowing them to view and pay any current or new 
invoices in an easy and convenient way.  
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 446 

Mobile Strategy

PM AM is the only service provider in the marketplace which provides the citizen web-portal 
accessibility through mobile applications for iOS and Android devices. Currently the FAMS apps 
for iOS and Android enable users to log into the Citizen portal to read the City’s False Alarm 
Ordinance, make payments, view and update 
their account information for alarm user, billing, 
and on-site emergency contacts. Citizens can 
receive push notifications for false alarm 
incidents, invoices, past due bills etc. They can 
also access a variety of educational materials to 
help them prevent future false alarms.

Customer Service Center

The City has been provided with a unique toll-free calling number for its citizens to contact the 
service center located in United States. PM AM utilizes a cloud-based dialer. The dialer allows the 
service center to route calls to the dedicated Customer Care Specialist team members in all or 
any of our 3 calling centers within the United States and integrate all call information with FAMS 
customer and alarm information. 

Our customer service approach ensures the citizens of the City have quick, courteous, timely and 
easy access to a variety of support tools that will allow them to easily apply for a permit, obtain 
account information, understand the City’s ordinance and receive immediate assistance from 
multiple customer care representatives for questions related to permits, billing, payments and 
the alarm ordinance through a dedicated toll free number during normal business hours 
including 8:00 am to 5:00 pm PST. PM AM Customer Support Group provides services in English, 
Spanish and also offers translation services in 175+ different languages.

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - II. Billing – d” of by the City.

PM AM’s Support Center in Dallas, Texas has professional representatives on staff, uses best 
practice processes, and is built with the most advanced call center technology to provide a 
superior service offering to our partner cities. All customer service processes and documents will 
be based in the PM AM offices in Dallas, TX. PM AM also has other center in Houston, TX that 
may also provide services if required.

e p t e p e e t utu e a se a a

Easily make payments on 
mobile devices…



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

447  

PM AM Corporation is an equal opportunity employer. As such it is our policy not to discriminate 
on any basis prohibited by law including race, sex, age, religion, national origin, disability, marital 
status or veteran status. It is our intent and desire that equal employment practices apply to all 
terms and conditions of employment at the PM AM Corporation. The CEO of PM AM Corporation 
and all managerial personnel are committed to this policy and its enforcement.  

PM AM Corporation does not tolerate the presence of illegal drugs or the illegal use of legal 
drugs in our workplace. The use, possession, distribution, or sale of controlled substances such 
as drugs or alcohol or being under the influence of such controlled substances is strictly 
prohibited while on duty, while on PM AM Corporation’s premises or worksites, or while 
operating PM AM Corporation’s equipment or vehicles. PM AM conducts drug tests during the 
employment process and all employees provide their consent to be sent for drug tests at any 
time during their employment with PM AM.  

Our Customer Care Representatives shall respond to all questions and issues from alarm users. It 
has been the experience of PM AM that the trained customer service representatives are able to 
resolve more than 95 percent of issues in a single call, outside of appeals process where the 
decision may come from City Officials. 

Citizen Service Representative Team 
 
PM AM has a citizen service team made up of Customer Care Specialists and Customer Care 
Representatives. 
 
The alarm administration team includes specific roles and specialists: 
 

 Alarm Matching Specialist 
 Billing and Payment Specialist 
 Customer Care Specialist 
 Document Specialist 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 448 

Utilizing FAMS to Create a Superior Customer Experience

Customer Care Specialists are able to access all permit information in a single FAMS customer 
service view. This view allows Customer Care Specialists the ability to instantly access all invoices, 
alarm incidents, receivables, and collections data, which empowers them to have very meaningful 
dialogue instantly with each customer.

For example, Customer Care Specialists can access customer invoices as they were issued. This 
enables Customer Care Specialists to speak in confidence knowing they are discussing the exact 
documentation each citizen has received. If the citizen requires invoices to be resent to them, 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

449  

Customer Care Specialists can immediately resend invoices by email or fax so that customers can 
receive them in near real time. 
 

 Emails are instantly sent by FAMS’s integrated email engine 
 Faxes are instantly sent by FAMS’s integrated fax service  

 

Customer Care Call Center 
 
PM AM maintains high standards for each Customer Care Specialist. Our proprietary web-based 
call center application program monitors all interactions between citizens and our Customer Care 
Specialist. The Call Log records each call made or received by our Customer Care Specialists. This 
includes the telephone number, the duration of the call and the date and time the calls were 
made.  
 
PM AM has a state-of-the-art phone predictive dialer that is capable of handling voice and data 
seamlessly. This feature helps create a positive experience for the callers, and also educates callers 
on alarm reduction efforts while they are on hold.  

 
PM AM works with a single goal of “Single call resolution” to be 90%+. 
 
Having a Same Day Call Back Policy in place for any voice messages ensures a high level of 
customer service is achieved.  
 
Customer service metrics are available to supervisors in real-time. Customer Care supervisors are 
able to listen into live service calls and provide meaningful input if required, to ensure the 
customer service team is providing superior customer service. Our supervisors spend 
considerable time monitoring conversations to confirm quality citizen service is being provided 
by the customer care department. Supervisors are mandated to undertake Call Quality Audits on 
a regular basis, and document the quality in a predefined questionnaire. These audits are 
reviewed and become the basis for conducting coaching and training sessions to continually 
improve each Customer Care Specialist’s performance. 
  
The City will benefit from our cloud-based solution and also from happy and satisfied citizens 
who call our customer service representatives. PM AM utilizes call center best practices in order 
to have the majority of calls resolved during the first interaction.  
 
All calls are recorded and available for later review. In the rare case of a customer complaint, PM 
AM is able to review the call recording for full knowledge of the interaction, and take any 
necessary action to resolve the issue. This practice has been very helpful for the partner cities and 
PM AM to mutually look at any feedback provided by the citizen about the false alarm 
management services.  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

550  

Due to this the average call wait time for our customer service representatives is less than 15 
seconds. In the current year, they have processed an average of 48 calls per hour. Furthermore, 
nearly 100% of all calls/issues are resolved during the initial phone call. 
 
Upon request, we will provide the average violation billing time, call wait time, calls processed 
per hour by customer service representatives, and the percentage of calls/issues resolved in one 
phone call. 
 
This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 

Requirements - Scope of Work - VII. Reporting - f” of by the City. 
 
The Revenue Enhancement Program ensures that the Service Center identifies high value account 
collections in their outbound calls for collections. The predictive dialer calls for high outstanding 
false alarms charges and Customer Care Representatives contact customers with follow-up 
reminders for customers whose accounts include an agreed to pay notation on a specific date.  
 
These policies as part of the overall FAMS solution produce measurable results. The City of 
Houston received a $3.8 million dollar increase in revenue collected from false alarms within the 
first two years of adopting the FAMS solution. According to Alfred Moran, Director of 
Administration and Regulatory Affairs Department for the City of Houston, statistics indicate that 
revenue collected from false alarms will continue to rise. 
 
Additionally, the redundancy provided by PM AM of having three similar Call Centers located at 
Dallas, TX, and Houston, TX shall be a huge benefit for the City in the event of an Act of God 
striking one of the centers.  
 

Customer Representative Service Philosophy  
 
PM AM understands that the City has high customer service expectations. PM AM seeks the 
highest degree of professionalism and courtesy in our service representatives and provides 
extensive customer service training to each employee before they start taking live calls. 
 
The following chart contains the highlights of our service guidelines. 
 

Courtesy and Professionalism Standards 
 

 Remember the difference between customer service and citizen service. You are 
representing the City and the person you are calling expects their government to be 
very responsive. 

 Answer the phone pleasantly and maintain a pleasant demeanor while on the phone.  
 Be sincere at all times. People will sense insincerity on the phone even though they 

cannot see your facial expressions or other non-verbal communication clues such as 
hand gestures, head nods and body posture. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

551  

 Know the ordinance and all information regarding its compliance.  
 Return all phone calls within the same day. 
 Keep remarks of the contacts you make in the FAMS notes section. These notes are 

crucial for future contact of when city officials wish to check on an alarm user citizen 
account. Note dates for follow-up.  

 Listen and respond to the person on the other end of the line. When you focus on them 
rather than on what you are going to say next, the phone call becomes much more 
conversational.  

 Know what you want to say before making an important call.  
 Do not do things such as open mail, do paperwork while on the phone. The person you 

are talking with will know you are distracted.  
 Meeting weekly goals requires setting and meeting daily goals. Record you progress on 

a daily basis.  
 Always use introductory or follow-up letters, FAMS informational fliers or other 

educational materials to further the goal of alarm reduction.  
 Focus to resolve calls in a timely fashion with politeness. If it becomes evident that the 

person is not the one needed to resolve the issue. Obtain the correct information and 
then contact that person. 

 Before disconnecting the call, one should recap the reason for the call, the resolution 
provided and that the expectation has been met and the caller is satisfied. 

 
Customer Messaging Standards 

 
 Clearly identify yourself, the nature of the call and what action is required of the alarm 

user. 
 Provide a call back telephone number. 
 Speak with confidence and authority.  
 When you connect with a secretary or an assistant to the person responsible for payments, 

ask about a convenient time that might be best to call back.  
 When finding it difficult to get business alarm users, try to call early in the morning or 

later in the evening when more time may be available. 
 

 FALSE ALARM REDUCTION PROCESSES 
 

 It is the intent of all Police departments to significantly reduce false alarms, PM AM worked in 
collabration with the City of Brea Police Department in past between 2020 to 2023 to reduce the 
false alarm activations and are happy to share that these efforts have helped reduce the false 
alarm by over 28%. PM AM commit to invest sizeable resources, time and money in developing 
an array of processes and methods to address the issue of false alarms and engage your citizens 
through multiple outreach efforts, that are proven to consistently deliver sustained decrease in 
false alarms for our partner cities and counties. 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

552  

We are providing some of the methods that consistently produce positive results in reducing 
false alarms. 
 

Repetitive False Alarm Violators Identification 
 
FAMS has meaningful reports but more importantly, FAMS also presents decision support tools 
like dashboards and scorecards. These tools systematically identify repeat offenders who cause 
a high number of false alarms though these repeat violators are limited in numbers. These highly 
intelligent, analytical reports are then utilized by the PM AM’s Customer Care service to deploy 
meaningful outreach efforts that usually encourages repeat violators to take corrective actions 
and this prevents further false alarms from happening. 
 

Educational Material 
 
In 2007 PM AM started providing Educational Material in the form of CDs, this approach was 
modern and innovative. Since its launch by PM AM, the industry has adopted this practice and 
this engagement strategy is offered by almost all industry-players. These material educates alarm 
users about the impact of false alarms on police resources and how such calls take otherwise 
limited police resources away from true emergencies. These educational materials are available 
in English and Spanish languages. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - V. Customer Service – b” of by the City. 

Online False Alarm Academy 
 
The False Alarm Academy is an online school that allows your citizens to learn false alarm 
prevention strategies and complete a test for understanding how to prevent future incidents. The 
Academy is particularly effective when used as part of the alarm permit reinstatement process 
for users whose permit has been suspended due to a high number of false alarms, if the alarm 
ordinance of the City mandates such a provision or as an option for the first false alarm offenses 
as required by the City. The Academy can be established as part of an online process with a 
secure login/password. PM AM will assist the City so a detailed curriculum and test 
questions/answers are produced that are relevant to the City’s False Alarm Ordinance.  
 
This add-on benefit service is part of our inclusive FAMS package and is provided at no cost to 
the City and its citizens to further educate them and reduce false alarms. As a direct result of the 
increased awareness among citizens, cities and counties see a reduction in their false alarms. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - V. Customer Service – b” of by the City. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

553  

 MARKETING AND PUBLIC SERVICE INFORMATION 
 

 PM AM’s document specialist will work closely with the City staff on the finalization of all 
outgoing alarm billing documents, forms, communications, and web site portal content that will 
be sent to citizens or program partners. This process will also finalize and prepare all citizens for 
outreach marketing materials. 
 
Documents and communication content finalized in this phase will include: 
 

 Citizen communication plan 
 Security company communication plan 
 Alarm permit layout finalization 
 Invoice layout finalization 
 Citizen outreach for noncompliance (people operating alarms with a valid permit) 
 Citizen self-service portal website content 
 Security company self-service website content 
 Customer Care center call greetings and IVR scripts 
 Email content sent to citizens for false alarm reduction 
 Voice mail message content delivered by auto dialer 

 

Public Relations 
 
The PM AM outreach team will create a comprehensive marketing and public relations plan in 
conjunction with City staff to publicize the alarm ordinance program to the City residents and 
businesses through various processes. The plan will include the following elements: 
 

 Public announcements in community newspapers 
 Water bill inserts 
 Finalize content for the animated, multi-media education CD 
 Content of the False Alarm Reduction Academy 
 Newsletter updates and website content 

 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 554 

Water Bill Insert

All alarm users in City of Brea are required to register their alarms 
with the City and operate their alarms in an efficient manner.

CITY OF BREA, CA

CITY OF BREA, CA

eGovernment https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/375/Alarm-Permit-Renewals

Mailing Address: City of Brea 
False Alarm Reduction Program
P. O. Box XXXXXX, 
XXXXXXX, XX XXXXX



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 555 

All homeowners and business owners within City of Brea, are required by 
Resolution #XX-XXXX to register their home and / or business alarm 
systems.

The annual registration fee for a Residential burglary alarm system 
without a panic alarm system is $XX and is $XX with a panic alarm system.

The annual registration fee for a non-residential burglary alarm system 
without a panic alarm system is $XX and $XX for a hold-up or panic alarm 
system.

Failure to register the alarm system can result in a misdemeanor with fine 
of up to $XX. 

To avoid penalty, register your alarm system with City of Brea, by using 
one of the following options:

- ORR --

ONLINE 
REGISTER AND PAY

https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/375
/Alarm-Permit-Renewalss  

[Select Alarm Registration]

MAIL 
CHECK TO

City of Brea 
Falsee Alarmm Reductionn Program 

P.. O.. Boxx XXXXXX 
XXXXXXX,, XX XXXXX



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

556  

 DATA SECURITY | RELIABILITY 
 

This complete section fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services 
and Specifications Requirements - Scope of Work - VI. Data Security and Reliability” of 

by the City. 

Maintenance Agreements and Requirements 
 
FAMS is a 100% web-based solution and does not require any hardware, peripherals or any 
foreign- devices to be introduced in the cities secure IT environment. 
 
PM AM provides a hosted False Alarm Management solution to the City. The hosting is provided 
by Rackspace Hosting, a top tier dedicated hosting company located in the United States.  
 
The FAMS hosting environment is designed to deliver FAMS in an “Always Available” 24/7 365 
days per year mode to the City officials and citizens. 
 
FAMS system availability up time and responsiveness is directly correlated to Rackspace’s 
leadership in providing optimal data center and application hosting services. Since 2004, FAMS 
has never experienced a downtime incident. 
 
All system updates and upgrades are performed by PM AM staff and are inclusive to the program 
at no additional fees or costs to the City. 

 

Disaster Recovery Plan 
 
PM AM maintains a comprehensive IT Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity plan that 
ensures recovery point objective of 24 hours. The disaster recovery plan specifically addresses 
critical risk areas that could impact the project and the action plan to address such an eventuality. 
Multi location redundancy and backup of system and data ensures that the operations are up 
and running within 24 hours. 
  
PM AM Business Continuity Management policy ensures that all configurable items identified 
are documented and a risk assessment carried out to analyze vulnerability on each configurable 
item based on which an appropriate mitigation and contingency plan is put in place. A resource 
is identified for each configurable item defined in the plan. The data management plan also 
defines the life cycle for each of the configurable Items from creation to closure. 
  
The disaster recovery plan is regularly updated, mock drills are periodically carried out to test 
the efficiency of the Disaster Recovery plan. 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

557  

PM AM commits to promptly notifying the city of any security vulnerability alerts. We will 
provide dedicated support to address and remediate these vulnerabilities within one business 
day, ensuring rapid resolution and maintaining the security integrity of our systems and your 
operations.  

 

Data Back-up and Storage 
 
PM AM maintains a comprehensive IT Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity plan that 
ensures daily backup of our application’s critical data to achieve recovery point objective of 24 
hours. 
 
This covers data onsite along with a copy of it placed at an off-site location. 
 

IT Policies, Processes and Systems 
 
PM AM's False Alarm Management Solution (FAMS) is designed, developed and deployed  per 
the robust and time proven 256-bit Secured Socket layer (SSL). SSL ensures an encrypted link 
between the server and the client and transfers the data using 256-bit encryption. FAMS has an 
in-built mechanism to also support legacy browsers that have limitations and can only work with 
128-bit SSL encryption. 
 
Access to key menus that are important and considered valuable such as billing, and payment 
processing at PM AM's end are further restricted. Such options are only available to known and 
approved IP addresses. This way, an intrusion from unknown IP addresses is restricted. 
  
The access to FAMS application is allowed through authenticated login credentials only. In 
addition, access is available only to authorized users. The user authorization and authentication 
determine the menus that are available to the user who has logged in through a password 
verified process. All passwords are first encrypted using Microsoft certified techniques before 
these data elements are stored in the database. This way, even the database visibility does not 
reveal the password. This scheme is applicable to all users with no exceptions. 
  
The data architecture ensures that appropriate constraints are maintained to ensure data 
integrity. PM AM has hearty and defined processes which routinely validate, ensure data integrity 
and consistency of the database by checking the tables, objects, data components and stored 
procedures, etc.  
 
PM AM follows referential integrity through foreign keys so that data is always consistent with 
the parent tables. Important attributes such as addresses are verified against City’s GIS to ensure 
that data elements are always in conformance to "Normalization forms" to the extent applicable 
to FAMS. 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

558  

The servers are hosted at Rackspace, detailed information is provided in section “Hosting 
Environment” of the RFP response. The servers are dedicated servers of PM AM with security to 
provide limited access to approved IP addresses along with other standard security measures 
like firewall etc. 
 

Data Security Practices 
 
PM AM hosts its servers on the world’s leading managed cloud provider, Rackspace. The 
following security measures are in place at Rackspace for PM AM servers that host the 
application and database.  
 
Physical Security 

 Data center access limited to Rackspace data center technicians 
 Biometric scanning for controlled data center access 
 Security camera monitoring at all data center locations 
 24x7 onsite staff provides additional protection against unauthorized entry 
 Unmarked facilities to help maintain low profile 
 Physical security audited by an independent firm 

 
System Security 

 System installation using hardened, patched OS 
 System patching configured by Rackspace to provide ongoing protection from exploits 
 Dedicated firewall and VPN services to help block unauthorized system access 
 Data protection with Rackspace managed backup solutions 
 Optional, dedicated intrusion detection devices to provide an additional layer of 

protection against unauthorized system access 
 Distributed Denial of Service (DDoS) mitigation services based on our proprietary 

Rackspace PrevenTier™ system 
 Risk assessment and security consultation by Rackspace professional services teams 

 
Operational Security – the Rackspace Infrastructure 

 ISO 17799-based policies and procedures, Regularly reviewed as part of our SAS 70 
Type II audit process 

 All employees trained on documented information security and privacy procedures 
 Access to confidential information restricted to authorized personnel only, according to 

documented processes 
 Systems access logged and tracked for auditing purposes 
 Secure document-destruction policies for all sensitive information 
 Fully documented change-management procedures 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

559  

 Independently audited disaster recovery and business continuity plans in place for 
Rackspace headquarters and support services 

 
Operational Security – Customer's Application Environment 

 Best practices used in the random generation of initial passwords 
 All passwords encrypted during transmission and while in storage at Rackspace 
 Secure media handling and destruction procedures for all customer data 
 Rackspace Security Services can provide guidance in developing security processes for 

compliance programs 
 

PM AM IT Processes 
 
Hosting Environment  

PM AM provides a hosted False Alarm Management solution to the City. The hosting is provided 
by Rackspace Hosting, a NYSE listed company with the market cap of 4.05 billion that has 
recently been taken private. 
   
Rackspace Hosting 

Rackspace hosting provides world class, dedicated server hosting to PM AM. FAMS system 
availability up time and responsiveness is directly correlated to Rackspace’s leadership in 
providing optimal data center and application hosting services.  

Rackspace Hosting has global security certifications and compliance verifications for Service 
Organization Controls (SOC) 2 Type II and SOC 3. SOC 2 is a cybersecurity compliance framework 
that ensures third-party service providers store and process client data securely. 

Since 2004, FAMS has never experienced a downtime incident. More about Rackspace Hosting 
services is provided below. 

Physical Security  

 Keycard protocols, biometric scanning protocols and round-the-clock interior and 
exterior surveillance monitor access to every one of Rackspace data centers. 

 

 Only authorized data center personnel are granted access credentials to Rackspace data 
centers. No one else can enter the production area of the datacenter without prior 
clearance and an appropriate escort.  

 

 Every data center employee undergoes multiple and thorough background security 
checks before they are hired.  

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

660  

Precision Environment 

 Every data center's HVAC (Heating Ventilation Air Conditioning) system is N+1 
redundant. This ensures that a duplicate system immediately comes online should there 
be an HVAC system failure.  

 

 Every 90 seconds, all the air in our data centers is circulated and filtered to remove dust 
and contaminants.  

 

 Rackspace’s advanced fire suppression systems are designed to stop fires from spreading 
in the unlikely event one should occur.  

 

 All cables are securely tied down with cable racks suspended from ceilings, providing 
dual routes for all cables.  

 
Conditioned Power 

 Should a total utility power outage ever occur, all of the Rackspace data centers' power 
systems are designed to run uninterrupted, with every server receiving conditioned UPS 
(Uninterruptible Power Supply) power.  

 

 Rackspace’s UPS power subsystem is N+1 redundant, with instantaneous failover if the 
primary UPS fails.  

 

 If an extended utility power outage occurs, Rackspace’s routinely tested, on-site diesel 
generators can run indefinitely.  

 
Core Routing Equipment 

 All routing equipment is housed in a secured core routing room and fed by its own 
redundant power supply.  

 

 Fiber carriers can only enter Rackspace data centers at disparate points to guard against 
service failure.  

 
Network Technicians 

 Rackspace requires that the networking and security teams working in Rackspace’s data 
centers be certified. Rackspace also requires that they be thoroughly experienced in 
managing and monitoring enterprise level networks.  

 

 Rackspace Certified Network Technicians are trained to the highest industry standards.  
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 661 

Change Management and Product Enhancements

PM AM leverages its benchmarked processes for its change management program. All software 
and system changes are categorized as requiring less than 48 hours, 48 – 72 hours or 72+ hours 
to create and implement. Any changes falling under the 72+ hour category will be performed 
undergoing the full change lifecycle. PM AM keeps all stakeholders informed of the progress as 
part of the required process.



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

662  

IMPLEMENTATION PLANNING | TIMELINE 
 
One of the many advantages that PM AM offers to the City of Brea, there is no need to proceed down 
a new implementation planning and delivery path. As PM AM was handling the City of Brea’s alarm 
program recently and can make program operational in short period, the City will avoid all disruptions 
having to move to another alarm program environment. 
 
The incorporation of any new business processes required to support additional capabilities / 
objectives defined under this solicitation, is easily accomplished by only having to expand the current 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) in an addendum format. 
 
Implementation Plan Overview 

 
In 2010, PM AM developed a very comprehensive implementation plan for establishing best practices 
towards configuring, testing and launching FAMS’ support systems and alarm administration 
processes required to fulfill City’s alarm ordinance. This implementation process was successfully 
executed resulting in the City’s advanced administrative alarm program environment of today. 
 
Project Implementation Timelines 
 
For illustrative purposes, PM AM has listed the project deliverables, timelines and the time required 
by City staff and PM AM staff to successfully implement PM AM’s False Alarm Management Services 
Project. 
 

Deliverables Project Milestones  Responsibility  
Projected 
Timeline 

1 Authorization Letters Sign off City Week 1 

2 Creation of Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOP) and Sign-off PM AM and City Week 1 – 2 

3 Sharing of all program data 
requirements with the city PM AM Week 3 

4 Content for Invoices and 
correspondence creation and approval PM AM and City 

3 Weeks from 
City providing 
approved SOP 

5 Data Import PM AM 

3 Weeks from 
City providing 

their alarm 
program data 

6 Training to City Users* PM AM and City 
5 Weeks from 
City providing 
approved SOP 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

663  

7 Citizen website and FAMS program 
implementation GO LIVE PM AM 

6 Weeks from 
City providing 
approved SOP 

 
PM AM shall be conducted remotely in several sessions on an as needed basis, accompanied by 
detailed training documentation for end users and system administrators. Customized training 
schedules will be crafted for key groups—system administrators, finance staff, and sworn/civilian 
staff—to ensure all participants are proficient and fully equipped to manage and utilize the system 
effectively. 
 
The city retains ownership of all data associated with the alarm permits. At the conclusion of the 
contract term, PM AM will return all of the City's data, including records, files, databases, and related 
project information and materials, in a mutually agreed-upon format. 
 
Throughout the duration of the agreement with the City of Brea, all intellectual property and data 
belonging to the City will be available for download and transfer at no additional cost. This will be 
facilitated through file export options or SFTP or via secure FTPS, ensuring secure and efficient data 
handling. 
 
We also confirm that our policy strictly adheres to not sharing, disseminating, or using any data for 
reporting, analysis, or demonstration purposes without obtaining prior permission from the City. We 
fully commit to respecting and securing the confidentiality and integrity of all data, ensuring 
compliance with your directives and safeguarding your interests. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 664 

STAFF TO BE ASSIGNED

Organization Chart



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 665 

Key Personnel Committed to Project

PM AM believes that excellence is possible when the right people are responsible for specific functions 
of managing FAMS™ related projects. The following organization chart describes the roles and 
responsibilities of PM AM personnel who will oversee the alarm program for the City of Brea.



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

666  

 
 

 
PM AM has adequate staffing of ~40 in 2 call centers. All our staff goes through a rigorous 
hiring process that includes drug & background screenings and I-9 verification. Each team 
member also goes through an extensive training process. The quality of our well-trained staff 
is a primary factor in the many accolades our client municipalities have bestowed on PM AM 
since 2004. 
 
PM AM has a dedicated staff of customer support representatives, these trained staff respond 
to customers phone calls thru a dedicated toll-free number in real time and emails the same 
day, emails that are received late are responded to next day, 99%+ responses include 
comprehensive details based on the question and resolved with a single response. PM AM 
has the Same Day Call Back Policy in place for any voice messages left after office hours, this 
results into high level of customer satisfaction. 

 
Below is a list of key PM AM Managers that will be involved in managing the City’s 
Program: 
 
Implementation Team 
 

Kevin George 
Implementation Specialist/City liaison 
KevinG@pmam.com 
Kevin joined PM AM in May 2023, with 30 years of outstanding customer service 
experience and 25 years of technical experience. Kevin has proven himself as an 
essential employee ready to do what it takes to deliver outstanding service all his 
customers. 

Prior to working for PM AM Kevin worked for PX Technology as an Implementation 
Engineer and Support Analyst. Providing installations and configuration for their 
customers’ custom applications and working closely with medical staff to ensure 
satisfaction with the deployment of their product.  

In his time in the industry, Kevin has served in many roles from leading a team of 
agents in a call center to obtaining Microsoft certifications for supporting servers and 
Microsoft CRM. Kevin has also proven himself as a QA resource using PL SQL to 
confirm the accuracy to changes in Oracle database and testing ETL jobs. 
 
Kevin will collaborate closely with the City's project manager and the Police 
Department's project manager to develop a comprehensive project plan. This plan will 

KEY PERSONNEL COMMITTED TO PROJECT 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

667  

outline key phases such as the kick-off meeting, requirements validation, system setup, 
interface testing, data migration, user acceptance testing, training, transition, and 
ongoing support. 
 
He will lead all meetings which will occur weekly or more frequently as necessary, 
ensuring thorough communication and timely status updates covering weekly 
progress, upcoming activities, any deviations from the schedule with corrective plans, 
resource allocation impacts, areas requiring management focus, and will include 
detailed meeting minutes and action item tracking. This structured approach ensures 
the project remains on schedule 

 
Dhiren Raval 
IT Program Manager 
DhirenR@pmam.com 
With an impressive history of over 20 years in the IT and Program/Project Management 
field, Dhiren is a seasoned IT specialist with PMP Certification excelling in system 
design, implementation, training, documentation, and support. Boasting robust 
communication skills, he adeptly bridges client requirements with developers and 
clarifies developer inquiries to clients. 

Entrusted with the technical realm of FAMS™, Dhiren ensures seamless administrative, 
back-office operations, onboarding new clients on to the FAMS™ platform and 
supervising the application technical support among other duties. 

Operations Team 
 

Pankaj Kumar 
Chief Executive Officer | Executive Project Sponsor             
PankajK@pmam.com 
As a Project Sponsor, Mr. Kumar ensures that all roles and responsibilities are aligned 
to the commitment PM AM made in terms of quality and speed of carrying out all 
alarm administration service processes. He is also available to you to resolve issues 
and constraints that are noticed by you or your citizens during the entire life of the 
project. 
 
Jimmy L Spivey 
Vice President of Sales | Public Safety Division                                              
JimmyS@pmam.com  
Jimmy Spivey recently retired as Chief of the Richardson Texas Police Department. 
Chief Spivey spent many decades in Law Enforcement in Dallas and Richardson with 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

668  

over 10+ years as Police Chief. The Richardson Police Department was the first FAMS 
partner in 2004 with PM AM and Chief Spivey was instrumental in providing key inputs 
to bring down false alarms for the public safety organizations.  
 
Troy Brown 
Director Customer Service  
TroyB@pmam.com  
As director over Customer Service, Troy oversees the day-to-day operations of the call 
centers, and the data entry teams. He is also the primary point of contact through the 
duration of the implementation process and over the lifetime of the program. Troy 
brings 25+ years of call center management experience. He is responsible for 
managing the call centers and Back office of 35-40 employees.  
 
Monica De La Rosa 
Call Center Supervisor 
MonicaR@pmam.com 
Monica would be the Program Lead for the City of Brea and assist with requests and 
develop new campaigns and content to engage citizens to increase their awareness 
about the City’s alarm ordinance. This role and her initiatives are key in customer 
engagement through mailings, email and voicemail communications and marketing 
campaign materials. 
 
Madhura Kotkar 
Payment Specialist 
MadhuraK@pmam.com  
Madhura works diligently to process daily Lockbox files and carries out manual 
research for the payments that did not come with coupons. She is responsible for 
keeping Lockbox and FAMS™ always reconciled. 
 
Olga Salazar 
Alarm Incident Matching & Training Specialist 
OlgaS@pmam.com 
Responsible for reviewing, correcting, and updating all CAD alarm files to ensure 
complete and proper matching of incident data to the correct permits, she maintains 
open communication with city contacts for all incident issues. She also tracks incident 
data and ensures efficient, timely, and accurate matching for billing purposes. 
Additionally, as a training specialist, she supports the call center in onboarding new 
hire agents and facilitates the training of policies and procedures for PM AM. As a 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

669  

senior agent, she assists with customer engagement through mailings, emails, 
voicemail communications, and escalations.  
 
Priscilla Ceballos  
New Installations, Cancellations and Payment Specialist                               
PriscillaC@pmam.com 
Priscilla is responsible updating permits when PM AM receives notification from the 
alarm companies of a change of status to their permit holders. She is also responsible 
for deposits for cities that are not on bank operated Lockbox. 
  
Antonia Rodriguez 
Mail Processing Specialist                                                                      
AntoniaR@pmam.com 
Antonia is responsible for the scanning and batching all correspondence received 
through the lockboxes. This process is vital to PM AM to maintain time-bound 
standards for payment processing. She also ensures that any collateral sent to the 
permit holders on behalf of the city are printed and sent within the designated 
timeframes.  

 
Besides these key individuals, PM has two call centers that are fully trained and staffed with 
call takers, back-office personnel in Dallas and in Houston. In order to support the operation 
PM AM rents approximately 7,000 square foot is space for these two call centers. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

770  

FIRM PROFILE, QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 
 
 

Item Detail 

Company Name:  PM AM Corporation 

Locations: Dallas, TX 5430 LBJ Freeway, Suite 370, Dallas, Texas 75240 

 Houston, TX 4615 Southwest Fwy, Houston, TX 77027 

Postal Address: 5430 LBJ Freeway, Suite 370, Dallas, Texas 75240 

Business Website: https://www.pmam.com/ 

Company Ownership: Corporation  

Primary Contact: James McReynolds 

Title: Director of Sales 

Email Address: JamesM@PMAM.com 

Phone Number: 972-573-4824 

Fax Number: 972-831-7499 
 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 771 

PM AM Corporation (C-Corp) is a 
privately-owned minority and 
woman-owned enterprise 
incorporated in 1999 in the State of 
Texas. Company headquarters are 
located in Dallas, TX with additional 
offices in Houston, TX. All FAMS 
services are provided from these two 
centers located in United States. PM 
AM has been providing alarm 
management services since 2004 and 
the majority of the company’s 
revenue is derived from false alarm 
management solutions.



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 772 

PM AM has earned several IT Awards and certifications.

CJIS Ready
SSAE-16 SOC 1 – Type II
PCI | DSS Compliant
Microsoft “Sequel 2005 Front Runner Status” – Only 185 companies worldwide
Microsoft “Sequel 2008 Front Runner Status”
Microsoft Gold Certified Partner 
Microsoft ISV (Independent System Vendor) - Under 12 % of Microsoft partners have 
achieved this level
Microsoft Custom Development Solutions Competency Certification
UiPath Automation Excellence Awards 2022 - Finance and Accounting Process 
Automation

    

We take immense pride in our accomplishment of becoming a "CJIS Ready" (Criminal Justice
Information Services) solution. This distinguished certification was conferred upon PM AM 
following an exhaustive examination of our systems, processes, protocols, and the team 
supporting the FAMS platform.

The PM AM | FAMS payment processing process is regularly audited, allowing it to earn its 
SOC1 – SSAE 16 Type 2 certification. Cities are specifically interested in this certification as 
this provides them with the comfort that PM AM has proper controls to manage money and 
properly accounting for it. 

PM AM remains compliant with PCI | DSS compliance standards as applicable.

PM AM proudly holds the status of a Microsoft Gold Certified Partner, a prestigious 
certification that underscores our commitment to excellence and innovation. This recognition 
from Microsoft provides PM AM with an exclusive benefit of 40 hours of expert consultation 
from seasoned Microsoft Technology professionals. This guidance plays an integral role as we 
continually strive to infuse cutting-edge advancements into our FAMS™ solution. This 

AWARDS AND CERTIFICATIONS



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

773  

partnership not only highlights our alignment with industry-leading technology standards but 
also empowers us to leverage Microsoft's vast technical expertise. By doing so, we ensure that 
our FAMS™ system remains at the forefront of innovation, offering our clients robust, reliable, 
and state-of-the-art solutions tailored to their specific needs and requirements.  
 

 PM AM holds the esteemed position of a Microsoft ISV (Independent System Vendor) 
Partner, a recognition that underlines our adherence to best practices and quality standards. 
This partnership began with an opportunity provided by Microsoft for partners to present their 
solutions for detailed examination. Microsoft's team of experts meticulously reviewed various 
aspects of our solution, assessing compliance with Microsoft's prescribed best practices. Upon 
their satisfaction with our alignment with these standards, we were awarded the ISV status. 
We proudly submitted our FAMS system to Microsoft for this evaluation and successfully 
achieved the ISV accreditation. This accomplishment is particularly significant, considering that 
less than 12% of Microsoft Certified Partners have earned this status.  

 
Please visit the following Microsoft website and search for keyword “FAMS”.  

 
http://pinpoint.microsoft.com/en-US/services/False-Alarm-Management-and-Reduction-

Solution-4294979079-4295615895?LocId=-1 
 

 PM AM is a recipient of the prestigious UiPath Automation Excellence Award 2022 in 
Finance & Accounting Process Automation for the innovative use of UiPath Automation to 
automate its billing and month-end closing processes. PM AM FAMS Billing automation is a 
unique solution that completes the entire billing lifecycle right up to bank integration and 
check clearance. The solution validates over 3000+ rules every cycle which has resulted in 
improved efficiency and accuracy of the process. The solution brings the power of UI Path, 
OCR, and API Integration to simplify a complex process catering to over 150 clients with 
diverse requirements.  
 

  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 774 

State Of The Art Call Centers | Protection Against Disasters

PM AM is committed to delivering uninterrupted alarm administration services for the City of Brea, 
operating primarily from our Dallas, TX office location.

We have strategically established two distinct processing and call center service sites in Dallas, TX and 
Houston, TX, ensuring redundancy and resilience in our operations. While the likelihood of physical 
or man-made disasters is remote, we are well-prepared to handle such eventualities. PM AM 
maintains a complete mirror-image backup of all processes, equipment, and essential personnel 
across locations. If one site were to be incapacitated, we could restore service to the city within 30 
minutes at an alternate site.

 
 

           

DALLAS, TX                 HOUSTON, TX

PM AM has invested substantially in thought, time, and resources to set up state-of-the-art customer 
care center locations in Dallas, TX and Houston, TX. Our call support center network is ingeniously 
designed, allowing calls to be diverted seamlessly and efficiently between the two centers, ensuring 
uninterrupted service to our clients.

An Example:  Hurricane Harvey, Aug 28th to Sept 1st, 2017, the City of Houston was 
impacted by torrential rains and flooding due to Hurricane Harvey. The mayor’s office 
declared that the City’s administrative offices would remain closed and PM AM Houston 
support office was closed due to flooding in the office building. 

PM AM’s cloud-based phone system was configured, within 30 minutes, to re-route all calls 
intended for the Houston support center to PM AM’s Dallas support center. Even though 
the City’s offices were closed, Houston citizens were able to still call into and speak with 
PM AM CSRs regarding all their alarm questions.

VALUE ADD FEATURES AND SERVICES



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 775 

PM AM is unique in the industry, providing an option for in-bound callers to leave a voice mail 
message for those calling after normal business support hours. PM AM’s standard Service Level 
Agreement (SLA) is to return these voice mail messages the next business day.

Other cities that have chosen other industry players to manage their alarm program have discovered 
that no capability exists to leave a voice mail message after office hours. Callers are requested to call 
back during normal business hours.

PM AM Advantages

PM AM derives its advantages from its commitment to “incremental innovation” on an on-going basis. 
PM AM identifies two/three key areas every year for innovation/modernization and given the scope 
of the goals, sets aside a budget every year to undertake R&D so our partner cities can benefit from 
a solution that always remains current to the time. 

This strategic approach ensures that our partner cities consistently benefit from a solution that stays 
relevant and responsive to the current times, challenges, platforms, and emerging trends. By focusing 
on the diverse needs of different demographics, including millennials, baby boomers, and the aging 
population within their municipalities. 

The following are a few examples:

Innovative Compliance Algorithm - 2020: This represents PM AM’s incremental innovation 
focused on further increasing ordinance compliance based on location (socio-economic 
demographic analysis) of the residence. 

FAMS iOS and Android Smartphone App - In 2018, PM AM started offering an ultra-modern 
iOS and Android smartphone app with 8 functions along with push notifications through touch 
ID function. Now, the citizens of our partner cities can carry out many functions like reviewing the 
City’s False Alarm Ordinance, making payments, viewing, and updating their key holder 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

776  

information, historical information on false alarms, invoices etc. They can also access a variety of 
educational materials to help prevent future false alarms.  
 

 Scan to Pay - In 2017, PM AM started offering a unique state-of-the-art payment solution to 
citizens. Your citizens can now scan invoices through smartphones to pay invoices on the go. This 
solution is extremely handy for the millennial and others that conduct a majority of their business 
through their phones.  

 
 USPS Mail Delivered | Guaranteed - In 2014, PM AM developed innovative processes which 

allow us to track the delivery of invoices and notices sent to citizens. This information is extremely 
helpful for our partner municipalities when dealing with walk-in customer inquiries, appeals etc. 
as it provides the date and time of when invoices were delivered to the citizen doorstep. This 
information is integrated into FAMS directly from the United States Postal Services (USPS) 
solution. PM AM has reasons to believe that it is the only company to offer this service.  

 
 Business/Franchise Chain Engagement - In 2013, PM AM and its strong user base were busy 

brainstorming and looking at ways to further enhance the collection of unpaid invoices by 
businesses/franchise chains. A unique service offering was added to FAMS portfolio that was once 
again 100% web-based and made available to business/franchise chains at no cost. Our user 
community has since seen an upsurge in payments from this group of customers.  

 
 Citizen experience through videos - In 2009, PM AM was the first service provider to 

introduce instructional videos, which assist citizens in learning permit and payment processes 
before actually undertaking these functions on FAMS citizen website. This function is no longer 
unique as it has been copied. The reason PM AM has included this is to assure the city that PM 
AM’s yearly goals and the R&D were invested in ensuring that our partner cities are always current 
for its citizens’ outreach.  

 
 Integrated Document Printing - In 2008, PM AM partnered with Pitney Bowes (Listed at NYSE 

with $2.45 Billion market cap), an industry leader to integrate FAMS invoices. This time proven 
solution assured our customers that invoices being mailed will have zero chance of an error during 
the stuffing process. This was an expensive and ahead-of-its time solution for a company of PM 
AM’s size; however, it ensured the extraordinary growth that PM AM was experiencing at the time 
would have no bearing on its ability to continue to perform. These innovations and investments 
have saved PM AM and our partners from negative media.  
 

 Alarm Company Engagement - In 2005, a year after initial launch, PM AM realized that an 
important stakeholder to alarm management was not included in the ecosystem of the solution 
that is used by cities. PM AM collaborated with municipalities and alarm companies to identify 
functions, features, pain points, and reports that will help municipalities and involve alarm 
companies through a self-service intuitive platform that is secure through password securities.  

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

777  

 Multi-Factor Authentication - In 2022, to enhance the security framework, PM AM 
implemented its SaaS version of FAMS™ multi-factor authentication, necessitating users to furnish 
multiple forms of identification prior to gaining access. This move significantly mitigated the risk 
of unauthorized access, ensuring a robust defense even if a malicious actor were to acquire a 
user's password, thus becoming a pivotal element in this contemporary cyber security strategy. 

 
 100% Cloud-Based FAMS solution - In 2004, PM AM was uniquely innovative in its approach 

to launching a 100% web-based citizen portal and administrative portal for alarm permit 
management and false alarm reduction. All components of FAMS were web-based and these 
functions and reports were accessible to our partner cities through a browser without introducing 
any foreign- devices. PM AM has maintained this 100% web-based function to this date, with all 
its innovations available through a browser.  
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

778  

 
 

 
PM AM serves a current client universe of 525+ municipal and county jurisdictions across the country 
with the various solutions we have developed specifically for the law enforcement and public safety 
industry.  
 
PM AM has been providing false alarm management services since 2004 and has extensive experience 
in working with municipalities throughout the country delivering exemplary service. Through these 
partnerships, we have extensive experience working with municipalities similar to the City which 
provided success stories and testimonials as shared by our partner cities. 
 

 

PM AM CUSTOMER PROFILE | EXPERIENCES 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

779  

FAMS Customer Success – Oakland Police Department, CA 
 

Since 2008, PM AM has had the pleasure of working with four 
different city Project Mangers. We have made on-site visits with 
each person and worked to create a relationship with each 
individual.  

PM AM assisted Oakland in implementing their new alarm 
ordinance in 2009. Oakland’s goal for the new ordinance was to 
reduce the number of false alarms, increase the number of paid 
alarm permit holders and reduce the amount of administrative 
time spent operating their alarm program. 

The numbers speak for themselves. Permit holders have more 
than doubled, from under 13,000 in 2009- 2010 to more than 

26,000 today. The number of alarms has continued to fall from a high of 24,000 in 2009 – 2010 to 
under 15,000 today.  

 
Additional assistance provided to the City of Oakland by PM AM includes:  

 Onsite training provided to the Alarm Program Manager on alarm equipment and its 
operation. 
 

 Consultations on alarm response issues or ordinance questions are immediately provided 
when requested by the Alarm Program Manager. 
 

 Continually updating the Alarm Program Manager on major changes in the alarm industry and 
technological advancements. 
 

 The Oakland School District has taken advantage of this technology. 
 

 The Oakland Alarm Program Manager has requested our expertise on drafting new revisions 
to the present alarm ordinance. PM AM will leverage our vast knowledge of alarm ordinance 
best practices and administrative experience to assist the city in the development of the alarm 
ordinance. 

  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 880 

In 2009, the City of Houston entrusted PM AM with the False 
Alarm Billing and Tracking Services contract, previously 
overseen by EDS. This transition led to an immediate and 
tangible reduction in the administrative staffing requirements 
for both City personnel and contracted staff.

The partnership with PM AM brought about remarkable results 
for the city, manifesting in consistent year-over-year revenue 
growth. This success was achieved through PM AM's proactive 
approach in introducing imaginative and cutting-edge 
techniques to enhance alarm ordinance compliance. 
Consequently, the City saw a surge in the number of permits 

issued and renewed, as well as a significant boost in the collection of false alarm fines.

At the commencement of PM AM's contract award in 2009, the revenue reported by the then ARA 
director stood at $6.4 million. Fast forward to today, the revenues collected and realized are just under 
$12 million, reflecting an impressive increase of 85%.

This notable achievement not only exemplifies our effectiveness in leveraging innovative strategies 
but also underscores our commitment to driving value for our clients. The City of Houston's 
experience is a testament to the potential and efficacy of our unique approach to service delivery, 
focusing on client goals, responsiveness, and continuous improvement.

FAMS Customer Success – City of Houston, TX ARA Department



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

881  

CLIENT REFERENCES 
 

PM AM has been providing false alarm management services to 140+ cities in the last 20 years and 
has extensive experience in working with jurisdictions throughout the country. It is with considerable 
pride that out of the 140+ cities that PM AM currently serves we present to you the following tree 
references. 

 
Client Name City of Oakland, CA 

Description of Services False Alarm Reduction Program 
Population 440,646 

Contact Name Juanita Velasquez 
Contact Phone 510-238-6680 
Contact Email jvelasquez@oaklandca.gov 

Effective Date of Contract January 2010 – till date 
 

Client Name City of Ventura, CA 
Description of Services False Alarm Reduction Program 

Population 110,763 
Contact Name Nona Palmer 
Contact Phone 805-339-4392 
Contact Email npalmer@cityofventura.ca.gov 

Effective Date of Contract March 2023 – till date 
 

Client Name City of Arcadia, CA 
Description of Services False Alarm Reduction Program 

Population 54,857 
Contact Name Amber Abeyta 
Contact Phone 626-574-5136 
Contact Email aabeyta@arcadiaca.gov 

Effective Date of Contract August 2019 – till date 
 

Client Name City of Glendora, CA 
Description of Services False Alarm Reduction Program 

Population 50,824 
Contact Name Kandi Tidwell – Record Supervisor 
Contact Phone 626-914-8271 
Contact Email ktidwell@glendorapd.org 

Effective Date of Contract August 2021 – till date 
 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

882  

PRICING 
 

Pricing for FAMS (Turn-Key Services) 

PM AM presents the following revenue-sharing plan with the City of Brea, which details the 
distribution of revenue based on the categories detailed below: total permit fees, renewal fees, false 
alarm fines, reinstatement fees, civil penalties, late fees, alarm company civil penalties, as well as all 
other applicable fees or fines related to the alarm ordinance. 

This proposal includes expenses linked to the execution of the specified services, encompassing 
materials, supervision, labor, delivery, and associated costs, in accordance with the provided RFP 
response. 
 
PM AM proposes the below split of monthly alarm program fees collected: 
 

City of Brea PM AM Corporation 

74% 26% 

 
The charges of cost of mailing incurred and all bank charges paid in connection with the Services 
rendered under this Agreement shall be paid by the program before the split of monthly revenue 
collected. 

PM AM’s share of revenue shall be payable to PM AM, from all payments received by the City from 
alarm program billing undertaken by PM AM.  
 
Interfaces - PM AM will provide the FAMS Interface for free for the interface integration the City of 
Brea’s Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) system, but any cost payable to the CAD system providers 
would be the responsibility of the City of Brea. 
 
Third Party Collections - PM AM has established a good workflow for the collection services, 
however, should the City of Brea desire to engage a third-party collection agency then PM AM is 
willing to integrate the data exchange and cooperate to work with the third-party collection agency 
at no extra cost.  
 
Any collections made by a third-party agency are supported by PM AM, however, any revenue realized 
through their efforts shall be communicated to PM AM and PM AM’s revenue share shall be paid as 
stated above from such realized revenue. 
 
PM AM will pay for all other costs including paper stock, educational materials, set-up fees, equipment 
(including hardware, hosting charges, and software) tools, personnel, utilities, etc. that are required 
for administering the false alarm billing and tracking program for the County. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

883  

 
 
PM AM does not charge any fees towards ongoing system maintenance, including… 
 

 No…  Implementation Fees 
 No…  Annual Renewal Fees 
 No…  Data Conversion Fees 
 No…  Pre / Post Implementation Technical Support Fees 

 
In summary, PM AM is committed continuing to be as responsive to the City’s false alarm reduction 
and its program financial goals as it possibly can.  
 
The PM AM | FAMS platform is powered by 100% Cloud and Web-based architecture to continue to 
meet the “24/7, real-time, browser-based” administrative and executive needs of the City, as well as 
to provide the desired interactive and convenient experience for its citizens.  
 
The PM AM | FAMS solution proposed is the only 100% Cloud and Web-based system in the alarm 
administrative services industry meeting this standard and requires no foreign devices or software 
to be introduced into the City’s technology footprint. 
 
Contract Statements 
 
PM AM submits this proposal for an initial term of one (1) year and subsequent four (4) one year 
period.  
 
It is the intent of PM AM to negotiate a Service Agreement with the City that addresses both the 
needs of the City and PM AM. We have included a Service Agreement Template at the end of this 
proposal for the City’s review. 
 
All data relating to the alarm permits are owned by the city. PM AM shall return the City’s data 
including records, files, databases and related project information and material in an agreed-upon 
format at the end of the contract term. 
 
Termination by Contractor in the Event of Fee Reduction by changes to the City Ordinance – 
Should the City change its ordinances during the term of the Agreement which provide for a reduction 
in the fees, and or related fines and charges, PM AM reserves the express right to re-enter into good 
faith negotiations with the City to modify the fee schedule and pricing accordingly. PM AM shall give 
the City written notice of its desire to renegotiate.  
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

884  

STANDARD FORM A - NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT FORM 
   



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

885  

  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

886  

STANDARD FORM B - REFERENCES FORM 
   



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

887  

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

888  

STANDARD FORM C - SUBCONTRACTORS LIST-STANDARD 
FORM 
   



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

889  

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

990  

STANDARD FORM D - STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE OR 
EXCEPTIONS FORM 
   



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

991  

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

992  

Section / 
Page # 

Term, Condition, 
Specification Exception & Benefit to City City A or D 

Section 4 Clarification of 
Commencement Date – 
Section 4 provides that 
Agreement shall commence 
on _____________ date 
defined as Effective Date. 

PMAM is willing to accept this, but for the 
City's benefit, we suggest the following 
modification: 

(a) The provision should be clarified to 
incorporate the Contract Implementation 
Date concept from Section 2.1 of PM AM’s 
standard agreement. This approach ensures 
that the Agreement takes effect based on 
the actual start of Services by the City and 
PM AM. 
In PM AM’s experience, there have been 
instances where the City becomes involved 
in other projects that take precedence over 
implementing the false alarm management 
solution, causing delays. Therefore, we 
request that the implementation date be 
considered as the start date for determining 
the contract's duration. 

 

Add Collection of Pre-
Termination Accounts 
Receivable  

We at PM AM suggest the following: 

1. We need to include a provision in the Fee 
Schedule requiring the City to pay PM AM its 
fee split on accounts receivable as of the 
termination date, for any amounts collected 
within 90 days after the termination of PM 
AM’s services. 

We request this provision based on an 
industry business practice: we send out 
invoices for permits that are due to expire at 
a future date, typically up to 60 days in 
advance. Consequently, at the time of 
contract termination, there will be a number 
of outstanding invoices that are not yet due 
and therefore not paid whereas, PM AM has 
already invested the necessary money and 
resources to send out these notices. 
Therefore, we believe it is fair that any funds 
the City collects within 90 days after the 
contract ends should be shared with PM AM 
according to the agreed contract terms. 

 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

993  

Section / 
Page # 

Term, Condition, 
Specification Exception & Benefit to City City A or D 

Section 6 Clarification of Record 
Retention Period – Section 6 
of City Agreement requires 
PM AM to maintain books, 
documents, papers and 
accounting records for 4 years 
from date of final payment. 

We at PM AM suggest the following: 

Since PM AM will hand over all data to the 
City at the end of the contract, it will be very 
difficult for PM AM to maintain any data 
beyond this point. This is due to the 
sensitive nature of the data and the 
common practice that cities typically do not 
want any third party to retain such data 
after the conclusion of a contract. 

Section 15A Section 15A permits City to 
terminate Agreement with or 
without cause by giving 10 
days’ written notice. 

We at PM AM suggest the following: 

PM AM is willing to accept this but believes 
the following would be more beneficial to 
the City: 

(a) Section 6.1.1 of PM AM’s standard 
agreement permits the City to terminate 
without cause after a 90-day notice and cure 
period. 

This would be the best option for the City. In 
our experience, it typically takes about 90 
days for cities to take over the program, as 
there are many tasks that need to be 
completed during this transition period. 
These tasks include the closure of post office 
boxes, changes to phone numbers, website 
address updates, and informing all citizens 
about the upcoming changes. A 90-day 
notice period ensures a smooth transition 
and allows adequate time for these 
necessary adjustments.  

 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

994  

Section / 
Page # 

Term, Condition, 
Specification Exception & Benefit to City City A or D 

Section 16 Section 16 of City Agreement 
provides that all documents 
written materials, ideas, 
concepts, source code, object 
code, electronic files etc. 
created or developed by PM 
AM in performance of 
Agreement (collectively, 
“Work Product”) shall be 
considered works made for 
hire and belong to the City. 

We at PM AM suggest the following: 

(a) We suggest this provision be deleted as 
it is not applicable to this Agreement where 
PM AM is acting as a billing and collection 
agency for the City and not designing a 
product for the City. 

(b) Section 17 of the City Agreement covers 
City Data and states that City data is owned 
by the City. Section 17 should be sufficient 
to protect the City's interests. 

(c) At a minimum, Section 16 should be 
modified to provide that PM AM’s software 
is solely owned by PM AM. 

Section 17C Confirmation of Use of 
Cloud-Based Storage  

FAMS is a Cloud Based Solution 

Exhibit A Exhibit A, Scope of Work, 
III(a) provides that all fees 
collected shall be deposited 
in an account controlled by 
PM AM. 

We at PM AM suggest the following: 

PM AM is willing to agree to a PM AM 
controlled account, but the following should 
be added for mail-in payments:  

(a) This provision should be modified to 
permit PM AM to open a P.O. Box and bank 
account on the City’s behalf to meet this 
expectation as laid out in the RFP.   
As you can see that all the exceptions that 
we have pointed out are not to lose any 
points but given the very special nature of 
this service these provisions are requested 
and we hope and believe that these will not 
be held against us to take/deduct any 
points. 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

995  

STANDARD FORM E - STATUS OF PAST AND PRESENT 
CONTRACTS FORM 
   



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

996  

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

997  

STANDARD FORM F - INSURANCE COMMITMENT FORM 
   



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

998  

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

999  

STANDARD FORM G - PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS RESPONSE 
FORM 
   



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1100  

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1101  

  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1102  

STANDARD FORM H - FIRM PROPOSAL FORM 
   



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1103  

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1104  

STANDARD FORM I - PRICE FORM 
   



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1105  

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1106  

SAMPLE PM AM SERVICE AGREEMENT TEMPLATE 
 

AGREEMENT FOR ALARM PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 

This Agreement for Alarm Program Administration Services (the "Agreement") is made and entered into in 
Dallas County, Texas by and between PMAM Corporation, a Texas corporation whose address is 5430 LBJ 
Freeway, Suite 370 Dallas, TX 75240, (the "PM AM") and the City of _____________, State of 
________________ (the "City") to be effective upon the date of execution of this Agreement by the City 
Manager or the City’s authorized designee as set forth on the Signature Page hereto (the “Effective Date”). 

Recitals 

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the services of PM AM to provide certain installation, 
conversion, operation and service of a False Alarm Management Program including the collection services in 
accordance with the City’s alarm ordinances in accordance with the terms of this Agreement (as hereinafter 
defined) (collectively, the “Services”); and 

NOW THEREFORE, in exchange for the mutual covenants set forth herein and other valuable 
consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

Article 1 
Scope of Services 

 
1.1 The parties agree that PM AM shall perform the Services in accordance with the terms and conditions 

of the City’s alarm ordinance and this Agreement. The parties' agreement consists of this Agreement 
and the following Exhibits, which are incorporated herein and made a part hereof by this reference 
thereto: 

 
   Scope of Work and Contract Requirements – Exhibit A 
   Pricing and Receipt of Collections - Exhibit B 
 
In the event of a conflict in interpretation, the documents shall control in the following order: (ii) the 
Agreement, (ii) Exhibit A, and (iii) Exhibit B, as further modified by the written agreement by the 
parties as a result of software implemented and deployed by the parties. 

Article 2 
Terms of Agreement 

2.1 The initial term of this Agreement shall be for a period of three (3) years commencing on the Contract 
Implementation Date (as hereinafter defined) and ending on the day immediately preceding the third 
anniversary of the Contract Implementation Date (the ‘Initial Term”), subject to earlier termination as 
set forth in Article 6 hereof. Upon the expiration of the Initial Term, this Agreement shall be subject to 
automatic extension from year to year thereafter (each an “Extended Term”) on the same terms and 
conditions as set forth herein, unless either party notifies the other in writing at least sixty (60) days 
prior to the expiration of the Initial Term or the Extended Term, as applicable, that such party will not 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1107  

further extend the term of this Agreement. As used herein, the term “Contract Implementation Date” 
shall mean the first day of the calendar month for which PM AM commences billing for its Services to 
the City hereunder following the installation of the False Alarm Management Program.  

2.2 PM AM shall receive compensation, including authorized reimbursements including reimbursement 
for any City fees paid by PM AM to the City to permit PM AM to provide the Services or Special 
Services hereunder, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth in pricing 
included in this Agreement as Exhibit “B”. The compensation is based on a revenue sharing model. In 
order to facilitate the sharing of revenues as set forth in Exhibit “B” hereto, the City authorizes PM AM 
to open a P.O. Box and bank account on the City’s behalf.  

2.3 At any time during the term of this Agreement, the City may request that PM AM perform Special 
Services for additional compensation to be agreed upon by the City and PM AM prior to the 
performance of any Special Services by PM AM. As used herein, Special Services means any work 
which is determined by the City to be necessary for this Agreement, but which the parties did not 
reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement and which PM AM 
agrees to perform. If the City and PM AM reach an agreement on the performance of Special Services, 
PM AM shall undertake such Special Services after receiving the authorization from the City.  

2.4 The City acknowledges and agrees that PM AM reserves the right to offer, and may offer, similar 
services to other government agencies under similar terms and conditions as stated herein except that 
the revenue share percentage allocated to PM AM and the other government agency may be negotiated 
between PM AM and such other agency based on the specific revenue expectations, agency 
reimbursed costs, the exact scope of services to be provided by PM AM, and other agency 
requirements. PM AM acknowledges and agrees that the City shall have no responsibility or liability 
whatsoever hereunder with respect to any agreement entered into between PM AM and such other 
government agency. 

Article 3 
PM AM’s Responsibilities 

3.1 Subject to the limitations hereinafter set forth, PM AM agrees to and shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the City, its officers, and management employees from and against all claims, damages, losses 
and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, litigation costs and expenses, arising out of the 
performance of the Services or Special Services, caused solely by any grossly negligent act or omission 
of PM AM, or any subcontractor of PM AM. Lack of insurance coverage does not negate PM AM's 
obligation under this paragraph of this Agreement. 

3.2 At all times during the term of this Agreement, PM AM shall be independent contractor and shall not 
be an employee of the City. The City shall have the right to control Contactor only insofar as the results 
of PM AM's services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. The City shall not have the right to control 
the means by which PM AM accomplishes services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 

3.3 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in no event whatsoever shall 
PM AM be liable for damages attributable to its actions or inactions,  or its subcontractor’s actions or 
inactions, with respect to the Services or Special Services provided hereunder, whether for 
indemnification or otherwise, in excess of the sum of: (i) any insurance proceeds actually received by 
PM AM, or paid by PM AM’s insurance carrier to the City, with respect to the claim for indemnification 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1108  

by the City hereunder, and (ii) the amount of fees actually retained by PM AM under this Agreement 
as its fee during the six (6) months immediately preceding the act or omission that generated PM AM’s 
indemnification obligation hereunder; provided, however, the limitations on the indemnification 
obligations of PM AM set forth in this Section shall not apply to the obligation of PM AM to pay the 
City its share of the collected revenues as set forth in this Agreement.  

3.4 Notwithstanding any other obligation of PM AM hereunder, in no event shall PM AM be liable for any 
indirect, incidental, special, consequential or punitive damages, including loss of fees, profits or 
income, arising directly or indirectly out of the provision or non-provision of Services or Special 
Services hereunder, whether or not PM AM had any knowledge that such damages might be incurred. 

3.5 If PM AM is required to indemnify the City hereunder, PM AM may assume the defense of the City 
with counsel reasonably acceptable to the City at the expense of PM AM. In addition, the City may 
engage its own counsel to participate in any defense in any such proceeding at the City’s expense. 

Article 4 
The City’s Responsibility 

4.1 The City shall cooperate with and assist PM AM by, among other things, making available, as 
reasonably requested by PM AM, management decisions, personnel, information, approvals, IT 
assistance and acceptance that are needed by PM AM to carry out its obligation under this agreement. 

Article 5 
Insurance Requirements 

5.1  At the current time, PM AM does not maintain any offices in the State in which the City is located, nor 
does PM AM maintain any employees in such State. All Services required to be performed by PM AM 
hereunder shall be performed by PM AM at its offices in the State of Texas or elsewhere outside the 
State in which the City is located. PM AM shall, at its own expense, purchase, maintain and keep in 
force during the term of this Agreement such insurance as set forth below. PM AM shall not commence 
work under this Agreement until it has obtained all the insurance required under this Agreement and 
such insurance has been approved by the City, nor shall PM AM allow any subcontractor to commence 
work on its subcontract until all similar insurance of the subcontractor has been obtained and approved. 
The insurance requirements shall remain in effect throughout the term of this Agreement. PM AM, at 
PM AM's sole cost, shall purchase and maintain, during the term of this Agreement, insurance coverage 
providing not less than the following: 

5.1.1 Comprehensive or Commercial General Liability: $500,000 combined single limit per 
occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury or death and property damage. The coverage's 
under this policy shall include those found in the Comprehensive General Liability Broad Form 
endorsement. This policy shall have no standard coverage removed by exclusions, unless 
approved by the City. 

5.1.2 Automobile Liability: $500,000 combined single limit per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage. Coverage should be provided as a "Code 1," any auto. 

5.1.3 Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability: Statutory. Employers Liability policy limits 
of $100,000 for each accident, $500,000 policy limit- Disease. The insurer shall agree to waive 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1109  

all rights of subrogation against the City, its officials, employees, and volunteers for losses 
arising from the activities under this Agreement.  

5. 2 All insurance policies, other than Professional Liability, provided under this Agreement shall be 
written on an occurrence basis. 

5.3 The City shall be named as additional insured on the General Liability and Automobile Liability 
insurance policies. These insurance policies shall contain the appropriate additional insured 
endorsement signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. If PM AM, 
for any reason, fails to maintain insurance coverage which is required under this agreement, the failure 
shall be deemed a material breach of contract. The City, at its sole option, may terminate this 
Agreement. 

5.4  Each insurance policy shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be canceled, reduced in 
coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been provided to the City, 
or in the event of cancellation because of nonpayment of premium, that the insurer shall give written 
notice to the City not later than ten (10) days following cancellation. 

5.5  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best rating of no less than A:VII. Insurers must be duly 
authorized to transact business in the State of Texas. 

5.6 Certificates of Insurance, if requested shall be submitted on the Accord form only. Certificates and 
endorsements effecting coverage required by this clause shall be forwarded to the City’s Purchasing 
Department. 

Article 6 
Termination of Agreement 

6.1 Grounds for Termination 

6.1.1 The City shall inform  PM AM in writing if PM AM fails to perform its duties under this 
Agreement with a ninety (90) days window to correct the problem. PM AM shall remedy the 
problem within ninety (90) days from the receipt of such notice. Should PM AM fail to remedy 
the problem within ninety (90) days, the City may terminate this Agreement. 

6.1.2 PM AM's Fee Schedule and pricing for any and all Services to be provided by PM AM to the 
City under this Agreement have been set, established, and agreed to be based upon the current 
provisions of applicable City ordinances relating to alarms. Should said ordinances change at 
any time during the term of this Agreement to reduce the applicable fee, fines, and charges, 
then PM AM reserves the express right to enter into good faith negotiations with the City to 
modify the Fee Schedule and pricing accordingly. If, within thirty (30) days of notice from PM 
AM to the City of its desire to so renegotiate, the parties are unable to reach an agreement 
mutually acceptable to both parties, then PM AM reserves the right to terminate this 
Agreement. Said termination shall not be deemed to be a default by PM AM under this 
Agreement, PM AM shall be paid all fees and costs due and owing PM AM as of the date of 
said termination. 

6.1.3 PM AM may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the City if the City misuses or 
attempts to appropriate the proprietary software of PM AM.  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1110  

6.2 Effect of Termination  

6.2.1 If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein, the City may require PM AM to provide all 
finished and/or unfinished data and other information of any kind possessed by PM AM in 
connection with the performance of Services under this Agreement. PM AM shall be required 
to provide such information within a reasonable period of time of receipt of the request not to 
exceed thirty (30) days. Specifically, in the event the City shall terminate this Agreement: 

6.2.1a All data relating to alarm permits shall be owned by the City. Upon termination of 
this Agreement, PM AM shall promptly deliver to the City all data in MS-SQL 
format.  

6.2.1b. PM AM retains all right and title to the Application software, including but not 
limited to, all publication rights, all development rights, all reproductions rights, 
and all rights that may follow from the commercial development of the software. 
The City does not acquire any ownership rights to the Application software. The 
Software is protected in favor of PM AM, as well as any future registered 
trademarks, are trademarks of PM AM. 

6.2.1c. The proprietary software is considered loaned to the City during the duration of 
this Agreement as laid out in this Agreement and the City will not have any access 
to PM AM's proprietary software after the conclusion of the Agreement. 

6.2.1d. The City shall pay PM AM all fees and costs due and owing PM AM as of the date 
of said termination. 

6.2.1e. The provisions of this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

Article 7 
Confidentiality of Information 

7.1 At all times, PM AM shall recognize the City's sole and exclusive ownership of all information 
provided by the City, and the sole and exclusive right and jurisdiction of the City to control the use of 
this information. Similarly, the City recognizes that the proprietary software described in Section 
6.2.1c. above is owned by PM AM and the City has no rights or claim thereto. 

7.2 Each party agrees that neither it, nor its employees, subsidiaries, subcontractors, or agents shall 
disclose confidential information of the other party, to any person or to anyone except as necessary to 
perform  its obligations under this Agreement, without the expressed written permission of the other 
party or unless required to do so by law. City shall promptly inform PM AM if City receives a 
public records request for information designated by PM AM as confidential so as to provide 
PM AM an opportunity to object.  

7.3 Each party further agrees that in the event that any documents containing confidential information of 
the other party should be improperly used or  removed in any way from the possession or control of 
the other party by a party, the breaching party shall immediately notify the other party orally and in 
writing, and shall join with the other party at their request in taking such reasonable steps as the owner 
of the confidential information may deem advisable to enjoin the misuse and regain possession of such 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1111  

confidential information, or steps otherwise necessary for the protection of the owner’s rights and the 
confidentiality of the information. 

7.4 PM AM agrees to return any and all data furnished and information derived hereunder promptly upon 
a request by the City and its authorized designee. 

Article 8 
General Provisions 

8.1 This Agreement and its attachments constitute the sole and only agreement between the parties and 
supersede any prior understandings written or oral agreements between the parties with respect to this 
subject matter. 

8.2 Except as otherwise provided herein, neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, interests or 
obligations hereunder may be assigned by any of the parties hereto without the prior written consent 
of the other party; provided that PM AM may assign this Agreement to its successor without consent 
by the City by giving written notice to the City. This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the 
benefit of the parties to it and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, 
successors, and assigns.  

8.3 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas; and venue for any action 
concerning this Agreement shall be in Dallas County, Texas. 

8.4 This Agreement may be amended by the mutual written agreement of the parties. 

8.5 In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason be 
held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability shall not effect any other provisions, and the Agreement shall be construed as if such 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained in it. 

8.6 Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder may be sent by first class mail or overnight 
courier to the address specified below, or to such other party or address as either party may designate 
in writing, and shall be deemed received three (3) days after delivery set forth herein: 

 
City of ________,___: ___________________ 

___________________ 
  ___________________ 
  ___________________ 
  
PM AM:   PMAM Corporation 
   Attn: Mr. Pankaj Kumar, President 

 5430 LBJ Freeway, Suite 370  
 Dallas, TX 75240 

8.7 This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original.  
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1112  

(Signature Page Follows on Next Page) 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1113  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 

__________ day of __________________ in the year ___________. 

City of _____________ PMAM Corporation 

By: ________________________________  By: ___________________________ 
Name: ________________________________   PANKAJ KUMAR, 
Title: ________________________________   Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
Attest: Attest: 
 
 
By: ________________________________  By: ___________________________ 
Name: ________________________________  Name:  ___________________________ 
Title: ________________________________  Title:  ___________________________ 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1114  

Exhibit A 

Scope of Work and Requirements 

Scope of Work:  

It will be PM AM's responsibility to provide, install, and operate the Professional Services Alarm Management 
Services Program based on a "False Alarm Management Solution" system hereafter referred to as a FAMS 
system and all other necessary equipment and services on a "software as a service" basis. PM AM shall 
accurately convert all pertinent data downloaded from the City’s current primary alarm and accounts/receivable 
databases to populate the FAMS system. Effective interfaces shall ensure that all parties share and benefit from 
the most current and accurate information. 

PM AM shall provide appropriate supplies and services including but not limited to; 

1. Single point of contact and daily resident assistance  

2. Maintenance of databases: 

a. Alarm permits 

b. Permit Holders 

c. Permit Holders with outstanding charges 

d. Non-permitted locations with outstanding charges 

e. Address verification database 

3. Collection of payments in accordance with the rates established by the alarm ordinance, and any implementing 
resolutions or orders, as may be amended from time to time by the City. 

4. Performance of all the billing in accordance with the City’s alarm ordinance, as may be amended from time to 
time by the City. 

5. Generation of the following reports including but not limited to: 

a. New alarm permits issued and fees collected 

b. Annual permit renewals billed and fees collected 

c. Permits inactivated or revoked and reason for inactivation or revocation 

d. Permits reinstated and reason for reinstatement 

e. Number of false burglar alarms 

f. Number of false burglar alarms billed and fees collected 

g. Number of false robbery alarms 

h. Number of false robbery alarms billed and fees collected 

i. Number of reinstatement fees billed and fees collected 

j. False burglary and/or robbery alarms for permit owners 

k. False burglary and/or robbery alarms for non-permitted owners 

l. Suspension or revocation Report for permit holders as per ordinance, if applicable 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1115  

6. System functionality to capture the following information: 

a. Permit number 

b. Permit issue date 

c. Permit expiration date 

d. Permit type (residential / commercial) 

e. Name of business or residential permit holder 

f. Site 
1)  Street address and zip code of property 
2)  Type of property (residential / commercial) 
3)  Telephone numbers 
4)  Contact persons (minimum of 2) and phone number(s) 
5)  Type of alarm system installed (burglary, panic, robbery)  

g. Billing 
1)  Name 
2)  Full mailing address (includes zip code) 
3)  Contact person and phone number(s)  

h. Permit Holder Responsible for Alarm 
1)  Name 
2)  Complete mailing address 
3)  Phone numbers 

i. Name and telephone number of alarm monitoring company 

j. Name and telephone number of company that installed the alarm system 

k. Special Medical Concerns 

l. Pet Information 

7. System functionality to generate notices to alarm users without permits. 

8. Transfer online and/or via magnetic media a skeleton version of entire registration database from FAMS system 
to RMS including the following: 

1)  Permit number (or non-permitted identifier) 
2)  Name of  permit holder 
3)  Location of permit holder 
4)   Permit status 
5)  Expiration date 
6)  Last false alarm incident date and time 
7) Alarm type (i.e., burglar, panic, etc.) 
8) False alarm incident count 

9. Transfer online and/or via magnetic media incident records from RMS to FAMS including: 
1)  Incident number  
2)  Priority 
3)  Call code 
4)  Disposition 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1116  

5)  Date 
6)  Time: 

(a)  Received 
(b)  Dispatched 
(c)  Arrived 
(d)  Cleared 

7)  Remarks 
8)  Site name and address 
9)  Reportee name, address, phone number 
10)  Dispatcher- employee number and terminal 
11)  Phone clerk - employee number and terminal  
12)  Cleared code and disposition (true/false) 
13)  Officer number 
14)  Unit(s) assigned. 

Collection requirements and provisions:  

PM AM will design, implement, and maintain a system to serve as the billing and collections agent and accounts 
receivable (A/R) manager for the City Alarm Program Administration and Collection Service. PM AM will 
provide all hardware, software, materials, supplies, space, and staff resources as required. The system will meet 
the following collection specifications: 

1. Bill format will provide stub or appropriate remittance form to accompany payment. 

2. Bill format, permit forms, envelopes and related correspondence will identify the location of a PM 
AM staffed and maintained office so the customer may have the ability to obtain direct answers to 
questions about their bills and related false alarm system information. 

3. All bills, correspondence and related matters will be approved by the City. 

4. Bills will be due in timelines specified in the ordinance and or rules and regulations as appropriate. 

5. Records of bills will be retained by PM AM to apply to Account Receivable system (A/R) to be 
maintained by PM AM. 

6. PM AM will develop an A/R file, which the City will have access to review at any time. 

7. System functionality for the City to print a bill for customers wishing to make payments at the walk-
in cashier location(s) of the City and to provide on-line information to PM AM regarding such 
payments so that PM AM can maintain A/R file. 

8. PM AM will provide the ability for customer to pay on-line, by mail and via walk-in cashier. 

9. Payments made by mail will be directed to a P.O. Box address in Texas maintained and managed by 
PM AM, unless and until the City directs that such payments be directed to a lock box address 
established by the City. 

10. PM AM system will track NSF or insufficient fund check occurrences and occurrences where 
customer stop payments have been ordered. 

11. PM AM will provide system for billing the customer for the appropriate NSF or insufficient fund 
check fee charges and charges for stop payment situations. 

12. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Services provided hereunder do not extend to any debt collection 
activities in the event the property owner does not pay the amount of the invoice submitted by PM 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1117  

AM. Any such debt collection activities shall be performed by an independent contractor selected 
either by (i) PM AM with the prior written consent of the City or its designee, or (ii) the City or its 
designee or agent upon written notice to PM AM.  

Processing: 

PM AM shall provide the services covered under this Agreement and Scope from its offices in Texas and make 
available hardware and software and services necessary to establish and provide the Alarm Program 
Administration and Collection Service.  

PM AM's Obligation: 

In addition to the above, PM AM shall: 

1. Maintain the proposed equipment, hardware, and software, documentation, and support services for the 
equipment installed, including the timely incorporation of all engineering changes. 

2. Supply the City with an interface document describing the type, size, location, and medium of transfer 
from the City RMS. 

3. Defer to the City regarding the waiver of any false alarm fee incurred where there is question about the 
validity of any response or action taken by an employee(s) of the City regarding a specified alarm call. 

4. When possible, reports shall be produced based on the entry of variable parameters. Threshold fields shall 
allow a specific date range or other criteria. When possible, all   report searches, shall allow for multiple 
parameters. 

Training 

1. PM AM shall provide training for the City and Police employees. Training shall be conducted in several 
sessions on an as needed basis. 

System Coordination 

1. PM AM shall coordinate with the City’s Finance Department, Information Services, and the City Police 
Department to develop a system that will allow walk-in payments under the Agreement. 

2. PM AM shall provide during the life of the Agreement on-going computer hardware, software support 
and maintenance to ensure uninterrupted operation. In the unlikely event of interruption, PM AM will 
make best efforts to restore service within seventy-two (72) hours. 

3. PM AM under this Agreement shall establish and provide public education, awareness, and information 
regarding the City’s Alarm Management Program. 

City Licensing Fees 
 
1. The City acknowledges and agrees that PM AM shall be exempt from any applicable City license fees 

in performing its services hereunder. 

Exhibit “B” 

Pricing and Receipt of Collections 

This is a revenue sharing contract. PM AM shall retain the percentages and amounts listed in the table below 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1118  

of all collections and remit the percentage balance and amounts listed in the table below to the City for the total 
of the actual revenues generated and collected for the City during the life of this Agreement including all 
adjustments for: 

a. Alarm permit and renewal fees; 
b.  False alarms violation fee above a mandated limit;  
c.  Reinstatement fees; 
d.  Late fee for false alarms, permit fees and renewal fees 
e.   Other charges imposed by the City in relation to the City’s 
f. Alarm Program Management and Collection Services  

(except for criminal penalties). 
  

PM AM Corporation City of ________, __ 
XX% XX% 

 
The City and PM AM shall share the revenue generated from fees, fines, and penalties as described above; 
provided that all bank charges and mailing cost incurred in connection with the Services rendered under this 
Agreement by PM AM shall be paid by the program before the foregoing split of fees.  
 
The City shall pay PM AM a $10 processing fee for each refund check processed by PM AM through the 
Program (the “Processing Fee”) promptly upon receipt of an invoice from PM AM for such Processing Fee. 
 
PM AM reserves the right to renegotiate this pricing should the City change the fee schedule for the false alarm 
ordinance.  
 
The City acknowledges that PM AM is installing the Program at no cost the City. Consequently, in the event 
the City terminates this Agreement within 12 months from the Effective Date for any reason other than the 
failure of PM AM to perform its Services hereunder that has not been cured by PM AM within 30 days of 
receipt of written notice of the problem, PM AM shall be entitled to receive, and the City shall pay to PM AM, 
the fees that PM AM would have received hereunder for a period of 12 months less the number of months, if 
any, that PM AM was paid its fees hereunder prior to the termination of this Agreement (the “Guaranteed 
Period”). If this Agreement is terminated after the Contract Implementation Date, the amount of the fees to be 
paid to PM AM shall be the average of the monthly fees retained by PM AM prior to termination of this 
Agreement multiplied by the number of months remaining in the Guaranteed Period. If this Agreement is 
terminated prior to the Contract Implementation Date, the amount of fees to be paid to PM AM shall be the 
amount of the fees projected by the parties to be retained by PM AM during the Guaranteed Period at the time 
this Agreement was executed. The amount of any fees payable to PM AM pursuant to the provisions of this 
paragraph shall be paid by the City upon termination this Agreement unless the parties agree to have such 
amount paid in equal monthly installments over an agreed period of time. The provisions of this paragraph shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement.  

In addition, in recognition of the fact that PM AM’s Services under the Agreement and the expenses incurred 
by PM AM in performing such Services are incurred in advance of PM AM receiving a percentage of the fees 
collected under this Agreement and that the City shall have the benefit of such work as may have been 
completed up to the time of such termination, City agrees to continue to pay PM AM its percentage of fees 
collected for a period of 90 days after the termination of this Agreement on fees collected during such period 
that are attributable to amounts billed by PM AM to permit holders prior to the date of termination of this 
Agreement.  This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

1119  

The share of the revenues payable to PM AM and the City in accordance with the provisions of this Exhibit B 
shall be determined and paid monthly within 15 days after the end of each calendar month during the Term 
hereof based upon the amount of collections during the immediately preceding calendar month, adjusted for 
any outstanding authorized reimbursements or expenses payable to PM AM in accordance with the terms of 
this Agreement. 

  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 1120 

Headquartered in Dallas, Texas, PM AM Corporation is a leading Information Technology and Consulting 

company that delivers cutting-edge technology solutions to enable its clients to do business better. Our experts 

are driven to deliver meaningful technology solutions and winning business outcomes. At PM AM, we have deep 

industry experience, technical excellence, and 360-degree view of business technology that help us to make our 

clients future-ready. Our flexible delivery models and agile methodologies have enabled us to devise and execute 

solutions ensuring our clients’ success.

PM AM Corporation

5430 Lyndon B Johnson Fwy #370, Dallas, TX 75240

Phone : 972-831-7400

Fax : 972-831-7499

Email : sales@pmam.com

Website: www.pmam.com 



Page 1 of 41 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

   
RFP No. 2024.07.09.01   

  Request for Proposals 
Police Alarm Permit and  

False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 
 

TIMELINE | Key Milestones 
 

Key Milestone Schedule 

Release of RFP July 9, 2024 

Question Deadline July 19, 2024 by 5:00 pm PST 

Pre-Proposal Conference (if applicable) Not Applicable 

Final Addendum Issued July 23, 2024 

Proposal Deadline August 12, 2024 by 5:00 pm PST 

Interviews (week of)* August 19, 2024 

Selection of Contractor* August 27, 2024 

Finance Committee Recommendation* September 10, 2024 

City Council Award* September 17, 2024 

Contract Start Date* October 1, 2024 

* Tentative; at the discretion of the City 
 

To obtains solicitation documents, submit questions, receive answers, and submit a 
proposal, proposer’s can visit the City’s eProcurement Portal at the following hyperlink 
https://www.publicpurchase.com/gems/brea,ca/buyer/public/home (registration 
required). 
 
Please note that proposals may only be submitted electronically.  

https://www.publicpurchase.com/gems/brea,ca/buyer/public/home


RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 
City of Brea  

Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and 
Collection Services 

 

Page 2 of 41  

 
  

PART I 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 



RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 
City of Brea  

Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and 
Collection Services 

 

Page 3 of 41  

 

                    Request for Proposals 
                                     Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

I. Overview 
A. Purpose 
The City of Brea (“City”) is requesting proposals from qualified service providers to provide Police 
Alarm Billing Services for a three-year term with an optional two one-year extension, as further set 
forth in Part III hereto, the Scope of Services and Specification Section (“Services”).  Those submitting 
proposals are each referred to herein as “proposer”. Any proposer selected to provide the foregoing 
services are sometimes referred to herein as “contractor” or “consultant.” 

B. Specific Processes Applicable to this Request for Proposal (RFP) 
To obtain solicitation documents, submit questions, receive answers, ad submit a proposal, visit the 
City’s eProcurement Portal at the following hyperlink (registration is required) 

 

City’s eProcurement Portal 

https://www.publicpurchase.com/gems/brea,ca/buyer/public/home 

PROPOSALS MAY ONLY BE SUBMITTED ELECTRONICALLY 

II. Questions and Answers. 
A. Questions 
Any person contemplating submitting a proposal in response to this RFP who has questions, requires 
clarification, or finds any discrepancies with respect to any part of this RFP, the Scope of Services 
and Specifications, the City’s standard agreement contained herein, or any of the terms and 
conditions included therein (collectively, “Solicitation” or “RFP”), must submit their questions 
through the City’s eProcurement Portal listed above by the Question Deadline set forth in the 
Timelines referenced on page one or as may be modified by any addendum.  Questions not received 
by the Question Deadline will not be considered.  As such questions, are non-responsive to the 
Solicitation requirements. 

B. Answers 
The City will issue addenda to answer question(s) received by the Question Deadline and provide 
clarifications and modifications to the Solicitation utilizing the City’s eProcurement Portal as 
provided above, when deemed to be of sufficient importance or otherwise necessary to more fully 
implement the goals and intent of this RFP.  Proposers must acknowledge receipt of all City-issued 
addenda.  Only City’s written addenda can modify the  requirements of this RFP. Any modifications 
set forth in such addenda will supersede and take precedence over the original RFP and any  

preceding addendums. Any other form of communications shall have no force or effect with respect. 
to this Solicitation.  The City will not be bound by any verbal representations of any City official or 
employee. 

https://www.publicpurchase.com/gems/brea,ca/buyer/public/home


RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 
City of Brea  

Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and 
Collection Services 

 

Page 4 of 41  

PROPOSALS NOT RECEIVED ELECTRONICALLY BEFORE THE PROPOSAL DUE DATE, SHALL NOT BE 
OPENED AND SHALL BE DISREGARDED. PROPOSERS BEAR ANY AND ALL RISKS OF UNTIMELY, OR 
NON-RECEIPT OF ANY PROPOSAL, REGARDLESS OF THE CAUSE. 

III. Costs Included in Proposal 
A. Preparation Expense 
Proposers prepare and make proposal(s) at their sole expense. 

B. All-Inclusive Costs 
Pricing Must Be All-Inclusive.  EACH PROPOSAL MUST BE INCLUSIVE OF ALL COSTS TO PERFORM THE 
REQUIRED SERVICES.  Any and all costs of labor, transportation, materials, software, equipment, 
proprietary licenses, and any and all other fees, costs, taxes, insurance, and expenses necessary to 
comply with the requirements of this RFP and to provide the Services, must be included in the 
proposal price.   

IV. Proposal Submission Requirements 
A. General 

i. Checklist.  Use this section as a checklist to help provide a complete response.  Failure to 
include and provide all the information specified may result in rejection of the proposal 
without further evaluation or award consideration. 

ii. Signatures.  Proposers must sign all forms where indicated. Digital Signatures are acceptable 
if they conform to all requirements of California Government Code Section 16.5. 

iii. Additional Material. Do not include any promotional material or any material that is not 
directly relevant to the objectives of this Solicitation. 

iv. Organization. Organize the proposal in the order shown below, separate each section with a 
section page and title, and number each section beginning with one. 

v. Sections Division and Purpose. Note the Qualifications and Forms sections will be used to 
determine if the proposer is qualified and responsive, while the Technical and Costs sections 
will be used to determine how well the proposer meets the requirements of this Solicitation 
and if the proposed costs are fair and reasonable. The Technical and Costs sections of the 
successful proposal may be attached to and incorporated as part of Exhibit A to the City’s 
standard Agreement for execution.  

B. Introduction Section 
i. Title Page. Provide a title page showing the Solicitation subject; the proposer’s name; 

address, and the date of the proposal. 

ii. Table of Contents. Provide a table of contents detailing the various sections and page 
numbers of the information contained in the proposal. 

iii. Letter of Transmittal. Provide a letter of transmittal signed by an individual authorized to 
bind the proposer, briefly stating the proposer's understanding of the work to be done, the 
commitment to perform the work within the required time period(s), a statement why the 
proposer believes itself to be best qualified to perform the Services and a statement that the 



RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 
City of Brea  

Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and 
Collection Services 

 

Page 5 of 41  

proposal is a firm and irrevocable proposal.  

C. Qualifications Section  
i. Background. Provide the proposer company’s full legal name, address, phone, fax, email, 

website; Prior company names (if any) and years in business; mergers, buyouts; 
Organizational structure (i.e. corp., LLC, sole proprietorship, etc.) and chart; Names and titles 
of the principal owner(s); Person(s) authorized to contractually bind the company. List any 
pending litigation and describe any contracts terminated for cause and any governmental 
enforcement actions against proposer’s company during the previous five (5) years.  List any 
special recognition or awards. 

ii. Experience. Provide a summary of experience with similar kinds of work; Familiarity with 
state and federal procedures; Experience working with public agencies. Provide current 
business references for whom your company has provided similar services, and a very brief 
description of the provided services. 

iii. Qualifications. Provide a summary of financial responsibility; Demonstrated technical ability; 
Capability of developing innovative or advanced techniques; Special qualifications, training, 
credentials; Staff names, titles, role, qualifications, experience, and length of service and the 
designated project manager to be assigned to this agreement. 

iv. Understanding. Describe proposer’s understanding of the work to be done as required by 
this RFP. Include any issues that will require special consideration in providing the Services 
and identify any unique approaches or strengths your company may have. 

D. Technical Section 
i. Approach. Provide a detailed discussion and proposed methodologies of the proposer’s 

approach to the successful performance of the Services. Include thorough discussions of 
methodologies proposer believes are essential to accomplishing each task. Include a 
proposed work schedule to accomplish all of the required tasks and identify the team 
member responsible for each.  

ii. Proposed Schedule. Provide a detailed recommended schedule of activities. If a Meet and 
Confer and Presentation Requirements and/or a Tentative Schedule are provided in the 
Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements Section any recommended modifications 
should be addressed. 

E. Cost Section 

i. Pricing. Pricing shall be as specifically described in Exhibit “A” to the City’s standard form of 
agreement attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.  

F. Forms Section 
i. Standard Forms 

a. Non-Collusion Affidavit Form 

b. References Form 

c. Subcontractors List-Standard Form 

d. Statement of Compliance or Exceptions Form 



RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 
City of Brea  

Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and 
Collection Services 

 

Page 6 of 41  

e. Status of Past and Present Contracts Form 

f. Insurance Commitment Form 

g. Proposer Qualification Response Form  

h. Firm Proposal Form 

i. Price Form 

G. Withdrawal and Validity. Proposals may be withdrawn before the Proposal Deadline.  
Otherwise, proposals are binding for 120 days from the Proposal Deadline.  

V. Proposal Review 

A. Opening Proposals. Proposals remained unopened until the Proposal Deadline and thereafter 
will be electronically unsealed to begin the review and evaluation process set forth in the 
Evaluation, Award, Contract, Notice to Proceed Section below. 

B. Proposal Information Posted. Proposals received by the Proposal Deadline, will have results 
posted on the City’s website at www.ci.brea.ca.us/1254/Requests-for-Bids-Proposals-and-
Quotes. The Proposal results are subject to change based on responsiveness and determination 
of qualifications. Further information may be obtained by visiting the webpage, clicking on 
Requests for Bids, Proposals, and Quotes, and scrolling to the desired solicitation. City will not 
provide results by any other means. 

C. Information Posted. For this RFP, only company names of proposers timely submitting 
proposals, will be initially posted.  No proposal will be available for public review until the 
evaluation phase has been completed and an award recommendation, if any, has been made.  

D. All Proposals Become City Property and Public Records. All submitted proposals will become 
City property and public records subject to disclosure. However, no proposal will be disclosed 
unless and until a proposer is selected and recommended for contract award to the City Council; 
all proposals are rejected; or, this RFP process is terminated. 
 

                     DO NOT SUBMIT CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.  Any and all notices of “trade secrets”, 
“confidential information”, “do not disclose”, and/or any similar types of notices in a proposal 
will be disregarded. 

VI. Evaluation 

A. Non-Responsive Proposals. Proposals that are late or misdirected; or where the proposer did 
not attend any required mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting or is suspended or debarred 
(www.sam.gov) are non-responsive. Proposals that did not include the required documents or 
information; modified any terms and conditions; had excessive or inadequate price relative to 
the Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements may cause the Proposal to be deemed 
non-responsive. Non-responsive Proposals will not be considered for further evaluations or 
award. 

B. Responsive Proposals. Proposals that conform in all material respects to the RFP and are eligible 
for further consideration.  

http://www.ci.brea.ca.us/1254/Requests-for-Bids-Proposals-and-Quotes
http://www.ci.brea.ca.us/1254/Requests-for-Bids-Proposals-and-Quotes
http://www.sam.gov/


RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 
City of Brea  

Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and 
Collection Services 

 

Page 7 of 41  

C. Informalities. City may waive any informalities in any proposal or this RFP process as deemed in 
City’s best interest. 

D. Basis of Award and Evaluation Criteria.  If an award is made, it shall be made based on the 
proposal determined to provide the greatest benefit to the City. City will evaluate and score each 
proposal based on how well it meets the Proposal Submission Requirements including, but not 
limited to, the Qualifications, Technical, Cost, Forms sections; any required clarifications, 
presentations, interviews; other available information; any required Best and Final Offer (BAFO) 
responses; and any other requirements of this RFP not mentioned specifically in this paragraph. 

The scoring for Evaluation Criteria is set forth below: 

Responsiveness of the Proposal including ability to meet the City’s timelines, 
and acceptance of City’s standard form of agreement 

25% 

Proposer’s qualifications and prior experience  25% 

Technical approach to provide the Services 20% 

Value and economy to City of the proposed Project approach  20% 

Pricing 10% 

 

The City reserves the right to select one or more proposers for further consideration or award of a 
contract, based solely on their proposal or, on their proposal and any interviews. The City reserves 
the right to negotiate a final agreement with one or more of the top scoring proposers.   

 Award, Reject, Rescind. 

 As may be in City’s best interest, City may accept and award a contract to any proposer; rescind any 
award; reject any or all proposals; and/or terminate this RFP process at any time.   

 Agreement.  

 If an agreement is awarded, City will do so after the successful proposer has satisfied all post-award 
requirements (insurance, bonding, etc.).  The City’s standard form of agreement is attached. Any 
requested changes to the agreement will be considered as part of the evaluation/scoring process. 

 Notice to Proceed.  

 City will issue a notice to proceed to contractor(s) to commence providing the Services at the time 
stated in that notice. Absent a formal notice to proceed letter, delivery of the Purchase Order 
becomes the de facto notice to proceed unless otherwise stated in the Purchase Order. 

End of this Section. 
  



RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 
City of Brea  

Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and 
Collection Services 

 

Page 8 of 41  

 

 

 

PART II 
      STANDARD FORMS 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

2024.07.09.01 

Page 9 of 41 
 

STANDARD FORM A  

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT FORM  

Note: To be executed by Proposer and submitted with Proposal.  

proposal (name of proposing company)  

that the proposal is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, 
company, association, organization, or corporation; that the proposal is genuine and not collusive 
or sham; that the PROPOSER has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other proposer 
to put in a false or sham proposal; that the PROPOSER has not directly or indirectly colluded, 
conspired, connived, or agreed with any proposer or anyone else to put in a sham proposal, or to 
refrain from proposing; that the PROPOSER has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought 
by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the proposal price of the 
PROPOSER or any other proposer, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the proposal 
price, or of that of any other proposer; that all statements contained in the proposal are true; and, 
the PROPOSER has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her proposal price or any 
breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, to any 
corporation, partnership, company, association, organization, depository, or to any member or 
agent thereof, to effectuate a collusive or sham proposal, and has not paid, and will not pay, any 
person or entity for such purpose.  

Any person executing this declaration on behalf of a PROPOSER that is a corporation, partnership, 
joint venture, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, or any other entity, hereby 
represents that they have full power to execute, and does execute, this declaration on behalf of the 
PROPOSER.  

I declare under penalty of perjury under the Laws of the State of California that the foregoing is 
true and correct and that this declaration is executed as set forth.  

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________ 

Notary is not required for this proposal.  

State of  
the State of the place of business)  ( 

County of  
the County of the place of business)  ( 

,  b eing first duly sworn, deposes and  
( name of the person signing this form)  

says that he/she is    of  
( title of the person signing this form)  

, the party making the foregoing  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

2024.07.09.01  

Page 10 of 41  

 
STANDARD FORM B 
REFERENCES FORM  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Provide current business references for whom your company has provided similar services.  
Provide very brief description of the Project services your company provided to the reference. 
Any unsatisfactory references or past unsatisfactory work performance with City may 
eliminate Proposer from further consideration (Brea City Code Sec. 3.24.020.M)  
 

 
  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

2024.07.09.01  

Page 11 of 41  

 
STANDARD FORM C  

SUBCONTRACTORS LIST-STANDARD FORM  
 

(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Provide the information requested below. Duplicate this form as necessary to complete list.  
☐ Check this box, if no subcontractors are to be used for any of the proposed work. 

 
  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

2024.07.09.01  

Page 12 of 41  

 

STANDARD FORM D  

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE OR EXCEPTIONS FORM  

Each Proposal must be accompanied by this form. Failure to provide this form will cause 
the Proposal to be deemed non-responsive and that Proposal will not be considered for further 
evaluation.  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Select one:  

            No Exceptions  

By checking the above box, Proposer declares their Proposal was prepared in strict 
compliance with the instructions, conditions, and terms of the Solicitation, Scope of Work, and 
Agreement.  

 With Exceptions  

By checking the above box, Proposer declares their Proposal was prepared in consideration 
of but with exceptions to one or more of the instructions, conditions, and terms of the Solicitation, 
Scope of Work, and Agreement, in which case Proposer must provide a detailed list for all such 
exceptions in the following format.  

 
Section 
Page #  Term, Condition, Specification  Exception & Benefit to City  

City A 
or D  

 

Proposer acknowledges that City may accept or reject any or all of Proposer’s listed 
exceptions or reject the Proposer’s entire Proposal that contain any exceptions.  

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________ 

  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

2024.07.09.01  

Page 13 of 41  

STANDARD FORM E  

STATUS OF PAST AND PRESENT CONTRACTS FORM  

Each Proposal must be accompanied by this form. Failure to provide this form will cause 
the Proposal to be deemed non-responsive and that Proposal will not be considered for further 
evaluation. As used in this form, “Proposer” means Proposer or any 10% or greater owner of  the 
proposing company; “Contract Termination” means termination for cause by any other party to a 
contract with the Proposer; “Settlement” means settlement of any claim or lawsuit brought against 
Proposer in connection with Proposer’s services; and, “Legal Action” means any lawsuit alleging 
fraud, breach or any other misconduct by, or filed against, Proposer.  

 

By checking the above box, Proposer declares that the Proposer has not had any Contract 
Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions within the past five years of the date signed hereunder 
and currently does not have any pending Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions.  

            One or More Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions  

By checking the above box, Proposer declares that the Proposer has had either one or more 
Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions within the past five years of the date signed 
hereunder in which case, Proposer must provide a list for all such contracts and include: 
Contract Title, Contract Value, Termination Date, Company Name, Contact Name, Phone Number, 
and Reasons for and descriptions of the Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions.  

The Proposer acknowledges that City may: reject any declarations that are not accompanied 
with the required documentation as described above; or reject any Proposals wherein Proposer has 
had any Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions that City in its sole discretion deems 
unacceptable.  

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________ 

  

( Proposer’s Company Name)  

              No Contract Terminations, Settlements, or Legal Actions  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

2024.07.09.01  

Page 14 of 41  

 

STANDARD FORM F  

INSURANCE COMMITMENT FORM  

Each Proposal must be accompanied by this form. Failure to provide this form will cause 
the Proposal to be deemed non-responsive and that Proposal will not be considered for further 
evaluation.  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Proposer acknowledges that:  

City reserves the right to modify the insurance requirements as set for in the Insurance 
Requirements section of the Agreement including limits, based on nature of the risk, prior 
experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.  

City’s acceptance and/or approval of the proposer’s insurance documents does not and shall 
not be construed to relieve proposer of any obligations, responsibilities or liabilities under any 
resultant Contract.  

Proposer’s failure to comply with the required insurance as set forth in the Insurance 
Requirements of the Agreement is a breach of contract, which may result in one or more of the 
following: suspension of work, suspension or termination of contract, remuneration of 
procurement costs for obtaining a replacement contractor, and suspension from submitting future 
proposal based on proposer’s default.  

Proposer, at Proposer’s sole cost and expense, hereby promises and agrees to:  

Acquire required insurance set forth in the Insurance Requirements of the Agreement.  

Provide policies of insurance from a company or companies having a current A.M. Best's 
rating of no less than A:VII and admitted and authorized to transact the business of insurance in 
the State of California prior to commencing any work and allowing any subcontractor to 
commence work on any subcontract until it has secured all required insurance unless otherwise 
permitted or waived in writing by City’s Risk Manager.  

Maintain in force at all times during the term of any Contract, insurance policies as set 
forth in the Insurance Requirements of the Agreement; replace any policies whose carrier’s 
rating falls below A VII with policies that meet or better the required A VII rating no later than 
the renewal date of the policy; amend, supplement, or endorse existing insurance policies that do 
not meet the insurance requirements set forth in the Insurance Requirements.  

Proposer certifies, represents, and commits to all the Insurance Requirements of the Agreement.  

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________ 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

2024.07.09.01  

Page 15 of 41  

 

STANDARD FORM G  
PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS RESPONSE FORM  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Proposers must have demonstrated trustworthiness, as well as the necessary quality, fitness, 
capacity, and experience to satisfactorily provide the requirements specified in this Solicitation 
based on prior experience with city, references, and other available information.  

Provide the information requested below. Do not omit or renumber any sections. All items listed 
must be submitted and checked off to ensure qualification responsiveness. 

 1. Background. 

Please provide the following information about your company:  

☐   Your company’s full legal name, address, phone, fax, email, website.  
☐   Prior company names (if any) and years in business; mergers, buyouts, etc.  
☐   Organizational structure (i.e. corp., LLC, sole proprietorship, etc.).  
☐   Names and titles of the principal owner(s).  
☐   Person(s) authorized to make commitments for your company.  
☐   Special recognition or awards.  
 
2.  Experience.  

Provide the following information relative to required services:  

☐   Summary of Experience with similar kinds of work.  
☐   Familiarity with state and federal procedures.  
☐   Experience working with public agencies.  
☐ Narrative of the working relationship with current business references for information   

not already included in the References Form.  
 

3.  Qualifications.  

Provide the following information relative to required services:  

☐   Financial responsibility.  
☐   Demonstrated Technical Ability.  
☐   Capability of developing innovative or advanced techniques.  
☐   Special qualifications, training, credentials.  
☐   Staff names, titles, role, qualifications, and experience assigned to this Project.  
☐   Designated project manager assigned to this Project.  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

2024.07.09.01  

Page 16 of 41  

 

4.  Understanding.  

Provide the following information relative to required services:  

☐   Understanding of the work to be done based on this Solicitation.  
☐   Include issues that you believe will require special consideration for this Project. 
☐   Identify unique approaches or strengths your company has relative to required    

services.  
 

5.  Approach.  

Provide the following information relative to required services:  

☐   Understanding of the work to be done.  
☐   Adequacy of labor and resources to satisfactorily perform the requested services and       

meet the City’s needs.  
☐   Names and titles of key management personnel.  
☐   Team to be assigned for these services.  

 

Submitted by:  

Signature:    ____________________________________________ 

Name/Title Date:  ____________________________________________ 

  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

2024.07.09.01  

Page 17 of 41  

 
STANDARD FORM H 

FIRM PROPOSAL FORM  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

FIRM PROPOSAL made by Proposer to the City of Brea:  
I, the undersigned, hereby represent and warrant that I am authorized to submit this Proposal on behalf of 
and to bind the principals who I represent, to all the requirements of the City of Brea’s Terms and Conditions, 
Specifications, Scope or Work, any attachments, exhibits, amendments; and I offer and agree to those 
requirements at the prices set forth in the Proposal Form.  
Further, I understand that no contract exists unless City accepts this Proposal by executing the attached 
Agreement.  

Business Name: ___________________________________________ 
Business Address: ___________________________________________ 

         Federal ID#: ___________________________________________ 
 

If any Work is a Public Works        Contractor Lic#: _________      DIR#: _________ 
            Business Type: ______ 1. Individual/Sole Proprietor or Single-Member LLC; 2. C Corporation;                                  

(Proposer enter a number)                        3. Corporation; 4. Partnership; 5. Trust/Estate; 6. Limited Liability Co. 

 By: _______________________________   By: _______________________________  

 Name:     Name:   

                Title:                   Title:  

  Email:                      Email:  

Date Signed: ________________________      Date Signed: ________________________  
                  CORPs: Chairperson, President, Vice President               CORPs: Secretary, Assist. Secretary, Chief Finance  
                    LLCs Manager                                                       Officer, Assist. Treasurer 

LLCs: Manager  
[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 313, both signature lines must be executed unless the signatory 
holds at least one of the offices designated on each line.]  

[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 17703.01(d), for limited liability companies, both signature lines 
must be executed unless the articles of incorporation state that the firm is managed by only one manager.]  

  



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

2024.07.09.01  

Page 18 of 41  

 
STANDARD FORM I 

PRICE FORM  

 
(Proposer’s Company Name)  

Separate and describe your tasks, and associated costs, for the Scope of Services requirements.  
Attach additional pages if necessary.  

Please note that pricing Must Be All-Inclusive.  EACH PROPOSAL MUST BE INCLUSIVE 
OF ALL COSTS TO PERFORM THE REQUIRED SERVICES.  Any and all costs of labor, 
transportation, materials, software, equipment, proprietary licenses, and any and all other fees, 
costs, taxes, insurance, and expenses necessary to comply with the requirements of this RFP and 
to provide the Services, must be included in the proposal price. 

 
 

Additional comments/remarks:  

_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
for Comprehensive User Fee Study and Cost Allocation Plan RFP No. 

2024.01.10.01  

Page 19 of 41  

PART III   
     AGREEMENT &   

SCOPE OF SERVICES 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 20 of 41 
 

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated {AgreementDate} for reference 
purposes and is executed by the City of Brea, a California municipal corporation (“City”), and 
{Contractor Name} a {Legal Status} (“Contractor”).  

RECITALS  
A. City desires to retain Contractor as an independent contractor to provide the following 
professional services: Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services. 

B. Contractor represents that it is duly licensed, fully authorized by law, and has the 
necessary experience and qualifications, to provide such services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:  

AGREEMENT  

1. Scope of Services. 

Contractor shall perform the services referenced in the Recitals, as required by the RFP 
dated ____________ and more specifically described in the Scope of Services set forth in the 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and as otherwise required by this Agreement, all to City’s 
satisfaction (collectively, “Services”).  

2. Compensation. 

A. City shall pay for the Services satisfactorily performed, in accordance with 
the Fee Schedule set forth in the attached Attachment 1 to Exhibit A hereto.  

B. In no event shall the total amount paid for the Services over the term of 
this Agreement exceed the annual all-inclusive sum of $ {ContractAmount} (“Contract 
Amount”). This amount covers and is inclusive of all labor, materials, and any and all 
other costs incurred by Contractor in performing the Services. Contractor shall be 
deemed to have made all inquiries and site inspections deemed necessary by Contractor 
prior to execution of this Agreement.  

C. Unless the Fee Schedule calls for payment of a one-time flat fee, periodic 
payments for undisputed work shall be made within 30 days of receipt of an invoice 
which includes a detailed description of the work performed. Contractor’s invoices shall 
indicate the amount of time spent on each task and the applicable rate.  

D. Unless the Fee Schedule calls for payment on a different schedule, 
Contractor shall invoice City on a monthly basis.  

3. Contingency Work. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 21 of 41  

The parties may agree on contingency work to be provided as part of the Services. A 
written amendment to this Agreement shall be executed for contingency work that increases the 
Contract Amount by more than {Contingency Percent} percent. The City Manager, or designee, 
is authorized to approve, in writing, contingency work that is below the foregoing limit.  
Contractor’s monthly invoice shall include a detailed description of any approved, contingency 
work. Any work performed by Contractor without a written amendment or approval of the City 
Manager, or designee, shall be deemed to be work included within the Services.  

4. Term. 

The term of this Agreement shall commence on {TermStartDate} (“Effective Date”). 
Unless extended or earlier terminated as provided herein, this Agreement shall expire on ____ or 
upon satisfactory completion of the Services, whichever occurs first. The City may extend the 
term of this Agreement by giving written notice to Contractor within 30 days prior to the then-
scheduled expiration date for two  (2) additional one-year terms which will be the sole discretion 
of the:  City Manager. 

5. Time of Performance. 

A. Contractor shall complete the Services within the term of this Agreement, 
and shall meet any other established and agreed upon schedules and deadlines agreed 
upon in writing. Contractor shall commence performance within two business days of 
receiving City’s written notice to proceed.  

B. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be considered in default of this 
Agreement for delays in performance caused by a force majeure event. As used in this 
Agreement, the term “force majeure event” means circumstances beyond the reasonable 
control of the non-performing party and includes the following: abnormal weather 
conditions; floods; earthquakes; fire; epidemics; war; riots and other civil disturbances; 
strikes, lockouts, work slowdowns, and other labor disturbances; sabotage; or judicial 
restraint. Contractor’s lack of financial capability, shall not constitute a force majeure 
event unless directly attributable to any of the foregoing events.  

C. Should a force majeure event occur, the non-performing party shall, within 
a reasonable time of being prevented from performing, give written notice to the other 
party describing the circumstances preventing continued performance and the efforts 
being made to resume performance of this Agreement.  

6. Maintenance of Records. 

Books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the 
Services, including costs incurred, shall be maintained by Contractor and made available for 
review by City at all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement and for four (4) years 
from the date of final payment by City.  

7. Standard of Care. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 22 of 41  

Contractor’s Services shall be performed in accordance with the generally accepted 
professional standards of practice and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of care 
and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently performing similar services 
under similar conditions. Contractor shall maintain all professional licenses and certifications 
required to lawfully perform the Services.  

 
8. Compliance with Law. 

A. Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws including Cal/OSHA 
requirements. 

B. Contractor shall obtain a City of Brea business license. 
C. Contractor shall comply with all {Additional Legal Requirements}. 

9. Assignment and Subcontracting. 

A. Contractor shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or 
obligations under, or any interest in this Agreement, or subcontract any required 
performance hereunder, without the prior written consent of City, which may be withheld 
for any reason. City shall be deemed to have approved Contractor’s utilization of 
subcontractors identified in Contractor’s proposal for the Services.  

B. Any attempt to so assign, transfer, or subcontract without City’s prior 
written consent shall be void and shall constitute grounds for City’s termination of this 
Agreement. Authorized subcontracts shall contain a provision making the subcontractor 
subject to all requirements of this Agreement.  

C. If use of a subcontractor is approved, then City may withhold 5% of each 
monthly payment to Contractor. Such retention shall be released upon City’s receipt of an 
unconditional release of all claims signed by any such subcontractor, as to work 
performed to date.  

10. Independent Contractor. 

A. Contractor is retained as an independent contractor and is not an employee 
of City. No employee or agent of Contractor is or shall become an employee of City.  

B. Contractor will determine the means, methods, and details by which 
Contractor’s personnel will perform the Services. Contractor shall be solely responsible 
for the satisfactory work performance of all personnel engaged in performing the 
Services and compliance with the customary professional standards.  

C. Contractor’s personnel shall not wear or display any City uniform, badge, 
identification number, or other information identifying such individual as an employee of 
City. Contractor’s personnel shall not use any City e-mail address or City telephone 
number in the performance of the Services. Contractor shall acquire and maintain at its 
sole cost and expense such vehicles, equipment and supplies as Contractor’s personnel 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 23 of 41  

require to perform the Services. Contractor shall perform the Services off of City 
premises at locations of Contractor’s choice, except as otherwise may from time to time 
be necessary in order for Contractor’s personnel to receive projects from City, review 
plans on file at City, pick up or deliver any work product, or as may be necessary to 
inspect or visit City locations. City may make a computer available to Contractor from 
time to time for Contractor’s personnel to obtain information about or to check on the 
status of projects pertaining to the Services.  

D. Contractor shall be responsible for and pay all wages, salaries, benefits 
and other amounts due to Contractor’s personnel in connection with the Services. 
Contractor shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such additional 
personnel, including Social Security taxes, other retirement or pension benefits, income 
tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers' 
compensation insurance. Contractor and its officers, employees, agents, and 
subcontractors shall not become entitled to, and hereby waive any claims to, any wages, 
salaries, compensation, benefit or any incident of employment by City, including 
eligibility to enroll in, or reinstate to membership in, the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (“PERS”) or any other retirement program, as an employee of City, 
and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by City for employer contributions or 
employee contributions for PERS benefits or any other retirement benefits.  

 
11. PERS Compliance. 

The parties acknowledge that City is a local agency member of PERS, and as such has 
certain pension reporting and contribution obligations to PERS on behalf of qualifying 
employees. Contractor agrees that, in providing its employees and any other personnel to City to 
perform the Services, Contractor shall assure compliance with the Public Employees’ Retirement 
Law (Government Code Section 20000 et seq.), the regulations of PERS, and the Public 
Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (Government Code Section 7522 et seq.). Without 
limitation to the foregoing, Contractor shall assure compliance with regard to personnel who 
have active or inactive membership in PERS and to those who are retired annuitants and in 
performing this Agreement shall not assign or utilize any of its personnel in a manner that will 
cause City to be in violation of the applicable retirement laws and regulations.  

12. Insurance. 

Unless otherwise permitted or waived in writing by City’s Risk Manager, Contractor 
shall not commence work until it has secured all insurance required under this section and 
provided evidence thereof that is acceptable to City. In addition, Contractor shall not allow any 
subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until it has secured all insurance required 
under this section.  

A. Commercial General Liability 

i. Contractor shall take out and maintain, in amounts not less than specified 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 24 of 41  

herein, Commercial General Liability Insurance, in a form and with insurance companies 
acceptable to City.  

ii. Coverage for Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as 
broad as the following:  

a. Insurance Services Office Commercial 
General Liability coverage (Occurrence Form CG 00 01) or exact 
equivalent.  

iii. Commercial General Liability Insurance must include coverage for the 
following: 

a. Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
b. Personal Injury/Advertising Injury 
c. Premises/Operations Liability 
d. Products/Completed Operations Liability 
e. Aggregate Limits that Apply per Project 
f. Contractual Liability with respect to this 

Agreement 
g. Broad Form Property Damage 
h. Independent Contractors Coverage 

iv. The policy shall contain no endorsements or provisions limiting coverage 
for (1) contractual liability; (2) cross liability exclusion for claims or suits by one insured against 
another; (3) products/completed operations liability; or (4) contain any other exclusion contrary 
to this Agreement.  

v. The policy shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, 
employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as independent contractors 
in the role of City officials, as additional insureds using ISO endorsement forms CG 20 10 10 01 
and 20 37 10 01, or endorsements providing the exact same coverage.  

vi. The general liability coverage may utilize deductibles or provide coverage 
excess of a self-insured retention, only if approved by City’s Risk Manager in writing, and 
further provided that such deductibles shall not apply to coverage of the additional insureds.  

B. Automobile Liability 

i. Contractor shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injury 
and property damage including coverage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles, in a form and 
with insurance companies acceptable to City.  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 25 of 41  

ii. Coverage for automobile liability insurance shall be at least as broad as 
Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering automobile 
liability (Coverage Symbol 1, any auto).  

iii. The policy shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, 
employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as independent contractors 
in the role of City officials, as additional insureds.  

iv. Subject to City’s written approval, the automobile liability coverage may 
utilize deductibles or provide coverage excess of a self-insured retention, provided that such 
deductibles shall not apply to coverage of the additional insureds.  

C. Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability 

i. Contractor certifies that Contractor is aware of the provisions of Labor 

Code Section 3700 which requires every employer to be insured against liability for workers’ 
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and 
he/she/it will comply with such provisions before commencing work under this Agreement.  

ii. Contractor shall maintain full compensation insurance for its employees in 
accordance with the Workers’ Compensation and Insurance Act (Labor Code Section 3200 et 
seq.) and Employer’s Liability Coverage in amounts indicated herein. Contractor shall require all 
subcontractors to obtain and maintain workers’ compensation coverage of the same type and 
limits as specified in this section.  

D. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) 

Contractor shall maintain professional liability or errors and omissions insurance 
appropriate to its profession, in a form and with insurance companies acceptable to City and with 
the limits required herein. This insurance shall be endorsed to include contractual liability 
applicable to this Agreement and shall be written on a policy coverage form specifically designed 
to protect against acts, errors or omissions of Contractor in the performance of professional 
services. “Covered Professional Services” as designated in the policy must specifically include 
work performed under this Agreement. The policy must “pay on behalf of” the insured and must 
include a provision establishing the insurer's duty to defend.  

E. Cyber Liability 

If Cyber Liability is included in the Minimum Policy Limits Required below, then  
Contractor shall maintain cyber liability insurance providing protection against claims and 
liabilities arising from: (i) errors and omissions in connection with maintaining security of City 
Data (as defined below); (ii) data breach including theft, destruction, and/or unauthorized use of 
City Data; (iii) identity theft including bank charges assessed; and (iv) violation of privacy rights 
due to a breach of City Data.  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 26 of 41  

F. Minimum Policy Limits Required 
i. A.M. Best's Rating 

Each policy of insurance required herein shall be from a company or companies   
having a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII and admitted and authorized to transact 
the business of insurance in the State of California.  

ii. The following insurance limits are required for this Agreement: 

If ☒, then required Combined Single Limit  
☒Commercial General Liability  $1,000,000 per occurrence/ $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily 

injury, personal injury, and property damage  

☒Automobile Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence (any auto) for bodily injury and 
property damage  

☒Workers’ Compensation In the amount required by California law  

☒Employer’s Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence  

☒Professional Liability $2,000,000 per claim and aggregate (errors and omissions)  

☐Cyber Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence  

iii. Defense costs shall be payable in addition to the limits. 

iv. Requirements of specific coverage or limits contained in this section are 
not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits, or other requirement, or a waiver of any 
coverage normally provided by any insurance. Any available coverage shall be provided to the 
parties required to be named as additional insured pursuant to this Agreement.  

G. Proof of Insurance 

Within five days of execution of this Agreement, but prior to commencement of the 
Services, Contractor shall file with City evidence of insurance from an insurer or insurers 
certifying to the coverage of all insurance required herein. Such evidence shall include original 
copies of the ISO CG 00 01 (or insurer’s equivalent) signed by the insurer’s representative and 
Certificate of Insurance (Acord Form 25-S or equivalent), together with required endorsements. 
All evidence of insurance shall be signed by a properly authorized officer, agent, or qualified 
representative of the insurer and shall certify the names of the insured, any additional insureds, 
where appropriate, the type and amount of the insurance, the location and operations to which the 
insurance applies, and the expiration date of such insurance.  

H. Policy Provisions Required 

i. Contractor shall provide City at least 30 days prior written notice of 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 27 of 41  

cancellation of any policy required by this Agreement, except that Contractor shall provide at 
least 10 days prior written notice of cancellation of any such policy due to non-payment of 
premium. If any of the required coverage is cancelled or expires during the term of this 
Agreement, Contractor shall deliver renewal certificate(s) including the required additional 
insured endorsement to City at least 10 days prior to the effective date of cancellation or 
expiration.  

ii. The Commercial General Liability Policy and Automobile Liability Policy 
shall each contain a provision stating that Contractor’s policy is primary insurance and that any 
insurance, self-insurance or other coverage maintained by City or any additional insureds shall 
not be called upon to contribute to any loss.  

iii. The retroactive date (if any) of each policy is to be no later than the 
effective date of this Agreement. If a “claims-made” professional liability policy is provided, it 
shall include an extended reporting period of not less than three years.  

iv. All required insurance coverages, except for the professional and cyber 
liability coverage, shall contain or be endorsed to provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of 
City, its officials, officers, employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving 
as independent contractors in the role of City officials, or shall specifically allow Contractor or 
others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications to waive their right 
of recovery prior to a loss. Contractor hereby waives its own right of recovery against City, and 
shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each of its 
subcontractors.  

v. The limits set forth herein shall apply separately to each insured against 
whom claims are made or suits are brought, except with respect to the limits of liability. Further 
the limits set forth herein shall not be construed to relieve Contractor from liability in excess of 
such coverage, nor shall it limit Contractor’s indemnification obligations to City or preclude City 
from taking such other actions available to City under other provisions of this Agreement or law.  

I. Additional Insurance Provisions 

i. The foregoing requirements as to the types and limits of insurance 
coverage to be maintained by Contractor, and any approval of such insurance by City, are not 
intended to and shall not in any manner limit or qualify the liabilities and obligations otherwise 
assumed by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement, including the provisions concerning 
indemnification.  

ii. If at any time during the term of this Agreement, any policy of insurance 
required under this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not 
replaced, City has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any 
premium paid by City will be promptly reimbursed by Contractor or City will withhold amounts 
sufficient to pay premium from Contractor payments. In the alternative, City may terminate this 
Agreement for cause.  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 28 of 41  

iii. City may require Contractor to provide for inspection by City, complete 
copies of all insurance policies in effect for the duration of the Agreement.  

iv. No City official, officer, employee, agent or volunteer shall be personally 
responsible for any liability arising under or by virtue of this Agreement.  

v. The insurance obligations under this Agreement shall be: (1) all the 

insurance coverage and/or limits carried by or available to Contractor; or (2) the minimum 
insurance coverage requirements and/or limits shown in this Agreement; whichever is greater. 
Any insurance proceeds in excess of or broader than the minimum required coverage and/or 
minimum required limits, which are applicable to a given loss, shall be available to City. No 
representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement are sufficient 
to cover the obligations of Contractor under this Agreement.  

J. Subcontractor Insurance Requirements 

Contractor shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until 
it has provided evidence satisfactory to City that it has secured all insurance required under this 
section. Policies of commercial general liability insurance provided by such subcontractors shall 
be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, employees, agents, servants, designated 
volunteers and agents serving as independent contractors in the role of City officials as additional 
insureds, using ISO form CG 20 38 04 13 or an endorsement providing the same coverage. If 
requested by Contractor, City may approve different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for 
particular subcontractors.  

13. Indemnification. 

A. Other than in the performance of professional services, and to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend (with counsel reasonably approved by 
City), indemnify and hold City, its officials, officers, attorneys, agents, employees, 
servants, designated volunteers, successors, assigns and those City agents serving as 
independent contractors in the role of City officials (collectively “Indemnitees”) free and 
harmless with respect to any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, 
liabilities, losses, damages, stop notices and/or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to 
property or persons, including bodily injury, wrongful death, personal injury and property 
damage, and destruction, or unauthorized access to, use, and/or theft of City Data 
(collectively, “Claims”) in any manner and to the extent arising out of, pertaining to, or 
incidental to any act, error, omission, or willful misconduct of Contractor, its owners, 
officials, officers, employees, servants, subcontractors, consultants or agents (and/or any 
entity or individual for whom Contractor shall bear legal liability) in connection with the 
performance of the Services including the payment of all damages, expert witness fees 
and attorney’s fees and other related costs and expenses actually incurred in connection 
with such defense. Contractor's obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to 
insurance proceeds, if any, received by Contractor, or by City or any of the other 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 29 of 41  

Indemnitees. Contractor shall have no liability hereunder for claims and liabilities arising 
out of the sole, active negligence of any of the Indemnitees.  

B. Professional Services. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor 
shall, at its sole cost and expense, protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify the 
Indemnitees, from and against any and all Claims, whether actual, alleged or threatened, 
to the extent arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to, in whole or in part, the 
negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of Contractor, and/or its officers, agents, 
servants, employees, subcontractors, contractors or their officers, agents, servants or 
employees (and/or any entity or individual for whom Contractor shall bear legal liability) 
in the performance of professional services under this Agreement. Contractor shall 
defend the Indemnitees in any action or actions filed in connection with any Claims with 
counsel of the Indemnitees’ choice, and shall pay all costs and expenses, including all 
attorneys’ fees and experts’ costs, actually incurred in connection with such defense.  

C. Contractor’s obligations under this Section shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement.  

 

14. Laws and Venue. 

This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California 
without regard for change of venue laws. If any action is brought to interpret or enforce any term 
of this Agreement, the action shall be brought in a state or federal court situated in the County of  
Orange, State of California. Contractor must comply with the claim procedures set forth in the 
Government Claims act (Government Code Section 810 et seq.) prior to filing any lawsuit 
against City.  

15. Termination. 

A. City may terminate any portion or all of the Services or this Agreement 
with or without cause by giving 10 days’ written notice to Contractor. In such event, City 
shall be immediately given title to and possession of all Work Product (as defined) below 
and original field notes, drawings and specifications, written reports and all other 
documents produced or developed pursuant to this Agreement. Provided Contractor is not 
then in breach, City shall pay Contractor for any portion of the Services satisfactorily 
completed prior to termination. If termination occurs prior to completion of any specific 
task for which a payment request has not been received, the charge for Services 
performed shall be the reasonable value of such Services, based on an amount agreed to 
by the parties. City shall not be liable for any costs other than the charges or portions 
thereof which are specified herein. Contractor shall not be entitled to payment for 
unperformed Services, and shall not be entitled to damages or compensation resulting 
from such termination.  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 30 of 41  

B. Contractor may terminate this Agreement only for cause and by serving 
written notice of termination to City, provided Contractor has first served City with a 
written notice of default and demand to cure, and City has failed to cure such default 
within 30 days of receipt of such notice.  

16. Ownership of Work Product. 

A. All draft and final reports, documents, and other written material, and any 
and all images, ideas, concepts, designs including website designs, source code, object 
code, electronic data and files, and/or other media whatsoever created or developed by 
Contractor in the performance of this Agreement (collectively, “Work Product”) shall be 
considered to be “works made for hire” for the benefit of City. All Work Product and any 
and all intellectual property rights arising from their creation, including all copyrights and 
other proprietary rights, shall be and remain the property of City without restriction or 
limitation upon their use, duplication or dissemination by City upon final payment being 
made, provided that any such use shall be at City’s sole risk. Contractor shall not obtain 
or attempt to obtain copyright protection as to any of the Work Product. Contractor 
agrees that the compensation set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement includes 
conveyance to City of ownership of all Work Product, including intellectual property 
rights, as provided in this Section 16.  

B. Contractor hereby assigns to City all rights of ownership to the Work 
Product, including any and all related intellectual property and proprietary rights, that are 
not otherwise vested in City pursuant to subsection A above.  

C. Contractor warrants and represents that it has secured all necessary 
licenses, consents or approvals necessary to the production of the Work Product, and that 
upon final payment or Contractor’s default, City shall have full legal title to the Work 
Product, and full legal authority and the right to use and reproduce the Work Product for 
any purpose. Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold City, and the other Indemnitees 
harmless from any and all losses, claims or liabilities in any way related to a claim that 
City’s use of any of the Work Product violates federal, state or local laws, or any 
contractual provisions, or any rights or laws relating to trade names, licenses, franchises, 
copyrights, patents or other means of protecting intellectual property rights and/or 
interests in products, ideas or inventions. Contractor shall bear all costs arising from the 
use of patented, copyrighted, trade secret or trademarked documents, materials, 
equipment, devices or processes in connection with its provision of the Work Product 
produced under this Agreement. In the event the use of any of the Work Product or other 
deliverables hereunder by City is held to constitute an infringement and the use of any of 
the same is enjoined, Contractor, at its expense, shall: (a) secure for City the right to 
continue using the Work Product and other deliverables by suspension of any injunction, 
or by procuring a license or licenses for City; or (b) modify the Work Product and other 
deliverables so that they become non-infringing while remaining in compliance with the 
requirements of this Agreement. Contractor’s obligations under this Section shall survive 
the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 31 of 41  

17. Data Security. 

A. As used in this Agreement, “City Data” means any and all information and 
data provided or made accessible, directly or indirectly, to Contractor by City, or 
otherwise acquired from City, in connection with Contractor’s performance of the 
Services. Except where subject to a third party’s intellectual property rights, any and all 
City Data is solely owned by City. Contractor is granted a limited, non-exclusive, and 
revocable license to use City Data solely as necessary to perform the Services. At no time 
shall Contractor use City Data for its own purposes, or sell, disclose or disseminate City 
Data, except as required by law or to provide the Services. At all times herein, Contractor 
shall protect and maintain the security of City Data using methods providing not less than 
the level of security Contractor uses for its own confidential data, and that otherwise 
comply with recognized industry data security standards applicable to similar kinds of 
governmental data and information.  

B. To the extent any City Data consists of personal information as defined in 
Consumer Privacy Act (Civil Code Section 1798.100 et seq.), Contractor shall comply 
with that statute and with Civil Code Section 1798.80, et seq., including providing the 
required notifications in the event of any unauthorized access of personal information 
stored, maintained, accessed, used or transmitted by Contractor in connection with this 
Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor shall within 24 hours notify the 
City Representative by telephone and in writing of any unauthorized access of City 
Data. Thereafter, Contractor shall render any assistance to City and law enforcement as 
necessary to ascertain the nature and extent of such unauthorized access.  

C. Contractor shall not store City Data using cloud-based storage without 
City’s prior, written consent, unless the use of such storage is clearly described in the 
Scope of Services. Where permitted herein, any and all cloud-based storage shall be on 
servers and other hardware located within the continental United States, and shall be in 
compliance with ISO/IEC 27001 - 27018, as applicable, unless otherwise agreed to in 
writing by the City Representative.  

18. Party Representatives. 

A. Contractor hereby designates {ContractorRepName}, or such person’s 
designee, as Contractor’s Representative for this Agreement, unless and until written 
notice of a new representative acceptable to City is provided to City.  

B. City hereby designates {CityRepName} or such person’s designee, as the 
City Representative for this Agreement.  

C. The foregoing representatives shall be authorized to provide consent 
where required herein, and to make other administrative decisions that will be binding on 
their respective party, except as otherwise specifically required herein.  

19. Notices. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 32 of 41  

Any notices, invoices, or other documents related to this Agreement shall be deemed 
received on: (a) the day of delivery, if delivered by hand during the receiving party’s regular 
business hours or by e-mail before or during the receiving party’s regular business hours; (b) the 
business day after delivery, if delivered by e-mail after the receiving party’s regular business 
hours; or (c) on the second business day following deposit in the United States mail, certified 
mail with return receipt requested and postage prepaid, to the addresses listed below, or to such 
other addresses as the parties may, from time to time, designate in writing.  

City  Contractor  
City of Brea  {ContractorFullName}  

1 Civic Center Circle  {ConPMStreetAddress}  

Brea, CA 92821  {ConPMcity}, {ConPMstate} {ConPMzip}  

United States  {ConPMCountry}  

{CityPMName}  {ConPMName}  
{CityPMEmail}  {ConPMEmail}  
{CityPMPhone}  {ConPMPhone}  
  

20. Third Party Rights. 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to anyone 
other than City and Contractor.  

21. Conflicts of Interest. 

A. Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest, and shall not acquire 
any interest, direct or indirect, financial or otherwise, which would conflict in any manner 
or degree with the performance of the Services. Contractor certifies that no one who has 
or will have any financial interest under this Agreement is an officer or employee of City.  

B. Contractor further covenants that, in the performance of this Agreement, 
no subcontractor or person having any interest, direct or indirect, financial or otherwise, 
which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the Services shall 
be employed. Contractor has provided City with a list of all City-approved subcontractors 
and the key personnel for such subcontractors that are retained or to be retained by 
Contractor in connection with the performance of the Services, to assist City in affirming 
compliance with this Section.  

C. Contractor maintains and warrants that it has not employed nor retained 
any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Contractor, 
to solicit or secure this Agreement. Further, Contractor warrants that it has not paid nor 
has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other 
consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. 
If required, Contractor further agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 33 of 41  

subcontractors to file, a Statement of Economic Interest with the City Clerk as required 
under state law in the performance of the Services. For breach or violation of this 
warranty, City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without liability. No 
director, official, officer or employee of City, during the term of his or her service with 
City, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated 
material benefit arising therefrom.  

22. Severability. 

The unenforceability, invalidity or illegality of any provision(s) of this Agreement shall 
not render the provisions unenforceable, invalid or illegal.  

23. Successors and Assigns. 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors in 
interest, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties.  

24. Non-Waiver. 

None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be considered waived by either party, 
unless such waiver is specified in writing, and any such waiver shall be limited to that set of 
circumstances and not to any future circumstances unless another written waiver is executed.  

25. Time of Essence. 

Time is of the essence in each and every provision of this Agreement. 

26. City’s Right to Employ Other Contractors. 

City reserves its right to employ other contractors to provide the Services or similar 
services.  

27. Exhibits. 

The attached {ExhibitsAttached} are incorporated herein by reference. In the event of 
any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and any Exhibit, the 
provisions of this Agreement shall govern. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between 
the provisions of this Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements and the Contractor’s 
Proposal set forth in the attached Attachment 1 to Exhibit A, the provisions of the Scope of 
Services and Specifications Requirements shall govern.  

28. Entire Agreement. 

This Agreement (including the attached Exhibits) represents the entire understanding of 
the parties as to the Services, and supersedes and cancels any prior or contemporaneous oral or 
written understanding, promises or representations with respect to those matters. Each party 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 34 of 41  

acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises or agreements have been made by 
any person which are not incorporated herein, and that any other agreements shall be void. This 
Agreement may not be modified or altered except in writing signed by both parties. This is an 
integrated Agreement.  

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]  
  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 35 of 41  

TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT, the Parties have caused their authorized representatives 
to sign below. Digital Signatures are acceptable if they conform to all requirements of California 
Government Code Section 16.5.  

{Contractor Full Name} 
By: __________________________   By: __________________________  

{ConSigner1Name} {ConSigner2Name}  
{ConSigner1Title} {ConSigner2Title}  
{ConSigner1Email} {ConSigner2Email}  

Date Signed: _______________  Date Signed: _______________  
CORPs: Chairperson, President, Vice President;  CORPs: Secretary, Asst. Secretary, Chief Finance  
LLCs:  Manager  Officer,  Asst.  Treasurer 

LLCs: Manager  
[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 313, both signature lines must be executed unless the signatory 
holds at least one of the offices designated on each line.]  

[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 17703.01(d), both signature lines must be executed unless the 
articles of incorporation state that the firm is managed by only one manager.]  
City of Brea  Attest (if over $25,000)  
By: __________________________   By: __________________________  

{CitySignerName} {AttestName}  
{CitySignerTitle} {AttestTitle}  
{CitySignerEmail} {AttestEmail}  

Date Signed: _______________  Date Signed: _______________  
 

  



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 36 of 41  

EXHIBIT A  
Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements  

Contract Term:  Three (3) Years with two (2) consecutive annual extensions 

Objective 

The City of Brea is soliciting proposals for Police alarm permit and false alarm billing services within the 
City.  The purpose of this request for proposal (RFP) is to provide interested proposers with information 
to enable them to prepare and submit a proposal for consideration. 

Intent 

The City of Brea is required to enact the requirements set forth in Chapter 8.38 of the City’s Municipal 
Code that states that Police alarm subscribers must obtain an annual permit and fees associated for false 
alarm responses.  Additional information can be found by visiting the City’s website at: 
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/brea . 

Background 

The City of Brea requires commercial and residential alarm users to obtain a valid alarm permit prior to 
operating an alarm system. All permits must be renewed annually. As of January 1, 2024, it is anticipated 
the number of active permitted alarm systems in Brea is approximately 2,162.  Historically, the Police 
Department respond to approximately 1,611 false alarm calls annually with 1,232 resulting in a false 
alarm penalty being assessed.  For reference purposes only, below is the current fee schedule for both the 
annual Police alarm permit and false alarm billing: 
 
Annual Alarm Permit Information: $25  Residential 
     $25  Commercial 
 
False Alarm Information:  $0   Two free false alarm per fiscal year 
     $100   Third false alarm  
     $125  Fourth false alarm 
     $150 Fifth false alarm and each false alarm thereafter 
 
Penalties are assessed thirty-one (31) days after the date of invoice, a penalty of ten percent (10%) of the 
fee shall be added, plus, commencing each month thereafter, an additional penalty of ten percent (10%) of 
the original fee shall be added, up to a maximum penalty amount not to exceed the original invoiced 
amount.  
 
Scope of Work 

To qualify for contract consideration, proposers must, at a minimum, provide the following services and 
benefits: 

I. Online Permit Tracking 
a. The Proposer shall be responsible for working with residential and commercial alarm 

companies to ensure that existing and new alarm subscribers acquire a police alarm permit 
annually. 

b. The Proposer shall be responsible for issuing notices to alarm subscribers when there is 
evidence that an alarm-subscriber has failed to secure the required permit for an alarm system. 

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/brea


PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 37 of 41  

c. The Proposer shall be responsible for providing information on a frequency to be determined 
including, but not limited to, the first and last name of the alarm subscriber, permit type 
(residential versus business) and address of the property where the required permit has not been 
obtained. 

d. The Proposer shall be responsible for the billing and collection of any fees associated with the 
failure of the alarm subscriber to secure a police alarm permit.  

e. The Proposer shall provide the City online, web-based access to the data associated with 
permits for audit and ad-hoc reporting purposes.  System access by City staff shall not be 
limited to less than 5 users.   

f. The Proposer shall provide the ability to register police alarm systems and obtain alarm permits 
by connecting to an Internet-based portal integrated with the City of Brea existing website. 

g. The Proposer must describe any features or services provided to create an initial permitting 
database. 

 

II. Billing 
a. The Proposer system must interface and receive a daily data set from the intermediary server 

that identifies false alarm events for the previous calendar date. This process shall be automatic 
and not require City staff intervention. 

b. The Proposer shall be responsible for producing bills on a frequency specified by the City 
(daily/weekly) to businesses and residents who owe a false alarm service fee based on a fee 
structure articulated by City Ordinances and Resolutions. 

c. Flexibility shall be inherent in the Proposer’s system should the false alarm fee structure change 
with future fee updates. 

d. The Proposer shall provide a local or toll-free phone number to assist citizens and businesses 
and answer questions as to the administration and billing of this program.  Customer service 
shall be available at minimum 8:00am to 5:00pm, Monday through Friday, PST.  If Proposer 
offers different language services, please include within proposal. 

e. The Proposer shall provide a secure and user-friendly online system for customer bill payment 
and provisions for those without internet access. The online payment process should be PCI-
compliant. 

f. The Proposer shall provide the City with all available payment options that will be provided to 
the customer (i.e. Check, EFT, Visa, Mastercard, Discover, American Express, ApplePay, 
Venmo, etc.).    

g. Monthly payment reconciliation data must be provided by the Proposer so they can be 
accounted for within the City’s financial system. 

             

III. Collections 
a. The Proposer shall be responsible for the collection of all fees. All fees collected shall be 

deposited in an account controlled by the Proposer. Deposits shall be disbursed at least monthly 
based on their respective percentages of the revenues collected as provided by the contract 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 38 of 41  

between the City and the Proposer.  At minimum, the reconciliation of payment information 
must be provided in electronic format to the City and include the breakdown of payment 
methods and the daily quantity of permits collected that correspond the amount being reported. 

b. To enhance the public convenience and program perception, it is preferred that the Proposer 
provide a nearby program mailing address and mail-in payment processing.    

c. The Proposer shall be responsible for seeking collections from delinquent and/or uncollectible 
accounts and shall receive a percentage of the delinquent revenue as provided by the contract 
between the City and the Proposer. 

d. The Proposer shall be responsible for providing information on a frequency to be determined 
that includes the name of the alarm-subscriber, permit number and address of the property 
where false alarm service fees are delinquent. 

e. The Proposer shall provide the City online web-based access to the data associated with 
collections for audit and ad-hoc reporting purposes. The City requires that the database utilized 
falls within City IT standards. 

f. The Proposer shall support the billing/suspension/revocation appeals process. 

g. The Proposer will provide the City access to the data associated with collections for audit and 
ad-hoc reporting purposes. System access by City staff shall not be limited to less than 5 users.   

h. The Proposer shall obtain, at its own expense, regular, independently certified (i.e., SSAE16, 
SOC 1) audits of internal financial controls, data security, and alarm management services. 
The reports on such audits shall be shared with the City. 

 

IV. Interface with Computer-Aided Dispatch Intermediary Server 
a. To minimize technical issues related to the sharing of alarm data, short-listed Proposers 

must be able to show the successful implementation of an automated alarm permit 
interface with a one-way directional flow of alarm incident data from the intermediary 
server to the Proposer’s proposed system and alarm permit data from the proposed 
system to the CAD.  Proposer must provide three references of agencies utilizing a one-
way directional intermediary server interface with which they contract.  The City’s 
intermediary server is a Windows 2019 Standard, SQL 2014 Management Studio. All 
data is replicated from the City’s FlexRMS tables. The interface must run as a service. 
 

b. Transferred permit data should include at least permit status, permit number, emergency 
contacts, and site condition information. 

c. The Proposer shall also provide proof and references demonstrating successful program 
use with other jurisdictions comparable to the City that use a different CAD system. 

d. The Proposer shall provide gratis system enhancements as they become available and 
backup system/disaster recovery functions. 

e. Should the Proposer be selected for the contract but fail to provide and maintain a database 
capable of sharing bi-directional information with the current CAD or other CAD 
Contractors, as it may be upgraded, changed, or modified over time, it shall be considered 
a material breach of contract and grounds for immediate termination of Contractors 
contract. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 39 of 41  

 
V. Customer Service 

a. The Proposer shall provide an internet-based portal which will give public interactivity for 
purposes of education, registration, and support services, as well as an automated or 
personnel-staffed telephone system with similar attributes for those needing alarm program 
services, but without internet access. 

b. The Proposer will develop written educational materials for citizens and businesses, 
coordinate a public education notification plan and provide alarm user training and education 
via the Internet and other methods for those without computer access. 

c. The Proposer shall provide the City current online access to the alarm program data with the 
ability to search accounts by multiple search criteria, view supporting documents such as 
letters and invoices, generate management reports, and create ad-hoc (custom) reports where 
the custom report template can be saved and re-generated on demand.  System access by City 
staff shall not be limited to less than 5 users.   

d. The Proposer shall have a track record demonstrating experience and expertise in advising 
residents and businesses on alarm ordinance provisions.     

 
VI. Data Security and Reliability 

a. The Proposer shall ensure the security and reliability of the City’s public safety data 
maintained by the Proposer. Please describe the policies, processes, and systems the Proposer 
has in place to protect the data. 
 

b. Proposer shall provide information as to where the data collected from the City is stored. 
 

c. The Proposer shall follow generally accepted practices for ensuring that its alarm 
management services are provided with adequate internal controls. Please describe these 
practices. 

d. The Proposer shall provide gratis System enhancements as they become available and 
backup system/disaster recovery functions. 
 

e. Proof of PCI DSS compliance. 
 

f. A functional explanation of the electronic payment process between the alarm system 
subscriber, the City, and the Proposer’s system, including details on procedures and 
processes relating to typical payment transactions, reversals, payment refunds, and how 
funds are transmitted to the designated City bank account including any/all costs involved. 
 

g. A schedule or fee structure for all customer transaction costs. 
 

VII. Reporting 
a. Provide a complete list and sample of reports available online to the City. 

 
b. Provide an audit trail of all system transactions and histories. 

 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 40 of 41  

c. Provide a monthly reconciliation and any supporting documentation the City will receive 
monthly before approving the monthly invoice from the Proposer. 
 

d. Provide an account history that is accessible by the City online. 
 

e. Provide any features and functions available for printing and saving the reports available to 
the City online. 
 

f. If available, provide average violation billing time, average call wait time, average number 
of calls processed per hour by customer service representatives, and percentage of 
calls/issues resolved in one phone call. 
 

g. Describe any additional features and capabilities of the online reporting function the City 
will have access to through the program web portal. 
 

h. The City reserves the opportunity to review all required online reports and website 
performance with the Proposer upon request. 

 
VIII. Cost Proposal 

 
i. The Proposer shall provide pricing options whether the City absorbs all or a portion of 

banking fees or if the customer will pay the associated banking fees or a convenience fee. 
 

j. The Proposer shall quote on whether fees are based upon a percentage or a per processed 
permit fee or a combination of both. 
 

k. The Proposer shall state implicitly whether banking fees are included in the fees paid the 
Proposer or if they are paid separately. 

 
 

End of this Exhibit   



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

Page 41 of 41  

Attachment 1 to Exhibit A  
CONTRACTOR’S PROPOSAL AND FEE SCHEDULE  

(attached)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 



Page 1 

07/23/24 
RFP 2024.07.09.01 - Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services - 
Addendum 01 

The following addendum is issued to reflect responses to questions received regarding 
this solicitation:

1. Please reconfirm the due date for this procurement by providing it in response to 
answers to questions.

Please refer to the timeline in the RFP solicitation.  

2. If there was a previous solicitation for these services, what was its title, number, 
release date, and due date?

N/A

3. Can you please provide greater explanation of your expectations related to any 
required subcontracting to minority-owned, women-owned, or other types or 
categories of small or disadvantaged businesses? For example, what is required with 
the proposal, and what is required to comply during the term of the contract?

Please refer to sample agreement in RFP.  

4. Are bidders permitted to deviate in any way from any manner of quoting fees you may 
be expecting? For example, if there is a pricing page in the RFP, can bidders submit 
an alternate fee structure? If there is no pricing page in the RFP, do you have any 
preference for how bidders should quote fees or can bidders create their own pricing 
categories

Please refer to the RFP for the required Scope of Services.  Proposers are required to submit 
and complete a Pricing Form under the Standard Forms section of the RFP.  Each proposal 
must be inclusive of all costs to perform the required services and any deviations must be 
clearly noticed as such.
Please refer to RFP solicitation and attachment in documents section.

5. Please describe your level of satisfaction with your current or recent vendor(s) for the 
same purchasing activity, if applicable.

N/A  

6. Has the current contract gone full term?



Page 2

Current billing services are performed by City staff and collection services are currently 
provided by United Resource Systems (URS) which is the City’s third-party collection agency.

7. Have all options to extend the current contract been exercised?

N/A

8. Who is the incumbent, and how long has the incumbent been providing the requested 
services?

Current billing services are performed by City staff and collection services are currently 
provided by United Resource Systems (URS) which is the City’s third-party collection agency.  

9. To what extent will the location of the bidder's proposed location or headquarters have 
a bearing on any award?

None.

10. How are fees currently being billed by any incumbent(s), by category, and at what 
rates?

Please refer to scope of services in RFP for current billing rates.  Current collection rates 
through URS are as follows:

First Placement Accounts: 30%
First Placement Accounts Requiring Litigation: 40%
All checks $200.00 and below: Face Value
All checks $200.01 and above: 25%

URS retains all nonsufficient funds (NSF) fees

11. What estimated or actual dollars were paid last year, last month, or last quarter to any 
incumbent(s)?

Estimated dollar amounts for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024 are as follows:

Police Alarm Permit ($25 commercial & $25 residential): $52,350
Police False Alarm Penalties: $80,437
Collection Submitted to URS:      $418
Collections Paid:          $0

Estimates are exclusive of any applicable late fee charge amounts.

12. To what extent are these accounts owed by private consumers versus commercial 
businesses?



Page 3

As an estimate, there are 1,410 residential permit holders, 738 commercial permit holders, 
and 14 governmental permit holders.

13. Will accounts be primary placements, not having been serviced by any other outside 
collection agency, and/or will you also be referring secondary placements? If so, 
should bidders provide proposed fees for secondary placements also?

Collections of unpaid debt for police alarm permits and police false alarm penalties will be 
considered primary placements.  

14. What collection attempts are performed or will be performed internally prior to 
placement?

Proposer shall provide City staff with written notification of when an unpaid debt is being 
placed for collections. Proposer to clearly identify collection services as part of their 
proposal.  Please refer to the Scope of Services within the RFP.  

15. Will the selected vendor be allowed to litigate balances exceeding a certain dollar 
amount on your behalf, with your explicit approval?

Proposers of said services must provide that detail clearly as part of their proposal.  All terms 
may be negotiated as part of the post award process.

16. What is the total dollar value of accounts available for placement now by category, 
including any backlog?

The total dollar value of accounts available for placement will vary based upon the timing of 
initial billing cycle.  For fiscal year ending June 30, 2024 it is estimated that $418 was sent to 
the City’s third party collection agency (URS) for Police False Alarm penalty charges.

17. What is the total number of accounts available for placement now by category, 
including any backlog?

The total number of accounts available for placement will vary based upon the timing of initial 
billing cycle.  For fiscal year ending June 30, 2024 it is estimated that one account was sent 
to the City’s third party collection agency (URS).

18. What is the average balance of accounts by category?

Please see response above.

19. What is the average age of accounts at placement (at time of award and/or on a going-
forward basis), by category?



Page 4 

The average age of accounts at placement varies but assumed to be no less than 120 days 
past due.

20. What is the monthly or quarterly number of accounts expected to be placed with the 
vendor(s) by category?

The total number of accounts available for placement will vary based upon the timing of initial 
billing cycle.  

21. What is the monthly or quarterly dollar value of accounts expected to be placed with 
the vendor(s) by category?

The total dollar value of accounts available for placement will vary based upon the timing of 
initial billing cycle.  

22. What has been the historical rate of return or liquidation rate provided by any 
incumbent(s), and/or what is anticipated or expected as a result of this procurement?

Information unknown at this time.

23. Can you please indicate what inbound and outbound contact methods, beyond phone 
calls or letters (such as email and text), would be permitted by the scope of work?

Proposer to identify preferred contact method(s) for inbound and outbound correspondence 
with customer and with City staff as part of their proposal.

There are no other changes, additions, or deletions by issuance of this addendum.

Sincerely,

Stephanie Garcia
Senior Buyer



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 1  

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated Tuesday, June 17, 2025 for 
reference purposes and is executed by the City of Brea, a California municipal corporation (“City”), 
and PMAM Corporation, a C Corporation (“Consultant”) to be effective upon the date of execution 
of this Agreement by the City Manager or the City’s authorized designee as set forth on the 
Signature Page hereto (the “Effective Date”). 

RECITALS 
A. City desires to retain Consultant as an independent consultant to provide the following
professional services: Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services.

B. Consultant represents that it is duly licensed, fully authorized by law, and has the
necessary experience and qualifications, to provide such services.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Scope of Services.

Consultant shall perform the services referenced in the Recitals, as required by RFP No.
2024.07.09.01 and more specifically described in the Scope of Services set forth in the attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A”, and as otherwise required by this Agreement, all to City’s satisfaction 
(collectively, “Services”). 

2. Compensation.

A. City shall pay for the Services satisfactorily performed, in accordance with
the Fee Schedule set forth in the attached Attachment 1 to Exhibit A hereto (the “Fee 
Schedule). 

B. In no event shall the total amount paid for the Services over the term of
this Agreement exceed the revenue sharing amount of twenty-six percent (26%) of all 
actual revenues generated and collected including all adjustments for alarm permit and 
renewal fees; false alarm violation fee(s) above a mandated limit; reinstatement fees; late 
fee(s) for false alarms, permit fees and renewal fees; other changes imposed in relation 
to the City’s Alarm Program Management and Collection Services (except for criminal 
penalties) (“Contract Amount”). This revenue sharing amount covers and is inclusive of 
all labor, materials, and any and all other costs incurred by Consultant in performing the 
Services, except for mailing and banking fees identified in the Fee Schedule as program 
expenses to be deducted from the program revenue before the split of revenue. Consultant 
shall be deemed to have made all inquiries and site inspections deemed necessary by 
Consultant prior to execution of this Agreement. 

C. The share of the revenues payable to Consultant and the City in accordance
with the provisions of the Fee Schedule shall be determined and paid monthly within 15 
days after the end of each calendar month during the Term hereof based upon the amount 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 2  

of collections during the immediately preceding calendar month, adjusted for any 
outstanding authorized reimbursements or expenses payable to Consultant in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement.  

 
3. Contingency Work. 

 

This Agreement does not include any contingency or additional work.  Any additional 
work performed by Consultant without a written amendment or approval of the City shall be 
deemed to be work included within the Services. 

 
4. Term. 

 
The initial term of this Agreement shall be for a period of three (3) years commencing on the 

Contract Implementation Date (as hereinafter defined) and ending on the day immediately 
preceding the third anniversary of the Contract Implementation Date (the ‘Initial Term”), subject 
to earlier termination as set forth in Section 15 hereof. The City may extend the term of this 
Agreement by giving written notice to Consultant within 30 days prior to the then-scheduled 
expiration date for two (2) additional one-year terms which will be at the sole discretion of the City 
Manager. As used herein, the term “Contract Implementation Date” shall mean the first day of 
the calendar month for which Consultant commences billing for its Services to the City hereunder 
following the installation of the False Alarm Management Program. 

 
5. Time of Performance. 

 
A. Consultant shall complete the Services within the term of this Agreement, 

and shall meet any other established and agreed upon schedules and deadlines agreed 
upon in writing. Consultant shall commence performance within two business days of 
receiving City’s written notice to proceed. 

 
B. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be considered in default of this 

Agreement for delays in performance caused by a force majeure event. As used in this 
Agreement, the term “force majeure event” means circumstances beyond the reasonable 
control of the non-performing party and includes the following: abnormal weather 
conditions; floods; earthquakes; fire; epidemics; war; riots and other civil disturbances; 
strikes, lockouts, work slowdowns, and other labor disturbances; sabotage; or judicial 
restraint. Consultant’s lack of financial capability, shall not constitute a force majeure 
event unless directly attributable to any of the foregoing events. 

 
C. Should a force majeure event occur, the non-performing party shall, within 

a reasonable time of being prevented from performing, give written notice to the other party 
describing the circumstances preventing continued performance and the efforts being made 
to resume performance of this Agreement. 

 
6. Maintenance of Records. 

          Books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the Services, 
including costs incurred, shall be maintained by Consultant and made available for review by City at all 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 3  

reasonable times during the term of this Agreement. Upon termination of this Agreement, the City may 
require Consultant to provide all finished and/or unfinished data and other information of any kind 
possessed by Consultant in connection with the performance of Services under this Agreement. 
Consultant shall be required to provide such information within a reasonable period of time of 
receipt of the request not to exceed thirty (30) days. All data relating to alarm permits shall be owned 
by the City. Upon termination of this Agreement, Consultant shall promptly deliver to the City all 
such data in MS-SQL format. Thereafter, Consultant shall destroy any and all remaining alarm 
related data including all City Data. 

 
7. Standard of Care. 

Consultant’s Services shall be performed in accordance with the generally accepted 
professional standards of practice and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of care 
and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently performing similar services 
under similar conditions. Consultant shall maintain all professional licenses and certifications 
required to lawfully perform the Services. 

 
 

8. Compliance with Law. 
A. Consultant shall comply with all applicable ordinances, laws, statutes, 

and regulations including Cal/OSHA requirements. 
 
B. Consultant shall obtain a City of Brea business license. 

 
9. Assignment and Subcontracting. 

 
A. Consultant shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or 

obligations under, or any interest in this Agreement, or subcontract any required 
performance hereunder, without the prior written consent of City, which may be withheld 
for any reason. City shall be deemed to have approved Consultant’s utilization of 
subcontractors identified in Consultant’s proposal for the Services. 

 
B. Any attempt to so assign, transfer, or subcontract without City’s prior 

written consent shall be void and shall constitute grounds for City’s termination of this 
Agreement. Authorized subcontracts shall contain a provision making the subcontractor 
subject to all requirements of this Agreement. 

 
C. If use of a subcontractor is approved, then City may withhold 5% of each 

monthly payment to Consultant. Such retention shall be released upon City’s receipt of an 
unconditional release of all claims signed by any such subcontractor, as to work performed 
to date. 

 
10. Independent Contractor. 

 
A. Consultant is retained as an independent contractor and is not an employee 

of City. No employee or agent of Consultant is or shall become an employee of City. 
 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 4  

B. Consultant will determine the means, methods, and details by which 
Consultant’s personnel will perform the Services. Consultant shall be solely responsible 
for the satisfactory work performance of all personnel engaged in performing the 
Services and compliance with the customary professional standards. 

 
C. Consultant’s personnel shall not wear or display any City uniform, badge, 

identification number, or other information identifying such individual as an employee of 
City. Consultant’s personnel shall not use any City e-mail address or City telephone 
number in the performance of the Services. Consultant shall acquire and maintain at its 
sole cost and expense such vehicles, equipment and supplies as Consultant’s personnel 

require to perform the Services. Consultant shall perform the Services off of City premises 
at locations of Consultant’s choice, except as otherwise may from time to time be necessary 
in order for Consultant’s personnel to receive projects from City, review plans on file at 
City, pick up or deliver any work product, or as may be necessary to inspect or visit City 
locations. City may make a computer available to Consultant from time to time for 
Consultant’s personnel to obtain information about or to check on the status of projects 
pertaining to the Services. 

 
D. Consultant shall be responsible for and pay all wages, salaries, benefits 

and other amounts due to Consultant’s personnel in connection with the Services. 
Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such additional 
personnel, including Social Security taxes, other retirement or pension benefits, income 
tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers' 
compensation insurance. Consultant and its officers, employees, agents, and 
subcontractors shall not become entitled to, and hereby waive any claims to, any wages, 
salaries, compensation, benefit or any incident of employment by City, including 
eligibility to enroll in, or reinstate to membership in, the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (“PERS”) or any other retirement program, as an employee of City, 
and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by City for employer contributions or 
employee contributions for PERS benefits or any other retirement benefits. 

 
11. CalPERS Compliance. 

The parties acknowledge that City is a local agency member of the State of California 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), and as such has certain pension reporting and 
contribution obligations to CalPERS on behalf of qualifying employees. At the current time, 
Consultant has no CalPERS employees Consultant agrees that, in providing its employees and any 
other personnel to City who are located in California to perform the Services, Consultant shall 
assure compliance with the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) (Government 
Code Section 20000 et seq.), the regulations of CalPERS, and the Public Employees’ Pension 
Reform Act of 2013 (Government Code Section 7522 et seq.). Without limitation to the foregoing, 
Consultant shall assure compliance with regard to personnel who have active or inactive 
membership in CalPERS and to those who are retired annuitants and in performing this Agreement 
shall not assign or utilize any of its personnel in a manner that will cause City to be in violation of 
the applicable retirement laws and regulations. 

 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 5  

12. Insurance. 
 

Unless otherwise permitted or waived in writing by City’s Risk Manager, Consultant shall 
not commence work until it has secured all insurance required under this section and provided 
evidence thereof that is acceptable to City. In addition, Consultant shall not allow any 
subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until it has secured all insurance required 
under this section. 

 
A. Commercial General Liability 

 
i. Consultant shall take out and maintain, in amounts not less than specified 

herein, Commercial General Liability Insurance, in a form and with insurance companies acceptable 
to City. 

 
ii. Coverage for Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as 

broad as the following: 
 

a. Insurance Services Office Commercial 
General Liability coverage (Occurrence Form CG 00 01) or exact 
equivalent. 

 
iii. Commercial General Liability Insurance must include coverage for the 

following: 

 
Agreement 

a. Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
b. Personal Injury/Advertising Injury 
c. Premises/Operations Liability 
d. Products/Completed Operations Liability 
e. Aggregate Limits that Apply per Project 
f. Contractual Liability with respect to this 

 
g. Broad Form Property Damage 
h. Independent Consultants Coverage



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 6  

 
iv. The policy shall contain no endorsements or provisions limiting coverage 

for (1) contractual liability; (2) cross liability exclusion for claims or suits by one insured against 
another; (3) products/completed operations liability; or (4) contain any other exclusion contrary 
to this Agreement. 

 
v. The policy shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, employees, 

agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as independent consultants in the role 
of City officials, as additional insureds using ISO endorsement forms CG 20 10 10 01 and 20 37 
10 01, or endorsements providing the exact same coverage. 

 
vi. The general liability coverage may utilize deductibles or provide coverage 

excess of a self-insured retention, only if approved by City’s Risk Manager in writing, and further 
provided that such deductibles shall not apply to coverage of the additional insureds. 

 
B. Automobile Liability 

 
i. Consultant shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injury 

and property damage including coverage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles, in a form and 
with insurance companies acceptable to City. 

ii. Coverage for automobile liability insurance shall be at least as broad as 
Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering automobile 
liability (Coverage Symbol 1, any auto). 

 
iii. The policy shall be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, employees, 

agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as independent consultants in the role 
of City officials, as additional insureds. 

 
iv. Subject to City’s written approval, the automobile liability coverage may 

utilize deductibles or provide coverage excess of a self-insured retention, provided that such 
deductibles shall not apply to coverage of the additional insureds. 

 
C. Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability 

 
i. Consultant certifies that Consultant is aware of the provisions of Labor 

 
Code Section 3700 which requires every employer to be insured against liability for workers’ 
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and 
he/she/it will comply with such provisions before commencing work under this Agreement. 

 
ii. Consultant shall maintain full compensation insurance for its employees in 

accordance with the Workers’ Compensation and Insurance Act (Labor Code Section 3200 et seq.) 
and Employer’s Liability Coverage in amounts indicated herein. Consultant shall require all 
subcontractors to obtain and maintain workers’ compensation coverage of the same type and limits 
as specified in this section. 

 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 7  

D. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) 
 

Consultant shall maintain professional liability or errors and omissions insurance 
appropriate to its profession, in a form and with insurance companies acceptable to City and with 
the limits required herein. This insurance shall be endorsed to include contractual liability 
applicable to this Agreement and shall be written on a policy coverage form specifically designed 
to protect against acts, errors or omissions of Consultant in the performance of professional 
services. “Covered Professional Services” as designated in the policy must specifically include 
work performed under this Agreement. The policy must “pay on behalf of” the insured and must 
include a provision establishing the insurer's duty to defend. 

 
E. Cyber Liability 

 
If Cyber Liability is included in the Minimum Policy Limits Required below, then 

Consultant shall maintain cyber liability insurance providing protection against claims and 
liabilities arising from: (i) errors and omissions in connection with maintaining security of City 
Data (as defined below); (ii) data breach including theft, destruction, and/or unauthorized use of 
City Data; (iii) identity theft including bank charges assessed; and (iv) violation of privacy rights 
due to a breach of City Data. 

F. Minimum Policy Limits Required 
i. A.M. Best's Rating 

 
Each policy of insurance required herein shall be from a company or companies 

having a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII and admitted and authorized to transact 
the business of insurance in the State of California. 

 
ii. The following insurance limits are required for this Agreement: 

 

If ☒, then required Combined Single Limit 

☒Commercial General Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence/ $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily 
injury, personal injury, and property damage 

Automobile Liability 
$2,000,000 per occurrence (any auto) for bodily injury and 
property damage 

☒Workers’ Compensation In the amount required by California law 

☒Employer’s Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence 

☒Professional Liability $2,000,000 per claim and aggregate (errors and omissions) 

☒Cyber Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence 

iii. Defense costs shall be payable in addition to the limits. 
 

iv. Requirements of specific coverage or limits contained in this section are 
not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits, or other requirement, or a waiver of any 
coverage normally provided by any insurance. Any available coverage shall be provided to the 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 8  

parties required to be named as additional insured pursuant to this Agreement. 
 

G. Proof of Insurance 
 

Within five days of execution of this Agreement, but prior to commencement of the 
Services, Consultant shall file with City evidence of insurance from an insurer or insurers 
certifying to the coverage of all insurance required herein. Such evidence shall include original 
copies of the ISO CG 00 01 (or insurer’s equivalent) signed by the insurer’s representative and 
Certificate of Insurance (Acord Form 25-S or equivalent), together with required endorsements. 
All evidence of insurance shall be signed by a properly authorized officer, agent, or qualified 
representative of the insurer and shall certify the names of the insured, any additional insureds, 
where appropriate, the type and amount of the insurance, the location and operations to which the 
insurance applies, and the expiration date of such insurance. 

 
H. Policy Provisions Required 

 
i. Consultant shall provide City at least 30 days prior written notice of 

cancellation of any policy required by this Agreement, except that Consultant shall provide at 
least 10 days prior written notice of cancellation of any such policy due to non-payment of 
premium. If any of the required coverage is cancelled or expires during the term of this 
Agreement, Consultant shall deliver renewal certificate(s) including the required additional 
insured endorsement to City at least 10 days prior to the effective date of cancellation or 
expiration. 

 
ii. The Commercial General Liability Policy and Automobile Liability Policy 

shall each contain a provision stating that Consultant’s policy is primary insurance and that any 
insurance, self-insurance or other coverage maintained by City or any additional insureds shall not 
be called upon to contribute to any loss. 

 
iii. The retroactive date (if any) of each policy is to be no later than the 

effective date of this Agreement. If a “claims-made” professional liability policy is provided, it 
shall include an extended reporting period of not less than three years. 

 
iv. All required insurance coverages, except for the professional and cyber 

liability coverage, shall contain or be endorsed to provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of City, 
its officials, officers, employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers and agents serving as 
independent consultants in the role of City officials, or shall specifically allow Consultant or 
others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications to waive their right 
of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery against City, and 
shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each of its subcontractors. 

 
v. The limits set forth herein shall apply separately to each insured against 

whom claims are made or suits are brought, except with respect to the limits of liability.  
 

I. Additional Insurance Provisions 
 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 9  

 
i. If at any time during the term of this Agreement, any policy of insurance 

required under this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not 
replaced, City has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any 
premium paid by City will be promptly reimbursed by Consultant or City will withhold amounts 
sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. In the alternative, City may terminate this 
Agreement for cause. 

 

ii. City may require Consultant to provide for inspection by City, complete 
copies of all insurance policies in effect for the duration of the Agreement. 

 
iii. No City official, officer, employee, agent or volunteer shall be personally 

responsible for any liability arising under or by virtue of this Agreement. 
 

iv. The insurance obligations under this Agreement shall be: (1) all the 
 

insurance coverage and/or limits carried by or available to Consultant; or (2) the minimum 
insurance coverage requirements and/or limits shown in this Agreement; whichever is greater. Any 
insurance proceeds in excess of or broader than the minimum required coverage and/or minimum 
required limits, which are applicable to a given loss, shall be available to City. No representation 
is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement are sufficient to cover the 
obligations of Consultant under this Agreement. 

 
J. Subcontractor Insurance Requirements 

 
Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until 

it has provided evidence satisfactory to City that it has secured all insurance required under this 
section. Policies of commercial general liability insurance provided by such subcontractors shall 
be endorsed to name City, its officials, officers, employees, agents, servants, designated volunteers 
and agents serving as independent contractors in the role of City officials as additional insureds, 
using ISO form CG 20 38 04 13 or an endorsement providing the same coverage. If requested by 
Consultant, City may approve different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular 
subcontractors. 

 
13. Indemnification. 

 
A. Subject to the limitations hereinafter set forth,  Consultant shall defend (with 

counsel reasonably approved by City), indemnify and hold City, its officials, officers, 
attorneys, agents, employees, servants, designated volunteers, successors, assigns and those 
City agents serving as independent consultants in the role of City officials (collectively 
“Indemnitees”) free and harmless with respect to any and all claims, demands, causes of 
action, costs, expenses, liabilities, losses, damages, stop notices and/or injury of any kind, in 
law or equity, to property or persons, including bodily injury, wrongful death, personal injury 
and property damage, and destruction, or unauthorized access to, use, and/or theft of City Data 
(collectively, “Claims”) in any manner and to the extent arising out of, pertaining to, or 
incidental to any act, error, omission, breach of this Agreement, or willful misconduct of 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 10  

Consultant, its owners, officials, officers, employees, servants, subcontractors, consultants or 
agents (and/or any entity or individual for whom Consultant shall bear legal liability) in 
connection with the performance of the Services including the payment of all damages, expert 
witness fees and attorney’s fees and other related costs and expenses actually incurred in 
connection with such defense. Consultant shall have no liability hereunder for claims and 
liabilities arising out of the sole, active negligence of any of the Indemnitees. 

 

 B. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in no 
event whatsoever shall Consultant be liable for damages or losses attributable to its actions or 
inactions, or its subcontractor’s actions or inactions, with respect to the Services provided 
hereunder, whether for indemnification or otherwise, in excess of the Maximum 
Indemnification Amount. The Maximum Indemnification Amount shall be equal to the sum 
of: (i) any insurance proceeds actually received by Consultant, or paid by Consultant’s 
insurance carrier to the City, with respect to the claim for indemnification by the City 
hereunder, and (ii) the amount of fees actually retained by Consultant under this Agreement 
as its fee during the six (6) months immediately preceding the act or omission that generated 
Consultant’s indemnification obligation hereunder. Notwithstanding the preceding, the 
limitations on the indemnification or other obligations of Consultant set forth in this Section 
shall not apply to the obligation of Consultant to pay the City its share of the collected revenues 
as set forth in this Agreement. 

 C. Notwithstanding any other obligation of Consultant hereunder, in no event 
shall Consultant be liable for any indirect, incidental, special, consequential or punitive 
damages, including loss of fees, profits or income, arising directly or indirectly out of the 
provision or non-provision of Services hereunder, whether or not Consultant had any 
knowledge that such damages might be incurred. 

 
                              D. Consultant’s obligations under this Section shall survive the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement. 

 
14. Laws and Venue. 

 
This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California 

without regard for change of venue laws. If any action is brought to interpret or enforce any term 
of this Agreement, the action shall be brought in a state or federal court situated in the County of 
Orange, State of California. Consultant must comply with the claim procedures set forth in the 
Government Claims act (Government Code Section 810 et seq.) prior to filing any lawsuit against 
City. 

 
15. Termination. 

 
A. City may terminate any portion or all of the Services or this Agreement with 

or without cause by giving 30 days’ written notice to Consultant. In such event, City shall 
be immediately given title to and possession of all City Data (as defined) below and original 
field notes, drawings and specifications, written reports and all other documents produced 
or developed pursuant to this Agreement. Provided Consultant is not then in breach, City 
shall pay Consultant for any portion of the Services satisfactorily completed prior to 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 11  

termination. If termination occurs prior to completion of any specific task for which a 
payment request has not been received, the charge for Services performed shall be the 
reasonable value of such Services, based on an amount agreed to by the parties. City shall 
not be liable for any costs other than the charges or portions thereof which are specified 
herein. Consultant shall not be entitled to payment for unperformed Services, and shall not 
be entitled to damages or compensation resulting from such termination. In addition to the 
foregoing, in the event City terminates this Agreement within the first twelve (12) months, 
it shall pay Consultant the amount set forth in the Fee Schedule for the Guaranteed Period 
as defined in the Fee Schedule. 

B. Consultant may terminate this Agreement only for either (i) cause and by 
serving written notice of termination to City, provided Consultant has first served City 
with a written notice of default and demand to cure, and City has failed to cure such 
default within 30 days of receipt of such notice,  (ii) immediately upon written notice 
to City, if the City misuses or attempts to appropriate the proprietary software of 
Consultant used in connection with its False Alarm Management Program (the 
“Consultant’s Proprietary Software”), or (iii) pursuant to the provisions of Section 15C 
below. 

C. Consultant’s Fee Schedule and pricing for any and all Services to be 
provided by Consultant to the City under this Agreement have been set, established and 
agreed to be based upon the current provisions of applicable City ordinances relating to 
alarms. Should said ordinances change at any time during the term of this Agreement 
to reduce or eliminate the applicable fee, fines and charges, such reduction or 
elimination shall be effective prospectively only and not retroactively so that the fee 
earned by Consultant for Services provided prior to such modification of the alarm 
ordinance shall not be affected and the City shall not be entitled to any refund or credit 
arising from such modification of its alarm ordinance. In addition, if the change in the 
City ordinances relating to alarms would reduce or eliminate the fee, fines, and charges 
previously in effect, Consultant reserves the express right to enter into good faith 
negotiations with the City to modify the Fee Schedule and pricing accordingly. If, 
within thirty (30) days of notice from Consultant to the City of its desire to so 
renegotiate, the parties are unable to reach an agreement mutually acceptable to both 
parties, then Consultant reserves the right to terminate this Agreement. Said termination 
shall not be deemed to be a default by Consultant under this Agreement. Consultant 
shall be paid all fees and costs due and owing Consultant as of the date of said 
termination. 

 
16. Intentionally Omitted. 

 

17. Data Security. 
 

A. As used in this Agreement, “City Data” means any and all information and 
data provided or made accessible, directly or indirectly, to Consultant by City, or otherwise 
acquired from City, in connection with Consultant’s performance of the Services. Except 
where subject to a third party’s intellectual property rights, any and all City Data is solely 
owned by City. Consultant is granted a limited, non-exclusive, and revocable license to use 
City Data solely as necessary to perform the Services. At no time shall Consultant use City 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 12  

Data for its own purposes, or sell, disclose or disseminate City Data, except as required by 
law or to provide the Services. At all times herein, Consultant shall protect and maintain 
the security of City Data using methods providing not less than the level of security 
Consultant uses for its own confidential data, and that otherwise comply with recognized 
industry data security standards applicable to similar kinds of governmental data and 
information. 

 
B. To the extent any City Data consists of personal information as defined in 

the Consumer Privacy Act (Civil Code Section 1798.100 et seq.), Consultant shall 
comply with that statute and with Civil Code Section 1798.80, et seq., including 
providing the required notifications in the event of any unauthorized access of personal 
information stored, maintained, accessed, used or transmitted by Consultant in 
connection with this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Consultant shall within 
24 hours notify the City Representative by telephone and in writing of any unauthorized 
access of City Data. Thereafter, Consultant shall render any assistance to City and law 
enforcement as necessary to ascertain the nature and extent of such unauthorized access. 
 

C. Consultant shall be responsible for establishing and maintaining a data 
privacy and information security program, including physical, technical, administrative, 
and organizational safeguards,  that comply with or are substantially similar to the 
security controls identified in the current version of NIST SP800-53, and that is designed 
to: (a) ensure the security and confidentiality of City Data; (b) protect against any 
anticipated threats or hazards to the security or integrity of City Data; (c) protect against 
unauthorized disclosure, access to, or use of City Data; (d) ensure the proper disposal of 
City Data; and, (e) ensure that all employees, agents, and subcontractors of Consultant 
comply with all of the foregoing. All City Data, whether in motion, in use, or at rest, 
shall be encrypted from end to end.  In no case shall the safeguards of Consultant’s data 
privacy and information security program used to protect City Data be less stringent than 
the safeguards used by Consultant for its own data. 

 
D. Consultant may store City Data using cloud-based storage without City’s 

prior, written consent, because the use of such storage was clearly described in the Scope 
of Services submitted by Consultant in its response to City’s Request for Proposals (RFP 
No. 2024.07.09.01). Where permitted herein, any and all cloud-based storage shall be 
on servers and other hardware located within the continental United States, and shall be 
in compliance with ISO/IEC 27001 - 27018, as applicable, unless otherwise agreed to 
in writing by the City Representative.  Cloud storage using Amazon Web Services 
(AWS) or Microsoft Azure, shall be deemed to satisfy the requirements of this 
subsection. 

 
E. Consultant retains all right and title to Consultant’s Proprietary Software, 

including but not limited to, all publication rights, all development rights, all 
reproductions rights, and all rights that may follow from the commercial development 
of the software. The City does not acquire any ownership rights to Consultant’s 
Proprietary Software. Consultant’s Proprietary Software is protected in favor of 
Consultant, as well as any future registered trademarks, are trademarks of Consultant. 

 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 13  

F. Consultant’s Proprietary Software is considered loaned to the City during
the duration of this Agreement as laid out in this Agreement and the City will not have 
any access to Consultant’s Proprietary Software after the conclusion of the Agreement. 

18. Party Representatives.

A. Consultant hereby designates James McReynolds or such person’s
designee, as Consultant’s Representative for this Agreement, unless and until written 
notice of a new representative acceptable to City is provided to City. 

B. City hereby designates Mary Logue or such person’s designee, as the City
Representative for this Agreement. 

C. The foregoing representatives shall be authorized to provide consent where
required herein, and to make other administrative decisions that will be binding on their 
respective party, except as otherwise specifically required herein. 

19. Notices.

Any notices, invoices, or other documents related to this Agreement shall be deemed
received on: (a) the day of delivery, if delivered by hand during the receiving party’s regular 
business hours or by e-mail before or during the receiving party’s regular business hours; (b) the 
business day after delivery, if delivered by e-mail after the receiving party’s regular business 
hours; or (c) on the second business day following deposit in the United States mail, certified mail 
with return receipt requested and postage prepaid, to the addresses listed below, or to such other 
addresses as the parties may, from time to time, designate in writing. 

Consultant

PMAM Corporation 

5430 LBJ Freeway, Suite 370 

Dallas, Texas 75240 

United States 

James McReynolds 

JamesM@PMAM.com

City

City of Brea 

1 Civic Center Circle 

Brea, CA 92821 

United States 

Mary Logue 
mlogue@breapolice.gov 
(714) 990-7173 (972) 573-4824

20. Third Party Rights.

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to anyone other
than City and Consultant. 

21. Conflicts of Interest.

A. Consultant covenants that it presently has no interest, and shall not acquire
any interest, direct or indirect, financial or otherwise, which would conflict in any manner 
or degree with the performance of the Services. Consultant certifies that no one who has 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 14  

or will have any financial interest under this Agreement is an officer or employee of City. 

B. Consultant further covenants that, in the performance of this Agreement, no
subcontractor or person having any interest, direct or indirect, financial or otherwise, which 
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the Services shall be 
employed. Consultant has provided City with a list of all City-approved subcontractors and 
the key personnel for such subcontractors that are retained or to be retained by Consultant 
in connection with the performance of the Services, to assist City in affirming compliance 
with this Section. 

C. Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not employed nor retained
any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Consultant, 
to solicit or secure this Agreement. Further, Consultant warrants that it has not paid nor 
has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other 
consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. If 
required, Consultant further agrees to file, or shall cause its employees or subcontractors to 
file, a Statement of Economic Interest with the City Clerk as required under state law in the 
performance of the Services. For breach or violation of this warranty, City shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement without liability. No director, official, officer or employee of City, during 
the term of his or her service with City, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain 
any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

22. Severability.

The unenforceability, invalidity or illegality of any provision(s) of this Agreement shall
not render the remaining provisions unenforceable, invalid or illegal. 

23. Successors and Assigns.

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors in
interest, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties. 

24. Non-Waiver.

None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be considered waived by either party,
unless such waiver is specified in writing, and any such waiver shall be limited to that set of 
circumstances and not to any future circumstances unless another written waiver is executed. 

25. Time of Essence.

Time is of the essence in each and every provision of this Agreement.

26. City’s Right to Employ Other Consultants.

City reserves its right to employ other consultants to provide the Services or similar
services. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 15  

 
27. Exhibits. 

 
The attached Exhibit A are incorporated herein by reference. In the event of any conflict 

or inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and any Exhibit, the provisions of this 
Agreement shall govern. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of 
this Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements and the Consultant’s Proposal set forth in 
the attached Attachment 1 to Exhibit A, the provisions of the Scope of Services and 
Specifications Requirements shall govern. 

 
28. Entire Agreement. 

 
This Agreement (including the attached Exhibits) represents the entire understanding of 

the parties as to the Services, and supersedes and cancels any prior or contemporaneous oral or 
written understanding, promises or representations with respect to those matters. Each party 
acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises or agreements have been made by 
any person which are not incorporated herein, and that any other agreements shall be void. This 
Agreement may not be modified or altered except in writing signed by both parties. This is an 
integrated Agreement. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 16  

TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT, the Parties have caused their authorized representatives 
to sign below. Digital Signatures are acceptable if they conform to all requirements of California 
Government Code Section 16.5. 

 
PMAM Corporation 

 

By:   By:   
Pankaj Kumar James McReynolds 
Chief Executive Officer Secretary 
pankajk@pmam.com jamesm@pmam.com 

Date Signed:   Date Signed:   

 

[CORPs: Chairperson, President, Vice President; CORPs: Secretary, Asst. Secretary, Chief Finance LLCs:   

Manager Officer, Asst. Treasurer LLCs: Manager] 

 
[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 313, both signature lines must be executed unless the signatory 
holds at least one of the offices designated on each line.] 

 
[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 17703.01(d), both signature lines must be executed unless the 
articles of incorporation state that the firm is managed by only one manager.] 
 

 

City of Brea Attest (if over $50,000) 

By:   By:   
Kristin Griffith Lillian Harris-Neal 
City Manager City Clerk 
 Lillianhn@cityofbrea.net 

Date Signed:   Date Signed:   

James McReynolds (May 29, 2025 08:58 CDT)

05/29/25

Pankaj Kumar (May 29, 2025 13:08 CDT)

https://adobefreeuserschannel.na2.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAmRCmPIlBKeMTuk_uzfdNzm2NoqfPQ7uv
https://adobefreeuserschannel.na2.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAmRCmPIlBKeMTuk_uzfdNzm2NoqfPQ7uv


PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 17  

EXHIBIT A 
Scope of Services and Specifications Requirements 

 
Contract Term: Three (3) Years with two (2) consecutive annual extensions 

Objective 

The City of Brea is soliciting proposals for Police alarm permit and false alarm billing services within the 
City. The purpose of this request for proposal (RFP) is to provide interested proposers with information 
to enable them to prepare and submit a proposal for consideration. 

Intent 

Chapter 8.38 of the City’s Municipal Code that states that emergency alarm subscribers must obtain an 
annual permit and pay fees associated for false alarm responses. Additional information can be found by 
visiting the City’s website at: https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/brea . 

Background 

The City of Brea requires commercial and residential alarm users to obtain a valid alarm permit prior to 
operating an alarm system. All permits must be renewed annually. As of January 1, 2024, it is anticipated 
the number of active permitted alarm systems in Brea is approximately 2,162. Historically, the Police 
Department respond to approximately 1,611 false alarm calls annually with 1,232 resulting in a false 
alarm penalty being assessed. For reference purposes only, below is the current fee schedule for both the 
annual Police alarm permit and false alarm billing: 

 
Annual Alarm Permit Information: $25 Residential 
 $25 Commercial 

False Alarm Information: $0 Two free false alarm per fiscal year 
 $100 Third false alarm 
 $125 Fourth false alarm 
 $150 Fifth false alarm and each false alarm thereafter 

 
Penalties are assessed thirty-one (31) days after the date of invoice, a penalty of ten percent (10%) of the 
fee shall be added, plus, commencing each month thereafter, an additional penalty of ten percent (10%) of 
the original fee shall be added, up to a maximum penalty amount not to exceed the original invoiced 
amount. 

 
Scope of Work 

To qualify for contract consideration, proposers must, at a minimum, provide the following services and 
benefits: 

I. Online Permit Tracking 
a. The Proposer shall be responsible for working with residential and commercial alarm 

companies to ensure that existing and new alarm subscribers acquire a police alarm permit 
annually. 

b. The Proposer shall be responsible for issuing notices to alarm subscribers when there is 
evidence that an alarm-subscriber has failed to secure the required permit for an alarm system. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 18  

c. The Proposer shall be responsible for providing information on a frequency to be determined 
including, but not limited to, the first and last name of the alarm subscriber, permit type 
(residential versus business) and address of the property where the required permit has not been 
obtained. 

d. The Proposer shall be responsible for the billing and collection of any fees associated with the 
failure of the alarm subscriber to secure a police alarm permit. 

e. The Proposer shall provide the City online, web-based access to the data associated with 
permits for audit and ad-hoc reporting purposes. System access by City staff shall not be 
limited to less than 5 users. 

f. The Proposer shall provide the ability to register police alarm systems and obtain alarm permits 
by connecting to an Internet-based portal integrated with the City of Brea existing website. 

g. The Proposer must describe any features or services provided to create an initial permitting 
database. 

 

 
II. Billing 

a. The Proposer system must interface and receive a daily data set from the intermediary server 
that identifies false alarm events for the previous calendar date. This process shall be automatic 
and not require City staff intervention. 

b. The Proposer shall be responsible for producing bills on a frequency specified by the City 
(daily/weekly) to businesses and residents who owe a false alarm service fee based on a fee 
structure articulated by City Ordinances and Resolutions. 

c. Flexibility shall be inherent in the Proposer’s system should the false alarm fee structure change 
with future fee updates. 

d. The Proposer shall provide a local or toll-free phone number to assist citizens and businesses 
and answer questions as to the administration and billing of this program. Customer service 
shall be available at minimum 8:00am to 5:00pm, Monday through Friday, PST. If Proposer 
offers different language services, please include within proposal. 

e. The Proposer shall provide a secure and user-friendly online system for customer bill payment 
and provisions for those without internet access. The online payment process should be PCI- 
compliant. 

f. The Proposer shall provide the City with all available payment options that will be provided to 
the customer (i.e. Check, EFT, Visa, Mastercard, Discover, American Express, ApplePay, 
Venmo, etc.). 

g. Monthly payment reconciliation data must be provided by the Proposer so they can be 
accounted for within the City’s financial system. 

 

 
III. Collections 

a. The Proposer shall be responsible for the collection of all fees. All fees collected shall be 
deposited in an account controlled by the Proposer. Deposits shall be disbursed at least monthly 
based on their respective percentages of the revenues collected as provided by the contract 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 19  

between the City and the Proposer. At minimum, the reconciliation of payment information 
must be provided in electronic format to the City and include the breakdown of payment 
methods and the daily quantity of permits collected that correspond the amount being reported. 

b. To enhance the public convenience and program perception, it is preferred that the Proposer 
provide a nearby program mailing address and mail-in payment processing. 

c. The Proposer shall be responsible for seeking collections from delinquent and/or uncollectible 
accounts and shall receive a percentage of the delinquent revenue as provided by the contract 
between the City and the Proposer. 

d. The Proposer shall be responsible for providing information on a frequency to be determined 
that includes the name of the alarm-subscriber, permit number and address of the property 
where false alarm service fees are delinquent. 

e. The Proposer shall provide the City online web-based access to the data associated with 
collections for audit and ad-hoc reporting purposes. The City requires that the database utilized 
falls within City IT standards. 

f. The Proposer shall support the billing/suspension/revocation appeals process. 

g. The Proposer will provide the City access to the data associated with collections for audit and 
ad-hoc reporting purposes. System access by City staff shall not be limited to less than 5 users. 

h. The Proposer shall obtain, at its own expense, regular, independently certified (i.e., SSAE16, 
SOC 1) audits of internal financial controls, data security, and alarm management services. 
The reports on such audits shall be shared with the City. 

 
IV. Interface with Computer-Aided Dispatch Intermediary Server 

a. To minimize technical issues related to the sharing of alarm data, short-listed Proposers 
must be able to show the successful implementation of an automated alarm permit 
interface with a one-way directional flow of alarm incident data from the intermediary 
server to the Proposer’s proposed system and alarm permit data from the proposed 
system to the CAD. Proposer must provide three references of agencies utilizing a one- 
way directional intermediary server interface with which they contract. The City’s 
intermediary server is a Windows 2019 Standard, SQL 2014 Management Studio. All 
data is replicated from the City’s FlexRMS tables. The interface must run as a service. 

 
b. Transferred permit data should include at least permit status, permit number, emergency 

contacts, and site condition information. 

c. The Proposer shall also provide proof and references demonstrating successful program 
use with other jurisdictions comparable to the City that use a different CAD system. 

d. The Proposer shall provide gratis system enhancements as they become available and 
backup system/disaster recovery functions. 

e. Should the Proposer be selected for the contract but fail to provide and maintain a database 
capable of sharing bi-directional information with the current CAD or other CAD 
Consultants, as it may be upgraded, changed, or modified over time, it shall be considered 
a material breach of contract and grounds for immediate termination of Consultants 
contract. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 20  

 
V. Customer Service 

a. The Proposer shall provide an internet-based portal which will give public interactivity for 
purposes of education, registration, and support services, as well as an automated or 
personnel-staffed telephone system with similar attributes for those needing alarm program 
services, but without internet access. 

b. The Proposer will develop written educational materials for citizens and businesses, 
coordinate a public education notification plan and provide alarm user training and education 
via the Internet and other methods for those without computer access. 

c. The Proposer shall provide the City current online access to the alarm program data with the 
ability to search accounts by multiple search criteria, view supporting documents such as 
letters and invoices, generate management reports, and create ad-hoc (custom) reports where 
the custom report template can be saved and re-generated on demand. System access by City 
staff shall not be limited to less than 5 users. 

d. The Proposer shall have a track record demonstrating experience and expertise in advising 
residents and businesses on alarm ordinance provisions. 

 
VI. Data Security and Reliability 

a. The Proposer shall ensure the security and reliability of the City’s public safety data 
maintained by the Proposer. Please describe the policies, processes, and systems the Proposer 
has in place to protect the data. 

 
b. Proposer shall provide information as to where the data collected from the City is stored. 

 
c. The Proposer shall follow generally accepted practices for ensuring that its alarm 

management services are provided with adequate internal controls. Please describe these 
practices. 

d. The Proposer shall provide gratis System enhancements as they become available and 
backup system/disaster recovery functions. 

 
e. Proof of PCI DSS compliance. 

 
f. A functional explanation of the electronic payment process between the alarm system 

subscriber, the City, and the Proposer’s system, including details on procedures and 
processes relating to typical payment transactions, reversals, payment refunds, and how 
funds are transmitted to the designated City bank account including any/all costs involved. 

 
g. A schedule or fee structure for all customer transaction costs. 

 
VII. Reporting 

a. Provide a complete list and sample of reports available online to the City. 

 
b. Provide an audit trail of all system transactions and histories. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 21  

c. Provide a monthly reconciliation and any supporting documentation the City will receive 
monthly before approving the monthly invoice from the Proposer. 

 
d. Provide an account history that is accessible by the City online. 

 
e. Provide any features and functions available for printing and saving the reports available to 

the City online. 

 
f. If available, provide average violation billing time, average call wait time, average number 

of calls processed per hour by customer service representatives, and percentage of 
calls/issues resolved in one phone call. 

 
g. Describe any additional features and capabilities of the online reporting function the City 

will have access to through the program web portal. 

 
h. The City reserves the opportunity to review all required online reports and website 

performance with the Proposer upon request. 

 
VIII. Cost Proposal 

 
i. The Proposer shall provide pricing options whether the City absorbs all or a portion of 

banking fees or if the customer will pay the associated banking fees or a convenience fee. 

 
j. The Proposer shall quote on whether fees are based upon a percentage or a per processed 

permit fee or a combination of both. 

 
k. The Proposer shall state implicitly whether banking fees are included in the fees paid the 

Proposer or if they are paid separately. 
 

 
End of this Exhibit 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – Page 22  

Attachment 1 to Exhibit A 
CONSULTANT’S PROPOSAL AND FEE SCHEDULE 

(attached) 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 
 

1 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF BREA, CA 
 

1 CIVIC CENTER CIRCLE 
BREA, CA 92821 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 

POLICE ALARM PERMIT AND FALSE ALARM 
BILLING AND COLLECTION SERVICES 

PREPARED FOR: 

PM AM CORPORATION 
 

5430 LBJ FREEWAY, SUITE 370 
DALLAS, TEXAS 75240 

(972) 831-7400 
 

www.pmam.com 

PROVIDED BY: 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 
 

2 

COVER LETTER 
 

August 9th, 2024 
 

City of Brea, CA 
1 Civic Center Circle 
Brea, CA 92821 
 
For:  RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 

Request for Proposals - Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services 
 
To Whom It May Concern, 

We, PM AM Corporation, are delighted to submit our response to the City of Brea’s (hereinafter 
the “City”) Request for Proposals (RFP No. 2024.07.09.01) to perform all work necessary and 
incidental to provide business and residential alarm registration and false alarm incident 
management services; including billing services, permit registration, and handling related 
correspondence with citizens and businesses.  

With pride, we present our experience in providing and managing similar programs nationwide, 
and we eagerly anticipate offering detailed insights into our existing footprint, cutting-edge 
technology, and "Best Practices" that will ensure the success of your false alarm program. 

As an industry leader, PM AM has consistently assisted municipal and county jurisdictions in 
achieving the following benefits: 

1. A significant reduction in false alarm calls. 
2. Increased revenue through the City’s alarm program. 
3. A robust and accessible service framework for the city and its citizens. 
4. The effective use of innovative technology and processes to achieve program goals. 

Within this proposal, we provide a comprehensive overview of PM AM's proprietary, 100% Cloud-
based technology, best practices, and a thoughtfully crafted approach to enable the City of Brea 
to achieve its alarm program objectives. PM AM is proud to offer the most comprehensive and 
distinctive solution for alarm administration and collection services. 

Presently, PM AM serves over 525 municipal and county jurisdictions and has contributed to the 
development of 140+ alarm ordinances, drafts, revisions, updates, and alarm policy changes. Our 
esteemed client portfolio includes jurisdictions of various sizes, such as City of Oakland, City of 
Dixon and City of Vacaville in California; Orlando, FL; Houston, TX; Irving, TX; and Large Canadian 
cities like Calgary and Edmonton over a million population. Our extensive presence both nationally 
and internationally establishes PM AM's commitment to delivering quality services. 

Our dedication to innovation has been unwavering. From introducing a 100% web-based alarm 
management solution in 2004 to launching mobile apps (FAMS-ALARM) for Apple and Android 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 
 

3 

devices in 2016, PM AM consistently invests in cutting-edge technologies for the benefit of our 
clients, differentiating us in the industry. 

Having thoroughly reviewed the City of Brea’s requirements, our technical team is confident in 
meeting the outlined program needs. We affirm our capability to handle all aspects of the False 
Alarm Management System and related managerial tasks. 

This proposal will remain valid for 90 calendar days from the date of the proposal opening. PM 
AM hereby assures that we have no conflicts of interest as a proposer. PM AM acknowledges that 
PM AM is capable of completing the Scope of Work, as well as, all reasonably associated 
managerial tasks.  

Primary Contact of PM AM Corporation for City of Brea: 
Name   :  James McReynolds 
Designation  :  Director of Sales 
Email Address  :  JamesM@PMAM.com 
Phone Number :  972-573-4824 

Furthermore, PM AM would like to mention that we use “Pitney Bowes Inc.” as a subcontractor to 
meet our mailing needs for 140+ cities using their Mail Stream on Demand solution. 

Pitney Bowes Inc. 
Mailing Address : 3001 Summer Street, Stamford, CT 06926 
Email   : judy.cardinale@pb.com 
Telephone  : 916-284-3650 

This is a special revenue-share service, that needs a contract to cover terms that are specific to 
this kind of services; a sample PM AM Service Agreement is being submitted for the City’s review 
and if awarded we will negotiate with good faith.  

We look forward to building a long-term working relationship with the city. 

Please, do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions regarding this response. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
Pankaj Kumar - Chief Executive Officer 
PM AM Corporation 
972-831-7401 - PankajK@pmam.com 
 
 

PM AM Corporation | 5430 LBJ Fwy, Suite 370, Dallas, TX, 75240 | www.pmam-copsource.com |  
Phone: 972-831-7404 | Email: pankajk@pmam.com  

http://www.pmam-copsource.com/
mailto:pankajk@pmam.com


PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 
 

4 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE 
 
Kindly be informed that the present proposal, offering the requested services on behalf of the City 
of Brea, includes specific proprietary and confidential information belonging to PM AM 
Corporation. This information is being shared in utmost confidence, with the sole intention of 
enabling the City of Brea, along with its authorized employees, counsel, and representatives, to 
carefully assess and evaluate our proposal's suitability for acceptance. 
 
In the event that the City of Brea receives a request from a third party under the relevant open 
records act, freedom of information act, or similar statute or ordinance, seeking a copy of our 
proposal, we sincerely ask that the City abstains from disclosing it. Instead, we kindly urge the City 
to promptly notify Pankaj Kumar, the Chief Executive Officer of PM AM Corporation, at 
pankajk@pmam.com, about the request. This will enable us to respond appropriately and in a 
timely manner to such disclosure with the appropriate authority. Consequently, the authority can 
then assess whether our proposal, in its entirety or in part (with redactions, if necessary), should 
be disclosed to the requesting party. 
 
Regarding this matter, we wish to highlight that PM AM has acquired two opinions from a State's 
Attorney General. These opinions affirm that the disclosure of specific proprietary information, 
akin to the proprietary information presented in the following Proposal, is exempt from disclosure 
under Section 552.104(a) of the Texas Government Code. The exemption is based on the 
circumstances of those cases, as revealing such information would provide a competitive 
advantage to a competitor of PM AM. 
 

Thank you for your consideration of our proposal. 
© 2024. PM AM. All rights reserved. 

 
  

All PM AM documents 
included 

Trade Secret- Proprietary 
Information (Not for disclosure) 

 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

5 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
COVER LETTER 2 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE 4 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  5 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 8 

PROPOSED SOLUTION | SCOPE OF SERVICES 14 

FALSE ALARM MANAGEMENT SOLUTION OVERVIEW 23 

ALARM PERMITTING AND RENEWAL 23 
Permit Renewal 26 
Continually Updated Permitting Renewal Payment Information 26 
Additional Permitting Processes 26 

FALSE ALARM TRACKING AND INVOICING 27 
INTERFACES 29 
HEARING AND APPEALS SUPPORT 30 
COLLECTIONS 32 

Collection of Funds 33 
Collections Processing 34 
Meeting Collection Goals 35 
Collection Business Processes | Workflow 35 
Increased City Alarm Program Margins 36 

REPORTING 37 
Reporting and Data Management 37 
Dashboards and Analytics Reports 43 

CUSTOMER SERVICE 43 
Citizen Self- Service Web Portal 43 
Security Companies Self Service Web Portal 45 
Corporate Portal for Multiple Accounts 45 
Mobile Strategy 46 
Customer Service Center 46 
Citizen Service Representative Team 47 
Utilizing FAMS to Create a Superior Customer Experience 48 
Customer Care Call Center 49 
Customer Representative Service Philosophy 50 

FALSE ALARM REDUCTION PROCESSES 51 
Repetitive False Alarm Violators Identification 52 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

6 

Educational Material 52 
Online False Alarm Academy 52 

MARKETING AND PUBLIC SERVICE INFORMATION 53 
Public Relations 53 

DATA SECURITY | RELIABILITY 56 
Maintenance Agreements and Requirements 56 
Disaster Recovery Plan 56 
Data Back-up and Storage 57 
IT Policies, Processes and Systems 57 
Data Security Practices 58 
PM AM IT Processes 59 
Change Management and Product Enhancements 61 

IMPLEMENTATION PLANNING | TIMELINE 62 

STAFF TO BE ASSIGNED 64 

KEY PERSONNEL COMMITTED TO PROJECT 66 

FIRM PROFILE, QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 70 

AWARDS AND CERTIFICATIONS 72 
VALUE ADD FEATURES AND SERVICES 74 

State Of The Art Call Centers | Protection Against Disasters 74 
PM AM Advantages 75 

PM AM CUSTOMER PROFILE | EXPERIENCES 78 
FAMS Customer Success – Oakland Police Department, CA 79 
FAMS Customer Success – City of Houston, TX ARA Department 80 

CLIENT REFERENCES 81 

PRICING 82 

STANDARD FORM A - NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT FORM 84 

STANDARD FORM B - REFERENCES FORM 86 

STANDARD FORM C - SUBCONTRACTORS LIST-STANDARD FORM 88 

STANDARD FORM D - STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE OR EXCEPTIONS FORM 90 

STANDARD FORM E - STATUS OF PAST AND PRESENT CONTRACTS FORM 95 

STANDARD FORM F - INSURANCE COMMITMENT FORM 97 

STANDARD FORM G - PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS RESPONSE FORM 99 

STANDARD FORM H - FIRM PROPOSAL FORM 102 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

7 

STANDARD FORM I - PRICE FORM 104 

SAMPLE PM AM SERVICE AGREEMENT TEMPLATE 106 

 

  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

8 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

PM AM has provided software solution that is being deployed for 140+ cities in last 20 years and as 
stated, we have provided effective turnkey and services for alarm billing and tracking with excellent 
customer service and administered alarm ordinances resulting false alarm reduction. Our solution 
includes billing for fees and all mailings generated from ordinance, false alarm processing, 
coordination with alarm companies, hearing, and appeals support, reporting and a lot more that 
fulfills complete alarm ordinance of the City of Brea. 
 
As is all too common with many Cities and Counties throughout the United States, excessive false 
alarm occurrences rob the city of valuable law enforcement resources along with taxpayer dollars if 
not addressed. 

 
PM AM initially launched a web-based solution in 2004 and has advanced to now rolling out digital 
initiatives in 2020/2021 that make PM AM FAMS both device and platform-independent. Now, 
citizens, businesses, and City officials can access services from any device, whether it is a smartphone, 
laptop, or iPad. Citizens can now apply for a permit, make payments, update contact information etc. 
through the City’s website maintained by PM AM or through their personal social media (e.g., 
Facebook) where they are not required to remember any URLs/website addresses. 
 
PM AM's 20-year journey with FAMS reflects its commitment to aligning with user behavior and 
adopting cutting-edge technological solutions to benefit cities and their residents, with a focus on 
reducing false alarms and enhancing ordinance compliance. PM AM has developed its solution from 
the ground up, avoiding patchwork integration with unrelated off-the-shelf programs like 
Salesforce.com. This unique approach sets PM AM apart in the marketplace. 
 
The company remains dedicated to achieving industry certifications, ensuring that its procedures, 
protocols, and personnel supporting the FAMS platform are up-to-date and in line with industry-wide 
"Best Practices." PM AM boasts numerous awards and certifications, including the prestigious "CJIS 
Ready" (Criminal Justice Information Services) Certification, of which they are exceptionally 
proud. 
 
While the FAMS solution may appear straightforward, PM AM has implemented over 100 different 
real-time, data-driven reporting functions in response to the requests of their partner cities and 
counties. PM AM values its user community's input and consistently tailors its program to effectively 
reduce false alarms and boost revenue. The strong relationship between PM AM and its user 
community is founded on the principle that innovations are promptly integrated into FAMS, provided 
at no extra cost to customers. 
 
PM AM has developed several unique processes that could warrant patents, but the company's 
commitment to technological innovation often renders the need for patents unnecessary. Instead, 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

9 

they have consciously chosen not to file for patents to avoid offering solutions that have remained 
unchanged for a decade or more. 

In this section, we wish to state and demonstrate with examples of how PM AM’s dollars are invested 
in continuous improvements/ innovations that result in achieving four key result areas that our partner 
community places a significant importance to: 

  
FALSE ALARM REDUCTION  

- through education and awareness 
HIGHER COLLECTION RATES  
- through ultra-modern skip  

tracking techniques 
 

  

 
 

REVENUE GROWTH  
- through state-of-the-art collection  

compliance techniques 
 

CITY PERSONNEL 
- personnel involvement 

 
False Alarm Reduction: 
 
FAMSTM | False Alarm Reduction 
 
PM AM currently manages alarm programs in over 140 cities and has witnessed a substantial year-
to-year decrease in false alarm calls. This reduction helps eliminate inefficiencies linked to false alarms 
and encourages both alarm companies and users to maintain operational reliability and utilize alarm 
systems properly, thereby reducing false alarm dispatch requests. 
 
The reduction of false alarms is a crucial objective for each of PM AM's partner cities. PM AM has 
dedicated a substantial pool of resources, including manpower and educational methods, to engage 
with those repeatedly responsible for false alarms, whether they are businesses or residents. While 
the initial results in the first month may not always be promising, our consistent outreach efforts over 
an extended period of 12 to 18 months have shown significant progress in raising awareness among 
repeat violators. Often, they are able to identify and rectify the causes of false alarm calls with our 
guidance. PM AM's personnel provide continuous support to these repeat violators throughout the 
process. You can find a detailed description of our engagement strategy in the "False Alarm Reduction 
Processes" section of this RFP response. 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

10 

Below are a few examples of similar size cities and counties as City of Brea that through our consistent 
outreach engagement model have resulted in false alarm reduction that usually is the priority for our 
partner cities. 
 

CITY NAMES 

 
FALSE ALARMS 
DURING FIRST  
YEAR OF 
IMPLEMENTATION 
 

FALSE ALARMS 
COUNT FIVE 
YEARS INTO 
PROGRAM 

% FALSE ALARMS 
REDUCTION 

Miami Shores, FL 991 443 55% 

Hialeah, FL 8,861 4,110 54% 
Rowlett, TX 2,140 1,075 50% 

Cobb County, GA 16,124 8,043 51% 

Palatka, FL 1,103 671 39% 
 
Higher Collection Rates: PM AM usually targets up to 85%+ collections and in most cases, it is 
successful in collecting 90% plus. This higher collection rate is attributed to a workflow that is 
proprietary to PM AM. These sophisticated collection methods that analyze the payment trends and 
the preferred payment platforms used by the citizens to make payments help PM AM’s CSR’s in 
outreach to citizens with unpaid invoices. We have compared this proprietary workflow outreach 
methods with the typical conventional outreach efforts of others and our findings are that our 
collection rate is 10% to 12% higher using the proprietary workflow. 
 
Revenue Growth: In almost 100% of cases, PM AM achieves increased baseline revenue when it takes 
charge of a cities’ alarm program. While it grows baseline revenue, PM AM always faces the hurdle of 
reduced false alarms, which results in reduced billing and collections for the false alarms, which were 
eliminated through PM AM’s false alarm reduction approaches. PM AM deploys multiple time-proven 
internal processes to identify non-compliant businesses/residents and an engagement strategy that 
almost always results in higher compliance (permitting), driving baseline revenue to grow substantially 
for our partner cities. These strategies are discussed in detail in later parts of this RFP response.  
 
FAMSTM | Revenue 
 
PM AM is able to increase the revenue for the cities in spite of the fact that there has been a consistent 
reduction in false alarms. PM AM has efficient collection rates in the 90% range that have significantly 
helped cities have poor collection rates. 
 
Below examples illustrate where unique FAMS techniques resulted in higher revenue growth. In some 
cases, PM AM’s initial share is “paid for” by this increase in revenue, making PM AM services free from 
second year onward. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

11 

 

 
City - Personnel involvement: The FAMS portal ensures easy access and engagement for all 
stakeholders, with our CSRs available in two call centers, Dallas and Houston, providing 
comprehensive support at every step. The seamless integration of technology, processes, and human 
interaction leads to higher customer satisfaction while minimizing the time cities need to dedicate to 
alarm management activities. 

Furthermore, we have been presented with 14 opportunities to introduce the FAMS solution to the 
following municipalities, all of whom were previously using our competitor's product: 
 

CITY NAMES 

 
REVENUE DURING 
FIRST YEAR OF 
IMPLEMENTATION 

REVENUE FOR 
YEAR 2022 

% REVENUE 
INCREASE 

Middle Township, NJ $ 30,995 $         43,114.01 39% 

Rialto, CA $ 56,906.56 $      135,811.80 139% 
San Marcos, TX $ 30,290 $         81,288.80 168% 

Long Beach, NY $ 42,100 $         69,650.79 65% 

Richardson, TX $ 191,175 $       305,285.95 60% 

Houston, TX $ 6,400,000 $  11,100,963.03 73% 

Little Elm, TX $ 37,729 $        79,869.90 112% 

Lincoln, CA $ 30,765 $       52,747.27 71% 

1  PEMBROKE PINES, FL 8 SUFFOLK, CA 

2  COBB COUNTY, GA 9 COLUMBUS, OH 

3  DURHAM, NC 10 IRVING, TX* 

4   NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FL      11 ROSEVILLE, CA* 

5  DOUGLAS COUNTY, CO  12 ARCADIA, CA* 

6  HIGHLAND VILLAGE, TX  13 TOMS RIVER, NJ* 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

12 

 
These agencies were utilizing the services of our competitors, APS / City Support, or CentralSquare 
Technologies’ CryWolf, for their alarm management needs. However, they expressed interest in 
exploring other available alarm management offerings in the market. This presented an excellent 
opportunity for PM AM to present our solution. 
 
While most of these agencies were content with their current vendors, they were impressed by PM 
AM's distinct approach to customer service and our innovative technology solutions. During the 
comparison between both solutions, it became evident to them the advantages they could gain from 
PM AM's processes in achieving their key goals. As a result, all 14 agencies made the decision to 
switch their alarm program management to PM AM Corporation. Notably, several of these 
accounts have been loyal PM AM customers for multiple years since making the switch. 

 
In summary, PM AM would like to offer…  

Because of the broad experience PM AM has gained working with some the more demanding 
municipal environments in the nation, along with our commitment to being the industry’s innovation 
leader… 

We firmly believe that PM AM is in a unique position to continue to provide unparalleled 
technological innovations and managed services in support of the City’s current and any new 
alarm ordinance revisions for the next several years to come. 

 

This complete section fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and 
Specifications Requirements - Scope of Work - V. Customer Service – d” of by the City. 

7  DAVIE, FL  14 HUNTSVILLE, TX 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

13 

 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

14 

PROPOSED SOLUTION | SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

After a comprehensive assessment of the City of Brea’s requirements, our technical team is confident 
in our ability to fulfill the specified program requirements. We confirm our competence in managing 
all aspects of the False Alarm Management System, including associated administrative 
responsibilities. 
 
 

Police Alarm Permit And False Alarm Billing Services 

Sr. 
No. Scope Of Services 

RFP 
Reference  

Page 

Available In The 
Proposed FAMS 

Solution 
I. Online Permit Tracking 

a. The Proposer shall be responsible for working with 
residential and commercial alarm companies to 
ensure that existing and new alarm subscribers 
acquire a police alarm permit annually. 

36 Yes 

b. The Proposer shall be responsible for issuing notices 
to alarm subscribers when there is evidence that an 
alarm-subscriber has failed to secure the required 
permit for an alarm system. 

36 Yes 

c. The Proposer shall be responsible for providing 
information on a frequency to be determined 
including, but not limited to, the first and last name 
of the alarm subscriber, permit type (residential 
versus business) and address of the property where 
the required permit has not been obtained. 

37 Yes 

d. The Proposer shall be responsible for the billing and 
collection of any fees associated with the failure of the 
alarm subscriber to secure a police alarm permit. 

37 Yes 

e. The Proposer shall provide the City online, web-based 
access to the data associated with permits for audit 
and ad-hoc reporting purposes. System access by City 
staff shall not be limited to less than 5 users. 

37 Yes 

f. The Proposer shall provide the ability to register 
police alarm systems and obtain alarm permits by 
connecting to an Internet-based portal integrated 
with the City of Brea existing website. 

37 Yes 

g. The Proposer must describe any features or services 
provided to create an initial permitting database. 

37 Yes 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

15 

II. Billing 
a. The Proposer system must interface and receive a 

daily data set from the intermediary server that 
identifies false alarm events for the previous calendar 
date. This process shall be automatic and not require 
City staff intervention. 

37 Yes 

b. The Proposer shall be responsible for producing bills 
on a frequency specified by the City (daily/weekly) to 
businesses and residents who owe a false alarm 
service fee based on a fee structure articulated by City 
Ordinances and Resolutions. 

37 Yes 

c. Flexibility shall be inherent in the Proposer’s system 
should the false alarm fee structure change with 
future fee updates. 

37 Yes 

d. The Proposer shall provide a local or toll-free phone 
number to assist citizens and businesses and answer 
questions as to the administration and billing of this 
program. Customer service shall be available at 
minimum 8:00am to 5:00pm, Monday through Friday, 
PST. If Proposer offers different language services, 
please include within proposal. 

37 Yes 

e. The Proposer shall provide a secure and user-friendly 
online system for customer bill payment and 
provisions for those without internet access. The 
online payment process should be PCI-compliant. 

37 Yes 

f. The Proposer shall provide the City with all available 
payment options that will be provided to the 
customer (i.e. Check, EFT, Visa, Mastercard, Discover, 
American Express, ApplePay, Venmo, etc.). 

37 Yes *1 

 *1 - We currently do not support American Express, ApplePay, and Venmo as payment 
methods. 

g. Monthly payment reconciliation data must be 
provided by the Proposer so they can be accounted 
for within the City’s financial system. 

37 Yes 

III. Collections 
a. The Proposer shall be responsible for the collection 

of all fees. All fees collected shall be deposited in an 
account controlled by the Proposer. Deposits shall be 
disbursed at least monthly based on their respective 
percentages of the revenues collected as provided by 
the contract between the City and the Proposer. At 
minimum, the reconciliation of payment information 
must be provided in electronic format to the City and 

37 Yes 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

16 

include the breakdown of payment methods and the 
daily quantity of permits collected that correspond 
the amount being reported. 

b. To enhance the public convenience and program 
perception, it is preferred that the Proposer provide 
a nearby program mailing address and mail-in 
payment processing. 

38 Yes 

c. The Proposer shall be responsible for seeking 
collections from delinquent and/or uncollectible 
accounts and shall receive a percentage of the 
delinquent revenue as provided by the contract 
between the City and the Proposer. 

38 Yes 

d. The Proposer shall be responsible for providing 
information on a frequency to be determined that 
includes the name of the alarm-subscriber, permit 
number and address of the property where false 
alarm service fees are delinquent. 

38 Yes 

e. The Proposer shall provide the City online web-based 
access to the data associated with collections for 
audit and ad-hoc reporting purposes. The City 
requires that the database utilized falls within City IT 
standards. 

38 Yes 

f. The Proposer shall support the 
billing/suspension/revocation appeals process. 

38 Yes 

g. The Proposer will provide the City access to the data 
associated with collections for audit and ad-hoc 
reporting purposes. System access by City staff shall 
not be limited to less than 5 users. 

38 Yes 

h. The Proposer shall obtain, at its own expense, regular, 
independently certified (i.e., SSAE16, SOC 1) audits of 
internal financial controls, data security, and alarm 
management services. The reports on such audits 
shall be shared with the City. 

38 Yes 

IV. Interface with Computer-Aided Dispatch Intermediary Server 
a. To minimize technical issues related to the sharing of 

alarm data, short-listed Proposers must be able to 
show the successful implementation of an automated 
alarm permit interface with a one-way directional 
flow of alarm incident data from the intermediary 
server to the Proposer’s proposed system and alarm 
permit data from the proposed system to the CAD. 
Proposer must provide three references of agencies 
utilizing a one-way directional intermediary server 

38 Yes 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

17 

interface with which they contract. The City’s 
intermediary server is a Windows 2019 Standard, SQL 
2014 Management Studio. All data is replicated from 
the City’s FlexRMS tables. The interface must run as a 
service. 

b. Transferred permit data should include at least 
permit status, permit number, emergency contacts, 
and site condition information. 

38 Yes 

c. The Proposer shall also provide proof and references 
demonstrating successful program use with other 
jurisdictions comparable to the City that use a 
different CAD system. 

38 Yes 

d. The Proposer shall provide gratis system 
enhancements as they become available and backup 
system/disaster recovery functions. 

38 Yes 

e. Should the Proposer be selected for the contract but 
fail to provide and maintain a database capable of 
sharing bi-directional information with the current 
CAD or other CAD Contractors, as it may be 
upgraded, changed, or modified over time, it shall be 
considered a material breach of contract and grounds 
for immediate termination of Contractors contract. 

38 Yes 

V. Customer Service 
a. The Proposer shall provide an internet-based portal 

which will give public interactivity for purposes of 
education, registration, and support services, as well 
as an automated or personnel-staffed telephone 
system with similar attributes for those needing alarm 
program services, but without internet access. 

39 Yes 

b. The Proposer will develop written educational 
materials for citizens and businesses, coordinate a 
public education notification plan and provide alarm 
user training and education via the Internet and other 
methods for those without computer access. 

39 Yes 

c. The Proposer shall provide the City current online 
access to the alarm program data with the ability to 
search accounts by multiple search criteria, view 
supporting documents such as letters and invoices, 
generate management reports, and create ad-hoc 
(custom) reports where the custom report template 
can be saved and re-generated on demand. System 
access by City staff shall not be limited to less than 5 
users. 

39 Yes 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

18 

d. The Proposer shall have a track record demonstrating 
experience and expertise in advising residents and 
businesses on alarm ordinance provisions. 

39 Yes 

VI. Data Security and Reliability 
a. The Proposer shall ensure the security and reliability 

of the City’s public safety data maintained by the 
Proposer. Please describe the policies, processes, and 
systems the Proposer has in place to protect the data. 

39 Yes 

b. Proposer shall provide information as to where the 
data collected from the City is stored. 

39 Yes 

c. The Proposer shall follow generally accepted 
practices for ensuring that its alarm management 
services are provided with adequate internal controls. 
Please describe these practices. 

39 Yes 

d. The Proposer shall provide gratis System 
enhancements as they become available and backup 
system/disaster recovery functions. 

39 Yes 

e. Proof of PCI DSS compliance. 39 Yes 
f. A functional explanation of the electronic payment 

process between the alarm system subscriber, the 
City, and the Proposer’s system, including details on 
procedures and processes relating to typical payment 
transactions, reversals, payment refunds, and how 
funds are transmitted to the designated City bank 
account including any/all costs involved. 

39 Yes 

g. A schedule or fee structure for all customer 
transaction costs. 

39 Yes 

VII. Reporting 
a. Provide a complete list and sample of reports 

available online to the City. 
39 Yes 

b. Provide an audit trail of all system transactions and 
histories. 

39 Yes 

c. Provide a monthly reconciliation and any supporting 
documentation the City will receive monthly before 
approving the monthly invoice from the Proposer. 

40 Yes 

d. Provide an account history that is accessible by the 
City online. 

40 Yes 

e. Provide any features and functions available for 
printing and saving the reports available to the City 
online. 

40 Yes 

f. If available, provide average violation billing time, 
average call wait time, average number of calls 
processed per hour by customer service 

40 Yes 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

19 

representatives, and percentage of calls/issues 
resolved in one phone call. 

g. Describe any additional features and capabilities of 
the online reporting function the City will have access 
to through the program web portal. 

40 Yes 

h. The City reserves the opportunity to review all 
required online reports and website performance 
with the Proposer upon request. 

40 Yes 

VIII. Cost Proposal 
i. The Proposer shall provide pricing options whether 

the City absorbs all or a portion of banking fees or if 
the customer will pay the associated banking fees or 
a convenience fee. 

40 See Page 82 

j. The Proposer shall quote on whether fees are based 
upon a percentage or a per processed permit fee or 
a combination of both. 

40 See Page 82 

k. The Proposer shall state implicitly whether banking 
fees are included in the fees paid the Proposer or if 
they are paid separately. 

40 See Page 82 

 
 Permitting  

PM AM’s False Alarm Management System (FAMS) solution is the only 
100% web-based solution available in the alarm management industry. 
FAMS supports the permitting process for the citizens choosing to apply 
for a permit proactively as well as built-in innovative processes to identify 
non-compliant locations: 
 
• Identify locations with False alarm but that are non-permitted 
• Engage with alarm companies to identify non-permitted locations 

based on the alarm company subscriber listings 
 
FAMS provides multiple ways to your citizens to apply for a permit: 
 
• Traditional mail-in application process 
• Interactive self-service web portal application 
• iPhone and Android app to apply for a permit 

 
Alarm Tracking and Billing 
FAMS imports the alarm incident dataset from the City’s CAD/RMS and 
generates notifications, invoices etc. on a configurable frequency, as 
needed by the city.  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

20 

 
FAMS also tracks the registered and unregistered locations and has a 
business-rule-based billing criterion which can be easily modified to 
accommodate the City of Brea’s business rules. FAMS maintains a table of 
incidents and corresponding charges to generate invoices, notices etc. 
This ensures quick and error-free invoices are received by your citizens. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Hearing and Appeals Support 
FAMS, a 100% web-based solution store, updates and maintains the 
complete documentation required for appeal hearings. This allows cities to 
conduct appeal hearings in-person or via mail. 
 
FAMS intuitive appeals module provides the flexibility to the hearing 
officers to review the information in real-time, from the office or while 
using a mobile device. This enables them to make informed decisions in a 
timely manner. 
 

 Collections 
PM AM offers multiple payment options to your citizens: 
• Checks or money-orders 
• Pay with Customer service via phone 
• On-line, via self-service web portal 
• Via iPhone/Android app 
• Via Interactive Voice Response (IVR) over the weekends 

 
PM AM maintains robust data and financial controls for safe and reliable 
administration of the alarm program. PM AM is SSAE-16, SOC I certified 
through BDO USA, LLP. All online payments are made in compliance with 
PCI guidelines. 
 
FAMS has integrated billing and accounting software. Unlike working 
with external accounting applications like Quick Books, all billing, 
collections, account receivables are part of our 100% web-based system.  
As such, city personnel are provided with online real-time access to view 
all account statuses, at any time. This integrated approach saves time and 
money and improves data accuracy since all the information is integrated 
as part of one system. 
 
Our solution is capable of collecting and reporting cash, credit cards, and 
check payments through Payment Gateway integration with your 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

21 

processor. The reports detail the location and person who received the 
payment, including full reconciliation details. 
 
Collection efforts are maximized utilizing a scientific process called trend 
analysis. Trend analysis reports give collection specialists detailed 
knowledge to setup and execute debtor callback patterns using a 
scientific process that generates a call list, which PM AM personnel use 
for collection efforts. 
  
Interfaces 

  
CAD Interface 
 
PM AM realizes the significance the City of Brea places on CAD and its vital 
importance in providing the alarm data to FAMS and receiving Permit 
information back if required. PM AM has worked for the past 15 years to 
develop robust integration processes that constantly work with a large 
number of CAD system.  
 
PM AM has accomplished this data exchange with the CAD vendor’s 
cooperation and without the CAD vendor’s active participation where cities 
directed us to do so on our own initiative. Out of 100+ clients that PM AM 
serves, it is only 5% places where CAD vendors provided the interfaces, in 
other 95% cases, PM AM built the data exchange routine on its own with 
City’s help. 
 
PM AM would like to assure City of Brea’s officials that PM AM has not 
missed or been delayed on a single implementation due to a lack of CAD 
data exchange and it would not be the case with the City of Brea. 
 

Citizen Self- Service Web Portal and Customer Service 
 FAMS offers a reputable citizen self-service portal accessible from the city’s 

website 24/7 allowing your citizens to apply for permits, pay fees and fines, 
and update contact information in real-time. The portal provides an un-
matched citizen experience by providing video demonstrations of the 
important functionalities to first-time visitors. More importantly, the self-
service portal provides educational content focused on false alarm 
reduction coupled with the false alarm academy. 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

22 

 
 

PM AM has a dedicated staff of multiple customer support representatives, 
coupled with best practices and advanced call center technology to 
provide superior customer service to your citizens. The customer support 
representatives undergo extensive training and coaching to answer 
questions related to the ordinance, invoices, false alarm reduction 
initiatives, etc. 
 
Reporting 
The City of Brea will have complete insight into all functions of False Alarm 
Management Services on a real-time basis through various reports and 
queries. FAMS has more than 100 reports that can be generated based on 
variable parameters. Most of these reports can be exported in PDF or 
Microsoft Excel. Such reports are very helpful for the  City of Brea’s Police, 
Finance and other officials to review progress of the program.  
 
By specific design, the City will witness a program where all information is 
readily available, independent of any need to engage PM AM’s award-
winning support staff. 
 

 Citizen Education 
PM AM offers several features like a proprietary educational CD, online 
academy, bill inserts, high violator’s identification, etc. at no additional cost 
to the City of Brea, which helps in engaging citizens and provides them 
important information to reduce false alarms and increase ordinance 
compliance. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

23 

FALSE ALARM MANAGEMENT SOLUTION OVERVIEW 
 

After a thorough analysis of the City’s specific false alarm reduction program requirements and 
objectives as listed in Bid’s “Standard Requirements of Technical Proposal,” the PM AM FAMS 100% 
web-based solution will be comprised of 10 core processes to deliver upon the City’s program 
expectations. 
 
PM AM will perform the following functions and processes as outlined in the RFP: 
 

1  Alarm Permitting and Renewal 6       Reporting | Analytics 

2  False Alarm Tracking And Invoicing 7       Customer Service 

3  Interfaces 8       False Alarm Reduction 
      Processes   

4   Hearing and Appeals Support 9       Marketing and Public Service 
      Information 

5  Collections 10       Data Security and Reliability 

 
These all functions fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and 

Specifications Requirements - Scope of Work” of by the City. 
 
 ALARM PERMITTING AND RENEWAL 

 
 PM AM maintains the alarm permit database for the City in real time. Citizens and businesses can 

apply online for permit registration or can use traditional paper applications. PM AM will continue 
to use the current numbering system to issue permits. 
 
FAMS customer service staff are always available during business hours to handle questions and 
provide assistance to your citizens/businesses. Messages left after hours are returned the next 
business day. Our Customer Service Specialists are trained to provide step-by-step guidance to 
callers regarding completing the permit application. This service is available in English, Spanish 
and 175 plus other languages as required by the caller. 
 
PM AM’s document specialist will review the existing alarm permit registration form and work 
with the City’s alarm administrator to finalize the permit registration form that incorporates the 
requirements of the City’s ordinance and the best practices that PM AM suggests, this results in 
City officials having the accurate and complete information about the permit location that is 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

24 

readily available to dispatch, police officers, fire responders, emergency personnel, alarm 
administrator and PM AM CSR. 
 
All the addresses that are entered into FAMS, whether online or by PM AM’s back-office data 
entry team, are first verified with the City’s GIS database before a permit is created. This process 
ensures that the permitting and alarm management service is offered to only City residents. PM 
AM has followed this process since 2004 and has been successful in eliminating the problem for 
the residents who do not live in the City limits who, for some reason, apply for a permit, and on 
an occurrence of an alarm do not get a police or fire response and later try to create problems 
for the City for issuing the permit and failing to respond. It is PM AM’s commitment to follow 
100% accurate information with complete transparency and full access to the City officials. 
 
PM AM’s proven web-based citizen self-service portal is integrated with the City’s existing 
website striving to create a safe, transparent, and risk-free environment for the City’s community. 
The citizen portal is designed to make the alarm permit application process easy and accurate. 
The application module is designed to capture all relevant citizen and alarm company data 
proven to be necessary to support a successful alarm program through the use of pre-requisite 
fields along with address validation of the alarm site. All data is presented to the citizen for review 
prior submission. This process ensures that all information submitted in the permit application is 
complete and accurate.  

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - I. Online Permit Tracking – f” of by the City. 

Immediately upon logging on to the City website, your citizens are provided with a video 
demonstration to complete the permit application. Your citizens are confident in completing this 
process after learning the step-by-step instructions provided in the video demonstration. This 
sophisticated web-portal informs your citizens regarding the receipt of application and notifies 
them of the acceptance/denial of the application. Your citizens discover that in just a few minutes, 
the permit is applied, with a permit copy emailed to them. PM AM has invested a great deal of 
time, money and resources in maturing these sophisticated processes. These processes ensure 
that all information is cross-referenced and verified and is 100% accurate and up to date. PM AM 
references City databases like GIS, utilities etc. to enforce the accuracy of the information. Our 
partner cities and counties constantly express the positive feedback they receive from their 
citizens and staff.  

Once a permit is registered in FAMS database, then all subsequent alarms that happen at the 
permit location are assigned to the permit. City staff and PM AM staff are able to see the permit 
status, invoices, payments, and all past incidents including the number of incidents in the last 12 
months in real-time. FAMS maintains the original registration issue date, date of each false alarm 
including incident count (true/false), historical information on registration issuance and current 
registration status (active, expired, suspended, no-response etc.) information on real time basis. 
Your citizens, City’s alarm administrator and PM AM’s CSR, all have the ability to maintain the key 
holder information in real time through FAMS administrative and citizen portal. PM AM will 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

25 

continue to conduct all aspects of alarm permitting including but not limited to registration, 
annual updates and maintaining the alarm permit status. 
 
FAMS maintains the following required information for the permits: 

• Permit Number 
• Permit Issue date | Expiration/Renewal date. 
• Permit name, alarm site address with apt/suite #, phone number, and email address of 

the person responsible for proper maintenance. 
• Type of property (residential | commercial | exempt). 
• Permit Type: Permit Holder | non-permit holder 
• Permit Status: Active | Inactive | Cancelled | Suspended etc. 
• Billing name, address and contact information (if different). 
• Holder name, address and contact information (if different). 
• Name, address and contact information for the alarm company responsible for installing 

the alarm system. 
• Name, address and contact information for the alarm company responsible for 

maintaining/ monitoring the alarm system 
• Type of alarm system 
• Date of installation 
• Names and phone numbers for four contact persons. 
• Date of 1st and subsequent suspensions 
• Date of reinstatement etc. 

 
FAMS provides an online fully web-based portal with unlimited simultaneous access to the City 
staff, dispatchers and officers allowing them to search or cross reference permit information by 
multiple partial, wild card and ASCII search options including but not limited to permit holder 
name, address and three other search criterion to view the account history and other alarm 
enforcement actions. This portal further allows the City staff to review and audit all data 
associated with the permits and run ad hoc reports as needed. 
 
Since FAMS is 100% web based, the City officials, including the alarm administrator, will continue 
to have full privileges and complete access to FAMS in real time including local access to make 
any changes like billing address update, name and phone number of the emergency contact etc. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - I. Online Permit Tracking – e” of by the City. 

FAMS can interact with various Computer-Aided Dispatch (CAD) Systems, enabling the transfer 
of necessary alarm permit information to the City's dedicated FTP location in a plain text CSV 
format. This information encompasses details such as the Permit Number, Permit Name, Alarm 
Site Address, Permit Status, Issue and Expiry Dates, Special Conditions, Pet Information, among 
others , in alignment with the agreements established with the City's CAD systems. We have 
successfully integrated our system with several CAD platforms, including Motorola’s PremierOne 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

26 

CAD, utilized by agencies like Jacksonville Sheriff’s Department in Florida and in Coppell, Texas, 
as well as the Central Square One Solution, adopted by Midland, Texas, and Suffolk, Virginia. 
 

Permit Renewal 
 
PM AM’s FAMS has a business rules-based, automatic billing process; this eliminates errors and 
provides accurate information. PM AM has several reports that are executed by the Customer 
Service Billing Specialist to ensure all permit renewal notifications have been processed. As 
required by the City’s Alarm Ordinance, FAMS has detailed and well-defined processes to 
generate letters, invoices and electronic notifications to residences and businesses on the City’s 
letterhead. The content for invoices, correspondence etc. has been approved by the City during 
the implementation phase and can be revised by the City at any time at no cost.  
 
FAMS permitting and permit renewal processes include: 

• Monitoring the issue date and expiration date of permits, thus identifying the permits due 
to expire in at least 30 days. 

• Permits requiring renewal in the upcoming month are automatically generated and a 
permit renewal notice is sent. This provides the permit holder with sufficient time to 
always remain compliant with the City’s Ordinance. 

• FAMS utilizes business rules to send non-compliant notices and permit applications to all 
alarm holders that have reported false alarm incidents but do not have a valid alarm 
permit. Your citizens thus apply for the permit, which results in additional revenue 
rightfully due to the City, as well as up to date key holder information to dispatch and 
police officers. 

• If residents and businesses do not complete alarm permits after receiving the non-
compliant notice, FAMS automatically generates a report for PM AM processes to engage 
these non-compliant citizens through phone contact to reapply for a permit. 

Continually Updated Permitting Renewal Payment Information 
 
PM AM provides citizens an opportunity to update the responsible party and key holder 
information in real time in the citizen portal or by informing PM AM through phone calls or 
written correspondence. Such best practices result in responsible party and key holder 
information being accurate and always available to the responding law enforcement officers.  
 

Additional Permitting Processes  
 
PM AM has outlined several key permitting processes within this section. There are additional 
processes within PM AM’s Billing, Security Company, Citizen Web Portal, and Customer Service 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

27 

programs that also enhance permitting compliance. PM AM’s permitting goal is to greatly 
increase alarm permit compliance and in turn, significantly increase City revenue from the 
permitting process. We have repeatedly increased permitting revenue by between 100 – 300% 
for our partner cities. 
 
This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 

Requirements - Scope of Work - I. Online Permit Tracking – a, d & g” of by the City. 

 FALSE ALARM TRACKING AND INVOICING 
 

 FAMS, a 100% web-based solution is a business rules-based solution and our false alarm billing 
process has been set up to incorporate the City’s alarm ordinance. FAMS has the flexibility to 
modify alarm ordinance attributes to reflect new changes in the alarm ordinance as needed. This 
allows our customers to make changes or adopt revisions to their ordinance from time to time 
without worrying about PM AM’s ability to incorporate these changes.  
 
Based on this customizable rule-based solution, FAMS adopts the billing criterion and all 
associated fees including false alarms charges on a one-year permit period that are billable based 
on the location type (residential, commercial, exempt) false alarm count, and the total fine for 
each location.  
 
This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 

Requirements - Scope of Work - II. Billing – c” of by the City. 
 
FAMS tracks the false alarm data, alarm activations and maintains the complete account history 
in real-time. FAMS is designed to receive a data set on a daily basis from the City’s CAD/RMS 
system identifying all alarm calls including the false alarms (along with accompanying final 
disposition codes) for the previous calendar date. FAMS maintains the incident count (true and 
false) for each location and provides the ability to track alarms not reported by the alarm 
monitoring companies.  

PM AM has created a utility that interfaces with many CAD platform, enabling the automatic 
extraction and transfer of necessary alarm incident data from the City's CAD system to PM AM's 
FAMS every day. This process does not require any intervention from City staff. Several agencies, 
including those in Richland Hills, Abilene, and Montgomery County in Texas, are already using 
this interface. 
 
This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 

Requirements - Scope of Work - II. Billing – a” of by the City. 
 
Notifications and invoices are sent to the citizens to inform them of any violations of the alarm 
ordinance on a frequency specified by the City. The invoices provide historic false alarm details 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

28 

and fines so the recipient is able to cross reference the invoice with the City’s municipal code 
requirements.  

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - II. Billing – b” of by the City. 

This provides your citizens the confidence in the alarm program and they pay their invoices on 
time. Invoices are sent with the following information: 

• Account number, Invoice number and Invoice date 
• New incidents for false alarm. All incidents are verified by FAMS business rules that are 

initially set and tested in accordance with the ordinance 
• Time, date, type, sequence number, and response fee for each new incident including 

“Waived calls” 
• Amounts paid, adjustments 
• Amount of previously unpaid or delinquent response fees outstanding 
• Procedure to appeal a response fee 
• History of incidents etc. 

 
The FAMS billing process is robust and well defined, resulting in accurate billing. FAMS meets 
billing objectives by using several reports to check the accuracy of the billing to ensure bills are 
correct and received in a timely manner.  
 
All correspondence including invoices, delinquent notices, email notifications, permit applications 
etc. that are sent to the citizens are customized and provided to the City officials for their 
approval. All invoices are printed on City color letterhead with logo and mailed in City logo 
envelopes. All stationary expenses are paid by PM AM. 

All correspondences identify PM AM’s payment receiving address along with the toll-free number 
to assist your citizens and businesses to address any questions related to the administration or 
billing of the alarm program. All invoice formats for false alarms, penalties etc. provide a 
remittance stub to be sent along with the payments. All payments are posted within 24 hours. 

PM AM invoices those customers whose checks were returned by the bank for insufficient funds. 
PM AM staff creates the additional NSF invoice and sends this new invoice along with all previous 
outstanding  charges to the permit holder.  
 
FAMS will continue to utilize the City’s ordinance business rules including but not limited to 
invoicing registered as well as unregistered locations, notifying citizens of every false alarm 
occurrence or when they are close to exceeding false alarm limits, notifying citizens delinquent 
by 30 days and 60 days along with the verbiage informing them of enforcement action, notifying 
the City regarding locations being placed or removed from no-response etc. Similar rules are 
already incorporated into the FAMS system for other municipalities. Additionally, FAMS can track 
organizations that have filed for Chapter 11 status; business rules within FAMS prevent billing 
these organizations. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

29 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - I. Online Permit Tracking – b, c & d” of by the City. 

 INTERFACES 
 
CAD Interface  
 
PM AM interfaces with many leading “industry-standard” Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) 
systems. 
 
PM AM will establish Data Exchange Communications for the City of Brea’s CAD to accomplish 
two primary goals during the start of the program, or at any time during the contract period:  
 

• Export alarm incidents from the City’s CAD system when installation is complete into 
FAMS database at a City-determined frequency, daily or weekly. 

• Transfer alarm permit data to the City’s CAD, allowing Emergency  Communications (911) 
dispatchers to view permit status, emergency contacts, site condition, and other relevant 
information of the permit, as required by City. This data transfer will happen at a frequency 
determined by the City. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

30 

PM AM has accomplished the data exchange with CAD vendor’s cooperation and without CAD 
vendor’s active participation where cities directed PM AM to do so. Out of 100+ clients that PM 
AM serves, in only 5% of these programs the CAD vendor provided the interface. In the other 
95% of the programs PM AM built the data exchange routine on its own with City IT input. 

 
If required, PM AM will make modifications to its secure Application Programming Interface (API) 
to accomplish this integration by Coordinating with the City’s IT team. 
 
PM AM will provide the FAMS Interface for free for the bi-directional interface with the City of 
Brea’s Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) system, but any cost payable to the CAD company would 
be the responsibility of the City of Brea. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - IV. Interface with Computer-Aided Dispatch 

Intermediary Server – a, b, c, d & e” of by the City. 

 HEARING AND APPEALS SUPPORT 
 

 PM AM offers its FAMS managed service as a complete 100% web-based solution to store, 
update and maintain all documentation required for appeal hearings.  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

31 

 
FAMS has an intuitive appeals function that contains all the requisite information for a hearing 
officer to make a decision from the office or while using a mobile device. 
 
Citizens receiving an invoice for false alarm fees may choose to contest their false alarms through 
the alarm hearing. 
 
PM AM is happy to share the following approaches to handle the appeal hearing and shall work 
with the City in development of the appeal process consistent with the City’s ordinance.  
 
In Person Hearings 
 
When a citizen elects the option to have an in-person hearing, the invoice will direct him or her 
to call FAMS Customer Support, or fill out a form and submit it by mail to schedule the hearing.  
 
Alternatively, in cases where the permit may have been revoked due to excessive false alarms, a 
revocation notice is mailed to the citizen along with the instructions to request an appeal hearing. 
The FAMS solution provides a function for scheduling appeal hearings that allows the City to 
schedule the requested hearing in the time slots that the hearing officer has notified FAMS that 
he or she is available.  

 
In the event that all the available time slots are taken, the City designee will enter the appeal 
request into a queue that will be called to schedule as soon as a new time slot becomes available. 
Hence, all appeal requests are handled in the order received. The hearing officer is provided with 
the complete account history enabling him/her to make the decision in an efficient manner.  
 
Alternative Process for Appeals by Mail 
 
When a citizen elects to appeal by mail, the CSR who takes the information by phone or by mail 
will submit the appeal request with all the relevant permit account details for the hearing officer 
to review at his or her convenience. 

 
In the case of both in-person hearings and appeals by mail, the hearing officer can enter the 

appeal decision and any corresponding notes into the FAMS 
solution. Once this information has been provided, a FAMS 
CSR will generate a notice to the contestant providing the 
details of the appeal decision that was made and make any 
accounting adjustments like waiving a fine or creating a new 
invoice for an existing fine to the citizen’s account. 

Appeals - Hearings, as 
simple as holdiing them 
from your local Starbucks.



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

32 

 

 
 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - III. Collections – f” of by the City. 

 COLLECTIONS 

 
 PM AM has evolved to be the industry leading service provider, realizing the highest collection 

rates for our partner cities. 
 
The FAMS accounts receivable solution is a complete integrated solution which maintains all 
invoices, payment details, statements, and financial accounting details and is available to the City 
officials on a real time basis. Additionally, PM AM provides a monthly financial report including 
but not limited to invoices, payments, adjustments, refunds etc. 
 
FAMS has proven proprietary integrated billing and accounting software that guarantees 
accurate accounting. This solution is feature rich with multiple choices to empower you by 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

33 

presenting accurate information in the most flexible way to support your day-to-day needs, 
analysis, and decision support.  
 
City officials are provided with online real-time access, this enables them to make the decisions 
with zero downtime and with no dependence on PM AM’s staff. 
 

Collection of Funds  
 
PM AM will provide a nearby program mailing address where Citizens can submit payments 
related to registration, violation, miscellaneous charges. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - III. Collections – b” of by the City. 

PM AM collects all payments and correspondence mail daily from this remittance address. We 
then scan all collected mail into the OPEX System. Once scanning is completed, our proprietary 
process identifies the associated permit and its invoice using the scanned remittance slip and 
automatically applies to most payments. Subsequently, our payment processing team addresses 
all remaining exceptions, applying them to the permits to ensure that accounts are reconciled on 
a daily, weekly, and monthly basis. All fees collected through the alarm program are deposited 
into the City’s dedicated bank account, which PM AM owns. Funds are dispersed to the City after 
monthly reconciliation, based on a percentage of the revenues collected, as per the agreed-upon 
contract. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - II. Billing – g & III. Collections – g” of by the City. 

Citizens can pay by sending their payments through USPS mail or pay online. They will also have 
an option to visit the City and pay for their outstanding invoices. The City will have the option of 
forwarding all these payments in an envelope to this dedicated remittance address. Alternatively, 
the City can deposit these payments into the City’s bank account and enter the payment 
information into FAMS from the convenience of their office. FAMS will track all the payments 
received in the City and provide the summary and transaction details in the monthly financial 
report. 
 
PM AM at its own expense, regularly performs an audit of its financial controls, data security and 
alarm management services through an independently- certified firm and shall be delighted to 
share its latest SSAE- 16 SOC I report, as needed by the City. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - III. Collections – h” of by the City. 

Secured Payment Processing Gateway 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

34 

PM AM has integrated necessary payment gateways to support ACH, debit, and credit card 
transactions online, imposing a minimal convenience charge of $3.00 for each transaction. This 
integration guarantees that payments are processed successfully at the same time, and no 
information regarding the credit card is kept in FAMS. This process results in no liability on the 
part of PM AM or the City. Since FAMS captures all the information in real time, accounts are 
reconciled on an ongoing basis. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - VI. Data Security and Reliability – g” of by the City. 

PM AM partners with Authorize.Net and EVO Merchant Services as a payment gateway hosted 
software application on PM AM’s server which authorizes credit card payments between the self-
service website and each credit card processor. Information such as credit card numbers, amount, 
and customer name are encrypted and passed to the credit card processor, who then processes 
the payment through the Visa/MasterCard network. All payments are made in compliance 
with PCI. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - II. Billing – e, f & III. Collections – a” of by the City. 

Collections Processing  
 
The processing of all funds associated within the FAMS environment is thorough and complete.  
 
The FAMS collections system includes the ability to:  

• Input cash receipts indicating which charges/fees to apply payment; 
• Apply partial payments; 
• Process payments the same day 
• Process and record returned checks; 
• Accept credit card payments transactions online and via phone; 
• Accept bank routing information for online e-payment transactions. 

 
Adjustments 

FAMS allows adjustments that the City officials may deem necessary on the invoices that were 
sent out. An example of this is an alarm that was disposed as false and later it was determined to 
be true but the information of the alarm being true was not communicated to PM AM. In such 
events FAMS allows a functionality to enter the true alarm for a prior date. This aids in the 
documentation for any adjustments/cancellations that are requested by the City. 
 
Refunds 

Alarm Companies/citizens at times may send overpayments, PM AM has a transparent process 
through which all refund requests go through two levels of authorization and are submitted to 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

35 

the City for taking the appropriate action. Once payments are received from the City, PM AM will 
remit a refund check to the individual/business accounts and or alarm companies. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - V. Customer Service – f & g” of by the City. 

Meeting Collection Goals 
 
PM AM’s ability to meet up to 90%+ collections goal is based on utilizing FAMS collection 
processes as outlined in this section and supported by the other program process areas. FAMS 
uses scientific processes and payment trend analysis to identify which outstanding collections 
require attention. Additionally, PM AM’s ability to deliver superior service from its Customer Care 
Center will create a great customer experience for the City’s citizens. PM AM has utilized these 
processes to deliver the highest collection percentages possible with current partners including 
the City. 
 

Collection Business Processes | Workflow 
 
PM AM collection efforts are based on a scientific process by utilizing trend analysis. These trend 
analyses give collection specialists detailed knowledge to setup and execute debtor callback 
patterns using a scientific process that generates a call list.  
 
PM AM utilizes these customized trend analysis reports as part of their collection efforts. This 
exclusive list that is unique for each city does magic in collection efforts that are fast, and 
consistent resulting in sky rocketing collection rates. This way PM AM deploys the most effective 
collection process that is most suitable for each of its partner cities. PM AM has come to 
understand that every City/County is unique and has mastered the science of managing the 
collection processes.  
 
PM AM’s also provides information of alarm holders where false alarm service fees are delinquent 
which allows City to make collection efforts. 

PM AM has set up an effective workflow for collection services. However, if the City of Brea opt 
for a third-party collection agency, PM AM is open to integrating data exchange and 
collaborating with the third-party agency without additional charges. Any collections made by a 
third-party agency is supported by PM AM, however any revenue realized through their efforts 
shall be communicated to PM AM and PM AM’s revenue share shall be paid as stated above from 
such realized revenue. 
 
PM AM’s fully integrated approach also allows it to partner and integrate with any debt collection 
service chosen by the City. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

36 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - III. Collections – c & d” of by the City. 

Return Mail and Collections Through Skip Tracing 
 
PM AM employs proactive and reactive skip tracing processes to process return mail and track 
alarm users to clear outstanding balances in a timely fashion by tracking their contact information 
changes. Our most effective skip tracing process is a proprietary database that is number one in 
the nation and is routinely used by law enforcement agencies as well. This service comes at a 
high cost, but PM AM invests in such services and tools to ensure our leadership in the industry.  
 
We also use the following methods for skip tracing: 

Forwarding Addresses  
 
PM AM has identified processes and software that is updated every 10 days by USPS and provides 
forwarding address information to PM AM. This enables PM AM to track and reach out to debtors 
and forward outstanding invoice information to the correct addresses. 
 
Integration With City’s Water/Utilities Database  
 
PM AM has developed processes to integrate perform skip tracing through various cities 
water/utilities database and provides citizen’s updated address and phone number. Such 
processes provide the most up to date and accurate information. PM AM utilizes this information 
to engage with citizens who have moved to a new address in the City but have not paid the 
outstanding charges.  
 
Other Skip Tracing Methods 
 
PM AM has also developed processes to perform skip tracing utilizing several other informational 
databases. These databases include: 
 

Online Criss-Cross Directories 
Google 

Contacting the alarm customer 
Yellow Pages 
 

The depth and breadth of PM AM skip tracing abilities ensures our Customer Service Specialists 
have the processes to track down missing persons for billing and collections. 
 

Increased City Alarm Program Margins 
 
PM AM has constantly been innovating processes and looking at modern solutions that are 
required to fulfill the large mail processing requirements that a partner City brings. PM AM’s 
relationship with industry leader, Pitney Bowes is almost a decade old. During this period, both 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

37 

sides have collaborated to create unique processes that fulfill the current demand of accuracy 
and speed with which large volumes of postal mail needs to be sent out every month.  
 
PM AM utilizes the current mailing technologies that qualify its mail for bulk mail discounts, this 
will deliver additional cost savings to the City. 
  
Undeliverable Mail 
 
USPS national studies suggest that 17 percent of consumers and almost 20 percent of businesses 
move every year and the cost of handling “Undeliverable as Addressed” (UAA) mail is estimated 
at $2 billion annually. Advanced technology solutions are now available that constantly update 
the most current address information into the United States Postal Service database. In the 
absence of such solutions, US consumers stand to lose billions of dollars.  
 
PM AM estimates that the 17% inaccurate mailings could cost the City a substantial amount of 
the false alarm revenue. This otherwise unrecoverable revenue is easily collected by PM AM as 
we use processes for eliminating mailing errors for our partner cities and counties include using 
the forwarding information for alarm holders to reduce incorrect addresses, wasted mailings and 
utilizing latest industry leading solutions to obtain updated and current address information prior 
to mailing, in real time over the Internet, available 24 x 7. This service is available to PM AM 
through its business partners.  
 
Integrated Document Printing 
 
The partnership with Pitney Bowes has brought many best practices to PM AM and its customers. 
One such benefit is Integrated Document Printing. This innovation provides PM AM and its 
customers an assured solution where documents of any length are customized during the 
implementation phase for invoices, and other citizen outreach purposes without ever worrying if 
the mail pieces will have any problems of sorting through this complicated document printing 
process. PM AM sends out accurate mailings that are guaranteed by the time proven processes 
matured by industry players like, Pitney Bowes over several decades of their research and 
development in this area and their willingness to co-develop processes with their customers like 
PM AM. 

 
 REPORTING 
 Reporting and Data Management 

 
FAMS offers more than 100 available reports to the City Alarm administrator and other officials. 
Since FAMS is 100% web-based, all system-wide reports used or available to PM AM staff are 
also available and accessible by the City’s staff via a web-browser. 
 
These reports are in always available mode and the City has access to these reports 24 x 7. These 
reports present correct and accurate information with 100% visibility to the City officials on real 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

38 

time basis. The majority of the reports have an option to export the results in PDF or Microsoft 
Excel formats. Several reports can be set up standard or ad-hoc with multiple variable parameters, 
date ranges and status of an account, etc.  

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - VII. Reporting – e & h.” of by the City. 

These reports are available to the City at no additional cost. This unique, transparent, detailed, 
and extensive reporting capability of FAMS allows PM AM to provide all records and statements 
required for audit purposes and submit to regular independently certified audits or special audit 
of controls, services and billing as may be needed by the City.  
 
This reporting capabilities also allows PM AM to provide a cooperative proactive approach for 
the regular reviews by the City including the topics like quality, customer service approach, 
business issues, problem solving and future planning on an ongoing basis. These reviews and 
meetings can be conducted in person or via teleconferences etc.  
 
Among all reports, we have listed a few reports which will provide detailed insight on FAMS 
reporting capability to the City: 

• Ability to search accounts by multiple search criteria. 
• Listing of alarm users by number, name, address, or alarm company. 
• Outstanding bills with aging of past due balances 30 days, 60 days etc. 
• Revenue receipt report including adjustments, refunds, returned checks etc. per day or by 

specific dates. 
• Full alarm history per alarm user (including appeal history); 
• False alarm rates by alarm owner; 
• Top offenders list with ability to break down by hours, days, months, etc.; 
• List of all non-response or suspended accounts with account information; 
• List of accounts by status; 
• Other reports as requested by the Alarm Administrator. 

 
This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - III. Collections – e, V. Customer Service – c & VII. Reporting 

- a” of by the City. 
 
Following are screenshots of few sample reports: 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

39 

 
Account Receivable Aging Summary Report 

 

 
Ledger Report 

 
Payment Received Report 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

40 

 
Monthly Reconciliation Statement Report 

 
Additionally PM AM have developed an option which can be used by City User to create ad-hoc 
(custom) reports where the custom report template can be saved and re-generated whenever it 
is required. 

 
This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 

Requirements - Scope of Work - VII. Reporting - c” of by the City. 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

41 

 
Custom Report  

 
This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 

Requirements - Scope of Work - VII. Reporting - g” of by the City. 
 
City officials will have access to the "Permit Analysis" feature, providing them with precise and 
accurate data in real-time. This includes comprehensive details and history of permits with audit 
trail of all system transactions, detailing every action taken, invoices, payments as well as all forms 
of communication with customers, such as text messages, traditional mail, and emails. 
Additionally, this feature offers visibility into all correspondence related to the City's alarm 
program, including images of mailed items like permit applications, checks or appeal documents 
sent to the designated P.O. Box. 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

42 

 
Permit Analysis 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

43 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - VII. Reporting – d & VII. Reporting - b” of by the City. 

 

Dashboards and Analytics Reports  
 
FAMS is the pioneer alarm management solution that provides City decision makers with secure, 
online, real-time statistical dashboards and analytic reports. City officials can monitor false alarms, 
billing, and collections information instantly at any time. 
  
Additionally, PM AM had the vision in 2003 to utilize “Drillable Reports”. Data points on 
dashboards and reports incorporate a drill-down technique from the FAMS user interface to 
access unit level data. 

 
 

CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 

 Citizen Self- Service Web Portal 
 
PM AM’s FAMS offers a safe and reliable self-service web portal that has been customized for the 
City’s citizens to complete online payments, learn about issues related to false alarms and its 
education, complete alarm awareness online class etc. It is critical to give citizens a self-service 
portal with 24 hour, 7 days a week availability. We recognize technically savvy citizens are more 
likely to complete a web-based, self-enrollment rather than using mail-in or call center options. 
This self-service web portal will be accessible by a link on the City’s website. 
 
The City citizen web portal will accomplish the following processes and objectives: 
 

  
 

 
 

Alarm & Billing History 
Citizens can log into FAMS™ secured area to check all historical False 
Alarms history, unpaid bills, and contact information. Citizens can 
access such information at no additional cost or fee. Most 
importantly, citizens are able to update their contact information 
online.  
This will enable first responders to have the most accurate data for 
each alarm location. 
 

  
 

Bill Payment 
Citizens will routinely pay bills from the comfort of their home using 
FAMS™ easy-to-use, no-hassle, reliable, and proven citizen portal. 
FAMS™ citizen portal is secured through 256-bit encryption and is 
PCI compliant. 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

44 

 
 

Citizen Education & Awareness 
Citizens can review the educational content focused on reduction of 
false alarms and also undergo the false alarm prevention class. 
Citizens with limited access to the internet/knowledge to internet will 
be able to receive the educational material via USPS. They can also 
review information related to the State’s Alarm Statute like fine 
schedule, police response, appeal process etc. 
  

 
 
 

Email Notifications 
Citizens receive email notifications for new permit/registration 
applications are submitted and they also receive email notification 
for outstanding bills, payment confirmations etc. 
 
Citizens can also opt-in to receive email notifications on false alarms 
educational material as well as tips to reduce false alarms. 
 
For sending email notification by default PM AM’s FAMS™ utilizes its 
own email system, PM AM’s implementation team will work with City 
of Brea’s IT team to get requited credentials to send emails from 
City’s email system. 

 
 

  
 Permit holders also have the option of paying by USPS mail as well as through walk-in at the City 

Cashier's desk. PM AM is committed to providing all methods of payment including payment by 
phone. Payments made through USPS are sent to a financial institution chosen by the City.  
 
PM AM is the pioneer in that we provide an unmatched user experience in each of our Tow’s 
custom-designed citizen portals. Immediately upon logging on to the City website, your citizen 
is guided through the false alarm payment with a video guide. Through video demonstrations, 
citizens can quickly learn and conduct any business that they choose including view ordinances, 
review and pay outstanding bills, change contact details, and view their account and false alarm 
history. PM AM launched this initiative eight years back and was the first in the False Alarm 
Management industry to create such a unique citizen experience. Since that time, this module 
has been somewhat copied and reproduced. 
 
PM AM’s implementation team uses creative designs to make each portal unique for each partner 
city or county and in line with the same theme, look and feel as the City’s website. The web portal 
is encrypted and secure to ensure safety for its users and information submitted and is accessed 
through a link at the City’s website. All payments are processed in compliance with PCI.  

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - V. Customer Service – a & VI. Data Security and 

Reliability - e” of by the City. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

45 

 

Security Companies Self Service Web Portal 
 
Alarm security companies can always be engaged through a cumbersome process by phone; 
however, PM AM has invested significant research on the City’s need to engage alarm companies 
through a self-service web portal.  
 
• Compliance – Alarm security companies can check their customer list to determine if all of 

their customers are compliant with the City ordinance. This way, alarm companies can ensure 
that alarm permits are acquired by existing and new alarm holders.  

• Identifying Non-Compliance – PM AM also requests alarm security companies to upload 
their customer lists to this portal, so FAMS can identify non-compliance and ask alarm 
companies to make their customers compliance through the permitting process also available 
in the self-service web portal.  

• Reduction of False Alarms – PM AM will provide security companies with a list of the City’s 
high alarm violators and ask for assurances that their systems are operating correctly. 
Identifying systems operating outside of tolerances can significantly reduce false alarm calls.  

• Self-service Capability – The self-service portal has several reports so the alarm security 
companies can check their customer’s list. 

 
PM AM maintains comprehensive information about the alarm companies. 

 
The Security Company portal is a significant effort that PM AM has undertaken to ensure that 
security companies and their customers comply with the applicable alarm laws. The results show 
that this effort has helped reduce noncompliance and false alarms by using security company 
resources. 
 

Corporate Portal for Multiple Accounts 
 
FAMS has an integrated portal that allows business entities with multiple locations to access all 
of their account information in one place. The portal enables them to view alarm history and 
outstanding invoices for multiple locations on a single screen, batch pay invoices and update 
information. This FAMS portal provides a complete solution for businesses that utilize a central 
accounts payable department. With cross-reference capabilities, the accounts payable team can 
link all of their locations under one login, allowing them to view and pay any current or new 
invoices in an easy and convenient way.  
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

46 

Mobile Strategy 
 
PM AM is the only service provider in the marketplace which provides the citizen web-portal 
accessibility through mobile applications for iOS and Android devices. Currently the FAMS apps 
for iOS and Android enable users to log into the Citizen portal to read the City’s False Alarm 
Ordinance, make payments, view and update 
their account information for alarm user, billing, 
and on-site emergency contacts. Citizens can 
receive push notifications for false alarm 
incidents, invoices, past due bills etc. They can 
also access a variety of educational materials to 
help them prevent future false alarms. 

 
 
 
 

 

Customer Service Center 
 
The City has been provided with a unique toll-free calling number for its citizens to contact the 
service center located in United States. PM AM utilizes a cloud-based dialer. The dialer allows the 
service center to route calls to the dedicated Customer Care Specialist team members in all or 
any of our 3 calling centers within the United States and integrate all call information with FAMS 
customer and alarm information.  
 
Our customer service approach ensures the citizens of the City have quick, courteous, timely and 
easy access to a variety of support tools that will allow them to easily apply for a permit, obtain 
account information, understand the City’s ordinance and receive immediate assistance from 
multiple customer care representatives for questions related to permits, billing, payments and 
the alarm ordinance through a dedicated toll free number during normal business hours 
including 8:00 am to 5:00 pm PST. PM AM Customer Support Group provides services in English, 
Spanish and also offers translation services in 175+ different languages. 
 
This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 

Requirements - Scope of Work - II. Billing – d” of by the City. 
 
PM AM’s Support Center in Dallas, Texas has professional representatives on staff, uses best 
practice processes, and is built with the most advanced call center technology to provide a 
superior service offering to our partner cities. All customer service processes and documents will 
be based in the PM AM offices in Dallas, TX. PM AM also has other center in Houston, TX that 
may also provide services if required. 

Easily make payments on 
mobile devices…



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

47 

PM AM Corporation is an equal opportunity employer. As such it is our policy not to discriminate 
on any basis prohibited by law including race, sex, age, religion, national origin, disability, marital 
status or veteran status. It is our intent and desire that equal employment practices apply to all 
terms and conditions of employment at the PM AM Corporation. The CEO of PM AM Corporation 
and all managerial personnel are committed to this policy and its enforcement.  

PM AM Corporation does not tolerate the presence of illegal drugs or the illegal use of legal 
drugs in our workplace. The use, possession, distribution, or sale of controlled substances such 
as drugs or alcohol or being under the influence of such controlled substances is strictly 
prohibited while on duty, while on PM AM Corporation’s premises or worksites, or while 
operating PM AM Corporation’s equipment or vehicles. PM AM conducts drug tests during the 
employment process and all employees provide their consent to be sent for drug tests at any 
time during their employment with PM AM.  

Our Customer Care Representatives shall respond to all questions and issues from alarm users. It 
has been the experience of PM AM that the trained customer service representatives are able to 
resolve more than 95 percent of issues in a single call, outside of appeals process where the 
decision may come from City Officials. 

Citizen Service Representative Team 
 
PM AM has a citizen service team made up of Customer Care Specialists and Customer Care 
Representatives. 
 
The alarm administration team includes specific roles and specialists: 
 

• Alarm Matching Specialist 
• Billing and Payment Specialist 
• Customer Care Specialist 
• Document Specialist 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

48 

 
 
Utilizing FAMS to Create a Superior Customer Experience  
 
Customer Care Specialists are able to access all permit information in a single FAMS customer 
service view. This view allows Customer Care Specialists the ability to instantly access all invoices, 
alarm incidents, receivables, and collections data, which empowers them to have very meaningful 
dialogue instantly with each customer. 
 
For example, Customer Care Specialists can access customer invoices as they were issued. This 
enables Customer Care Specialists to speak in confidence knowing they are discussing the exact 
documentation each citizen has received. If the citizen requires invoices to be resent to them, 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

49 

Customer Care Specialists can immediately resend invoices by email or fax so that customers can 
receive them in near real time. 
 

• Emails are instantly sent by FAMS’s integrated email engine 
• Faxes are instantly sent by FAMS’s integrated fax service  

 

Customer Care Call Center 
 
PM AM maintains high standards for each Customer Care Specialist. Our proprietary web-based 
call center application program monitors all interactions between citizens and our Customer Care 
Specialist. The Call Log records each call made or received by our Customer Care Specialists. This 
includes the telephone number, the duration of the call and the date and time the calls were 
made.  
 
PM AM has a state-of-the-art phone predictive dialer that is capable of handling voice and data 
seamlessly. This feature helps create a positive experience for the callers, and also educates callers 
on alarm reduction efforts while they are on hold.  

 
PM AM works with a single goal of “Single call resolution” to be 90%+. 
 
Having a Same Day Call Back Policy in place for any voice messages ensures a high level of 
customer service is achieved.  
 
Customer service metrics are available to supervisors in real-time. Customer Care supervisors are 
able to listen into live service calls and provide meaningful input if required, to ensure the 
customer service team is providing superior customer service. Our supervisors spend 
considerable time monitoring conversations to confirm quality citizen service is being provided 
by the customer care department. Supervisors are mandated to undertake Call Quality Audits on 
a regular basis, and document the quality in a predefined questionnaire. These audits are 
reviewed and become the basis for conducting coaching and training sessions to continually 
improve each Customer Care Specialist’s performance. 
  
The City will benefit from our cloud-based solution and also from happy and satisfied citizens 
who call our customer service representatives. PM AM utilizes call center best practices in order 
to have the majority of calls resolved during the first interaction.  
 
All calls are recorded and available for later review. In the rare case of a customer complaint, PM 
AM is able to review the call recording for full knowledge of the interaction, and take any 
necessary action to resolve the issue. This practice has been very helpful for the partner cities and 
PM AM to mutually look at any feedback provided by the citizen about the false alarm 
management services.  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

50 

Due to this the average call wait time for our customer service representatives is less than 15 
seconds. In the current year, they have processed an average of 48 calls per hour. Furthermore, 
nearly 100% of all calls/issues are resolved during the initial phone call. 
 
Upon request, we will provide the average violation billing time, call wait time, calls processed 
per hour by customer service representatives, and the percentage of calls/issues resolved in one 
phone call. 
 
This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 

Requirements - Scope of Work - VII. Reporting - f” of by the City. 
 
The Revenue Enhancement Program ensures that the Service Center identifies high value account 
collections in their outbound calls for collections. The predictive dialer calls for high outstanding 
false alarms charges and Customer Care Representatives contact customers with follow-up 
reminders for customers whose accounts include an agreed to pay notation on a specific date.  
 
These policies as part of the overall FAMS solution produce measurable results. The City of 
Houston received a $3.8 million dollar increase in revenue collected from false alarms within the 
first two years of adopting the FAMS solution. According to Alfred Moran, Director of 
Administration and Regulatory Affairs Department for the City of Houston, statistics indicate that 
revenue collected from false alarms will continue to rise. 
 
Additionally, the redundancy provided by PM AM of having three similar Call Centers located at 
Dallas, TX, and Houston, TX shall be a huge benefit for the City in the event of an Act of God 
striking one of the centers.  
 

Customer Representative Service Philosophy  
 
PM AM understands that the City has high customer service expectations. PM AM seeks the 
highest degree of professionalism and courtesy in our service representatives and provides 
extensive customer service training to each employee before they start taking live calls. 
 
The following chart contains the highlights of our service guidelines. 
 

Courtesy and Professionalism Standards 
 

• Remember the difference between customer service and citizen service. You are 
representing the City and the person you are calling expects their government to be 
very responsive. 

• Answer the phone pleasantly and maintain a pleasant demeanor while on the phone.  
• Be sincere at all times. People will sense insincerity on the phone even though they 

cannot see your facial expressions or other non-verbal communication clues such as 
hand gestures, head nods and body posture. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

51 

• Know the ordinance and all information regarding its compliance.  
• Return all phone calls within the same day. 
• Keep remarks of the contacts you make in the FAMS notes section. These notes are 

crucial for future contact of when city officials wish to check on an alarm user citizen 
account. Note dates for follow-up.  

• Listen and respond to the person on the other end of the line. When you focus on them 
rather than on what you are going to say next, the phone call becomes much more 
conversational.  

• Know what you want to say before making an important call.  
• Do not do things such as open mail, do paperwork while on the phone. The person you 

are talking with will know you are distracted.  
• Meeting weekly goals requires setting and meeting daily goals. Record you progress on 

a daily basis.  
• Always use introductory or follow-up letters, FAMS informational fliers or other 

educational materials to further the goal of alarm reduction.  
• Focus to resolve calls in a timely fashion with politeness. If it becomes evident that the 

person is not the one needed to resolve the issue. Obtain the correct information and 
then contact that person. 

• Before disconnecting the call, one should recap the reason for the call, the resolution 
provided and that the expectation has been met and the caller is satisfied. 

 
Customer Messaging Standards 

 
• Clearly identify yourself, the nature of the call and what action is required of the alarm 

user. 
• Provide a call back telephone number. 
• Speak with confidence and authority.  
• When you connect with a secretary or an assistant to the person responsible for payments, 

ask about a convenient time that might be best to call back.  
• When finding it difficult to get business alarm users, try to call early in the morning or 

later in the evening when more time may be available. 
 

 
FALSE ALARM REDUCTION PROCESSES 
 

 It is the intent of all Police departments to significantly reduce false alarms, PM AM worked in 
collabration with the City of Brea Police Department in past between 2020 to 2023 to reduce the 
false alarm activations and are happy to share that these efforts have helped reduce the false 
alarm by over 28%. PM AM commit to invest sizeable resources, time and money in developing 
an array of processes and methods to address the issue of false alarms and engage your citizens 
through multiple outreach efforts, that are proven to consistently deliver sustained decrease in 
false alarms for our partner cities and counties. 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

52 

We are providing some of the methods that consistently produce positive results in reducing 
false alarms. 
 

Repetitive False Alarm Violators Identification 
 
FAMS has meaningful reports but more importantly, FAMS also presents decision support tools 
like dashboards and scorecards. These tools systematically identify repeat offenders who cause 
a high number of false alarms though these repeat violators are limited in numbers. These highly 
intelligent, analytical reports are then utilized by the PM AM’s Customer Care service to deploy 
meaningful outreach efforts that usually encourages repeat violators to take corrective actions 
and this prevents further false alarms from happening. 
 

Educational Material 
 
In 2007 PM AM started providing Educational Material in the form of CDs, this approach was 
modern and innovative. Since its launch by PM AM, the industry has adopted this practice and 
this engagement strategy is offered by almost all industry-players. These material educates alarm 
users about the impact of false alarms on police resources and how such calls take otherwise 
limited police resources away from true emergencies. These educational materials are available 
in English and Spanish languages. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - V. Customer Service – b” of by the City. 

Online False Alarm Academy 
 
The False Alarm Academy is an online school that allows your citizens to learn false alarm 
prevention strategies and complete a test for understanding how to prevent future incidents. The 
Academy is particularly effective when used as part of the alarm permit reinstatement process 
for users whose permit has been suspended due to a high number of false alarms, if the alarm 
ordinance of the City mandates such a provision or as an option for the first false alarm offenses 
as required by the City. The Academy can be established as part of an online process with a 
secure login/password. PM AM will assist the City so a detailed curriculum and test 
questions/answers are produced that are relevant to the City’s False Alarm Ordinance.  
 
This add-on benefit service is part of our inclusive FAMS package and is provided at no cost to 
the City and its citizens to further educate them and reduce false alarms. As a direct result of the 
increased awareness among citizens, cities and counties see a reduction in their false alarms. 

This fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services and Specifications 
Requirements - Scope of Work - V. Customer Service – b” of by the City. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

53 

 MARKETING AND PUBLIC SERVICE INFORMATION 
 

 PM AM’s document specialist will work closely with the City staff on the finalization of all 
outgoing alarm billing documents, forms, communications, and web site portal content that will 
be sent to citizens or program partners. This process will also finalize and prepare all citizens for 
outreach marketing materials. 
 
Documents and communication content finalized in this phase will include: 
 

• Citizen communication plan 
• Security company communication plan 
• Alarm permit layout finalization 
• Invoice layout finalization 
• Citizen outreach for noncompliance (people operating alarms with a valid permit) 
• Citizen self-service portal website content 
• Security company self-service website content 
• Customer Care center call greetings and IVR scripts 
• Email content sent to citizens for false alarm reduction 
• Voice mail message content delivered by auto dialer 

 

Public Relations 
 
The PM AM outreach team will create a comprehensive marketing and public relations plan in 
conjunction with City staff to publicize the alarm ordinance program to the City residents and 
businesses through various processes. The plan will include the following elements: 
 

• Public announcements in community newspapers 
• Water bill inserts 
• Finalize content for the animated, multi-media education CD 
• Content of the False Alarm Reduction Academy 
• Newsletter updates and website content 

 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

54 

Water Bill Insert 
  

All alarm users in City of Brea are required to register their alarms 
with the City and operate their alarms in an efficient manner. 

CITY OF BREA, CA 

CITY OF BREA, CA 
 
eGovernment https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/375/Alarm-Permit-Renewals 
 
Mailing Address:  City of Brea  

False Alarm Reduction Program 
P. O. Box XXXXXX,  
XXXXXXX, XX XXXXX 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

55 

 
  

All homeowners and business owners within City of Brea, are required by 
Resolution #XX-XXXX to register their home and / or business alarm 
systems. 
 
The annual registration fee for a Residential burglary alarm system 
without a panic alarm system is $XX and is $XX with a panic alarm system. 
 
The annual registration fee for a non-residential burglary alarm system 
without a panic alarm system is $XX and $XX for a hold-up or panic alarm 
system. 
 
Failure to register the alarm system can result in a misdemeanor with fine 
of up to $XX.  
 
To avoid penalty, register your alarm system with City of Brea, by using 
one of the following options: 

- OR - 

ONLINE 
REGISTER AND PAY 

https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/375
/Alarm-Permit-Renewals  

[Select Alarm Registration] 

MAIL 
CHECK TO 

City of Brea 
False Alarm Reduction Program 

P. O. Box XXXXX 
XXXXXXX, XX XXXXX 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

56 

 DATA SECURITY | RELIABILITY 
 

This complete section fulfill the requirements as stated in “EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services 
and Specifications Requirements - Scope of Work - VI. Data Security and Reliability” of 

by the City. 

Maintenance Agreements and Requirements 
 
FAMS is a 100% web-based solution and does not require any hardware, peripherals or any 
foreign- devices to be introduced in the cities secure IT environment. 
 
PM AM provides a hosted False Alarm Management solution to the City. The hosting is provided 
by Rackspace Hosting, a top tier dedicated hosting company located in the United States.  
 
The FAMS hosting environment is designed to deliver FAMS in an “Always Available” 24/7 365 
days per year mode to the City officials and citizens. 
 
FAMS system availability up time and responsiveness is directly correlated to Rackspace’s 
leadership in providing optimal data center and application hosting services. Since 2004, FAMS 
has never experienced a downtime incident. 
 
All system updates and upgrades are performed by PM AM staff and are inclusive to the program 
at no additional fees or costs to the City. 

 

Disaster Recovery Plan 
 
PM AM maintains a comprehensive IT Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity plan that 
ensures recovery point objective of 24 hours. The disaster recovery plan specifically addresses 
critical risk areas that could impact the project and the action plan to address such an eventuality. 
Multi location redundancy and backup of system and data ensures that the operations are up 
and running within 24 hours. 
  
PM AM Business Continuity Management policy ensures that all configurable items identified 
are documented and a risk assessment carried out to analyze vulnerability on each configurable 
item based on which an appropriate mitigation and contingency plan is put in place. A resource 
is identified for each configurable item defined in the plan. The data management plan also 
defines the life cycle for each of the configurable Items from creation to closure. 
  
The disaster recovery plan is regularly updated, mock drills are periodically carried out to test 
the efficiency of the Disaster Recovery plan. 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

57 

PM AM commits to promptly notifying the city of any security vulnerability alerts. We will 
provide dedicated support to address and remediate these vulnerabilities within one business 
day, ensuring rapid resolution and maintaining the security integrity of our systems and your 
operations.  

 

Data Back-up and Storage 
 
PM AM maintains a comprehensive IT Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity plan that 
ensures daily backup of our application’s critical data to achieve recovery point objective of 24 
hours. 
 
This covers data onsite along with a copy of it placed at an off-site location. 
 

IT Policies, Processes and Systems 
 
PM AM's False Alarm Management Solution (FAMS) is designed, developed and deployed  per 
the robust and time proven 256-bit Secured Socket layer (SSL). SSL ensures an encrypted link 
between the server and the client and transfers the data using 256-bit encryption. FAMS has an 
in-built mechanism to also support legacy browsers that have limitations and can only work with 
128-bit SSL encryption. 
 
Access to key menus that are important and considered valuable such as billing, and payment 
processing at PM AM's end are further restricted. Such options are only available to known and 
approved IP addresses. This way, an intrusion from unknown IP addresses is restricted. 
  
The access to FAMS application is allowed through authenticated login credentials only. In 
addition, access is available only to authorized users. The user authorization and authentication 
determine the menus that are available to the user who has logged in through a password 
verified process. All passwords are first encrypted using Microsoft certified techniques before 
these data elements are stored in the database. This way, even the database visibility does not 
reveal the password. This scheme is applicable to all users with no exceptions. 
  
The data architecture ensures that appropriate constraints are maintained to ensure data 
integrity. PM AM has hearty and defined processes which routinely validate, ensure data integrity 
and consistency of the database by checking the tables, objects, data components and stored 
procedures, etc.  
 
PM AM follows referential integrity through foreign keys so that data is always consistent with 
the parent tables. Important attributes such as addresses are verified against City’s GIS to ensure 
that data elements are always in conformance to "Normalization forms" to the extent applicable 
to FAMS. 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

58 

The servers are hosted at Rackspace, detailed information is provided in section “Hosting 
Environment” of the RFP response. The servers are dedicated servers of PM AM with security to 
provide limited access to approved IP addresses along with other standard security measures 
like firewall etc. 
 

Data Security Practices 
 
PM AM hosts its servers on the world’s leading managed cloud provider, Rackspace. The 
following security measures are in place at Rackspace for PM AM servers that host the 
application and database.  
 
Physical Security 

• Data center access limited to Rackspace data center technicians 
• Biometric scanning for controlled data center access 
• Security camera monitoring at all data center locations 
• 24x7 onsite staff provides additional protection against unauthorized entry 
• Unmarked facilities to help maintain low profile 
• Physical security audited by an independent firm 

 
System Security 

• System installation using hardened, patched OS 
• System patching configured by Rackspace to provide ongoing protection from exploits 
• Dedicated firewall and VPN services to help block unauthorized system access 
• Data protection with Rackspace managed backup solutions 
• Optional, dedicated intrusion detection devices to provide an additional layer of 

protection against unauthorized system access 
• Distributed Denial of Service (DDoS) mitigation services based on our proprietary 

Rackspace PrevenTier™ system 
• Risk assessment and security consultation by Rackspace professional services teams 

 
Operational Security – the Rackspace Infrastructure 

• ISO 17799-based policies and procedures, Regularly reviewed as part of our SAS 70 
Type II audit process 

• All employees trained on documented information security and privacy procedures 
• Access to confidential information restricted to authorized personnel only, according to 

documented processes 
• Systems access logged and tracked for auditing purposes 
• Secure document-destruction policies for all sensitive information 
• Fully documented change-management procedures 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

59 

• Independently audited disaster recovery and business continuity plans in place for 
Rackspace headquarters and support services 

 
Operational Security – Customer's Application Environment 

• Best practices used in the random generation of initial passwords 
• All passwords encrypted during transmission and while in storage at Rackspace 
• Secure media handling and destruction procedures for all customer data 
• Rackspace Security Services can provide guidance in developing security processes for 

compliance programs 
 

PM AM IT Processes 
 
Hosting Environment  

PM AM provides a hosted False Alarm Management solution to the City. The hosting is provided 
by Rackspace Hosting, a NYSE listed company with the market cap of 4.05 billion that has 
recently been taken private. 
   
Rackspace Hosting 

Rackspace hosting provides world class, dedicated server hosting to PM AM. FAMS system 
availability up time and responsiveness is directly correlated to Rackspace’s leadership in 
providing optimal data center and application hosting services.  

Rackspace Hosting has global security certifications and compliance verifications for Service 
Organization Controls (SOC) 2 Type II and SOC 3. SOC 2 is a cybersecurity compliance framework 
that ensures third-party service providers store and process client data securely. 

Since 2004, FAMS has never experienced a downtime incident. More about Rackspace Hosting 
services is provided below. 

Physical Security  

• Keycard protocols, biometric scanning protocols and round-the-clock interior and 
exterior surveillance monitor access to every one of Rackspace data centers. 

 

• Only authorized data center personnel are granted access credentials to Rackspace data 
centers. No one else can enter the production area of the datacenter without prior 
clearance and an appropriate escort.  

 

• Every data center employee undergoes multiple and thorough background security 
checks before they are hired.  

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

60 

Precision Environment 

• Every data center's HVAC (Heating Ventilation Air Conditioning) system is N+1 
redundant. This ensures that a duplicate system immediately comes online should there 
be an HVAC system failure.  

 

• Every 90 seconds, all the air in our data centers is circulated and filtered to remove dust 
and contaminants.  

 

• Rackspace’s advanced fire suppression systems are designed to stop fires from spreading 
in the unlikely event one should occur.  

 

• All cables are securely tied down with cable racks suspended from ceilings, providing 
dual routes for all cables.  

 
Conditioned Power 

• Should a total utility power outage ever occur, all of the Rackspace data centers' power 
systems are designed to run uninterrupted, with every server receiving conditioned UPS 
(Uninterruptible Power Supply) power.  

 

• Rackspace’s UPS power subsystem is N+1 redundant, with instantaneous failover if the 
primary UPS fails.  

 

• If an extended utility power outage occurs, Rackspace’s routinely tested, on-site diesel 
generators can run indefinitely.  

 
Core Routing Equipment 

• All routing equipment is housed in a secured core routing room and fed by its own 
redundant power supply.  

 

• Fiber carriers can only enter Rackspace data centers at disparate points to guard against 
service failure.  

 

Network Technicians 

• Rackspace requires that the networking and security teams working in Rackspace’s data 
centers be certified. Rackspace also requires that they be thoroughly experienced in 
managing and monitoring enterprise level networks.  

 

• Rackspace Certified Network Technicians are trained to the highest industry standards.  
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

61 

Change Management and Product Enhancements 

 
PM AM leverages its benchmarked processes for its change management program. All software 
and system changes are categorized as requiring less than 48 hours, 48 – 72 hours or 72+ hours 
to create and implement. Any changes falling under the 72+ hour category will be performed 
undergoing the full change lifecycle. PM AM keeps all stakeholders informed of the progress as 
part of the required process. 

 
 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

62 

IMPLEMENTATION PLANNING | TIMELINE 
 
One of the many advantages that PM AM offers to the City of Brea, there is no need to proceed down 
a new implementation planning and delivery path. As PM AM was handling the City of Brea’s alarm 
program recently and can make program operational in short period, the City will avoid all disruptions 
having to move to another alarm program environment. 
 
The incorporation of any new business processes required to support additional capabilities / 
objectives defined under this solicitation, is easily accomplished by only having to expand the current 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) in an addendum format. 
 
Implementation Plan Overview 

 
In 2010, PM AM developed a very comprehensive implementation plan for establishing best practices 
towards configuring, testing and launching FAMS’ support systems and alarm administration 
processes required to fulfill City’s alarm ordinance. This implementation process was successfully 
executed resulting in the City’s advanced administrative alarm program environment of today. 
 
Project Implementation Timelines 
 
For illustrative purposes, PM AM has listed the project deliverables, timelines and the time required 
by City staff and PM AM staff to successfully implement PM AM’s False Alarm Management Services 
Project. 
 

Deliverables Project Milestones  Responsibility  
Projected 
Timeline 

1 Authorization Letters Sign off City Week 1 

2 Creation of Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOP) and Sign-off PM AM and City Week 1 – 2 

3 Sharing of all program data 
requirements with the city PM AM Week 3 

4 Content for Invoices and 
correspondence creation and approval PM AM and City 

3 Weeks from 
City providing 
approved SOP 

5 Data Import PM AM 

3 Weeks from 
City providing 

their alarm 
program data 

6 Training to City Users* PM AM and City 
5 Weeks from 
City providing 
approved SOP 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

63 

7 Citizen website and FAMS program 
implementation GO LIVE PM AM 

6 Weeks from 
City providing 
approved SOP 

 
PM AM shall be conducted remotely in several sessions on an as needed basis, accompanied by 
detailed training documentation for end users and system administrators. Customized training 
schedules will be crafted for key groups—system administrators, finance staff, and sworn/civilian 
staff—to ensure all participants are proficient and fully equipped to manage and utilize the system 
effectively. 
 
The city retains ownership of all data associated with the alarm permits. At the conclusion of the 
contract term, PM AM will return all of the City's data, including records, files, databases, and related 
project information and materials, in a mutually agreed-upon format. 
 
Throughout the duration of the agreement with the City of Brea, all intellectual property and data 
belonging to the City will be available for download and transfer at no additional cost. This will be 
facilitated through file export options or SFTP or via secure FTPS, ensuring secure and efficient data 
handling. 
 
We also confirm that our policy strictly adheres to not sharing, disseminating, or using any data for 
reporting, analysis, or demonstration purposes without obtaining prior permission from the City. We 
fully commit to respecting and securing the confidentiality and integrity of all data, ensuring 
compliance with your directives and safeguarding your interests. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

64 

STAFF TO BE ASSIGNED 
 

Organization Chart 

 

 

 

  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

65 

Key Personnel Committed to Project 

PM AM believes that excellence is possible when the right people are responsible for specific functions 
of managing FAMS™ related projects. The following organization chart describes the roles and 
responsibilities of PM AM personnel who will oversee the alarm program for the City of Brea. 

 

  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

66 

 
 

 
PM AM has adequate staffing of ~40 in 2 call centers. All our staff goes through a rigorous 
hiring process that includes drug & background screenings and I-9 verification. Each team 
member also goes through an extensive training process. The quality of our well-trained staff 
is a primary factor in the many accolades our client municipalities have bestowed on PM AM 
since 2004. 
 
PM AM has a dedicated staff of customer support representatives, these trained staff respond 
to customers phone calls thru a dedicated toll-free number in real time and emails the same 
day, emails that are received late are responded to next day, 99%+ responses include 
comprehensive details based on the question and resolved with a single response. PM AM 
has the Same Day Call Back Policy in place for any voice messages left after office hours, this 
results into high level of customer satisfaction. 

 
Below is a list of key PM AM Managers that will be involved in managing the City’s 
Program: 
 
Implementation Team 
 

Kevin George 
Implementation Specialist/City liaison 
KevinG@pmam.com 
Kevin joined PM AM in May 2023, with 30 years of outstanding customer service 
experience and 25 years of technical experience. Kevin has proven himself as an 
essential employee ready to do what it takes to deliver outstanding service all his 
customers. 

Prior to working for PM AM Kevin worked for PX Technology as an Implementation 
Engineer and Support Analyst. Providing installations and configuration for their 
customers’ custom applications and working closely with medical staff to ensure 
satisfaction with the deployment of their product.  

In his time in the industry, Kevin has served in many roles from leading a team of 
agents in a call center to obtaining Microsoft certifications for supporting servers and 
Microsoft CRM. Kevin has also proven himself as a QA resource using PL SQL to 
confirm the accuracy to changes in Oracle database and testing ETL jobs. 
 
Kevin will collaborate closely with the City's project manager and the Police 
Department's project manager to develop a comprehensive project plan. This plan will 

KEY PERSONNEL COMMITTED TO PROJECT 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

67 

outline key phases such as the kick-off meeting, requirements validation, system setup, 
interface testing, data migration, user acceptance testing, training, transition, and 
ongoing support. 
 
He will lead all meetings which will occur weekly or more frequently as necessary, 
ensuring thorough communication and timely status updates covering weekly 
progress, upcoming activities, any deviations from the schedule with corrective plans, 
resource allocation impacts, areas requiring management focus, and will include 
detailed meeting minutes and action item tracking. This structured approach ensures 
the project remains on schedule 

 
Dhiren Raval 
IT Program Manager 
DhirenR@pmam.com 
With an impressive history of over 20 years in the IT and Program/Project Management 
field, Dhiren is a seasoned IT specialist with PMP Certification excelling in system 
design, implementation, training, documentation, and support. Boasting robust 
communication skills, he adeptly bridges client requirements with developers and 
clarifies developer inquiries to clients. 

Entrusted with the technical realm of FAMS™, Dhiren ensures seamless administrative, 
back-office operations, onboarding new clients on to the FAMS™ platform and 
supervising the application technical support among other duties. 

Operations Team 
 

Pankaj Kumar 
Chief Executive Officer | Executive Project Sponsor             
PankajK@pmam.com 
As a Project Sponsor, Mr. Kumar ensures that all roles and responsibilities are aligned 
to the commitment PM AM made in terms of quality and speed of carrying out all 
alarm administration service processes. He is also available to you to resolve issues 
and constraints that are noticed by you or your citizens during the entire life of the 
project. 
 
Jimmy L Spivey 
Vice President of Sales | Public Safety Division                                              
JimmyS@pmam.com  
Jimmy Spivey recently retired as Chief of the Richardson Texas Police Department. 
Chief Spivey spent many decades in Law Enforcement in Dallas and Richardson with 

mailto:DhirenR@pmam.com
mailto:PankajK@pmam.com
mailto:JimmyS@pmam.com


PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

68 

over 10+ years as Police Chief. The Richardson Police Department was the first FAMS 
partner in 2004 with PM AM and Chief Spivey was instrumental in providing key inputs 
to bring down false alarms for the public safety organizations.  
 
Troy Brown 
Director Customer Service  
TroyB@pmam.com  
As director over Customer Service, Troy oversees the day-to-day operations of the call 
centers, and the data entry teams. He is also the primary point of contact through the 
duration of the implementation process and over the lifetime of the program. Troy 
brings 25+ years of call center management experience. He is responsible for 
managing the call centers and Back office of 35-40 employees.  
 
Monica De La Rosa 
Call Center Supervisor 
MonicaR@pmam.com 
Monica would be the Program Lead for the City of Brea and assist with requests and 
develop new campaigns and content to engage citizens to increase their awareness 
about the City’s alarm ordinance. This role and her initiatives are key in customer 
engagement through mailings, email and voicemail communications and marketing 
campaign materials. 
 
Madhura Kotkar 
Payment Specialist 
MadhuraK@pmam.com  
Madhura works diligently to process daily Lockbox files and carries out manual 
research for the payments that did not come with coupons. She is responsible for 
keeping Lockbox and FAMS™ always reconciled. 
 
Olga Salazar 
Alarm Incident Matching & Training Specialist 
OlgaS@pmam.com 
Responsible for reviewing, correcting, and updating all CAD alarm files to ensure 
complete and proper matching of incident data to the correct permits, she maintains 
open communication with city contacts for all incident issues. She also tracks incident 
data and ensures efficient, timely, and accurate matching for billing purposes. 
Additionally, as a training specialist, she supports the call center in onboarding new 
hire agents and facilitates the training of policies and procedures for PM AM. As a 

mailto:TroyB@pmam.com
mailto:MonicaR@pmam.com


PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

69 

senior agent, she assists with customer engagement through mailings, emails, 
voicemail communications, and escalations.  
 
Priscilla Ceballos  
New Installations, Cancellations and Payment Specialist                               
PriscillaC@pmam.com 
Priscilla is responsible updating permits when PM AM receives notification from the 
alarm companies of a change of status to their permit holders. She is also responsible 
for deposits for cities that are not on bank operated Lockbox. 
  
Antonia Rodriguez 
Mail Processing Specialist                                                                      
AntoniaR@pmam.com 
Antonia is responsible for the scanning and batching all correspondence received 
through the lockboxes. This process is vital to PM AM to maintain time-bound 
standards for payment processing. She also ensures that any collateral sent to the 
permit holders on behalf of the city are printed and sent within the designated 
timeframes.  

 
Besides these key individuals, PM has two call centers that are fully trained and staffed with 
call takers, back-office personnel in Dallas and in Houston. In order to support the operation 
PM AM rents approximately 7,000 square foot is space for these two call centers. 

mailto:PriscillaC@pmam.com
mailto:AntoniaR@pmam.com


PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

70 

FIRM PROFILE, QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 
 
 

Item Detail 

Company Name:  PM AM Corporation 

Locations: Dallas, TX 5430 LBJ Freeway, Suite 370, Dallas, Texas 75240 

 Houston, TX 4615 Southwest Fwy, Houston, TX 77027 

Postal Address: 5430 LBJ Freeway, Suite 370, Dallas, Texas 75240 

Business Website: https://www.pmam.com/ 

Company Ownership: Corporation  

Primary Contact: James McReynolds 

Title: Director of Sales 

Email Address: JamesM@PMAM.com 

Phone Number: 972-573-4824 

Fax Number: 972-831-7499 

 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

71 

 
  

PM AM Corporation (C-Corp) is a 
privately-owned minority and 
woman-owned enterprise 
incorporated in 1999 in the State of 
Texas. Company headquarters are 
located in Dallas, TX with additional 
offices in Houston, TX. All FAMS 
services are provided from these two 
centers located in United States. PM 
AM has been providing alarm 
management services since 2004 and 
the majority of the company’s 
revenue is derived from false alarm 
management solutions. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

72 

 
 

 
PM AM has earned several IT Awards and certifications. 
 

• CJIS Ready 
• SSAE-16 SOC 1 – Type II 
• PCI | DSS Compliant 
• Microsoft “Sequel 2005 Front Runner Status” – Only 185 companies worldwide 
• Microsoft “Sequel 2008 Front Runner Status” 
• Microsoft Gold Certified Partner  
• Microsoft ISV (Independent System Vendor) - Under 12 % of Microsoft partners have 

achieved this level 
• Microsoft Custom Development Solutions Competency Certification 
• UiPath Automation Excellence Awards 2022 - Finance and Accounting Process 

Automation 
 

 
 
     

 
 

 
 
 
• We take immense pride in our accomplishment of becoming a "CJIS Ready" (Criminal Justice 

Information Services) solution. This distinguished certification was conferred upon PM AM 
following an exhaustive examination of our systems, processes, protocols, and the team 
supporting the FAMS platform. 
 

• The PM AM | FAMS payment processing process is regularly audited, allowing it to earn its 
SOC1 – SSAE 16 Type 2 certification. Cities are specifically interested in this certification as 
this provides them with the comfort that PM AM has proper controls to manage money and 
properly accounting for it.  
 

• PM AM remains compliant with PCI | DSS compliance standards as applicable. 
 

• PM AM proudly holds the status of a Microsoft Gold Certified Partner, a prestigious 
certification that underscores our commitment to excellence and innovation. This recognition 
from Microsoft provides PM AM with an exclusive benefit of 40 hours of expert consultation 
from seasoned Microsoft Technology professionals. This guidance plays an integral role as we 
continually strive to infuse cutting-edge advancements into our FAMS™ solution. This 

AWARDS AND CERTIFICATIONS 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

73 

partnership not only highlights our alignment with industry-leading technology standards but 
also empowers us to leverage Microsoft's vast technical expertise. By doing so, we ensure that 
our FAMS™ system remains at the forefront of innovation, offering our clients robust, reliable, 
and state-of-the-art solutions tailored to their specific needs and requirements.  
 

• PM AM holds the esteemed position of a Microsoft ISV (Independent System Vendor) 
Partner, a recognition that underlines our adherence to best practices and quality standards. 
This partnership began with an opportunity provided by Microsoft for partners to present their 
solutions for detailed examination. Microsoft's team of experts meticulously reviewed various 
aspects of our solution, assessing compliance with Microsoft's prescribed best practices. Upon 
their satisfaction with our alignment with these standards, we were awarded the ISV status. 
We proudly submitted our FAMS system to Microsoft for this evaluation and successfully 
achieved the ISV accreditation. This accomplishment is particularly significant, considering that 
less than 12% of Microsoft Certified Partners have earned this status.  

 
Please visit the following Microsoft website and search for keyword “FAMS”.  

 
http://pinpoint.microsoft.com/en-US/services/False-Alarm-Management-and-Reduction-

Solution-4294979079-4295615895?LocId=-1 
 

• PM AM is a recipient of the prestigious UiPath Automation Excellence Award 2022 in 
Finance & Accounting Process Automation for the innovative use of UiPath Automation to 
automate its billing and month-end closing processes. PM AM FAMS Billing automation is a 
unique solution that completes the entire billing lifecycle right up to bank integration and 
check clearance. The solution validates over 3000+ rules every cycle which has resulted in 
improved efficiency and accuracy of the process. The solution brings the power of UI Path, 
OCR, and API Integration to simplify a complex process catering to over 150 clients with 
diverse requirements.  
 

  

http://pinpoint.microsoft.com/en-US/services/False-Alarm-Management-and-Reduction-Solution-4294979079-4295615895?LocId=-1
http://pinpoint.microsoft.com/en-US/services/False-Alarm-Management-and-Reduction-Solution-4294979079-4295615895?LocId=-1


PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

74 

 
 

 
State Of The Art Call Centers | Protection Against Disasters 
 
PM AM is committed to delivering uninterrupted alarm administration services for the City of Brea, 
operating primarily from our Dallas, TX office location. 
 
We have strategically established two distinct processing and call center service sites in Dallas, TX and 
Houston, TX, ensuring redundancy and resilience in our operations. While the likelihood of physical 
or man-made disasters is remote, we are well-prepared to handle such eventualities. PM AM 
maintains a complete mirror-image backup of all processes, equipment, and essential personnel 
across locations. If one site were to be incapacitated, we could restore service to the city within 30 
minutes at an alternate site. 

 
 

                                                                              
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DALLAS, TX                  HOUSTON, TX 
 
PM AM has invested substantially in thought, time, and resources to set up state-of-the-art customer 
care center locations in Dallas, TX and Houston, TX. Our call support center network is ingeniously 
designed, allowing calls to be diverted seamlessly and efficiently between the two centers, ensuring 
uninterrupted service to our clients. 
 

An Example:  Hurricane Harvey, Aug 28th to Sept 1st, 2017, the City of Houston was 
impacted by torrential rains and flooding due to Hurricane Harvey. The mayor’s office 
declared that the City’s administrative offices would remain closed and PM AM Houston 
support office was closed due to flooding in the office building.  
 
PM AM’s cloud-based phone system was configured, within 30 minutes, to re-route all calls 
intended for the Houston support center to PM AM’s Dallas support center. Even though 
the City’s offices were closed, Houston citizens were able to still call into and speak with 
PM AM CSRs regarding all their alarm questions. 

VALUE ADD FEATURES AND SERVICES 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

75 

PM AM is unique in the industry, providing an option for in-bound callers to leave a voice mail 
message for those calling after normal business support hours. PM AM’s standard Service Level 
Agreement (SLA) is to return these voice mail messages the next business day. 
 
Other cities that have chosen other industry players to manage their alarm program have discovered 
that no capability exists to leave a voice mail message after office hours. Callers are requested to call 
back during normal business hours. 
 
PM AM Advantages 
 
PM AM derives its advantages from its commitment to “incremental innovation” on an on-going basis. 
PM AM identifies two/three key areas every year for innovation/modernization and given the scope 
of the goals, sets aside a budget every year to undertake R&D so our partner cities can benefit from 
a solution that always remains current to the time.  
 
This strategic approach ensures that our partner cities consistently benefit from a solution that stays 
relevant and responsive to the current times, challenges, platforms, and emerging trends. By focusing 
on the diverse needs of different demographics, including millennials, baby boomers, and the aging 
population within their municipalities.  
 

 
 
The following are a few examples: 

• Innovative Compliance Algorithm - 2020: This represents PM AM’s incremental innovation 
focused on further increasing ordinance compliance based on location (socio-economic 
demographic analysis) of the residence.  

 
• FAMS iOS and Android Smartphone App - In 2018, PM AM started offering an ultra-modern 

iOS and Android smartphone app with 8 functions along with push notifications through touch 
ID function. Now, the citizens of our partner cities can carry out many functions like reviewing the 
City’s False Alarm Ordinance, making payments, viewing, and updating their key holder 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

76 

information, historical information on false alarms, invoices etc. They can also access a variety of 
educational materials to help prevent future false alarms.  
 

• Scan to Pay - In 2017, PM AM started offering a unique state-of-the-art payment solution to 
citizens. Your citizens can now scan invoices through smartphones to pay invoices on the go. This 
solution is extremely handy for the millennial and others that conduct a majority of their business 
through their phones.  

 
• USPS Mail Delivered | Guaranteed - In 2014, PM AM developed innovative processes which 

allow us to track the delivery of invoices and notices sent to citizens. This information is extremely 
helpful for our partner municipalities when dealing with walk-in customer inquiries, appeals etc. 
as it provides the date and time of when invoices were delivered to the citizen doorstep. This 
information is integrated into FAMS directly from the United States Postal Services (USPS) 
solution. PM AM has reasons to believe that it is the only company to offer this service.  

 
• Business/Franchise Chain Engagement - In 2013, PM AM and its strong user base were busy 

brainstorming and looking at ways to further enhance the collection of unpaid invoices by 
businesses/franchise chains. A unique service offering was added to FAMS portfolio that was once 
again 100% web-based and made available to business/franchise chains at no cost. Our user 
community has since seen an upsurge in payments from this group of customers.  

 
• Citizen experience through videos - In 2009, PM AM was the first service provider to 

introduce instructional videos, which assist citizens in learning permit and payment processes 
before actually undertaking these functions on FAMS citizen website. This function is no longer 
unique as it has been copied. The reason PM AM has included this is to assure the city that PM 
AM’s yearly goals and the R&D were invested in ensuring that our partner cities are always current 
for its citizens’ outreach.  

 
• Integrated Document Printing - In 2008, PM AM partnered with Pitney Bowes (Listed at NYSE 

with $2.45 Billion market cap), an industry leader to integrate FAMS invoices. This time proven 
solution assured our customers that invoices being mailed will have zero chance of an error during 
the stuffing process. This was an expensive and ahead-of-its time solution for a company of PM 
AM’s size; however, it ensured the extraordinary growth that PM AM was experiencing at the time 
would have no bearing on its ability to continue to perform. These innovations and investments 
have saved PM AM and our partners from negative media.  
 

• Alarm Company Engagement - In 2005, a year after initial launch, PM AM realized that an 
important stakeholder to alarm management was not included in the ecosystem of the solution 
that is used by cities. PM AM collaborated with municipalities and alarm companies to identify 
functions, features, pain points, and reports that will help municipalities and involve alarm 
companies through a self-service intuitive platform that is secure through password securities.  

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

77 

• Multi-Factor Authentication - In 2022, to enhance the security framework, PM AM 
implemented its SaaS version of FAMS™ multi-factor authentication, necessitating users to furnish 
multiple forms of identification prior to gaining access. This move significantly mitigated the risk 
of unauthorized access, ensuring a robust defense even if a malicious actor were to acquire a 
user's password, thus becoming a pivotal element in this contemporary cyber security strategy. 

 
• 100% Cloud-Based FAMS solution - In 2004, PM AM was uniquely innovative in its approach 

to launching a 100% web-based citizen portal and administrative portal for alarm permit 
management and false alarm reduction. All components of FAMS were web-based and these 
functions and reports were accessible to our partner cities through a browser without introducing 
any foreign- devices. PM AM has maintained this 100% web-based function to this date, with all 
its innovations available through a browser.  
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

78 

 
 

 
PM AM serves a current client universe of 525+ municipal and county jurisdictions across the country 
with the various solutions we have developed specifically for the law enforcement and public safety 
industry.  
 
PM AM has been providing false alarm management services since 2004 and has extensive experience 
in working with municipalities throughout the country delivering exemplary service. Through these 
partnerships, we have extensive experience working with municipalities similar to the City which 
provided success stories and testimonials as shared by our partner cities. 
 

 

PM AM CUSTOMER PROFILE | EXPERIENCES 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

79 

FAMS Customer Success – Oakland Police Department, CA 
 

Since 2008, PM AM has had the pleasure of working with four 
different city Project Mangers. We have made on-site visits with 
each person and worked to create a relationship with each 
individual.  

PM AM assisted Oakland in implementing their new alarm 
ordinance in 2009. Oakland’s goal for the new ordinance was to 
reduce the number of false alarms, increase the number of paid 
alarm permit holders and reduce the amount of administrative 
time spent operating their alarm program. 

The numbers speak for themselves. Permit holders have more 
than doubled, from under 13,000 in 2009- 2010 to more than 

26,000 today. The number of alarms has continued to fall from a high of 24,000 in 2009 – 2010 to 
under 15,000 today.  

 
Additional assistance provided to the City of Oakland by PM AM includes:  

• Onsite training provided to the Alarm Program Manager on alarm equipment and its 
operation. 
 

• Consultations on alarm response issues or ordinance questions are immediately provided 
when requested by the Alarm Program Manager. 
 

• Continually updating the Alarm Program Manager on major changes in the alarm industry and 
technological advancements. 
 

• The Oakland School District has taken advantage of this technology. 
 

• The Oakland Alarm Program Manager has requested our expertise on drafting new revisions 
to the present alarm ordinance. PM AM will leverage our vast knowledge of alarm ordinance 
best practices and administrative experience to assist the city in the development of the alarm 
ordinance. 

  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

80 

 
 

 
In 2009, the City of Houston entrusted PM AM with the False 
Alarm Billing and Tracking Services contract, previously 
overseen by EDS. This transition led to an immediate and 
tangible reduction in the administrative staffing requirements 
for both City personnel and contracted staff. 
 
The partnership with PM AM brought about remarkable results 
for the city, manifesting in consistent year-over-year revenue 
growth. This success was achieved through PM AM's proactive 
approach in introducing imaginative and cutting-edge 
techniques to enhance alarm ordinance compliance. 
Consequently, the City saw a surge in the number of permits 

issued and renewed, as well as a significant boost in the collection of false alarm fines. 
 
At the commencement of PM AM's contract award in 2009, the revenue reported by the then ARA 
director stood at $6.4 million. Fast forward to today, the revenues collected and realized are just under 
$12 million, reflecting an impressive increase of 85%. 
 
This notable achievement not only exemplifies our effectiveness in leveraging innovative strategies 
but also underscores our commitment to driving value for our clients. The City of Houston's 
experience is a testament to the potential and efficacy of our unique approach to service delivery, 
focusing on client goals, responsiveness, and continuous improvement. 
 

FAMS Customer Success – City of Houston, TX ARA Department 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

81 

CLIENT REFERENCES 
 

PM AM has been providing false alarm management services to 140+ cities in the last 20 years and 
has extensive experience in working with jurisdictions throughout the country. It is with considerable 
pride that out of the 140+ cities that PM AM currently serves we present to you the following tree 
references. 

 
Client Name City of Oakland, CA 

Description of Services False Alarm Reduction Program 
Population 440,646 

Contact Name Juanita Velasquez 
Contact Phone 510-238-6680 
Contact Email jvelasquez@oaklandca.gov 

Effective Date of Contract January 2010 – till date 
 

Client Name City of Ventura, CA 
Description of Services False Alarm Reduction Program 

Population 110,763 
Contact Name Nona Palmer 
Contact Phone 805-339-4392 
Contact Email npalmer@cityofventura.ca.gov 

Effective Date of Contract March 2023 – till date 
 

Client Name City of Arcadia, CA 
Description of Services False Alarm Reduction Program 

Population 54,857 
Contact Name Amber Abeyta 
Contact Phone 626-574-5136 
Contact Email aabeyta@arcadiaca.gov 

Effective Date of Contract August 2019 – till date 
 

Client Name City of Glendora, CA 
Description of Services False Alarm Reduction Program 

Population 50,824 
Contact Name Kandi Tidwell – Record Supervisor 
Contact Phone 626-914-8271 
Contact Email ktidwell@glendorapd.org 

Effective Date of Contract August 2021 – till date 
 
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

82 

PRICING 
 

Pricing for FAMS (Turn-Key Services) 

PM AM presents the following revenue-sharing plan with the City of Brea, which details the 
distribution of revenue based on the categories detailed below: total permit fees, renewal fees, false 
alarm fines, reinstatement fees, civil penalties, late fees, alarm company civil penalties, as well as all 
other applicable fees or fines related to the alarm ordinance. 

This proposal includes expenses linked to the execution of the specified services, encompassing 
materials, supervision, labor, delivery, and associated costs, in accordance with the provided RFP 
response. 
 
PM AM proposes the below split of monthly alarm program fees collected: 
 

City of Brea PM AM Corporation 

74% 26% 

 
The charges of cost of mailing incurred and all bank charges paid in connection with the Services 
rendered under this Agreement shall be paid by the program before the split of monthly revenue 
collected. 

PM AM’s share of revenue shall be payable to PM AM, from all payments received by the City from 
alarm program billing undertaken by PM AM.  
 
Interfaces - PM AM will provide the FAMS Interface for free for the interface integration the City of 
Brea’s Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) system, but any cost payable to the CAD system providers 
would be the responsibility of the City of Brea. 
 
Third Party Collections - PM AM has established a good workflow for the collection services, 
however, should the City of Brea desire to engage a third-party collection agency then PM AM is 
willing to integrate the data exchange and cooperate to work with the third-party collection agency 
at no extra cost.  
 
Any collections made by a third-party agency are supported by PM AM, however, any revenue realized 
through their efforts shall be communicated to PM AM and PM AM’s revenue share shall be paid as 
stated above from such realized revenue. 
 
PM AM will pay for all other costs including paper stock, educational materials, set-up fees, equipment 
(including hardware, hosting charges, and software) tools, personnel, utilities, etc. that are required 
for administering the false alarm billing and tracking program for the County. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

83 

 
 
PM AM does not charge any fees towards ongoing system maintenance, including… 
 

• No…  Implementation Fees 
• No…  Annual Renewal Fees 
• No…  Data Conversion Fees 
• No…  Pre / Post Implementation Technical Support Fees 

 
In summary, PM AM is committed continuing to be as responsive to the City’s false alarm reduction 
and its program financial goals as it possibly can.  
 
The PM AM | FAMS platform is powered by 100% Cloud and Web-based architecture to continue to 
meet the “24/7, real-time, browser-based” administrative and executive needs of the City, as well as 
to provide the desired interactive and convenient experience for its citizens.  
 
The PM AM | FAMS solution proposed is the only 100% Cloud and Web-based system in the alarm 
administrative services industry meeting this standard and requires no foreign devices or software 
to be introduced into the City’s technology footprint. 
 
Contract Statements 
 
PM AM submits this proposal for an initial term of one (1) year and subsequent four (4) one year 
period.  
 
It is the intent of PM AM to negotiate a Service Agreement with the City that addresses both the 
needs of the City and PM AM. We have included a Service Agreement Template at the end of this 
proposal for the City’s review. 
 
All data relating to the alarm permits are owned by the city. PM AM shall return the City’s data 
including records, files, databases and related project information and material in an agreed-upon 
format at the end of the contract term. 
 
Termination by Contractor in the Event of Fee Reduction by changes to the City Ordinance – 
Should the City change its ordinances during the term of the Agreement which provide for a reduction 
in the fees, and or related fines and charges, PM AM reserves the express right to re-enter into good 
faith negotiations with the City to modify the fee schedule and pricing accordingly. PM AM shall give 
the City written notice of its desire to renegotiate.  
 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

84 

STANDARD FORM A - NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT FORM 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

85 

  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

86 

STANDARD FORM B - REFERENCES FORM 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

87 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

88 

STANDARD FORM C - SUBCONTRACTORS LIST-STANDARD 
FORM 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

89 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

90 

STANDARD FORM D - STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE OR 
EXCEPTIONS FORM 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

91 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

92 

Section / 
Page # 

Term, Condition, 
Specification Exception & Benefit to City City A or D 

Section 4 Clarification of 
Commencement Date – 
Section 4 provides that 
Agreement shall commence 
on _____________ date 
defined as Effective Date. 

PMAM is willing to accept this, but for the 
City's benefit, we suggest the following 
modification: 

(a) The provision should be clarified to 
incorporate the Contract Implementation 
Date concept from Section 2.1 of PM AM’s 
standard agreement. This approach ensures 
that the Agreement takes effect based on 
the actual start of Services by the City and 
PM AM. 
In PM AM’s experience, there have been 
instances where the City becomes involved 
in other projects that take precedence over 
implementing the false alarm management 
solution, causing delays. Therefore, we 
request that the implementation date be 
considered as the start date for determining 
the contract's duration. 

 

Add Collection of Pre-
Termination Accounts 
Receivable  

We at PM AM suggest the following: 

1. We need to include a provision in the Fee 
Schedule requiring the City to pay PM AM its 
fee split on accounts receivable as of the 
termination date, for any amounts collected 
within 90 days after the termination of PM 
AM’s services. 

We request this provision based on an 
industry business practice: we send out 
invoices for permits that are due to expire at 
a future date, typically up to 60 days in 
advance. Consequently, at the time of 
contract termination, there will be a number 
of outstanding invoices that are not yet due 
and therefore not paid whereas, PM AM has 
already invested the necessary money and 
resources to send out these notices. 
Therefore, we believe it is fair that any funds 
the City collects within 90 days after the 
contract ends should be shared with PM AM 
according to the agreed contract terms. 

 

 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

93 

Section / 
Page # 

Term, Condition, 
Specification Exception & Benefit to City City A or D 

Section 6 Clarification of Record 
Retention Period – Section 6 
of City Agreement requires 
PM AM to maintain books, 
documents, papers and 
accounting records for 4 years 
from date of final payment. 

We at PM AM suggest the following: 

Since PM AM will hand over all data to the 
City at the end of the contract, it will be very 
difficult for PM AM to maintain any data 
beyond this point. This is due to the 
sensitive nature of the data and the 
common practice that cities typically do not 
want any third party to retain such data 
after the conclusion of a contract. 

 

Section 15A Section 15A permits City to 
terminate Agreement with or 
without cause by giving 10 
days’ written notice. 

We at PM AM suggest the following: 

PM AM is willing to accept this but believes 
the following would be more beneficial to 
the City: 

(a) Section 6.1.1 of PM AM’s standard 
agreement permits the City to terminate 
without cause after a 90-day notice and cure 
period. 

This would be the best option for the City. In 
our experience, it typically takes about 90 
days for cities to take over the program, as 
there are many tasks that need to be 
completed during this transition period. 
These tasks include the closure of post office 
boxes, changes to phone numbers, website 
address updates, and informing all citizens 
about the upcoming changes. A 90-day 
notice period ensures a smooth transition 
and allows adequate time for these 
necessary adjustments.  

 

 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

94 

Section / 
Page # 

Term, Condition, 
Specification Exception & Benefit to City City A or D 

Section 16 Section 16 of City Agreement 
provides that all documents 
written materials, ideas, 
concepts, source code, object 
code, electronic files etc. 
created or developed by PM 
AM in performance of 
Agreement (collectively, 
“Work Product”) shall be 
considered works made for 
hire and belong to the City. 

We at PM AM suggest the following: 

(a) We suggest this provision be deleted as 
it is not applicable to this Agreement where 
PM AM is acting as a billing and collection 
agency for the City and not designing a 
product for the City. 

(b) Section 17 of the City Agreement covers 
City Data and states that City data is owned 
by the City. Section 17 should be sufficient 
to protect the City's interests. 

(c) At a minimum, Section 16 should be 
modified to provide that PM AM’s software 
is solely owned by PM AM. 

 

Section 17C Confirmation of Use of 
Cloud-Based Storage  

FAMS is a Cloud Based Solution 
 

Exhibit A Exhibit A, Scope of Work, 
III(a) provides that all fees 
collected shall be deposited 
in an account controlled by 
PM AM. 

We at PM AM suggest the following: 

PM AM is willing to agree to a PM AM 
controlled account, but the following should 
be added for mail-in payments:  

(a) This provision should be modified to 
permit PM AM to open a P.O. Box and bank 
account on the City’s behalf to meet this 
expectation as laid out in the RFP. 

 

  
As you can see that all the exceptions that 
we have pointed out are not to lose any 
points but given the very special nature of 
this service these provisions are requested 
and we hope and believe that these will not 
be held against us to take/deduct any 
points. 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

95 

STANDARD FORM E - STATUS OF PAST AND PRESENT 
CONTRACTS FORM 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

96 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

97 

STANDARD FORM F - INSURANCE COMMITMENT FORM 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

98 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

99 

STANDARD FORM G - PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS RESPONSE 
FORM 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

100 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

101 

  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

102 

STANDARD FORM H - FIRM PROPOSAL FORM 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

103 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

104 

STANDARD FORM I - PRICE FORM 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

105 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

106 

SAMPLE PM AM SERVICE AGREEMENT TEMPLATE 
 

AGREEMENT FOR ALARM PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 

This Agreement for Alarm Program Administration Services (the "Agreement") is made and entered into in 
Dallas County, Texas by and between PMAM Corporation, a Texas corporation whose address is 5430 LBJ 
Freeway, Suite 370 Dallas, TX 75240, (the "PM AM") and the City of _____________, State of 
________________ (the "City") to be effective upon the date of execution of this Agreement by the City 
Manager or the City’s authorized designee as set forth on the Signature Page hereto (the “Effective Date”). 

Recitals 

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the services of PM AM to provide certain installation, 
conversion, operation and service of a False Alarm Management Program including the collection services in 
accordance with the City’s alarm ordinances in accordance with the terms of this Agreement (as hereinafter 
defined) (collectively, the “Services”); and 

NOW THEREFORE, in exchange for the mutual covenants set forth herein and other valuable 
consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

Article 1 
Scope of Services 

 
1.1 The parties agree that PM AM shall perform the Services in accordance with the terms and conditions 

of the City’s alarm ordinance and this Agreement. The parties' agreement consists of this Agreement 
and the following Exhibits, which are incorporated herein and made a part hereof by this reference 
thereto: 

 
   Scope of Work and Contract Requirements – Exhibit A 
   Pricing and Receipt of Collections - Exhibit B 
 
In the event of a conflict in interpretation, the documents shall control in the following order: (ii) the 
Agreement, (ii) Exhibit A, and (iii) Exhibit B, as further modified by the written agreement by the 
parties as a result of software implemented and deployed by the parties. 

Article 2 
Terms of Agreement 

2.1 The initial term of this Agreement shall be for a period of three (3) years commencing on the Contract 
Implementation Date (as hereinafter defined) and ending on the day immediately preceding the third 
anniversary of the Contract Implementation Date (the ‘Initial Term”), subject to earlier termination as 
set forth in Article 6 hereof. Upon the expiration of the Initial Term, this Agreement shall be subject to 
automatic extension from year to year thereafter (each an “Extended Term”) on the same terms and 
conditions as set forth herein, unless either party notifies the other in writing at least sixty (60) days 
prior to the expiration of the Initial Term or the Extended Term, as applicable, that such party will not 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

107 

further extend the term of this Agreement. As used herein, the term “Contract Implementation Date” 
shall mean the first day of the calendar month for which PM AM commences billing for its Services to 
the City hereunder following the installation of the False Alarm Management Program.  

2.2 PM AM shall receive compensation, including authorized reimbursements including reimbursement 
for any City fees paid by PM AM to the City to permit PM AM to provide the Services or Special 
Services hereunder, for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth in pricing 
included in this Agreement as Exhibit “B”. The compensation is based on a revenue sharing model. In 
order to facilitate the sharing of revenues as set forth in Exhibit “B” hereto, the City authorizes PM AM 
to open a P.O. Box and bank account on the City’s behalf.  

2.3 At any time during the term of this Agreement, the City may request that PM AM perform Special 
Services for additional compensation to be agreed upon by the City and PM AM prior to the 
performance of any Special Services by PM AM. As used herein, Special Services means any work 
which is determined by the City to be necessary for this Agreement, but which the parties did not 
reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of this Agreement and which PM AM 
agrees to perform. If the City and PM AM reach an agreement on the performance of Special Services, 
PM AM shall undertake such Special Services after receiving the authorization from the City.  

2.4 The City acknowledges and agrees that PM AM reserves the right to offer, and may offer, similar 
services to other government agencies under similar terms and conditions as stated herein except that 
the revenue share percentage allocated to PM AM and the other government agency may be negotiated 
between PM AM and such other agency based on the specific revenue expectations, agency 
reimbursed costs, the exact scope of services to be provided by PM AM, and other agency 
requirements. PM AM acknowledges and agrees that the City shall have no responsibility or liability 
whatsoever hereunder with respect to any agreement entered into between PM AM and such other 
government agency. 

Article 3 
PM AM’s Responsibilities 

3.1 Subject to the limitations hereinafter set forth, PM AM agrees to and shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the City, its officers, and management employees from and against all claims, damages, losses 
and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, litigation costs and expenses, arising out of the 
performance of the Services or Special Services, caused solely by any grossly negligent act or omission 
of PM AM, or any subcontractor of PM AM. Lack of insurance coverage does not negate PM AM's 
obligation under this paragraph of this Agreement. 

3.2 At all times during the term of this Agreement, PM AM shall be independent contractor and shall not 
be an employee of the City. The City shall have the right to control Contactor only insofar as the results 
of PM AM's services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. The City shall not have the right to control 
the means by which PM AM accomplishes services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 

3.3 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in no event whatsoever shall 
PM AM be liable for damages attributable to its actions or inactions,  or its subcontractor’s actions or 
inactions, with respect to the Services or Special Services provided hereunder, whether for 
indemnification or otherwise, in excess of the sum of: (i) any insurance proceeds actually received by 
PM AM, or paid by PM AM’s insurance carrier to the City, with respect to the claim for indemnification 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

108 

by the City hereunder, and (ii) the amount of fees actually retained by PM AM under this Agreement 
as its fee during the six (6) months immediately preceding the act or omission that generated PM AM’s 
indemnification obligation hereunder; provided, however, the limitations on the indemnification 
obligations of PM AM set forth in this Section shall not apply to the obligation of PM AM to pay the 
City its share of the collected revenues as set forth in this Agreement.  

3.4 Notwithstanding any other obligation of PM AM hereunder, in no event shall PM AM be liable for any 
indirect, incidental, special, consequential or punitive damages, including loss of fees, profits or 
income, arising directly or indirectly out of the provision or non-provision of Services or Special 
Services hereunder, whether or not PM AM had any knowledge that such damages might be incurred. 

3.5 If PM AM is required to indemnify the City hereunder, PM AM may assume the defense of the City 
with counsel reasonably acceptable to the City at the expense of PM AM. In addition, the City may 
engage its own counsel to participate in any defense in any such proceeding at the City’s expense. 

Article 4 
The City’s Responsibility 

4.1 The City shall cooperate with and assist PM AM by, among other things, making available, as 
reasonably requested by PM AM, management decisions, personnel, information, approvals, IT 
assistance and acceptance that are needed by PM AM to carry out its obligation under this agreement. 

Article 5 
Insurance Requirements 

5.1  At the current time, PM AM does not maintain any offices in the State in which the City is located, nor 
does PM AM maintain any employees in such State. All Services required to be performed by PM AM 
hereunder shall be performed by PM AM at its offices in the State of Texas or elsewhere outside the 
State in which the City is located. PM AM shall, at its own expense, purchase, maintain and keep in 
force during the term of this Agreement such insurance as set forth below. PM AM shall not commence 
work under this Agreement until it has obtained all the insurance required under this Agreement and 
such insurance has been approved by the City, nor shall PM AM allow any subcontractor to commence 
work on its subcontract until all similar insurance of the subcontractor has been obtained and approved. 
The insurance requirements shall remain in effect throughout the term of this Agreement. PM AM, at 
PM AM's sole cost, shall purchase and maintain, during the term of this Agreement, insurance coverage 
providing not less than the following: 

5.1.1 Comprehensive or Commercial General Liability: $500,000 combined single limit per 
occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury or death and property damage. The coverage's 
under this policy shall include those found in the Comprehensive General Liability Broad Form 
endorsement. This policy shall have no standard coverage removed by exclusions, unless 
approved by the City. 

5.1.2 Automobile Liability: $500,000 combined single limit per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage. Coverage should be provided as a "Code 1," any auto. 

5.1.3 Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability: Statutory. Employers Liability policy limits 
of $100,000 for each accident, $500,000 policy limit- Disease. The insurer shall agree to waive 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

109 

all rights of subrogation against the City, its officials, employees, and volunteers for losses 
arising from the activities under this Agreement.  

5. 2 All insurance policies, other than Professional Liability, provided under this Agreement shall be 
written on an occurrence basis. 

5.3 The City shall be named as additional insured on the General Liability and Automobile Liability 
insurance policies. These insurance policies shall contain the appropriate additional insured 
endorsement signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. If PM AM, 
for any reason, fails to maintain insurance coverage which is required under this agreement, the failure 
shall be deemed a material breach of contract. The City, at its sole option, may terminate this 
Agreement. 

5.4  Each insurance policy shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be canceled, reduced in 
coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been provided to the City, 
or in the event of cancellation because of nonpayment of premium, that the insurer shall give written 
notice to the City not later than ten (10) days following cancellation. 

5.5  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best rating of no less than A:VII. Insurers must be duly 
authorized to transact business in the State of Texas. 

5.6 Certificates of Insurance, if requested shall be submitted on the Accord form only. Certificates and 
endorsements effecting coverage required by this clause shall be forwarded to the City’s Purchasing 
Department. 

Article 6 
Termination of Agreement 

6.1 Grounds for Termination 

6.1.1 The City shall inform  PM AM in writing if PM AM fails to perform its duties under this 
Agreement with a ninety (90) days window to correct the problem. PM AM shall remedy the 
problem within ninety (90) days from the receipt of such notice. Should PM AM fail to remedy 
the problem within ninety (90) days, the City may terminate this Agreement. 

6.1.2 PM AM's Fee Schedule and pricing for any and all Services to be provided by PM AM to the 
City under this Agreement have been set, established, and agreed to be based upon the current 
provisions of applicable City ordinances relating to alarms. Should said ordinances change at 
any time during the term of this Agreement to reduce the applicable fee, fines, and charges, 
then PM AM reserves the express right to enter into good faith negotiations with the City to 
modify the Fee Schedule and pricing accordingly. If, within thirty (30) days of notice from PM 
AM to the City of its desire to so renegotiate, the parties are unable to reach an agreement 
mutually acceptable to both parties, then PM AM reserves the right to terminate this 
Agreement. Said termination shall not be deemed to be a default by PM AM under this 
Agreement, PM AM shall be paid all fees and costs due and owing PM AM as of the date of 
said termination. 

6.1.3 PM AM may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the City if the City misuses or 
attempts to appropriate the proprietary software of PM AM.  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

110 

6.2 Effect of Termination  

6.2.1 If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein, the City may require PM AM to provide all 
finished and/or unfinished data and other information of any kind possessed by PM AM in 
connection with the performance of Services under this Agreement. PM AM shall be required 
to provide such information within a reasonable period of time of receipt of the request not to 
exceed thirty (30) days. Specifically, in the event the City shall terminate this Agreement: 

6.2.1a All data relating to alarm permits shall be owned by the City. Upon termination of 
this Agreement, PM AM shall promptly deliver to the City all data in MS-SQL 
format.  

6.2.1b. PM AM retains all right and title to the Application software, including but not 
limited to, all publication rights, all development rights, all reproductions rights, 
and all rights that may follow from the commercial development of the software. 
The City does not acquire any ownership rights to the Application software. The 
Software is protected in favor of PM AM, as well as any future registered 
trademarks, are trademarks of PM AM. 

6.2.1c. The proprietary software is considered loaned to the City during the duration of 
this Agreement as laid out in this Agreement and the City will not have any access 
to PM AM's proprietary software after the conclusion of the Agreement. 

6.2.1d. The City shall pay PM AM all fees and costs due and owing PM AM as of the date 
of said termination. 

6.2.1e. The provisions of this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

Article 7 
Confidentiality of Information 

7.1 At all times, PM AM shall recognize the City's sole and exclusive ownership of all information 
provided by the City, and the sole and exclusive right and jurisdiction of the City to control the use of 
this information. Similarly, the City recognizes that the proprietary software described in Section 
6.2.1c. above is owned by PM AM and the City has no rights or claim thereto. 

7.2 Each party agrees that neither it, nor its employees, subsidiaries, subcontractors, or agents shall 
disclose confidential information of the other party, to any person or to anyone except as necessary to 
perform  its obligations under this Agreement, without the expressed written permission of the other 
party or unless required to do so by law. City shall promptly inform PM AM if City receives a 
public records request for information designated by PM AM as confidential so as to provide 
PM AM an opportunity to object.  

7.3 Each party further agrees that in the event that any documents containing confidential information of 
the other party should be improperly used or  removed in any way from the possession or control of 
the other party by a party, the breaching party shall immediately notify the other party orally and in 
writing, and shall join with the other party at their request in taking such reasonable steps as the owner 
of the confidential information may deem advisable to enjoin the misuse and regain possession of such 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

111 

confidential information, or steps otherwise necessary for the protection of the owner’s rights and the 
confidentiality of the information. 

7.4 PM AM agrees to return any and all data furnished and information derived hereunder promptly upon 
a request by the City and its authorized designee. 

Article 8 
General Provisions 

8.1 This Agreement and its attachments constitute the sole and only agreement between the parties and 
supersede any prior understandings written or oral agreements between the parties with respect to this 
subject matter. 

8.2 Except as otherwise provided herein, neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, interests or 
obligations hereunder may be assigned by any of the parties hereto without the prior written consent 
of the other party; provided that PM AM may assign this Agreement to its successor without consent 
by the City by giving written notice to the City. This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the 
benefit of the parties to it and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, 
successors, and assigns.  

8.3 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas; and venue for any action 
concerning this Agreement shall be in Dallas County, Texas. 

8.4 This Agreement may be amended by the mutual written agreement of the parties. 

8.5 In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason be 
held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability shall not effect any other provisions, and the Agreement shall be construed as if such 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained in it. 

8.6 Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder may be sent by first class mail or overnight 
courier to the address specified below, or to such other party or address as either party may designate 
in writing, and shall be deemed received three (3) days after delivery set forth herein: 

 
City of ________,___: ___________________ 

___________________ 
  ___________________ 
  ___________________ 
  
PM AM:   PMAM Corporation 
   Attn: Mr. Pankaj Kumar, President 

 5430 LBJ Freeway, Suite 370  
 Dallas, TX 75240 

8.7 This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original.  
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

112 

(Signature Page Follows on Next Page) 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

113 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 

__________ day of __________________ in the year ___________. 

City of _____________ PMAM Corporation 

By: ________________________________  By: ___________________________ 
Name: ________________________________   PANKAJ KUMAR, 
Title: ________________________________   Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
Attest: Attest: 
 
 
By: ________________________________  By: ___________________________ 
Name: ________________________________  Name:  ___________________________ 
Title: ________________________________  Title:  ___________________________ 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

114 

Exhibit A 

Scope of Work and Requirements 

Scope of Work:  

It will be PM AM's responsibility to provide, install, and operate the Professional Services Alarm Management 
Services Program based on a "False Alarm Management Solution" system hereafter referred to as a FAMS 
system and all other necessary equipment and services on a "software as a service" basis. PM AM shall 
accurately convert all pertinent data downloaded from the City’s current primary alarm and accounts/receivable 
databases to populate the FAMS system. Effective interfaces shall ensure that all parties share and benefit from 
the most current and accurate information. 

PM AM shall provide appropriate supplies and services including but not limited to; 

1. Single point of contact and daily resident assistance  

2. Maintenance of databases: 

a. Alarm permits 

b. Permit Holders 

c. Permit Holders with outstanding charges 

d. Non-permitted locations with outstanding charges 

e. Address verification database 

3. Collection of payments in accordance with the rates established by the alarm ordinance, and any implementing 
resolutions or orders, as may be amended from time to time by the City. 

4. Performance of all the billing in accordance with the City’s alarm ordinance, as may be amended from time to 
time by the City. 

5. Generation of the following reports including but not limited to: 

a. New alarm permits issued and fees collected 

b. Annual permit renewals billed and fees collected 

c. Permits inactivated or revoked and reason for inactivation or revocation 

d. Permits reinstated and reason for reinstatement 

e. Number of false burglar alarms 

f. Number of false burglar alarms billed and fees collected 

g. Number of false robbery alarms 

h. Number of false robbery alarms billed and fees collected 

i. Number of reinstatement fees billed and fees collected 

j. False burglary and/or robbery alarms for permit owners 

k. False burglary and/or robbery alarms for non-permitted owners 

l. Suspension or revocation Report for permit holders as per ordinance, if applicable 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

115 

6. System functionality to capture the following information: 

a. Permit number 

b. Permit issue date 

c. Permit expiration date 

d. Permit type (residential / commercial) 

e. Name of business or residential permit holder 

f. Site 
1)  Street address and zip code of property 
2)  Type of property (residential / commercial) 
3)  Telephone numbers 
4)  Contact persons (minimum of 2) and phone number(s) 
5)  Type of alarm system installed (burglary, panic, robbery)  

g. Billing 
1)  Name 
2)  Full mailing address (includes zip code) 
3)  Contact person and phone number(s)  

h. Permit Holder Responsible for Alarm 
1)  Name 
2)  Complete mailing address 
3)  Phone numbers 

i. Name and telephone number of alarm monitoring company 

j. Name and telephone number of company that installed the alarm system 

k. Special Medical Concerns 

l. Pet Information 

7. System functionality to generate notices to alarm users without permits. 

8. Transfer online and/or via magnetic media a skeleton version of entire registration database from FAMS system 
to RMS including the following: 

1)  Permit number (or non-permitted identifier) 
2)  Name of  permit holder 
3)  Location of permit holder 
4)   Permit status 
5)  Expiration date 
6)  Last false alarm incident date and time 
7) Alarm type (i.e., burglar, panic, etc.) 
8) False alarm incident count 

9. Transfer online and/or via magnetic media incident records from RMS to FAMS including: 
1)  Incident number  
2)  Priority 
3)  Call code 
4)  Disposition 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

116 

5)  Date 
6)  Time: 

(a)  Received 
(b)  Dispatched 
(c)  Arrived 
(d)  Cleared 

7)  Remarks 
8)  Site name and address 
9)  Reportee name, address, phone number 
10)  Dispatcher- employee number and terminal 
11)  Phone clerk - employee number and terminal  
12)  Cleared code and disposition (true/false) 
13)  Officer number 
14)  Unit(s) assigned. 

Collection requirements and provisions:  

PM AM will design, implement, and maintain a system to serve as the billing and collections agent and accounts 
receivable (A/R) manager for the City Alarm Program Administration and Collection Service. PM AM will 
provide all hardware, software, materials, supplies, space, and staff resources as required. The system will meet 
the following collection specifications: 

1. Bill format will provide stub or appropriate remittance form to accompany payment. 

2. Bill format, permit forms, envelopes and related correspondence will identify the location of a PM 
AM staffed and maintained office so the customer may have the ability to obtain direct answers to 
questions about their bills and related false alarm system information. 

3. All bills, correspondence and related matters will be approved by the City. 

4. Bills will be due in timelines specified in the ordinance and or rules and regulations as appropriate. 

5. Records of bills will be retained by PM AM to apply to Account Receivable system (A/R) to be 
maintained by PM AM. 

6. PM AM will develop an A/R file, which the City will have access to review at any time. 

7. System functionality for the City to print a bill for customers wishing to make payments at the walk-
in cashier location(s) of the City and to provide on-line information to PM AM regarding such 
payments so that PM AM can maintain A/R file. 

8. PM AM will provide the ability for customer to pay on-line, by mail and via walk-in cashier. 

9. Payments made by mail will be directed to a P.O. Box address in Texas maintained and managed by 
PM AM, unless and until the City directs that such payments be directed to a lock box address 
established by the City. 

10. PM AM system will track NSF or insufficient fund check occurrences and occurrences where 
customer stop payments have been ordered. 

11. PM AM will provide system for billing the customer for the appropriate NSF or insufficient fund 
check fee charges and charges for stop payment situations. 

12. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Services provided hereunder do not extend to any debt collection 
activities in the event the property owner does not pay the amount of the invoice submitted by PM 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

117 

AM. Any such debt collection activities shall be performed by an independent contractor selected 
either by (i) PM AM with the prior written consent of the City or its designee, or (ii) the City or its 
designee or agent upon written notice to PM AM.  

Processing: 

PM AM shall provide the services covered under this Agreement and Scope from its offices in Texas and make 
available hardware and software and services necessary to establish and provide the Alarm Program 
Administration and Collection Service.  

PM AM's Obligation: 

In addition to the above, PM AM shall: 

1. Maintain the proposed equipment, hardware, and software, documentation, and support services for the 
equipment installed, including the timely incorporation of all engineering changes. 

2. Supply the City with an interface document describing the type, size, location, and medium of transfer 
from the City RMS. 

3. Defer to the City regarding the waiver of any false alarm fee incurred where there is question about the 
validity of any response or action taken by an employee(s) of the City regarding a specified alarm call. 

4. When possible, reports shall be produced based on the entry of variable parameters. Threshold fields shall 
allow a specific date range or other criteria. When possible, all   report searches, shall allow for multiple 
parameters. 

Training 

1. PM AM shall provide training for the City and Police employees. Training shall be conducted in several 
sessions on an as needed basis. 

System Coordination 

1. PM AM shall coordinate with the City’s Finance Department, Information Services, and the City Police 
Department to develop a system that will allow walk-in payments under the Agreement. 

2. PM AM shall provide during the life of the Agreement on-going computer hardware, software support 
and maintenance to ensure uninterrupted operation. In the unlikely event of interruption, PM AM will 
make best efforts to restore service within seventy-two (72) hours. 

3. PM AM under this Agreement shall establish and provide public education, awareness, and information 
regarding the City’s Alarm Management Program. 

City Licensing Fees 
 
1. The City acknowledges and agrees that PM AM shall be exempt from any applicable City license fees 

in performing its services hereunder. 

Exhibit “B” 

Pricing and Receipt of Collections 

This is a revenue sharing contract. PM AM shall retain the percentages and amounts listed in the table below 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

118 

of all collections and remit the percentage balance and amounts listed in the table below to the City for the total 
of the actual revenues generated and collected for the City during the life of this Agreement including all 
adjustments for: 

a. Alarm permit and renewal fees; 
b.  False alarms violation fee above a mandated limit;  
c.  Reinstatement fees; 
d.  Late fee for false alarms, permit fees and renewal fees 
e.   Other charges imposed by the City in relation to the City’s 
f. Alarm Program Management and Collection Services  

(except for criminal penalties). 
  

PM AM Corporation City of ________, __ 

XX% XX% 
 
The City and PM AM shall share the revenue generated from fees, fines, and penalties as described above; 
provided that all bank charges and mailing cost incurred in connection with the Services rendered under this 
Agreement by PM AM shall be paid by the program before the foregoing split of fees.  
 
The City shall pay PM AM a $10 processing fee for each refund check processed by PM AM through the 
Program (the “Processing Fee”) promptly upon receipt of an invoice from PM AM for such Processing Fee. 
 
PM AM reserves the right to renegotiate this pricing should the City change the fee schedule for the false alarm 
ordinance.  
 
The City acknowledges that PM AM is installing the Program at no cost the City. Consequently, in the event 
the City terminates this Agreement within 12 months from the Effective Date for any reason other than the 
failure of PM AM to perform its Services hereunder that has not been cured by PM AM within 30 days of 
receipt of written notice of the problem, PM AM shall be entitled to receive, and the City shall pay to PM AM, 
the fees that PM AM would have received hereunder for a period of 12 months less the number of months, if 
any, that PM AM was paid its fees hereunder prior to the termination of this Agreement (the “Guaranteed 
Period”). If this Agreement is terminated after the Contract Implementation Date, the amount of the fees to be 
paid to PM AM shall be the average of the monthly fees retained by PM AM prior to termination of this 
Agreement multiplied by the number of months remaining in the Guaranteed Period. If this Agreement is 
terminated prior to the Contract Implementation Date, the amount of fees to be paid to PM AM shall be the 
amount of the fees projected by the parties to be retained by PM AM during the Guaranteed Period at the time 
this Agreement was executed. The amount of any fees payable to PM AM pursuant to the provisions of this 
paragraph shall be paid by the City upon termination this Agreement unless the parties agree to have such 
amount paid in equal monthly installments over an agreed period of time. The provisions of this paragraph shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement.  

In addition, in recognition of the fact that PM AM’s Services under the Agreement and the expenses incurred 
by PM AM in performing such Services are incurred in advance of PM AM receiving a percentage of the fees 
collected under this Agreement and that the City shall have the benefit of such work as may have been 
completed up to the time of such termination, City agrees to continue to pay PM AM its percentage of fees 
collected for a period of 90 days after the termination of this Agreement on fees collected during such period 
that are attributable to amounts billed by PM AM to permit holders prior to the date of termination of this 
Agreement.  This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

119 

The share of the revenues payable to PM AM and the City in accordance with the provisions of this Exhibit B 
shall be determined and paid monthly within 15 days after the end of each calendar month during the Term 
hereof based upon the amount of collections during the immediately preceding calendar month, adjusted for 
any outstanding authorized reimbursements or expenses payable to PM AM in accordance with the terms of 
this Agreement. 

  



PM AM Response to RFP No. 2024.07.09.01 for City of Brea, CA - Confidential | Vendor Sensitive (Not for Public Disclosure) 

 

 
 

120 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Headquartered in Dallas, Texas, PM AM Corporation is a leading Information Technology and Consulting 

company that delivers cutting-edge technology solutions to enable its clients to do business better. Our experts 

are driven to deliver meaningful technology solutions and winning business outcomes. At PM AM, we have deep 

industry experience, technical excellence, and 360-degree view of business technology that help us to make our 

clients future-ready. Our flexible delivery models and agile methodologies have enabled us to devise and execute 

solutions ensuring our clients’ success. 

PM AM Corporation 

5430 Lyndon B Johnson Fwy #370, Dallas, TX 75240 

Phone : 972-831-7400 

Fax : 972-831-7499 

Email : sales@pmam.com 

Website: www.pmam.com  

 



PMAM Agreement Final 061725
Final Audit Report 2025-05-29

Created: 2025-05-28

By: Stephanie Garcia (stephanieg@ci.brea.ca.us)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAmRCmPIlBKeMTuk_uzfdNzm2NoqfPQ7uv

"PMAM Agreement Final 061725" History
Document created by Stephanie Garcia (stephanieg@ci.brea.ca.us)
2025-05-28 - 10:53:16 PM GMT- IP address: 207.213.88.194

Document emailed to James McReynolds (jamesm@pmam.com) for signature
2025-05-28 - 10:54:32 PM GMT

Email viewed by James McReynolds (jamesm@pmam.com)
2025-05-29 - 1:56:57 PM GMT- IP address: 64.190.133.130

Document e-signed by James McReynolds (jamesm@pmam.com)
Signature Date: 2025-05-29 - 1:58:30 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 64.190.133.130

Document emailed to Pankaj Kumar (pankajk@pmam.com) for signature
2025-05-29 - 1:58:35 PM GMT

Email viewed by Pankaj Kumar (pankajk@pmam.com)
2025-05-29 - 2:29:19 PM GMT- IP address: 203.194.109.242

Document e-signed by Pankaj Kumar (pankajk@pmam.com)
Signature Date: 2025-05-29 - 6:08:32 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 64.190.133.130

Agreement completed.
2025-05-29 - 6:08:32 PM GMT


	FinanceCommittee-2025-06-10
	Item 2A. 
	05-13-2025 FC minutes DRAFT
	Item 3A. 
	25-27 Vehicles and Equipment Schedule
	Item 3B. 
	Exhibit A - Maintenance Districts Map
	Resolution - LLMD #1
	Resolution - LLMD #2
	Resolution - LLMD #3
	Resolution - LLMD #4
	Resolution - LLMD #5
	Resolution - LLMD #6
	Resolution - LLMD #7
	Item 3C. 
	Attachment 1 - RFP Copier Multifunction Printer Replacement FINAL
	Attachment 2 - City of Brea RFP No 2025.01.06.01 SHARP Full Response 1-30-25-merged
	Item 3D. 
	RFP No. 2025.05.02.01 -Pre-Employment Background Investigation Services for Fire
	Agreement_JL Group LLC. (part 1)-signed
	Final Agreement_RCS Investigations (part 1) - signed
	Item 3E. 
	Attachment A - Resolution
	Item 3F. 
	Attachment A - Eligibility Checklist
	Attachment B - CIP Project listing
	Attachment C - MPAH and MFP Resolution
	Attachment D - CMP Checklist
	Attachment E - MOE Certification Form
	Attachment F - PMP
	Attachment G - PMP Resolution
	Attachment H - General Plan Transit & Active Transportation Letter
	Item 3G. 
	GEOCON-WEST-INC.-06-17-2025 - Draft Amendment
	BKF-Engineers-06-17-2025 - draft Amendment
	Item 3H. 
	PM AM - RFP Response for Brea CA For Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services_Final
	RFP 2024.07.09.01 Police Alarm Permit and False Alarm Billing and Collection Services_clean
	Addendum No. 1_RFP 2024.07.09.01_Final
	PMAM Agreement Final 061725 (part 1) - signed
	PMAM Agreement Final 061725 - audit

		2025-06-04T18:49:51+0000
	Certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


		2025-05-29T22:10:59+0000
	Certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


		2025-05-29T18:08:46+0000
	Certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


		2025-05-29T18:08:47+0000
	Certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign




